
1 

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 
 

 
Municipal Building, 

Kingsway, 
Widnes. 

WA8 7QF 
 

12 July 2011 
 

 
 
 

 
TO:  MEMBERS OF THE HALTON 
 BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of the Halton 
Borough Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Runcorn Town Hall on 
Wednesday, 20 July 2011 commencing at 6.30 p.m. for the purpose of 
considering and passing such resolution(s) as may be deemed necessary or 
desirable in respect of the matters mentioned in the Agenda. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
      Chief Executive 



2 

-AGENDA- 
 

1. SOCIAL HOUSING IN HALTON   
 
 Nick Atkin from Halton Housing Trust and Neil Townsend from Riverside Housing 

will brief Members on social housing in Halton. 
 

2. COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
4. THE MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
6. LEADER'S REPORT 
 
7. MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
 a) 26 May 2011   

  
 b) 16 June 2011   

  
 c) 30 June 2011   

  
8. MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD SUB COMMITTEE 
 
 a) 26 May 2011   

  
 b) 16 June 2011   

  
 c) 30 June 2011   

  
9. MINUTES OF THE MERSEY GATEWAY EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
10. MINUTES OF THE 3MG EXECUTIVE SUB BOARD 
 
11. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 8 
 
12. MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 a) Local HealthWatch Pathfinders (Minute EXB 5 refers)   

 



3 

  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Council note that, after consultation with the 
Leader and Members of the Executive Board, the Chief Executive, under 
delegated powers (Matters of Urgency, Constitution) determined not to 
submit a Local HealthWatch Pathfinders proposal. 
 
 
 
 

 b) Transport Capital Implementation Programme 2011/12 ( Minute EXB 7 
refers)   

 
  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 

 
RECOMMENDED: That 
 
 

(1) the Local Transport Settlement and indicative allocations 
covering the Comprehensive Spending Review Period be 
noted;  

 
(2) Council be recommended to approve the following sums for 

incorporation into the Council’s Capital Programme for 2011/12: 
 
Transport Implementation Programme £2,663,000;  
Transport Major Scheme Capital Funding (SJB) £4,416,000;  
Street Lighting £200,000; 
Flood Defence £106,000; 
Fleet Replacements £370,000. 

 
(3) authority to agree the detailed programme of schemes, based 

where appropriate upon the four year implementation 
Programme described in the Local Transport Plan 3, be 
delegated to the Strategic Director Policy and Resources, in 
consultation with the Executive Board Member for 
Transportation; and 

 
(4) a bid for funding from the Government’s Sustainable Transport 

Fund be prepared for presentation to the Board before 
submission to Department for Transport by 24th February 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 

 c) Shopmobility (Minute ES4 refers)   
 



4 

  The Executive Board Sub Committee considered the attached report:- 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Council note that, after consultation with the 
Leader and Members of the Executive Board Sub Committee, the Chief 
Executive had, under delegated powers (Matters of Urgency, Constitution), 
expressed support for the Licence to be agreed as set out in paragraph 3.7 
of the report. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 

 d) Adults and Community Capital Programme (Minute EXB 15 refers)   
 

  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 
 
RECOMMENDED: That 
 

(1) the final 2010/11 outturn figures be noted; and 
 
(2) that the Council approve the capital project for 2011/12 as set 

out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
 
 

 e) Changes to Procurement Standing Orders (Minute EXB 17 refers)   
 

  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Council be recommended to approve the changes 
to Procurement Standing Orders as set out in Appendix 1 located at 
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=316&MId=3704
&Ver=4 
. 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 f) Halton Core Strategy - Submission to the Secretary of State - KEY 
DECISION (Minute EXB 18 refers)   

 



5 

  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 
 
RECOMMENDED: That 
 

(1) the Halton Core Strategy Revised Proposed Submission 
Document (May 2011) be approved for Submission to the 
Secretary of State under Regulation 30 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 
2008; 

 

(2) any minor editorial amendments required to improve the 
legibility of the Halton Core Strategy be agreed with the 
Inspector by the Operational Director for Policy, Planning and 
Transportation in consultation with the Executive Board 
Member for Physical Environment; 

 

(3) authority be delegated to the Strategic Director, Policy and 
Resources, to enter into discussions with parties and to 
suggest wording changes, as are deemed necessary by the 
Inspector to reach agreement on matters discussed at the 
examination into the soundness of the Core Strategy; and 

 

(4) material weight to give to the Halton Core Strategy Revised 
Proposed Submission Document (May 2011) as a material 
consideration in Council Development Control policy decisions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 g) Children and Young People's Plan 2011-14 - KEY DECISION (MInute 
EXB 19 refers)   

 
  The Executive Board considered the attached report:- 

 
RECOMMENDED: That Council be recommended to endorse and adopt 
the Children and Young People’s Plan 2011-14. 
  
 
 

 h) Annual Reports of PPBs   
 

   To consider the attached report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the 2010/2011 Annual Reports submitted from the 
Policy and Performance Boards be received. 
 

 i) Standards Committee Annual Report (Minute STC 3 refers)   
 



6 

  The Standards Committee considered the attached report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Standards Committee Annual Report 2010/11 
be received. 
 

 j) Appointments to Outside Bodies   
 

  To consider the attached report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Council appoint representatives to the Outside 
Bodies. 

 
 
 

13. MINUTES OF THE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARDS AND THE 
BUSINESS EFFICIENCY BOARD 

 
 a) Children, Young People and Families - yellow pages   

  
 b) Employment, Learning, Skills and Community - cream pages   

  
 c) Health - blue pages   

  
 d) Safer - pink pages   

  
 e) Environment and Urban Renewal - green pages   

  
 f) Corporate Services - salmon pages   

  
 g) Business Efficiency Board - white pages   

  
14. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
 a) Development Control - pink pages   

  
 b) Standards - white pages   

  
 c) Regulatory - blue pages   

  
 d) Appeals Panel - white pages   



7 

  
 e) Mayoral Committee -yellow pages   

  
15. NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   
 
 The following motion has been submitted in accordance with Standing Order 

No.6: 
 
Proposer: Councillor A Lowe 
 
Seconder: Councillor Stockton 
 

“DEFENDING THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 
 
 
Council notes: 
 
The LGPS is a sustainable, good quality pension scheme that benefits from being 
funded and locally managed. It is valuable to employers and employees alike. 
This coalition government has failed to recognise the distinctiveness of the LGPS 
in setting policy, most notably in the proposal announced by the Chancellor in the 
last CSR to impose an extra 3.2% contribution tax on scheme members, 
increasing scheme average member contributions from 6.6% to 9.8%. This tax 
does not benefit the scheme, or scheme members, or employers. This proposal is 
in addition to pension reductions caused by being indexed against  CPI instead of 
RPI and is in advance of expected benefit reform recommendations from the 
Hutton Review. 
 
Council agrees: 
 
An increase in member contributions as proposed will lead to mass opt outs from 
the LGPS and that would be undesirable and damaging. The views expressed by 
the LGA in its letter to the Chancellor dated 16 February 2011 on this subject are 
also the views of this Council. 
 
Council resolves: 
 
Council will write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer and the Chief Secretary to 
the Treasury and the Secretary of State for Local Government within the next 
month stating this Councils support for the LGA letter referred to above and 
calling for government to rethink it’s proposed increases to LGPS member 
contributions. Council will work with Trade Unions to ensure employees are made 
aware of the proposals for the LGPS and encouraging them to support the 
Council’s representations to defend their pension scheme. 
 
This Council is strongly opposed to this proposed change in pension policy for 
Local Government workers and calls on the Government to reconsider its 
proposals.” 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board 

DATE: 
 

26 May 2011  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director, Communities  
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Local HealthWatch Pathfinders 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  To report the use of the Chief Executive’s powers regarding the 
background to Local HealthWatch Pathfinders and highlight 
implications for the Local Authority in applying for Pathfinder status. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Council notes that after consultation with the Leader 
and Members of the Executive Board, the Chief Executive has 
under delegated powers (Matters of Urgency, Constitution) 
determined not to submit a Local HealthWatch Pathfinders 
proposal. 
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

3.1 Local Health Watch 
 
The Government has announced that HealthWatch will replace 
Local Involvement Network (LINks).  Currently LINks are 
contractually managed and administered by St Helens and Halton 
VCA, however each Borough has a separate Board.  Local 
HealthWatch will build on the current remit of and strengthen the 
ways in which commissioners and providers take the views of 
patients and the public into account when improving the quality and 
safety of health and social care services.  
 

3.2 Subject to the passing of the Health and Social Care Bill, the remit of 
Local HealthWatch will include: 
 
• Ensuring that the views of patients, carers and the public are 

represented to commissioners and provide local intelligence for 
HealthWatch England.  

• Work alongside the role of the public, members, commissioners 
and governors of foundation trusts in influencing providers and 
having a role in service design and delivery.  

• Local HealthWatch will have a seat on the Health and Wellbeing 
Board in Halton. 

Agenda Item 12aPage 1



• Local authorities will be able to commission Local HealthWatch 
to provide advocacy, advice and information to support people if 
they have a complaint and to help people make choices about 
services. This could include helping people to access and 
understand information about provider performance and safety, 
and the NHS Constitution. 

• Involvement in the scrutiny of local care services. 
• Local HealthWatch will be able to escalate concerns about the 

quality of health and care services to the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC). 

 
3.3 Local Authorities will continue with their role as commissioners for 

Local Healthwatch, as they currently do for LINk. 
 

3.4 
 

Local HealthWatch will become effective at the earliest in July 2012 

 Local HealthWatch Pathfinders 
 

3.5 A letter from the Department of Health (DH) dated 7th March 2011 
invited Local Authorities and their LINks to apply to become a 
Pathfinder.  HealthWatch Pathfinders will be able to test and 
challenge emerging models with and alongside other Local 
Authorities and LINks.  
 

3.6 During this transition period a network of action learning sets will 
also be developed which will engage and involve all LINKs with a 
view to support all LINks with the transition to HealthWatch. 
 

3.7 HealthWatch Pathfinders will be a partnership between the local 
LINk, the Host and the Local Authority and will: 
 
• Submit funded plans for 2011/12 from the Local Authority with 

the LINK and Host organisation. Where more than one Local 
Authority wants to work collaboratively in order to test new 
boundaries and potential overlaps in the new system, these 
plans should be described; 

• Propose the agreed areas of focus of the Pathfinder, in particular 
how it will test the new functions of HealthWatch; 

• Build and test new relationships with the Health and Wellbeing 
Board early implementers and GP Consortia Pathfinders, looking 
at how collaborative working with community based member and 
voluntary organisations could help support the role of 
HealthWatch; 

• Describe how it will evaluate and share it’s learning with other 
pathfinders and the network of action learning sets. 

 
3.8 Initial feedback from the North West Regional LINk Authorities 

Network suggests that St Helens, Bolton and Lancashire are unlikely 
to apply to be a Pathfinder, with Blackpool, Warrington, Wigan and 
Cumbria indicating that they may apply.  

Page 2



 
3.9 The Halton LINk Board voted in favour of submitting a Pathfinder 

business plan, although made it clear that they wished the 
pathfinder to focus upon the geographical area of Halton. This would 
therefore  conflict with the existing contractual arrangements, as 
eluded to in 3.1. The Halton LINk Manager has indicated that they 
would require some additional resource to support the process. 
 

4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 
 

Pathfinders should test which models most effectively deliver locally 
commissioned services to support patient choice and complaints 
advocacy. They should highlight any potential conflicts that arise 
between Health Watch’s different roles and test ways of addressing 
these.  
 

4.2 Pathfinders should explore more fully a number of issues that the 
HealthWatch consultation has raised, for example:  
 
• Test different structures for governance and accountability of 

local HealthWatch, including the role of hosts. 
• Explore how different patient engagement organisations can 

work in a complementary way. 
• Capacity of LINk/HealthWatch members. 

 
This will require research, consultation and analysis with the LINk 
Host, Members and patient engagement organisations to identify 
viable arrangements that take account of the additional 
responsibilities of Local HealthWatch. The Halton LiNk Board have 
indicated that they would not want advocacy to be part of the 
pathfinder submission. 
 

4.3 The Health and Social Care Bill provides for regulations to be made 
setting out what local HealthWatch membership should look like. But 
the Bill will not prescribe exactly how each local HealthWatch should 
provide people with advice and information, allowing a degree of 
flexibility for Local Authorities. An early priority for Pathfinders will be 
to test out how relationships and accountabilities will work, 
especially the relationship between local authorities, local 
HealthWatch and HealthWatch England. To date there is no further 
guidance relating to this. 
 

4.4 The Pathfinders will be required to test new relationships with the 
Health and Wellbeing Board early implementers and GP Consortia 
Pathfinders in order to develop their understanding of local 
communities and consider how best to ensure patients and the 
public are involved and engaged in commissioning. 
 

4.5 The Department of Health wish to commence Pathfinders in late 
May 2011, therefore business plans need to be submitted no later 

Page 3



than 12th May 2011.   
 

4.6 On 5th April 2011 the Health Secretary announced a pause of up to 
3 months in the progress of the Health and Social Care Bill through 
Parliament to listen to national concerns about the reforms. Other 
than a delay to the implementation date of the Bill, It is not known at 
this stage what affect, if any, this may have on the Local 
HealthWatch Pathfinders. 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 The LINk host has agreed reduced funding totalling £85,727 for the 
transitional year, of which £43,727 was allocated from the Council’s 
2011/2012 budget, although this will be subject to approval by 
Executive Board Sub Committee  in June 2011.  
 

5.2 No additional funding has been retained by the Council to support 
development of HealthWatch on top of what has been agreed to 
maintain the existing LINk operation during the transitional period.  
 

5.3 There is no further detail regarding the possible financial resources 
available from the Department of Health as outlined in the Pathfinder 
Invitation letter. Any funding made available to support to the 
Pathfinders will be limited and is subject to the outcome of the 
Departments business planning. 
 

5.4 The Link Host raised concerns over financial and personnel 
resource of the Host and Board that may be required to attend the 
Evaluation events, which the Department of Health ‘HealthWatch 
Transition Plan’ indicates will take place in London. This will incur a 
financial cost.   
 

5.5 The Link Board and Host have raised some concern over capacity of 
the Board and Host to develop the business plan and delivery of the 
pathfinder against the Department of Health’s timescales, given that 
the LINk are committed to a number of information and consultation 
events during the period that the Pathfinder processes will be 
established. 
 

6.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 View of the LINk Board: 
 
The LINk Board and members volunteer their time and there have 
been some concerns expressed by LINk Board regarding the 
capacity of the Board and Host to undertake additional 
responsibilities in addition to what is required under the existing LINk 
mandate. The Board’s view was that if Halton were to develop a 
transition plan that was purely Halton focused, with no collaborative 
working with other areas then the Council should submit a 

Page 4



Pathfinder business plan. However, if collaborative working were to 
be explored, the complexities and resource requirements of 
coordinating this might put Halton under undue pressure if it were a 
Pathfinder, having to work to Pathfinder timescales. 
 

6.2 Exploring collaborative working with other areas 
 
Whilst the Link Board acknowledge that the issue of the NHS 
Complaints Advocacy is almost a separate issue, where exploring 
working with other Local Authorities would make sense in order to 
benefit from economies of scale, the LINk Board are clear that they 
would not want to explore working across other geographical 
boundaries for any other part of the HealthWatch remit.  The Board 
would be concerned that any joining up with other geographical 
areas (for example developing a Mid Mersey HealthWatch) could 
constitute a watering down of the Local HealthWatch remit. 
  
Halton Borough Council has been approached by Liverpool City 
Council to take part in a Mid Merseyside meeting to explore where 
there may be opportunity for collaborative working. A date has yet to 
be set for this meeting. In addition, the North West LINk Authorities 
Network will also be meeting in May to explore opportunities for 
collaborative working across a wider footprint. 
 

6.3 Evaluation and feedback process  
 

The Department of Health have advised that there will be no 
prescriptive Pathfinder analysis/evaluation requirements issued from 
them. Instead there will be a number of events to share findings and 
learning points that the Authority and LINk will be expected to attend 
and contribute to. In order to meet the commitment to contribute to 
these shared learning events it will be down to the Local Authority 
and LINk to include an analysis and evaluation process as part of 
their business plan. 

 
The Link Host raised concerns over financial and personnel 
resource of the Host and Board that may be required to attend the 
evaluation events, which the Department of Health ‘HealthWatch 
Transition Plan’ indicates will take place in London. 
 

7.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 

7.1 The Council has already been accepted as an Early Implementer for 
the establishment of Health & Wellbeing Boards and it has 
supported the GP Consortia Pathfinders.  In addition, the Council is 
working with the new Mersey NHS Clusters and  with Ashton, Wigan 
& Leigh NHS Trust and will shortly be addressing the transfer of 
Public Health functions to the Council.  This is a large drain upon 
Council time and resources and supporting a further Pathfinder 
would stretch current Council Officer and Elected Member time. 

Page 5



 
7.2 Applying for Pathfinder status may be of benefit to the current LINk 

Host in terms of raising their profile and positioning themselves for 
future developments when the Local HealthWatch Host tender is 
released in due course. 
 

7.3 As there will be no significant financial support, if any, and no 
additional personnel resource to test the new functions of Local 
HealthWatch and the associated analysis and evaluation there is a 
question about cost/benefit of becoming a pathfinder. Through the 
action learning sets that are to be established Halton would get 
support in the development Local HealthWatch from other areas 
who were Pathfinders, regardless if Halton was a Pathfinder. 
 

7.4 If Halton were not to submit a Pathfinder business plan, the LINk 
Board have indicated that they would expect there to be a Transition 
Plan agreed between them and the Authority detailing how they will 
work together to plan for HealthWatch and it is therefore proposed 
that instead of putting forward a Pathfinder that a Council working 
group be established with partners as part of the action learning set. 
 

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

8.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 
No implications - There is no explicit duty on National or Local 
HealthWatch to promote the involvement of Children and Young 
People in the development of their services or care. 
 

8.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 
None identified. 
 

8.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Through Local HealthWatch Halton residents will contribute to the 
health improvement agenda by scrutinising the quality of 
commissioned services and by having a voice in determining the 
types of services that are commissioned to meet local health and 
social care needs. 
 

8.4 A Safer Halton  
 

None identified. 
 

8.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

None identified. 
 

 

Page 6



9.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

9.1 Halton LINk has a Transition Group in place, of which a Council 
Policy Officer is a member. The Group, with partners, will undertake 
an assessment of the current LINk arrangements and success. An 
evaluation of which will form the basis of a transitional plan to 
HealthWatch. This plan will be developed in conjunction with the 
current LINk board, the LINk host, Halton Borough Council, the PCT 
and the GP Commissioning Consortia. 
 

10.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

10.1 Local Healthwatch has a remit to seek the views of and represent all 
sectors of the community and undertake actions to facilitate this. 
 

11.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None. 
 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  Executive Board  
 
DATE: 26th May 2011  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Policy and Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Transport Capital Implementation 

Programme 2011/12  
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

The purpose of the report is to seek approval to the inclusion of the 
Transport Capital Implementation Programme and other projects into the 
Council’s 2011/12 Capital Programme. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  That 
 

(1) the Local Transport Settlement and indicative allocations 
covering the Comprehensive Spending Review Period be 
noted;  

 
(2) the Council be recommended to approve the following 

sums for incorporation into the Council’s Capital 
Programme for 2011/12: 

Transport Implementation Programme £2,663,000;  
Transport Major Scheme Capital Funding (SJB) 
£4,416,000;  
Street Lighting £200,000; 
Flood Defence £106,000; 
Fleet Replacements £370,000. 

 
(3) authority to agree the detailed programme of schemes, 

based where appropriate upon the four year implementation 
Programme described in the Local Transport Plan 3, be 
delegated to the Strategic Director Policy and Resources, in 
consultation with the Executive Board Member for 
Transportation; and 

 
(4) a bid for funding from the Government’s Sustainable 

Transport Fund be prepared for presentation to the Board 
before submission to Department for Transport (DfT) by 24th 
February 2012. 

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Halton’s third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) was approved by the 

Executive Board on 17th March 2011 (Minute EXB 103 Refers).  The key 
issues for Transport in Halton, identified through the public consultation 

Agenda Item 12bPage 9



exercise for LTP3 are listed in Appendix 1 to this report.  LTP3 contains 
within its Implementation Plan Appendix (and also within the Executive 
Summary) details of the Government’s final local transport capital block 
settlements for 2011/12 and 2012/13 and indicative settlements for 
2013/14 and 2014/15, which cover the whole period of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR10).   

 
3.2 As part of CSR10, the Department for Transport (DfT) announced a 

radical simplification of local transport funding, moving from 26 separate 
grant streams to just four: 
• Block funding for small transport improvement schemes – the 

Integrated Transport Block (capital).  
• block funding for highways maintenance (capital); 
• major schemes (capital); and 
• a new local sustainable transport fund (capital and revenue) 

 
All other specific grants were ended with reduced allocations being 
incorporated within the main Local Government Formula Grant 
administered by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government.   The grants no longer available to the Council (with 
2010/11 amounts given in brackets) are listed in Appendix 2. 

 
3.3 The settlements under the transport grant streams are detailed below: 
 

Integrated Transport and Highway Capital Maintenance Block Funding 
 

Block Allocations  2011/12  
Final 
£000s  

2012/13  
Final  
£000s 

2013/14  
Indicative 
£000s  

2014/15  
Indicative 
£000s  

Integrated Transport  680 725 725 1,020 
Highways Capital 
Maintenance  

1,983 2,078  1,960 1,816 

 
Local authority integrated transport block and highway capital 
maintenance allocations are calculated through needs-based formulae. 
The settlement represents a significant reduction in transport funding 
from previous years.  The Integrated Transport budget is cut by 61% 
and Highway Capital Maintenance is cut by 9% compared with the 
2010/11 allocations.  This will have a particularly adverse impact on the 
number and type of integrated transport schemes that we can deliver in 
future years. 

 
Major Scheme Capital Funding  
DfT have given full approval for a £18.6m 5 year programme of major 
bridge maintenance activity for the SJB and its approach structures. 
The first 4 years of SJB Complex Bridge Major Maintenance Grant 
availability is as follows: 

 
 
 

Page 10



Major Scheme Capital 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

SJB Complex Bridge 
Maintenance Grant 

£4,416m £3,495m £3,711m £2,030m 

 

This Grant funding follows on from the £13.85m of additional Capital 
maintenance grant funding which was awarded for the maintenance of 
bridges on the Council’s Primary Route Network and which was 
delivered over 3 years ending 2010/11. 
 
The Major Scheme funding will allow the Council to continue to 
address the backlog of major bridge maintenance identified within the 
SJB Complex Maintenance Strategy. This allows the Council to 
continue to provide a road crossing of the Mersey which is free from 
restriction and to consider a future steady state maintenance regime 
where maintenance can be planned and delivered in a rationalised 
lifecycle based manner. 

 

The Local Sustainable Transport Fund 

The Government’s Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) will make 
available to local authorities through a bidding process, a mix of £350M 
revenue and £210M capital funding, for sustainable transport schemes 
over the next four years.   The purpose of the LSTF is to enable local 
transport authorities to deliver sustainable transport solutions, which 
support economic growth whilst reducing carbon emissions. These 
solutions must be geared to supporting jobs and business through 
effectively tackling the problems of congestion, improving the reliability 
and predictability of journey times, enabling economic investment, 
revitalising town centres and enhancing access to employment. They 
should at the same time bring about changing patterns of travel 
behaviour and greater use of more sustainable transport modes and so 
deliver a reduction in carbon and other harmful emissions. 

 
There are two types of bid that can be made: small bids of under £5m; 
and large bids of over £5m and up to £50m.  It is proposed that Halton 
make a small bid (below £5m) for funding from the Government’s Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) and that, in accordance with the 
timetable set out by DfT, an expression of interest is made to the 
Department before 6th June 2011, with a formal bid to be presented to 
the Board and submitted to DfT by 24th February 2012. 

 
3.4 Implementation Programme. 
 

Based upon the final and indicative transport financial settlements, a 
four year implementation programme has been incorporated into LTP3, 
which was approved by the Board on March 17th 2011.  The 
programme was determined in line with national and local transport 
goals and the Government’s priorities to enhance economic growth 
whilst reducing carbon emissions from transport.  

 

Page 11



The four year Implementation Programme covering the Integrated 
Transport Block and the Highway Capital Maintenance Block is 
reproduced below: 

 
 

Integrated Transport 
Block 

2011/12 
£,000 
(Final) 

2012/13 
£,000 
(Final) 

2013/14 
£,000 
(Indicative) 

2014/15 
£,000 
(Indicative) 

Total 
 

Transport Integration 
• Halton Sustainable 
Transport Network Signage / 
Branding, Publicity & 
Promotion 
•Cycle Secure Parking 
Lockers 

150 160 160 185 £695,000 

Measures to Assist 
Walking 
• Neighbourhood Centres – 
Pedestrian Access, signage 
& Public Realm 
Improvements 
•PRoW Improvement 
Programme 

125 130 130 185 £570,000 

Measures to Assist 
Cycling 
• Neighbourhood Centre 
Cycle Access, signage & 
Public Realm Improvements 

•Halton Cycleway & 
Greenway Links 

100 100 100 140 £440,000 

Measures to Assist 
Buses 
• Halton Neighbourhood 
Centres 
Accessible Bus Stop 
Improvements 
• Bus Priority at Junctions 
• Widnes Road Bus Lane and 
Stops 

160 170 170 240 £740,000 

Local Safety Schemes 
• Residential Area 20mph 
Zones 
• Casualty Reduction 
•Safety Improvement 
Schemes 

125 140 140 180 £585,000 

Intelligent Transport 
Systems 
• Expansion of VMS 
• Improve traffic and travel 
information 

20 25 25 50 £120,000 

Total £680 £725 £725 £1,020 £3,150,000 
 

(Note: Transport Integration initiatives and local safety schemes, will by 
their nature also incorporate a variety of measures that are designed to 

Page 12



increase public transport usage and measures to assist increased 
walking and cycling).   

 
3.5 Whereas in previous LTPs, integrated transport improvements have 

adopted a ‘transport corridor’ approach, for LTP3, it is planned to 
deliver a range of pedestrian, cycle and bus route improvements, 
focused on neighbourhood  centres.  A phased approach will be rolled 
out across the Borough over the period of the implementation 
programme.  There will also be a range of schemes to improve the 
connectivity of walking and cycling links and a programme of local 
safety schemes. 

 
The range of planned initiatives, draws strongly on the Mersey 
Gateway Sustainable Transport Strategy, which was prepared to 
support the Mersey Gateway planning application.  This builds upon 
the work completed so far under the Quality Transport Corridor 
approach, and will hopefully provide a platform to encourage a 
significant modal shift to sustainable transport in the run-up to the 
Mersey Gateway construction phase, and help reduce traffic 
congestion during the period.   

 
Highways Capital 
Maintenance Block 

2011/12 
£,000 
(Final) 

2012/13 
£,000 
(Final) 

2013/14 
£,000 
(Indicative) 

2014/15 
£,000 
(Indicative) 

Total 
 

Highway Maintenance 1,483 1,478 1,360 1,216 £5,537,000 
 

Bridge Maintenance 
 

500 600 600 600 £2,300,000 

Total 1,983 2,078 1,960 1,816 £7,837,000 
 

3.6 The additional funding provided though the approved 5 year Major 
Scheme programme for the SJB and its approach structures has 
enabled the Maintenance Block allocation to be strongly biased 
towards roads maintenance.  For 2011/12 and 2012/13 this will permit 
increased programmes of carriageway and footway maintenance to be 
implemented across the Borough. 

 
The increased focus on footway reconstruction reported to previous 
Executive Boards will be continued in 2011/12 due in part to the 
additional demands placed on the Bridge and Highway Maintenance 
Division created by the transfer of the “Gulliksen” footpath network from 
HHT to the Highway Authority.  This work is essential for the safety of 
our communities, but also to protect the Council from an increasing 
number of insurance claims. 

 
Despite the ravages of three consecutive exceptionally severe winters, 
prudent, preventative maintenance over these and previous years 
means that the condition of the Council’s principal and non principal 
road network ranks highly in comparison to neighbouring authorities.  
However, there has been a measured deterioration in condition of 

Page 13



unclassified roads particularly in some residential areas and there are 
increasing demands to address these problem areas. 
 
DfT has awarded Halton an additional £348k of “pothole” funding in 
2011/12 (on top of £169k awarded in 2010/11) to address the 
deterioration of road condition due to exceptionally severe winter 
conditions and this is being targeted largely to unclassified roads both 
through preventative maintenance techniques and implementation of 
larger scale repair schemes.  

 
 
3.7 Other Capital Allocations 
 

Other capital allocations to budgets administered by the Policy, 
Planning and Transportation Department have been made as follows: 

 
Street Lighting £200,000 (HBC Capital)  
The Street Lighting allocation will be used for replacement of life-
expired equipment. 

 
Flood Defence £50,000 (HBC Capital) and £56,000 (Grant Funded) 
The Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs has 
allocated Grant-in-aid funding for a project to reinforce Keckwick Brook 
channel and protect the Wharford Farm reservoir embankment from 
erosion. This work is currently being designed and will be implemented 
to co-ordinate with a Defra flood protection scheme further downstream 
at Sandymoor.   The balance of the allocation will be used to address 
local flooding issues following identification of flood risk areas through 
the surface water management study. 

  
Fleet Replacements £370,000 (HBC Capital) 
The funding allocation will be used for the replacement of life-expired 
refuse collection vehicles. 

 
3.8 Detailed Implementation Programme 
 

In previous years, the authority to agree each year’s detailed 
implementation programme has been delegated to the Strategic Director 
in Consultation with the relevant Executive Board Member.  The LTP3 
Implementation Plan contains provisional programmes of both integrated 
transport and highway maintenance schemes and it is proposed that for 
the four year implementation programme period of LTP3, authority to 
agree the detailed programme, based upon the provisional list in LTP3, 
be delegated to The Strategic Director Policy and Resources in 
consultation with the Executive Board member for Transportation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The programmes of work identified in the report are designed to deliver 
the strategies contained in the Council’s third Local Transport Plan which 
was approved by the Board in March 2011.  

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Resource Implications – The report outlines the programmes of work 
that will be implemented in 2011/12 and 2012/13 which are proposed to 
be the subject of detailed approval by the Strategic Director Policy and 
Resources in consultation with the Executive Board Member for 
Transportation.   

 
Social Inclusion and Sustainability Implications – The LTP is 
targeted at improving transport opportunities for those without access to 
private cars and therefore has positive impacts on social inclusion and 
sustainability.    

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

The 2011/12 Transport Capital Implementation Programme will assist 
children and young people in accessing services in the Borough and 
improve road safety. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

Measures contained within the 2011/12 Transport Capital 
Implementation Programme are expected to improve access to 
employment, training and learning facilities within the Borough and also 
ensure that essential maintenance is undertaken on the existing network, 
thereby contributing to the Council’s efforts to tackle unemployment, 
worklessness and the problems associated with the current economic 
downturn.   

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

The 2011/12 Transport Capital Implementation Programme will help to 
encourage local communities to adopt more healthy lifestyles through the 
introduction of measures to increase the use of cycling and walking for 
local journeys and which could help address health problems such as 
obesity. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

The 2011/12 Transport Capital Implementation Programme incorporates 
measures to reduce road casualties in the Borough, to improve road 
safety and provide a safe and serviceable highway network. 

Page 15



 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

The 2011/12 Transport Capital Implementation Programme will continue 
to support the ongoing regeneration of Halton through the improvement 
of highway and public realm infrastructure focused upon neighbourhood 
centres and residential areas. 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
A risk associated with the report is the failure to deliver against the 
Transport Capital Implementation Programme.  This risk will be 
managed through the Council’s quarterly performance monitoring regime 
and through regular progress meetings with senior managers to enable 
early action to be taken, should the need arise.  

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
Accessibility and connectivity are essential issues for equality and 
diversity and every effort is made to facilitate barrier-free movement 
around the Borough.   Particular emphasis is given to improving access 
for people with disabilities and to education and training, employment, 
health, shopping and leisure facilities which are key services impacting 
on quality of life.  

 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 

Document 
 
Settlement Letter from 
DfT dated 13th 
December 2011 
 
Correspondence in 
Relation to Major Bid 
Funding 

Place of Inspection 
 
Rutland House 
Halton Lea, Runcorn 
 
 
Rutland House 
Halton Lea, Runcorn 

Contact Officer 
 
Dave Cunliffe 
 
 
 
Mike Bennett 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 
 

Local Transport Plan – Key issues for Transport Identified through the 
public consultation exercise: 
 

• Address and manage congestion – primarily associated with the Silver 
Jubilee Bridge and its approaches; 

 
• Enhance economic success through the Mersey Gateway and 

encourage better freight distribution; 
 

• Reduce road casualties; 
 

• Improve access to work, education, training, services (health) and social 
activities; 

 
• Promote and provide clean, low carbon transport; 

 
• Improve maintenance of the highway network; 

 
• Promote public transport, walking and cycling; 

 
• Reduce crime and fear of crime on the transport system; 

 
• Continue to maintain the transport system; 

 
• Reduce traffic impact on communities in terms of pollution and noise. 

 

Page 17



APPENDIX 2 
 
Grants No Longer Available to the Council in 2011/12 and Beyond: 
(2010/11 Allocations in brackets) 
 
Road Safety Grant   (£75,114) Capital  

(£337,597) Revenue 
 
Detrunking Grant   (£219,175) Revenue 
 
Rural Bus Grant    (£40,597) Revenue 
 
School Travel Plan Advisors  (£17,000) Revenue 
 
 
In total these amount to a loss of £75,114 capital and £614,369 revenue to 
the Council for transport related measures. 

 
  

Page 18



 

REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board Sub Committee 

DATE: 
 

26 May 2011  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director, Communities  
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Shopmobility  

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  To report the use of the Chief Executive powers to enter into a 
Licence agreement with the Receivers of Halton Lea Shopping 
Centre in order that a Shopmobility service at Halton Lea can be 
provided. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
i) That the Council notes that after consultation with the 

Leader and Members of the Executive Board Sub 
Committee, the Chief Executive has under delegated 
powers (Matters of Urgency, Constitution) expressed 
support for the Licence to be agreed as set out in 3.7 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 On the 1st April 2009 Warrington Disability Partnership (WDP) were 

appointed to run a Shop mobility service from Halton Lea on behalf 
of the Council. A grant of £33,670 was paid by the council to WDP 
for a period of 12 months. This was renewed for a further 12 months 
on 1st April 2010 at a cost of £34,015. 
 

3.2 The service provides accessible transport in the form of motorised 
scooters and wheelchairs to enable those who suffer mobility 
problems to access the main shopping areas. The service provides 
equity for those suffering mobility problems, older people and the 
disabled. It enables people to be part of the community and to have 
continued independence. The target users are disabled people and 
people with short-term mobility difficulties within the Halton area and 
disabled people visiting Halton Lea.   
 

3.3 The current service only operates at Halton Lea through a small 
yearly membership charge (£17) with free usage, thereafter, for 12 
months.  Day members pay a small visitor charge of £4.00. The 
scheme operates six days a week and opens Monday – Saturday 
9am to 5pm.  WDP own the equipment. Members may book 
equipment up to one week in advance.  Day visitors may only book 

Agenda Item 12cPage 19



 

on the day of use WDP also promotes the different types of 
equipment available from retailers to promote independent living as 
well as general information and advice and signposting.   
 

3.4 On 2nd December 2010 a report was presented to the Council’s 
Executive Board Sub Committee  which requested permission to 
tender for a Shopmobility service at Halton Lea. Only one tender 
was received from WDP, however even though WDP stated that 
they were prepared to continue the service they indicated that they 
would still require a similar level of subsidy. 
 

3.5 Since then Officers have attempted to identify alternative options to 
continue operating this important service and the option of the 
Councils day services for disabled people has been actively 
considered. This is now a viable option and a worked up proposal 
has been developed, which is more cost effective than the costs 
submitted by WDP. Further cost reductions are possible when a 
Charitable partner has been agreed. 
 

3.6 During the negotiations the Licensor at Halton Lea has agreed to 
waive the Licence fee and service charge for the location of the 
shopmobility service.  
 

3.7 The premises have been offered on a monthly Licence at no cost to 
the Council save for Business Rates (approx £9000.00 per annum) 
and Building Insurance recharges (approx. £700 per annum).  The 
unit is to be taken in its present condition and the Council will be 
responsible for some minor adaptations to comply with Health as 
Safety requirements. 
 

3.8 2 scooters and 2 wheelchairs were historically the property of HBC 
and were returned to the Council. The additional 5 remaining 
scooters were purchased from WDP at a cost of £3,000 but this also 
included office equipment, shelving, desks etc. The scooters have 
been maintained by WDP who have service records.  The scooters 
and recharging points are all to be included on councils PAT Testing 
schedules. 
 

3.9 Appropriate insurance cover is in place. 
 
 

4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 If this is successful, it could provide potential job opportunities for 
disabled people in the future. 
 

4.2 If successful, the Council could consider extending its model to 
Widnes Town Centre. 
 
 

Page 20



 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 The total cost for providing the service will be £14,915.  If income of 
£5,500 is achieved the net cost will be £9,415. 
 

5.2 Business rates of £8,778.25 need to be added however the service 
is confident of securing a voluntary/charitable status partnership, 
which will allow the department to absorb the business rates.  
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 

Provide universal access to town and retail centres. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton 
  
Ensure that retail and business premises in Halton are accessible 
and benefit from the spending power that people with mobility 
problems will bring. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Contribute to the continued independence of people with mobility 
problems. 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 
None identified. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
Ensure that businesses are not disadvantaged or discouraged by 
limiting the accessibility of the boroughs retail areas. 
 

8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

8.1 The impact that withdrawing the service would have on disabled 
people being able to access the town/shopping centres and 
associated services. 
 

9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

9.1 The continued operation of shop mobility is an important part of 
enabling those with mobility problems, older people and the disabled 
to be part of the community and have continued independence. 
 

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Page 21



 

Document 
 

Place of Inspection 
 

Contact Officer 

2 December 2010 
Executive Board Sub 
Committee Report 
 

Municipal Building Dwayne Johnson 
 

28 September 2010 
Chief Officers Management 
Team Report 
 

Municipal Building Dwayne Johnson 
 

2 March 2010 
Chief Officers Management 
Team Report 
 

Municipal Building Dwayne Johnson 
 

 
 

Page 22



 

 

REPORT TO: Executive Board 
 
DATE: 30th June 2011  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Communities 
 
SUBJECT: Adults and Community Capital Programme  
 
WARD(S): Boroughwide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform the Board of the 2010/11 capital programme outturn and the 

provisional capital programme for 2011/12. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

1) To inform the Board of the final 2010/11 outturn figures; and 
2) That the Board recommend that the Council approve the 

capital programme for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 1. 
  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The report details the final outturn position for 2010/11 (Appendix 2) and 

the proposed capital projects for 2011/12. The table below shows the 
funding for 2011/12.  

 
Funding for 2011/12   
Department of Health Capital Funding 326,461  
Disabled Facilities Grant 643,000  
Department of Health Funding - Section 256 550,000  
Existing Allocation 30,000  
Balances B/Fwd 1,220,101  

Total 2,769,562  
 

 
 
3.2 The provisional outturn figures as detailed in Appendix 2 also show the 

requested carry forward amounts.  
 
The 2010/11 underspend in the main relates two areas:- 
 

• Borough placements & Service Development – the scheme 
requires detailed planning on an individual basis and negotiation 
with housing developers. Both of these activities are time 

Agenda Item 12dPage 23



 

 

consuming and have incurred delays, impacting on the expected 
spending. 

 
• Extra Care – contracts were negotiated at a much better cost than 

first expected. Payment is now expected in two halves, one of 
which was incurred in 2010/11, the second in 2011/12, with the 
remainder no longer required. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Government, as detailed in ‘Our Health Our Care Our Say’ (2006), 

has clear expectations that councils will support vulnerable people by 
promoting independence and wellbeing.  Capital projects detailed in this 
report support these objectives, and also promote social inclusion 
through sport and leisure. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The financial implications are as set out in the body of the report and 

Appendices. 
 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
6.1 Failure to spend capital programme monies could result in loss of funding 

in future years. It should be noted that Section 256 funding is short term 
and only available for two years.  

 
7.0     IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
7.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Improved housing conditions funded through this programme will benefit 
any children and young people living in those dwellings, and particularly 
benefit those who need housing adaptations. 

 
7.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

 The capital programme has provided employment opportunities for 
people with disabilities, for example Norton Priory, and this delivers 
improved outcomes for vulnerable people and the capital programme 
provides an opportunity for additional areas to be developed.  

  
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 

 
7.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

 DFGs will help the chronically sick and disabled to maintain a better 
lifestyle at home rather than in residential care, and energy efficiency 
grants will help vulnerable households with fuel poverty issues.  
Refurbishment at Oakmeadow residential home will improve quality of life 
for vulnerable adults living there. 

 
7.4 A Safer Halton 
 

 Housing schemes such as Disabled Facilities renovations provide a safer 
living environment for disabled people in Halton. 

 
7.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

Helping vulnerable individuals to maintain/improve their homes will help 
minimise the incidence of dilapidated housing that can blight an area.  

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The proposed programme of work will help tackle the housing problems 

of some of those in greatest housing need.  
 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

DOCUMENT PLACE OF INSPECTION CONTACT 
Executive Board Report   
Adults & Community Capital 
Programme Outturn 
2009/10, 2010/11 Provisional 
Capital Programme  
15th July 2010, Executive 
Board Sub Committee, Land 
Disposal Liverpool Road, 2nd 
December 2010 

Municipal Building 
Widnes 

Graham Foxley 
01928 704599 

Page 25



 

 

 

 
Appendix 1 - Community’s Capital Programme 2011/12 
 
 

Project 

Existing 
Capital 

Programme 
2011/12 

Request 
To Carry 
Forward 

New 
Allocation Total 

Stadium & Catering Services         

Stadium Minor Works 30,000  
                 
-      30,000  

Stadium & Catering Services Total 30,000  
                 
-                    -   30,000  

          
Enablement         
Re-design Oakmeadow Communal 
Spaces & Furnishings   28,387    28,387  
User Led Adaptations   55,000    55,000  
Borough Placements & Service 
Developments   547,368  (83,368) 464,000  
Enablement Total                    -    630,755  (83,368) 547,387  
          
Prevention & Commissioning         
Renovation Grant/Home Repairs 
Assistance Grants   

                 
-    235,989  235,989  

Disabled Facilities Grants   22,023  637,977  660,000  

Energy Promotion   
                 
-    6,000  6,000  

Stairlifts (Adaptations Initiative)   4,785  195,215  200,000  
RSL Adaptations (Joint Funding)   32,352  527,648  560,000  
Modular Buildings/PODS   27,000    27,000  
Choice Based Lettings   40,000    40,000  
Extra Care   463,186    463,186  
Prevention & Commissioning Total                   -    589,346  1,602,829  2,192,175  
          
ADULTS & COMMUNITY TOTAL 30,000  1,220,101  1,519,461  2,769,562  

Page 26



 

 

 

Appendix 2 - Adults & Community’s 2010/11 Capital Programme Outturn 
 

 

 

 

 

Project 

Revised 
Capital 

Programme 
2010/11 

 2010/11 
Outturn Balance 

Request 
To Carry 
Forward 

Stadium & Catering Services        
Stadium Minor Works 30,000  27,977  2,023                -   
Stadium & Catering Services 
Total 30,000  27,977  2,023                -   
         
Enablement        
Re-design Oakmeadow Communal 
Spaces & Furnishings 35,000  6,613  28,387  28,387  
User Led Adaptations 55,000                -   55,000  55,000  
Borough Placements 560,000  12,632  547,368  547,368  
Enablement Total 650,000  19,245  630,755  630,755  
         
Culture & Leisure        
Churchill Hall 2,000                -   2,000                -   
Norton Priory Health & Safety 22,000  21,000  1,000                -   
Refurbishment to Increase 
Employment Opportunities 10,000                -   10,000                -   
Access & Security Measures 50,000  47,771  2,229                -   
Culture & Leisure Total 84,000  68,771  15,229                -   
         
Prevention & Commissioning        
Renovation Grant/Home Repairs 
Assistance Grants 376,335  401,431  (25,096)               -   
Disabled Facilities Grants 754,100  732,077  22,023  22,023  
Energy Promotion 100,000  99,649  351                -   
Stairlifts (Adaptations Initiative) 170,000  165,215  4,785  4,785  
RSL Adaptations (Joint Funding) 650,000  617,648  32,352  32,352  
Modular Buildings/PODS 45,000  180  44,820  27,000  
Homelink 50,000  36,785  13,215                -   
Choice Based Lettings 40,000                -   40,000  40,000  
Extra Care 1,329,000  463,186  865,814  463,186  
Prevention & Commissioning 
Total 3,514,435  2,516,171  998,264  589,346  
          
ADULTS & COMMUNITY TOTAL 4,278,435  2,632,164  1,646,271  1,220,101  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board 

DATE: 
 

30 June 2011 

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director – Policy and Resources  
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Changes to Procurement Standing Orders 
 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
 

1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To present proposed changes to the Councils Constitution Part 5 – 
Procurement Standing Orders and rationale for this proposal as to how this 
will improve procurement practice across the Council and deliver savings. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDED: that the Executive Board recommends Council to 
approve changes to Procurement Standing Orders set out in the 
(Appendix 1 located at 
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=316&MId=3704&Ver=4)  

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As part of the Council’s Procurement Strategy the Procurement Division 
has been actively seeking new ways to improve procurement practice 
across the Council in order to reduce spend and the bureauracracy of 
processes in line with the principles of EU Public Procurement Contract 
Regulations 2006. The EU Principles state; to seek fair, transparent non-
discriminative and competitive trading. 
 
Current Procurement Standing Orders states differing thresholds of spend 
to allow officers to procure goods, services and works. These thresholds 
currently are: 
 

• Up to £1000: Advisable for quotations to be sought. 
• £1,001 - £50,000: Must seek three quotations via the Chest (Due 

North) E sourcing system. 
• £50,001 - £1M: Must follow a formal tender process and in line with 

EU Public Procurement Contract Regulations in terms of the Official 
Journal of the European Union (OJEU) requirements. (Thresholds 
£156,442 goods and services and £3,927,260 works). 

 
These three elements are the only parts of Procurement Standing Orders 
with proposed changes in terms of value with some consequential 
procedural changes also required if accepted. No amendments are 
proposed to the remaining parts of Procurement Standing Orders including 
the requirements for waivers and or emergency procedures etc. 
 

Agenda Item 12ePage 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

 
It is proposed that Standing Orders be revised to amend the thresholds 
from £50,000 to the OJEU threshold for goods and services of £156,442. 
Appendix 2 shows this in diagrammatic form.  In addition by moving this 
threshold it will allow both officers in Directorates and the Procurement 
Team the ability to take a less bureaucratic process to seek quotations via 
the Chest rather than follow a formal tender 
 
The benefits to businesses, especially SME’s, are 

• ALL transactions will go via the Chest above £1k which is the 
commitment declared publically in 2010. 

• The processes for procuring under £156,442 will be simplified, less 
rigid and allow more of a dialogue with the bidders to get the best 
deal for the Council. 

• The time involved in formal tenders is prohibitive for bidders and the 
process is drawn out and rigid in terms of flexibility e.g. where a 
bidder makes a simple mistake of not adding a policy or evidencing 
insurance due to the cumbersome process they are expected to 
follow currently means they are disqualified from tendering. 

• The law allows Councils to abide by their own Standing Orders 
below £156,442 therefore we should abide by the principles of EU 
Regulations to adapt our own Constitution. 

• Businesses can view all the Council’s trading opportunities for 
quotations both simple and advanced via the Chest. Allows 
complete transparency. 

• They will receive automatic notification of trading opportunities via 
the Chest.  

• The simplified process, and reduction in their costs. 
 

3.3 Advantages to the Council:  
• Capturing all spending decisions via the Chest thus enabling the 

Procurement Division to support/coordinate all spending activity before 
the commitment is made i.e. contract is drawn or purchase order 
placed. 

• Fully embed the use of the Chest as per Standing Orders. 
• All spending activity via the Chest to deliver complete transparency and 

opportunity to the business community. 
• Simpler for officers to embrace and less time consuming. 
• All judgement of spending decisions based around risk. 
• Quicker realisation of spend reductions via procurement team.  
• Best and Final Offer (BAFO) negotiation, gives the opportunity to 

challenge price where with current tender processes, allows only 
acceptance of formal price submissions as this has been measured 
against other bidders. More of a dialogue process to be developed. This 
will be done in conjunction with assessing quality. 

• All procurement over £1,000 via the Chest unless an emergency 
reactive decision is required. This ensures a robust audit trail and 
removes risk or error or breach of Standing Orders. 

  

Page 30



 
  
4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 
 

To be implemented in year into the Procurement Standing Orders as part 
of Halton BC Constitution. 
 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 Children and Young People in Halton  
Supports the efficiency agenda thus re-directing cash towards savings 
target for the Council. 
 

5.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
Supports the efficiency agenda thus re-directing cash towards savings 
target for the Council. Support SME business community to trade with the 
Council. 
 

5.3 A Healthy Halton 
Supports the efficiency agenda thus re-directing cash towards savings 
target for the Council. Allows greater investment to boost the local 
economy. 
 

5.4 A Safer Halton  
Supports the efficiency agenda thus re-directing cash towards savings 
target for the Council. 
 

5.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
Supports the efficiency agenda thus re-directing cash towards savings 
target for the Council. 
 

Supports the local business community in terms of accessing trading 
opportunities. 
 

6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

6.1 The above proposal will ensure the risk of non-compliance of Procurement 
Standing Orders is significantly reduced as follows: 

• Compliance with Procurement Standing Orders will stand robustly 
across the Council. 

• All procurement will have a clear audit trail and will take account of 
the principles of EU Regulations for spend below the OJEU 
thresholds thus supporting a robust assessment of specified 
requirement, commercial acumen and ability, financial stability as 
well as assessing both quality and price as well as ensuring a fair, 
transparent and competitive process. 

• Training and briefing sessions will be provided with a phased 
approach to monitoring and auditing activity to challenge and embed 
practice.  

• No change to the powers or reporting to Executive Board Sub 

Page 31



Committee in terms of Preliminary Estimate Reports required for 
spend over £1M or waivers. 

 
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
7.1 The Council will continue to promote and rigorously test against equality 

and diversity as with the current formal tender process in line with EU 
principles.  
This E-Tendering system promotes transparency and equal access to 
trading opportunities with Halton BC. 
 

8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

8.1 None identified.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



APPENDIX 1 

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
Central Purchasing Body means a contracting authority which:  
 
(a)  acquires goods or services intended for one or more contracting 

authorities; 
 
(b) awards public contracts intended for one or more contracting 

authorities; or 
 

(c) concludes framework agreements for work, works, goods or services 
intended for one or more contracting authorities. 

 

Contract – An agreement between the Council and any other party made by 
executing a Formal Agreement or issue of a Letter of Acceptance or Official 
Order for the procurement of all supplies, services or works by the Council, or 
carrying out works for the Council. 

 
Electronic Procurement Systems – The process of tendering for goods and 
services via electronic media. 

European Union Public Procurement Rules - The Public Contract 
Regulations specify a value threshold below which contracts are exempt. 
However, contracts are still bound by the general requirements of EU law 
including transparency and not to discriminate against contractors from other 
EU Member States. The Regulations also indicate how contract values should 
be estimated for these purposes.  The thresholds are reviewed every two 
years.  

 
Framework Agreements - A Framework Agreement is an agreement 
between one or more contracting authorities and one or more 
suppliers/contractors, the purpose of which is to establish the terms governing 
contracts to be awarded during a given period, in particular with regard to 
price and where appropriate, the quantity envisaged (call offs).   
 
Invitation to Tender (ITT) – the invitation issued by the Council to potential 
suppliers to submit a tender for a specific service, works or goods. 
 
Liquidated Damages - When the parties to a contract agree to the payment 
of a certain sum as a fixed and agreed upon satisfaction for not doing certain 
things particularly mentioned in the agreement, the sum is called liquidated 
damages. 
 
Matrix – an approach to appraisal of tenders or quotations which records 
stated criteria to assist in selection of the successful provider and which 

Page 33



APPENDIX 1 

where applicable indicates the weighting accorded to particular criteria. This 
usually takes the form of a table against which tenders are marked and the 
weighting of particular criteria applied.  
 
Open Tendering – This method is used when it is considered cost effective 
and in the Council's interest to invite tenders from a wide range of potential 
contractors. 
 
Partnering – A method of procurement.  A relationship between two parties to 
a project in which they work openly and jointly to achieve common objectives, 
with defined performance targets.  Partnering may be entered into as a one 
off project or a collection of projects. 
 
Partnership – A Partnership is an agreement between two or more 
independent bodies to work collectively to achieve an objective. 
 
Performance Bonds – Performance bonding is the process by which an 
Organisation requires a contractor to arrange for the provision of a bond, from 
a reputable finance institution, to provide the Council with financial 
compensation in the event of a contractor breaching its contractual obligations 
or going into receivership or liquidation. 
 
Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (or PQQ) – the form of questionnaire 
approved by the Head of Procurement for completion by contractors who wish 
to receive an invitation to tender for a particular contract.  
 
Procurement - The process of obtaining assets or services taking into 
account the life cycle of the assets or services.   
 
Procurement Strategy – The Council has introduced a strategy that provides 
a framework for more effective procurement aligned with the requirements 
within the Constitution, namely Standing Orders Relating to Finance and 
Procurement Standing Orders. 
 
Quotation – A request to a supplier for a price for goods or services. 
 
Special Select List – A delegated Officer with responsibility for a particular 
contract may draw up a select list from an existing approved list (e.g. 
Constructionline).  This may be used in a specialist contract and should 
include a list of criteria used as a basis for selection and how those criteria 
have been applied. 
 
Standard Select List – This method should be used if there is no central or 
standing list or when those lists and the open method would not produce 
advantages to the Council.  Public notice is given using newspaper or journals 
and the Procurement Web pages, informing potential contractors of the 
contract into which the Council wishes to enter and inviting those interested 
parties to apply for permission to tender. 
 

Page 34



APPENDIX 1 

Standing List - Compiled and maintained by an authorised body, e.g., 
Executive Sub Board Committee for specific categories of works. 
 
Sub-contractor – A supplier that provides work or services to a main 
contractor as part of the contract. 
 
Tender - A document used to award the most appropriate contract to the 
most suitable contractor to the Authority, taking into account the principles of 
best value. 

Page 35



APPENDIX 1 

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS  

 
PART 1 – STANDING ORDERS WHICH APPLY TO ALL CONTRACTS 
 
 
1.1 BASIC PRINCIPLES 

 
1.1.1 Introduction 
1.1.2 Legal Compliance 
1.1.3 Public Contract Regulations 2006 
1.1.4 Procurement Documentation 
1.1.5 Transparency and Non-Discriminatory 
1.1.6 Transfer of Undertakings - Service Contracts 
1.1.7 Contracts where the Council act as Agent 
1.1.8 Works or Services already subject to Competitive Tender 
1.1.9 Grouping of Contracts 
1.1.10 Forfeiture in Case of Bribery etc. 
  
1.2 OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
1.2.1 Adequate Budget Provision 
1.2.2 Corporate Contracts 
1.2.3 Procurement website 
1.2.4 Performance Bonds 
1.2.5 Works Contracts – Delay and liquidated damages 
1.2.6 Breach of Procurement Standing Orders 
  
1.3 COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
1.3.1 Framework Agreements 
1.3.2 Joint or Partnering Arrangements 
  
1.4 E-PROCUREMENT 

 
1.4.1 Electronic Tendering 
  
1.5 RECORDS 

 
1.5.1 Use of Official Orders 
1.5.2 Single Quote/Tender Contracts 
  
1.6 AWARD OF CONTRACT AND DEBRIEFING OF CONTRACTORS 

 
1.6.1 Contract Award Basis 
1.6.2 Briefing Contractors Post Award   
  
1.7 CONTRACT PAYMENTS 

 
1.7.1 Contract payments/settlements 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1 

1.7.2 Instalment Payments 
1.7.3 Authorisation of Payments 
1.7.4 Authorisation of Variations 
1.7.5 Works Contracts – Final Certificate control 
1.7.6 Payments before Completion of Formal Contract 
  
1.8 WAIVER OF PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS 

 
1.8.1 Emergency Procedures 
1.8.2 Executive Board / Executive Board Sub-Committee approval 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 37



APPENDIX 1 

PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS  
 

PART 1: STANDING ORDERS WHICH APPLY TO ALL CONTRACTS 

  
1.1 BASIC PRINCIPLES 
 
1.1.1 Introduction 
 

  These Standing Orders apply to all contracts and are made under 
section 135 Local Government Act 1972. 
 
For the purposes of these Standing Orders a contract is an 
agreement for: 

 
• The carrying out of works for the Council 
• The purchase, leasing, or hiring of goods or materials by the 

Council 
• The supply of consultancy and other services to the Council 

 
Arrangements involving hire purchase agreements, finance leases 
or operating leases shall only be entered into in accordance with 
arrangements approved by the Operational Director – Finance. 

 
1.1.2 Legal Compliance 

 All tendering procedures and contracts shall comply with all legal 
requirements and no officer or Committee or Board of the Council 
may seek to avoid them. 

 

1.1.3 Public Contract Regulations 2006 

 All contracts must comply fully with the requirements of Public 
Contract Regulations 2006. 

 

1.1.4 Procurement Documentation 
 

All contracts and contractual processes shall comply with the 
Procurement and E-Procurement Handbook, standard 
approved documentation, the Council’s Procurement Strategy 
and Procurement Policy. 

 
1.1.5  Transparency and Non-discriminatory 
 

The award process and structure of all contracts shall be 
transparent and non-discriminatory and shall comply with the 
Council’s duties in relation to equality and diversity.  
  

Page 38



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

1.1.6 Transfer of Undertakings - Service Contracts 

(a) All relevant service contracts and contractual processes shall 
give effect to the obligations of the Code of Practice on 
Workforce Matters in Local Authority Service Contracts 
(ODPM Circular 03/2003). 

 

(b) All relevant service contracts shall incorporate the Clauses 
required by the Code of Practice on Workforce Matters in 
Local Authority Service Contracts (ODPM Circular 03/2003, 
Annex D). 

 

1.1.7 Contracts where the Council act as Agent 

Where the Council acts as the Agent of any other Local Authority or 
Public Body or company these Standing Orders shall apply unless 
the Principal in question instructs otherwise in writing. 

 
1.1.8 Works or Services already subject to Competitive Tendering 

 Tenders will not be invited from external contractors when a 
DLO/DSO of the Council has won, in competitive tender, the right to 
provide the works, goods or services in question, but tenders must 
be invited by the DLO/DSO when they propose to sub-contract any 
element of such work, goods or services.  

 
1.1.9 Grouping of Contracts 

 Where during any financial year or term of contract which does not 
coincide with a financial year, it is likely that the value of works, 
goods or services will exceed the values stated in these Standing 
Orders, such works, goods or services must be grouped into a 
single contract. No officer or Committee or Board of the Council 
may seek to divide potential contracts in order to avoid the 
requirements of this Standing Order. 

 
1.1.10 Forfeiture in Case of Bribery or Corruption 

 
  There shall be inserted in every contract a clause empowering the 

Council to cancel the contract and to recover from the contractor 
the amount of any loss resulting from such cancellation, if the 
contractor shall have offered or given or agreed to give to any 
person any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or 
reward for doing or forbearing to do or for having done or having 
forborne to do any action in relation to the obtaining or execution of 
the contract or any person in relation to the contract or any other 
contract with the Council, or if the like acts shall have been done by 
any person employed by the contractor or acting on the contractor’s 

Page 39



APPENDIX 1 

behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the contractor), or 
if in relation to any contract with the Council the contractor or any 
person employed by the contractor or acting on the contractor’s 
behalf shall have committed any offences under the Prevention of 
Corruption Acts, 1889 to 1916, or the Bribery Acts 2010, or shall 
have given any fee or reward, the receipt of which is an offence 
under Section 117 of the Local Government Act, 1972. 

 
 

1.2 OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
1.2.1 Adequate Budget Provision 
 

No Officer should seek to enter into a contract, or purport to enter 
into a contract, for the supply of works, goods or services unless 
there is adequate provision in the appropriate Capital Programme 
and/or Revenue Budgets. 

 

1.2.1A The relevant Operational Director shall ensure that all candidates 
for a relevant contract are suitably assessed.  The assessment 
process shall establish that the potential candidates have sound 
economic and financial standing and technical ability and capacity 
to fulfil the requirements of the Council. 

 

1.2.1B The Council’s form of Pre-Qualification Questionnaire shall be used 
for all contracts with a value of £50,000 and upwards. 

 

1.2.2 Corporate Contracts 
 

Before procuring goods or services, an Officer shall ascertain 
whether any corporate contract has been entered into in relation to 
those goods or services.  Where such a corporate contract exists, 
the Officer may not enter into a separate contract except with the 
prior written approval of the Divisional Manager of the Procurement 
Centre of Excellence. 

 
1.2.3 Procurement website 
 

For all contracts having a value in excess of £50,000 the 
Operational Director responsible for that contract shall ensure that 
details of the goods, works or services are placed on the Due North 
website and the award decision reported to the Operational Director 
-Finance. 

 

1.2.4.1 Performance Bonds 
 

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 

The relevant Operational Director shall in respect of all contracts 
consider the need for a performance bond after assessing the 
following factors: 

 
(i)  potential risk in the absence of a bond; 
 
(ii) known technical difficulties associated with the project; 
 
(iii) the financial status of the contractor(s); 
 
(iv) the period of the contract; and 
 
(v) any costs associated with provision of the bond. 

 
References to a Performance Bond in these Standing Orders shall 
be taken to include cash deposits, insurance or such other methods 
as the Operational Director - Finance may approve. 

 
1.2.5 Works Contracts – Delay and liquidated damages 

In the case of Works contracts where completion of the contract is 
delayed it shall be the duty of the relevant Officer under the contract 
to take appropriate action in respect of any claim for liquidated 
damages. 

1.2.6 Breach of Procurement Standing Orders 

Any breach or non-compliance with these Procurement Standing 
Orders must on discovery be reported immediately to the Chief 
Internal Auditor acting on behalf of the Operational Director - 
Finance.  The Chief Internal Auditor shall decide whether each 
reported breach or non-compliance presents a significant risk of 
harm to the Council’s interests and if satisfied that such risk exists 
shall undertake any necessary investigation and report the findings 
to the relevant Strategic Director, Operational Director - Finance, 
Operational Director and Monitoring Officer (Legal and Democratic 
Services) and Chief Executive, as appropriate. 

 

1.2.7  Acceptance of Tenders other than the Lowest 
 

It shall be clearly stated in all tender documents that the Council 
reserves the right: 

 
 (a) to accept a tender other than the lowest 
  

(b) to decline to accept any tender 
 

1.3  COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 

 

Page 41



APPENDIX 1 

1.3.1 Framework Agreements 
 

Procurement Standing Orders 2.2 to 2.6, 2.11 to 2.14, 3.1 to 3.7 
and 4.1 will not apply where the works, products or services in 
question are to be procured by using a framework agreement which 
has itself been procured through compliance with these Standing 
Orders or from a Central Purchasing Body for the purposes of the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2006.  Where a Central Purchasing 
Body’s framework agreement is used the relevant Operational 
Director shall obtain copies of that Body’s Contract and Award 
notices and from them shall verify the Body’s compliance with the 
2006 Regulations. 

 

 

 

1.3.2 Joint or Partnering Arrangements 
 

(a) Joint or partnering arrangements between the Council and any 
other body or bodies shall be subject to the prior approval of the 
Operational Director and Monitoring Officer (Legal, and Democratic 
Services). 

 
(b) Where the Council is working in a joint or partnering arrangement 

with another body or bodies and, under that arrangement, is the 
commissioning body, Halton Borough Council’s Standing Orders 
shall apply to contracts entered into under that arrangement. 

 
(c) Where the Council is working in a joint or partnering arrangement 

with another body or bodies and, under that arrangement, another 
body is the commissioning body, the Standing Orders of that other 
body shall apply to contracts entered into under the arrangement.  
Where the body has no such Standing Orders, the procedures 
applied by the other body shall comply with the principles and 
safeguards contained in Halton Borough Council’s Standing Orders. 

 

(d)   Where the Council is working in a joint or partnering arrangement 
with another body or bodies, the documentation for the 
arrangement shall include powers for the Council to have access to 
the records of that other body for the purposes of investigating or 
auditing compliance with the terms of the arrangement and with the 
relevant procurement rules. 

1.4 E-PROCUREMENT 

1.4.1 Electronic Tendering 

 
Officers wishing to adopt electronic tendering shall use only The 
Chest - Due North system 

Page 42



APPENDIX 1 

 
1.5 RECORDS 

 

1.5.1 Use of Official Orders 
 

Contracts having a value not exceeding £5,000 may be placed 
using the Council’s official order form or documented in such other 
manner as may be agreed by the Operational Director and 
Monitoring Officer (Legal and Democratic Services) and in such 
circumstances a formal contract may be dispensed with. 

 

1.5.2 Single Quote/Tender Contracts 

Where these Standing Orders provide(1.3.1, 1.3.2, 1.8, 4.1) for a 
contract to be entered into following direct invitation to only one 
contractor, a record of the arrangement shall be entered into the 
appropriate tender register as identified in these Standing Orders. 

1.6 AWARD OF CONTRACT AND DEBRIEFING OF CANDIDATES 

 

1.6.1 Contract Award Basis 
 

Contracts shall in general be awarded on the basis of most 
economically advantageous tender (MEAT). 

 
1.7 CONTRACT PAYMENTS 

 
1.7.1    Contract payments/settlements 
 

Contract payments/settlements shall be made in accordance with 
procedures referred to in the Standing Orders relating to Finance. 

 

1.7.2 Instalment Payments 
 
 Where contracts provide for payment to be made by instalments the 

appropriate Operational Director shall maintain suitable records to 
show the state of account on each contract.  

 
1.7.3 Authorisation of Payments 
 
 Payment to contractors shall be authorised by the Operational 

Director or, on their behalf, by an authorised certifying officer. 
 
1.7.4 Authorisation of Variations 
 
 Variations to a contract shall be authorised in writing by the 

appropriate Operational Director or on their behalf by an authorised 
certifying officer. 

Page 43



APPENDIX 1 

 
1.7.5 Works Contracts – Final Certificate control 
 

In the case of Works contracts a final certificate shall not be issued 
until the Chief Internal Auditor has, to the extent that it is felt 
necessary, examined all matters relating to the final account.  This 
examination shall not remove or modify the responsibility of the 
appropriate officer under the contract. 

 
1.7.6         Payments before Completion of Formal Contract 

For contracts with a value in excess of £50,000 no payment shall be 
made by the Council to the contractor until formal Agreement has 
been duly signed by all parties unless specifically authorised by the 
Operational Director responsible for that contract. 

Page 44



APPENDIX 1 

 
1.8 WAIVER OF PROCUREMENT STANDING ORDERS 

 

1.8.1 Emergency Procedures 

Where urgent action becomes necessary as a result of some 
unforeseen emergency, the Chief Executive (or in the absence of 
the Chief Executive, the nominated deputy) may take such action 
and these Standing Orders shall be waived in respect of such 
action.  Every use of this Standing Order shall be reported in writing 
to the next available meeting of the Executive Board Sub-
Committee. 

 

1.8.2 Executive Board / Executive Board Sub-Committee/ Mersey 
Gateway Executive Board approval 

 These Standing Orders may only be waived by the Executive 
Board/Executive Board Sub-Committee, and Mersey Gateway 
Executive Board for matters relating to the Mersey Gateway 
Project, in exceptional circumstances including, but not in any way 
limited by, the following: 

 

(a) where compliance with Standing Orders is not possible (e.g. due to 
there being only one possible contractor); or 

 

(b) where compliance with Standing Orders is not practicable for 
reasons of urgency which could not have reasonably been 
anticipated; or 

 

(c) where compliance with Standing Orders would result in a clear 
financial or commercial detriment to the Council; or 

 

(d) where compliance with Standing Orders would result in the Council 
having to forego a clear financial or commercial benefit; or 

 

(e) where compliance with Standing Orders is not practicable because 
the Council’s requirements can only be delivered by a particular 
supplier; or 

 

(f) where compliance with Standing Orders would be inconsistent with 
partnership or special external funding arrangements. 

 

Page 45



APPENDIX 1 

 In any report seeking waiver of Standing Orders the relevant Officer 
shall indicate the particular Standing Orders proposed to be waived, 
set out the business case supporting the proposal to waive, indicate 
how value for money, transparency, propriety and accountability 
would be achieved despite the waiver and indicate the position of 
the contract under the Public Contracts Regulations 2006. 

 

 The waiver of Standing Orders and the reason(s) for waiver shall be 
clearly recorded in the minutes of the Executive Board/Executive 
Board Sub-Committee. 

 

 Where certain Standing Orders are waived the relevant Officer shall 
comply with the remaining Standing Orders. 

 

 In cases where formal tendering requirements are waived the 
relevant Officer shall as far as is practicable demonstrate that 
competition, security, propriety and value for money have been 
achieved. 

  

 
 

 

Page 46



APPENDIX 1 

PART 2:  STANDING ORDERS CONCERNING CONTRACTS 
EXCEEDING £1,000,000 IN VALUE 

 
 (Part 2 shall apply to all contracts exceeding £1,000,000 in value) 

 
2.0.1  Contracts with a value exceeding £1,000,000 SOs 2.1 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 

2.5, 2.6 shall apply and advertising of such contracts must include 
advertising using Due North.  
 

2.0.2  Contracts for works exceeding £3,927,260 must also follow EU Public      
Procurement Regs 2006 and Part 6 of Procurement SOs 

 
2.1 Preliminary Estimate Report 
 

Before entering into a Contract likely to exceed £1,000,000 in value the 
Executive Board Sub-Committee shall receive from the appropriate 
Officer a written report on the proposed contract which shall include an 
estimate in writing of the probable expense of executing the works, 
goods or services in a suitable manner. 
 
The written report shall specify: 
 
(a)   The whole life cost of the project, e.g. ongoing revenue costs 

associated with the project. 
 
(b)   Identification of potential project risks and controls; 
 
(c)   How the project links with departmental and corporate 

objectives; 
 
(d)  How the contractor is to be selected; 
 
(e)  How the proposed method of procurement fits with the 

Authority’s procurement Strategy. 
  
Before entering into any contract hire arrangements exceeding 12 
months the estimate shall also include details of any implications for 
the Capital Programme. 

 
 
2.2  Forms of Tendering 
 
 There are four forms of tendering available where contracts covered by 
 Part 6 of these Standing Orders do not apply: 
 

(a)  Open Tendering 
 
(b) Standard Select Lists 
 
(c) Special Select Lists 

Page 47



APPENDIX 1 

 
(d) Standing Lists 

 
Tendering shall be by such of the above methods as the relevant 
Operational Director shall determine unless the Executive Board Sub-
Committee resolves otherwise. 
 

 As part of the process of drawing up any select or standing list the 
relevant Operational Director shall provide the Chief Internal Auditor 
with details of the contract, its estimated value, names of tenderers and 
where relevant details of tenders and in each case consult the Chief 
Internal Auditor on what if any financial checks should be carried out 
prior to selection of those tenderers to be placed on the select or 
standing list. This process shall not remove or modify the responsibility 
of the relevant Operational Director to take such steps as may be 
reasonably necessary to safeguard the Council’s interest. 
 

2.3 Open Tendering 
 

(a) This method should be used for contracts when it is in the 
Council’s interest to invite tenders from a wide range of 
contractors. The Council shall give at least 10 days public notice 
of its intention to enter into such arrangements. 

 
(b) Such notice shall be placed in one or more local newspapers 

circulating in the district and it shall also be placed in one or 
more appropriate specialist journals and The-Chest Due North.  

  
(c) The notice shall state the nature and purpose of the proposed 

contract. 
 
(d) Every company or person who expresses an interest in 

response to the notice must be sent full details of the works, 
goods or services for which tenders are invited together with the 
closing date for tenders and the Council’s requirements as to the 
form and procedures for submission of tenders. 

 
(e) Open tendering is not appropriate if: 

 
(i) The works, goods or services to be executed/provided 

are so specialised that only a limited number of 
contractors are available to execute that type of work or 
provide that type of goods or services, but in such cases 
a reasonable number of those contractors shall be invited 
to submit tenders. 

 
(ii) There would be no genuine competition. 
 
(iii) The works are to be executed or goods or services are to 

be provided, as a matter of urgency, and consent has 

Page 48



APPENDIX 1 

been obtained of the Chief Executive, or any Officer 
designated by him for the purpose, to dispense with the 
requirements of public notice. 

 
(iv) The goods or materials to be supplied consist of parts of 

existing machinery or plant. 
 
(v) Purchases are to be made by auction or made at public 

fairs or markets. 
 
2.4  Standard Select Lists 

 
(a) Public notice shall be given in one or more local newspapers 

circulating in the district and in one or more newspapers or 
journals circulating amongst such persons as undertake such 
contracts and on the The Chest - Due North site setting out 
particulars of the contract into which the Council wish to enter 
and inviting persons interested to apply for permission to tender 
within such period as may be specified in the notice (not being 
less than 10 days). 

 
(b) After the expiration of the period specified in the public notice, 

invitations to tender for the contract shall be sent to not less than 
5  of the persons who: 

 
(i) applied for permission to tender; and 
(ii) who are not disqualified by virtue of Standing Order 2.16. 
 
selected in the manner determined by the relevant Operational 
Director either generally or in relation to a particular contract or 
category of contracts or, if fewer than 5 persons have applied 
and are considered suitable, to all such persons. 

 
2.5  Special Select Lists 
 

(a) In relation to individual contracts any Operational Director with 
responsibility for a contract the subject matter of which is 
relevant to a Constructionline list may draw up a standard select 
or standing list from the Constructionline approved lists: 

 
(b) Any Operational Director drawing up a select or standing list 

under Standing Order 2.5(a) shall, for each contract which is the 
subject of that list: 

 
  (i) draw up a list of criteria as the basis for selection and 
 

(ii) record in writing how those criteria have been applied. 
 

(c) Lists operated by an organisation other than Constructionline 
may be used in accordance with this Standing Order provided 

Page 49



APPENDIX 1 

the organisation has been approved for the purposes of this 
Standing Order by the Operational Director - Finance.  

 
 
2.6  Standing Lists 
 

(a) This Standing Order shall have effect where the Executive 
Board Sub-Committee has determined that a list shall be kept of 
persons to be invited to tender for contracts for the execution of 
specified categories of works. 

 
(b) The said list shall: 

 
(i) be compiled and maintained by the Executive Board Sub-

Committee; 
 
(ii) contain the names of all persons who wish to be included 

in it and are approved by the Executive Board Sub-
Committee; and 

 
(iii) indicate whether a person whose name is included in it is 

approved for contracts for all, or only some of the 
specified values or amounts or categories. 

 
(c) At least 4 weeks before the list is first compiled, notices inviting 

applications for inclusion in it shall be published on The Chest – 
Due North the Council’s procurement webpage, in one or more 
local newspapers circulating in the district and in one or more 
newspapers or journals circulating among such persons as 
undertake contracts of the specified values or amounts or 
categories. 

 
(d) The said list shall be amended as required from time to time and 

shall be reviewed at least once in every three years. At least 4 
weeks before each review each person whose name appears in 
the list shall be asked whether they wish their name to remain 
there and notices inviting applications for inclusion in the list 
shall be published in the manner provided by paragraph (c) of 
this Standing Order. 

 
(e) Where by virtue of a decision of the Executive Board Sub-

Committee duly authorised in that behalf, invitation to tender for 
a contract is limited to persons whose names appear on the list 
maintained under this Standing Order, an invitation to tender for 
the contract shall be sent to at least 4 of those persons whose 
names appear in the said list as being approved for a contract 
for that value or amount or of that category and who are not 
disqualified by virtue of Standing Order 2.16 or, if there are 
fewer than 4 persons, to all such persons. If there are not less 
than 4 such persons, the persons to whom invitations are sent 

Page 50



APPENDIX 1 

shall be selected in the manner determined by the Executive 
Board Sub-Committee either generally or in relation to a 
particular contract or category of contracts. 

 
2.7 Method of Tendering and Interim Custody of Tenders 

  
Where in pursuance of these Standing Orders invitation to tender is 
required every notice of such invitation shall state: 

 
(a)  That no tender will be considered except in a sealed envelope or 

label (each to be provided by the Council) which bears the word 
'Tender' followed by the subject matter to which it relates and 
the date, time and place specified for its return and which is 
addressed to the office of the Chief Executive. 

 
(b) That no tenders received at the specified place after the fixed 

date and appointed time shall be considered. 
 
(c) That tenderers shall not place or cause to be placed any mark 

on the envelope or package enclosing the tender identifying the 
tenderer and that no tender enclosed in an envelope or package 
bearing such a mark shall be opened or considered. 
 

A register of tenders received in pursuance of these Standing Orders 
shall be maintained by the Chief Executive or an Officer designated by 
him for that purpose.  

 
Tender envelopes shall remain in the custody of the Chief Executive or 
other Officer designated by him for the purpose until the time appointed 
for their opening. 

 
For those choosing to use the E-Tendering facility The Chest - Due 
North, responses will be held within a secure online sealed tender box 
that is only accessible by the verifier (this would be in line with SO 2.9) 
after the specified fixed time and date. 

 
2.8 Closing Date for Receipt of Tenders 
 

No tenders received at the specified place after the fixed date and 
appointed time shall be opened or considered. 

 
2.9 Method of Opening Tenders 
 
 Tenders shall be opened at one time and only in the presence of:- 
 

(a) The Executive Board Member holding the relevant portfolio and 
having the duty or delegated powers of dealing with the contract 
or such Member or Members of the Council specially designated 
for the purpose by the Council; and 

 

Page 51



APPENDIX 1 

(b) The Chief Executive or an Officer of the Council designated by 
him. 

 
For those choosing to use the E-Tendering facility The Chest – Due 
North, the designated officer (verifier) must have permission recorded 
on the system to open the online sealed vault. 

 
 
 
2.10 Appraisal of Tenders 
 

(a) Tenders shall be appraised on a basis to be determined and 
documented before tenders are invited. 

 
(b) Tenders shall be appraised on the basis of defined and 

documented criteria. 
 
(c) Where criteria are of different value then weightings shall be 

shown. 
 
(d) A matrix shall be prepared and completed prior to the invitation 

to Tenderers and this matrix shall list the criteria and show the 
weighting of each criterion.  As part of the appraisal process, the 
mark achieved by each tenderer in relation to each criterion 
shall be recorded on the matrix. 

  
(e) Before tenders are opened, a marked, dated and signed copy of 

the matrix shall be promptly forwarded to the Principle 
Committee Services Officer to be kept with the Tender Register. 

 
2.11 Method of Acceptance of Tender 
 

(a) Tenders may be accepted by the relevant Operational Director 
provided that all of the following apply:- 

 
(i) five or more tenders have been invited in accordance with 

standing orders; 
 
(ii) the value of the tender proposed to be accepted does not 

exceed £5,000,000;  
 
(iii) the tender proposed to be accepted is the lowest tender. 

 
The Operational Director shall then report to the Executive 
Board Sub-Committee: 

 
 (i) the fact that the tender has been accepted; 
  

(ii) the names of the various tenderers; 
  

Page 52



APPENDIX 1 

(iii) the amount of the tender figures; 
   

(iv) the amount of the corrected tender figure (if any). 
 

(b) In all other cases, including cases where the relevant 
Operational Director uses the discretion not to accept a tender, 
the Executive Board Sub-Committee shall decide whether or not 
to accept a tender. 

 
The Executive Board Sub-Committee shall only accept a tender 
following a report which shall contain: 

 
(i) the names of the various tenderers 
 
(ii) the amount of the tender figures 
 
(iii) the amount of the corrected tender figure (if any) 
 
(iv) where a tender other than the lowest is proposed for 

acceptance, the reasons for the proposed acceptance. 
 

 
2.12  Errors in Tenders 
 

If before the date of entry into a contract it is discovered that an error 
has been made in the tender it shall be dealt with as follows:- 

 
 (a) Engineering Contracts – in accordance with the Guidance 

Notes produced by the ICE Conditions of Contract 
Standing Joint Committee. 

 
 (b) Building Contracts – in accordance with the National Joint 

Consultative Committee for building, Alternative 2. 
 
 (c) Non-Construction Contracts – the Tenderer should be 

given the opportunity of confirming the offer or of 
amending it to correct genuine and obvious errors. 
Should they elect to amend their offer and the revised 
tender is no longer the lowest, the offer of the firm now 
lowest should be examined on the basis of the same 
rules. 

 
The above action by the relevant Council Officer shall take place 
before the date of entry into a contract. 

 
2.13 Contracts to be in Writing 
 

(a) Every contract shall be in writing and shall be the subject of a 
formal contract prepared or approved by the Operational 

Page 53



APPENDIX 1 

Director and Monitoring Officer (Legal and Democratic Services) 
which shall specify: 

 
(i) the work, materials, matters, or things to be furnished, 

had or done; 
 
(ii) the price to be paid, with a statement of discount or other 

deductions; and 
 
(iii) the time or times within which the contract is to be 

performed. 
 

(b) The relevant Operational Director shall consider the need for a 
liquidated damages clause in each contract after considering the 
following factors: 

 
(i) potential risk; 
 
(ii) known technical difficulties associated with the project; 
 
(iii) the tendering procedure used. 
 

(iv) the practicality of making a reasonable pre-estimate of 
loss. 

 
(v) the financial status of the contractor(s); and 
 
(vi) the period of the contract. 

 
(c) Every contract shall contain clauses (i) requiring the contractor 

to observe and perform in relation to the work to be carried out 
under the contract the requirements of the Health & Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974 or of any Regulations or Codes of Practice 
made under the authority of that Act and to comply with any 
lawful requirements of the Health and Safety Executive in 
relation to such work; and there shall be reserved to any duly 
authorised Officer of the Council the right of access to the site 
for the purpose of ensuring compliance with the requirements of 
this Clause (ii) addressing equality and diversity and 
sustainability. 

 
 (d) In every contract the contractor shall be required to indemnify 

the Council against: 
 

(i) any claim which may be made in respect of employers' 
liability against the Council or the contractor by any 
workmen employed by the contractor or any sub-
contractor in the execution of the works or the provision 
of goods and services; 

Page 54



APPENDIX 1 

 
(ii) any claim for bodily injury to or damage to property of 

third parties; 
 
(iii)  any claim which may be made under the Health and 

Safety at Work etc. Act, 1974 against the Council or the 
contractor unless such claim is substantially due to the 
neglect of the Council or any of its Officers; 

 
and the contractor shall when required by the Operational 
Director and Monitoring Officer (Legal and Democratic Services) 
produce satisfactory evidence that they are insured against any 
such claims. 

 
(e) Where an appropriate EU Standard is current at the date of the 

tender, every contract shall require that, as the case may be, all 
goods and materials used or supplied and all workmanship shall 
be in accordance with that Standard and in the absence of a 
relevant EU Standard the contract shall require the application 
of the relevant British Standard Specification or British Standard 
Code of Practice issued by the British Standards Institution 
current at the date of the tender and every contract shall require 
that, as the case may be, all goods and materials used or 
supplied and all workmanship shall be in accordance with the 
relevant Standard. 

 
2.14 Nominated Sub-Contractors and Suppliers 
 

Where a sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated to a main 
contractor, the following provisions shall have effect:- 

 
(a) Where the estimated amount of the sub-contract or the 

estimated value of goods to be supplied by the nominated 
suppliers does not exceed £1,000,000 then unless the 
Operational Director concerned is of the opinion that it is not 
reasonably practicable to obtain competitive tenders: 

 
(i) The Operational Director concerned shall invite not fewer 

than 5 tenders for the nomination. The terms of the 
invitation shall require an undertaking by the tenderer that 
if they are selected they will be willing to enter into a 
contract with the main contractor on terms which 
indemnify the main contractor against their own 
obligations under the main contract in relation to the work 
or goods included in the sub-contract; 

 
(ii)  the tenders shall be opened at one time and only in the 

presence of the Operational Director concerned or an 
Officer designated by the Operational Director and one 
other Officer; 

Page 55



APPENDIX 1 

 
(iii)  the Operational Director concerned shall maintain a 

record of all such tenders received;  
 
(iv) the Operational Director concerned, or an Officer 

designated by him, shall nominate to the main contractor 
the person whose tender is, in the opinion of that Director 
or officer, the most satisfactory one. 

 
Provided that, where the tender is other than the lowest 
received, or where fewer than 5 tenders have been received, the 
circumstances shall be reported to the next meeting of the 
Executive Board Sub-Committee. 

 
(b) Where the estimated amount of the sub-contract or the 

estimated value of goods to be supplied by a nominated supplier 
exceeds £1,000,000 then unless the Executive Board Sub-
Committee determines that it is not reasonably practicable to 
obtain competitive tenders: 

 
(i) tenders for the nomination shall be invited in accordance 

with the Open Tender, Standard Select List, Special 
Select List or Standing List Procedures as the case may 
be. The terms of the invitation shall require an 
undertaking by the tenderer that if selected they will be 
willing to enter into a contract with the main contractor on 
terms which indemnify the main contractor against 
obligations under the main contract in relation to the work 
or goods included in the sub-contract; 

 
(ii)  the tenders shall be opened at one time and only in the 

presence of the Executive Board Member of the 
appropriate portfolio and the Chief Executive or an Officer 
designated by the Chief Executive, or the Operational 
Director concerned, or an Officer designated by the 
Operational Director; 

 
(iii)  the Operational Director concerned shall maintain a 

record of all such tenders received; 
 
(iv)  the Operational Director concerned, or an Officer 

designated by the Operational Director shall nominate to 
the main contractor the person whose tender is 
considered the most satisfactory. 

 
Provided that, where the tender is other than the lowest received, or 
where less than 3 tenders have been received, the circumstances shall 
be reported to the next meeting of the Executive Board Sub-
Committee. 

 

Page 56



APPENDIX 1 

2.15 Unsatisfactory progress 
 

If the Executive Board Sub-Committee is satisfied that a contractor has 
not carried out the contract in a satisfactory manner, such contractor 
shall not thereafter for a period of three years be invited to tender, nor 
be included in a select list, nor, if the said contractor submits a tender 
in response to public advertisement, shall such tender be considered. 
 
Any such exclusion shall extend to all contracts involving the Council. 

 
 

 

Page 57



APPENDIX 1 

PART 3 – CONTRACTS BETWEEN £156,442 AND £1,000,000 IN VALUE 
 
(Part 3 shall apply to all contracts between £156,442 and  £1,000,000) 
 
3.1 Contracts exceeding £156,442 and not exceeding £1,000,000  
 

Where the estimated value or amount of a proposed contract does not 
exceed £1,000,000 the Operational Director concerned may enter into 
such contract with such persons as the Operational Director considers 
competent for the purpose provided that at least five competitive 
tenders shall have been invited in writing before entering into such 
contract and the contract awarded to one of the persons who has 
tendered. In determining the method of tendering the Operational 
Director shall have regard to the forms of tendering set out in SO 2.2 
and shall require each potential tenderer to complete a Pre-
Qualification Questionnaire. 
  
Ten working days before the Operational Director invites such tenders 
he shall in respect of that contract place an invitation of expressions for 
interest on the The Chest - Due North and include any expressions of 
interest received 
 
The Operational Director shall document the selection criteria to be 
applied in the award of the contract prior to the tender being issued.  
 
 
The selection process shall be documented by the Operational Director 
and scorings must be available as feed-back to unsuccessful 
tenderers. 
 
 

3.2 Report to Executive Board Sub-Committee 
 

Where the actual contract price does exceed £1,000,000 or where a 
tender other than the lowest is accepted, or where fewer than five 
tenders have been received, the circumstances shall be reported to the 
Executive Board Sub-Committee for information. 

 
Contracts for goods and services having a value of or exceeding 
£156,442 must follow the OJEU path unless exempt (Part B). 
For those contracts that are exempt the Operational Director must 
issue an award notice and feedback to tenderers both at selection and 
award stages. 

 
 
 
3.3  Method of Tendering and Interim Custody of 
           Tenders 
 

Page 58



APPENDIX 1 

The method of tendering except in relation to references to the Chief 
Executive shall be in accordance with the procedures set down in 
Standing Order 2.7 However, the register of tenders received shall in 
this case be maintained by the appropriate Operational Director 
concerned (or other Officer designated by him) and the Tender 
envelopes shall remain in the custody of the Operational Director until 
the time approved for opening 

 
3.4 Closing date for Receipt of Tenders 
 

No tenders received at the specified place after the fixed date and 
appointed time shall be opened or considered. 

 
3.5  Method of Opening Tenders 
 

Tenders shall be opened at one time and only in the presence of the 
Operational Director concerned (or an Officer designated by him) and 
one other Officer.  For those choosing to use the E-Tendering facility 
(Due North), the designated officer (verifier) must have permission 
recorded on the system to open the online sealed vault. 

 
3.6 Errors in Tenders 
 
 Any errors shall be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 2.12 
            
3.7 Contracts to be in writing 
 

Every contract shall be in writing and shall include all other 
requirements contained in Standing Order 2.13. 

 
PART 4 - CONTRACTS LESS THAN £156,442 IN VALUE 
 
(Part 4 shall apply to all contracts up to but not exceeding £156,442 in value) 

 
4.1 Competition Requirements 
 
 Where the estimated costs of any works, goods or services ordered on 

behalf of the Council is less than £156,442 then quotations shall be 
invited as outlined below:  

           more than £1000:  three electronic invitations via The Chest – Due 
North, subject to a procurement risk assessment being carried out with 
the Procurement Division, which will determine the route to market of 
using either a Simple or Advance Request for Quotation: 
 
-   £1000 or less:  three written quotations are advisable 
 

4.2 Value for Money 
 

Page 59



APPENDIX 1 

Where the actual contract price accepted by the relevant Operational 
Director is other than the lowest the circumstances shall be reported to 
the Operational Director - Finance for information.   
 

4.3 Standing Orders relating to Finance 
 

Otherwise the arrangement for these contracts must be in accordance 
with Standing Orders relating to Finance. 

 
 
PART 5 – CONTRACTS FOR THE SALE OF ASSETS 
 
5.1 Disposal of Land 
 

These Standing Orders shall apply to any disposal of land or of any 
interest in land where: 
 
• subsequent to presentation at the Asset Management Working 

Group, a decision of the Executive Board/Executive Board Sub-
Committee or Officer exercising delegated powers on behalf of the 
Council so requires 

 
• a rule of law obliges the Council to dispose of land at the best price 

reasonably obtainable 
 
• ordinarily disposals shall be by sale on the open market. Any 

disposal that may be recommended for sale by negotiated 
agreement without open market testing shall be supported by a 
District Valuer’s report (or other reputable Independent Valuer) 

 
 

5.2 Disposal of Assets – value not exceeding £50,000 
 

Sale of assets for less than £50,000 in value shall be dealt with in 
accordance with Standing Orders relating to Finance. 

 
5.3 Preliminary Estimates of the Price receivable by the Council 
 

(a) Before entering into a contract for the disposal of any assets 
(which term includes scrap materials), the consideration for 
which is likely to exceed £100,000 the Executive 
Board/Executive Board Sub-Committee shall receive from the 
appropriate Officer a written report on the proposed disposal 
which shall include an estimate in writing of the probable 
consideration to be received by the Council. 

 
(b) Where the estimated value or amount of a proposed contract 

does not exceed £100,000, the Operational Director concerned 
shall receive the appropriate written report. 

 

Page 60



APPENDIX 1 

5.4 Requirement of Public Advertisement 
 

(a) Where the consideration for the disposal of any assets has been 
estimated at a figure exceeding £100,000 and less than the EC 
Public Procurement Values the Council shall, before entering 
into a formal contract, give at least 10 days public notice of its 
intention to enter into a contract. 

 
(b) Such notice shall be placed in one or more local newspapers 

circulating in the district and if the consideration to be received 
by the Council is likely to exceed £250,000 (it shall also be 
placed in one or more specified journals or publications 
circulating amongst such persons, firms or companies as deal in 
assets of the same type as those to be disposed of by the 
Council. If the consideration is less than £250,000 a notice may 
be placed in one or more specified journals if this is considered 
appropriate. 

 
(c) The notice shall state the nature and purpose of the proposed 

Contract; invite tenders for the purchase of the assets to be 
disposed of, and state the last date when tenders will be 
received. 

 
(d) Notice shall not be required if: 

 
(i) The goods or materials to be disposed of are so 

specialised that only a limited number of potential buyers 
are available but in such cases a reasonable number of 
those potential buyers shall be invited to submit tenders; 

 
(ii) There would be no genuine competition (for whatever 

reason); 
 
(iii)  Sales are to be by Auction. 

 
5.5 Method of Tendering and Interim Custody of Tenders 
 

The method and procedure to be followed is in accordance with 
Standing Orders 2.7 or 3.3. 

 
5.6 Closing Date for the Receipt of Tenders 
 

No tenders received at the specified place after the fixed date and 
appointed time shall be opened or considered 

 
5.7 Forfeiture in cases of bribery etc. 
 

There shall be inserted in every written contract a clause empowering 
the Council to cancel the contract and to recover from the contractor 
the amount of any loss resulting from such cancellation, if the 

Page 61



APPENDIX 1 

contractor shall have offered or given or agreed to give to any person 
any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for 
doing or forbearing to do or for having done or forborne to do any 
action in relation to the obtaining or execution of the contract or any 
other contract with the Council, or for showing or forbearing to show 
favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the contract or any other 
contract with the Council, or if the like acts shall have been done by 
any person employed by the contractor or acting on the contractor’s 
behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the contractor), or if in 
relation to any contract with the Council the contractor or any person 
employed by the contractor him or acting on the contractor’s behalf 
shall have committed any offence under the Prevention of Corruption 
Acts 1889 to 1916, or the Bribery Act 2010, or shall have given any fee 
or reward, the receipt of which is an offence under Section 117 of the 
Local Government Act, 1972. 

 
5.8 Method of Opening Tenders 
 
 Tenders shall be opened in accordance with Standing Orders 2.9 or 
            3.5. 
 
5.9 Method of Acceptance of Tenders 
 

The method of acceptance of tenders shall be in accordance with 
Standing Order 2.11 except that the words ‘highest tender’ shall be 
substituted for the words ‘lowest tender’. 

 
5.10 Acceptance of Tenders other than the highest 
 

It shall be clearly stated in all tender documents that the Council 
reserves the right: 

 
 (a) to accept a tender other than the highest 
 
 (b) to decline to accept any tender 
 
5.11 Errors in Tenders 
 

If before the date of entry into a contract it is discovered that an error 
has been made in the tender:- 

 
(a) mathematical errors (e.g. of extension or summation) apparent 

on the face of the tender shall be corrected by the relevant 
Council Officer and the tenderer shall be given the opportunity of 
confirming or withdrawing the tender on the basis of the 
corrected figures. 

 
(b) such other errors (e.g. in rates) as may come to the attention of 

the relevant Council Officer shall be notified to the tenderer who 
shall be given the opportunity of confirming or withdrawing the 

Page 62



APPENDIX 1 

tender on the basis of the uncorrected figures stated in the 
tender. 

 
Where the tenderer elects to withdraw the tender under either (a) or (b) 
above the next highest tender shall be considered and the same rules 
shall be applied in considering that tender. 
 
The above action by the relevant Council Officer shall take place 
before the date of entry into a contract. 

 
5.12 Contracts to be in Writing 
 

Unless the assets to be disposed of are such that the title passes on 
delivery, every contract shall be in writing in accordance with Standing 
Order 2.14. 

 
 
PART 6 - EUROPEAN UNION PUBLIC PROCUREMENT RULES  
 
6.1 General Approach 

The general approach to EU procurement-related Directives is set out 
at Standing Order 1.1.2. 

 
The following Standing Orders provide guidance to the EU 
procurement regime as at 31 January 2006 but officers should always 
check with Legal Services to ensure they are complying with the latest 
European rules. 

 
6.2 EU Directives 
 

Relevant EU Directives have been translated into Domestic Law and 
these deal with Works, Supplies and Services which exceed the 
relevant thresholds. These are the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 
(SI 2006/5) as amended.  

 
6.3 Precedence of EU Rules 
 
 The Table below sets out a summary of the more important 

Regulations dealing with Works, Supplies and Services but is not a 
substitute for the actual text of the Regulations. The Table is designed 
to give an overview of the rules applicable to the restricted 
procedure (which is the most commonly used in practice). The 
relevant regulation is identified in brackets. 

 
6.4 EC Procurement Thresholds 
 

Page 63



APPENDIX 1 

 The Regulations apply where the estimated contract values exceed 
thresholds which are fixed for two year periods.  From 1 January 2010 
until 31 December 2011 the EC Public Procurement Thresholds are:  

 
 

Supplies £156,442 
Services £156,442 
Works £3,927,260 

   
 The thresholds relate to the total expenditure to be incurred during the 

full term of the contract including any optional extension period and 
not to individual contracts or years of the contract. N.B. The European 
Commission reviews the thresholds bi-annually. Contact Head of 
Procurement for an update on the new thresholds post-December 
2011 (Reg.8) 
 

6.5 Technical Specifications 
 

European standards must be used whenever available (Reg. 9). 
 

6.6 Prior Information Notice 
 

Required for Works as soon as decision made approving the planning 
of the Works BUT for Suppliers and Services required after the 
commencement of each financial year (Reg. 11). 
 

  
6.7 Restricted Procedure 
  

(1)   Advert in Official Journal (Reg.16 (2)). 
 
(2) Period for receipt of request to be selected to tender -  not less 

than 37 days (Reg.16(3)). 
 
(3) Number of tenderers – not less than five– otherwise sufficient 

number to ensure genuine competition (Reg.16 (6), (7)). 
 
(4) Prescribed information must be sent with the tender invitations 

(Reg. 16(15)). 
 
(5) Period for receipt of tenders – not less than 40 days (plus 

inspection period if necessary) (Reg.16(16)). 
 

(6)  For Works and Services (but NOT for Supplies) if a Prior    
Information Notice has been published the period for receipt of 
tenders may be reduced from 40 days to between 36 and 22 days 
(Reg.16(18)). 

 

Page 64



APPENDIX 1 

(7) Information requested by tenderers must be supplied provided the 
request is received not less than 4 days before date for receipt of 
tenders. (Reg.16(20)). 

 
(8)   Following the selection of the tender notice shall be given to all 

tenderers of the Council’s provisional intention to award the 
contract to the successful tenderer and the contract shall not be 
finally awarded until 10 days have passed after the giving of that 
notice electronically and 15 days if physically posted. 

 
6.8 Other Award Processes 
 
 Officers should note the existence of other competitive processes 

under the Public Contract Regulations 2006. These alternative 
processes include:  

 
(1) Competitive Dialogue – This is available where the Council is 
unable to provide a precise specification and where there is scope to 
negotiate different ways of providing a solution. The Council may 
select several suitable providers and enter into a dialogue with them 
all to help determine the final model of provision. The Council will 
then agree its specification and allow the providers to bid based on 
the agreed solution. (Reg 18); 
 
(2) Dynamic Purchasing – This is a completely electronic system, 
that adopts the principles of the Open Procedure. It is most likely to 
be considered for commonly used goods works and services. It is 
essentially designed to cover regular “off the shelf” purchases. (Reg 
20); 
 
(3) Electronic auctions  - Once a shortlist has been determined in 
the usual way an electronic auction can be set up to get the best 
price, providing that this was specified in the original notice and 
tender documents. It will be necessary to specify requirements with 
precision. (Reg 21); 
 
(4) Central Purchasing Bodies – These are public bodies that let 
contracts/framework agreements in such a way as to enable other 
qualifying bodies to join the contract at a later date. Care must be 
taken to ensure that the Council is able to join the 
contract/agreement, that the arrangement is still current and that the 
terms are those secured directly through the advertised process. 
(Reg 22). 

 
 
6.9 Award Criteria 
 
 The award criteria are to be either lowest price or most economically 

advantageous (Reg. 20). 
 

Page 65



APPENDIX 1 

6.10 Contract Award Notice  
 
 The Contract Award Notice must be sent to the Official Journal no 

later than 48 days after the award of the Contract (Reg.21). 
 
6.11 Information to Unsuccessful Contractors  
 
 Information to unsuccessful contractors must be given, with reasons, 

within 15 days of receiving request (Reg.22(1)). 
 

6.12 Contract Records 
   
 Contract records containing prescribed information must be 

maintained, copies of which may be demanded by the Commission 
(Reg.22 (2), (3)). 

 
6.13 Non-award Notices 
   
 Decisions not to award a contract must be advertised in the Official 

Journal (Reg.22(4)).  
 

6.14 Statistical Reports  
 
 Statistical reports must be prepared by 31st July in every alternate 

(odd numbered) year in respect of contracts awarded in the previous 
year (Reg.28). 

 

6.15    Part-exempt Services  

 
 The following are examples of services that are exempt from most of 

the above requirements even if the contract is above the financial 
threshold:  

 

• Hotel and restaurant services 
• Transport by rail 
• Transport by water 
• Supporting and auxiliary transport services 
• Legal services 
• Personnel placement and supply services 
• Investigation and security services, other than armoured car 

services 
• Education and vocational health services 
• Health and social services 
• Recreational, cultural and sporting services 

 
 

Page 66



New SO Value Thresholds AMc/ERS Version1.0/09.06. 11 

APPENDIX 2 

V1 Procurement Centre of Excellence – New Procurement Standing Order Value Thresholds  
Where a Corporate Contract or Internal Service Providers i.e. ICT, Print, Civic Catering already exists it must be used, If no contract exists, 
Check that Budget is available and follow your value threshold route below. 
 

 

Upto £10,0ttyutut 

 

 

 

Works up to 
£3,927,260 and 
Exemptions 
under Part B – 
Public Contract 
Regulations 2006 
(SO Part 6) must 
be advertised via 
The Chest – Due 
North 
 

SO Part 4 - Sourcing 
£1,001 up to but not 
exceeding £156,442 

 
(Was £50,000) 

 

SO Part 3 - Tender 
£156,442 up to but not 
exceeding £1,000,000 

 
(Was £50,000) 

 

SO Part 2 - Tender 
 

Contracts exceeding £1,000,000 
  
 

SO Part 4 - Sourcing 

 
Up to but not exceeding 

£1,000 
 

1.8.1 Emergency 
Procedures – need new text 
to allow for low value i.e. 
The Bridge/Highways 
 

SO 2.2 Forms of Tendering or 
 
Operational Director can invite a 
minimum of 5 competent tenderers to 
submit bids in line with SO 2.2 which 
includes SO 2.5 Special Lists - 
provision to use Constructionline  
 
Publish opportunity on The Chest – 
Due North, 10 working days before 
Tender documents are issued 
 
EU Principles, of Fair, Transparent and 
Non-Discrimination of competition. 
 

1.8.1 Emergency 
Procedures – need new text 
to allow for low value i.e. 
The Bridge/Highways 

 
 

3 Written Quotes are 
advisable  

 

Subject to a Procurement 
Sourcing Risk Assessment 
 
A minimum of 3 Electronic 
invitations via The Chest - Due 
North are required 
 

Works or  
 
Exemptions 
under Part B  
Public Contract 
Regulations 
2006 (SO Part 6) 

 

Goods and 
Services 
exceeding 
£156,442 must 
follow Public 
Contract 
Regulations 2006 
(SO Part 6) unless 
Part B exempt 

Works exceeding 
£3,927,260 must 
follow Public 
Contract 
Regulations 2006 
(SO Part 6) unless 
Part B exempt 

SO 2.1 Preliminary Estimates Report   
Provided to Executive Board Sub-
Committee before entering into a 
contract 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



P
a

g
e
 6

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  

REPORT TO: Executive Board 
 
DATE: 30th June 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Policy and Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Halton Core Strategy – Submission to the 

Secretary of State 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
This report seeks the approval of the Executive Board to submit the Halton 
Core Strategy, May 2011 – (Appendix A located at 
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=316&MId=3704&V
er=4) to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to 
commence the formal examination of the document. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That Council be recommended to approve 

 
(1) The Halton Core Strategy Revised Proposed Submission 

Document (May 2011) for Submission to the Secretary of 
State under Regulation 30 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development) (England) Regulations 2008; 

 
(2) Minor editorial amendments may be required to improve the 

legibility of the Halton Core Strategy be made to the 
Inspector by the Operational Director for Policy, Planning and 
Transportation in consultation with the Executive Board 
Member for Physical Environment; 

 
(3) Delegated authority for those officers representing the 

Council in its capacity as Local Planning Authority to enter 
into discussions with parties and to suggest wording 
changes (in consultation with the appointed Inspector), as 
are deemed necessary by the Inspector to reach agreement 
on matters discussed at the examination into the soundness 
of the Core Strategy; and 

 
(4) Material weight to be given to the Halton Core Strategy 

Revised Proposed Submission Document (May 2011) as a 
material consideration in Council Development Control policy 
decisions. 

Agenda Item 12fPage 69



  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 On 31st March 2011, approval was received from the Executive Board 

to make changes to the Proposed Submission Core Strategy 
(November 2010) for the purposes of a further six week period of public 
consultation and for representations to be made. 

 
Public Consultation: 13 May 2011 – 24 June 2011 

 
A further period of public consultation on the Revised Proposed Submission 
Core Strategy (Appendix A located at  
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=316&MId=3704&V
er=4) commenced on Friday 13th May 2011.  The main matters provoking the 
need for a further period of public consultation were: 

• Availability of evidence upon which the policies within the Core 
Strategy are founded 

• Green Belt policy 
• Daresbury Strategic Site policy 
• Liverpool John Lennon Airport policy 
• Core Strategy plan period not covering the required period of 15 

years from adoption 
Officers also took the opportunity to make other changes of a more 
minor nature across the whole document. 

 
3.2 The Revised Proposed Submission Document (May 2011) shows all 

changes made since November 2010 as ‘track changes’, so that all of 
those individuals or parties who submitted representations at the 
previous stage can see how the document has been changed in 
response to the points they raised. 

 
3.3 Those representations which were made on the Proposed Submission 

Document (November 2010) will be forwarded onto the Planning 
Inspector for consideration, unless they are withdrawn or amended. It is 
the role of the appointed Planning Inspector to consider the 
representations received at this stage, alongside their assessment of 
the soundness of the plan.  Therefore, the Council is not required to 
respond to the individual representations made at this stage.  The 
Council will be required to submit a Statement of the 
Representations to the Secretary of State, indicating the main issues 
raised at the final stage of consultation (May – June 2011). 

 
3.4 The Council is also able to submit further minor editorial changes to the 

Inspector, alongside the submitted Core Strategy and associated 
documentation.  These minor changes are those of a nature which 
would further improve the legibility of the document or ensure it is up-
to-date.  They should not constitute changes which would require 
further consultation.  Any such minor changes to the Halton Core 
Strategy will be submitted as a schedule attached to the submission 
document. 

Page 70



  

 
 

Submission of the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State  
 
3.5 Once the Revised Proposed Submission Core Strategy consultation 

period has closed (on 24th June 2011) and approval has been received 
from Executive Board and that decision has been ratified by full 
Council, this version of the Core Strategy can be submitted to the 
Secretary of State.  This is expected to occur in late July 2011.  An 
independent Planning Inspector will then be appointed on behalf of the 
Secretary of State to consider the representations received alongside 
the soundness of the plan.  Indicative timescales published by the 
Planning Inspectorate suggest that the examination into the Core 
Strategy would commence in the autumn.  Using this indicative 
timetable, it is hoped that the Halton Core Strategy can be adopted in 
spring 2012. 

 
3.6 In accordance with Section 20 (2) of the Planning Act 2004, the Council 

must only submit its Core Strategy when it thinks it is ready for 
examination.  This is to allow the examination process to proceed 
smoothly, without being held up by a lack of information or other 
unresolved matters that were known to the Council at the time of 
Submission. 

 
3.7 The Halton Core Strategy is now ready for submission to the Secretary 

of State for examination.  The Core Strategy is held to be both in legal 
compliance and “sound” and there are no outstanding pieces of 
evidence or information awaited which would have any bearing on the 
spatial planning strategy proposed through the document. 

 
3.8 The Planning Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State to examine 

the Core Strategy will assess the plan to determine whether it is legally 
compliant and sound. 

 
3.9 In order for the Core Strategy to be legally compliant, it must have 

been: 
• prepared in accordance with the Halton Local Development 

Scheme and in compliance with the Halton Statement of 
Community Involvement and the relevant Regulations 

• been subject to Sustainability Appraisal 
• prepared with regard to National Policy 
• prepared to conform generally to the Regional Spatial Strategy 

for the North West of England1 
• prepared with regard to the Halton Sustainable Community 

Strategy. 

                                                 
1 It is the Government’s intention to abolition Regional Strategies through the introduction of the Localism Bill, 

see Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Abolition of Regional Strategies 10 November 2010 (available at: 

www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/letterabolitionregional). The latest court hearing on 

the matter (27th May 2011) concluded that local planning authorities would be acting unlawfully if they took the 

intention to revoke into consideration when drawing up their development plans. 

Page 71



  

 
3.10 The term “soundness” relates to the requirement in the Government’s 

Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Spatial Planning, that in order for 
a Core Strategy to be sound, it must be: 

• Justified - 
o founded on a robust and credible evidence base, 
o the most appropriate strategy when considered against 

the reasonable alternatives 
• Effective - 

o deliverable, 
o flexible, 
o able to be monitored, and 

• Consistent with National Policy 
 
3.11 Prior to the commencement of the examination into the Core Strategy, 

the Inspector will determine which matters he or she wishes to be 
discussed.  The examination will take place as a series of informal 
round table sessions, where the Council and interested parties will 
respond to questions posed by the Planning Inspector.  Interested 
parties who submitted representations will also have an opportunity to 
ask questions of the Council.  From the experience of recent Core 
Strategy examinations in other local authorities, it is expected that the 
examination will last for no more than 2-3 weeks, with the Inspector 
only sitting for three days each week to allow him/her to prepare 
accordingly. 

 
3.12 During the examination, it may be the case that matters of 

disagreement between the Council and interested parties may be 
capable of being resolved through wording changes to the Core 
Strategy.  Therefore, it is one of the recommendations of this report 
that delegated authority be granted to allow officers to enter into such 
discussions with parties at the examination, in order to resolve matters 
of disagreement.  Such discussions will be held before the Planning 
Inspector who will provide independent scrutiny and advice to any such 
discussions and potential wording changes. 

 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Core Strategy is the central policy document within the Halton 

LDF. The Core Strategy is more than a planning document: it is a 
significant corporate policy document and as such, it will have 
widespread policy implications for the Council and its partners.  It is 
important that all efforts are made to ensure a successful outcome at 
the Core Strategy examination because of the time and resources that 
have been invested in the plan’s production to date. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES  
 
5.1 A Healthy Halton  

Page 72



  

 The Core Strategy Proposed Submission document contains a number 
of policies intended to directly or indirectly contribute to addressing the 
Borough’s health problems. The SCS priority for a healthier Halton is 
strongly reflected across a number of policies, including through the 
maintenance of well-designed places and spaces, support for 
accessible sustainable travel options and through the provision of a 
healthy, green local environment.  The Core Strategy Revised 
Proposed Submission Document includes policy CS22: Health and 
Well-being which specifically looks to support healthy environments 
and lifestyles in the Borough. 

 
5.2 Environment and Regeneration in Halton 
 The Key Areas of Change highlight areas which will be subject to 

concentrated renewal. The other policies in the Plan seek to support 
the renewal and/or enhancement of the Borough’s green and built 
environment, with a particular focus on housing areas, employment 
land and the Borough’s town centres. 

 
5.3 Children and Young People in Halton 
 A significant component of the content of the Core Strategy is aimed at 

supporting raising aspirations of younger people, and supporting the 
provision of opportunities for them to enter further education or 
employment. The Plan also addresses the need to encourage and 
provide opportunities for children and younger people to access and 
participate in physically active, healthy lifestyles. 

 
5.4 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 One of the main thrusts of the Core Strategy is to support the 

maintenance and enhancement of the Borough’s economy and hence 
economic growth. The Core Strategy also aims to consolidate and 
enhance linkages to the wider sub-region and deliver the economic 
benefits of Halton’s strategic location and facilities to the Borough’s 
residents and businesses. 

 
5.5 A Safer Halton 
 Making Halton safer is a key consideration for the Core Strategy, which 

aims to ensure that Halton’s communities, businesses and visitors 
enjoy access to a safe and sustainable physical environment with 
natural and man-made risks and hazards being minimised. A number 
of policies seek to create and sustain safer environments, which are 
well designed, well built, well maintained and valued by all members of 
society.  

 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
6.1 Despite the Council’s view that the Halton Core Strategy is legally 

compliant and sound, there is still the risk that the soundness and legal 
compliance of the plan could be called into question by the Inspector at 
the Examination. Normally in these instances, the Inspector will call an 
Exploratory meeting before the examination to highlight their concerns 

Page 73



  

and to decide whether any issues can be easily resolved through the 
provision of additional information. 

 
6.2 After the examination, the Inspector will issue a Binding Report of their 

recommendations as to whether the Core Strategy is sound.  There is 
the risk that the Inspector may find the Core Strategy to be unsound, 
and not capable of being found sound unless widespread changes 
were made.  Given that the Inspector’s Report is binding, any changes 
that he/she recommends would not be subject to further public 
consultation.  Therefore if widespread changes are deemed to be 
necessary to improve the plan, the Planning Inspector may recommend 
that the plan be withdrawn to allow the Council to make amendments 
and for further public consultation to be undertaken. 

 
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
7.1 An integral part of the Core Strategy is to support a socially inclusive 

environment that takes into account Halton’s diverse communities by 
breaking down unnecessary barriers and exclusions in a manner that 
benefits the entire Borough. Equality Impact Assessments have been 
undertaken on the Core Strategy at the Preferred Options, Proposed 
Submission and Revised Proposed Submission stages to demonstrate 
whether the Plan has any significant foreseeable implications for 
Halton’s communities and ways that these potential effects should be 
mitigated. 

 
8.0 REASON(S) FOR DECISION 
 
8.1 The next stage in the production of the Halton Core Strategy is for the 

document to be submitted to the Secretary of State for examination.  
Officers are seeking Executive Board endorsement and full Council 
ratification to proceed to the examination stage for the Core Strategy. 

 
9.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
9.1 No alternative options have been considered at this stage.  Submitting 

the Core Strategy for examination is the next step in the process of the 
Core Strategy’s production and is in accordance with the associated 
Regulations for the production of Development Plan Documents. 

 
10.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 
10.1 It is envisaged that the Core Strategy will be submitted to the Secretary 

of State in late July 2011, with the examination phase commencing in 
autumn 2011, to be followed by adoption of the Core Strategy in spring 
2012.  After its adoption the Core Strategy will then be used for 
development management purposes in the determination of planning 
applications and to direct development to the most appropriate 
locations in accordance with the adopted spatial strategy for the 
Borough. 

Page 74



  

 
 
 
 
11.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 

Halton Core Strategy Proposed 
Submission Documents 
(November 2010) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Copies of representations received 
on the Halton Core Strategy 
Proposed Submission Document 
(November 2010 - February 2011) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Report of Representations 
Received November 2010 – 
January 2011 and Council 
Responses, May 2011 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Schedule of Changes made to the 
Proposed Submission document 
(May 2011) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Halton Core Strategy Revised 
Proposed Submission Document 
Supporting Documents (May 2011) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Copies of representations received 
to date on the Halton Core 
Strategy Revised Proposed 
Submission Document (May – 
June 2011) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Executive Board Report – Halton 
Core Strategy – Changes to 
Proposed Submission Document 
for a period of further public 
consultation (31

st
 March 2011) 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Planning Policy Statement 12: 
Local Spatial Planning 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Planning Advisory Service – Plan 
Making Manual 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

The Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 

Places, Economy and 
Transport Team, Rutland 
House 

Alasdair Cross 

 
 

Name of Board: Executive Board 

Date of Meeting: 30th June 2011 

Report Title: 
Halton Core Strategy – Changes to Proposed 
Submission Document for a period of further 
public consultation 

Page 75



  

Author: Gemma Hawkesford 

 

Page 76



APPENDIX APage 77



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������������������������������������������������������
�

�

 
��

�

�����������������������

 

��� ������ �!�
	 "�# $����%�# $���&'�##����

����' ���
�

��!�()**��" '& ��()*)�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�+�!����  $����#���+��'�����������$�++ � ���+��'���#�����#����� �%����,���$���
��% ,������� ��������� ��������� ,�%� �# ����������#����)-)-�---�.-))�
�
�+�!����+��#��������� ��#�����
����#����$�!���/���$���0 ���+��'�������&��������
# �"�� #��������� ��������� �%� �# ����������#����)-)-�---�.-))���� '����
�$�1������2��"2�0�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�% ������������ �����

�"����' �������$�	 �������!�� �"�� #������!,������������$�����#%���������
�����������������������
	�����$����# �
�������� ��
	�������
3�4�(�3�

APPENDIX APage 78



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������������������������������������������������������
�

�

 
���

5�� /��$�
�
�
3 ���' ��������������������������6#���� ������ �!�/�����/����%��!�����������
��� ����#��%������ �#%������$ " ��%' ����+���������%����()(782��

�
�� ���� ������ �!�# �#��������9������6#�����!��+����� 6���/��� �����������#�
$ " ��% $��" ����' ���$������$�� #��� ��������6#�������� ��#���#,������$����
�� ��##� #���$������ �� #�������� �����������/�+�� #���$����# ���0 �!������" �
����'%������$�$��" �+���� ������� �$�������� �% ���$����()(782��� ���� �
����� �!��� �������$�� #���"�#����+����� ��������,��'���������� �%��� �/ �
/���$���0 �����������& �&!�()(78���$��$ ���+� #���# �� #��+�*-������ ����
�&: ���" #������/����� �%��#����$ ��" �������"�#���2�5��'����#,����%����������� �!�
��#�&  ��%� %�� $,�#��/������/�$ " ��%' ���/����& �$�#���&�� $������������
�� ��������,���$���$��������/������� �#�/����& �#�&: �������� �'�#��#�&#��������
����� 2����#��#�+����/ $�&!���# �� #��+���� �%����� #�� ����������0 !��� ' #��+�
$ " ��%' ��������$��������#%���,���&���$ #���,����# �"��������$�� ����2��
�
�� ���� ������ �!,���� ��'%� ' �� $,�/����#����+������!�������&�� ������ �
$ ��" �!��+���%��#% ���#,�/ ������� �� $���$���������" ��������,�#�%%�������
� ����!���''����� #,�% �+��'������0 !���� �/�������� ���" �%�������!�	 �����
��$�/ ���%�#����� $����� #%��$����+���� � ����'�����$�#����������� #���$�
����� �� #2�
�

�
�
����������	�
���
�����������
������	�
���
����������������������	��
���������������

�
� �

APPENDIX APage 79



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������������
�������������������������������������������

�

 
����

���������
 

 

 

 

 

 

� � �����
���	�
�

� ��������� ��
�� ������ !����� ��
"� ����#��$��%&!�� '�
(� �������&������&��)�!��*+�!��,��� "��

���
�������������

-� ���������&%���.���/&��&%����&��)#�� "0�
� �����������1�#���&)�&2� ((�
0� ��"������ ��&��&*%����,�%�/2��������!�/%��� (-�
3� ��(������� ���)�� //%#�&�����!&����&%������������ (3�
'� ��-�����
2/%�#2�����&���� //%#�&�����!&����&%������������ -��
4� ��0�������������5��$���������� -3�
6� ��3�������������%�� 0��
�7� ��'�������$�&��� !� ������,������ 03�

��������������������
��� ��4�����(��� 37�
�"� ��6������� �8�9������ 3-�
�(� ���7���9����	 �!���� '7�
�-� �������
&���	 �!���� '3�

��������������
�0� ���"����� ���)���:� 67�
�3� ���(����$$���&*%���� ���)��� 6(�
�'� ���-���������)��8���������$��#/����;���&,�%%����&�����&,�%%��)��8��������������������

<<<���/%��
63�

�4� ���0���� ��&��&*%����&��/���� 66�
�6� ���3����8�������#��&���&#����+�!�� �7"�
"7� ���'�����,��/��%�=�8������������/���� �7'�
"�� ���4�����)8�> &%��#�����)�� ��(�
""� ���6���� ��&��&*%����,�%�/2����&����%�2&����8&�)�� ��0�
"(� ��"7����&� �&%�&����������!�
�,����2���� ��6�
"-� ��"������������$�&��� !� ��� �""�
"0� ��""�����&%�8�&���9�%%?����)� �"3�
"3� ��"(����&�&)��)���%% �����&���	��5� �"6�
"'� ��"-���9&���� �(-�
"4� ��"0��������&%�� �(3�

�����������
��//����:��� �� ���)���&+�!������� �(6�
�//����:�"� �������������� ��&����� �-��
�//����:�(� ���������)���&2����5� �-"�
�//����:�-� �!8�� %���$��&%����������%�!�������*��	�/%&!���� �37�
�//����:�0� �%���&�#� �3��

APPENDIX APage 80



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������������
�������������������������������������������

�

 
�,�

 

 

 

��������
�� ����!&��,����������&��)#���%�!#������:�� (�
"� ��,��/��%����#�	�)���� '�
(� �&%�������� )8��� �!�% 4�
-� 	 �!��������������&������%&� �7�
0� �&%���.���/&��&%���/��,&���� �-�
3� 1�#���&)�&2 ((�
'� �������!&%����,�� �%#���,�%�/����&���@�����$��%�A����$��2&�!�� (6�
4� (�����&)�&2� 3��
6� �� �8�9��������&)�&2 30�
�7� 9����	 �!������&)�&2 '��
��� 
&���	 �!����1�#����&��$��8&�)��&����&���* �#����&��)�!������

�� ��&�# 
'3�

�"� �&���* �#����&��)�!�������%%�!&���������8����8��
&���	 �!����1�#����&�
�$��8&�)� 

'6�

�(� �����#��&���&#����+�!����&)�&2 �7(�
�-� ��,��/��%�=�8������������/������&)�&2 �76�
�0� ��	����,�%����%����	��5����&�� �("�


������
�� ������* ������$�������$������,�%�/2�����������&%� "'�
"� ���+�!����������* ������$���,�%�/2����B���,�%�/2�����&������"7"43� "6�
(� � 22&�#��$�
2/%�#2�����&���	�C ���2������&%! %&������ -(�
-� ��,�%�/2�����8&���)�&��
&���	 �!���� 4��
0� ��,�%�/2����&��
&���	 �!��������$�����)�$��2�
:�����)��%&����)�

���������
4(�

3� �&���* �#����&��)�!������D���&��/������$�&��� !� ���	�C ���2�����
�������������,��	��������&%����&��

43�

'� �&���* �#����&��)�!������D���$�&��� !� ���	�C ���2���������������
���,��
2/%�#2�������&��

4'�

4� �&���* �#����&��)�!������D���8�����$�&��� !� ���	�C ��������� //����
�8��
�����������

44�

6� �#/�#�&�����&,�%%������!8���&�����&,�%%��)��8��/��/%���%���� 6'�
�7� �&%�������� )8��� �!�%���&��&�����$����,������$���������/&!��B�

��������$�&��� !� ���
�"-�

������
�����������
�
����
�� ��$�&��� !� ����%&��
�� � ��&��&*�%��#��//�&��&%�
�� �&*��&���	�) %&������������2����
�� ��&��2�����$����� %�&�����

� ��&%�8��2/&!��������2����
�� 
C &%��#��2/&!��������2����
�� ����
,����!���&���

APPENDIX APage 81



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
��

� �������������
�

������������	
���������
���
�

��� �� ��!"������� ����!� #$��%��� �� ���!"�����& ���'�������� �������"(%����!"�
� ) "�*& ���+�!& '��,�-��+.�'�����'�""� ) ���!""$�� *"!� ��!"���(%����� ���
*"!�/��� �����!�$�� ) "�*& ����"!��-���./�!���0 ��% �����#��� �� ) "�*& ���!���
� � �&�� �*"!����#�!**"��!����%��) ���� �� 1���2�$ !�%/����34356���

�
��3 �� ���� ����!� #$�*��)�� %��� ��) �!�����#�%��!� #$�7����� ���+/�% ����#�����'�$�

��!�# ��%��  � �8�'�!���� �%�!" ��7���!�# ��%8�!���'� � /�'� ��!�����'����'�""�0 �
� "�) � �������� %����%������#���� ���7$��#��� ����� ����%%� %�!����**�������� %����
�� ������#�/���'�' �'!������!��� ) ���!�# �!���%�!���#��� �7���� �)�%����7���
�!"�������34356������ "�) �����%�)�%������ ���� ����!� #$�% �%�����!�%*!��!"�%��!� #$�
%�!���#��� � 1� ����7���!�# ��  � ��!����� ���� �*�"��� %�7���� "�) ���#����%�7���� �
��!�# ��

�
��9 �� ���� ����!� #$�'�""�� "*����%�!* ��� �7���� ��7��!"���/����"����#���%��!���!"�!���

0��"�� �)����& ��%/���%���&&����� %�!����"��&!� "$�* �*" %�:�!"��$��7�"�7 ���� ���� �
���!� #$��� � 7�� �;���%��*�!��!�# ��7���77 � ����%%� %�%����!%����%��#/� &*"�$& ��/�
� �!�"/���!�%*����!���� !"�������%��%�,��'��!%�<%*!��!"�*"!����#(��

�
�

�
����������	
���������
����������
��������
�

��= >��,������ ���� ����!� #$���&& �� �����?!��!�$�3446�'������ �*�����������7�
�� ���� ����!� #$��%%� %�!����*����%��!* �%����0"������%�"�!��������,�*"!� �7��&�
�� �3@���?�"$���!���@���� *� &0 ��3446�� *� % ����#��� �7��%��%�!# ��7���&&����$�
��)�") & �������� ���� ����!� #$�!����� �%*!��!"�*"!����#�!**��!�����!��%���"��0 �
�!, ����

�
��2 �� ��%%� %��!* ��0 #!��0$�����������#��� �� '�*"!��&!,��#�%$%� &�!���'�!���� �

& !���#�!���*��*�% ��7�<%*!��!"�*"!����#(�'!%������� ��% �������� �0��!���%%� %���!��
*"!����#�*�"��$�'�������� ������#��'�""��  ������ "*�!��� %%/����"����#����% ��%%� %�
�� ���7� ��0$��� �*� )���%���%�!��!0" ���&&����$����!� #$�-���.�7����!"����7���
3446A34������ ��*����%��!* ��0 #!����� %�!0"�%���� ���" ��7�*"!����#�*�"��$����
!��� %%��#��� ��%%� %�!����������� ��%�& ��7��� �0��!��*�"��$��*����%���!���� �
��� ����!� #$����"��!��*������%����"�� �����  �!"� ��!��) �%*!��!"�� ) "�*& ���
%� �!���%�7����� ������#��!���% ) ��%*!��!"��� & %�� !"��#�'����%* ��7���*�"��$�
!� !%�� " )!�������!"������

�
��6 +��&��� ��%%� %�!����*����%�%�!# /�'��,�'!%�*��#� %% ������� ��� 7 �� ��

�*����%�7����*!��!"�� ) "�*& ����7��� ������#���+��&����3=���� *� &0 �����2���
��) &0 ��344B/��� ���� ����!� #$��� 7 �� ���*����%�����& ������ �' ���!�%�16�
'  ,�* ������7�*�0"������%�"�!�������� �&!���*��*�% ��7����%�%�!# �'!%����*��)�� �
!���**�������$�7����!"���(%���&&����� %/�%�!, ��"� �%�!������ ����� � %� ��*!��� %�
���� ""��%��� ���)� '%������ �*� 7 �� ��*�"��$��*����%�7����!"���(%�7���� ����3436��

�
��@ ��0% :� �������� ��� 7 �� ���*����%�%�!# /�7�""����%�� �!������!%�0  ���!, ���7�

'!%�#�) ������� ���&& ��%�� � �) �/�!���7���� ��'��,��!%�0  ����� ��!, ��'����
, $�%�!, ��"� �%/�� �#�0�����#�!�������� %�!���� "�) �$�*!��� �%�� #!����#�, $�%�� %�
!���%�**�����#���7�!%������� ���� �*� 7 �� ��*�"��$�!**��!�� %�' � �� ) "�* �����

APPENDIX APage 82



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
3�

7��&��� ����*�% ����0&�%%��������& ���'������ *� % �� �%��� �7��!"�* ��"��&!� �
7��&!"�%�!# ��7����%�"�!�����7����� ���� ����!� #$���

�
��5 �� ����*�% ����0&�%%��������& ���'!%�*�0"�%� ��7���!��5�'  ,�* ������7�*�0"���

���%�"�!�����0 �'  ��3B�����) &0 ��34�4�!���3=���?!��!�$�34���7���
� *� % ��!����%����0 �&!� ���� ����!���&0 ���7�� *� % ��!����%�� � �) �/����'!%�
���%�� � ��*��� ������!��� %%�!���&0 ���7�, $��%%� %��!�% ����%�%���/�!�7���� ��
���%�"�!�����* ������7�%�1�'  ,%��!%�0  ��*��#�!&& ��������%�"�������!�# %����
�� �	 )�% �����*�% ����0&�%%��������& �����

�
��B ��0% :� �������� �*�0"������%�"�!���������� �	 )�% �����*�% ����0&�%%����

����& ������ ���� ����!� #$�'�""��� ��0 �%�0&��� ������� �� �� �!�$��7���!� �7���
��� * �� ��� 1!&��!�����0 7�� ��� �������"��!��7��&!""$�!��*���� �*"!�����

�
�

�������������
�����	
�������
������	
���������
���
�

��5���4 ���*�������#��� ���� ����!� #$/����%�� �!������!%�0  ��#�) ������� ����� 1��
*��)�� ��0$� 1�%���#�*�"��$�7�!& '��,%�!��7��&��� ��!����!"/�� #���!"/�%�0A� #���!"�
!�������� �"��!"�" ) "C/����%��%��""�%��!� �����+�#�� ����

�
����
����	
������

��B���� �!����!"�*"!����#�*�"��� %�!� ����� ��"$�% ����������� �7��&��7��"!����#���"��$�
��!� & ��%�-���%.�!�������!�� �-���%.���� % ����%�!������%� %�!0"�%����#�A" ) "�
*"!����#�*�����*" %�!���� :��� & ��%�7����� ���+/���) ���#�!��!�# ��7���*��%�7��&�
%�%�!��!0" �� ) "�*& ��/������ ���%������ �)����& ��/����7"������%,���� ���� �
���!� #$�&�%�����7��&�'���/�0�������� * !���!����!"�*"!����#�*�"��$/���" %%�����%�
 %% ���!"������� �����*��)�� �!���� � ���% ���7�*�"��� %���

�
���4���3 �"����#���� ��) �!""���� ������!���!**��!�������!����!"�*"!����#�*�"��$��%���"�, "$�

�����!�# /�����%�!�����*!� �/�7�""�'��#��� �*"!�%��7��� �� '���!"��������) ��& ��/�
��!���� � �'�""�0 �&�) %����%�� !&"�� ����� ����!����!"�*"!����#�*�"��$������!�'�� �/�
" %%�� �!�" �/��!����!"��"!����#�+�!& '��,�����%�'�""�0 ��!, ����������%�� �!�����
'� ��*� *!���#�7���� ���+�����& ��%�!���*�"��� %��

�
�������9 �� ���) ��& ���!"%��*�0"�%� %�" #�%"!����/�� #�"!����%�!��������"!�%�'�����% ���� �

" #!"�7�!& '��,�7����� �*"!����#�*��� %%��
�

APPENDIX APage 83



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
9�

�
�
��
������� �������!��	
���������
���
�����	
������"��
����#$�����%�

�
�

&�
�
����	
������
���3���= �� �� #���!"����� 1���!%� )�") �������#��� �� ) "�*& ����7��!"���(%���� �

���!� #$������%��� ���) ��& ��(%���� ���������!0�"�%��	 #���!"����!� #� %�����"����#�
�� �������> %���7�
�#"!����"!��D�	 #���!"��*!��!"����!� #$����343�-	��.����� �
	����%�!0�"�%� �/��� ���� ����!� #$�'�""����"��# ���!) �!�%�!�����$��0"�#!��������
���7��&����*� )���%�� #���!"��!�# �%�!���*�"��$���

�
���9���2 ������ �����*��)�� �!�%��!� #������"��,�7����� �� #���/��� �������> %��

� ) "�*& ����# ��$�-�>��.��!%�� ) "�* ���� �<+���� �������> %�C�����

                                                 
1 CLG (2010) Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Abolition of Regional Strategies 10 November 2010 (available at: 

www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/letterabolitionregional) 

APPENDIX APage 84



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
=�

��!� ���������� %�����& ��(3��!%�0  ��*����� ����� �����& ���% �%�����7����
�) �!�����#��� & %�'�����!� �%�**��� �������#������!"���(%���� ����!� #$C��

�

• '��$������!*��!"�% ������ ��**�������� %��7�&�)��#����!�"�'��!�0���
 ����&$�!���%��� �$/�!���!��� %%��"�&!� ���!�# �!���� %���� � 77��� ��$��

• '��$��(�����"���������%���� %��7���� ��!����!"���&* ����) �!�)!��!# �!���
��%������) � %%��

• '��$��)��	 " !% ��� �*�� ���!"��7�����* �*" �!����!�," �*�) ��$��

• '��$��*��
�%�� ��� ���#������%��#�!�����7�!%������� �7���%�%�!��!0" �#��'����
�

���+&�
�
����	
������
���=���6 �!"����7��&%�*!����7��� ���� ���) �*��"����$�	 #����!"��#�'������ �"��!"�!�������$�

!� !%��7�E��'%" $/�� 7���/����� " �%/�>���!"�!����� ����$��7���) �*��"���� �
��) �*��"����$�	 #�����%���&&��� ������� �!��� ) & ����7�!�%� *���!�# ������ ����$�
� #���(%� ����&���* �7��&!�� �0!% ���*�����%� %�!0"�%� ��%�� �#��%����"����#�
*���%�!���"�#�%���%/��� �"�'��!�0��� ����&$�!����� �,��'" �# � ����&$���� % �
!�&%�!� ����0 �7��&!"�% �������#���� ��� !������7��� ���) �*��"����$�	 #�������!"�

�� �*��% ��!��� �%��*�-�
�.�'������%���� �� �����*��)�� �%��!� #���" !� �%��*�7���
�� �%�0A� #����!����� !� ��� ���#��� �)����& ���7���0�%�� %%�%��� %%�!���
 ����&���#��'�����

���6�� ����$�	 #�����!%�!"%��!#�  ��!�% �� %��7�%*!��!"�*������� %9���) ���#�7�) ��� &!����
!� !%C� ����&$/� &*"�$& ���!���%,�""%8����%��#8���!�%*���8�!��/� �)����& ���!���
'!%� ���� % �%*!��!"�*������� %�� ��#��% �!���&0 ���7��!"����%* ��7���*��; ��%/�
%�� & %�!���!%% �%���!��'�""�%�0%�!���!""$�������0�� ������ �!�&%��7��� ���) �*��"�
���$�	 #�������

�
,
����	
������

���6���@ ����� �"��!"�" ) "/��!"���(%���+����%�%�%��7�� ) "�*& ����"!������& ��%�-���%.�
!�����**" & ��!�$��"!����#�����& ��%�-���%.����!�����������!���&0 ���7�*��� %%�
����& ��%/����"����#��� ���!� & ����7���&&����$���)�") & ���!����� �����!"�
���������#�	 *������� ���+�!"%�����"�� %��� ��!) ����"��� %��7��� ��!"�������/�
'�����'�""� ) ���!""$�0 �� *"!� ��0$�*�"��� %�����!"���(%����%�!������%���

�
���5 �� ���� ����!� #$�!����� �'�� ����+��!%�!��"�% �� "!����%��*�����!"���(%�����

'��������"�� %��� �"��#A� �&�)�%�������!��� ) �%�%�!��!0" ��&*��) & �������!"������
�!"���(%�����7���34��A3436=�0���#%���# �� ���� �&!���%���!"/� ����&���!���
 �)����& ��!"��%%� %�7!���#��� ������#��!����� ���7� %�*������� %�7���!������!���%%�
7�) �%��!� #����� & %C�

�

• ��� !"��$��!"����

• 
&*"�$& ���� !����#�!����,�""%�����!"����

• ���!7 ���!"����

• ���"�� ��!���
���#�� �*" �����!"����

• 
�)����& ���!���	 # � �!���������!"����
�
���@���B +"�'��#�7��&��� % �%��!� #����� & %��� ��!"�������!� #����!��� �%��*��!%�

*�������%��#����  �!� !%��7�7���%C�*��&����#�%���!"�� %*��%�0�"��$8�� �����#�!"����"�
� "!� ���!�&8�!��/� �%����#�!�%����# ��"��!"�"!0����7��� ���� �7�) �%��!� #����� & %�
�7��� �����*��)�� �!�7�!& '��,�7����� ���� ����!� #$���%���/����!� #����0; ���) %�

                                                 
2 NWDA and 4NW (2010) Future North West: Our Shared Priorities 
3 Merseyside Policy Unit (MPU) (2010) Draft Liverpool City Region Spatial Priorities Plan 2010 
4 HBC (2010) Draft Halton’s Sustainable Community Strategy 2011-2026 

APPENDIX APage 85



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
2�

!����*!��!"����!� #$/����%�� "*��#������7��&��� ��) �!""�!**��!����7��� ���� �
���!� #$�!����� �7���� �� ) "�*& ����7��!"�������3436�����

�
���5��34 �� ���� ����!� #$�!"%���!%��"�% ��� %�'������ ��!"�������!"���!�%*�����"!��-���.�

'�����!�&%����*��)�� �!�#����:�!"��$���!�%*����%$%� &/��� ������#�(%�
����&���
	 # � �!��������!� #� %�'�����%�**������ � ����&���* �7��&!�� ��7��� ������#��
!����!"���(%����%��#����!� #$� �%����#���!���!"�����77 �%�!�0��!���!�# ��7�#����
:�!"��$����%��#�'�����&  �%��� ��  �%��7� 1�%���#�!���7���� ���&&����� %���

�
�

������������	
���������
�-��&�����
�������
���������
����
�.
��$������
�

���B��3� �� ���� ����!� #$��%�!���&*!�� ��0$�!���&0 ���7��&*���!���%�**�����#�
����& ��%�'�����* �7��&�!�)!�� �$��7���" %���� % �����& ��%�!� �"�%� ��0 "�'�
'����!�0�� 7�%�&&!�$��7��� ���� "!����%��*������ ���� ����!� #$��

�
�

�/��0&' �1�.0	/23�'�
�

&3,#' 0��� ��'0�'�3�	0&3��'&#'314�

#%� ������������������� � �%������� �&!;�����7�!%������� �*��; ��%�'�����!� �*"!�� ��0$�
�� �������"/���%�*!��� �%�!���������*!��$�!# ��� %/�� �!�"��#�
� "�) �$�& ��!��%&%/���& %�!" %�!���7�����#�7����� % �*��; ��%��
�� ���7�!%������� ��"!���%����0 �!�("�) (�����& ���!���'�""�0 �
�*�!� ��!���!& �� �������#������� �"�7 ��7��� ���� ����!� #$��

5%����������������#���������"�#%� �%% %% %��� �%���!"/� ����&���!��� �)����& ��!"��&*!����7��� �
��� ����!� #$�*�"��� %�!�����7��&%���'��� % ��&*!��%��!��0 �
*�%���) "$�!��� %% ����� �%�� ��� �&�%��%�%�!��!0" ������& ��
�� ����!"%�� �%�� %���!���� �� :��� & ��%��7��� ����!� #���

�)����& ��!"��%% %%& ���-�
�.���� ���) ��!) �0  ����&*"� ��
'���������#��� �*�����������7��� ���� ����!� #$���
�
�� �����0; ���) %�!���!�%�&&!�$��7��� ����7�����#%�7����� �
���*�% ����0&�%%��������& ����� ����!� #$�*�"��� %�!� �
%��'������� ���"��$�+�!& '��,�0�1 %���� % ����� %*��������� �
7�""�'��#�, $C�
�

	 ��&& ��!����%�7��&��� �����7��� ����*�% ����0&�%%����
����& ���'�""�0 ��!, ����������%�� �!���������� ���0&�%%����
) �%�����7��� ���� ����!� #$��

634�

� �$�
��%���) �

��%���) �
���

77 ���

� #!��) �
� �$�
� #!��) �

	%����������&�
�����
���
#�����$����"�&#%�

�%% %% %��� �*�� ���!"� 77 ��%��7��� �*"!�����%�� %�� %�#�!� ��!%�
�&*���!���!���� �
���* !��� ) "���� �*��� %%��%�%*"�����������  �
��%������*�!% %�'������ �7��%��%��  ���#�%�!# ���&*" � ��!%�*!����7�
�� ���� ����!� #$��� 7 �� ���*����%�!����� �"!�� ���'��%�!# %/�
� �& ���**��*��!� ��%% %%& ��/���&*" � ��!%�*!����7��� �
���*�% ����0&�%%��������& ������ ��**��*��!� ��%% %%& ���
!%% %% %��� �"�, "$� 77 ��%��7��� �*"!������� ���� #���$��7�
� %�#�!� ��
���* !��'�"�"�7 �%�� %�!����� ��� ���7��!������7�
&���#!�����& !%�� %����!"� ��!��) �%�"�����%/�'� � �!**��*��!� ���
�
�� ��**��*��!� ��%% %%& ���� *����*�0"�%� ��!"��#%�� ��� �
��� ����!� #$����*�% ����0&�%%��������& ���'�""�0 ��!%�0  ��
%�0; ���������%�"�!�����'������ ���!�����$����%�"�  %�-���"����#�
�!���!"�
�#"!���!����� �������$%�� �������"�7���>!" %�-��>.��
�� �!& ��& ��%�� :��� �������#�����%�*��� %%��!) �0  ��'�""�

APPENDIX APage 86



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

��������
�

�

 
6�

0 ����"�� ��'�������� �	 )�% �����*�% ����0&�%%����) �%�����7�
�� ���� ����!� #$��

.%������$����
��	
��������
�� ��&&!��% %����%�"�!�������� ��!, ��%��7!��!�����#�"�#��%���'�
���%��!%�0  ���!, �������!������������ �� ) "�*& ����7��� ���� �
���!� #$��

3%�������� $�����#�����$����
"� #%�

�%% %% %��� ��&*!��%��7��� ���� ����!� #$�*�"��� %������ �
�&*���!����%%� ��7�� !"�������!"�����

�%�37������� $�����#�����$����
"37 #%�

�%% %% %��� ���� ����!� #$�7���*�� ���!"���%*��*������!� �
�&*!��%�����!"���(%���) �% ���&&����� %��

1%�,.��3!�������5���� � �%�����!���&*� � �%�) �"�%���7�!""��� �*� � %��7�� % !�������
*�0"��!����%�'�������� �*����!"���(%���� ����!� #$�!����� �
'�� �����!"�� ) "�*& ���+�!& '��,�-��+.��

�

APPENDIX APage 87



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

��

� ���������������� ����!"��
�
�#$ ��%"�&�'��("���)���� �*&+�"����+�	,�!���-��������&����,�&������,�(��&���

��!��"+�&���("�����(�*"���� �
�'���+�)(&!(�����++�"���("�,.."��"��,����� �
�("�	&%"���"��"�#����&����!��"+�����("�"����� ��&%"�.�����&���)&�(��("�
����,'(�� ���#�"�"�������("�����(-�*���&�'��������("�"������+��,��������(�
�("�(&�"���&�'�����("���,�(#�

�
�#� ��/"����$$0-�11$�."�.�"-���������&"��)&�(&���("�!��"�� ��("��&%"�.�����&���

	"'&�����+���'"�("��)&�(���#��"�"�����+�*���&�'���� ��/��&%"�.������

���"������2�&+3�"��"���(�,�&�'�/��4"����"��56&',�"��7#��

�
�

��������	�
�����

�����������
��
�
�
�#8 ��""���"���!�%"����..��9&/��"�����"��(&�+�� ��("����+���"��� ��("�����,'(�

��+�!����&����("��/���"���"���"/"����� �����"-����"�:,�����+���"����3��3
�("3�&��-�)&�(����"��&���'"�&��"��)&�(&���("���""���"��#�

�
�#; ��"�� ��("�+" &�&�'�!(���!�"�&��&!��� ��("�����,'(�� ��������&���("��"��"��


��,���#��"�&'���"+�������."!&�������"!�&�����"��5���7-����&��"����&�������

                                            
1 ONS (2009) Mid-Year Population Estimates 

APPENDIX APage 88



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

0�

&/.�������)"����+�5	�/����!��%"��&��7��&�"���+����&�"�� ��."!&����!&"��& &!�
���"�"���5����7-��("�"��,����.��%&+"����,�&<,"�)��"� �����"�%&���/"����(���
:��(�+&%&+"����+�,�&�"���("�.�&�!&.�����)���� �	,�!������+�*&+�"��
.�"�"��&�'�:��(�.��:�"/����+��..���,�&�&"�� ����("�+"%"��./"���� ��("�
����,'(#�

�
�

�
��������	�����
���
�
�����
������
�
�
�#= �("� ����)&�'��"!�&����/�.��,���("�������� �������������.��!"-�!��!"�����&�'�

����("��)����)�����+��("&���"���&���(&.����"�!(���("�� ��/��..��&�"��&+"��
� ��("��"��"��
��,���-���+��("�4"��+�&%"���� �!(��'"��(���)&����  "!����+�
�(�."��("�����,'(�����1�0>���+�:"���+#�6��/��(&���("�4"��!(���"�'"�� ���
����������:"�+"����)&�(�&���("����"������"'����"��,//��&�"+#���

�
�

�������
����
��
����
�
�#> *&+�"����+�	,�!����'�")�,.�&�+"."�+"�������+�(�%"������:""��

�+/&�&��"�"+�:�����&�'�"���!����,�(��&����&�!"���!���'�%"��/"���
�"��'��&���&���&��$?�;���+�:����,�&������,�(��&����&�!"�$??0#����"%&�,����
*&+�"��)���.����� ����!��(&�"���+�	,�!����.����� ��("�(&�"-�)&�(��("�
�"��"��
��,�����".����&�'��("��)����,��&"�#�����"<,"����-��("��)����)���
(�%"�%"���+&  "�"���(&����&"�#��("�"���"�!���&+"�"+��".����"�������(����("�
!�/:&�"+� ,�,�"�� ��("���)���!���:"� ,����,�+"�����+#�

�
�� �����

�#� *&+�"����&'&������+"%"��."+�������&'�& &!����,�:���!"���"�)&�(��("�'��)�(�� �
�("�!("/&!���&�+,�����&���("��"!��+�(�� �� ��("�$?�(�!"��,��#��(&��)���+,"����
&�����!��&������+%����'"������("��"��"��
��,����.��%&+&�'��!!"���������"�+��

APPENDIX APage 89



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

?�

�,..���� �)��"����+���!"��������!��&���:"�)""����"���� ������.��+,!�&���&��
�("�(&�"���+�!����.��+,!�&���&�����!��(&�"-�.��%&+&�'��!!"�������("�����:"&�'�
�"!"��������)�/��"�&���� ����("�"/"�'&�'�!("/&!���.��!"��"�#��� �����,!�,�"�
'�")�����,..�����("�!("/&!���&�+,�����)&�(��("�:,&�+&�'�� ��("�����"�"���
5���4"�7������-��("���&�)������+��("�+"%"��./"���� �*&+�"����!4�-����,�+�
/�+"���+����.&4"������+#��

�
�#0 �("/&!���.������+"%"��."+�����'��("�)��"� ����� ��/��&����������������4-�

��+�����()��+������'�&+"��("��,/"��,����&�)�����(�����)�!�&��3!����"+��("�
��"�#������("�$0>1��*&+�"��(�+�+"%"��."+�&�������&��"����&�����!"���"� ���
��4��&�.��+,!�&��#���//"�!"-�(�,�&�'���+�!&%&!�&���&�,�&����'�")�����,..����
�("�"9.��+&�'�!("/&!���"��"�.�&�"�#��

�
�#? ���+,!���/��, �!�,�"+�:���("�!("/&!���.������&�!�,+"+���4��&-����.-�:���9-�

��+����(-������!�4"���+�:�"�!(&�'�.�)+"�#��� ���,���"��-�/��, �!�,�&�'�
�("�"�.��+,!���.��+,!"+�%��&�,����9&!��&<,&+���+����&+�)���"�:�3.��+,!���
�(���)"�"�� �"���&/.����&.."+����:,�&"+�������+��+@�!"�������("� �!���&"��
�(���.��+,!"+��("/-�!����/&���&�'��("����+���+��"�%&�'����"'�!���  "!�&�'��("�
+"%"��./"���� ��("���"������(&��+��#��

�
�#$1 *&+�"����)���"���"���&'&������+"%"��."+�����("�����(�� ��("�)��"� �����

���,�+��&!���&��	��+�A��&!���&���<,��"�:" ��"�/&'���&�'�����()��+�����&���
!,��"��� �!,�������:"���	��+�5����"!��&/"+�!("/&!���)��4�7#���&!���&�����+�
&��"�)���(�,�&�'�"9.��+"+�����(�� ��("���)���"���"-�"�%"��.&�'��("�
.�"%&�,��(�/�"���� ��..�"������+�6���)���(#��$?�1�����!&���(�,�&�'�"����"��
&���&�������+���,'(���""��.�"!"+"+��("����"���+"%"��./"�������,�+�
�.���-�����("�����(���+�����(3)"���� �*&+�"�-���,�+&�'��,���("�,�:���
 ��/#�

�
�#$$ �&�!"��("�$?�1���*&+�"��(����""���&'�& &!����!(��'"��)&�(�/������+�.���,�&�'�

&�+,���&"��!���&�'�+�)����+�!��!"��"+�"  �����/�+"����+"!����/&���"���+�
�"!��&/����'"��)��("��� �+"�.�&�"+����+#��	��+�&� �����,!�,�"�(���:""��
����� ��/"+�)&�(���'��+"��".����"+�2 ��3�%"��� ��/��&�����	�,�+�:�,��
5�=88�B,""��)��7�.��%&+&�'�+&�"!���!!"�������("��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"� ��/�
�("�)"��-��("�"���"���:�3.����5�==��*��4&�����*��7�&/.��%&�'��!!"������
�("�����(���+��("��>��5@,�!�&����7-���+�6&++�"���6"����	��+�5�=>�7�
&/.��%&�'��!!"������*���&�'����&���("�"���#�

�
�#$� ��+,���&�����+� ��/"��&�+,���&������+�!���&�,"�����+�/&���"��("�)��"� �����

��"��-�)&�(��")�"/.���/"����..���,�&�&"��)&�(&���("���'&��&!����+�
+&���&:,�&����"!����:"&�'�!�"��"+����8���5�"��"���,��&/�+������")��7���+�
���*&+�"��*��"� �����)(&!(�&���""4&�'����"���:�&�(���/�+"����  &!"�/��4"��
��+��++�"����("���)������!4�� �/�+"���:,�&�"����!!�//�+��&��#�

�
����
���

�#$8 	,�!����&���("���+"��� ��("��)���"���"/"���#�� �"����:�&" ��."����������.��
�"����-�	,�!������/�+"���'��)�(�!���:"����!"+�����("��."�&�'�� ��("�
��&+'")��"��!�����&��$�>$�)(&!(�.��%&+"+��("���&/,�,�� ���!�//"�!&�����+�
&�+,���&���'��)�(#��(&��)��� ,��("�"+�:���("�+"%"��./"���� ��("�/�&��&�"�
��&�)�����+��("����!("��"���(&.�������&���("�$011�#����(�,'(�������"��"��

APPENDIX APage 90



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$1�

"9�"����(���!�/.��"+�)&�(�*&+�"�-��(��,'(�,���("�$?�(�!"��,���	,�!����
&�!�"��&�'���:"!�/"�&�+,���&��&�"+�)&�(��("�'��)�(�� ��("�!("/&!�����+�
����!&��"+�&�+,���&"�-�)(&!(�5���)&�(�*&+�"�7��.��)�"+�����'��("�:��4��� �
�("��"��"�#�	,�!������!4��!���"!�"+��("���&+'")��"��������)&�(��("�
*"�%"����%&'��&�����+����!("��"���(&.������-��,..���&�'��("�+"%"��./"���
� ��&'�& &!����.���� �!&�&�&"�����	,�!������+�*"�������!4�#�

�
�#$; ���$?>;�	,�!����)���+"�&'���"+�������")���)�-�)(��"�.,�.��"�)���

.�&/��&������!��"�� ���.�.,���&����%"��.&��� ��/��&%"�.������+�����"3(�,�"�
�"�&+"���� ��/��&%"�.������+�����(��"��"��&+"���,� &��+)"��&�'�#��("�����"��
������5&�!�,+&�'��/"�+/"���8;7� ����("��")���)��56&',�"�;7�)���.�".��"+�
���.��%&+"�(�/"����+�@�:�� ���;=-111�."�.�"�'��)&�'������.�.,���&���� �
�1-111�:���("�$?01����+�)&�(��("�.���&:&�&���� �"9.��+&�'� ,��("��,.����
$11-111�&�����"���"���#�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�������!	�����
���"����
���#� ��������$������%��������� �����&�� &�����'()*+,�()+(�

�� �()+-.��
�
�
�

                                            
2 Runcorn Development Corporation (1967) Runcorn New Town Master Plan 
3
 Runcorn Development Corporation (1971) Runcorn New Town Master Plan: Amendment No.1 

4
 Runcorn Development Corporation (19751) Runcorn New Town Master Plan: Amendment No.2 

APPENDIX APage 91



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$$�

�#$= �("�.�&�!&.�"��� ��������'�!�//,�&�����+��!!"��&:&�&���,�+"��&"��("��%"�����
���,!�,�"�� �	,�!�����")���)�#��������"�,����("��")���)��!�/.�&�"����
�,/:"��� �+&��&�!���"&'(:�,�(��+�-�"�!(�)&�(����&�+&%&+,���&+"��&���
"/.(��&�"+�&��&�+&%&+,�����!(&�"!�,���� ��/���&�4"+�:����:,�)�������"/������
�"'�"'��"+�!���&�'")�����+��("�����.,�.��"�
9.�"��)���)(&!(� ��/����
,�&<,"�2 &',�"�� �"&'(������,�+��("���)�#�����("�&��"��"!�&���� ��(&��2"&'(���&��
��!��"+��("���)��!"���"���&'&������!���"+�2�(�..&�'��&������+���)��":���+"+�
2��������"���)&�(��,..���&�'��  &!"�+"%"��./"�����+����"�"�������.&���#��

�
�#$> 
9&��&�'���+��")�"/.���/"�����"���)"�"���!��"+����,�+��("��,��4&����� �

�("���")����)���&�4"+�����("��"�&+"��&����"&'(:�,�(��+��:���("�
�"'�"'��"+�:,�)��#���("��")�"/.���/"���"����"��������/������+�
*(&�"(�,�"�'��,."+����'"����&�'�"�����"��!�//"�!&���,�&���� �%��&�,���&D"��
���,�+��(��"+�!�,���-�� �"��)&�(�!�//,����.��4&�'���"��-�'"�"��,��
���+�!�.&�'�)&�(�'��+�!���"!�&��������("��")�"9.�"��)����"�)��4#���

�
�#$� *&�(�&���,�&<,"�,�:��� ��/���+�,�!�/.��/&�&�'���!(&�"!�,��������"�-��("�

�")���)��(����" ����/&9"+��"'�!�#��(&��&�!�,+"���"�&+"��&����"&'(:�,�(��+��
)("�"��("�"�(���:""���("��""+� ���!�/.�"("��&%"��"+"%"��./"��-� ���
"9�/.�"���,�('��"-���� �!,�"+��"'"�"���&��-�����""����������" &"�+�#��
�&/&�����-��("�"�����"/.���/"���"����"��� ����/������+�������"��"��"9�"���
*(&�"(�,�"�������,  "�� ��/���+"�&'���"'�!���(���&�������,&�"+����/�+"���
����+��+�#��

�
�#$0 �("� ,���"9�"���� ��("��")���)������"�������)����"%"�� ,�����"��&�"+���+����

���"�,������,/:"��� �,�&/.�"/"��"+��")���)��.����&�'�!���"�����"/�&�#�
�(&��&��.���&!,�������..��"���&��
����	,�!���-�)("�"�"9�����.����&�'�
."�/&��&����)"�"�'����"+�,�+"���("��")���)����!��$?0$� ����("�
+"%"��./"���� ����"�&+"��&����"&'(:�,�(��+�������+�/���#�

�
�

��� ���������/����
�
�#$? �("��)����)���� �*&+�"����+�	,�!�����&"�"&�("���&+"�� ������,����

�����)&�'�� ��("��"��"��
��,����4��)������("�	,�!������.#��("�	,�!����
��.�&�������'�����+&�'������"'&!�!����&�'�� ��("��"��"���&�!"�	�/����&/"��
)("��!����&�'�:��:������+���� ����5&����)��&+"�7�)�,�+�(�%"�:""��
,�+"���4"�#��

�
�#�1 �("� &����.(��&!����&�4�:"�)""��*&+�"����+�	,�!����)���"���:�&�("+�)&�(�

�("��."�&�'�� ��("�
�("� �"+��	�&�)�����&+'"�&��$0>0�)(&!(���&����"/�&���&��
,�"���+�������("��&%"�.����:���!(�� ��("�*"�����������&���&�"���&�)��#����
�("�.�����("���&�)���:�&+'"������!��"�"+� ���."+"���&����)&�(����+�%"(&!�"��
,��:�"����/�4"��("�!����&�'�,��&��$?1=�)("���("������.���"����&+'"�
�."�"+#�

�
�
�

APPENDIX APage 92



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$��

�
����������
�������� ���
�
�
�#�$ *&�(��("�.����)���'��)�(�&�����+����  &!��("������.���"����&+'"�.��%"+�

&��+"<,��"���+�)����".��!"+�:���("�&!��&!��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"�)(&!(�
�."�"+�&��$?>$#��("��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"�!,��"������!�������������"'&!��&�4�&��
�("��"'&����������.�����"�)��4����)"������.�"�"��&�'��("������!,��"���
%"(&!,������+�."+"���&����&�4�:"�)""���("���)���� �*&+�"����+�	,�!���#�
�"�.&�"�:"&�'�!��%"��"+���� �,�����"��&���("�$?�1�-��("��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"�
&����)��."���&�'�:"���+�&�����&'&����+"�&'��!�.�!&���� �>1-111�%"(&!�"��."��
+��-�)&�(��%"��01-111�%"(&!�"��/�4&�'��("�!����&�'�"%"���)""4+��#������
�"�,����("�:�&+'"��,  "��� ��/��"%"�"�."�4��&/"�!��'"��&���!�"��&�'���.&�!(�
.�&�������("����+��"�)��4-����&�,��&��� ,��("��"9�!"�:��"+�:���("�&�!�"��&�'�
/�&��"���!"��"<,&�"/"��������("�=1��"�����+����,!�,�"#�

�
�#�� ����"�&"%"�!,��"���!������&%"��!��'"��&�����+��&+�!���"!�&%&���:"�)""��

*&+�"����+�	,�!���-����")����+�!����&�'��!������("��"��"��
��,����
,.���"�/�� ��("��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"�&�����:"�+"�&%"�"+#��("��"��"��
���")�����&+'"�&���""�����/��"��(���@,�����:�&+'"-�:,���("�2!����������(���)&���
!���"!��!�//,�&�&"����+��"�+�����"'"�"���&�����+�&�%"��/"����(��,'(�,��
������-��("��&%"�.�����&���	"'&��-��("�(&�"���+��("�����(�*"��#��

�
�#�8 ���������:�&+'"�-�.���-�.�"�"�����+� ,�,�"-�.��%&+"�*&+�"����+�	,�!����

)&�(���+"".�����"+�!���"!�&��-�+"!�"��&�'��("����+&�&�����+&%&+"-��"�+&�'����
��/��"�,�& &"+���+�.���."��,������,'(#�

�
�

APPENDIX APage 93



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$8�

�
�

��������#&������
����
���������0������� ������������� �������1������2�3�������� ����� ������������
$������/���������� ���

�
�

4�������
����������
�
�#�; �����������,'(���,�!&��&����(&'(��!(&"%&�'���+���.&���&�����!�,�!&��)&�(���

.���!�&%"��..���!(���)��+��"�!�,��'&�'���+�"��:�&�'�+"%"��./"���&���("�
����,'(#����',&+"���������� ,�,�"�+"%"��./"�������1�0>���+�:"���+�&��&��
&/.����������,�+"�����+��("�����,'(���!,��"���!(���!�"�&��&!��&�!�,+&�'�&���
���"��-�&��,"����+��..���,�&�&"�#���'"�("���("�"� ��/����������+�&%"���� �
!(��'"#�

�
4�&
���������

�#�= ����������"�&+"���.�.,���&���(��-�� �"�����&'�& &!����."�&�+�� �.�.,���&���
+"!�&�"-������"+����"9."�&"�!"����"%"��"�&���("���"�+�)&�(�/�+"���'��)�(�
.��@"!�&��#��("�.�.,���&���� ��("�����,'(-�!,��"�����$$0-�11-�&����)�
.��@"!�"+����&�!�"��"����:�����,�+�=-�11;-�11����$�8-?>11�:���("�"�+�� �
�("�.����."�&�+�5�1�0>7=#��

�

                                            
5 ONS (2008) Subnational Population Projections 

APPENDIX APage 94



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$;�

�#�> �("�.�.,���&������,!�,�"�&���("�����,'(�&��!�/.����&%"�����,�'-�.�����������
�"'�!��� ���,�'� �/&�&"��/�%&�'�&����	,�!����+,�&�'��("�$?�1����+�01���")�
��)��"��#���)"%"�-��("�"� &����'"�"���&����")���)���"�&+"������"�'"��&�'�
��+"�-�!,��"������)"��&�'��("�;=3=?��'"�:��+-���+�)&����"�!(��"�&�"/"����'"�
+,�&�'��("�.����."�&�+#�����,!(��("�.�.,���&������,!�,�"�&���'"&�'�)&�(��("�
�,/:"����'"+��%"��>=E�.��@"!�"+����&�!�"��"�:����/"�=1F-�'��)&�'�:��
��/"�?-0110->11� ��/�$>-?11�&���110�����>-�11�=-=11�&���1�0>#��(&���'"&�'�
.�.,���&���)&���!�"��"��++&�&�����+"/��+� ���!��"��"�%&!"����+� ����+�.�"+�
����."!&��&���(�,�&�'#����

�
�#�� �"���,�)��+�/&'���&���)(&!(�+��%"�.����.�.,���&���+"!�&�"�&��"9."!�"+����

�"+,!"-�:,��)&����"/�&�����&��,"� ����("�����,'(-�.���&!,�������/��'�����,�'�
)��4&�'��'"��+,�����"�%&�'����.,��,"�"+,!��&�����+�"/.���/"���
�..���,�&�&"��"��")("�"#�� �

�
4��������
��

�#�0 �("���+"9�� ��,��&.�"��".�&%��&���5���7>�!���:"�,�"+����&+"��& ��'��,.����+�
��"���&����������,  "�&�'� ��/�+".�&%��&��#��������&�����4"+�����("���81�(�
/����+".�&%"+�����,'(����&�������5����1$11�7���+�8�+�����"��"��&+"&���("�
�&%"�.�����&���	"'&��-�:"(&�+�G��)��"����+��&%"�.���#��>;�F�� ��("�
����,'(���.�.,���&����&%"�&���("���.�$�1F�/����+".�&%"+���"���&��
�'���+#�
���(�,'(�������������4&�'�(���)���"�"+&/.��%"+��&�!"��("�.�"%&�,������&��
�11;���(")(&!(����4"+��("�����,'(�����("�81�(�/����+".�&%"+�����,'(�
���&��������&'����&�'��(����������&����&���."� ��/&�'�.������&���"�/��� ��%"�����
+".�&%��&��#��������(����"�"&'(����"���)&�(&���("���.�8F�/����+".�&%"+�&��

�'���+#��("�"���"�&+"��& &"+�&��.&�4+��4��"+�&��6&',�"�=#��

�
�

�
�

�������-	�����
�5��1�������4��������
��'�&�� � �4�����&.�

                                            
6 CLG (201007) The English Indices of Deprivation�

APPENDIX APage 95



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$=�

�
�

�������
�#�? ��.�&�!&.���!��!"��� ����������&���("�("���(�� �&����"�&+"���#��("�����,'(�

(��� ���/�����"����(�+���/"�� ��("�.���"���("���(��,�!�/"����+��(���"���
�& "�"9."!���!&"��� �������"��&��
�'���+#���& "�"9."!���!�����:&��(�&���������
5�11�>3�11?07��&���=;#10��"���� ���/��"����+��?0#�0��"���� ��� "/��"�#��(&��
&���&'�& &!��������)"���(���:��(��("�����(�*"���5�>#>8�/��"-�01#0$� "/��"7�
��+�
�'���+� &',�"��5�0�#8?�/��"-�0�#8� "/��"7#��&��""�&�'��"�"��!(�&���118�
:���("���&%"��&���� ����!���"��!�//&��&��"+�:���("���������"���(�
�����"��(&.0��(�)"+��(�����!���("���(�&��,"��)"�"����-�����("���,�."!�"+-�
�("��"�,���� ��("�����,'(���&�+,���&���.������+�("�%&���!����/&���"+���!���
"�%&���/"��-�:,����"�/��"������'����"���"+����.�����& "����"����+�"!���/&!�
+".�&%��&��#�

�
�
�������

�#81 ����1$1�*&�(&���("�����,'(��("�"�)"�"��"���������� �=8-�11�=?�+)"��&�'��
)&�(&���("�����,'(?#��("�.��."����.�� &�"�&�� �&����%��&"+���+�����,!(�/""���
�("��""+��� ���)&+"����'"�� �.�.,���&���'��,.�-�(�)"%"�-��("�"�&��!,��"�����
����%"���".�"�"����&���� ��"���!"+�.��."��&"��5�")���)��&��	,�!����A�
�&!���&���&��*&+�"�7���+����""+� ���/��"� �/&�����+���.&���&�����(�,�&�'$1#��

�
�#8$ �������(�������)"��.��.���&���� ��)�"���!!,.&"+���+�.�&%��"��"��"+�

+)"��&�'����!4��(����("��"'&�������+����&������%"��'"�H��("�����,'(������(���
���&'�& &!������(&'("��.��.���&���� ��("�.�.,���&���)(���"���(�,�&�'� ��/���
	"'&��"�"+���!&������+���+�5	��7$$�+,"�����("�(&'(�.��.���&���� ���!&���
(�,�&�'�.��%&+"+�:���("��")���)�#���,�"�.�&!"���!������("�����,'(���"�
��&���:"��)��"'&�������+����&������%"��'"��:,��(�%"��&�"���&'�& &!�������%"��
�"!"����"���#����(�,'(��("�!,��"���"!���/&!�!�&/��"�(����(�)����+"!�"��"�
&��(�,�"�.�&!"�-��("��""+��� ���)"��&�!�/"���+��")� ��/&�'�(�,�"(��+����"�
&�!�"��&�'�������:"&�'�/"��)&�(����"��&/��"+�>0F�� ��")�(�,�"(��+��,��:�"�
����!!"���/��4"��(�,�&�'-�+,"����:���&"����,!(����+"!�"��&�'���������%��,"�
���&����..�&"+�:���"�+"��#��
��&/��"��� ����,���,�/"��+"/��+� ����  ��+�:�"�
(�,�&�'�(�%"�&�!�"��"+��%"���("�������"���"���� ��/��"'�&'&:�"�5/��������
 ,�!�&���� �)��4�"���"��7����$$0�."�����,/�&���11=���+��%"���"�����?11�
."�����,/�&���1$1$�#��

�
�#8� �("��"!"���.��%&�&���� ����'"��/��"���.&���&�����(�,�&�'�+"%"��./"�������

�.����	�!4��5*&+�"�7���+����+�/����5
����	,�!���7-��("�����"��
�".�"�"��&�'����"/�&�&�'�!���"��� ��/��("��")���)��."�&�+-�(���:"',�����
�++�"������&+"��& &"+�+" &!&"�!��&���("���!������!4� ������'"�� �/&���(�,�"�-�
��+�/���(�%"�!����&:,�"+�����("��"!"������:&�&���&���&��.�.,���&����,/:"��#�

                                            
7 ONS (2007-20098) Life Expectancy at Birth  
8 Lancaster University (2003) Understanding Factors Affecting Health in Halton 
9 HBC (2010) State of the Borough Report 
10 GL Hearn and Justin Gardner Consulting (20110) Halton and Mid-Mersey Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment 
11 HBC (2010) State of the Borough Report  
12 GL Hearn and Justin Gardener Consulting (20110); Halton and Mid-Mersey Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment 

APPENDIX APage 96



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$>�

��)"%"�-��("�"�&����&������&+"��& &"+��""+� ����("�"�(�,�"���."���!������("�
����,'(#��

�
�#88 ���.����� �.��%&+&�'��!!"������(�,�&�'� ��������"!������ ��("�!�//,�&��-�

�������/,��������!���&+"���("��."!& &!��""+��� ���.�&"�-����%"��"�����+�
���%"��&�'��(�)."�.�"#��("���,�!&��!,��"������)�����+�/���'"���)��
."�/��"����&�"�� �����.�&"����+����%"��"��-���"�&��*&+�"����+��("���("��&��
	,�!���#��++&�&��������("�"���"��)��.�&%��"��&�"����!��"+�&��	,�!���#����
������5�������1$17��("�"���"�;1�."�/��"���.&�!("����+�$1������&��.&�!("��
�!�����������#���

�
0&��
�&���,�
��������6�17�����

�#8; �����������!���"!���/��(���:""���,:@"!�����/�@����"���,!�,�&�'�)&�(��("�
+"!�&�"�� ��("����+&�&�����!("/&!���/��, �!�,�&�'�&�+,���&"���(�����!"�
+�/&���"+�:��(�*&+�"����+�	,�!���#���)"%"�-����������&���(��������'"��
.��.���&���� �)��4"���"/.���"+�&��/��, �!�,�&�'����!�/.��"+�����("�
�&%"�.�����&���	"'&��$8#��&���&:,�&��-�&� ��/��&�����+�!�//,�&!��&���
�"!�������"���������'"�"/.���/"����"!�����&���("�����,'(#�

�
�#8= ����"�/��� �"!���/&!��!�&%&��-��������+&�.�����&��,"��� �)��4�"���"�����+�

,�"/.���/"��#��("�"!���/&!��!�&%&������"-�)(&!(��(�)���("�."�!"���'"�� �
"!���/&!������!�&%"�."�.�"�� �)��4&�'��'"-� ����������5�;#;�F7�&��:"��)�
:��(��("�����(�*"���5�;#�;F7���+���"�����&��&��5�>#8=F7$;#��("�!,��"���
C�:��""4"�������)��!"�5C��7�!��&/�������"�&���������&��=#=?FH��(&��&��'�"��"��
�(����("�����(�*"������"�5;#�=F7���+��("����&��������"�58;#�$F7$=-���+�&��
�&4"������&�!�"��"�&���("�!,��"����"!"��&������."�&�+#��

�
�#8> �"�.&�"��"!"����,!!"��"��&��"+,!��&��-���+�/��"��."!& &!������!(����"9�/�

�"�,����&���("�����,'(-���)��"%"���� �"+,!��&�����+��4&������"��..��"���)&�(&��
�("���!���)��4 ��!"#��(&��(����"+������/&�/��!(�:"�)""��)��4 ��!"��4&����
��+�@�:���%�&��:�"#�����"<,"����-�����������"�&+"����(�%"�:""��,��:�"����
�!!"����("� ,����."!��,/�� �@�:��&���("�����,'(#��("�/"+&���)""4���.���+����
�(�)���(���."�.�"�)(��)��4�&���������(�%"���)""4���.���� �I;�1�#�=1�
!�/.��"+����I8=��1#�>1� ����("��"�&+"����� �������$>#��

�
�#8� *(&�����("�"�&��'"�"�������&� �!�&���)&�(�������������.��!"����+��:,�&�"��-�

�("�"���"�.��:�"/��)&�(��("����'"�� �!�//"�!&����&�"����+�.�"/&�"�����
�  "�#�*&+�"���,  "��� ��/����"9!"���� �.����<,��&��-�+"�.�&�"+� ��/"��
&�+,���&������+���+�(������&/&�"+�/�+"����  &!"�/��4"�#�	,�!����(���"�����
�")���)��&�+,���&���"����"�-�/��������:������/���-�)("�"�����,�����+�
,�&���."!& &!��&����+������/""��/�+"���:,�&�"����"<,&�"/"������+�(&'(�
%�!��!�����"����"�.�"%��"��#��("�*&+�"��*��"� �����+"%"��./"�����+�
�"'"�"���&�����"������"�.������+��"�&%"��������"'�-��("�/,��&/�+�����'&��&!��
��+�+&���&:,�&���+"%"��./"������8�����+��("��,�&�"����/.��%"/"���
�&���&!���������/������+����":��4���+,���&���
����"����"��/��'��("�
/"��,�"�����"�+��:"&�'�,�"+�����++�"����("�"�+" &!&"�!&"�#�

                                            
13 ONS (2008) Annual Business SurveyInquiry 
14 ONS (201109/10) Nomis – Official Labour Market Statistics 
15 ONS (201109) Jobseeker’s Allowance Claimants  
16 ONS (201009) Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE)�

APPENDIX APage 97



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$��

�
�#80 �"�.&�"��("�!�����!�&���� ��("�!("/&!���&�+,�����+,"����'��:��&���&��-�(&'(�

%��,"3�++"+-��."!&��&���!("/&!���/��, �!�,�&�'-���+��!&"��& &!���+��"�"��!(�
:��"+�"/.���"����"/�&����4"��!�/.��"���� ��("���!���"!���/��)&�(��("�
�"/�&�&�'� &�/���,!(������"����(�����/��'����("����'"���&�+&%&+,���.�&%��"�
�"!����"/.���"���&���("�����,'(#�	"+"%"��./"���� �������("�+<,���"������
�("��"��(��,�&�"������4���+��("�.,:�&!��"!����&�%"��/"���������"�:,���
�!&"�!"���+�����%��&�����/.,��5���7�(���"��,�"+��������(��������'�
 �,�+��&����&�-���+�&����)�:"!�/&�'�(�/"���-��!&"�!"-��"!(����'����+�
�"�"��!(��"!����#���

���������������������������
0����
�&����

�#8? �������(�����(&����&!��"'�!��� ��:���"�"���+�.����<,��&������+-�(�,�&�'-�
!�//"�!&���:,&�+&�'�-�.(��&!���&� �����,!�,�"���+�!����/&���"+����+#�
���(�,'(��("�.(��&!����.."����!"�� ��("�����,'(�(���&/.��%"+�!���&+"��:���
�%"���"!"����"���-��(��,'(����,/:"��� ��"'"�"���&����!("/"�-�!(���"�'"��
��&����"/�&�#�

�
�#;1 �"�.&�"�����������"'�!�-��("�����,'(�(��������'"��,/:"��� �"�%&���/"�����

���"�����+�+"�&'���&���#��"�(�.���("�'�"��"���� ��("�"�:"&�'��("��"��"��

��,����)&�(�&����,���,�+&�'�����/���(���+��"��"���&����."���.�!"#��("�
����,'(������(������&'(����+��)����""���"���:�,�+���-�)&�(��("���������"��
� ���""���"������+�����+&�'�����-=11(�-���+��,:�����&���'�""��&� �����,!�,�"�
&�!�,+&�'�.��4�-��"!�"��&���'��,�+����+�.,:�&!��."���.�!"�#����	,�!�����("�
�:,�+��!"�� �.��4���+���+��."���.�!"�!���:"�!���&+"�"+������"�� ��("�
�")���)����'�"����,!!"��"�-�:,���������!(���"�'"� ����("���,�!&�����
/�&���&�#��("�����,'(���'�""��&� �����,!�,�"��,..�������)&+"��"�)��4�� �
:&�+&%"��&��-��"�%"��������"!�"��&����"��,�!"� ����("�:"�" &��� ��("�("���(�
��+�)"��3:"&�'�� ��"�&+"������+������/"����� �/&�&'��&����'�&�����("�"  "!���
� �!�&/��"�!(��'"#��("�����,'(�:��������"�	�/�����&�"-���"��."!&���
����"!�&�����"��5���7-��(�""��&�"��� ��."!&����!&"��& &!����"�"���5����7-��"��
��!������,�"�	"�"�%"��5��	�7-�;����!���*&�+�& "��&�"����+�$���."���.�!"��
� ���""��6��'��)��+�����+��+$�#��("�"���"��������"���� �+&��&�!�����+�!�."�
!(���!�"��)&�(&���("�����,'(�)(&!(�(�%"�:""��&+"��& &"+��(��,'(��("��������
���+�!�."��(���!�"�����"��/"��$0#�

�
�#;$ ����"�/��� ��("�����,'(���(&����&!�"�%&���/"����("�"���"������'"�� �("�&��'"�

���"���)(&!(��"�%"������.��&�&%"��&�4���-���+��"/&�+"��� -����������.���-�
&�!�,+&�'��"��!���"�%��&�����"��-��"%"���!("+,�"+�/��,/"������+�$�>�
�&��"+��,&�+&�'�#��

�
�#;� �++&�&������-����,:�����&���.����� ����������!(���!�"����+�2�"��"�� �.��!"��&��

 ��/"+�:���("�����,'(���)��"��&+"�"�%&���/"��������'��("��"��"��
��,���-�
�("����!("��"���(&.������-��("���&+'")��"�������-�����"�"�����������+��("�
*"�%"����%&'��&��#����������)��"�)����.��%&+"���������!�&%"��"��&�'� ���

                                            
17 For more information please refer to the State of the Borough for Halton: A Sustainability Appraisal for Halton. 

Available at: www.halton.gov.uk 
18 TEP (2009) Halton Landscape Character Assessment 

APPENDIX APage 98



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$0�

)��"��&+"�+"%"��./"��-����"!�"��&������"��,�!"���+�("�.�&/.��%"��("�&/�'"�
� ��("�����,'(#�

�
���&������������� �1�������3������

�#;8 ��&/��"�!(��'"�&���"!�'�&�"+������"�� ��("�/�����"�&�,��!(���"�'"�� �!&�'�
�("��G#�
%&+"�!"��(�)���(����%"���("������!"��,����("�"�(���:""�����
,�.�"!"+"��"+����"�� �&�!�"��"�&��'��:����"/."���,�"���"�+&�'����!�&/��&!�
!(��'"�#��!&"��& &!�!���"��,������&:,�"���(&��'��:���)��/&�'����"/&��&����� �
'�""�(�,�"�'��"�-�.�&/��&���!��:���+&�9&+"� ��/�!�/:,��&���� � ���&�� ,"���
 ���"�"�'��'"�"���&�����������.���#��("�&/.�!���� �!�&/��"�!(��'"�/���:"�
 "���)&�(&���("�����,'(��(��,'(�)��/"���,//"�����+�)"��"��)&��"�����+�
���&�!�"��"+� �"<,"�!��� ��"%"�"�)"��("��"%"���#��("�"�!�&/��&!��(& ���)&���
(�%"���.����,�!"+�"  "!�����������������,������+�:,&���"�%&���/"���#��

�
�#;; 
9��"/"�)"��("��"%"����/��������&�!�"��"��("��&�4�� �!���������+�"��,��&�"�

 ���+&�'#����������"��,��&�"���!��&�����+��("��,/:"��� �:���4��)(&!(��,��
&�����("��"��"��
��,����.�"�"������,/:"��� ���"���&���("�����,'(��(���(�%"�
:""��&+"��& &"+�����&�4� ��/� ���+&�'#�

�
�#;= �("��,���&��:�"�/���'"/"���� �)���"�&���������/�@���!��!"��� ���������#�


,��."�����+����&������"'&����&���&��+�&%&�'���!(��'"�&���("�)���)"�(��+�"�
)���"#��&�.��&�'��("�/�@��&���� ��,��)���"�������+ &���&��������'"����%&�:�"�
���'��"�/��.�&��#��

�
������
���
��7��

�#;> �("�����,'(�"�@����"9!"��"����&�4��:"&�'�����("�("����� ��("��"'&�����
�����.�����"�)��4#��("��=>�/����)����,����(��,'(��("���,�(�� ��("�
����,'(���+��("��>��&����!��"+�@,�������("�����(-�:��(����(����+�&%"� ��/�
�("��>-�)(&�����3!�������,�"��!��%"�'"�����("��&�%"��C,:&�""���&+'"��&%"��
!����&�'#�

�
�#;� �("��&%"�.����:���!(�� ��("�*"�����������&���&�"���&�)����  "����"',����

�"�%&!"�� ��/�	,�!�������&������&���+"�&%"�&�'�.���"�'"���������+���&���"���
�(�����(�,�����+�����&%"�.����&�����,�+��1�/&�,�"�#���!�����+������3
�"��&�"��"�%&!"��!�������*&+�"�-���,'(���""����+�	,�!����
��������&����
:" ��"�!���"!�&�'�)&�(����!("��"����+���("��+"��&���&�����!������("�����(�
� �
�'���+#�

�
�#;0 �&%"�.����C�(���"������&�.����&����!��"+��+@�!"�����������������,'(�

��,�!&����)"��"���:�,�+����)&�(&���&%"�.�����&�����,�!&�#��("��&�.����
.��%&+"�����&�������+�&��"����&�����!���"!�&%&��� ����("�����,'(�)(&���������
:�&�'&�'�"!���/&!�:"�" &���&�!�,+&�'�@�:�!�"��&��#�

�
�#;? ���%"��.���"�����(�)��(���$8#0F�� �!�//,�&�'� ��)��������������"�:��

�"�&+"����)&�(&���("��&%"�.�����&���	"'&��-�(�)"%"�-��("����'"��� ��)�&��:��
�"�&+"����� �*���&�'����5?#�F7$?#��%"����-��1F�� �@�,��"������)��4�)&�(&��
���������"�/�+"�:��!���1#�

                                            
19 HBC (2010) State of the Borough in Halton 
20 ONS (2001) Census 2001 

APPENDIX APage 99



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

$?�

�
�#=1 ���(�,'(-����"9.��&�"+�.�"%&�,���-��("�"���"������'"�� �&��,"������!&��"+�

)&�(�!��'"��&�����+��("�,�.�"+&!��:&�&���� �@�,��"���&/"�� ���!������&%"��
���  &!-��������"9(&:&������,/:"��� ���!��&������+%����'"��.�"�"��"+�:���("�
����,'(���"9&��&�'���&���&�4�-�)��"�)���-�.����-��&%"�.����C�(���"�����
�&�.������+��("�.��.��"+��"��"�����")������@"!�#��("�"�.�"�"�����,�&<,"�
�..���,�&������"��,�"��(���������� ,� &���&���.��"��&��������/�@���(,:� ���
+&���&:,�&�����+���'&��&!�#��(&���..���,�&���&���������4"�� ��)��+�&���("�
�&%"�.�����&���	"'&���2�,."�������!��!".��$�)(&!(��&/�����"��,�"��(����("�"�
���"�������'�)&�(���("�� �"&'(��&� �����,!�,�"��!������("��,:3�"'&���:"!�/"�
��4"��+�&%"��&���("���!���"!���/�#�

�
��������� �
�������

�#=$ �������(����(�""�/�&���"��&��!"���"��)&�(�*&+�"��:"&�'��("����'"���!"���"�
 ����)"+�:����������"����+��("��	,�!������+���)�#�

�
�#=� *&+�"����)���"���"�(����������'�!��%"�&"�!"���+�!�/.��&�����"��&���  "�#�

����"�/��� ��("���)����/��4"���(��"�� �!�/.��&�����"��&�-��(&��(���:""��
�,:�����&�����&/.��%"+�)&�(��("��."�&�'�� �*&+�"���(�..&�'����4�&��"�����
�1$1#��&!���&���<,��"�����("���,�(�� ��("���)���"���"�.��%&+"�����
�..���,�&������"9�"�+��("�"%"�&�'�"!���/����+����")��"&�,�"�+"%"��./"���
���*&+�"��*��"� �����!�/.�&�&�'�� ���!&�"/�-�&!"��&�4���+��"���,������)&���
!�/.�"/"����("���)���"���"����"��&���  "����+�:������"&�,�"��..���,�&�&"��
)&�(&���("�����,'(#��

�
�#=8 ���	,�!���-�+,�&�'��("��")���)��"��-��("���!��&���� ��("��")���)��

!"���"-���������"�-�!���:"��""�������!����&:,�&�'� �!��������("��,:�"<,"���
+"!�&�"�� �	,�!������+���)��)(&!(����,''�"+����/�&���&��&���.��&�&��������
4"���"��&��!"���"�&���("�����,'(#�������"�,���	,�!������+���)��!"���"�(���
:""���,:@"!������"%"�����"'"�"���&���.��@"!��#�����"!"����"����	,�!������+�
��)��(����!<,&�"+����"����,!(�����("���&�+�"��������"���"-�!�����&+��&�'�&���
���"�������&�+"."�+"�����+��."!&��&���+"��&���&��#����(�,'(���������"��(���
�,  "�"+� ��/����,/:"��� �&��,"��&�!�,+&�'�)"�4�."+"���&����!!"��-�(&'(�
%�!��!�����"����+��("���!4�� ����"%"�&�'�"!���/�-�&���!�/.�&/"�������"&�,�"�
 �!&�&�&"�������&+"���	"��&�����4�(�%"�&/.��%"+�&����  "���,:�����&����#�

�
���7��

�#=; �������&���  "!�"+�:�����,/:"��� �&��������&����)(&!(�(�%"��("�.��"��&������
!�"��"����&'�& &!�����&�4� ������������!�//,�&�&"��&���("�"%"���� ���/�@���
&�!&+"��#��("�"�&�!�,+"�&�+,���&"���(�������"�<,���&�&"��� �.��"��&�����
+��'"��,��!("/&!�����,!(����!(���&�"������"����(����&��	,�!���-�.&."�&�"��
�(���!�����"9.���&%"�'��"������&<,&+����+��("��..���!(�����("��,�)���� �
�&%"�.����C�(���"������&�.���#�6���+&�'�"%"���-����+�!����/&���&�����+�
.���,�&��������.�"�"�����/�@���.��"��&����&�4�������������!�//,�&�&"�#�

�
�
�
�

                                            
21 TMP (2008) Liverpool SuperPort 

APPENDIX APage 100



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

� �
�

�1�

�

����
�5�������������
�

�#== �(��,'(��("�+"�!�&.�&���� ����������!(���!�"�&��&!�� &�!�,+&�'��("�����,'(���
���"��-�&��,"����+��..���,�&�&"�����,/:"��� �!(���"�'"��(�%"�:"!�/"�!�"��#��

�
���������!(���"�'"����"���J�

• �"�.��+�����("�!(��'&�'�.�.,���&������,!�,�"�&�!�,+&�'��("�����,'(����'"&�'�
.�.,���&��H�

• ��!4�"�&��,"��� �+".�&%��&�����+�("���(� ����("�����,'(���"�&+"���H��

• +"�&%"����+��"!,�"���:����!"+�(�,�&�'��  "��)(&!(�&���..��.�&��"������!���
/��4"�����+�,��&/��"����,..������("�����,'(���"!���/&!�'��)�(H�

• !���&�,"����!�"��"����"�%&���/"���)("�"�"/.���"���)�������&�%"�����+�!�"��"�
@�:�H��

• �����!���4&��"+�)��4"���&�����("�����,'(���+�&�!�"��"��("�.��.���&���� �
���������)��4&�'��'"�.�.,���&���)&�(��..��.�&��"�<,��& &!��&���H�

• �,..�����("�����,'(��"!���/&!�'��)�(��"!�����&�!�,+&�'��!&"�!"���+�
�"!(����'�-���+���'&��&!����+�+&���&:,�&��H�

• "��,�"�����+"%"��./"���&��� ���(&'(�<,��&���� �+"�&'����+��(�����"���� �
!����/&���"+����+���"��,!!"�� ,�����"/"+&��"+H�

• /�&���&����+�"�(��!"�������������,������+�("�&��'"����"���&�!�,+&�'�&����&�"��� �
��!��-����&�������+�&��"����&�����&/.�����!"-�)��"��&+"�"�%&���/"������+�
+&��&�!�&%"�!(���!�"�H�

• .���"!�-�"�(��!"���+-�)("�"��..��.�&��"-�"9.��+��("�����,'(���'�""��
&� �����,!�,�"��"�)��4� ���&����&���&��&!�%��,"-��"!�"��&������..���,�&�&"����+�
 ����("��++"+�:"�" &���� �&/.��%&�'�("���(���+�)"��3:"&�'�� ��("�����,'(���
!�//,�&�&"�H�

• .,��&��.��!"�/&�&'��&�����+��+�.���&���/"��,�"�����+"���)&�(��("��(�"���� �
!�&/��"�!(��'"H�

• ,�&�&�"��"��,�!"���,���&��:��H�

• �"+,!"�!��'"��&�����+��,..�������%"��:���,���&��:�"�/�+"�H�

• /�&���&����+�"�(��!"��("��"��&����+��"&�,�"��  "��� �*&+�"����)���"���"-�
��������"����+�	,�!������+���)�H���+-�

• /&�&/&�"���+��"�.��+�����("�.��"��&����&�4�� �/�@����!!&+"���-� ���+&�'-�
!����/&���&�����+�.���,�&��#�

�
�#=> �("�"�!(���"�'"��/,���:"��++�"��"+�&����+"�����"��,�"�������� ,� &���&���

 ,�,�"�%&�&�������1�0>#�

APPENDIX APage 101



�

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

� ���������������� !�"��#$ "��% ��
�

�����������	�
���������
�
���
�
�&� �' ��% ���"'��!�%�����������( ��)��*��' ����)����+�����,������#+ ���**,���-�

����� !-��.��/�.�01�
�
�&� ��������	
���������
�
�
��������
������������
�	
����������������������������������
�
��

��
����������������������
����
���	
�
������
����
����

�
�����
�����������������
���
����������
����������
������������������
���
�
��������
������������	����
����������
����
�����
����������
�
�
������
�����������
��������	
�

����������������������������������
���
��
�
����
����� �

�
�&� 2+�3��!�)��*��'��4��' ��5����+�%������,�� �5�����!���+���6����� ������ !-�������

)�++�3�1�
�
�&7 �����.�804���+�������3 ++� 9,�55 �����*  �������3���  ���3��'�'�,���!�)����++�

� "�������)���"� �-4������! ��)� *5+�-* ����55���,���� �4�5+,��� ���+�����+ ��,� �
)�"�+��� ��)��� % �-�� &����+����"�����, �����"�����#,� �5�����% +-�����"'� %��!��' �
 "���*�"4� �%����* ���+�������"��+�5�� ����+��)��' ���% �5��+����-�	 !���������' �
����'�: ��&��

�
�&; �'��%��!�������% �� �� ��� ����+�"�**,���� ���� �!��3��!��������-*���4���� �#,�-�

����� !�"���� �����	,�"����:�� �)�����3'�+ ����������+�'�!'�9,�+��-�'�,���!����
��' ��+�"��������"�����	,�"��������:��� ���� �� ��)��"��!�������% ���)-��!��' �
����,!'6��� ��� ����+��)) �4�� �5�����!�����' ��  ����)��' �����,!'6��"�**,���� �&��
�' � �'���#  ����� � 3 �� *5'���������' �� +�% �-��)��))����#+ �'�,���!�5��%����!�
�""�**��������)����'�� �3'��3 � �5� %��,�+-�,��#+ �����"" ����' ��-5 ��)�'�* �
�' -�� 9,�� �&�

�
�&0 �' �����,!'6�� "���*-�'���#  ����� �!�' � ��#-��' � <5��������)�( -�

 *5+�-* ����� ��������� �#,�-4����4�� �� -���� 3�-����������:��� ��
:�� �)����4�������+����'���� % +�5 ������*5���������+ �����' ��,#/� !����)���
�,������#+ �������#,���������+�!����"���������'�!'/� "'��"� �" ������ � ��"'&��
��+���6��� ��� ������ �3 ++� 9,�55 ��3��'��' ��(�++���  � �����"�*5 � �)���$�#�����
�++�� "���������+�"��������'��,!'�,���' �����,!'4�3' � � <�����!� *5+�-* ���
�� ���'�% �#  ��� ���� �������*5��% ���'��,!'��55��5���� �� ! � ����������*  ��
�' ��  ����)�*�� ��� *5+�- ��&���' �����,!'6������������+����,���� �4�" ��� �����
�' �"' *�"�+��� "���4�"�����, ����5+�-���( -���+ ����#��'�	,�"��������:��� �&�

�
�&= 	 ���+�����+ ��,� �" ��� ������' �����,!'�*���������' ���),�"��������( -��� ���)���

�' �5��%�������)��'�5�4�� �%�" ������"�**,���-�)�"�+��� �&���' ���3��" ��� �����
:��� ��������+����� ���)) ��%�#���������#,�-�� �����������)���5 �5+ ��������' ���
�'�55��!4��"" ���� �%�" ������*  ���� �����' �&��	,�"�����+����3��'���
� % +�5 ���������,��9, �+�"������)����'�55��!�����+ ��,� 4�3��'�����"' ���+ �
"�*5�� ������' ��3��*������3��" ��� ������' �����,!'&��

�
�&8 � % +�5* ����"������' �����,!'����'�!'+-��,������#+ �����"�����#,� ������' �

' �+�'�����3 ++/# ��!��)���+���6��"�**,���� �4�'���*�� ��' �# ���,� ��)�5� %��,�+-�
� % +�5 ��+��������'���,��+�� ����)�����,"�,� ������ ��,�" �� ))�"� ��+-&��+�*���"�
���(��"�����, ����# �*���! ������*���!�� ������� % +�5* ���'���"�����#,� �����
*���*����!���+���6��"��#���)���5����&����������++-4���+����# � )����)��*�'�!'�
9,�+��-���)�����,"�,� �� �%��!�� 3����� <�����!�� % +�5* ��&��

APPENDIX APage 102



�

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�
�&> �' ��,��+�"'���"� ������� ����!��)��' �����,!'6��%�++�! ���)����� 4���� �#,�-�����

�� ���������' ���++�3��'����' ���  ��� +��'���#  ��� ���� ���'��,!'�� ����"������
���� 3�� % +�5* ��&���' �"'���"� ���)���+ ���++�! �?��� ��3��'����' ���  ��� +�@4�
'����+���#  ��5��� "� �4�������-�� !���% ��*5�"�������"��� ��3��'��' � <5����������
��% �5��+�A�'��� ��������5������ �*���*�� �&���' �����,!'6����  ��� +��
"�����, �����5��%�� ���%���+�� ��,�" �)���",�� �������),�,� �� ��� ��������(  5��!�
�*5��������5�" ��# �3  ��� ��+ * ���&�

�
�&�. �' �'������"��������,��+� �%����* �����"�������+����'�% �#  ��"��� �% ������

 �'��" ��)���),�,� �! � �������������' �����,!'6��*,+��),�"�����+�!�  ��
��)�����,"�,� �� �3��(�),+)�+���' �� "� ������+��  ����)�� ��� ���4�"�����#,� �����
! � ��+�3 ++/# ��!�����5��%�� ���*5�������+��( ����% �� �'�#�����&����������++-4�
��+���6��+ !�"-��)�"����*���� ��+����"�����, �����# �� * ���� ������� ! � ��� �4�
����� % +�5* ���� �5���������' �5�� ����+����(���)�*�$����""�� ��������)+�����!&�

�
�&�� �����5������,� ��#��'��'��,!'��' �����,!'���������,���,����!��� ����� ���������"�

���'�3��' �����,!'�),�"��������������3���������5�����)��' ��,#/� !���4�)����' �
*�% * ����)�!���������5 �5+ &����� "������% ��"������!�# �3  ���' �����,!'6��
��3����)�	,�"��������:��� �4�����' �)��*��)��' �� �� -���� 3�-����$ "�4�'���
#  ��� ",� �4��*5��%��!�"��� "�����������"���!������*�$����,#/� !����+�"���+-���)���
� % +�5* �������� ! � �������&�

�

APPENDIX APage 103



�

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

��	������������������
�
�&�� �' ��5����+�%������3�++�# ��"'� % ���'��,!'��' �� +�% �-��)��' ������ !�"��#$ "��% �1�
�

�& �� �� ������,55���������"��% 4��"" ���#+ ��������5��#+ �� ��� ����+�
� �!'#�,�'�����3' � �5 �5+ �3�������+�% �

�
�& ���%�� �!����9,�+��-4��))����#+ ��""�**��������������3�� �*�<��)�'�,���!�

�-5 �����"� �� �#�+��" ��"�**,���� ��
�

�& �� �� ������,��������"�*5 ����% �������% �� �#,��� ��� �%����* ����)) ���!���
%��� �-��)�9,�+��-���� ������5� *�� �4�3��'���5����",+��� *5'���������'��,!'��' �
� %���+���������)� <�����!�%�"��������,�� �,� �� *5+�-* ����� ���

�
7& 2,��' ��� % +�5���+���6�� "���*-����,����' �+�!����"������������#,������ "���4�

���� <5�����' ��"� �" 4�"� ���% �����(��3+ �! �#�� ��#,��� ���"+,�� ����
�

;& ������������� �'��" ���+���6����3������+�"�+�" ��� �����"� �� �'�!'�9,�+��-�
� ���+�����+ ��,� ��� ����'���*  ���' ��  ����)��' �+�"�+�"�**,���-4�����
5�����% +-�"�����#,� �����' ��*�! ��)��' �����,!'�

�
0& 
��,� ��++�� % +�5* �������,55��� ��#-��' ���* +-�5��%�������)��� 9,�� �

��)�����,"�,� 4�3��'��,))�"� ���"�5�"��-�����""�**���� ����������+�),�,� �
!��3�'�

�
=& ���%�� ��"" ���#+ ����% +��5������)���5 �5+ �����)� �!'�4�5����",+��+-��'��,!'�

�' �� �+���������)��' �� �� -���� 3�-����$ "�4� ��,���!���# �� ��"��� "� �4�
+ ���"��! �� ������*�� ��,������#+ ���+����

�
8& 
��,� ��'����++�� % +�5* ����"'� % ��'�!'������������)�� ��!�������,������#�+��-�

����5��%�� ����5�����% �"�����#,������������+�"�+��-�
�

>& ����*�� ���+���6��"�����#,��������"+�*�� �"'��! ��'��,!'�� �,"��!�"��#���
 *������������ ��,� ��' �����,!'����� ��+� �������' ���% �� � )) "����)�"+�*�� �
"'��! �

�
�.& �,55�����' �"��� �%���������� �'��" * ����)��' �'������"��������,��+�

 �%����* �����"+,���!�� ��!��� ����� �������5 "� �������' �����,!'6��!�  ��
��)�����,"�,� ������� �����*�<�*�� ���"��+4� "���*�"����� �%����* ���+�
# � )����

�
��& �*5��% ��' �' �+�'�����3 ++/# ��!��)���+���6��� ��� �����'��,!'�,�� �"'��)�

�' ���+�) ����! �4��'��,!'��,55�����!��' ��"'� % * ����)�' �+�'-�+�) ��-+ ������
' �+�'-� �%����* ����)����++�

�
��& �� % ���'��*������,����" ����5 �5+ �����#����% ����-�)��*�5�� ����+���,�" ��

�)�5�++,���������)�� �  �#+ ����(��
�

��& �,55�����,������#+ ����� )) "��% �3��� �����*�� ��+��*���! * ��4�� �,"��!��' �
�*�,����)�3��� �! � ��� ������"�����#,���!�����' �*���� ���" ��)��55��5���� �
*�� ��+�� � �% �&�

�

 

APPENDIX APage 104



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�

�

�

������������������� !��

 

���"������"�#�
	"$!%"&����'�%"&���()!%%!���

�� �)"���
�

�

�

�'��!������! !"%�

APPENDIX APage 105



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

����

� �������	
��
�����
��	��
��
����
�
��� ���������� ���!���"#�$ %&'�$!%(�������'�%)�$%!��� �%)�����*�!�''�'��%&�&��&�  �

�+���,��&����&��&�)���%�-� �,�!�%,�!������ �)���!�%-.���/�)"��)�%�+%)'�-�!���%)�����
�*�'��)"���#'�+� ��)-�'%+�� ��),�!%)(�)��%$������%!%0"�.��)-��%&�&���)��)-��%�
(����������!���"�+��12�+��,�'������������� ���!���"#�'��'�%0���%&��� �%)�&�  �
+��)"��%,�!�����+%(�)"�#��!'3�&��!��+��)"��&�  ������).�&��)����&�  ������)��)-�
�%&����'��'��%�1��-� �,�!�-����

�
������������������
���������������� ��

�
�%��+���,��������'�%)�$%!��� �%)��%��4�5��4�6.�)�&�-�,� %�(�)��'�%0 -�-� �,�!7�

• 6444�8.444�)����--���%)� �-&�  �)"'�)�&��%(�'�

• ���!%*�(��� #��54��8�����9"!%'':�%$� �)-�$%!��(� %#(�)���0!�%'�'�

• ����%�1%0��;�.444��<��'<(�%$��%&)�+�)�!��+%),�)��)+��=+%(��!�'%)�"%%-'�
!���� �)"�

• ����%�1%0����.444��<��'<(�%$�10 /#�"%%-'�!���� �)"!���� �&�!��%0'�)"�
�
������������	���
����
�����������

����
	������	���	����
������
��������
�������

���	����������
����	�
�

���������������
�
�!�"�#����� ������������$�%����������&��'�� ��
� ���������� ���!���"#�$%!��� �%)��'�$%+0'�-��!%0)-���1� �)+�-�(�*�%$��!�%!���'�-�0!1�)�

!�"�)�!���%)�'0��%!��-�1#����!%�!����� �,� '�%$�"!��)$�� -��*��)'�%)�������'�!���"#�&�  �
 �!"� #�1��!�� �'�-�1#�����-� �,�!#�%$�$%0!�>?�#��!��'�%$����)"�@��+!%''������%!%0"��
&��!������(�2%!��#�%$�)�&�-�,� %�(�)��&�  �1�� %+���-�������$%0!��!��'��!�7�

�
(�)��� �����������&����*��+����$�*�����$�(#��,�&���$)����$�,��'����'���-����� �

+�#�����������%����������&��'�� ������

• ;��.�9����%):��)�A�-)�'.�

• �%0���A�-)�'.�

• A�'��	0)+%!)3��)-�
�
(#)������&���$��-����������*��*�� ��'����.���������&��'������������&����+������

��,�
�,����$�&+��'����-���������&��+�����������%���������&��'�� ������

• 
�'��	0)+%!)�
� ���'�'��+�$�+�?�#��!���%$����)"���)+ 0-�'�����-�'�")���%)�%$�����!���"�+������

�)+%(��''�)"���!�'10!#��+��)+���)-��))%,���%)���(�0'��)-���!�'10!#���!/��
�
� �����������
�
��
���
���������������	������������	����
�	��
������

���	���������

�

���
��
�������������
����	��

����������������
�
/��� �0��,�&���$�1��+��(#���&��������$��&&�������+����&��-����� ������)�

�0�'�-��%$�����?�#��!��'�%$����)"�.�����!�B0'��%$��!�,�%0' #�-�,� %��-� �)-�&�  �1��
�!�%!���'�-.�)%��1 #�&��!��!�"�)�!���)"�%!�1!�)"�)"�'���'�1�+/��)�%�0'��&�  �1!�)"�&�-�!�
1�)�$��'��%������%!%0"�����(�%!��)��"!��)��)$!�'�!0+�0!��&����)�����0!1�)��!���&�  �1��
�!%��+��-�$!%(��-,�!'�-��!�(�)�� �-�,� %�(�)���%��)'0!����'�,� 0�.�1%����)-�,�-0�  #�
�)-��'���!��%$���)��&%!/��'�!����)�-��
�

2�� ������
���+������������$�������0����
����!0!� �+��!�+��!��)-�"!��)��)$!�'�!0+�0!��%$������%!%0"�C'�,�  �"�'��)-��!��)��� ��&�  �

APPENDIX APage 106



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

��5�

3+���&��������
�
��� �)$%!(�-�1#��� �%)C'��*�'��)"�+��!�+��!�'��+'.��''0�'��)-�%��%!�0)����'��'�-���� �-��)�

�� �%)C'���%!#�%$�� �+�.����������� ���!���"#���'�1��)�-�,� %��-��%�$%+0'�$0�0!��
-�,� %�(�)��%)��!��'�&��!�����!���'��)��(���0'�%!���)��-�$%!�+��)"������)0(1�!�
%$��!��'�%$������%!%0"��'0+���'��)-0'�!�� ���!�'�%$�A�-)�'��)-���&��%&)��!��'��)�
	0)+%!)���,��)%��1�)�$����-�$!%(�'0$$�+��)���),�'�(�)��$%!���)0(1�!�%$�#��!'��)-�
�!��)%&��)�)��-�%$�!�)�&� ����,� %�(�)��%,�!������ �)���!�%-�&�  ��!�-%(�)�)� #�
1��$%+0'�-�%)�!�)�&�)"��� �%)C'�0!1�)� �)-'+������!%0"������!�B0'��%$��!�,�%0' #�
-�,� %��-�91!%&)$�� -:� �)-.��)+ 0-�)"�-�!� �+��'���'��)-���%'��&��������'�%!#�%$�
+%)��(�)���%)���!��+0 �! #�����%0���A�-)�'��)-�A�'��	0)+%!)������+�$�+��% �+��'�
-�� �&����&��)����'�+��)"��&�  ������)����#�'��/�)"�&��!�,�!��%''�1 ���%�
+%)+�)�!����-�,� %�(�)���)�1!%&)$�� -�!�"�)�!���%)��!��'.�����!% �'�%$�	0)+%!)�
�)-�A�-)�'��'��(�%!��)���%&)'��)�����'01B!�"�%)�&�  �1��(��)���)�-��)-�'�+0!�-�
$%!�����$0�0!�������'�&�  ��)'0!������������%!%0"���'��1 ���%�(��������-�#B�%B-�#�
)��-'�%$���'�+0!!�)���)-�$0�0!���%�0 ���%)�1#��!%,�-�)"��(� ���(� %#(�)��
%��%!�0)����'.���!�)"��%$���"��<0� ��#�'�!,�+�'��)-�$�+� ����'��)-���+�%�+��%$��%(�'��

���
��; ��'����������!�%!��#��%�!�)�&��)-��(�!%,�������%!%0"�C'�0!1�)� �)-'+������!%0"��

)�&�-�,� %�(�)�.�����'�����!�)����!%0"�������,�-�)+��1�'�������)%���  �$0�0!��
-�,� %�(�)��+�)�1��-� �,�!�-�%)�1!%&)$�� -� �)-�����'����������%!%0"�C'�'�!%)"�
!�+%!-�$%!�1!�)"�)"�1!%&)$�� -� �)-�1�+/��)�%�0'�.�(0+��%$�����!�(��)�)"��!�,�%0' #�
-�,� %��-� �)-��'���"� #�+%)'�!��)�-���!%0"��+%)��(�)���%)�%!�%���!�$�+�%!'�&��+��
�$$�+��-�,� %�(�)��,��1� ��#.����!�$%!��!�-0+�)"�����!�� �'��+��(%0)��%$�1!%&)$�� -�
 �)-�&��+��+�)�1��1!%0"���1�+/��)�%�1�)�$�+�� �0'�����0!!�)� #�����4�4.����!���!��
)%�$0!���!��%0'�)"�!�)�&� ��!%"!�((�'.�'0+���'������)��!�)"�+%(� ���%)����
��'� �$�� -'�9	0)+%!):.�&��+���!��� �))�-��%���/��� �+��&����)����� �$���(��%$�����
�%!����!���"#����)��--���%)��%����� �(�����%)'�%)�����!�B0'��%$�1!%&)$�� -� �)-.�
-�,� %�(�)��%��%!�0)����'��)������%!%0"���!��+%)'�!��)�-�9��!��+0 �! #��)�A�-)�':�
1#���"�� #�-�$�)�-��!��)��� ��1%0)-�!��'.� �(���-�'+%���$%!��)$�  �)".�+%0� �-�&����
������!'�#�
'�0�!#�-�''�+��)"������%!%0"�.����!���!��)%����&�-��,�!���#�%$�
'�!���"�+�%���%)'��,�� �1 ���%��++%((%-����$0�0!��"!%&���!�<0�!�(�)�'���
�%&�,�!.��� �%)�(0'��� �)�$%!����� �,� �%$�-�,� %�(�)��)��-�-��%�'�+0!������
$0�0!���!%'��!��#�%$������%!%0"���)-��%��)'0!�����������'�!,�+�'.�$�+� ����'��)-�
%��%!�0)����'�%)�%$$�!�'�!,���� �%)C'��%�0 ���%)�%,�!����� �$���(��%$������ �)��

�
��� �0!�)"�������! ��!�'��"�'�%$������%!����!���"#C'��!%-0+��%).���!���-�$$�!�)��%���%)'�

�%�-� �,�!�����!�<0�!�-� �,� �%$�"!%&���&�!��+%)'0 ��-�%)3��+������#���"�#���
�-��������.�0��,�&���$������1��+���)-���4�-��&�0��,�&���$���$�"�#���
�-����������D%  %&�)"��01 �+�+%)'0 ����%).�����-�,� %�(�)��%$������,�-�)+��1�'��
�)-�!�$�)�(�)��%$�����%���%)'.�����%���%)�%$�+%(1�)�)"���1!%&)$�� -����!%�+�.�
+%0� �-�&�����)��*��)'�%)�%$������%!%0"�C'��*�'��)"�10� ��0���!����%�������'��%$�
	0)+%!)��(�!"�-��'������!�$�!!�-�%���%).��)-�����(%'��1� �)+�-����!%�+���%�

1���!�-%(�)�)� #�1��(��)���)�-����)��!���%$�'��!+��$%!����%''�1 ��(�)%!��(�)-(�)��%$�
�����!��)��� ��1%0)-�!#��'��!%�%'�-��%�)�����&�'��%$������%!%0"���%�$�+� ����������
� �))�-�!0)&�#��*��)'�%)������,�!�%% �E%�)���))%)���!�%!�����)��--���%).����� �)-�'0�� #�
�%'���%)�(�#�&�!!�)����"�)�!� �!�,��&�%$��!��)��� ��1%0)-�!��'��%�'�!,��-�,� %�(�)��
)��-'��!�'�)"��)�A�-)�'��)-��� ���!�%!��%��4�5��4�6��
�
�����������
�
��
����
���	���
� �����


�!
�	� �		
	�"���
�����������
����	����#��
�

APPENDIX APage 107



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

��F�

1%���-� �,�!������(%0)��%$�)�&�-�,� %�(�)��)��-�-�&�� '��+%)�!�10��)"��%&�!-'�
�����+���,�(�)��%$�������'�%)��)-���!���"�+��12�+��,�'�$%!������%!%0"���

�
��� ���� �)-��!%�%'�-��%�1��-�,� %��-����
�'��	0)+%!)��'��!�-%(�)�)� #�"!��)$�� -�

 �)-�1�#%)-�	0)+%!)C'�+0!!�)��10� ��0��0!1�)��!�����
,�-�)+��$!%(�1%�������
��!���"�+��%0'�)"���)-��,�� �1� ��#��''�''(�)���9�����:�9�4�4:��)-�����E%�)��

(� %#(�)����)-��)-��!�(�'�'���0-#��9E
���:�9�4�4:��)-�+���������&���%0������
�)+ 0'�%)�%$����'��!���%$������%!%0"�.����!��&%0 -�1���)'0$$�+��)�� �)-�$%!�)�&�
!�'�-�)��� ��)-��(� %#(�)��-�,� %�(�)��)��-�-�%,�!������ �)���!�%-����

�
�

������������+��� ��+�����
(��	���/5�5)�

�
�$����&��$��.����.����	��$�

�+�����/5�5�(��!)�
��

��
�&�  �)"'� �� �%)�G� �!���G� � ���� �� �%)�G� �!���G�

�!��)� BB� � � � ���6�� �� �5G�
�!%&)� BB� � BB� � F4�4�� �� F�G�;���

�� 4� 4G� � � 8��6�� �6G� ��
�!��)� BB� � 4G� � ���6�� �� 5�G�
�!%&)� 6F5� � �44G� � 8�8�� �� ;8G�

�%0���
A�-)�'�

�� 6F5� FG�6G� � � ���F�� �;G� ��

�!��)�
�.�65�
�.�55�

� �6G� � �4�5�� �� ;�G�

�!%&)� �.�8�� � ��G� � 65�6�� �� 56G�
6�$����7�
�����9���:�

��
2859��
285:��

/:;�/<;� � � �/<!��� :�;� ��

� � � � � � � � �

�!��)�
;.��4�
;.4���

� �44G� � �8���� �� �44G�

�!%&)� BB� � 4G� � BB� �� 4G�

�'��

	0)+%!)�

��
;.��4�
;.4���

�8G�
��FG�

� � �8���� ��G� ��

�!��)� F�� � �G� � BB�� �� 4G�
�!%&)� �.4�6� � 85G� � 4�;�� �� �44G�

A�'��
	0)+%!)�

�� �.�;;� �6G��8G� �� � �4�;�� 4G� ��

�!��)�
�.64��
�.�48�

� 5FG�55G� � F�4�� �� �4G�

�!%&)� �.F86� �� 22;�2�;� � 5;���� �� =5;�
�+������

9���:�

��
98:55�
98/5<�

<�;�<2;� �� � <5!��� 2:;� ��

� � � � � � � � �

�!��)�
F.�66�
5.6F��

�� 5�G�5�G� � �F�5�� �� ��G�

�!%&)� �.;8;� �� 29;�2=;� � ��4���� �� <:;�
��	
���

9���:�

��
��8:9��
��8/:9�

�55;� �� � �=<!9�� �55;� ��

�


�#������>�����#+������&��$����&��$�>�*����.��������������������(������/5�5)�

�
�
��5 ����'�!���"#�$%!�-�,� %�(�)���)��� �%)�%,�!������%!����!���"#���!�%-�'�%0 -�1��

,��&�-��'�����)�*�����'���)�����-�,� %�(�)��%$������%!%0"�.��)-���+%)��)0���%)�%$�
�!�,�%0'�'�!���"��'��'��(� �(�)��-��)������44���� �%)��)���!#���,� %�(�)��� �)�
9���:��)-������885��� �%)��%+� �� �)���D%!��)'��)+�.������(���0'��%�-�,� %�� �)-�

                                                 
1 HBC (2010) Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2010/11 
2 BE Group (2010) Joint Employment Land and Premises Study 

APPENDIX APage 108



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

��6�

���
�'��	0)+%!)�-���'�1�+/��%�������&��%&)���'��!�� �)��)-���'��(�)-(�)�';.�
&��!�������!%�%'� '�&�!���*��)-�-��%��)+%!�%!���� �)-�1�#%)-������!��'�%$�
A�)-(�  ���  ��)-��0!-�'��&��!�(�!� #��%��++%((%-������"!����!�)0(1�!��)-�
!�)"��%$�-&�  �)"'������'��!���1�"�)��%�1��-�,� %��-��)����� �����864'��%�$%!(�����
!�'�-�)��� ��!���%$���)-#(%%!����)�A�-)�'.��%+/��'�%$�"!��)$�� -� �)-� �#�1��&��)�
�����*�'��)"�0!1�)��!����)-������!��)��� ��'0!!%0)-�)"�����)%!���%$������%!%0"�.�
�)-����'���!��'�&�!��!� ��'�-�$%!�-�,� %�(�)���)����� ���!����'�'�%$������44��
���.�&��!��'���'�&����)�����0!1�)��!���&�!��1!%0"���$%!&�!-�$�!'�����'�-��$!%(�
����0!1�)�?�#��!��'�%$����)"��&��+���!�'�)��%��%!�0)����'�$%!�1!%&)$�� -�
-�,� %�(�)�.����!���'�)%���)��10)-�)+��%$�'���'�&����)�����0!1�)��!���&��������
�1� ��#��%�-� �,�!�'�")�$�+�)��-�,� %�(�)�.���!��+0 �! #�!�'�-�)��� �-�,� %�(�)����

�
��F ����$%  %&�)"���1 ���1 �����'��'�%0������ �)-�'0�� #��%'���%)�$%!�!�'�-�)��� ��)-�

�(� %#(�)���0!�%'�'������!� ��4�4������'�-�(%)'�!���'������� (%'����!���<0�!��!'�
%$������%��)��� ��%0'�)"�'0�� #��-�)��$��-��)����������� ��'�'%0���%$�����!�,�!.�&����
�!�,�%0' #��-�)��$��-� �)-��++%0)��)"�$%!�%) #�;6G�%$������%��)��� ��%�� '0�� #���D%!�
�(� %#(�)�� �)-����!���'�(�!"�)�  #�(%!�� �)-��,�� �1 ���)�A�-)�'.��%&�,�!����'�
'0�� #��'�+%)+�)�!���-��)��� �(���-�)0(1�!�%$� �!"��'���'�$%!(�)"�����;���
-�,� %�(�)���

�
��6 �����%0)+� ���'�+%((�''�%)�-���)0(1�!�%$�!�'��!+��'�0-��'��%�<0�)��$#�����

-�(�)-��)-�)��-�$%!�-�$$�!�)��+ �''�'�%$�-�,� %�(�)���+!%''������%!%0"����D%!�
�%0'�)".����'���)-�+���������-�(�)-�$%!��--���%)� ��%0'�)"�%,�!������ �)���!�%-��'�
 �/� #��%�1��'/�&�-��%�	0)+%!)�����FG�%$������%�� .�&����A�-)�'��)-��� ��
�++%0)��)"�$%!��;G���D%!�!���� .�����'�0-��'��)-�+����"!����!��*��)-��0!�����-!%%(�
�%�'0��%!��)�&�$ %%!'��+���!�'�)"��)�A�-)�'��

�
��6��8 ����'�!���"#��-�)��$��'�$%0!�%����������&��'�� �������&�  �1������$%+0'�$%!�)�&�

-�,� %�(�)���)-�&��!������1�""�'���!�)'$%!(���%)�%$�����+0!!�)�� �)-'+�����'�
�*��+��-�&�  ��%�%++0!������'��/�#��!��'��!��'��)��'�$0)-�(�)�� ��%����� %)"�!�
��!(�-�,� %�(�)��%$������%!%0"���)-��)�(%'��+�'�'�!��!�'�)���*�'��)"��!��'�
&��!���(���0'�$%!�+��)"��� !��-#��*�'�'.���!%0"���!�%!��#��!%2�+�'�%!�'0��%!��$!%(�
����-�,� %�(�)���)-0'�!#�����1 ����1� %&��  0'�!���'����� �/� #��)��+�����-�<0�)�0('�
�)-�-�'�!�10��%)�%$�-�,� %�(�)��=�-�,� %�(�)�� �)-��+!%''��� �%)��%��4�5��4�6��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

                                                 
3
 Runcorn Development Corporation (1967) Runcorn New Town Master Plan 

APPENDIX APage 109



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

��8�

�
6�>����7���	��

�
�"������

%���������&�
�'�� ��

%���������&�
�'�� ��

�

24�� ��+�'�
6�$����

�
�'
�
��

?�



�


�
	
�

6����
�+������

�����
�+������

�
�'
�
��

?�



�


�
	
�



�


�
	
�

��+��� ��
(����$,����� �
 ���)�

@@�
2A5�
�55�

28/A5�
28A55�

28=55�
(�2;)�

/8555�
�8A55�

28�55�
/8955�

�8555955�
A8�55�
(A<;)�

98555�
=8555�

(�55;)�
�.����.����
(��)�

=9!=�
==�

/=!/�
25�

�5!<�
/9�

�
/:!=�
/<�

:/!2�
::�

2/!5�
�A�

�
/:5!5�
/=A!5�

B
�,��
������B�
�������(�C4�
�C.)�

� /A8555� � /A8555� A8555� � A8555� �58555� 2A8555�

0+�D�����$��
�������
6���'�+��� �
(�C4��C.)�

� �=8555� � �=8555� � � 28555� 28555� //8555�

H�����!�(�#��)+ 0-��+0!!�)� #�0)�-�)��$��-�I&�)-$�  C�'���'������(�#��!�'��&����)�?�#��!��'�%$����)"���
�


�#���/�����E����$�����������$�>�����#+������&�>�*����.����7�>�*����.����	��$�/5�5�
���/5/:�/5/9�

�
�
6'���������'��%����������&��'�� ����$�,'��'�*���'���#�����'����F�
�
��8���4 ����?�#��!��'�%$����)"���)��� �%)���,��1��)��-�)��$��-��'7�

• 24��9������!'�#��0 ��(%-� �����&�#:��������%)��)�A�-)�'��

• ��+�'�6�$����J��)+ 0-�)"�A�-)�'��%&)���)�!�.�A�-)�'�A���!$!%)���)-�
����!�"�)�!���%)��!���%$�A�'����)/��

• 6�����+������J��)+ 0-�)"�	0)+%!)�� -��%&).�	0)+%!)�A���!$!%)���)-�����
��!'�#�����&�#��%!��9A�'�%)��%+/':��

• ������+������J�+%,�!�)"���!�'10!#���!/.���!�'10!#��+��)+���)-��))%,���%)�
��(�0'��)-���)-#(%%!��

�
24�8�6�$����

���4���� �����*�'��)"�'�!���"�+�!�� �$!��"����)��!+��)"���)�����%).�A�-)�'�/)%&)��'�24��
9��!'�#��0 ��(%-� �����&�#:���'�1��)�%��!���%)� �'�)+���445.��)-��'�&�  � %+���-�
�)�!� ���%)��%�����'�!���"�+�!%�-�)��&%!/.�A�'���%�'�����)���)��9A���:�!�� �
�++�''.������%!��%$���,�!�%% .��)-������*��)-�)"�+�!"%�$�+� ��#������,�!�%% �E%�)�
��))%)���!�%!��������'�����'���/�#� %+���%)�$%!� %"�'��+'��)-�-�'�!�10��%)��)�����
�%!���A�'���)-�&��)�$0  #�-�,� %��-.�%$$�!'������%��)��� ��%�-� �,�!�0���%��.444�
2%1'��)����'��*��)-�)"�'�+�%!���A�� '����!��%$�����'�����'�� !��-#�&�  ��'��1 �'��-��'�
�)�%��!���%)� �$!��"���$�+� ��#.����!��!�(��)'�'�")�$�+�)��-�,� %�(�)���%��)��� ��%�
����&�'��%$������*�'��)"�!�� �$!��"���$�+� ��#�&��!�����!���'�'+%���$%!�'�(� �!�
�(� %#(�)��0'�'���

�
�������� �0��%!��$%!�����-�,� %�(�)���)-��*��)'�%)�%$��)��!(%-� �$!��"���$�+� ����'�'0+���'�

;���!�$ �+�'�)���%)� ��)-�!�"�%)� ��!�%!����'��%�$�+� ��������'��$���)�����(%,�(�)��%$�
$!��"���$!%(�!%�-�1�'�-��!�)'�%!����%)��%�'0'���)�1 ��(%-�'�������;���'�����'�
+0!!�)� #�+%))�+��-�,�������A�����%�����(�!/��'�%$������%0���
�'��%$�
)" �)-�
�)-��%�����
0!%���)�+%)��)�)���)-���'��(�%!��)+���)-�+%)��)0�-��*��)'�%)��'�
'0��%!��-�1#�����'��-%&���,�!�%% ����#�	�"�%)��%+� �
)��!�!�'����!�)�!'����&�%�

APPENDIX APage 110



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

�;4�

'�+0!�-�	�"�%)� ��!%&���D0)-�(%)��'��)��4����%�$0!���!��)��)+����'�+%))�+��,��#�
�)-�+���+��#�������!���!��� '%�� �)'��%�$0!���!�+%))�+��!�� �$!��"���'�!,�+�'�1��&��)�
;����)-�'%0���!)�����)��%��  %&������!�)'�%!����%)�%$�$!�'���!%-0+��$!%(�
0!%���
$%!�-�'�!�10��%)�&����)������?��

�
��+�'�6�$����

�������; �����%0���A�-)�'�?�#��!������)"���'�(�-��0��%$���!���+%(�%)�)����!�'�&��+��
�10����+��%���!�� %)"�����'%0���!)��-"��%$�A�-)�'.��-2�+�)���%�����/�#�!%0���%$�
������56���6�$����
�,����������'����� �!"�'���%&)���)�!���)������%!%0"��
�)-��%(���%���'01'��)��� �!���� �%$$�!���
,�-�)+��$!%(��� �%)C'�	���� ��)-����'0!��
��0-#��'0""�'�'���������!���'��%��)��� ��%��*��)-�����10 /#�"%%-'�9��
��)-�
"�!-�)�)"��!%-0+�'.�$0!)��0!�.�+�!���'.�� �+�!�+� �"%%-'.�%$$�+��'0�� ��'��)-��%#':�
!���� �%$$�!��)������%&)�+�)�!�.���)+������!�<0�!�(�)��$%!��-�)��$��-� �,� �%$�
�--���%)� �$ %%!'��+���

�
���;���� �����!���/)%&)��'�6�$����6����&������-2%�)'������%&)���)�!���)-�+%,�!'�

�����!���'%0���%$�D�-- �!'�D�!!#�	%�-��)-���'��%$��'� �#�A�#����!�-%(�)�)� #��)�
�(� %#(�)���!��.�����'���C'��!%(�)�)+���)������%!%0"��&�  �1��1%%'��-��)�����
$0�0!��"�,�)������!��C'��!%*�(��#��%�����)�&�!�,�!�+!%''�)"��$��!�����
�(� �(�)����%)�%$�������!'�#�����&�#��!%2�+���������!�����'�1��)�����$%+0'�%$�
!�"�)�!���%)��$$%!�'��)�!�+�)��#��!'.�(��) #��%&�!-'�����&�'�.��%&�,�!.����!���'�
�%��)��� �$%!�����!�(��)-�!�%$������!����%�%$$�!���!�)�&�-��(� %#(�)��%$$�!��

�
�������� ����6����0��D��!����'�'��0���-��%�����&�'��%$�A�-)�'�A���!$!%)���)-�+0!!�)� #�

+%(�!�'�'���,�!���#�%$�-�$$�!�)�� �)-�0'�'.�&�����)-0'�!�� ��)-�+%((�!+�� ��%�����
)%!����)-���!�'�-�)��� �)��"�1%0!�%%-��%�����'%0�������!���'�����'+%���$%!�
'01'��)��� �!�+%)$�"0!���%)�%$����'��!���$%  %&�)"������(� �(�)����%)�%$�������!'�#�
����&�#��!%2�+���

�
6�����+������

�������5 ����A�'��	0)+%!)�?�#��!���%$����)"���)+ 0-�'�����!���� ��)-� ��'0!���!���%$�
�+��������$�
�,����� ��%0"��	0)+%!)�� -��%&)�+�)�!���'��)��(�%!��)��
+%),�)��)+��+�)�!���)���'� %+� �+��+�(�)�.�����+�)�!��&�'��-,�!'� #��$$�+��-�1#�����
-�,� %�(�)��%$���'� �!"�!���&��%&)�)��"�1%0!.��� �%)����.��)-�����!�'�)�� �+/'���
-�$�)�-�!% �������!���'�-�$�)����'+%����)-��(���0'��%�10� -���+%(� �(�)��!#�
!� ���%)'����$%!�	0)+%!)�� -��%&)�&������ �%)����.�+�)�!�-��!%0)-������,�)�)"�
�+%)%(#��)-�+0 �0!� �0'�'��)�����+�)�!�����%)"�!���!(�!�-�,� %�(�)��
%��%!�0)����'�$%!�	0)+%!)�� -��%&)�+�)�!���!��!� ���-��%�������!'�#�����&�#�
�!%2�+��&��+��&�  �+!�����1����!� �)/�"�'��)-�+%))�+��,��#�1��&��)�����&���!$!%)��
�!����)-�	0)+%!)��!��)������%)�%)�����A�����

�
���5���F �#�)"��%�����&�'��%$�	0)+%!)�� -��%&)�+�)�!�.��-2�+�)���%�����	�,�!'�-���%  �"��

��(�0'��)-�!�+�)��&���!'�-���%0'�)"�-�,� %�(�)�'.� ��'��+������6����&�������
/�#�-�,� %�(�)��'�����)��+�����-��%�+%(��$%!&�!-�$%!���(�*�%$�!�'�-�)��� ��)-�
+%((�!+�� �0'�'�-0!�)"������ �)���!�%-��

�
���F���6 �%&�!-'�����'%0���%$�����A�'��	0)+%!)�?�#��!���%$����)"�.�����4������

����,��������9�!�,�%0' #�/)%&)��'�A�'�%)��%+/':�%$$�!'�����%��%!�0)��#��%�
+!�������+�,� �&���!&�#��%!��%$$�!�)"��(�!%,�-�!%�-.�!�� .��) �)-�&���!&�#��)-�'���
$!��"��� %"�'��+'�������!�� �'���%)�%$����'�'���C'��%��)��� �&�  �$0!���!�'�!�)"���)��)-�
�*��)-������%!%0"�C'�'��+�� �'(��)����� %"�'��+'��)-�-�'�!�10��%)�'�+�%!��

�

                                                 
4 GVA (2009) Halton Retail and Leisure Study, para 11.42, page 132 

APPENDIX APage 111



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

�;��

������+������
���6���8 ����
�'��	0)+%!)��!���+�)�1��'� ����)�%��&%�-�'��)+��'�+��%)'�J������!�-%(�)�)� #�

!�'�-�)��� ��!���������$�.�����)-������!���%$��(� %#(�)��$%+0'������!�'10!#.�
-�,�-�-�1��&��)�����10'�)�''�+%((0)��#����>����#+������D��)-�����)���%)�  #�
'�")�$�+�)��'+��)+���)-�!�'��!+��+�)�!�����>����#+�������������$�����*������
��.�+��������-� �,�!#�%$��)��*��)'�%)��%�	0)+%!)C'�0!1�)��!���!��!�'�)�'��)�
%��%!�0)��#��%��)��"!���������*�'��)"��(� %#(�)���!���&��������!�'��%$�����
�%!%0"�.�&�� '���--���%)�  #�(�/�)"���'�")�$�+�)��+%)�!�10��%)��%&�!-'��+���,�)"�����
�%!%0"�C'���('��)���!('�%$�'�+0!�)"�$0�0!���+%)%(�+��!%'��!��#��)-�%$$�!�)"�
%��%!�0)����'��%�-�,�!'�$#�����'/�  '�1�'�����

�
���8���4 A����)�����
�'��	0)+%!)�?�#��!���%$����)"�.�������!�'10!#��!����'�1��)"�

�  %+���-��'�����!���"�+�������'�����'���/�#�+%(�%)�)���)��� �%)C'�$0�0!��
-�,� %�(�)���)-�&�  �'���'01'��)��� �+��)"��%,�!����� �$���(��%$������%!����!���"#���
� %)"'�-�������*��)'�%)�%$������(� %#(�)��%$$�!.���)�&�!�'�-�)��� �+%((0)��#��'�
� '%�1��)"��!%(%��-������!�'10!#.�&��+��&�  �)%��%) #�(������ ���%�(��������
�%0'�)"�)��-'�%$������%!%0"�C'�!�'�-�)�'.�10��&�  �� '%�+%))�+�������&%��*�'��)"�
�(� %#(�)���!��'���!%0"��'��!�-��(�)����'��)-�)�&��!�)'�%!��!%0��'�������
!�'�-�)��� ��!��������)-#(%%!.��%�����&�'��%$���!�'10!#.�+%(�!�'�'����!%*�(��� #�
��F���+��!�'�%$� �)-.�%$�&��+���5���+��!�'���,��� !��-#�1��)�-�,� %��-�������'�
+%(�!���)'�,��!�-�,� %�(�)��%$�������)-#(%%!��!���&�  �+%)��)0�.�+!����)"���
(�*�-��)-�'0'���)�1 ��+%((0)��#�'0��%!��-�1#�����$�+� ����'��)-�'�!,�+�'�)��-�-�
1#� %+� �!�'�-�)�'��

�
�+���$���&��'��%����������&��'�� ��
�
���4���� �0�'�-��%$������-�)��$��-�?�#��!��'�%$����)"�.������,�-�)+��1�'��0)-�!��))�)"�����

�%!����!���"#��)-�+���'���������!���'�'+%����%�(�/��(%!���$$�+��)��0'��%$�� !��-#�
-�,� %��-��!��'�%$������%!%0"�.�1!�)"�)"�1�)�$��'��%������%!%0"�C'��*�'��)"�
+%((0)����'����)� �)��&��������'����� ��!�%!����'��)'�!�)�-��)�)���%)� �� �))�)"�
�% �+#.��!�,�%0' #�0'�-� �)-��)-�10� -�)"'��)�����!�'��%$��� �%)��!����"���!�%!����'�
$%!��++%((%-���)"�)�&�-�,� %�(�)�����!�)"�)"�0)-�!0'�-��)-�!�-0)-�)��'���'�
1�+/��)�%�1�)�$�+�� �0'��&�  ���,���%'���,���$$�+�'�%)��*�'��)"�'0!!%0)-�)"�
+%((0)����'���

�
�������� �� �%)C'��*�'��)"�)��&%!/�%$�"!��)��)$!�'�!0+�0!��&�  �+%)��)0���%�'�!,������ ��'0!��

�)-�!�+!����%)�)��-'�%$������%�0 ���%)��)-�'0��%!�������%!%0"�C'�1�%-�,�!'��#���
�
�������; ����!0!� �+��!�+��!��)-�'����)"�%$������%!%0"�C'�,�  �"�'��)-��!��'�%$�%��)�

+%0)�!#'�-��&�  �1��(��)���)�-�&���� �(��'�%)�)�&�-�,� %�(�)�����)�%!-�!��%�
�+���,�����'.������!��)��� ��&�  �+%)��)0���%�1���!%��+��-��)��++%!-�)+��&����
)���%)� �� �))�)"��% �+#��%��!�,�)��0)+%%!-�)���-��*��)'�%)�%$�0!1�)��!��'�&��+��
!�'0 ���)����� %''�%$�'�!���"�+�"��'�1��&��)�'��� �(�)�'�����)%!�+��)"�'��%�����
�!��)��� ��1%0)-�!#��������&�'��!)��*��)��%$������%!%0"��&�  �1��!�<0�!�-�
+%)'�-�!�-��%��  %&�$�+� �����������!%�%'�-�!0)&�#��*��)'�%)������,�!�%% �E%�)�
��))%)���!�%!���%�1���*��)-�-.��)-����'��''0��&�  �1���--!�''�-��)��� ���!�
��,� %�(�)��� �)��%+0(�)���������)��--���%).�'�%0 -����� �)-�'0�� #�&����)�����
�%!%0"��&�!!�)����.�����!��� �!�,��&�%$������*��)��%$������!��)��� ��(�#�1��
!�<0�!�-�-0!�)"������ �)���!�%-.���!��+0 �! #��%��)'0!���-�<0���� �)-��%�(����
-�,� %�(�)��)��-'�%$�����+%((0)����'�)%!���%$�����!�,�!����)#�'0+��!�,��&�&�  �1��
0)-�!��/�)��'���!��%$���'01'�<0�)���  %+���%)'������

�

                                                 
5 HBC (2009) Sandymoor Supplementary Planning Document 

APPENDIX APage 112



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

�;��

���;���� ����+��!�+��!�%$��� ����  �"��&��+���'��)'���&����)������!��)��� �.�&�  �)��-��%�1��
+�!�$0  #�(�)�"�-� �/������%���!�,�  �"�'.�&������!��+0 �!�!�'��+���%���'�+ %'��
�!%*�(��#��%���,�!�%% �E%�)���))%)���!�%!�����'������%&)'�%$�	0)+%!)��)-�
A�-)�'�&�  �1������$%+0'�%$�-�,� %�(�)��$%!������%!����!���"#.������!��)��� ��
�!���&�  �� �#�����,%�� �!% ���)�(��)���)�)"�����'����)"�%$������%!%0"�C'�!0!� ��''��'�
�)-��!%,�-�)"���-�'��)+��1%0)-�!#��%�����10� ��0���!���������+��!�+��!��)-�'����)"�%$�
����!0!� �,�  �"�'�%$��%%!�.���!�'10!#��)-��!�'�%)�%)�������  .�&�  �1���!%��+��-�
&��������+�!�$0 �(�)�"�(�)��%$�-�,� %�(�)���

�
�

�
�
�

�

��	����1��4�6��%��
�

�

����������������
�

����7��� �,�!�)"��0'���)�1 ����,� %�(�)��9���.��44�:3����;7�
�%0'�)"�9���.��4�4:3�����7�� �))�)"�$%!��0'���)�1 ��
+%)%(�+�
�!%&���9���.��448:�

�

	������*�$������
�

��!���"�+��%0'�)"���)-��,�� �1� ��#��''�''(�)���4�4=���9���.�
�4�4:.�E%�)��
(� %#(�)����)-��)-��!�(�'�'���0-#�9�
��!%0�.�
�4�4:.��� �%)�	���� ��)-����'0!����0-#�9���.��448:.�	0)+%!)�
��&��%&)���'��!� �)��)-��(�)-(�)�'�9	0)+%!)�
��,� %�(�)���%!�%!���%).��8F5.��8F���)-��8F�:�

�

������ ����#E����*���
�

����

�

����������������
�


(� %#(�)�.����!)�)"��)-��/�  '��)��� �%).�
),�!%)(�)���)-�
	�"�)�!���%)��)��� �%) 

�4�B��%0'�)"�� ���J�
+%)%(#�
���J��++�''�1� ��#�

�

����#E����*���
�

�;�J�
-0+���%)�
�5�J��%&)���)�!�'�

�

����+���.��
�

�,�!�  .��������+%)'�-�!'����'��% �+#��%�1���%'���,���)�
'0'���)�1� ��#���!('��� ��%0"������ �,� �%$�-�,� %�(�)��'���%0��
&����)�'%(��%$������% �+��'�+%0 -���,��)�"���,���(��+�'�%)�'%(��
�),�!%)(�)�� �$�+�%!'.����'���!��'0$$�+��)� #�(���"���-�1#�%���!�
�% �+#�+%)��)���

APPENDIX APage 113



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� ��������

�;;�

�
�
1� +���:��%���>�� ��.�(�.��$�$�>�� ��.)�

APPENDIX APage 114



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

� ���������	
�	�
������
���������
��
�
���
�

��� ���������  ��!�"#� ��"��"�$%��&�&�"��'"�#(������&"�) #&��&�"���&!�"#� �*#&"�#)'"#�(��+�
+'"'���$��,"���(*�*��� �!-�("�#(�"�������'$��������'&"�#(�) ������ �!-�("�
��#(.#! �&��/#&"�� �($&#*��"����!�"#� ��"��"�$%�#(���*���"���(&'���"��"�$��,"���(*�
*��� �!-�("�#&�&'&"�#(�) �0�-��"#($�"���(��*&��+��� "�(1&�!��&�("�.�--'(#"#�&0�
�(*�! �((#($�+���"���(��*&��+�+'"'���.�--'(#"#�&������"��� #+�"#-���+�"��������
�"��"�$%���  �*��� �!-�("�#(�"�������'$��#&���2'#��*�"��.�("�#)'"��"�,��*&�"��&��
!�#(.#! �&�#(���*���"���(&'�����&'&"�#(�) ���� "�(0�(�,��(*�#(�"���+'"'�����

���������������
�

��3 4�'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("1�#&�*�+#(�*��&�5*��� �!-�("�,�#.��-��"&�"���(��*&��+�"���
!��&�("�,#"��'"�.�-!��-#&#($�"����)# #"%��+�+'"'���$�(���"#�(&�"��-��"�"��#���,(�
(��*&6�����"#�(� �$'#*�(.��#(�"���+��-��+������7��� #���#($��'&"�#(�) ��
���� �!-�("3�&"�"�&�"��"�&'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("�&��' *�)��*� #����*�"���'$��
�.�#��#($7�

�

• &�.#� �!��$��&&�,�#.����.�$(#&�&�"���(��*&��+�����%�(�8�

• !��"�."#�(��(*��(��(.�-�("��+�"����(�#��(-�("8�

• !�'*�("�'&���+�(�"'�� ���&�'�.�&8��(*0�

• &'&"�#(�) ���.�(�-#.�*��� �!-�("����
�

                                                 
1 HM Government (2005) Securing the Future – UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy  
2 CLG (2005) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 

�
����� ��������������!�"��"#"��$%"����&����$�"��

�
�����"��� #+�"#-���+�"����� "�(�������"��"�$%0�*��� �!-�("�#(�"�������'$��&��' *7�
�

• .�("�#)'"��"�,��*&�"���*� #���%��+�-#/�*��(*�)� �(.�*�.�--'(#"#�&8�

• #(.���&��"���2'� #"%��+� #+��+���"�������'$�1&�.�--'(#"#�&0�.�("�#)'"#($�"�� �($�"��-�
#-!����-�("&�#(���� "���(*�,�  9)�#($0��*'.�"#�(� ��""�#(-�("��(*�&:#  �*��� �!-�("8�

• .�("�#)'"��"�,��*&���&"��($0�&"�) ���(*�-����.�-!�"#"#����.�(�-%0���&!�(&#���"��
�� "�(1&�(��*&��(*�)'# *#($�'!�(��� "�(1&�&"��($"�&8�

• )�� �.�"�*�"��-#(#-#&��"���(��*�"��"���� 0�#(.���&���..�&&#)# #"%��(*�&'!!��"�
&'&"�#(�) ��"��(&!��"��!"#�(&8��

• ��$�(���"���(*���-�*#�"���� "�(0�)�#($#($�(�"#.��) ��#-!����-�("&�"��"���
����'$�1&�'�)�(�����&��(*�$���(�&!�.�&8�

• .�(&������(*��(��(.��"���.����."����(*�2'� #"%��+��� "�(1&�(�"'�� ��(*��#&"��#.�
�(�#��(-�("��(*�$���(�#(+��&"�'."'���(�",��:8��

• -#(#-#&��+�."��&�,�#.��.�("�#)'"��"��. #-�"��.��($���(*�! �(�+���"���!�"�("#� ��++�."&�
�+���.��($#($�. #-�"���(�"�������'$�1&�.�--'(#"#�&��(*��(�#��(-�("&8�

• -#(#-#&���(��$%��(*�,�"���'&���(*�-�:���++#.#�("�'&���+�(�"'�� ���&�'�.�&�#(. '*#($�
"���'$��&'&"�#(�) ��,�&"��-�(�$�-�("��(*�-�/#-#&#($�"�����9'&���+���.%. �*�
!��*'."&8��(*0�

• �(&'���"��"�"���#(+��&"�'."'���(��*&��+�"�������'$������-�"��

• -�:���++#.#�("�'&���+���&�'�.�&��(*��(&'���#(+��&"�'."'���(��*&�����-�"��
�

APPENDIX APage 115



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

��� ����.�#����&'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("��.��&&��� "�(���('-)����+�!�#(.#! �&������
)��(��$���*�����&��&'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("�!�#(.#! �&�����#(+��-�*�)%�"���
����'$�1&�*�#���&��+�.��($���(*���&!�(*�"���� "�(1&�.��  �($�&��&�&�"��'"�#(�
�� "�(1&��"��%��+�� �.����&�����&' "�"����'&"�#(�) ������ �!-�("���#(.#! �&���+ �."�
"���.'���("�&�.#� 0��.�(�-#.��(*��(�#��(-�("� �(��*&��+�"�������'$��,�# &"�
)'# *#($�'!�(�"����#-&��+�&'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("��"�"���(�"#�(� � ��� ��

�
��� �(���*���"���.�#����&'&"�#(�) ��*��� �!-�("�#(��� "�(������"���! �(�!��#�*0��  �

*��� �!-�("0�,������!!��!�#�"�0�,#  �)���&&�&&�*��$�#(&"�"��&��!�#(.#! �&������
�'&"�#(�) ������ �!-�("���#(.#! �&�����"����+����#("�$�� �"��"���*� #���%��+�"���
������"��"�$%��(*������-! #+#�*�"���'$��'"�"���! �(���

�
�

�

�

��

�'�(�	��)��*��
�

�

�������������� �
�

����7��� #���#($��'&"�#(�) ������ �!-�("�;���0�3<<�=8�
��.'�#($�"���>'"'���;������0�3<<�=�

�


������#�+"��"��
�

�� "�(�9��"�"���+�"�������'$��;���0�3<�<=�

�

��&��",����!-"���#"��
�

����

�

�����&��&���"���
�

����� "�%��� "�(8�
-! �%-�("0�����(#($��(*��:#  &�#(��� "�(8�

(�#��(-�("��(*�	�$�(���"#�(�#(��� "�( 

��?��' "'�� ����#"�$�� �<�?���'&#($�
3�?��#�*#���&#"%�� ���?��..�&&#)# #"%�

��?�@�"���A'� #"%� �3�?���� "��

��?�� #-�"�����($�� ���?�
*'.�"#�(�

��?�> ��*�	#&:� ���?�
.�(�-%�

B�?�
(��$%�
++#.#�(.%� ���?���#&'����(*���'�#&-�

C�?���(*�A'� #"%� �B�?���,(���("��&�
D�?��#��A'� #"%� �C�?����(&!��"�

�

�	��!-"���#"��
�

E�?�@�&"�� �
�

�	������%"�
�

�������.�(&#*��&�"�#&�!� #.%�"��)��!�&#"#���#(�&'&"�#(�)# #"%�
"��-&��&�#"���&�!�&#"#���)�(�+#"&�+����  ��+�"�������)F�."#��&��

APPENDIX APage 116



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

� �������	�
����	

������������
�����

�
��
�
���

�
��� ������������� �!��"#�$%&�&� ���'��#��('�(&�)�( ����""*+��,���% (!*������%'-�,�#�

 �����#��-�.���/%� %'-�0����'% %���('&� ��(00����&( ��"#�1�0 �&�-#�� ��%'� ���
��#��-�.��"�"�*( %�'���2�%*� � ���#��%&�' �"�"�*( %�'��(��� (!%*%��&��$�#�#�0�' �
+�(#��% ��%��"#�1�0 �&� ���/"�#%�'0����&�� �-#�� ��#( ��� ��343�34356�����$�#�
0�('-%'-�&���-#("�%0��('&�'��&���,�#��%&�' ���(����(' ��$�'�,(� �#�-#�� ��%'� ���
'��!�#��,��������*&��"*(0%'-�"#����#���'��(* �'.��0�##�' �����%'-�� �07����

�
��3 ���%'&%0( �&�%'�!� ���(* �'.��� �#+��,��*(0��('&� ����"( %(*�� #( �-+6��$�#� ���

��#��-�.���%� �#+�&�$�*�"��' ��(�� (7�'�"*(0��%'�&%� %'0 ��($����,��#!('�
#�-�'�#( %�'��, �'�%'$�*$%'-� ���#�"*(0���' ��,��'��% (!*���������'��� ( ��6�
0��"*�&��% ��-#�� ���,� �����#��-���' ���/"('�%�'�*('&�( � ����&-����,� ����#!('�
(#�(���2�%*� � �%��"(  �#'��,�&�$�*�"��' ��%**�0�' %'��� ��(�0�# (%'��/ �' 6�����%'-�
#�'��(*�"#�1�0 ���%**�"*(+�*�����,�(�#�*��%'� ���,� �#��('&� �����#��-���%**�!����#��
&�"�'&�' ��'�&�*%$�#%'-�����%'-��'��(* �'.��#��(%'%'-�-#��',%�*&��% ���( � ���
"�#%"��#+��,� ����#!('�(#�(��

�

�

���������������������������� �����!������
"��"�!�#��

�
���������#$��"#%#�!�

• 56444�86444�'���������9'� ��,�&���*% %�'�:�����*&�!��"#�$%&�&�!� ���'�34�4�('&�
343��3435�( �(��%'%����#( ���,;�

• <44��'% ��"�#�(''���,�#� ���"�#%�&��"#�34�4=��>�(#�34�<=�?34�?�

• �44��'% ��"�#�(''���,�#� ���"�#%�&��"#�34�?=��>�(#�34�8=343434�

• ?44��'% ��"�#�(''���,�#� ���"�#%�&��"#�3434=3�>�(#�343?=3�3435�

• ��+�'&�343�34356�&�$�*�"��' �����*&�0�' %'���( �(��%'%����#( ���,�?44��'% ��
"�#�(''���9'� �-(%':��'*���� �%��%����"�#��&�&�!+�(�0�('-�� ��"�*%0+�( �'( %�'(*�
*�$�*����

�

• �����������%**�!��&�*%$�#�&�,#���(�$(#%� +��,����#0��6�%'0*�&%'-;�

• �% �����%0��(#��0�##�' *+�($(%*(!*��,�#�����%'-�&�$�*�"��' ;�
o ����%'-��% �����%0���($��!��'�0��"*� �&��%'0���� ��"#%*�34�4�
o �% ����'&�#�0�'� #�0 %�'�,�#�����%'-�&�$�*�"��' �
o �% ����% ��"*(''%'-�"�#�%��%�'�,�#�����%'-�
o �% ���(**�0( �&�%'�('�(&�" �&��*('��

�

• �% �����%0���($�� ���"� �' %(*� ��0�' #%!� �� ������%'-�*('&���""*+;�
o �&�' %,%�&�����%'-��""�# �'% %����% �%'� ���@�+��#�(���,���('-��
o ��������%'-��#��%/�&>����(**�0( %�'��%'���!��)��' ������
o �""#�"#%( ���%'&,(**�&�$�*�"��' �
o �#�(���,���(#0���% �%'� ����#��'���* �9��!1�0 � ��%&�' %,%0( %�'�%'�(�� #( �-%0�

�#��'���* �	�$%��:��
�
�'��#&�#� ��&�*%$�#��% ��� �( �(#��%&�' %,%�&�(���($%'-� ���"� �' %(*� ��0�' #%!� �� ������%'-�
��""*+6�(#��($(%*(!*��('&��%**�#�(*%� %0(**+�&�*%$�#�����%'-�&�$�*�"��' 6��"�0%,%0��% ����%**�!��
%&�' %,%�&�%'� ����% ���**�0( %�'��('&���$�*�"��' ��('(-���' ������#�� ��#�(""*%0(!*��

                                                 
1  Including undeveloped sites allocated for housing in policy H1 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan.  The 

phasing element of this policy no longer applies. 

APPENDIX APage 117



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�A�

������
�
&���!���������'��#�"��������

• �'�(00�#&('0���% �� ���#�*�$(' �(''�(*� (#-� 9�:�,�#�����%'-�&�*%$�#+6� ������'0%*��%**�
�(%' (%'�(�?�+�(#���""*+��,�&�*%$�#(!*������%'-�*('&�(0#���� �����#��-����

• �'�(&&% %�'6� ������'0%*��%**����7� ���(%' (%'�(�?�+�(#���""*+��,�&�*%$�#(!*������%'-��% ���
 ����� � ���%&�' %,%�&�'��&���,�	�'0�#'�('&�2%&'���=��(*���

• �,� ������'0%*�%���'(!*�� ��%&�' %,+�('��'-�%'-�?�+�(#���""*+��,��% ���,�#�����%'-�
#��%&�' %(*�&�$�*�"��' 6�(�#�$%����,�����%'-�*('&���""*+� �#��-�� ���� #( �-%0�����%'-�
�('&��$(%*(!%*% +���������' ��%**�!���'&�# (7�'6� ��#���%**�!��(�"#����" %�'�%'�,($��#��,�
 ���&�$�*�"��' ��,���% (!*��B�%'&,(**.��% ���('&�%,�'�0���(#+66� ������'0%*��(+��'&�# (7��
(�� #( �-%0��#��'���* �	�$%��� ��%',�#���%**����7� ��(**�0( ��(&&% %�'(*�*('&�%'�(��% ��
�**�0( %�'������ ���(7���"�('+����# ,(**�%'�*%'���% �� ���"#�$%�%�'��%'���*%0+������

�
("�)�*�#� ���� �

• �'�($�#(-���,�( �*�(� �<4C��,�'���#��%&�' %(*�&�$�*�"��' �����*&�!��&�*%$�#�&��'�
"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�9!#��',%�*&:�*('&��$�#� ���"*('�"�#%�&��

�
�#���!��

• ����'��#�� ����,,%0%�' ������,�*('&6�(��%'%����&�'�% +��,��4�&��**%'-��"�#���0 (#��9&"�:�
�%**�!�����-� ����'���#��(00���%!*��*�0( %�'����0��(�� �����0*���� �� ��'�=�*�0(*�0�' #���
�#� #('�"�# �%' �#0�('-��� ���"#����" %�'��%**�!��,�#�&�$�*�"��' ��(0�%�$%'-�&�'�% %���
�,�<4�&"���#�-#�( �#��

�

��
+��!�*���!����

�
�#!!������,�������!�"�#!�

��� �* ���-��( �"#���' � ���	�-%�'(*��"( %(*�� #( �-+�9	��:�,�#� �����# ��2�� �
0�##�' *+�,�#���"(# ��,� ���� ( � �#+�&�$�*�"��' �"*('�,�#��(* �'6�% �%�� ���0�##�' �
��$�#'��' .��%' �' %�'� ��(!�*%��� ���#�-%�'(*� %�#��,�"*(''%'-�"�*%0+� �#��-�� ���
��0(*%����%**���%0��%��(' %0%"( �&� ��!��"�!*%���&�%'���0��!�#�34�4�3������	����
����	�-%�'(*��"( %(*�� #( �-+�9	��:�,�#� �����# ��2�� ��� �(�����%'-�"�*%0+� (#-� �
,�#��(* �'��,�?44�'� �&��**%'-�-(%'�"�#�(''���,�#� ���"�#%�&�344�� ��343����
2�%*� � �%��#��(%'��"(# ��,� �����$�*�"��' ��*('�,�#��(* �'�( ��(+�34��6� ���
��(*% %�'���$�#'��' ��(��%'&%0( �&�% ��%' �' %�'� ��#�$�7��(**�#�-%�'(*�� #( �-%���
2% �� ���%' �'&�&�#�$�0( %�'��,�	��6�% �� ���#�*���,�&�0%&%'-&� �#�%'%'-�('�
(""#�"#%( ��'��!�#��,������� ��!��!�%* ��% �%'��(0��&%� #%0 ��%**�,(**%'-� �� ���*�0(*�
(� ��#% +%��� �#��-�� ��%#���#��� #( �-+%�������%$�'� �����$�#'��' .��0*�(#�
%' �' %�'���% ��#�-(#&� ��#�-%�'(*�"*(''%'-6� �����#��� #( �-+�"#�"�����(�*�0(*�
����%'-� (#-� ���%0���%**�(""*+��$�#� ���"*('�"�#%�&� ��343������0(*�����%'-� (#-� ��
(#��'�0���(#+� ����*"�&�*%$�#� ���#�)�%#�&�*�$�*��,�������!�%*&%'-� ����� �*�0(*�
'��&����%*� �-%$%'-�0�# (%' +�,�#�!� ��#��%&�' ��('&� ���&�$�*�"��' �%'&�� #+�%'�
 �#����,�������0��#��%&�' %(*�&�$�*�"��' �(�*�0(*�(#�(�%��-�%'-� �����*&�
(00����&( ��%'�,� �#��+�(#���

�
��< ��������%'-� (#-� ��,�56444�86444�'���������( �('�($�#(-��#( ���,�?44�������"�#�

+�(#�%'��(* �'��$�#� �����#��� #( �-+�"*('�"�#%�&� ��343��3435��(��!��'�
&� �#�%'�&�!+�0�'�%&�#%'-�&( (�('&�#���(#0��,#���(�$(#%� +��,����#0��6�%'0*�&%'-�
"#�&%0 �&�"�"�*( %�'6��������*&�('&��0�'��%0�-#�� ��������"#�0����,�#�#�(0�%'-�

                                                 
2
 CLG (2010) Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Abolition of Regional Strategies (available at: 

www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/letterabolitionregional) 

APPENDIX APage 118



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�5�

 �%�� (#-� �%���� ��� �%'� �����""�# %'-�&�0���' �D�� �#�%'%'-�(�����%'-�
	�)�%#���' �,�#��(* �'����%'-���"%0��("�#E���

�
��? ��������%'-� (#-� ����%0���($��!��'��� �#�"#���' �(�*�$�*���%0���%**���� �

,�#�0(� �&�*�0(**+�(#%�%'-��������*&�-#�� ���$�#� ���"*('�"�#%�&6���%*� �(*���
(**��%'-�,�#�(�&�-#����,�,�# ��#�-#�� ��(0#���� �����#��-�����(* �'.��"�"�*( %�'�%��
(' %0%"( �&� ��#%��� ���3�6�44��3�6844�"�#��'��!+�343��34356�(�#%����,�
(""#�/%�( �*+�?6444�?6344��"�#��'���$�#� ���"*('�"�#%�&6���%*� �344��!(��&�
�������*&�"#�1�0 %�'��"#�&%0 �&�-#�� ���,�56834��������*&��!� ���'�344�>34�46�
('�($�#(-���,��A3��������*&��"�#�(''���<��

�
��� ����"#�"���&�����%'-�,%-�#��%���(#-%'(**+�(!�$�� ���"#�1�0 �&�-#�� ��%'�

�������*&������$�#� �%��*�$�*��(��!��'��� � ��"#��� ����&�� �-#�� ��%'��(* �'�
('&� ���'(!*��(�#('-���,�����%'-� +"��� ��!��"#�$%&�&�����%���%**�(**���(�
0�' %'�( %�'��,�#�0�' � #�'&����%0���%**�����&%$�#�%,%0( %�'�%'� �������%'-��,,�#6�
��%0��% �%����"�&��%**�(��%� �%'�#�&�0%'-��#�� ���%'-�'� ��� ��%-#( %�'� �( ��(��
!��'�"#�$(*�' ��$�#�#�0�' �+�(#���

�
��A ����%'-�&�*%$�#+�('&�&��('&�%��� #�'-*+�0�##�*( �&��% �� ���� ( ���,� ����0�'��+6���


0�'��%0�,�#�0(� ��('&�"#�&%0 %�'��$(#+�%'� ��%#�"#�&%0 %�'��,�#����'� ���
�0�'��+��%**�#�0�$�#�,#��� ����,,�0 ���,� ���#�0�' �B0#�&% �0#�'0�.�('&�#���* (' �
#�0���%�'��0�'��%0�&��' �#'6�('&�,�#����'�0("(0% +��% �%'� ���������!�%*&%'-�
%'&�� #+��%**�#� �#'� ��"#�>#�0���%�'�*�$�*�����'���  %'-� ���(!�$������%'-� (#-� �6�
 ����,,�0 ���,� ���#�0���%�'�0�'��%0�&��' �#'��($��!��'�(07'��*�&-�&��% ��(�
*���#� (#-� �%���� �,�#� ���%'% %(*�?�+�(#��9%'�*%'���% �� ���(""#�(0��,�#���"*�+��' �
*('&�(���� ��� �%'���<:6�!�,�#��%'0#�(�%'-�%'� ���,�**��%'-�"�#%�&� ��&�*%$�#� ���
�$�#(**�)�(' ���#�)�%#�&� ��343�3435��

�

�!#�!����,��������������

��5 �(!*����%'� ���"#�0�&%'-���0 %�'�����(#%���� ���"#�&%0 �&�"� �' %(*�����%'-���""*+�
( �34�4�(0#���� �����#��-�������� #( �-%0�����%'-��('&��$(%*(!%*% +���������' �
9�����:�%'&%0( ��� ��#��%��%&�' %,%�&�*('&�%'� �����#��-���% �� ���0("(0% +� ��
&�*%$�#���6�5����63�5�&��**%'-������%��(""�(#����,,%0%�' � ����� � �����#��-�.��
����%'-�#�)�%#���' � ��343��3435�('&�"� �' %(**+�,�#�(�'��!�#��,�+�(#��!�+�'&6�
����$�#� ���&%� #%!� %�'�%����($%*+��7���&� ����� ���,� ���#%$�#�('&�% ���� �!��
'� �&� �( �'� �(**��,� ����% ���%'� ����������%**�!��&�*%$�#�&�,�#�����%'-��#�0����
,�#�(#&�%'� ��� %��,#(����%'&%0( �&����'&��&6�% ��(+�'� �!��&��%#(!*��,�#�0�# (%'�
�% ��� ��!��&�$�*�"�&�,�#�����%'-�#( ��#� �('�� ��#�������

�
��8 �'�(&&% %�'� ��%&�' %,%�&��% ��6��%'&,(**��% ���(#�� �������%0���($��'� �!��'9'� �

"#�$%���*+�%&�' %,%�&�%'� ���������(���($%'-� ���"� �' %(*� ��&�*%$�#�����%'-:�('&�
&�$�*�"��' 6�('&� ��#�,�#�� ���*%7�*+�+%�*&��,� ����% ���(��'� �!��' ��#�,�#��'� ��
,(0 �#�&�%' ��"� �' %(*�����%'-���""*+�,%-�#��0�' %'��� ��0����,�#�(#&�('&�
-�'�#( ���'% ����2�%*� �'���"�0%,%0�(**��('0��%���(&��,�#��%'&,(**���""*+�%'��(!*���6�
% �%��*%7�*+� �( ��% ����%**�0����,�#�(#&���%0���($��'� �!��'�%'0*�&�&��% �%'� ���
�����6�!�0(�����,��',�#����'�0%#0��� ('0�����0��(�� ���#�&�$�*�"��' ��,�
0����#0%(*�!�%*&%'-���#� ���#�*�(����,����'0%*���'�&�*('&����#!('��%'&,(**��% ���
(*����($�� ���"� �' %(*� ��!��� � ���&�*%$�#+��,�#��%&�' %(*�&�$�*�"��' ��'�

                                                 
3 HBC (20102011) Determining a Housing Requirement for HaltonHousing Topic Paper 
4 4NW (2010) Technical Background Paper - Initial Technical work on Housing Provision and Job Growth Figures 

for the North West 

(www.4nw.org.uk/downloads/documents/jul_10/4nw_1279264181_RS2010_Part_2_Housing_provisio.pdf) 

 

APPENDIX APage 119



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�8�

!#��',%�*&�*('&6���""*���' %'-� �����!#��',%�*&��% ���%'0*�&�&�%&�' %,%�&��% �%'� ���
�������

�
("�)�*�#� ���� �

���4 ��$�*�"�#��(#���'0��#(-�&� ��"#%�#% %��� ���&�$�*�"��' ��,�"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�
*('&�%'�(00�#&('0���% ����*%0+�������(* �'��(��*�'-���#7�&�%'�"(# '�#��%"��% ��
� ��#�6�%'0*�&%'-� ���������('&������'% %����-�'0+�9('&�% ��"#�&�0����#�:� ��
"%�'��#�'���('&�%''�$( %$���(+���,� (07*%'-� �����#��-�.��"(# %0�*(#�!#��',%�*&�
*�-(0+����

�
���� �#�$%���*+�����;�����%'-��� �(���'( %�'(*��%'%����� ('&(#&�,�#�&�$�*�"��' ��'�

!#��',%�*&�*('&��,��4C�%��%'0*�&�&��% �%'�����;�����%'-6���%*� �	�-%�'(*��"( %(*�
� #( �-+�,�#� �����# ��2�� �9	��:��� �(���(#�&� (#-� ��,�54C�,�#��(* �'�('&�
� ���*�'����������(*% %�'���$�#'��' �(��'&�&������%'�34�4� ��&�*� �� �%��
#�)�%#���' �('&��(��� ( �&�% ��%' �' %�'� ��#�$�7��	�����F%-�#��A�!�*���%**�� #( ���
"(� �#( ����,�&�*%$�#+��,�'����������'�"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�*('&�%'��(* �'���
��*%$�#+��$�#� ���"#�$%�����?�+�(#���(��$(#%�&��%-'%,%0(' *+6��% ��(��%-���,�(*��� �
84C��,�'���&��**%'-��!�%* ��'�!#��',%�*&�*('&�%'�3445=486�0��"(#�&� ��(�*����,�
�'*+�5C�&�*%$�#�&�%'��88A=856�($�#(-%'-�<8C��$�#� ����?�+�(#�����#��',%�*&�*('&�
&�*%$�#+��(��$(#%�&��$�#� �%��"�#%�&�#�,*�0 %'-� ���,�0����,�&�*%$�#+�+�(#� ��+�(#6�
�% ��-#��',%�*&��% ���%'�*�0( %�'����0��(���" �'�	�07��!�%'-�!(*('0�&��% ���#!('�
#�-�'�#( %�'��0��������0��(���(� *�,%�*&�����

�
���3 ���&%�0����&�%'� ����"( %(*�� #( �-+6�&��� �� ���"�(��&�(""#�(0��%'���%0�� �������

���'��(��!��'�0�'� #�0 �&6�&�$�*�"��' ��'�-#��',%�*&��% ����(��,�#��&�(�7�+�"(# �
�,��(* �'.������%'-�&�*%$�#+��$�#��('+�+�(#��������(""#�(0�� (7�'�%'�"#�$%����
*�0(*�"*('���(��!��'� ��"�(��� ���#�*�(����,�-#��',%�*&��% ��6� ��"#%�#% %���
&�$�*�"��' ��% �%'� ���!�%* ��"�(#�(��%'� ���,%#� �%'� ('0����������*�'-� �#��
"(  �#'���,�&�$�*�"��' �(#��#�,*�0 �&�%'� ����"*% �!� ���'�-#��',%�*&�('&�
!#��',%�*&�&�*%$�#+�%'�F%-�#��A�!�*��6�('&�%'� ���#��(%'%'-%&�' %,%�&�� �07��,�
�'-�%'-���""*+�(���� ��� �%'��(!*���('&��""�'&%/�����

�
�

BROWNFIELD HOUSING PROPORTIONS (1996~2010)

49%

0%

50%

100%

1
9
9
6
/9

7

1
9
9
7
/9

8

1
9
9
8
/9

9

1
9
9
9
/0

0

2
0
0
0
/0

1

2
0
0
1
/0

2

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4

2
0
0
4
/0

5

2
0
0
5
/0

6

2
0
0
6
/0

7

2
0
0
7
/0

8

2
0
0
8
/0

9

2
0
0
9
/1

0

%PDL HALTON WIDNES RUNCORN

�
�
-���"#�.�����!�"�����
"#/��������#/#���# ���� �0("�)�*�#� 1�
#"*�"%���#�

�

APPENDIX APage 120



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

<4�

�
���� ����2�%*� �(� (#-� ��,�<4C�&�*%$�#+��,�����%'-�&�$�*�"��' � ��0����,�#�(#&�!��

&�*%$�#�&��'�"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�9!#��',%�*&:�*('&��% ���%��!�*���!� �� ���&��%#�&�
"#�$%����'( %�'(*��%'%���� (#-� �('&� ���"#�"�# %�'�(0�%�$�&�%'��(* �'�*�$�*��,�
&�*%$�#+6��$�#� ���*�'-�#� �#�����('&�% � �%���$%&�' � �( ��(* �'��(��(0�%�$�&��%-��#�
#( ����,�!#��',%�*&�&�*%$�#+��$�#�#�0�' � ���?��#����+�(#�� ��34�4�����,� �����
�% ���,� �������%'-��/"�0 �&� ��0����,�#�(#&�&�#%'-� ���"*('�"�#%�&��#�!�%'-�
"#��� �&� �#��-�� �����#��� #( �-+6�(��%-��"#�"�# %�'�(#���'�-#��',%�*&��% �����

$%&�'0��!(���&�0���' �?��('&��""�'&%/���0�' (%'�('�(�������' ��,� ���
"#�"�# %�'��,��'-�%'-���""*+�,�#�0(� � ��(#%����'�"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�*('&�����%��
�������,� ���%&�' %,%�&���""*+6��'*+��5C�%���'�"#�$%���*+�&�$�*�"�&�*('&�������0��
��  %'-�(��%-��#� (#-� �,�#�!#��',%�*&�&�$�*�"��' ����*&�'� �!��#�(*%� %0��#�
(0�%�$(!*������ �&��**%'-�0�('-��('&� ���"�#,�#�('0��%'�&�*%$�#%'-��'�"#�$%����
&�$�*�"�&�*('&��%**�0�' %'��� ��!����'% �#�&�(''�(**+�('&��%**�%',*��'0�� ���
(**�0( %�'��,��% ���%'�*( �#�������

�
�

 

                                                 
5 HBC (2011) Housing Topic Paper   
6
 GL Hearn and Justin Gardner Consulting (2011) Halton Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

�


��
���-��&�2��3��
�

�

��!������
������
�

����;���*%$�#%'-���� (%'(!*����$�*�"��' �9���6�344?:G�����;�
����%'-�9���6�34�4:�

�

�������/� #��#��
�

�(* �'�����%'-�� #( �-+�3445>34���9���6�3445:G��
�(* �'�� #( �-%0�����%'-��('&��$(%*(!%*% +���������' �34�4=���
9���6�34�4:G��(* �'�����%'-��(��*%'��	�"�# �9���6��''�(**+:�
�(* �'�� #( �-%0�����%'-��(#7� ���������' �9�����(#'�=�H��6�
34��:�

�

�!"�!#�����45#�!�/#��
�

��('&�3�

�

����
"��"�!�#���
�


'$%#�'��' �('&�	�-�'�#( %�'�%'��(* �'�

<�I��*%�( ����('-�� �4�>�����%'-�
?�I�F*��&�	%�7� �3�I���(* ��

�

����45#�!�/#��
�

A�I��('&�J�(*% +� �A�I��#('�"�# �
�

�����!��%#�
�

�������0�'�%&�#�� �%��"�*%0+� ��!��"��% %$��%'���� (%'(!%*% +�
 �#�����* ���-��&�$�*�"��' �%��*%7�*+� ���($��'�-( %$��%�"(0 ��
�'�������'$%#�'��' (*�,(0 �#�� �����0('�!���('(-�&�=�
�% %-( �&��

APPENDIX APage 121



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

� �������	
����
��
�
����		
���
��

������
�
�	����������

�
��� 
�������� ��!�"�#$���%���&�'$"�"��'�&� (���$)� $����)� (����&��� &! �*�� ��

+ &��* (����!� ��,+��-������!�"� ���))�&�%.+$��++�!�"�$�".+ &��!�-(�$-���)�+$ �+�
+�� (! �"$))�&$�*�+$ ��&�/.$&���� +�!�"���-! $��!�����"+�-!��%���� ����(��+.������)�
!'!$�!%������������ ��!�"�$���!� ���(!+�%�-����$�-&�!+$�*���-��+ &!$��"��'�&�
&�-�� ���!&+�#$ (�-���� $�*��&�++.&�+� ��&�"�'������0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�)�&�
(�.+$�*���� �$+� (�&�)�&��$���& !� � ��$"�� $)��%� (�(�#��&�'$+$���)�&���#�
��������� ��!�"�#$���%���� 1�!�"� ��+!)�*.!&"��!�"�)�&�). .&��.+��%��%.+$��++�!�"�
$�".+ &�����'�&� (����!����&$�"�$ �$+��$2���� (! ���'��+��)��-����$-�*&�# (�#$���'!&��
".�� ����&$�"+��)�&�-�++$����-����$-�"�#� .&��!�"�&�-�'�&�1�(�#�'�&�$ �$+� (��
&�����)� (����&��� &! �*�� ����!����+$ $'����)�&� (�����*�&� �&���

�

                                                 
1 Outstanding employment land allocations only includes Halton UDP allocations which have been reassessed and 

found to still be suitable for employment uses through the JELPS (2010). 

�
	����������������������
����� ���������
����������	!��!����"�

�

�������� ��!�"�#$���%���&�'$"�"��'�&� (���$)� $����)� (����&��� &! �*�� ����+.&�� (! �!��
!"�/.! ��+.�����!�"�&!�*���)�+$ �+�!&��!'!$�!%��� �3�

• ��� � (�����"+��)�%� (���#�!�"��0$+ $�*�%.+$��++�+�%���&�'$"$�*�!�&!�*��!�"�-(�$-��
�)�+$ �+1���+.&$�*�!��$�$�.���)�!�4���!&�+.������)��!�"�$+�!'!$�!%���! �!���*$'��� $��5�

• ��'�����!�"�+ &��* (����!� ��,+��-������#$ (�!�����(!+$+������*$+ $-+�!�"�
"$+ &$%. $��1�+-$��-��!�"�($*(6 �-(�$�".+ &$�+5�!�"�

• ��� &$%. �� �#!&"+� (���&$�&$ $�+��)� (����������� ��))�&�$�� (��+.%6&�*$��!���
�
���&�0$�! ����7897:4�(�- !&�+��)��!�"�#$���%���!"��!'!$�!%����'�&� (����&$�"�79�96797;8� ��
)!-$�$ ! �� (��+.+ !$�!%���*&�# (��)��!� ��,+��-��������
�������� ��!�"�+.�����#$���%���!"��
.��)&���!�'!&$� ���)�+�.&-�+1�$�-�."$�*3�

• �$ �+�#($-(�!&��-.&&�� ���!'!$�!%���)�&���������� �.+�3�
o �$ �+�#($-(�%���)$ �)&�����!��$�*���&�$++$����&�!&��.�"�&�-��+ &.- $���)�&�

��������� �.+��
o �$ �+�#($-(�!&��-.&&�� ���!���-! �"��

• �$ �+�#($-(�(!'�� (���� �� $!�� ��-�� &$%. �� ����������� ��!�"�+.����3�
o 	�*���&! $���!�"�&���"���$�*�����& .�$ $�+�#$ ($���0$+ $�*���������� �

!&�!+�
o ��#�+$ ��!���-! $��+�

�
����������#��$�"���#�������������!��"�
����&"�&� ��+�-.&���!� ��,+��-����$-�). .&�1�+$ �+�$���0$+ $�*���������� �.+��! ��!� ��,+�
��-!��
�������� ��&�!+�!�"�	�*$��!��
�������� ��$ �+�#$���%��&� !$��"�!+�+.-(1�.���++�!��
!� �&�! $'��.+��-!��%���&�'��� ��%���)�*&�! �&�%���)$ � �� (����&�.*(� (!��&� !$�$�*� (���!�"�
)�&���������� ��.&��+�+��
�
�����&���+!�+�)�&����6��������� �.+�+�#$ ($���0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�+(�.�"�%��
!--���!�$�"�%��!���0!�$�! $����)� (��#$"�&���������� ��!�"�+$ .! $���$�� (����&�.*(1�
$�-�."$�*�!�-��+$"�&! $����)3�
�

APPENDIX APage 122



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�7�

% "��&��������
�
��7 � �$+�$���& !� � ��%� (��&� �- ��0$+ $�*���������� �+$ �+�!�"� ���!2��).& (�&�

�&�'$+$���)�&���������� �.+�+� ��+�-.&��!�"��0�!�"� (����&�.*(,+��-������$��
). .&����!&+����(��&�/.$&���� �)�&�). .&����������� ��!�"�(!+�%����$�)�&��"�%��!�
2����$�-���)� (���'$"��-��%!+��.�"�&�$��$�*��!� ��,+���<����(��=�$� �
�������� �
�!�"�!�"��&��$+�+�� ."��>=
���?�>79�9?�#!+�.�"�& !2���@�$� ���#$ (�A��#+���1�
��) ���!�"�B�+ ��!�-!+($&����.�-$�+1�!�"�!�!��+�+� (���0$+ $�*���������� ��!�"�
+$ .! $���$�� (��+ ."��!&�!�!�"� (�����"�)�&�).& (�&��!�"� ��%���!"��!'!$�!%���$��
�&"�&� ����� � (�����"+��)� (���-������!�"�"��$'�&��-����$-�*&�# (��'�&� (��
��!��+ ."����&$�"� ��7978��

�
��C �(��+ ."��.+�"����*� �&��!'�&!*�� !2�6.��&! �+�>�!+ � &��"+��)���������� ��!�"�

-����� $��+?� ���&�@�- �)�&#!&"� (���$2����). .&��&�/.$&���� �)�&���������� ��!�"�
���"�$�� (����&�.*(� ��7978�����79D�)��0$%$�$ ��)!- �&�#!+�!�+��$�-�."�"� ��!���#�
)�&�!�-(�$-���)�+$ �+�)�&��� �� $!��$�'�+ �&+����(��=
����+.**�+ �"��!� �����!��)�&�
!��!""$ $��!������87(!��)���������� ��!�"�)�&� (����&$�"�799;67978� ����� �
�&�"$- �"����"+� ��7978����($+�#!+�$��!""$ $��� �� (�� (���$"�� $)$�"�E&�!�$+ $-,�
+.������)���;�:�(!�>!+�! �799;?�&�-�����"$�*� (�&�)�&��!� � !���)��C78�48(!��)�
�!�"�)�&���������� ��.&��+�+�#($-(� (���'$"��-��%!+��+.**�+ +����"�"� ��%��
!'!$�!%����'�&� (����&��� &! �*����!����&$�"����

�
��� �$'��� (! � (��=
����#!+��&�".-�"�.+$�*�!�%!+��"! ���)���&$��799;1�%�)�&�� (��

�))�- +��)� (��-.&&�� ���&$�"��)��-����$-�"�#� .&��&�-�++$���#�&��)�� 1�$ �(!+�
%������-�++!&�� ��!���"� (���&���+�"�&�-�����"�"���������� ��!�"�
&�/.$&���� � �� !2���!--�.� ��)�&�".-�"� !2�6.��&! �+��'�&� (��&�-�++$��!&��
��&$�"��)�"�#� .&�����.&&�� ��+ $�! $��+�+.**�+ � (! � (��-.&&�� ���&$�"��)�
�-����$-�&�-�++$���"�#� .&��$�� (���A�#$���-�� $�.��.� $��79�41�%�)�&�� (��
�-������#$����0��&$��-��+$*�$)$-!� �*&�# (�!+��&$�&� ��799;�7���(��=
����
-��+$"�&�"���������� ��!�"�&�/.$&���� +�)�&� (����&�.*(� ��79781�(�#�'�&�
*$'��� (! � (��+ ."��!"'�-! �"� (��.+���)����*� �&��!'�&!*�� !2�6.��&! �+� ��
�&�"$- �). .&��&�/.$&���� +1�$ � (�&�)�&��)����#�"� (! � (��+!����� (�"�%��!���$�"�
 ��*���&! �� (��!""$ $��!����������� ��!�"�&�/.$&���� �)�&� (����&��� &! �*��
��!����&$�"� ��797;��

�

                                                 
2 REFP (2011) State of the Northwest Economy – A Long-term Forecast for the North West 2010-2030 

(http://www.nwriu.co.uk/pdf/REFP%20Long-term%20Report%20Jan%202011.pdf) splits long term forecasts into 

two periods 2009-2015 to reflect recovery from the recession and 2015-2030 to reflect a return to longer term 

growth trends. 

�
• �����&���+!�+�)�&����6��������� �.+�+�#$ ($���0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�+(�.�"�%��

!--���!�$�"�%��!���0!�$�! $����)� (��#$"�&���������� ��!�"�+$ .! $���$�� (��
��&�.*(1�$�-�."$�*�!�-��+$"�&! $����)3�

•  (���'�&!���+.������)���������� ��!�"�$�� (����&�.*(�>$�-�."$�*�!��.� 1� ���1�
/.!�$ �1�!'!$�!%$�$ ��!�"�+$F���)��&��$+�+?1�$��!--�&"!�-��#$ (� ($+����$-�5�

•  (��&��! $'��+.$ !%$�$ ��!�"�+.+ !$�!%$�$ ���)� (��+$ ��)�&� (����������� �.+�+�!�"�)�&�
 (���&���+�"�!� �&�! $'��.+�5�

•  (����-! $����)� (��+$ ��!�"�$ +�&��! $��+($�� ��� (�&�.+�+5�!�"�

•  (�����"�)�&� (���&���+�"�.+���
�

APPENDIX APage 123



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�C�

��4 �!%���C�%���#�+� +��. � (��&�'$+�"�-!�-.�! $����)�!��!��.!��&�/.$&���� �)�&�
��������� ��!�"1�!++.�$�*�"��!�"�! �;9D��)� (�����*� �&��!'�&!*�� !2�6.��&! �1�
)�&� (����&$�"�)&���79�9679�41� (�&�)�&��*$'$�*�!�+�$*( �����#�&�&�/.$&���� �)�&�
��������� ��!�"� (!��$�-�."�"�#$ ($�� (��=
�����

�
� '����!�"�

���*� �&��!'�&!*�� !2�6.��&! ��>�::;6799;?� ������
�

��( �!������� !��#���!�����&����������"��)��)��*+,+-,,.*+,�-,/�
�

	�".-�"�&! ���)� !2�6.��".&$�*� �� !2��!--�.� ��)�&�-�++$�����&$�"��)�
�-����$-�"�#� .&��>G�;9D?�

���4�8�

	�/.$&���� ��'�&�4���!&���&$�"� 4��;;�
�

��( �!������� !��#���!�����&����������!���0�!��*+,/-,1.
*+*/-*1*�-*2�

�

	! ���)� !2�6.���'�&���+ 6&�-�++$�����&$�"��)��-����$-�"�#� .&�� ������
	�/.$&���� ��'�&��C����!&���&$�"� �4:����;;����
�

�.%6 � !���)��!�"�&�/.$&�"��'�&�79�9H��67974H78�7�H7;�
�

7���947�4�::�
�����������!�( �!���������� ���#�*+3�&��$�4������&����!�������������
��!��#�������5������&�"���"��5!� #5� ���5���������!����

�
*1+6�1*7/6,7�

�


����
�

�. + !�"$�*���������� ��!�"�!���-! $��+�! ���&$��79�9�� �8C�CC�
�$ �+�#$ (���!��$�*���&�$++$���)�&���������� �.+�+�! ���&$��79�9� 7;�C��
�""$ $��!���!�"�!���-! �"�)�&���������� ��.&��+�+�! �
!+ �	.�-�&��> (&�.*(�
���$-������?�

���87�

�������0����4������������������������!���*+,+� *+76*1�
�

��������!���0������������������� ���!" ����� /,6*2/678�
�����������" �����)��5��5��������������������&�!)�!���0�!��5�������
��!����

�

�!�"��&���+�"� ��%��&�*���&! �"�)�&���������� ��.&��+�+�! �B�+ �
	.�-�&��

���99�

����& .�$ $�+�)�&�&���"���$�*�!�"�&�*���&! $����)�+$ �+�#$ ($���0$+ $�*�
��������� �!&�!+� �C9�44�

����������������" !�� "9� 7868//261*�
I��($+�#�.�"�&�/.$&��!����C9�44(!��)�&���"���$�*�!�"�&�*���&! $�������& .�$ $�+�!-&�++��0$+ $�*�
��������� �!&�!+� ��%�� !2���)�&#!&"��
��4���8��� ���!���&������������
������( �!�����"����� ������"�

�
�
��8 �(��-.&&�� �+.�����+$ .! $���$�� !%���C�$�"$-! �+�!��!��!&�� �.�"�&+.������)�

!��&�0$�! ����49�;4�(�- !&�+��)��!�"�)�&���������� ��.&��+�+�����#�'�&1�!+�#����
!+�/.!� $)�$�*� (����������� ��!�"�&�/.$&���� �)�&��!� ����'�&� (����!����&$�"1�
 (��=
����!�+��$"�� $)$�"��� �� $!��!""$ $��+� ���!� ��,+���������� ��!�"�+.����1�
$�-�."$�*�����& .�$ $�+�)�&��!2$�*���&���))$-$�� �.+���)� (���0$+ $�*���������� �
!&�!+�$�� (����&�.*(�����!��+$+��)��&�'$�.+�-����� $��+��)���������� �.+�+�
"����+ &! �+� (! ��'�&� (���!+ �4���!&+1�!��&�0$�! �����9D��)�-����� $��+�#$ ($��
 (����.+��-�!++�+�(!'��%����"��$'�&�"�#$ ($�� (����&�.*(,+��&$�!&$������������ �
!&�!+�C���(�&�)�&��!+��C9�(�- !&�+��)�����& .�$ $�+�(!'��%����$"�� $)$�"�#(�&���!�"�

                                                 
3 Halton’s Primarily Employment Areas as defined in the Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005) Saved Policy 

E3 

APPENDIX APage 124



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

-�.�"�%��.+�"���&���))$-$�� �������0$+ $�*���������� �+$ �+1�$)�!����)� (�+��
&���"���$�*�!�"�&�*���&! $�������& .�$ $�+�!&�� !2���)�&#!&"1� (�&��-�.�"�%��!�
�� �� $!���'�&+.������)���������� ��!�"�$�� (����&�.*(�$ �$+�)�� � (! � (�&��!&�����
$++.�+�#$ (���������� ��!�"�+.�����$�� (����&�.*(����� (�&��'$"��-��%!+��+ ."�1�
 (���$'�&������$ ��	�*$����'�&'$�#�� ."��1�!�+��$�"$-! �"� (! ��'�&� (�����*�&�
 �&�� ��79C�1� (����&�.*(�-�.�"��� �� $!�����0��&$��-��!�+(�& )!���$����������� �
�!�"�+.���������#�'�&1� ($+�!++�++��� �"$"��� � !2��!--�.� ��)� (��!)�&���� $���"�
&���"���$�*�!�"�&�*���&! $�������& .�$ $�+���B(��� (�+��+$ �+�#�&�� !2���$� ��
!--�.� 1� (���'�&'$�#�� ."��-��-�."�"� (! � (�&��#!+�!��.-(���&��%!�!�-�"�
��+$ $����)���������� ��!�"�+.�����!�"�). .&���!�"�&�/.$&���� +��

�
��� ����&"�&� ����+.&�� (! �!��!"�/.! ��+.������)���������� ��!�"�$+�!'!$�!%���)�&�

"�'������� �! �!������� $��1�!��$�$�.���)�!�4���!&�+.������)�+$ �+�+(�.�"�%��
�!$� !$��"����($+��/.! �+� ���7�C4�(�- !&�+��)�+.$ !%���!�"�!'!$�!%����!�"�>.+$�*� (��
���*� �&��!'�&!*�� !2�6.��&! �?������.!��+.&'��+��)���������� ��!�"�!�"���!��$�*�
!���$-! $��+�#$���!���#� (��+.������)���������� ��!�"� ��%��!++�++�"����(�.�"�!�
+(�& )!���$����������� ��!�"�+.�����%��$"�� $)$�"��'�&� (����!����&$�"�>)�&�$�+ !�-��
$)1�&�*���&! $���!�"�&���"���$�*�"���� �-����)�&#!&"�!+���'$+!*�"?1�+$ �+�#$���%��
!���-! �"� (&�.*(�!��$ ������-! $��+�����$���&"�&� ��$�-&�!+�� (���'�&!���+.������)�
�!�"�!'!$�!%���)�&���������� �"�'������� ��

�
�$�"���#�������������!��"�

��; �(�&��!&��!�'!&$� ���)��0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�!-&�++� (����&�.*(�#($-(�-! �&�
)�&� (��"$))�&$�*����"+��)��!� ��,+�%.+$��++�+�!�"�$�".+ &$�+����(����������� �
!&�!+�!&��+�&�!"�!&�.�"� (����&�.*(�!�"�!&��!--�++$%��� �� (��������� (���
���������!�"� �� (��-.+ ���&+� (���+.��������(����&�.*(�-.&&�� ���(!+� #��
��������� �!&�!+��)�&�*$��!��+$*�$)$-!�-��! �C���!�"�! � (��-��%$��"�!&�!��)�
�!&�+%.&���!&2�!�"��!&�+%.&���-$��-��!�"�����'! $����!��.+����(�+��!&�!+�#�&��
$"�� $)$�"�%�� (���B���!+�� &! �*$-�	�*$��!���$ �+� (&�.*(� (����& (�B�+ �
	�*$��!��
-����$-�� &! �*��>7998?�!�"���&��&�-�� ��� (&�.*(�!�&�!++�++��� ��)�
��������� �+$ �+�$�� (��&�*$��4�����+�$ �� (��-(!�*�+�$��*�'�&�!�-��! �&�*$��!��
��'��1�$ �$+�)�� � (! ��!� ��,+�+$ �+�!&��+.))$-$�� ���"�'�����"�!�"�(!'���+ !%�$+(�"�
 (��+��'�+�!+�2����-����$-�"�'������� ���-! $��+�$�� (��&�*$��� ��@.+ $)��&� !$�$�*�
 (�$&� $ ��+��)�&�*$��!����������� �+$ �+����

�
��: �!� ��,+���-!��!�"�&�*$��!���0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�!&�3��
�


�����������������!��"�
�
:����"�

�
� ���!��

• ��&%��	�!"H���&)$��"�	�!"� • �+ ���&���".+ &$!��
+ ! ��

• 
'�&$ ��	�!"� • �!��&��!&2�

• � ��$-(!��,+���".+ &$!��
+ ! �1�
��"*! ��

• ��! (�	�!"���& (�

• ���&��!��1�B$"��+� • �!� ���	�!"�

• B�+ ��!�2� • �!� �����!�

• �!��%!�2���".+ &$!��
+ ! �� • �$-�#�<!&��	�!"�

• B$"��+�B! �&)&�� � • �(����! (�

                                                 
4
 GVA (2011) Housing and Economic Development Evidence Base Overview Study for Liverpool City Region 

Partners 
5 NWDA (2009) Strategic Regional Sites (www.nwda.co.uk/news--events/press-releases/200901/strategic-

regional-sites.aspx) 

APPENDIX APage 125



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�4�

� • �+('$������".+ &$!��
+ ! ��
� • B($ �(�.+����".+ &$!��
+ ! ��!�"�

�&�+ ����&��2�
� • 	�-2+!'!*��>��
����(��&?�
� • 	.�-�&��B! �&)&�� ��-2+�!�"�

��&+����! �#!����& �>��& ��)�
B�+ ��?�

� �
��#���������������������"�

• C��1��$  ���

• �!&�+%.&���-$��-��!�"�����'! $����!��.+�!�"��!&�+%.&���!&2�
�
�
���9 �(��=
����!++�++�"�!����)� (����&�.*(,+��0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+� ��!++�++�

-��+$"�&� (�$&�+.$ !%$�$ ��)�&���������� �.+�+�!�"�$"�� $)��$)� (��!&�!+�-�.�"�%��
.+�"���&���))$-$�� ��������!���-!+�+1� (��+ ."��&�-�����"�"� (! ��!� ��,+��0$+ $�*�
��������� �!&�!+�%��&� !$��"����(��+ ."��#�� ���� ��$"�� $)�� (��$���& !�-���)�
2���$�*� (�+��!&�!+�)�&���������� �.+�+�%�-!.+���)� (�$&�+-���� ��-�� $�.��
�&�'$"$�*���-!����������� �����& .�$ $�+� (&�.*(1�!�"�%����"1� (����&$�"��)� (��
��&��� &! �*�����(��%�.�"!&$�+�!�"��0 �� ��)� (��!%�'����-!��!�"�&�*$��!��
��������� �!&�!+�!�"��)��!�"� ��%���&$�&$ $+�"�)�&�). .&����������� �.+��#$���%��
+� ��. �$�� (���$ ������-! $��+�!�"���'������� ��!�!*���� ���'������� ���!��
��-.��� �>���?1�%. �$�� (��$� �&'��$�*���&$�"1� (���&$�!&$���
�������� ��&�!+�
�� ! $������ (���!� ��������&���+!�+��!��#$���-�� $�.�� ��%��.+�"���<�&� (��
�0$+ $�*���������� �!&�!+�#($-(�)!���#$ ($�� (��A����&�!+��)��(!�*�1���&��
"� !$��"����$-�����). .&��.+�+�!�"� (��%&�!"���-! $����)� (����������� �!&�!+�$+�
+(�#�����"$!*&!�+�#$ ($���!-(��)� (��&���'!� ����$-$�+����+�#$ (� (��� (�&��0$+ $�*�
��������� �!&�!+1� (���&�-$+���0 �� ��)� (�+��!&�!+�#$���%��"�)$��"�$�� (���$ ��
����-! $��+�!�"���'������� ��!�!*���� �������<�&��!&�+%.&���-$��-��!�"�
����'! $����!��.+�!�"��!&�+%.&���!&21����$-�������+(�.�"�%��&�)�&&�"� ��)�&� (��
%�.�"!&$�+��)� (��!&�!+�!���-! �"�)�&���������� �.+��! � (��� &! �*$-��$ ���

�

 
�

	�
����;����:��<��
�

�


��������	������
�

����3����$'�&$�*��.+ !$�!%�����'������� �>���1�7994?5�����3�
��!��$�*�)�&��.+ !$�!%���
-����$-��&�# (�>���1�799:?�

�


������0��������
�

=�$� �
�������� ��!�"�!�"��&��$+�+�� ."��>�
��&�.�1�79�9?1�

-����$-�!�"���.&$+����'������� �� &! �*��)�&��!� ���>���1�
7994?5��
�!� ���
-����$-�	�'$�#�>�
��&�.�1�799;?5���.+$�*�!�"�

-����$-���'������� �
'$"��-���!+���'�&'$�#�� ."��>���1�
79��?��

�

��!���#����4=����0�"�
�

C�!�"����

�

����	!��!����"��
�


�������� 1���!&�$�*�!�"��2$��+�$���!� ��1�
�'$&����� �!�"�
	�*���&! $���$���!� ���

�

����4=����0�"�
�

��J��!�"�K.!�$ �� ���6�
-������

�

���� ������
�

�(�����-��+$"�&+� ($+����$-�� ��%����+$ $'��$��+.+ !$�!%$�$ ��
 �&�+����� (�.*(�"�'������� �$+��$2���� ��(!'����*! $'��$��!- +�
���+������'$&����� !��)!- �&+� (�+��-!��%���!�!*�"�H�
�$ $*! �"��

APPENDIX APage 126



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

� ��������	
��
������	�

	��
�
��� ��������� ��!��"�#����!��$%��&% � %&'#�(���%��%%) ��*���%�+�+,���#�� �%#��%&� #)%�

�*���%�&#'%&-�.#)�% ���!���%��&%���)���������%������% %��&%���#&)��#%&�$%��&% �
!#��#����%�&%(#������#%&�&$�/�0%�#�)���%�&%(#�����$%��&% ��*����$�% �%&���)�
�#'%&+������)� ,&&�,�)#�(� ,01&%(#�����$%��&% �#�$�,)#�(�.�&&#�(���2�����%�%� �
��)���% �%&���	,�$�&����)���!��$%��&%2���%��# ��&#$���!��$%��&%��*�	,�$�&�2�
+&�'#)% ���$�"+�%"%���&/�&��%������������%����)����%�!�&3��*���$���$%��&% ��*�
'�&/#�(� �/�%���)� #4%�+&�'#)%�*�&�)�/����)�/��%%) ������# �#"+�&��������)%*#�%���)�
+&��%$����%�&%��#���#%&�&$�/����%� ,&%��%!�)%'%��+"%���# � %$,&%)���)�*�$, %)�#��
�++&�+&#��%���$��#�� ����%����$%���)� �&%�(��%����%���&�,(�5 �&%��#���**%&�*�&���%�
0%�%*#���*�����&% #)%�� ��

�

�
����������������������������������

�
��%�*����!#�(��#%&�&$�/��*�$%��&% �!#���0%�"�#���#�%)���)�%����$%)�*�&�&%��#����)����%&���!��
$%��&%�, % �6� �)%*#�%)�#�������7�#���&)%&����+&�'#)%��$$%  ������!#)%�&��(%��*� ��+ 2�
%"+��/"%�����)��  �$#��%)� %&'#$% �*�&����� %$�#�� ��*���%�$�"",�#�/��
�
������ ����� 
���� �!��"������� #�� �����
��!���%��&% � �&#�$#+���*�$, �*�&��%!���)�

%����$%)�&%��#����)����%&�
��!��$%��&%��$�#'#�/�!#��#��
�������

��!����
������������
$ �����#� �
� �

�# �&#$���%��&%� ��*�$, �*�&�$��'%�#%�$%2�
��$�����)��#$�%�$�"+�&# ���
��)� %&'#$%�&%��#����)�
�%# ,&%�, % �


"��������!�
����

��$����%��&% � 8�$, �*�&���$���$��'%�#%�$%�
��)� %&'#$%�&%��#����)�
$�"+�%"%���&/�$�"",�#�/�
*�$#�#�#% ��
�
�


"������
� $����'%�,%�
�%%$�!��)�
�&��3����%��
�� ��%*#%�) �
�&%%�!�/�	��)�
��������&��3��
���������)(%��
�������	��)��
��������#%!�	��)�
��������#���(%��
�,&)# ��!��%��&%��
����$%*#%�) �
�#$�����'%�,%�
�&% �����&��3���
	,  %���	��)��
��%��&��(%2��
.#�)"#����#���

��!����
��%9��)%&��&#'%��
�%%$�%& ��
�&���������%��
�#�$�*#%�)�	��)�
8�&�!�&����
���%����3��
���%�	��)��
���()��%�	��)��
�#'%&+����	��)�
���&*#%�)�	��)��
:,%%� ��'%�,%�
.�&&#�(����	��)��
.% �����3�
�
$ ���
���%���&�)%2����%�
�

�
��%���,�)�&#% �*�&�.#)�% ���!���%��&%2���������%����)�	,�$�&����)���!���&%�� �)%*#�%)�#��
�++%�)#9�;<���!���%��&%���,�)�&#% ��
�

                                                 
1 CLG (2009) �����#�(����#$/�����%"%����<������#�(�*�&��, ��#��0�%�
$���"#$��&�!�� 

APPENDIX APage 127



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�=�

��%��#�%�����$��#�� ���)��%'%��+"%�������(%"%�������!#��� %���,����%�*����!#�(-��

• �&#"�&/���)� %$��)�&/�&%��#��*&����(% �*�&���%���!����)��# �&#$���%��&% �

• �&#"�&/����++#�(��&%� �6��� 7�*�&���%���!����)��# �&#$���%��&% �

• �%��#�%)�&%1�++&�# ����*2���)�0�,�)�&#% �*�&���%���$����%��&% �
�
�%!�&%��#���&����%&���!��$%��&%�, % � ��,�)�0%���$��%)�!#��#���&������%�%)(%��*���)%*#�%)�
$%��&%2��++&�+&#��%������%� $��%��*���%�+&�+� �������
�
	%��#����)��%# ,&%���/�+&�+� �� �#��%9$%  ��*�;2>>>� ?"�6(&�  7�&%��#��*���& +�$%�������$��%)�
!#��#����)%*#�%)���!���&��# �&#$���%��&%2��&�����$��%)�#����%���8�!#���0%� ,0@%$����� %?,%��#���
��)�#"+�$���  %  "%�� ���	%��#����)��%# ,&%�+&�+� �� �#��%9$%  ��*�;>>� ?"�6(&�  7�����!#��#���&�
��)%*#�%)�$%��&%2��&�����$��%)�#����%���8�!#���0%� ,0@%$����� %?,%��#����  %  "%����
�))#�#������&�&%+��$%"%���$��'%�#%�$%�&%��#��,�#� �6,+����;�>� ?"��%�;7�!#��#���&�#""%)#��%�/�
�)@�$%��������)%*#�%)���$����%��&%�!#���0%� ,++�&�%)��
�
��%�)%'%��+"%����*��%!�$%��&% �!#���0%�%9+%$�%)����$�� ��#)��%���)�%����$%���%��%�!�&3���)�
�#%&�&$�/��*�$%��&% ���)�������&"���%�'#���#�/���)�'#�0#�#�/��*�%9# �#�(�$%��&% ����%!�&%��#��
)%'%��+"%����*�����++&�+&#��%� $��%����"%%����$����%%)�!#���0%�&%?,#&%)�#����%�*����!#�(�
��$��#�� ���� %&'%���%��%!�&% #)%��#�����)�0, #�%  �+�+,���#�� ���<�

• �+����	�$3 -�

• ���)/"��&�6 %%������
� ��	,�$�&�7�

• ��&% 0,&/��6 %%������
� ��	,�$�&�7�

• 	,�$�&��.��%&*&����6 %%����>�.% ��	,�$�&�7�

• .% �����3�6 %%���A���,���.#)�% 7�
�
��%��#�%�����$��#�� ���)��%'%��+"%�������(%"%�������!#���#)%��#*/� #�% ��&%� �*�&�*,�,&%�
&%��#��)%'%��+"%���#���#�%�!#�����%�$�+�$#�/�#)%��#*#%)�#����%�	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�;>>AB��&�� �
,+)��%)��
�
� ���'%�#%�$%�C�

��"+�&# ������) �
��"+�&# ���

���) �
	%��#��.�&%��, #�(�

6���������) 7���
6	%��#��.�&%��, #�(7�

.#)�% ���!��
�%��&%�

,+�����0�,���
;D2>>>�2B>>� ?"�

6(&�  7�

,+�����0�,��
;�2>>>� ?"�

6(&�  7�

,+�����0�,���A2>>>�
 ?"�6(&�  7E�

��������%����!��
�%��&%�

,+�����0�,��
D2>>>�2>>>� ?"�

6(&�  7�
6�*�%&�;>��7�

,+�����0�,���2�>>�
 ?"�6(&�  7�

�&�,�)�,+�����0�,��
B2>>>DB2>>>� ?"�

6(&�  7�
6�*�%&�;>��7�

	,�$�&����)���!��
�# �&#$���%��&%�

�+�,+�����0�,��
D2>>>B2>>>� ?"�

6(&�  7�

,+�����0�,��
;2;>> ?"�6(&�  7�

11�

E�#�$�,)% �&%+��$%"%���+&�'# #���6�2>>>�"; ?"7�*�&�� ��%/�.�/�	%��#����&3�

�

�
�

                                                                                                                                            
2
 Consistent with provisions of the Sunday Trading Act 1994 

B�����6;>>A7��������	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�
4
 For the purposes capacity calculations for Retail Warehouses, “Bulky Goods” are taken to be 

furniture, floor coverings and household textiles; DIY & decorating goods; major household appliances 

(washing machines, fridges & cookers); large electrical goods (TV, hi-fi, radio, photographic & 

computer equipment); garden products and pet & related products.  

APPENDIX APage 128



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

%"������ �����
�
��; ��%�	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�6;>>A7����3 ���%�)����/����;>;�2�!�#$��!� �

$�� #)%&%)���%��#"#��*�&�&�0, ��+&�@%$�#�� ���)�*�&%$� � �����%�+&%$# %��%'%���*�
*���& +�$%������$���0%� ,++�&�%)�# �)%+%�)����,+������,"0%&��*�*�$��& 2�#�$�,)#�(�
��, %���)�#�$�"% 2�"�&3%�� ��&%���)���%��/+%���)�"#9��*�&%��#��)%'%��+"%�� �
)%�#'%&%)���� � ,$�2���%�+��#$/��$3��!�%)(% ���%�)%(&%%��*�,�$%&��#��/�0/�+&�'#)#�(�
�++&�9#"��%���&(%� ���)��$3��!�%)(#�(��������%�	%��#����,)/�!#����%%)����0%�
&%'# #�%)���)�,+)��%)�),&#�(���%��#*%��*���%���&%���&��%(/��

�
��!����
�����������

��;��B .#)�% ���!���%��&%�$�"+&# % ���%��&%%����3 ��%��&%2���0%&���?,�&%���)���%�
�%!�/��+%�%)�.#)�% ����++#�(���&3�6+�� %��7��&&��(%)��**���%�+%)% �&#��# %)�
$�&%��*���0%&��	��)�C�.#)�% �	��)��������%� �,����#% �� )��6�#"" ��&�  7���)�
��%���&(%�/�'�$����� ��%/�.�/�	%��#����&3�!�#$��# ���%� ,0@%$���*�&%)%'%��+"%���
+&�+� �� �D�����%���,�$#�5 �"�#���)"#�# �&��#'%��%�)?,�&�%& ��&%���$��%)������%�
 �,���!% ���)@�$%������	#'%& #)%�8
�����%(%�6	,�$�&����"+, 7���)����%&�$#'#$���)�
�%# ,&%�*,�$�#�� �����#(���/�$�� �&�#�%)�0/� ,&&�,�)#�(�&% #)%��#���, % ������%���&���
��)�!% �2���)�+&%)�"#���%�/� #�(�%��&��!�� ��&%/ 2���%�$%��&%�$����#� �'%&/��#���%�
#����%�!�/��*��**#$%��&�$�""%&$#����%# ,&%� +�$%�����

�
��B��� .#)�% ��� ��'%&��!#$%���%�&%(#������'%&�(%�+&�+�&�#����*�*���& +�$%�(#'%���'%&����

$��'%�#%�$%�(��) �6;A��F7�!�#$��&%*�%$� �#� �&��%�+&#"�&#�/�$��%&#�(�*�&�!%%3�/��&�
)�/1��1)�/��%%) ���)�# ���&(%�/�),%������%�+&% %�$%��*���&(%�*��) ��&% ����!%'%&2�
��%��,"0%&��*�$��'%�#%�$%�,�#� �# �0%��!���%�&%(#������'%&�(%��#(��#(��#�(����#"#�%)�
+&% %�$%��*�6���1"�&3%�7�#�)%+%�)%����&�)%& �60,�$�%& 2�(&�$%& �%�$�7�#��
$�"+�&# ���������%&���!��$%��&% �#����%���&���.% �������'%& %�/2���%�$%��&%��� �
�� �#(���,�)%&1&%+&% %����#����*�$�"+�&# ���&%��#��*���& +�$%�!#�����%��,"0%&��*�
$�"+�&# ���(��) �,�#� �0%#�(� #(�#*#$����/��0�'%���%�&%(#������'%&�(%����# �+�#�� �
���%9# �#�(�$�"+�&# ���&%��#��+&�'# #���!#��#��.#)�% �0%#�(�+&%)�"#�����/�
�$$�""�)��%)�!#��#�� "����&%��#��,�#� ������!#�������0%����&�$�#'%�������#�����
",��#+�%��&�)%& ����# �# �+�&�#$,��&�/�+&%'��%�������(���%�"�#��.#)�% �	��)�C���0%&��
	��)� +#�%������%�&%)%'%��+"%����*���%�.#�)"#����%��&%�� �.#)�% ����++#�(���&3�
#��;>�>��� ��%�+%)�&%"%)/���%�?,���#���#'%���)�?,��#���#'%�)%*#$#%�$/�#��$�"+�&# ���
(��) �*���& +�$%�+&�'# #���0/�+&�'#)#�(���&(%&�&%��#��*���&+���% �#����%���!��$%��&%�
*�&����#�����",��#+�%�&%��#�%& 2�0,���� �$&%��%)������%&�$%��&%��*��$�#'#�/��!�/�*&�"�
��%� ��++#�(�+&%$#�$����

�
�����D ��%��������	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�#)%��#*#% �$�+�$#�/����;>;��*�&�0%�!%%��D2>>>�

��)���2>>>"; ?"��*��))#�#�������!��$%��&%�&%��#��*���& +�$%2��  ,"#�(���$�� �����
"�&3%�� ��&%���� �.#)�% �$,&&%���/�&%��#� ����/�D>F��*���$���/��&# #�(�$�"+�&# ���
(��) �%9+%�)#�,&%���"�)% ��#"+&�'%"%���#��"�&3%�� ��&%�$�,�)� ,++�&��,+����
;D2>>>"; ?"��*��))#�#�������!��$%��&%�*���& +�$%�0/�;>;�����

�
��� �,�3/�(��) �6&%��#�	%��#��!�&%��, #�(�60,�3/�(��) 7�+&�'# #����� �0%%��*�$, %)����

��%�� ��%/�.�/�	%��#����&3�0,����# � #�%��� ��� ��#� �"�#����$��&�6�G:7������ #�%����
.#)�% �.��%&*&������)�# ���!���%� ,0@%$���*�+&�+� �� �*�&�$�"+&%�%� #'%�
&%)%'%��+"%���*�&����;2>>> ?"�*��) ��&%�����# �!#��� %%���%�)# +��$%"%����*�
�2>>>"; ?"��*�%9# �#�(�*���& +�$%2�!�#$����(%��%&�!#���+&�@%$�%)�$�+�$#�/� ,((% � �
��%���&%���&��%(/���)� ,0 %?,%������ �!#����%%)����"�3%�+&�'# #���*�&�,+����
�A2>>>"; ?"��*��%!�0,�3/�(��) �+&�'# #������%��#�%�����$��#�� ���)��%'%��+"%���

                                                 
5 Application No. 09/0101/OUT Outline application for Class A1 Foodstore (10,885sq.m) with petrol filling 

station and associated parking and servicing facilities. 

APPENDIX APage 129



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�A�

����(%"%���������)�.#)�% ���!���%��&%�����!#����%�+�(,#)%�*,�,&%�
)%'%��+"%����*���%�$%��&%��

�
$ �����#� �

�����= ��������%��!� �)% #(�%)�� �+�&���*�	,�$�&���%!���!�����0%��� %�*�$����#�%)�
��!��$%��&%�*�&�	,�$�&������%�"�#��$%��&%�!� ���%��*���%�%�&�#% ��$�'%&%)�
 ��++#�(�"��� �#����%��H2��&&��(%)��&�,�)���$%��&��� ?,�&%�!#���"��� ��%�)#�(����
*�,&�+%&#+�%&���",��#1 ��&%/�$�&�+�&3 2�%�$��!#������#�3�0&#)(%�+&�'#)#�(�+%)% �&#���
�$$%  ������%�&% #)%��#����&%� �0%/��)����&#(#����/�)% #(�%)���� %&'%���+�+,���#����*�
,+�����>>2>>>2���)�!#������#�*�%9#0�%�0,#���*�&"2���%�$%��&%��� ��%'%&�&%�$�%)�#� �
+��%��#�����)�$,&&%���/� ,**%& �*&�"����#(���%'%���*�'�$��$#% �!#�����%���+�*���&�
�&#(#����/�)% #(�%)�*�&��%# ,&%���)� %&'#$%�, % �����0,��'�$��%)����%�$%��&%�# �*���3%)�
�����%���&�����)�%� ��0/��**#$%�)%'%��+"%�� ���)���%�+��#$%� ���#�����)�
"�(# �&��%5 �$�,&� ��

�
��=��� �))#�#�����&%��#��)%'%��+"%�� ���'%�0%%���))%)�����&#)%���	%��#����&3�6���%��AA> 72�

+&�'#)#�(���&(%�*���&+���%��$$�""�)��#���*�&�&%��#����)��%# ,&%�, % �)#&%$��/��#�3%)�
�����%�"�#��"������)��� ���)1����%�� )�� ,+%& ��&%����� �!#���.#)�% 2�
$��'%�#%�$%�(��) �*���& +�$%�# ��'%&�&%+&% %��%)�#����������%��&%*�%$�#�(���%�
$%��&%5 �+,&%�/���$��# %)�&��%������%�$%��&%�+%&*�&" ��)%?,��%�/����$��'%�#%�$%�
(��) �),%������%�+&% %�$%��*���"�)%&�� ,+%& ��&%2�0,��$,&&%���/�&%��#� ����/�;�F�
�*���$���/��&# #�(�$�"+�&# ���(��) �%9+%�)#�,&%�!#���+�&�#$,��&�/�+��&�
+%&*�&"��$%�#����%�$�&%�(��) ��*�$����#�(�6�;F72�&%$&%��#�����(��) �6;>F7���)�
+%& �����(��) �6�=F7��

�
�����A ��%�	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�#)%��#*#% ����/�"�)% ��$�+�$#�/����;>;���*��&�,�)�

D2>>>"; ?"�*�&��))#�#�����*���& +�$%2���!%'%&��)'# % ��(�#� ������$��#�(� #�% �*�&�
�))#�#�����+&�'# #���#����%� ��&�1�%&"�0%*�&%��))&%  #�(�%9# �#�(�'�$��$#% �#����%�
&%��#��$�&%�����%��#�%�����$��#�� ���)��%'%��+"%�������(%"%���������)��������
�%������!#����%�+�(,#)%�*,�,&%�)%'%��+"%����*���%�$%��&%��

�

"��������!�
����

��A���> 	,�$�&���� ��� %$��)�I��!��$%��&%5����	,�$�&����)���!������&%'#�, �/���%�"�#��
$�""%&$#���$%��&%�*�&���%���!��+&#�&����)% #(���#���� ����%!���!��#���A�����)�
��%� ,0 %?,%���$&%��#����*���������%�2�	,�$�&����)���!����!�*#�) �#� %�*���&(%�/�
*,�*#��#�(���%�&��%��*�����&(%��# �&#$���%��&%2�0,��!#������%����$%)�I$�"+�%"%���&/5�
&��%������������%��� ���$%��&%�*�&� %&'#$%���)��%# ,&%�, % �����$��%&%)�*�&�#��#� �
��&(%&��%#(�0�,&����

�
���>���� �%+�&��%)�*&�"�#� ����,&���$��$�"%����&%� �0/�$���� 2�&�#����)�&��)�#�*&� �&,$�,&%�

��%�$%��&%� �&,((�%)����"�#���#��"�&3%�� ��&%�!#���&% #)%�� �$��� #�(���� ��+����
��������%�2�#��.#)�% ��&�*,&��%&��*#%�)���	%$%���!�&3 ���'%� �,(������&% ��'%�
+&�0�%" �!#��#����%�$%��&%�0/�&%"�'#�(���%�0, !�/2�)%'%��+#�(�"�)%&��&%��#��
,�#� �#�$�,)#�(��� ,+%&"�&3%����)�#"+&�'%)�+�&3#�(�#����%�$%��&���$�&%�����%�
�&#�)�%/��&� ��%��&%�% ��0�# �%)���0� %�*�&����%����$%)��%# ,&%�*,�$�#������% +#�%�
��# 2���%�&%��#��+&�'# #���&%"�#� � $���%&%)���)���)%(&%%��*�$�� ��#)��#�����)�
$��$%��&��#���"�/�0%�&%?,#&%)��

�
�������; ��%�	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�#)%��#*#% �$�+�$#�/�*�&�,+����D2>>>"; ?"��*�"#9%)�

$��'%�#%�$%�C�$�"+�&# ���*���& +�$%����;>;�2�!#�����%�"�#���%%)�0%#�(����+&�'#)%�
�� �&��(%&�$��'%�#%�$%�(��) ��**%&�������&�$���))#�#�����*���*��������%��#�%�
����$��#�� ���)��%'%��+"%�������(%"%���������)�	,�$�&����)���!������!#���
�%�+�(,#)%�*,�,&%�)%'%��+"%����*���%�$%��&%��

�

APPENDIX APage 130



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

D>�

#�� ����������
���;���B ��%&%�# ����%�!�&3��*���$���$%��&% ��$&�  ���%���&�,(�������+&�'#)%�'��,�0�%���$���

 ��++#�(���)� %&'#$%�+&�'# #��������++#�(�+���%&� ���'%�$���(%)� #(�#*#$����/��'%&�
��%�/%�& �!#���+%�+�%��*�%����!�)&#'#�(������$��� ��&% 2� �"%�#"% �� �+�&���*���
�#�3%)��&#+2�#� �%�)��*�!��3#�(���� � ,$�2�$%��&% �������$��%)����"�#��&��) ��&�
�**%&#�(��)%?,��%�+�&3#�(��&%��*�%��+,�������)# �)'����(%������/��*���%���&�,(�5 �
$%��&% 2�+�&�#$,��&�/�#����%��%!���!���%#(�0�,&���) 2��&%���$��%)�#����%��%�&���*�
&% #)%��#����&%� 2���)�!�#� ����'#�(�%9$%��%���+%)% �&#����#�3 � ,**%&�*&�"�+��&�&��)�
�$$%  ���)�"��/��**%&���+��&� ��++#�(�%�'#&��"%��������%��#�%�����$��#�� ���)�
�%'%��+"%�������(%"%�������!#���&%'#%!���%�+&�'# #����*���$���$%��&% ���)� %��
�,��+��#$#% ����+&��%$����)�%����$%���%� �&��(% ���&�"� ��'��,�0�%�$%��&% 2���'#�(�
&%(�&)2�����@, �����&%��#�2�0,��������%&�, % �#�$�,)#�(�$�"",�#�/� %&'#$% ���)�
*�$#�#�#% �����# �"�/�+&% %����++�&�,�#�#% �*�&���%�$�1��$��#����*� %&'#$% ���)�
*�$#�#�#% �!#��#��%9# �#�(�$%��&% ����%� ,&%�"�&%�%**%$�#'%�@�#���, %��*�*�$#�#�#% ��

�
�������� �!���&���������������"����

���B���� ���#�����(,#)��$%��)'# % �������**#$% ���)�$�""%&$#����%# ,&%�)%'%��+"%�� � ��,�)�
0%�$�� #)%&%)���!��$%��&%�, % ���)�)#&%$�%)������!��$%��&%��&�%)(%1�*1$%��&%�
��$��#�� �!�%&%���%/�$���0%� %&'%)�0/���&��(%��*�*�&" ��*��&�� +�&������������� �
�#"#�%)�$�""%&$#����%# ,&%�*�$#�#�#% 2���&(%�/���$��%)�!#��#���&������%�%)(%��*���%�B�
��&%%�"�#��$%��&% 2���)�+&�+� �� �*�&��%!�*�$#�#�#% �!#���0%�)#&%$�%)���� %?,%��#���/�
+&%*%&�0�%� #�% �!#��#���&��)@�$%��������%���!���&�)# �&#$��$%��&% ��

�
�������D �������)�% �������'%��� �&��(���!��$%��&%��**#$%�"�&3%�2�!#����#���%�+&#'��%� %$��&�

+&�'# #���#��.#)�% ���)����/�"#�#"���$�, �%&#�(��*��**#$%�, % ��&�,�)���������%�2�
!�#$���&%�+&%)�"#���%�/��$$,+#%)�0/�+,0�#$� %$��&��(%�$#% �����

�
���D���� ��%�.#)�% �.��%&*&����)%'%��+"%���# � %%3#�(����% ��0�# ������**#$%�"�&3%�����

��%� �,��%� ���*�.#)�% ���!���%��&%���)���# �# � ,++�&�%)�� ���%�"� ��
 %?,%��#���/�+&%*%&�0�%���$��#���#��+��#$/���A<���,���.#)�% ����

�
���= ���	,�$�&����!%'%&2���%��%!���!�����)�, %�"�)%���*�+%&#+�%&���%"+��/"%���

�&%� 2� #(�#*#$����%9������**#$%�+%&"#  #�� ����
� ��	,�$�&��!#�����%��++�&�,�#�/����
$�+#���# %����%9# �#�(�&% %�&$��*�$#�#�#% ����$&%��%����3��!�%)(%�0� %)� $#%�$%�
$�, �%&2�$�"0#�%)�!#�����%��#"#�%)��'�#��0�%����)��&�,�)���%�+&#�$#+���$%��&% �
"%�� ������#��	,�$�&�2�+%&#+�%&����**#$%�%9+�� #���# ��#3%�/����0%�)#&%$�%)����
��&% 0,&/�#���$$�&)��$%�!#�������<�
� ��	,�$�&����

�

 

�

��#'�(��
�)	��
���
�

�

� ���� ���������
�

����<������#�(�*�&��, ��#��0�%�
$���"#$��&�!���6���2�;>>A7�

�

#�� ��	*�!������
�

�������	%��#����)��%# ,&%���,)/�6���2�;>>A7-��
J�#���
"+��/"%������)���)��&%"# % ���,)/�6�
��&�,+2�;>�>7�

�

��� �������+,����*���
�

D�

�

����������������
�


�'#&��"%�����)�	%(%�%&��#���#���������

���K��$$%  #0#�#�/�� ���1�
$���"/�
�

����+,����*���
� �D�K��%# ,&%���)���,&# "� ���K���!���%��&% �
�

����"���-��
�

��# �+��#$/��� �+� #�#'%�0%�%*#� �*�&�0���� �$#�����)�%$���"#$�
$&#�%&#���

APPENDIX APage 131



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

� �������		
��	�
�
�
��� ���������������� !"��#��$$�!%&'����(�!��)�*&���!+��*���!�!,-*.�����$�!"&��#�

&'$!������-�$#�/��0����#,��!,��&�-�,�/�������#�&� �,�&�-���������#��!��*���!��*.�
�&"��$!!���!��*��0�#������1���&�-�!���!��*����#�.��!�����'�&���&�#��&#�&� ���!0�#�
����"&���-�#�0&�*��*�&��!0��&����&�&�#���������&�&!���!��*��#�����-& �+,� �&!���*���
����#�!+������������$��(.�&����#!�*�#����!���&������!�2#���������+��#��, �,���
���0!�3�$�!"&�&�-�&�+!�'����� ����&!����!$$!��,�&�&�#�+!���*���!�!,-*2#���#&����#�
������$��#���&�-���#&-�&+& ����/&!�&"��#&�(���#!,� ���

�

�
���������������

�
�������������������������������

��4 �*��'�&��$,�$!#��!+�����!�2#��������������#&-���&!��&#��!�3��$������!$�������
-�������(�+����+�!'���"��!$'���.�'�&���&�&�-�#�����-& �-�$#�/��0����	,� !�������
1&���#�����#,��!,��&�-�#�����'���#�������  !���� ��0&�*���45��,#��&��/���
��"��!$'������&� &$��#.�&��$�!�� �#��-�&�#��,�0������,�/���#$��0�.������&�� �#�
��"��!$'�����!�/,&���,$�����#�0*����&�� ����##&#��&��,�/�����-������&!������/��!+�
/���+&���!��%&#�&�-� !'',�&�&�#����

�
��6 �&"����*���1&���#�$��"&!,#�(�+����0&�*&���*�� !,��(�!+���� �#*&��.�70&�*�������

 *��-�#���#&-���&�-�#,��!,��&�-��,�*!�&�&�#��#��*�� !,��(�!+����#�(#&��8�����
	,� !���0&�*&���*�#*&��.������������/!,����&�#�0����+&�#���#��/�&#*����*�!,-*�
#�$������$�! �##�#�&���&++�������!,��(����, �,�������#�����*�� ,�����������!+�
������������!��*�!+��!,���1&���#�0�#�#���!,��&���*�����#�(#&������, �,��������
+�!'���9������#&� ���*����*�����#�(#&���������������,/:� ���! ��������7��;68������
�*�#*&��.�/�!�������#�!+�����������������0����+&�#����#&-�������#�$����!+��*����9��

                                            
1 CLG (2001) Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts 

�
�����������������������

�
�*��-��������%�����!+��*�������������#,��!,��&�-�����!�.�/�!���(�+!��!0&�-��*���&���!+��*��/,&���
,$�������#�&��& �����!���*��<�(��&�-��'.������#���+&����!���*����!$!#��#���$.�0&�����'�&��
���-��(�,� *��-���!"����*��&�&�&���$����$��&!�����*&#�&#�0&�*��*���% �$�&!��!+��*��������!��*����#��
!+��&"��$!!��=!*������!���&�$!���0*������������!+�#��� *�&#�&����&+&���0&�*&��0*& *�'&�!��
�������&!�#�����#,$$!����.�0&���/�� !�#&�������#�$����!+�������! ��&!�#�����&���  !���� ��0&�*�
���9����
�
��$���&����������������"&�0�'�(�/���� �##��(��,�&�-��*��$����$��&!���!���#,�����#,++& &����
!�-!&�-�#,$$�(�!+����&"���/�����"��!$'����������!�'�����*����>,&��'���#�!+��*���!�!,-*2#�
#�$������ !'',�&�&�#��#�#���!,��&�����.���6�������?�����(���"&�0�&#��&3��(��!�+! ,#�!���*��
������������!��*�!+��*��	&"������#�(��/���&'&�����!�'���&�-��*��&����&+&�������#�!+�1&���#�@�
���������0&��0!,���/��,������3����#�$����&��#,$$!���!+���#,/#�>,�����&������! ��&!�#������
��"��!$'��������-�'�����������*����"��!$'����!+���(�����������#���+�!'��*�������������
0&���/��$*�#����!0���#��*���������$����!+��*��$����$��&!��&���&���0&�*��*��$�&!�&�&#��&!��!+�,�/���
����0����#�#���!,��&�������
�
�'����# ������"��!$'�����'!,��&�-��!�'&�!��&�+&��&�-�0&�*&���*��A0�#*���!"��2�������������
#�����'���#�!+�����#/,�(.��!!����������#�!��!���*���&���'�(�/��$��'&�����0*����&�� ���/��
#*!0���!�/���� �##��(��!�'����&����&+&����! �������#��
�

APPENDIX APage 132



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�4�

���, �,�����������*���%�����!+��*������������������#,��!,��&�-�	,� !���0�#��*���
�'/������&���*������!���! ��������&�����B������� !�+&�'���&���*����&���(�
��"��!$'���������!+�4CC������

�
��? 	�-&!�����$��&���������-(�+!���*���!��*�1�#��7�!�& (�	�D?8�#$� &+&����*����*����

0�#��!������+!����(��% �$�&!����#,/#����&���#�����-& � *��-���!������������0&�*&��
�*�#*&��.������������ *�#���.���� �#*&���!�����#�(#&���/�+!���4C��.�/,���*���
�! �����"��!$'����D��'�0!�3#�'�(�$�!"&���+!������&���� *��-�#�&�������������
/!,����&�#��!��  !''!������*���%$��#&!��!+���� *�#���������&"��$!!��=!*��
����!���&�$!��#��

�
��?�����������*������!������# �$���*��� �����##�##'���4�+! ,#���&�#��##�##'����!+��*��

�!�!,-*2#�����# �$��!������������������#,��!,��&�-��*��,�/����������*��
�##�##'���� ���-!�&#����*���*����'�&������#�!+������������&���*���!�!,-*��#�
*�"&�-��&#�&� �&"������# �$�� *��� ���&#�& #�����'������ !''�����&!�#�&�����'#�!+�
*!0��*�#������#�#*!,���/��'���-��.�0*& *�0&���/����3���+!�0����&���  !���� ��
0&�*��*���$$�!� *�#���!,��&����4C5����,���������&#�!�& �
�"&�!�'�������*��
����# �$�� *��� ���&#�& #�!+��*���*����'�&������#�!+���������������5�

•������*!�������D��'�����

•�!��*�1&���#�D��'�����

•����#/,�(�����#�!���
# ��$'����@����#�!��!���*���&������,���&�-�
� �!#���
D��'�����

�
��� ���&!�����!�& (�+!������������#�&#�#���!,��&�������&�-��!�& (��,&��� ��4�7���48�

0*& *�����&�#��*��&'$!���� ��!+�����������#�����*!0��*�(� ��� !���&/,����!�
� *&�"&�-�#,#��&��/�����"��!$'���������,�����&��#��*��&'$!���� ��!+��*��!$����##�
!+����������������������*���!����*�������������� ���$��(�&�������'&�&�-�$������#�!+�
��"��!$'���������#,/)��-&!����������-&!����# �������*��'�&���&'�!+�#$� &+& �������
�����$!�& (�&#��!�$��#��"���*�� !,���(#&���#,��!,��&�-��!0�#����� &�&�#�+�!'�
��"��!$'����0*& *�0!,���/��/�������  !''!������0&�*&��,�/�������#������
&����&+&�#�+&"��$,�$!#�#�+!��&� �,�&�-������&���*������������E��8��!� *� 3�
,���#��& ����#$��0��!+�/,&��),$�����#.�48��!�$��"������&-*/!,�&�-��!0�#�+�!'�
'��-&�-�&��!�!�����!�*��.�68��!��##&#��&��#�+�-,���&�-� !,���(#&���+�!'�
�� �!� *'���.�?8��!�$��#��"���*��#���&�-�����#$� &��� *��� ����!+�*&#�!�& ��!0�#.�
�����8��!��##&#��&��,�/�����-������&!�.�/(��� !,��-&�-��*���� ( �&�-�!+������& �������
!�*���,�/���������'�&�������+,��*���#����#��*���!� ���*��-��������%�����!+��*��������
�����*�#�/�����$$�!"��.�&��#*!,���!��(�/����������&���% �$�&!���� &� ,'#��� �#����

�
��B �*������!������# �$���*��� �����##�##'���6�&� �,����0&�*&��&�#��##�##'����!+��*��

�!�!,-*2#�����# �$�.�����������������#,��!,��&�-��*��,�/����������*���##�##'����
 ���-!�&#����*���*����'�&������#�!+������������&���*���!�!,-*��#�*�"&�-��&#�&� �&"��
����# �$�� *��� ���&#�& #�����'������ !''�����&!�#�&�����'#�!+�*!0��*�#������#�
#*!,���/��'���-��.�0*& *�0&���/����3���+!�0����&���  !���� ��0&�*��*���$$�!� *�
#���!,��&����4C5����,���������&#�!�& �
�"&�!�'����(unless doing so conflicts with 

other key objectives of the Core Strategy)����*������# �$�� *��� ���&#�& #�!+��*��
�*����'�&������#�!+���������������5�

• ������*!�������D��'�����

• �!��*�1&���#�D��'�����

• ����#/,�(�����#�!���
# ��$'����@����#�!��!���*���&������,���&�-�
� �!#���
D��'�����

                                            
2 TEP (2009) Halton Landscape Character Assessment 
3 TEP (2009) Halton Landscape Character Assessment 

APPENDIX APage 133



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�6�

�
 �!����"����#��$���%���������&��$���'!���(����)���

��B����������������&���-��&#�&�#���0&�*&���*������������.�'���&�-��*���,��&3���*��!�*���"&���-�#�&��
�*���!�!,-*.������������$!�& (��!�#��!���$$�(�0&�*&���*��#�����'����/!,����(���
��+&�����"��!$'����0&�*&���*��"&���-��0&���/��"&�0����#��$$�!$�&����0*����&��0!,���
��*�� ���*�� *��� ����!+��*��"&���-���

�
��9 ���&!����$����&�-�$!�& (����!0#�+!���&'&������"��!$'����0&�*&��"&���-�#�0*& *�����

A0�#*���!"��2�/(����������������#&-���&!������� ����&��&�#��� �#.�#'����# ����
��"��!$'����'�(�/���� �##��(��!�'�&���&��!����*�� ���*��#,#��&��/&�&�(�!+��,����
 !'',�&�&�#.�#, *��#�+!���*��$�!"&#&!��!+�"&���-��#��"& �#�!��+!���++!���/���*!,#&�-���
��(�$�!$!#��#�+!��#, *���"��!$'����0&�*&������!�2#������������"&���-�#�0!,���
������!���'!�#������#$� &+& ��! �������.�#, *��#�����>,&��'����+!���++!���/���
*!,#&�-��

�
��; ������&���-��&#�&�#���0&�*&���*������������.�'���&�-��*���,��&3���*��!�*���"&���-�#�&��

�*���!�!,-*.������������$!�& (��!�#��!���$$�(�0&�*&���*��#�����'����/!,����(���
��+&�����"��!$'����0&�*&���*��"&���-��0&���/��"&�0����#��$$�!$�&����0*����&��0!,���
��*�� ���*�� *��� ����!+��*��"&���-���

�
����������
���������������������!��#�

��� ���4C�C.���#�,�(�0�#�,������3���� �!##��*���&"��$!!���&�(�	�-&!��7��	8�&����#$� ��
!+� �!##)/!,����(��'$�!('��������*!,#&�-��������"��!$'����&##,�#�?���*���&'�!+�
�*��#�,�(�0�#��!������'&���0*��*���&+��*����0���������#,$$�(�&##,�#�&��&��&"&�,���
�,�*!�&�&�#.�����0*��*����*��,�'�����"��!$'��������#�!+�!�������� !,���
���#!��/�(�/��'���0&�*&���*��,�/����%����#�!+�!�*����,�*!�&�&�#�0&�*&���*��#,/)
��-&!�.��"!&�&�-��*�������+!����#�����-& ���"&�0�!+��*����������������*&#�
'��-&�-�
+&��&�-#� !� �,��#�&��& �����*������$��#���.�&�������&!���!�*!,#&�-������#,$$�(��*����
&#��!������+!����#�����-& ���"&�0�!+������������� �!##��*���*�����&#��& �#�
 !'$�&#&�-��*��&���*����	�
�#������!,#&�-����3��������7 !�#&#�&�-�!+�����!�.����
�����#�����1���&�-�!�8.��*!,-*����,'/���!+�!,����&-*/!,�#&�-��,�*!�&�&�#�&���*��
�!��*�����!,#&�-����3�������������'/��3&�-�!����"&�0#�����������&!���!�
�'$�!('���������#,$$�(.�0*&�#���*��#�,�(�+!,����*�����!�/����$!����&���#*!��+����&��
����!�2#�#,$$�(�&���*��'��&,'��!��!�-����'�7�!�4C6�8.��*&#��&���!����3��&��!�
�  !,����*����'!����&�-�������-������&!��!$$!��,�&�&�#�*&-*�&-*�����*!,-*��*��
=
�����,�(��������+�������!�&����?����+��*�#��#&��#�������3���&��!��  !,��.��*��#�,�(�
�� !-�&#����*����&#���', *�'!���/���� ���$!#&�&!��&���*���!�-������'��

�
���C �*��#�,�(� !�#&�����������#,$$�(�0&�*&���! ����,�*!�&�&�#��#���0*!��������&���!��

�!!3�����*�����>,� (�!+�#,$$�(��!�'����+,�,�������#�&��#$� &+& �#�$������
 !'',�&�&�#�0&�*&�����&��&"&�,����,�*!�&�(2#�������

�
������� �*���,�����������#,$$�(�$!#&�&!���#�����&����&�����5�����!�2#��$��&���������-(�����

&���*���"&��� ��/�#���  !'$��(&�-��*���!���������-(B�&��& ���#��*���!"����������!��
*�#�������>,����#,$$�(�!+�������!�'�������& &$�������"��!$'��������#�!"����*��
$����$��&!��+!��/!�*�*!,#&�-������'$�!('����$,�$!#�#.�*!0�"��.��*&#��##�##'����
!+��*��0*!����!�!,-*�'�#3#���'&#'�� *�&��#,$$�(��!��*�����#!,�*�!+��*���&"����

�

                                            
4 GVA Grimley (20102011) Housing and Economic Development Evidence Base Overview Study for Liverpool 

City Region Partners 
5 BE Group (2010) Joint Employment Land and Premises Study 
6 HBC (2011) Housing Topic Paper 

APPENDIX APage 134



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�?�

���4 	,� !���*�#�#,++& &����&����&+&���������!�'����&�#����& &$�����*!,#&�-�����#�0&�*��*��
#,$$�(�!+������+!���'$�!('����$,�$!#�#�#,++& &����&���*��#*!������'�0&�*�
����"��!$'����!$$!��,�&�&�#�0&�*&���%&#�&�-�$�!�� �����'$�!('��������#��&3��(�
�%$� �����!�/!�#�����!�-����'�#,$$�(����

�
���6 1&���#�@������ ,������(�*�"��#,++& &����&����&+&��������7���4C�C8��!�'�����*�&��

���& &$�����*!,#&�-���"��!$'��������#9�+!����!,���;�(���#&���*��$��&!��,$��!�
4C44;�0&�*���$!����&���#*!��+����!+�#,$$�(�!+���!,���BCC�,�&�#��!�4C4;.�7#���
�$$���&%��E��!�&�!���&����*���8�0&�*������+!���'$�!('����$,�$!#�#�#,++& &����&��
���'#�!+�!"������#,$$�(�+!���*��$����$��&!��/,���&'&����&�����'#�!+����-������>,��&�(���
�*�#���&'&���&!�#�&���*�����-��!+��'$�!('����#&��#��"�&��/���0&�*&��1&���#�
�!-��*���0&�*�$!����&��� !���'&���&!��&##,�#��&'&���*��# !$���!������! ����
�'$�!('���������+!����#&����&���$,�$!#�#�����*���+!������4C�C.�1&���#�@������*���
��$!����&���#*!���-��!+�&����&+&��������+!����#&����&�����"��!$'����&���*����-&!��!+�
��!,���4C�����7&����BCC�,�&�#����&"�������������#&�(�!+�6C��$*8����

�
���? �*���!���������-(�#��3#��!���#,�����#,++& &����!�-!&�-�#,$$�(�!+���"��!$'���������

�!�'�����*������#�!+�����!�2#�&��&"&�,��� !'',�&�&�#����!�& &�#���6�������?���+&���
A����������2�#,$$�(��#��>,��&�-��!���(���#�����*��$��"�&�&�-�$!�& (����-��7#8�������(#&#�!+�
�*��$!#&�&!��&��4C�C�#*!0����*���1&���#�@����������+!�� �#���!�/���/����!�
��'!�#����������(����#,$$�(�+!����#&����&�����"��!$'����&���� *�(����,��&��4C�;�
/�#���!�� ,������/,&�������#���	,� !���&#�+!�� �#���!�*�"��&���% �##�!+�����(����
#,$$�(�+!����#&����&�����"��!$'�����*�!,-*!,���*��$����$��&!�����

�
���� �*��-�#��!�/,&���������##,'$�&!�#�7��"&�0������,���(8�������0.�$��"&!,#�(�

,�&����&+&���!��,��"�&��/���A0&��+���2�#&��#�*�"���*��$!����&����!�/!!#��#,$$�(.�
$!##&/�(������##&�-��*��'&�!��#*!��+�������4C�C.���-��&�-��*�������+!��#$� &+& �$!�& (�
&����"���&!��&� �,�&�-��������������"&�0�������##�##'����!+�0&��+��������#�&#�
 !���&����0&�*&���*��2�!,#&�-��!$& ���$��2�$�$�����

�
���B �*�������#,$$�(�������'����#&�,��&!��� �!##�����!�2#� !'',�&�&�#�0&���/��3�$��

,�������-,������"&�0��*�!,-*�0&�*����,���'!�&�!�&�-��!���#,����� !��&�,&�-���(����
#,$$�(�!+���"��!$�/��������&���&���0&�*��!�& &�#���6�������?�����+��*��#&�,��&!����&#�#�
0*�����*���"�&��/&�&�(�!+����&"���/��������+!����"��!$'����+���#�/��!0��  �$��/���
��"��#.���&��&#��$$�������*������!�-!&�-���(����#,$$�(�!+���"��!$'���������+�!'�
0&�*&���*���%&#�&�-�,�/����%����#� ���!��/��&����&+&���+!���*��#,/#�>,�����*����
(���#�������������&"��#!�,�&!�#������!��+!��* !'&�-.����������������"&�0�'�(�
/�0&���/����&--������!�&�+!�'��*�� !������!+���#,/#�>,�����&������! ��&!�#������!��
�!���#,����*��+,�,���$�!#$��&�(�!+��*���!�!,-*������*��0&����#,/)��-&!���������
#,$$�(�&�+!�'��&!�����4C�C�#,--�#���*&#�'�(�/���� �##��(���!,���4C����

�
��������������������������������!��#�

���9 ���4�#����#��*��������������/!,����&�#�#*!,���*�"������-����!+�$��'���� ������
#*!,������,���/�(!����*���&'�+��'��!+��!�'�����"��!$'����$���#����#�#, *.���(�
��(���"&�0�!+�����������������/!,����&�#��#�'�(�/���� �##��(��,�&�-��*���&+��!+�
�*&#��!���������-(�0!,���������!���!!3�/�(!���4C4;.������##&�-��!��!��(���(�
#*!��+����&����"��!$'����������!�4C4;�/,����#!���3&�-�&��!��  !,���+!��#���/���
��"��!$'������>,&��'���#�/�(!����*&#�$��&!�����#�#, *.�&��&#��!��$!##&/�������*&#�

                                            
7 DCA GL Hearn / JG Consulting  (2006 2011) Halton Mid-Mersey Strategic Housing Needs and Market 

Assessment Survey 
8 HBC (2010) Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2010/11 
9 HBC (2011) Housing Topic Paper 

APPENDIX APage 135



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�&'���!�&����&+(��*���!����>,���,'�!+������$!����&���(��++� ����/(���(���"&�0��#��*&#�
0&���/��&�+�,�� ���/(��*����-����!+���(�#*!��+���������*���&'&�-�!+��*����"&�0��

�
���; ��(���"&�0�0&����0&���/��,������3����#�$����!+���#,/#�>,�����&������! ��&!�#�����

��"��!$'��������-�'������������/�� !��, ����&�� !�#,����&!��0&�*�
��&-*/!,�&�-��,�*!�&�&�#.��7$���& ,����(���������#.������1���&�-�!�.��&"��$!!������
<�!0#��(�8��!���#,����*����� !!��&����������#�����-& ��$$�!� *�&#���3�������(�
��#,������ *��-�#��!��*�������������/!,����(�0&���/����� ����&����#,/#�>,�����&���
���! ��&!�#������

�
�

�

�

�'�%�*�+�,-	&'�.��
�

�


���������������
�

���45�����������#�7���.������$������4CC�8�

�

������	!��������
�

����!������# �$���*��� �����##�##'����7���.�4CC�8E��
�&�����#�(�������-& ��!,#&�-����3����##�##'����7���������
����=,#�&�����������!�#,��&�-.�4C�C4C��8E�����!���!,#&�-�
����#���,�(�7���.�4CCB8E�������-& ��!,#&�-�������"�&��/&�&�(�
�##�##'����7���.�4C�C8E��!,#&�-�����
 !�!'& ���"��!$'����

"&��� ����#���"��"&�0���,�(�+!���&"��$!!���&�(�	�-&!��
�������#�7���.�4C�C8E�=!&���
'$�!('����������������'&#�#�
��,�(�7�
���!,$.�4C�C8�

�

������)���'/0����!���
�

4������C�

�

����������������
�


�"&�!�'��������	�-������&!��&������!��

��F��,��,�������&��-�� �C�F��!,#&�-�
4�F��&!�&"��#&�(�� �?�F�
 !�!'(�

�

�,�'/0����!���
�

9�F������G,��&�(� �
�

�,�'����"��
�

�"�����.��*&#�$!�& (�*&-*�&-*�#��*��&'$!���� ��!+�$�!�� �&�-�
����������������!"����*��$����$��&!����*&#�0&���*�"����$!#&�&"��
&'$� ��!���*������"�������!/:� �&"�#��

APPENDIX APage 136



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� ������	
���
���
������������	�
�

���� ������������ !������" #���$%&&!'�"��(� ��)!��� !��$%&��!�*�'�%&'����!&���!�� %��
�%$��&#��*&+�%����,���!�*��-�� �%������*%�!�%&'��+�%� *" �.�%$*�/0�*��*��!��!&�*%$����
'!$*)!��&!,!��%�/�*1���)!1!&������� !������" #��!2*��*&"�*&+�%����,���!�%&'����
���)*'!�&!(�*&+�%����,���!�%-$!����%,,�11�'%�!�� !�&!!'���+��%$��&#��
,�11�&*�*!����

��������������
�

���3 �&�*&�!"�%$��%����+�� !����!����%�!"/�*�����!&���!�� %��'!)!$��1!&��������%$��%�!�
�������!'�-/�� !��*1!$/����)*�*�&��+�%&�%������*%�!�$!)!$��+�*&+�%����,���!�
*&,$�'*&"4�
o ��%&������*&+�%����,���!���, �%����%'�0��%*$(%/�0���-$*,���%&�����0�%&'�,/,$*&"�

%&'�(%$5*&"�����!�6��
o � /�*,%$�%&'�!&)*��&1!&�%$�*&+�%����,���!���, �%��(%�!������$/�%&'�

��!%�1!&�0�%&'�!&!�"/�����$/6�
o "�!!&�*&+�%����,���!���, �%����-$*,�"�!!&��%,!�6�
o ��,*%$�*&+�%����,���!�*&,$�'*&"�,�11�&*�/��!�)*,!��%&'�+%,*$*�*!�6�%&'0�
o '*"*�%$�*&+�%����,���!���, �%��*&�!�&!������$/���

�

���7 ���!&���!�� %��� !������" #��*&+�%����,���!�&!!'��%�!�1!�0�%$$�&!(�'!)!$��1!&��
� ��$'�-!�$�,%�!'�*&�� !�1��������%*&%-$!�$�,%�*�&�0�( *, �%�!��!�)!'�-/�!2*��*&"�
*&+�%����,���!�� !�!+��!�,�&��*-��*&"����� !�%, *!)!1!&���+�� !��-8!,�*)!���+�
����%*&%-$!�'!)!$��1!&��*&�%,,��'%&,!�(*� ���34�����%*&%-$!��!)!$��1!&��
��*&,*�$!�����(!)!�0�&!(�'!)!$��1!&��(*$$�1%5!�'!1%&'���&�!2*��*&"�
*&+�%����,���!��� *��(*$$�!��!,*%$$/�-!�� !�,%�!�*&�� !������" #��9!/���!%���+�

                                                 
1 Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

�
������������������������� ����!������

�
�!)!$��1!&��� ��$'�-!�$�,%�!'����1%2*1*�!�� !�-!&!+*���+�!2*��*&"�*&+�%����,���!�%&'����
1*&*1*�!�� !�&!!'�+���&!(����)*�*�&��
�
: !�!�&!(�'!)!$��1!&��,�!%�!�����!2%,!�-%�!��'!+*,*!&,*!��*&�*&+�%����,���!�*��(*$$�-!�
�!.�*�!'����!&���!�� ��!�'!+*,*!&,*!�����$���!��%�!�,�1�!&�%�!'�+��0�%'!.�%�!$/�1*�*"%�!'����
��-��*���!'�-!+��!�'!)!$��1!&��*��-!"�&�����,,��*!'����&�$%�"!��'!)!$��1!&���� %��(*$$�-!�
,�1�$!�!'�*&�� %�!������)!��%�&�1-!���+�/!%��0�%&�%"�!!'�'!$*)!�/��, !'�$!��+�*&+�%����,���!�
(��5��1%/�-!�%������*%�!���: !�!�*&+�%����,���!����)*�*�&�*��&���1%'!�'*�!,�$/�-/�� !�
'!)!$��!�0�,�&��*-��*�&��1%/�-!��!,��!'�-/�%&�%"�!!1!&���&'!����!,�*�&�����+�� !��,���
*&,$�'*&"�( !�!�%������*%�!�)*%�%�� %�!'��%/1!&���, !'�$!��
�
� !����&,*$�(*$$�,�&�*&�!����(��5�(*� �*&+�%����,���!�;��!�)*,!����)*'!������'!)!$�����'%�!�
� !��&+�%����,���!��$%&0�( *, �1%/�+��1�� !�-%�*���+�%�, %�"*&"��, !'�$!������������(*'!��
*&+�%����,���!��!.�*�!1!&���%,������ !������" ����, �%�, %�"*&"��!"*1!�(��$'�&!,!��*�%�!�
� !�*&���'�,�*�&��+�%���11�&*�/��&+�%����,���!��!)/�+����%$��&����%�!"*,�*&+�%����,���!��%�*++�
( !�!�,�&��*-��*�&��(*$$�-!����" ��+��1�%$$�%��$*,%-$!�'!)!$��1!&�������������*&+�%����,���!�
���)*�*�&�%,������ !������" ��� !�'!�%*$���+���, �%&�%����%, �(*$$�-!��!������*&�%������*%�!�
��<�'�,�1!&����� !��!)!$��!����&��*-��*�&�������
�

APPENDIX APage 137



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�=�

� %&"!�( !�!�� !�$!)!$��+�"��(� �%&�*,*�%�!'�(*$$�,�!%�!�� !�&!!'�+���%''*�*�&%$�
*&+�%����,���!��

�

���> ���%��*���� !�'!$*)!�/��+�*&+�%����,���!�&!!'��%,������ !������" �%&'����!&���!�
� %��� !�'!)!$��1!&��*��%,,!��%-$!�*&��$%&&*&"��!�1�0�'!)!$��!���(*$$�-!�!2�!,�!'�
������)*'!��&�����++��*�!�*&+�%����,���!0����*+�� *��*��&�������*-$!0�,�&��*-��*�&��
��(%�'��%&/�&!,!��%�/�*1���)!1!&����� !�,�1�$%�*)!�!++!,����+�%�&�1-!���+�
'!)!$��1!&���� ��$'�%$���-!��%5!&�*&���%,,��&�0����+%��%��8�*&��,�&��*-��*�&�����
$%�"!���++?�*�!�*&+�%����,���!�1%/�-!��!.�*�!'�3��&���, �,*�,�1��%&,!��'!)!$��!��
,�&��*-��*�&�����%��%�*++�-%�!'�%����%, �(*$$�-!���!'�����!,��!�+�&'�����(��5��+���
!��!&�*%$�!$!1!&����+��, !1!��( !�!��&�����++��*�!����)*�*�&�*&�5*&'�*��&���
+��� ,�1*&"����&�$%�"!��'!)!$��1!&���*�!��( !�!�� !�!�%�!�1�$�*�$!�$%&'�
�(&!�� *�����, �%��� !������" #��9!/���!%���+�� %&"!0�� !����&,*$�1%/��!!5�
� %�!'��%/1!&���+��1�$%&'�(&!������,�&��*-��!���(%�'��*&+�%����,���!�( *, �(*$$�
�!�)!�� !�( �$!��+�� !�%�!%��� !��&+�%����,���!��$%&7�%,,�1�%&/*&"�� !����!�
���%�!"/����$*&!���!.�*�!'�*&+�%����,���!�*&�� !������" #��9!/���!%���+�� %&"!�%&'�
�!�������( !�!�,�&��*-��*�&��+��1�%�)%�*!�/��+��%��*!��1%/�-!��!.�*�!'���� !�%-*$*�/�
�+�%&�*&'*)*'�%$�'!)!$��1!&�����'!$*)!��� !��!.�*�!'�$!)!$��+�,�&��*-��*�&�����'*�!,��
���)*�*�&��+�*&+�%����,���!�(*$$�-!�'!�!�1*&!'�-/�� !�!++!,��� *��1%/� %)!��&�� !�
!,�&�1*,�)*%-*$*�/��+�� !�'!)!$��1!&��,�&,!�&!'��: !�!�� !��,%$!��+�
*&+�%����,���!����,�&��*-��*�&���!.�*�!'�*��'!!1!'���� %)!�%�&!"%�*)!�*1�%,���&�
� !��)!�%$$�)*%-*$*�/��+�%�'!)!$��1!&�0�� !����&,*$�(*$$��!.�*�!�!)*'!&,!����-!�
��-1*��!'����'!1�&���%�!�� *����&���, �*&��%&,!�0�� !�,�&��*-��*�&���(%�'��
*&+�%����,���!����)*�*�&�(*$$�-!��!?!2%1*&!'���

�
���� ���*���!,�"&*�!'�� %���%�����+�� !� *" (%/�&!�(��5�*&��%$��&�%�!����,!��*-$!����

,�&"!��*�&�%&'�� !�����8�&,�*�&��*&��%��*,�$%��%�!�5&�(&����-!��&'!�����!����
� !�!+��!�*��*���%��*,�$%�$/�,��,*%$�� %��� !��!�+��1%&,!��+�� !����%�!"*,�	�%'�
�!�(��5�*���%+!"�%�'!'�*&���'!��� %��*��,%&�,�&�*&�!�������)*'!�+���� !����%�!"*,�
1�)!1!&���+��!��$!�%&'�"��'��%&'���������� !�!,�&�1*,�%��*�%�*�&���+�� !�
�!"*�&���: *$���� !����%�!"/�%*1������!'�,!�,�&"!��*�&�%&'�*&,�!%�!�����%*&%-$!�
%,,!��*-*$*�/�%&'�%,,!������� !�1����(%/0�� !�+�$$�!2�!&���+�������!'�'!)!$��1!&��
�&�,�&"!��*�&�$!)!$��%&'�*&��%��*,�$%��� !�*1�%,��� *��,��$'� %)!��&�� !���!�%�*�&�
�+�� !����%�!"*,�	�%'��!�(��5�@����%&'���3A�*����*$$����-!�'!�!�1*&!'��
�*�,���*�&��%�!��%5*&"��$%,!�(*� �� !��*" (%/���"!&,/����!&���!�� %��� !�
�����" #��������%$��%&'�*&��%��*,�$%��'!)!$��1!&��������!'�*&�� !�9!/���!%���+�
� %&"!�(*$$�&��� %)!�%�'!��*1!&�%$�*1�%,���&�� !���!�%�*�&�%&'��%+!�/��+�� !�
&!�(��5����,%&�-!�%������*%�!$/�1*�*"%�!'����� %��� !�!+��!�-!!&�%"�!!'�(*� �� !�
�*" (%/���"!&,/�� %��� !�*1�%,���&�� !���%&������&!�(��5�@%&'��%��*,�$%�$/�� !�
����%&'���3A��+�� !�'!)!$��1!&���*�!��-!*&"����1��!'�� ���" �� !���<�(*$$�-!�
%��!��!'0�-�� �*&'*)*'�%$$/�%&'�,�1�$%�*)!$/0�'��*&"�� !�'!)!$��1!&���+�%&/��*�!�
�$$�,%�*�&�����������%*&%-$!���%&������1!%���!��%&'�*&+�%����,���!�*1���)!1!&��0�
( *, �%�!��!.�*�!'����!&%-$!�� !�����%*&%-$!�'!$*)!�/��+�� !�%$$�,%�*�&�0�(*$$�%$���-!�
*'!&�*+*!'�%&'�%���%*�!'�*&��!�1���+�� !�$!)!$��+�1*�*"%�*�&�%++��'!'�%&'�(*$$�-!�
�������!'�-/�!)*'!&,!����'!1�&���%�!�� !�'!$*)!�%-*$*�/��+�!%, �1!%���!��

�

�������� �$�&"�*'!�� !�*&+�%����,���!��!.�*�!1!&���+���+�� !�9!/���!%���+�� %&"!0�� !�
�&+�%����,���!��$%&�'!�%*$��� !�*&+�%����,���!�&!!'!'������������"!&!�%$�"��(� �
%,������ !������" ����&+�%����,���!�&!!'��(*$$�!)�$)!��)!��� !��$%&��!�*�'�%&'�%��
��, �*��(*$$�-!�&!,!��%�/�����&'!��%5!�+��� !���!)*!(���+�� !��&+�%����,���!��$%&��

                                                 
2 The pooling of joint contributions is limited to planning obligations from no more than five developments in 

accordance with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (Amendment) 2011 
3 HBC (2011) Halton Core Strategy Revised Proposed Submission Document Infrastructure Plan 

APPENDIX APage 138



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�B�

� !��&+�%����,���!��$%&�(*$$�-!�%�C$*)!#�'�,�1!&��( *, �(*$$�-!���'%�!'�%���!.�*�!'�
�)!��� !�$*+!�*1!��+�� !����!����%�!"/�%��&!(��!)!$��1!&���$%&���,�1!&���
!1!�"!0�*&+�%����,���!��, !1!��%�!�,�1�$!�!'�%&'�*&�%,,��'%&,!�(*� �'*�,���*�&��
(*� �*&+�%����,���!�;��!�)*,!����)*'!������+��� !���!)*!(�� !�&!!'�+���*&+�%����,���!�
(*� *&�� !������" ��� !����&,*$�(*$$�,�&�*&�!����(��5�(*� �*����%��&!���%&'�
'!)!$��!������*'!&�*+/�� !�5!/�*&+�%����,���!��, !1!���!.�*�!'����+%,*$*�%�!�
'!)!$��1!&��%&'��!,��!�� !�'!$*)!�/��+�� !����!����%�!"/��)!��� !��$%&��!�*�'�
%&'�%��,*�,�1��%&,!��, %&"!0����8!,������"�!���%&'�1��!�'!�%*$!'�*&+��1%�*�&�*��
1%'!�%)%*$%-$!��

�

���= � !��&+�%����,���!��$%&�1%/�-!���!'�������)*'!�%�-%�*�����,%$,�$%�!�%&�%������*%�!�
���%�!"*,�*&+�%����,���!��%�*++�����%�&%�*�&%$�$!)!$0�� !���)!�&1!&�� %��*&���'�,!'�
� !���11�&*�/��&+�%����,���!��!)/�@���A>�( *, �%$$�(��$�,%$�%�� ��*�*!�����%��$/�%�
��%&'%�'�, %�"!�( *, �(*$$�,�&��*-��!����� !�,������+�*&+�%����,���!�%�*�*&"�+��1�
&!(�'!)!$��1!&����� !�$!)/�*��*&�!&'!'�������)*'!�*&+�%����,���!������������� !�
'!)!$��1!&���+�%&�%�!%0�( *, �'*++!������� !���$!��+��$%&&*&"��-$*"%�*�&��( *, �%�!�
��!'��%� !��� %&����!&���!�� %��*&'*)*'�%$�'!)!$��1!&���%�!�%,,!��%-$!�*&��$%&&*&"�
�!�1����� !�$!)/�,�)!���%�(*'!�'!+*&*�*�&��+�*&+�%����,���!�+��1�+$��'�'!+!&,!�����
 ���*�%$��%&'�"�!!&��%,!�0�%$� ��" �*��*����*$$�*&�!&'!'�� %��%++��'%-$!� ���*&"�(*$$�
-!��!,��!'�� ���" ��$%&&*&"��-$*"%�*�&������,%$�%�� ��*�*!��%��C, %�"*&"�%�� ��*�*!�#�
,%&��!��� !�$!)/�%1��&��� !/�, %�"!���%$��&������" ����&,*$#��%����%, ������, �
%��%&"!1!&���(*$$�-!��!������*&�"�!%�!��'!�%*$�� ���" �� !��!)!$��!����&��*-��*�&��
����%������*%�!�'�,�1!&���(*� *&�� !���<�( *, �,��$'�*&,$�'!�� !��*�!�
�$$�,%�*�&��%&'��!)!$��1!&���%&%"!1!&����������!)!$��!����&��*-��*�&��������
� ��$'�� !����&,*$�(*� ����*&���'�,!�%����0�%������ %�"*&"��, !'�$!�(*$$�&!!'����
-!����'�,!'�%$$�(*&"�+�$$�,�&��$�%�*�&�%&'�*&'!�!&'!&��!2%1*&%�*�&��&�%&/�
������!'�$!)/�������%�!"*,��%�*++�%&'��&�� !�*&+�%����,���!��, !1!��*��(*$$�-!���!'�
���+�&'��

�
�

 

                                                 
4 CLG (2010) Community Infrastructure Levy – An overview 

www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/1772940.pdf 

�

��"��#�
��$�%��&��
�

�

	���������������
�

����34���,%$���%�*%$��$%&&*&"�@���0�3��BA6���11�&*�/�
�&+�%����,���!��!)/�	!"�$%�*�&��@�1!&'1!&�A�3�����@���0�
3����A�

�

"������!�' �� ��
�

�%$��&����!����%�!"/�	!)*�!'�������!'���-1*��*�&���,�1!&��
�&+�%����,���!��$%&�@���0�3����A�

�

����� (����)* ���! ��
�

��

�

������������ ���
�

���!%$� /��%$��&0�
1�$�/1!&�0��!%�&*&"�%&'��5*$$��*&��%$��&0���
�%+!���%$��&0�� *$'�!&�%&'�
��&"��!��$!�*&��%$��&0�
&)*��&1!&��
%&'�	!"!&!�%�*�&�*&��%$��&�
��D�<$��'�	*�5�� �3�D��!%$� �
���D�����*&"� �>�D�
,�&�1/�

�

����)* ���! ��
�

���D��,,!��*-*$*�/� �=�D�����%*&%-$!���%&������
�

��������+ �
�

� *����$*,/�*��"!&!�%$$/����*�*)!�*&�*���!++!,����� !���$*,/� *" $*" ���
 �(�&!(�'!)!$��1!&��(*$$�-!�'*�!,�!'���(%�'��%�!%��� %�� %)!�
!2*��*&"�*&+�%����,���!�*&��$%,!�����%$��� *" $*" ���� !�*1����%&,!�
�+�,�&�*'!�*&"�� !�&!!'����'!$*)!��'!)!$��1!&��*&�����%*&%-$!�
$�,%�*�&���

APPENDIX APage 139



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
�

�

 
���

�

 
 

������������������� !��

 

���"������"�#�
	"$!%"&����'�%"&���()!%%!���

�� �)"���
�

�

�

*"#���"�%��+������"�
 

APPENDIX APage 140



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

�� �������	�
�
���� ����������� ���!��"��#$��%&'($��(��)("�*+��,�(������&��%(-���(��# ��

.&��!�/#��&���&������.&�&%"�&0��($�&��(�'�����)�'�!�!� �&�1�(�'�������������(�-�"�
�%2$&"%���� ���!(�&!����&&-�� ��&�����0#�#!�1�����������(��0#!���!�2&�����($��&�
'�$�3�!�(�$(! ��4#(��#%�&0��%2$&"%����'�3�$&2%���1�(�'�&3�!���%��(��� ��0�.(���
��.!�(�����������#%/�!��%2$&"�'�(����������������!�����(����'��&� #�'������0#�#!��
'�3�$&2%����&0�+���(�'�%(���(���������(�#��(��(�$�('�� �%#$��%&'($�0!�� ���0(.�$��"�
�������!� �&��/"������� �&#��(�0!(%�)&!-�0&!�����0#�#!��'�3�$&2%�����

�

�

���
���������������������	�

�
5�"��$�%�����&0�����0#�#!��&0�+���)�$$�/�6�
�

• ����(3(�$(/�$��"�&0�(22!&��%(��$"�7��(�&0�$(�'�0&!��8��%2$&"%����'�3�$&2%����
)����������+���������&�'�$�3�!�!� �&�($$"��%2&!�(���$& ����.��(�'�'���!�/#��&��
'�3�$&2%����(�'�����2!&3���&��&0�9&/��0&!�����2�&2$��&0��($�&���

�

• �%2!&3�� �����(/�$��"��&�%&3��0!�� ���/"��#��(��(/$��%&'��1�%&����&�(/$"�!(�$�
��.$#'�� ������2!&3���&��&0��#��(��(/$��.&���.��&����&�&���!�0!�� ���0(.�$�������������
�#/:!� �&��

�

• ����2!&3���&��&0�(�)����!��$��-�!&('��&�.&���.�����������)��������!� �&�($�(�'�
�(��&�($�!&('����)&!-1�($�&�'��.&#!( �� �����%&3�%����&0�0!�� ���(.!&������������&��
����$&.($�!&('����)&!-�

�

• ����'�3�$&2%����&0������($�&���&!&# ���&#�.�$�;��$'������(������)����!����'�&0�
���������0&!�&3�!��8�(�&0��81�!(�$���!3�'�)(!��&#��� �#����

�
�!��.�2$���&0�'�3�$&2%����

• �!&��.��� �����(%����"�&0�!���'������������('9&���� �(!�(��&0�����&��(�'��($�/(�-�
�

• �&���!3�� �$&.($�0�(�#!���&0�3��#($1���3�!&�%���($�(�'�����&!�.��%2&!�(�.�1��&�(/$"�
�&3�$<���($$��.��'#$�'��&�#%���1������#!!&#�'�� ��!������$��(�'�(3&�'�� �('3�!���
�00�.���&���������� !��"�&0�������!��"�
��#(!"�����(�'�	(%�(!���������!�/"����#!�� �
��(�����!��)�$$�/���&�����$&�������#22&!��� ��(/��(��0&!����=	(%�(!�)(��!0&)$(�'�����
�#!!&#�'�� ��!������$���

�
��3�$&2%����&22&!�#���������������%2$&"%����(!�(���%%�'�(��$"��#!!&#�'�� �+���(��
����&��(�'��($�/(�-���&#$'����-��&�.&%2$�%����/#���&��'#2$�.(��������%2$&"%����&00�!�&0�
��������1�)��$���($�&�2!&��.��� �����(%����"�&0�������� �(�'�0#�#!��!���'������
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

APPENDIX APage 141



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

���

�
�

�
�
������������	����������
����������������
�
�

������� ������
�
���> �3�!�!�.����"�(!�1��#/��(���($�(%&#����&0�'�3�$&2%����(��+���*2!�3�&#�$"�-�&)��

(������&����!(�� �.�	(�$�;!�� ����(!-,��(3��/����2�!%����'�(�'�����������(��
���(/$����'�����$0�(��(�-�"��%2$&"%����(!�(��������!� �&�������������)(��(��/����
!�.& ����'�(��(�	� �&�($������0&!��%2$&"%����2#!2&�������.������	� �&�($�

.&�&%�.���!(�� "����>���������(�%&!��!�.����!�3��)�&0�	� �&�($������1�.&�'#.��'�
/"������?������>��7�1����������%(���(���'�������(�#��(�������������(��2�3&�($����
��.&#!( ��  �#��(��(/$��0!�� ���'���!�/#��&����
���%(�����#  ������(�����������.(��
'�$�3�!��������!� �&��&0�@����9&/���0�������������'�3�$&2�'�&#��0#$$"�(�'�������!�0&!��
3��($��&��#22&!��(�'����(�.���($�&�<���.&�&%"���
%2$&"%����'�3�$&2%����&0������
�.($�1�'�$�3�!�� �9&/��0&!�$&.($�!���'��������3��($$"��%2&!�(�����������(!�(�&0�����
�&!&# �1�)��!��'�2!�3(��&��$�3�$��(!���� ��.&%2(!�'��&��(��&�($�(�'�!� �&�($�
(3�!( ��>��

�
���+ ����5�"��!�(�&0���(� ��$�����&������&#���&0������@�>�*�2�-��	&(',�(�'��&!���&0�

������!��"�
��#(!"����?�'�������($��	&('�(�'������($�/(�-�!���'����($�(�'�

                                                 
1
 NWDA (2009) Strategic Regional Sites (www.nwda.co.uk/news--events/press-releases/200901/strategic-

regional-sites.aspx) 
2HBC (20072010) Index of Multiple Deprivation. Table 5 – Deprivation within Wards in Halton State of the 

Borough in Halton 

APPENDIX APage 142



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�>�

��'#��!�($�(!�(�'�3�'���������������&��)&���2(!(���2(!��1�)������������;��$'������
.&%2!���� �����%(9&!��"�&0�����)����!��2&!��&����2��&��������%�1�'�3�$&2%�����(��
/����.&�.���!(��'�(!&#�'������(���!��2&!��&��&0����������.$&����&�����
�@++=A#����)("���������&/(!���!&#2��(3��/����(������0&!�0!&���&0�����
'�3�$&2%�����&�'(��1�'�$�3�!�� �(�%(9&!�.&��(���!��(�'$�� �(�'���&!( ��0(.�$��"1�(�'�
%&!��!�.���$"�(�$(! ��.��$$�'�0&&'�'���!�/#��&��0(.�$��"�������%&!��)����!$"�(!�(��&0�
+���)��.��.#!!���$"�$���#�'�3�$&2�'�(!�����.$&���2!&��%��"��&�����!���'����($�
.&%%#���"�&0��($�/(�-�(�'�0#�#!��'�3�$&2%����%#���/��.(!�0#$$"�%(�( �'��&�
(3&�'�(�"��� (��3���00�.������&���'�!(/$��$(�'�.(2�� �)&!-��(��($!�('"��(-���2$(.��
��������3�.����"����2!�2(!(��&��0&!�'�3�$&2%����&����������1�(�'�(��'�3�$&2%����
2!&2&�($��.&%��0&!)(!'1����)�$$�/���%2&!�(����&����#!����(��($$�(�2�.���&0�����
'�3�$&2%����(!��.&���'�!�'�0&!�����!�2&�����($��%2(.��&��$&.($�2�&2$���

�
���B ���� �(��� �����+���(!�(�(��(�5�"��!�(�&0���(� ��!�0$�.��������%2&!�(�.��&0�����

������&��($�&�<���.&�&%"�(�'�($�&�����)�'�!���0$#��.��(��(�$&.(��&��0&!�����!:%&'($�
0!�� ����!(��0�!�)��������!��"��'��(�'������&!��)����������$& ����.��(�'�
'���!�/#��&����.�&!��(!��.&!���$�%�����&0��($�&�<���.&�&%"�(�'�%#.��&0���������
.���!�'�&������%#$��%&'($�0!�� ����!(��0�!�0(.�$��"�(��+��������3����($�&��(�'�
�2�.�0�.($$"�����&�<��$&.(��&�($�('3(��( ��1�)����������3�!2&&$��!(�.��&0�����?����
�&(����(��������2(���� ���!&# ����������1������@C�(�'���>����3�!"�.$&���2!&��%��"1�
���������$��'������$0��&�0#!���!�0!�� ���(�'�%&!���2�.�0�.($$"�!(�$���!3�'�0!�� ���
'�3�$&2%�����

�
���@ ?������(�'�&#���'��&0������&!&# �����!��(!��2!&2&�($���&���.!�(�������(%&#���&0�

0!�� ���/��� ��(�'$�'�/"��&�:!&('�/(��'�0!�� ���0(.�$�����1�/&������!�$(��&���&�(�!�
0!�� �����!&# ����3�!2&&$�D&�������&����!2&!��(�'�)(��!:/&!���0!�� ���($&� �����
�(�.�����!����2��(�($�������#.�1�&���&0�����.!���!�(�&0�����2&$�."�����&��%2!&3��
.&���.��&����&���(!/"�0!�� ���0(.�$�����1��(%�$"�������!��"��(��)("��&!��*?���&��
�&.-�,�(�'����!��(!��($�&�2&�����($�0#�#!���"��! ����)������3�!2&&$�D&�������&��
��!2&!��������!�$�(/�$��"�&0�0!�� ���%&3�%�����&������$&.($�!&('����)&!-�)�$$�($�&�
/���%2!&3�'���!&# ������!�($��(��&��&0�������!��"��(��)("��!&9�.�1��%2!&3�� �
9&#!��"���%���(�'�(..����/�$��"�0&!�0!�� ���%&3�%�����(.!&���(�'���!&# ������
�&!&# ����?������������� �/&#!�� �(#��&!��"�&0������$���1�(���������/��� �2!&%&��'�
0&!�(������!%&'($�0!�� �����!%��($�&������0&!%�!�.&$$��!"������(���(!-��'�1���)�&�:
$�:?�$$&)�������!��������!�0&!��2&�����($�0&!�������':��!��"�(!�(�(!&#�'�?�'����
(�'������$�����&�/�.&%��(�'�����.���#/�0&!�!(�$���!3�'�0!�� ���(�'�$& ����.��#�����

�
���� ���������$����&�������' ��&0�����/#�$��#2�(!�(����?�'���1�(�'�����)����!����������

(!��('9(.�����&������!������$��)��.����2(!(�����($�&��0!&%�����('9&���� �
(#��&!������&0���3�!2&&$�(�'�5�&)�$�"������'��0!&%�����2&�����($������2�.�0�.�
($��!(��&��&0������!������$��)��.��)&#$'�/��!�4#�!�'��&�0(.�$��(���������2(���&��&0�
��3�!2&&$�D&�������&����!2&!��(����.$#'�'�����&$�."����C1��������%2&!�(�����(������
��!(�� �.� (2�/��)����'�3�$&2%����(��+���=��($�/(�-�(�'�������(!����/#�$��#2�
(!�(��&0��($�)&&'�(�'��2�-�������� �/&#!�� �(#��&!���������%(���(���'�(�'���(������
(%����"�&0������!������$��'��� �(��&�����#2��$'����$�&����.$&���2!&��%��"��&����������
����&3�$<���($$��.��'#$�'��&�#%��������3�$&2%����&0������($�&���&!&# ���&#�.�$�
*���,�;��$'�������&�����)����&0������������ �'�3�$&2%����(��+�����&#$'�.&���!3��
/&�������%&�#%����(�'����������� 1���.$#'�� �����2!&3���&��&0�$(�'�.(2��/#00�!��(�'�
���(�.�%�����)��!����.���(!"��

�
���C �2�.�0�.���0!(��!#.�#!�����!�4#�!�'��&���(/$������0#$$�'�3�$&2%����&0������������

;#!���!�!(�$���'�� ��(!��($�&�!�4#�!�'��&���.!�(��������#%/�!�&0��!(����(/$���&���!3��
����������(.��'("�0!&%������&��������1���#���(-�� �0!�� ���&00�����!� �&�<��!&('������
��)���'�� ���&#$'�/��'�$�3�!�'�(��2(!��&0�����'�3�$&2%����&0�����)����!��2&!��&��

APPENDIX APage 143



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�
�

�+�

&0�����������&�.&���.����������;��$'������)���������(���!��2&!��&��&0�+���������
2!&2&��'�?����!�����-�	&('1�/���0����� �0!&%�2$(���� �2�!%����&�+�0!&%�/&���
�($�&��(�'�5�&)�$�"����!&2&$��(���&!&# ���&#�.�$�1�)�$$�2!&3�'��'�!�.��(..�����&�
��������;��$'������(�'�/����!�.&���.�����������)���������@C�(�'���>������)�$$�($�&�
$�%��������#%/�!�&0��!(00�.�%&3�%�����&��$&.($�!&('��(.!&��������)&���'���&0�����
����1����!�/"�(3&�'�� �#���.���(!"�'��!#2��&��0&!�$&.($�!���'�����(�'�/#�����������
����2&�����($��&�!�&2�������!�'#�'(���2(���� �!���(��&��(������&�1�$&.(��'�&00�
�($��	&('���&#$'�/��!��(���'�(��(�$&� ���!%�2&���/�$��"��

�
���8 ���('&2��'��#22$�%���(!"��$(���� ��&.#%����*���,��������0&!�����+�������1�

/(��'�&������2&$�."�)�������($�&�<������(!"���3�$&2%�����$(�������������)�$$����'�
�&�/��#2'(��'��&�!�0$�.������!�3���'�2&$�."�0!(%�)&!-� �3�����!&# ���8C��8��

�
�

�

                                                 
3 Planning Application reference 08/00031/HBCFUL – Proposed new link road and landscaping 

�

!"#$�%��&
�'("&
��
�

�

)������*�!�*� ��
�

���>6��!������$���*���1��77@1�(%��'�'����>���,E����B6�
�$(���� �0&!��#��(��(/$��
.&�&%�.��!&)���*���1�>��7,E�
����+6��!(��2&!��*���1�>���,�

�

#� �*�'+���� ���
�

D&����
%2$&"%�����(�'�(�'��!�%�������#'"�*�
��!&#21�
>����7,E�+����(���!2$(�E�+�������

�

�������� �",-� ��+���
�

+1�B1���(�'�����

�

����!�����������
�


%2$&"%���1���(!��� �(�'��-�$$�E�
�3�!&�%����(�'�
	� ���!(��&������($�&��

8�F���!�A#($��"� �C�F��#��(��(/$���!(��2&!��
�

�
�",-� ��+���
� �B�:�
.&�&%"� �
�

�
�"�� ����
�

�����2&$�."��(����!&� �/���0����0&!��&.�($�(�'��.&�&%�.�0(.�&!���
���!��%("�/���&%��%��&!��� (��3���%2(.���&��)(��!�4#($��"��
�&)�3�!1�����2&$�."�/#�$'�����(22!&2!�(�����3�!&�%���($�
%��� (��&����3�!($$�����2&$�."����.&���'�!�'�2&����3�����
�#��(��(/�$��"���!%���

APPENDIX APage 144



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

����

�� �������	
���
������
�
���� ����������� !"�#�$�%��&�'��(���'")��*�"# #� ")��(�� !"�#���+"���"�&�,�

� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'"!���#���'"-�.&�#�"�#������..�&��" �%����!�/ 0�&�'�� )��
1�'/ �%�2 3�!��#���"0 &�"2�"��(�&���& ")������*�"�2 *�&�0 �'/ #'� �"��(�����'&�',�
*&�'� ")�#�#�' "'4/��*�22�" � �#�'"!��/� 2'��/%�����'*� �0�2�"���(�'�0'/��!�
+'��&(&�"���"0 &�"2�"��'"!�)'��+'%�/�*'� �"���

�
����������������������������������� �

�
��2 3��(��#�#� "*/�! ")�'�*�24 "'� �"��(��2./�%2�"�,�&��' /,�/� #�&��'"!�&�# !�"� '/�
!�0�/�.2�"��+ //�4��'*� �0�!�'*&�##�������� !"�#��0�&�������&����&'��)%�.�& �!���&��)�5�
�

'6 �'- ")�'0' /'4/��78�9�����*�'&�#��(��2./�%2�"��/'"!�'"!�&�!�0�/�. ")�'"!�
&�)�"�&'� ")��3 #� ")��2./�%2�"��'&�'#�'*&�##�������� !"�#�+ ���'"��2.�'# #��"�
2 3�!��2./�%2�"���#�#� "�� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'"!���#���'"-��

�
46 � &�*� ")��.����'4�����:,7888�#12�;)&�##6��(�*�"0�" �"*��<�*�2.'& #�"�&��' /�

.&�0 # �"��������2' "�&��' /�'&�'�;� !"�#���+"���"�&�����"!'&%6�+ ���#2'//�#*'/��

.&�0 # �"�'*&�##�����+ !�&�'&�'���
�

*6 � &�*� ")��.����'4�����9,888�#12�;)&�##6��(�&��' /�+'&����# ")�4�/-%�)��!#�&��' / ")�
'*&�##�������� !"�#�+ ���'�.'&� *�/'&�(�*�#��"�����2' "�&��' /�'&�'�+ �� "�����
� !"�#���+"���"�&�����"!'&%��

�
!6 =�*�# ")�"�+�/� #�&��('* / � �#� "�� !"�#���+"���"�&�,�+ ���'�.'&� *�/'&��2.�'# #��"�

�����"�'"*�2�"���(������0�" ")��*�"�2%� "������ *��& '��1�'&��'&�',�'"!�
*�2./�2�"�'&%�/� #�&���#�#� "�� !"�#��'��&(&�"�����&��)������&�'/ #'� �"��(�����
��"��&��= �/!#�# ���/� #�&��!�0�/�.2�"���

�
�6 ����!�/ 0�&%��(��887:8�&�# !�"� '/�!+�// ")#�'*&�##�������� !"�#�! 0�&# (% ")�����

*�&&�"�����# ")��((�&��
�

(6 �'. �'/ # ")��"�����!�0�/�.2�"��'"!�&�)�"�&'� �"��..�&��" � �#�.&�#�"��!�4%�����
��&#�%��'��+'%��&�>�*��.'&� *�/'&/%�'##�* '��!�+ �������&�#�&�*��& ")��(���#���'"-�
���.&�0 !��(�&�"�+��2./�%2�"��'"!�&�# !�"� '/��#�#�'"!�����!�/ 0�&%��(�'�"�+�
"� )�4��&���!�*�"�&��'..&�.& '����������"��!#��(�����/�*'/�*�22�" �%���

�
)6 ��0�/�. ")���&'��) *�'"!���*'/��'��+'%#�'��-�%�/�*'� �"#����.&�2����/ "-')�#�'*&�##�

������� !"�#�'"!�#�&&��"! ")�'&�'#��
�
!���"�#$� ������%�$�#&����
��0�/�.2�"��'*&�##�������� !"�#�+ //�4���3.�*��!���5�
�

• �2.&�0��*�""�*� 0 �%�'"!�'**�## 4 / �%�'*&�##�������� !"�#�'"!�����+ !�&�'&�'�'"!�
�'-��'!0'"�')���(��..�&��" � �#���� 2.&�0��#�#�' "'4/���&'"#.�&��.&�0 # �"��

�
• ='* / �'���.�4/ *�'**�##��������+'��&(&�"��'"!�.& �& � #���..�&��" � �#�(�&� "(�&2'/�

/� #�&��'##�* '��!�+ �������+'��&(&�"��!�#� "'� �"���
�

• 
"#�&��#�&�")��&4'"�!�# )"� "��&!�&����&�(/�*������.&�2 "�"��+'��&# !���"0 &�"2�"�,�
)'��+'%�/�*'� �"#�'"!�����.�# � 0��*�'&'*��& #� *#��(�������� !"�#��

APPENDIX APage 145



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

��:�

�

�
�
'�������������������� �������&�(�&������������&)�

�
�

�

• �0� !�'!0�&#���((�*�#��"����� "��)& �%��(�������&#�%�
#��'&%��.�* '/��&���*� �"��&�'�
;���6�'"!<�&�	'2#'&�# ����

�

• �*� �0��� )��#�'"!'&!#��(�#�#�' "'4/��!�# )"�'"!�*�"#�&�*� �"� "*/�! ")�'�&�!�*� �"� "�
*'&4�"��2 ## �"#���&��)��&�"�+'4/��'"!�/�+�*'&4�"���*�"�/�)%�+ ���'�.'&� *�/'&�
�2.�'# #��"�� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'"!� �#�.���"� '/�'#�'"�
"�&)%��& �& �%�?�"���

�

APPENDIX APage 146



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

����

*� ����"������
�
���� ������� !"�#� "*/�!�#�����! #� "*��#�4@'&�'#��(�� !"�#���+"���"�&�,�� !"�#�

�'��&(&�"��'"!���#���'"-��
'*���(�����#�4@'&�'#�.&�0 !�#�'�! ((�&�"��4���
*�2./�2�"�'&%�&�/��(�&�� !"�#�'"!�����+ !�&���&��)�5�� !"�#���+"���"�&�� #�
����2' "�&��' /�*�&��(�&�������&��)��.&�0 ! ")�'�&'")���(�&��' /�'"!�/� #�&��
�..�&��" � �#A�� !"�#��'��&(&�"���'#�� #��& *'//%�'"!�*�"� "��#����.&�0 !��'�*�&��
�2./�%2�"��'&�'�(�&�������+"�'"!�����+ !�&�#�4@&�) �"A�'"!,���#���'"-�*�"# #�#�
�(�'�&�# !�"� '/�*�22�" �%��������#�����+ ����2./�%2�"��'"!� "!�#�& '/��#�#��������
"�&�����

�
���7 ����'&�'��3� 4 �#�'�"�24�&��(� ##��#�+ �� "��'*��#�4@'&�'�'"!�'*&�##������"� &��

$�%��&�'��(���'")�,�-�%�'2�")#�����#��'&��'�.�%# *'/�'"!�(�"*� �"'/�#�0�&'"*��
4��+��"�! ((�&�"��/'"!��#�#,�/'*-��(�*�""�*� 0 �%�4��+��"�����! ((�&�"��#�4@'&�'#,�
'"!,�*�"�'2 "'� �"� ##��#,�.'&� *�/'&/%�'/�")�����+'��&(&�"�,�!������.'#��*��2 *'/�
'"!� "!�#�& '/��#�#������$�%��&�'��(���'")�,���+�0�&,�4�"�( �#�(&�2�'�.&�2 "�"��
+'��&(&�"��/�*'� �",��3*�//�"��&�) �"'/�'"!�#�4@&�) �"'/��&'"#.�&��/ "-#�'"!�'�&'")��
�(��3 #� ")��2./�%2�"�,�&��' /�'"!��"0 &�"2�"�'/�'##��#�����&�� #�"�+�'�"��!����
 "��)&'���'"!��" (%�������� !"�#,�*�"*�"�&'� ")��"�/ "-')�#�'"!�*�""�*� �"#�'"!�
*�2./�2�"�'&%��#�#� "��&!�&����.&�0 !��(�&�'�#�#�' "'4/��2 3�!��#��'&�'�(�&�����
4�"�( ���(��'/��"B#�&�# !�"�#,�4�# "�##�#�'"!�0 # ��&#���

�
���� ������� !"�#,�'"!� "�.'&� *�/'&�� !"�#��'��&(&�"�,�+ //�4��.&�2���!�'#�'�!& 0�&�

(�&��*�"�2 *�&�)�"�&'� �"� "*&�'# ")��2./�%2�"���..�&��" � �#���&��)��4�# "�##�
)&�+���'"!� "+'&!� "0�#�2�"�������C� "��
2./�%2�"���'"!�'"!��&�2 #�#����!%�
;C
���6��� )�/ )��#����� 2.�&�'"*���(�� !"�#��'��&(&�"�� "�!�/ 0�& ")�4��������
��&��)��'"!�#�4@&�) �"B#��2./�%2�"��/'"!�&�1� &�2�"�#�'"!� "�.'&� *�/'&�2�*��
"��!�!�����(( *��!�0�/�.2�"�� "�� !"�#���/����)��"'� �"'/�./'"" ")�.�/ *%��
! &�*�#��(( *���#�#������+"�*�"�&�#,�����C
����&�*�)" #�#�����#�0�&��/'*-��(��(( *��
#�../%� "�� !"�#�'"!�*�"#�&' "�!�/'"!�#�../%� "�������+"���"�&��'"!�'#�'�&�#�/��
� !"�#��'��&(&�"�� #�'�2�&��.&�(�&'4/��/�*'� �"����2./�2�"�'&%��2./�%2�"��
.&�0 # �"�+ //�'/#��4��(�*�#�!� "���#���'"-����2' "�' "�'"!��"�'"*��/�*'/�
�2./�%2�"���#�#,�'"!�+��&��'..&�.& '��� "�� !"�#���+"���"�&�����#�..�&��'�
! 0�&# �%��(��#�#�'"!����2' "�' "������3 #� ")�* 0 *�1�'&��&�'&��"!�$ ")#+'%��

�
���: � !"�#� #�����/'&)�#����+"�*�"�&��+ �� "�������&��)��'"!��'#�����)&�'��#��&��' /�

�((�&� "���&2#��(�&'")��'"!�(/��&#.'*�������� !"�#���+"���"�&�B#�&��' /�&�/��+ //�
4��2' "�' "�!�'"!��"�'"*�!,� "�'**�&!'"*��+ �����:5������+�&-��(���"�&�#�(�&�
�'/��",���&��)������!�/ 0�&%��(�"�+�&��' /��..�&��" � �#�'"!� 2.&�0�2�"�#�
 "*/�! "),�.& �& � # ")�"�+�&��' /��..�&��" � �#�'"!� 2.&�0�2�"�#�+ �� "�������+"�
��"�&�����"!'&%���� #�+ //� "*/�!������.���"� '/�����"�'"*���&�&�!�0�/�.�����
�/4�&���1�'&��#���.. ")�*��"�&����� #�&��('* / � �#�+ //�4��(�*�#�!��"�������+"�
��"�&��+ ���� *��& '��1�'&��&�2' " ")�'#�����(�*�#�(�&��0�" ")��"��&�' "2�"��) 0�"�
����'��&'*� 0��.�4/ *�&�'/2�'"!���& �')��'##��#� "�����/�*'/ �%������&�'/ #'� �"��(�����
��"��&��= �/!#�# ����"������ !"�#��'��&(&�"��+ //��"#�&��.&�0 !������!�/ 0�&%��(�
*�2./�2�"�'&%�/� #�&��('* / � �#�(�&������������ !"�#�'&�'����

�
���� �/����)�����&��'&��/ 2 ��!��..�&��" � �#�(�&�&�# !�"� '/�!�0�/�.2�"��+ �� "�������

� !"�#,�����&���'"����#��.&�#�"��!�4%�������&#�%��'��+'%��&�>�*����&��)������
&�#�&�*��& ")��(���#���'"-,�'�.& �& �%�(�&��� #�$�%��&�'��(���'")�� #����&� "(�&*��
�����3 #� ")�&�# !�"� '/�"� )�4��&���!#,�'"!� "�.'&� *�/'&�������#���'"-�&�# !�"� '/�

                                                 
1 BE Group, HBC, et al (201009) Joint Employment Land and Premises Study (JELPS) 
2 CLG (2009) Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 

APPENDIX APage 147



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

��D�

"� )�4��&���!,���&��)������'!! � �"��(�� )��1�'/ �%����# ")�!�0�/�.2�"���((�& ")�'�
2 3��(���"�&�#�����+ //�'/#��4��"�*�##'&%�����"#�&����'������&�# !�"� '/�
"� )�4��&���!#,� "*/�! ")����#��"�&����(�������+"���"�&�,��'0��*�""�*� �"#����
�2./�%2�"�,�/� #�&��'"!�&��' /��..�&��" � �#�'*&�##�������� !"�#� "��&!�&����
*&�'�����& 0 ")�'"!�#�#�' "'4/��*�22�" � �#���

�
���D ������&#�%��'��+'%��&�>�*��+ //�4& ")�*�"# !�&'4/��.�%# *'/�*�'")�#��������'&�'�'��

��#���'"-�*��./�!�+ ���+ !�&�&�)�"�&'� �"�'"!�!�0�/�.2�"���..�&��" � �#�
'*&�##�� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'"!�� !"�#���+"���"�&�������&�2�0'/��(�&�!�"!'"��
 "(&'#�&�*��&����&��)������#�4#�1��"��!�+")&'! ")��(������ /0�&�C�4 /����& !)��+ //�
&�/�'#��/'"!�'"!�*&�'�������.���"� '/�(�&�"�+��2./�%2�"��'"!�&�# !�"� '/�
!�0�/�.2�"��# ��#���"�'**�&!'"*��+ �����:5�;�����+�&-��(���"�&�#6�����.���"� '/�
(�&�'�"�+�2 3�!��#��"� )�4��&���!�*�"�&�� "���#���'"-��'#�4��"� !�"� ( �!����
.&�0 !��(�&�����"��!#��(�����/�*'/�.�.�/'� �"������&�'/ #'� �"��(�������&#�%�
�'��+'%��&�>�*��+ //� "*&�'#��*&�##�& 0�&�*�""�*� 0 �%,�&�!�*��>��&"�%�� 2�#�'"!�
&�/ �0��*�")�#� �",�+� *��+ //�4���##�"� '/�(�&�(���&���2./�%2�"��)&�+���'"!����
�3.'"!�����#�4@&�) �"'/�&��' /�*'�*�2�"��(�&�� !"�#���+"���"�&�������.&�>�*��
+ //�'/#��'*��'#�'�*'�'/%#��(�&�&�)�"�&'� �"�'*&�##������������ !"�#�'&�'��

�
���E ���!�/ 0�&�'�2 3�!��#��'&�'����&�� #�'�"��!�����"#�&����'��-�%�/ "-#�'*&�##�����'&�'�

4�*�2��'�(�*�#�(�&� 2.&�0�!�2�0�2�"��'"!�� )��1�'/ �%�!�# )"���'&� *�/'&�
'���"� �"�#���/!�4��) 0�"��������)'��+'%�/ "-#�4��+��"���#���'"-�'"!�� *��& '�
	�'!�'"!�'�������'�- "#�"��'%�<�= !!/�&#�=�&&%�>�"*� �"�4��+��"�� !"�#�
�'��&(&�"��'"!�������+"���"�&������#��F��&'��) *��'��+'%B�/�*'� �"#�'&��
 "��"!�!����!�/ 0�&��.)&'!�#����.�!�#�& '"�'"!�*%*/��"��+�&-#,�#�..�&��#�&�")�
4� /! ")�(&�"�')�#��(�'"�'..&�.& '���#*'/��'"!�2'## "),�'"!�'## #�� "�#�&�")���" ")�
���� !�"� �%��(�������� !"�#���&��)��1�'/ �%�#�&���#*'.�#������&��..�&��" � �#����
 2.&�0������'&�'#�.�%# *'/�/ "-')�#�#���/!�4���'-�"�+��&��"�*�##'&%�'"!� "�
'**�&!'"*��+ ����3 #� ")��'#��&./'"#�'"!����#���&��)������!�0�/�.2�"���(�F��*'/�
�'��+'%#B����*'/��'��+'%#�+ //�./'%�'�# )" ( *'"��&�/�� "��"#�& ")�/�*'/ #�!�/�) 4 / �%�
'"!����' !�*�""�*� 0 �%��(��������/% ")�'&�'#���"��#�*���..�&��" �%����(�&)��'���*'/�
�'��+'%� #�����/ "-�4��+��"���#���'"-�'"!�� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'!>'*�"������������
��/�"#��'"'/���� #���*'/��'��+'%�+��/!��'0������.���"� '/����#�..�&��'"!�
*�""�*��&�*&�'� �"'/,�/� #�&��'"!��2./�%2�"���..�&��" � �#�'*&�##�����$�%��&�'�
�(���'")�������&���*'/��'��+'%#�2'%� "*/�!������/ "-#�'"!�*�""�*� �"#�4��+��"�
��+"���"�&��'"!�����#�&&��"! ")�&�# !�"� '/�'&�'#��

�
���9 �"�'!! � �"���� 2.&�0 ")�#�#�' "'4/��/ "-#� "������'��+'%�/�*'� �"#,� 2.&�0 ")�

#�#�' "'4/���&'"#.�&��.&�0 # �"�'*&�##�������� !"�#� #�'"� "��)&'/�*�2.�"�"���(�
 2.&�0 ")�*�""�*� 0 �%�'"!�'**�## 4 / �%�'"!�'#�#�*��+ //�4��#�..�&��!�'*&�##�����
$�%��&�'��(���'")����2.&�0 ")�.�!�#�& '"�'"!�*%*/��'**�##����������&#�%�
+'��&(&�"�,������/�"#��'"'/,������ !"�#��'��&(&�"����##��'"-�� "�'&��'&-�'"!�
� !"�#��'&��,�+ //�'/#��4��#�..�&��!,�.'&� *�/'&/%�(&�2�� !"�#���+"���"�&�,�
 "*&�'# ")�����'&�'#� "(�&2'/�/� #�&���((�&����0�/�.2�"���..�&��" � �#����*�""�*��
��������'� �"'/��%*/�����+�&-�;&�������6�'"!������&'"#���"" "���&' /�+ //�4��
 2.�&�'"�� "�����'*� �0�2�"���(��� #���

�
����8 � )��1�'/ �%�'"!�#�#�' "'4/��!�# )"� #� 2.�&'� 0��(�&������������ !"�#�$�%��&�'��(�

��'")�������+'��&(&�"��/�*'� �"�'!>'*�"�����������&#�%�
#��'&%�'"!������/�"#�
�'"'/�#���/!� "(�&2�����!�# )"��(�"�+�!�0�/�.2�"�� "�����'&�',��"#�& ")�#�&'��) *�
0 �+#�'&��"���*�2.&�2 #�!�'"!�'&���� / #�!�4%�"�+�!�0�/�.2�"��+��&��.�## 4/���
=���&��!�0�/�.2�"��'"!�&�)�"�&'� �"�#���/!�2'3 2 #������'&�'B#�/�*'� �"�'#�'"�
 2.�&�'"��)'��+'%����� !"�#�'"!��"#�&��� )��1�'/ �%�(&�"�')�#�'/�")�-�%�&����#�
+ ���'�.'&� *�/'&��2.�'# #��"�������&'��) *�'"!���*'/��'��+'%#��	�"�+'4/��'"!�

APPENDIX APage 148



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

��E�

/�+�*'&4�"��"�&)%�!�0�/�.2�"��+ //�'/#��4��#�..�&��!�'*&�##�������� !"�#��
� !"�#��'��&(&�"���'#�4��"� !�"� ( �!�'#��'0 ")�.���"� '/�(�&�����!�/ 0�&%��(�
! #�& *����'� ")7�'"!�2'%�.&�#�"��'"��..�&��" �%����!�0�/�.�'"�'!! � �"'/�
"�&)%�
�& �& �%�?�"�� "�'**�&!'"*��+ ������95���#�' "'4/����0�/�.2�"��'"!��/ 2'���
��'")����

�
����� ��"�'2 "'� �"�'#�'�&�#�/���(�����*��2 *'/�'"!���'0%� "!�#�&%���'�� "�����.'#��

!�2 "'��!�� !"�#��'��&(&�"��'"!���#���'"-�.&�#�"�#� ##��#�(�&�(���&��
!�0�/�.2�"�������"� '/�& #-�'#�'�&�#�/���(�(/��! ")�'"!�.�//�� �"�'/#���3 #�#� "�
*�&�' "�/�*'� �"#�'*&�##�����'&�'�����75��'"') ")���//�� �"�'"!�	 #-�'"!�����&���=�
.�/ * �#�*�"�' " ")�)� !'"*��'##�* '��!�+ ���*�"�'2 "'� �",�(/��! ")�'"!�.�//�� �"�
'&�����&�(�&��.'&� *�/'&/%�'../ *'4/������� #�$�%��&�'��(���'")��'"!�#���/!�4��(�//%�
*�"# !�&�!�4%�(���&��!�0�/�.2�"��.&�.�#'/#��

�
����� ����(���&��!�0�/�.2�"���(�� !"�#��'��&(&�"�� #�*�&&�"�/%�)� !�!�4%������ !"�#�

�'��&(&�"������4'#�!��"������88��� !"�#��'��&(&�"���'#��&./'"����� /! ")��"�
����#�**�##(�/�!�/ 0�&%��(������'#��&./'",������ !"�#��'��&(&�"����'#����
�'#��&./'"�'"!���/ 0�&%���&'��)%:��'#�4��"�!�0�/�.�!����.&�0 !��'�(&'2�+�&-����
'��&'*�� "0�#�2�"��'"!�)� !��.�%# *'/�!�0�/�.2�"��'*&�##�����'&�'��"� /��8�7�'"!�
4�%�"!���..�&��" � �#�����.!'�������*�&&�"��� !"�#��'��&(&�"������ "�
'**�&!'"*��+ ���������'#�����'#��&./'"�+ //�4��.�&#��!��

�
����7 ����(���&��!�0�/�.2�"��'"!�&�)�"�&'� �"��(�������#���'"-�'&�'�+ //�4��#�..�&��!�

4%�'"�����(�&�����'&�'���� #�!&'+#���'0 /%��"�������&#�%��'��+'%�	�)�"�&'� �"�
��&'��)%��+� *�� #� "��)&'/��������!�/ 0�&%��(�������&#�%��'��+'%��&�>�*�������
.���"� '/�(�&�'�(���&������(�&�� !"�#���+"���"�&�����' !�(���&��)&�+���+ //�'/#��
4��.�&#��!�'/�")�+ ���2�&��#.�* ( *�#��! �#�&�#.�"! ")����/�*'/ #�!� ##��#�'"!�
�..�&��" � �#����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

                                                 
3 Arup (2010) Liverpool City Region Renewable Energy Capacity Study 
4 HBC and BDP (2004) Widnes Waterfront Masterplan and Delivery Strategy 
5 HBC, Taylor Young, et al (2009) Widnes Waterfront Phase 2 Masterplan and Delivery Strategy 
6 HBC and GVA (2008) Mersey Gateway Regeneration Strategy 

APPENDIX APage 149



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

��9�

 

�

!�+
�,�'-�.���-���
�

�

�������$�!�$�"��
�

���75����# ")�;���,��8�86A�����5��/'"" ")�(�&���#�' "'4/��

*�"�2 *��&�+���;���,��889A�����75��&'"#.�&��;���,��88�6�

�

+�"�$��%����"���
�

��&'��) *����# ")��'"!��0' /'4 / �%��##�##2�"��;���,��8�86A�
C� "��
2./�%2�"���'"!�'"!��&�2 #�#����!%�;�
��&��.,�
�8�8896A���'/��"�	��' /�'"!��� #�&�����!%�;���,��8896A�
� !"�#��'��&(&�"����'#�����'#��&./'"�'"!���/ 0�&%���&'��)%�
;���,��8896A��&'(����#���'"-�����;���,��8896A���&#�%�
�'��+'%�	�)�"�&'� �"���&'��)%�;����'"!����,��88E6A�
� 0�&.��/�� �%�	�) �"�	�"�+'4/��
"�&)%��'.'* �%����!%�
;�	��,��8�86���

�

��������"��/0�"��%� �
�

�,��,�7,�:,�D,�E�'"!�9�

�

����!�������� ��
�


2./�%2�"�,���'&" ")�'"!��- //#� "��'/��"A�
"0 &�"2�"��'"!�
	�)�"�&'� �"� "��'/��"�

��G�
"�&)%�
(( * �"*%�� ���@�
*�"�2%�
D�G��'"!�H�'/ �%� �:�G��� #�&��'"!����& #2�

�8�G����# ")� ���G���+"���"�&�#�

�

����/0�"��%� �
�

���G��**�## 4 / �%� �D�G���#�' "'4/���&'"#.�&���
�

������"�&��
�

�0�&'//,��� #�.�/ *%� #�.�# � 0�� "�#�#�' "'4 / �%���&2#�����&��2'%�
4��#�2��"�)'� 0���"0 &�"2�"�'/��((�*�#,���+�0�&����#��*'"�4��
2'"')�!�<�2 � )'��!��

APPENDIX APage 150



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	�
���
���
�
�
���� �����	�� !"�� !#$"%�%�&�	�� !"���'(��!)�*�	�� !"���+��","!���+�(��-��

��"��.��+��)+.��!"��/����!���! 0�1�$"�������+�"+�&��!,�(�2�'!$#����+�(�
"�&���"+�%!��!$$!"���%�%���)-% -�)%''�(�'%2�"�-%&-�3�+'%�.�+�(�+  ���%4'��
��2%"!�#�������%'%�%�&��-��+"�+��)+��","!���+�����*�"�5���+4'%�-�	�� !"���'(��!)��
+��+�2%4"+��� ���"�*�!,,�"�+���)�"��%(���%+'� !##��%�.�+�(�,�"�-�"��6$'!%���-��
�!"!�&-7��,"�%&-��+�(�(%��"%4��%!��$!����%+'���

�

�
���������������������������������������

�
�-��(�2�'!$#����+�(�"�&���"+�%!��!,������	�� !"��!2�"��-���!"����"+��&.�$�"%!(�)%''�4��
+ -%�2�(��-"!�&-8�
���

+1 �#$"!2%�&�	�� !"���'(��!)�7��"��+%'�!,,�"*�,! ��%�&��$��!�+4!���9*�:���3#�/&"!��1�
!,� !�2��%�� ��;� !#$+"%�!��&!!(��"��+%'%�&��!��-��#+%��"��+%'�+"�+�)%�-%���-���!)��
����"���!��(+".�+�(���$$!"�%�&�%���"!'��+��+��%��"% ������"��+�(�+� �'��"+'�+�(�
'�%��"��(���%�+�%!����

�
41 �-��(�'%2�".�!,��*9��:����()�''%�&��+ "!��������	�� !"��)%�-�+�$+"�% �'+"�

�#$-+�%��!���-��	�� !"���+��","!����%����!�+  !##!(+����*����<���()�''%�&�*�
)%�-��-��$!����%+'�,!"�+((%�%!�+'�"��%(���%+'�(�2�'!$#���*���4=� ���!�+$$"!$"%+���
+  �����

�
 1 �-��(�'%2�".�!,�:��-� �+"���!,��#$'!.#����'+�(�+�(��-��"�(�2�'!$#����+�(�

"�&���"+�%!��!,��6%��%�&��#$'!.#����+"�+��+ "!��������	�� !"��)%�-�+�,! ���!��
�-����"��.��+��)+.��!"��+�(��-��(�2�'!$#����!,�+���#$'!.#����+"�+�%���-��
�!��-�"��$+"��!,�	�� !"���+��","!����

�
(1 ��$$!"�%�&��-�� !#$"�-���%2��"�(�2�'!$#����!,�	�� !"���+��","!����!�4��+�

"��%(���%+'�'�(*�#%6�(�����"�&���"+�%!��%�%�%+�%2��)%�-�(��+%'�(�&�%(+� �*�'+�(�
+''! +�%!��*�+  ����+""+�&�#�����+�(� +$+ %�.��!�4��(���"#%��(���

�
�1 	�(�2�'!$%�&��-����"��.��+��)+.��!"��%��!�+���)� %2%'�)+��")+.�$!"�*���%'%�%�&��-��

(%"� ��'%�0���!��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'*�"!+(�+�(�"+%'�%�,"+��"� ��"�*�,�"�-�"�
��"��&�-��%�&��+'�!�7��"!'��+��+� ���"��,!"�'!&%��% ��+�(�(%��"%4��%!���

�
,1 �+$%�+'%�%�&�!���-��(�2�'!$#����+�(�"�&���"+�%!��!$$!"���%�%���$"������(�4.��-��

��"��.��+��)+.��"!=� ��$+"�% �'+"'.�+��! %+��(�)%�-��-��"�#!2+'�!,�"�(��(+���
%�,"+��"� ��"��+��! %+��(�)%�-��-���%'2�"�>�4%'����"%(&����

�
&1 ��2�'!$%�&���"+��&% �+�(��! +'��+��)+.��+��0�.�'! +�%!����!�����"��'%�0+&���+ "!���

�����	�� !"��+�(���""!��(%�&�+"�+���
�
������ !������"�#�!� $����
��2�'!$#����+ "!��������	�� !"��)%''�4���6$� ��(��!8�
�

• �#$"!2��+  ���%4%'%�.�+�(� !��� �%2%�.�+�(���$$!"��%#$"!2�#������!��-������+%�+4'��
�"+��$!"�����)!"0��

�
• 
���"��-%&-�3�+'%�.��"4+��(��%&��"�,'� �%�&������	�� !"�7��)+��","!���

��2%"!�#����*� "�+�%�&�+�2%4"+���(���%�+�%!��+�(�4!+��%�&�+�-%&-'.�+��"+ �%2��$�4'% �

APPENDIX APage 151



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

"�+'#��
�

• �2!%(�+(2�"���%#$+ ���!���-��%���&"%�.�!,�
�"!$�+���%������ -�+���-����"��.�
���+".�
�$� %+'��"!�� �%!���"�+�/���1�+�(;!"�	+#�+"��%���%� '�(%�&��-��+2!%(+� ��!,�
$!����%+'��%&�%,% +����,,� ��� +���(�4.��-��(�2�'!$#����!,��-����"��.��+��)+.��!"��
%� '�(%�&�+��! %+��(� -+���'� !���"� �%!��!"�("�(&%�&�+ �%2%�.��

���
• ?+ %'%�+���$�4'% �+  �����!��-��)+��","!���'! +�%!��*�$+"�% �'+"'.�	�� !"���"!#��+(��

+�(��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'*�+�(*�)-�"��+$$"!$"%+��*��+0��+(2+��+&��!,�!$$!"���%�%���
�!�%� "�+����-��'�%��"��+�(�"� "�+�%!�+'�$!����%+'�!,��-��)+��","!���)+��")+.��
)-�"�� !##�" %+''.�+$$"!$"%+����

�

• � -%�2��-%&-���+�(+"(��!,�����+%�+4'��(��%&��+�(� !���"� �%!��%� '�(%�&�+�"�(� �%!��
%�� +"4!���#%��%!����-"!�&-�"���)+4'��+�(�'!)� +"4!���� -�!'!&.�$+"�% �'+"'.�%��
+  !"(+� ��)%�-��-��%(���%,% +�%!��!,�+�$!����%+'�
��"&.��"%!"%�.�@!���+��	�� !"��
�+��","!����

�
�
�

�
�
%�����������������������"�����$�&�$��'�'�"�����$(�

APPENDIX APage 152



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�:�

� �
)��������������

�
���: 	�� !"���'(��!)��%���-��-%��!"% � !"��!,�	�� !"���?!''!)%�&��-���!"!�&-7��

 !##�" %+'�+�(�%�(���"%+'�&"!)�-*��-���'(��!)��)+��+��!����%#���-��#+%��
�-!$$%�&� ���"��%��	�� !"����!)�2�"*�)%�-�	�� !"�7��(��%&�+�%!��+��+���)��!)��
%���AB<*�+�(���4��3����� !���"� �%!��!,��-!$$%�&��%�.�/�+'�!����+1*�	�� !"���'(�
�!)��-+����,,�"�(�+����+(.�(� '%�����-��
6$"���)+.�"!+(����)!"0*�"+%'�
%�,"+��"� ��"��+�(�$+���"�(�2�'!$#����%���-�� ���"��-+�� !��"%4���(��!�+�$!!"'.�
(�,%��(�+�(�(%�=!%���(���2%"!�#����+�(��-�"��%��+�'+ 0�!,� '�+"�+�(�(%"� ��
$�(���"%+��+�(�2�-% �'+"�"!�����+�(� !��� �%!���4��)����	�� !"���'(��!)�*�
	�� !"��	+%')+.���+�%!�*���0��,%�'(�+�(�	�� !"��	%2�"�%(���!''�&�*�+�(�	�� !"��
�+��","!����

�
���� ?!''!)%�&��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'�)����!,�	�� !"���'(��!)��%��	�� !"��

�! 0��+�(�����!���! 0����-%��%�� �""���'.�+��+"�+�!,�$"�(!#%�+��'.��#$'!.#����
�����+�(�%� '�(��� !##�" %+'�(! 0�*�&���"+'�%�(���".*���!"+&��+�(�(%��"%4��%!��
����*�+'!�&�)%�-�+�'+"&��+#!����!,�(�"�'% ��+�(���(�"���(�'+�(���

�
���< �'�-!�&-��-��C�.��"�+�!,��-+�&��(%�$'+.��+�"+�&��!,�%�������-�"��+"��+���#4�"�!,�

(�2�'!$#����+�(�"�&���"+�%!��!$$!"���%�%���+ "!��������	�� !"��)-% -�)%''�-�'$�
�!�"�5���+4'%�-��-��+"�+�+��+�2%4"+���)+��"�%(��'! +�%!��!,,�"%�&�"��+%'*�'�%��"��+�(�
�#$'!.#����!$$!"���%�%���+�(�(�'%2�"%�&�-%&-�3�+'%�.�"��%(���%+'�(�2�'!$#�����
��2�'!$#����%���� !�"+&�(��!�"��$!�(�$!�%�%2�'.��!��-����!$$!"���%�%���+�(��+0��
+(2+��+&��!,������	�� !"�7��+������%� '�(%�&�2%�)��+ "!����-����"��.�
���+".*�
	�� !"���"!#��+(�*��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'*��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'*�2%�)��
+ "!����-����"��.�
���+".*�+�(��-����45"�&%!�+'�+�(��+�%!�+'�'%�0��+,,!"(�(�4.�
�����	�� !"�7��$"!6%#%�.��!��-����"+��&% �-%&-)+.����)!"0�+�(�	�� !"��	+%')+.�
��+�%!����

�
���9 �-��,! ���,!"�	�� !"���'(��!)��!2�"��-���!"����"+��&.�$'+��$�"%!(�)%''�4��!��

"�5���+4'%�-%�&��-�� ���"��+�(���+4'%�&�%���!�$"!2%(��,!"��-��(+.��!�(+.��-!$$%�&�
���(��!,�%���%##�(%+��� +� -#����)-%'���!,,�"%�&�+�)%(�"� !#$'�#���+".�,�� �%!��
�!��+'�!����+���-���'(��!)�7��(��%&�+�%!��+��+��%��"% ������"��/+��(��+%'�(�%��
��98������)!"0�!,�����"��1�)%''�"�,! ����-�� ���"��,!"�'! +'�%�(�$��(�����-!$�*�
�% -��"��+%'�"��+�(���"2% ��$"!2%(�"��+�(�+��+� ���"��,!"� �'��"+'�+�(�'�%��"��+ �%2%�.�
"�%�,!" %�&�+�(�(%2�"�%,.%�&��-���2��%�&�� !�!#.�,!"�	�� !"����-���'(��!)�7��
"!'��)%�-%��%���'! +'%��(� +� -#����)%''�4��$"!�� ��(�+�(���-+� �(�)-�"�2�"�
$!��%4'��+�(�!$$!"���%�%���,!"�+((%�%!�+'� !�2��%�� ��+�(� !#$+"%�!��$"!2%�%!��
�-!�'(�4��%(���%,%�(�+�(�$"!#!��(*�)-�"��+$$"!$"%+��*�%��+  !"(+� ��)%�-��-��
	��+%'�+�(���%��"�����(.��+�(��+�%!�+'�$'+��%�&�$!'% .��98������)!"0�!,�����"����
?���"��"��+%'�$"!2%�%!��)%''�4��+''! +��(�)%�-%���-���%����''! +�%!���+�(�
��2�'!$#�����+�+&�#����������

�
���B �-���+�+'�D�+"��"�!,,�"��+��%&�%,% +���!$$!"���%�.��!���$$!"���-���'(��!)�7��"�5

(�,%��(�"!'����-"!�&-��+0%�&�+(2+��+&��!,��-��)+��","!�������%�&�+'!�&�%(���-��
�"%(&�)+��"��+�+'�+�(�4�%'(%�&��$!���-����  ����!,��-���"%�('�.��"�������"�*��-��
�+�+'�D�+"��"�!,,�"���-��$!����%+'��!�4� !#���-�� +�+'.���,!"��-��)%(�"�
"�&���"+�%!��!,��-���'(��!)�*�(�'%2�"%�&�+�#%6�!,�'�%��"��+�(�"��+%'������%��+((%�%!��
�!�+��%&�%,% +���"��%(���%+'��'�#�����

�

                                                 
1 GVA (2009) Halton Retail and Leisure Study 

APPENDIX APage 153



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

���� �����	�� !"��-+���-�� +$+ %�.��!� !��"%4�����!�(%2�"�%,.%�&��-��-!��%�&�!,,�"�
+ "!����-���!"!�&-�"�%�,!" %�&��6%��%�&���%&-4!�"-!!(���-"!�&-��-��+((%�%!��!,�
�!#��-%&-�"�3�+'%�.�"��%(���%+'�(�2�'!$#�����	�� !"���+��","!���/'! +��(�+��
	�� !"���! 0�1�%��$+"�% �'+"�$"!2%(����-��!$$!"���%�.��!�(�'%2�"�+���)�-%&-�
3�+'%�.�)+��","!���"��%(���%+'� !##��%�.�)%�-��-��$!����%+'��!�+  !##!(+����$��!�
<*������%���!2�"+''���-��,�''�(�'%2�".�!,��-��"��%(���%+'�"�(�2�'!$#����!,�	�� !"��
�+��","!��*�-!)�2�"*�)%''�4��(�$��(�����$!���� �"%�&�+(�3�+����%���+  ����+�(�
)%''�4�����+4'%�-�(��-"!�&-�#+���"$'+��%�&*��-���%����''! +�%!���+�(���2�'!$#����
�+�+&�#��������+�(��-��(�2�'!$#����!,�+�	�� !"���+��","!������������� -�
�-�� �""������"+��&% ��!��%�&��+�(��2+%'+4%'%�.�������#���:�!�'.�%� '�(���+�.%�'(�!,�
�*����<�����%���%���-��$�"%!(��!�:�:EB���-��,���"��"�(�2�'!$#����!,�	�� !"��
�+��","!���)%''�+'�!���$$!"��"��+%'�+�(� !##��%�.�,+ %'%�%��*�!$����$+ �*�+�(�+��
�#$'!.#����+"�+�,!"#%�&�+�4�,,�"��!��-��%�(���"%+'�+"�+��!��-���!��-�����%��
��2%�+&�(��-+���-��"�(�2�'!$#����!,�	�� !"���+��","!���)%''�4��(�'%2�"�(�!2�"�+�
:�5���.�+"��%#���$+���

�

���E ����!���! 0�*��!��-���!��-�!,��-��C�.��"�+�!,��-+�&�*�-+��4����"�54"+�(�(�+��
�-����"��.��+��)+.��!"����-%��)%''�4��"�(�2�'!$�(�%��!�+���)� %2%'�)+��")+.�$!"��
,!"�#�'�%#!(+'�'!&%��% ��+�(�(%��"%4��%!��$"!2%(%�&��#$'!.#����!$$!"���%�%���,!"�
�-��'! +'�+"�+�+�(�4�%'(%�&��$!���-��,"�%&-��+�(�(%��"%4��%!����"��&�-��!,��-������
,+ %'%�.�+���%��!��/�!'% .���E1���-���!"��%��'%�0�(�(%"� �'.��!��-���+� -����"��-%$�
�+�+'�+�(� !��� ����!��-����"��.�
���+".�+�(���+2�"��+2%&+�%!���	!+(�+  �����!�
�-���!"��%��2%+��% !)�?+"#�	!+(�+�(��-���)���)+"(��+ "!����-��	�� !"��+�(�
����!���+�+'������-��'!�&�"���"#*��-��+�$%"+�%!��%���!� !��� ���-���!"���!�"+%'�
%�,"+��"� ��"���!��6$+�(�,"�%&-���"+��$!"����

�
���A 
�2%"!�#���+'�+�����#�����)%''�4��"�3�%"�(�,!"��-��,���"��(�2�'!$#����!,��-��

��"��.��+��)+.��!"��+�(�+�.�+��! %+��(� -+���'� !���"� �%!��!"�("�(&%�&�+ �%2%�.�
�!�+2!%(�$!����%+''.��%&�%,% +����,,� ���!���-����"��.�
���+".�����+�(;!"�	+#�+"�
�%��*�+�(�!�-�"�
�"!$�+���%������-����+�����#������-!�'(�%(���%,.��-��� +'��!,�+�.�
("�(&%�&�+ �%2%�%���+�(�+�.�+��! %+��(�%#$+ ��!,�#!4%'%�+�%!��!,� !��+#%�+����%���-��
��(%#������

�
���A����� 
#$'!.#����!$$!"���%�%���+'�!��6%���)%�-%���-���% !)�?+"#�	!+(�+�(���+�-�

	!+(��!"�-���(���"%+'�
��+������-�������+����+'"�+(.�$�",!"#�+��%#$!"�+���'! +'�
�#$'!.#����"!'��)-% -��-!�'(�4����-+� �(��	�� !"���'(��!)��-+��4����
%(���%,%�(�)%�-%���-��>!%���
#$'!.#�����+�(�+�(��"�#%�������(.��+��-+2%�&�+�'%#%��(�
!,,% ��#+"0���(����!�'+�(� !���"+%����+�(�+���� -���)�!,,% ��(�2�'!$#����+ �%2%�.�
%��	�� !"��%��'+"&�'.�(%"� ��(��!��+"��4�".�%��
+���	�� !"��/����1�����

�
����� �((%�%!�+'��#$'!.#����!$$!"���%�%���#+.��#�"&��%���-��'!�&�"5��"#�+��$+"��!,��-��

��"��.��+��)+.��"!=� ��+�(��-����4��3�����F(�5'%�0%�&7�!,��-���%'2�"�>�4%'����"%(&��
)-% -�)%''������-��"�#!2+'�!,�"�(��(+���-%&-)+.�%�,"+��"� ��"����-%��#+.�"���'��%��
�-��F��'! 0%�&7�!,�(�2�'!$#����'+�(��-"!�&-�"�#!(�''%�&��-��	�� !"��F�!!$�7���-��
F(�5'%�0%�&7�+""+�&�#�����+"��+%#�(�+��"�(� %�&��-��$!����%+'�,!"��-���%'2�"�>�4%'���
�"%(&���!�4�����(�+��+���"+��&% �'%�0�,!"�'!�&�(%��+� ���"+,,% �#!2�#���*�)-%'���
%� "�+�%�&�%���,�� �%!��+��+�'! +'� !��� �%!��,!"�"��%(�����+�(�4��%�������%���-��
�!"!�&-<���-%��)%''�#+6%#%����-��(�2�'!$#����+�(� !##�" %+'�!$$!"���%�%���!,�
�-��'+�(�+(=!%�%�&�	�� !"��	+%')+.���+�%!�*�)-%'���,+ %'%�+�%�&��-��$"!2%�%!��!,�+�0�.�

                                                 
2 HBC (2010) Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 2010/11 
3 BE Group (200109) Joint Employment Land and Premises Study (JELPS) 
4 HBC (2009) Mersey Gateway Sustainable Transport Strategy  

APPENDIX APage 154



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<�

��45"�&%!�+'�%���" -+�&��+�(��"+��$!"��-�49�+�(�)%''�-�'$��!��+ 0'���-��%������!,�
��2�"+� ��+ "!����-��+"�+���-��"�#!2+'�!,�"!+(�%�,"+��"� ��"��#+.�+'�!�$"������
!$$!"���%�%����!�"�%���+����-��,!"#�"�+'%&�#����!,��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'�4��)����
	�� !"���'(��!)��+�(�	�� !"���+��","!����!��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'���-%��
-+���-��$!����%+'��!� "�+���+��� !�(��-��-%"���+�+'�	%�&�,�"�-�"��� !�"+&%�&�+�(�
��$$!"�%�&��-��'�%��"��+�(�"� "�+�%!�+'�$!����%+'�!,��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'���-��
"!����!,��-��+'%&�#����)%''�4��$"!�� ��(��-"!�&-��-���%����''! +�%!���+�(�
��2�'!$#�����+�+&�#���������

�
����: C�.�$!%����!,�2�-% �'+"�+�(�$�(���"%+��+  ����+ "!��������	�� !"��-+2��4����

$"%!"%�%��(�+��F��"+��&% ��+��)+.�7��!�+%(�#!2�#����+�(� !��� �%2%�.��-"!�&-!���
�-%��C�.��"�+�!,��-+�&����-%��%� '�(����-��'%�0��4��)����	�� !"���'(��!)�*��-��
��+�%!��+�(�	�� !"���+��","!��*�+�(��-����"+��&% �"!+(�'%�0��!��-����"��.�
�+��)+.��!"��2%+��% !)�?+"#�	!+(�����"+ �%2��&+��)+.�,�+��"����� -�+��
'+�(� +$%�&�+�(�+"�)!"0�)%''�4����$$!"��(�%���-����'! +�%!������-�"�'! +''.�
%#$!"�+���&+��)+.��)%''�+'�!�4���� !�"+&�(��!���$$!"��'! +'%��(�+  ����+�(�
 !��� �%2%�.�+�(�%#$"!2���-��'�&%4%'%�.�!,��-��'! +'���2%"!�#������-����F�! +'�
�+��)+.�G��-!�'(�4�����(��!�4����"�%���&"+��������	�� !"�7��)+��","!�����-��
�"%(&�)+��"��+�+'�)%�-�)+'0%�&�+�(� . '%�&����)!"0�*�)%�-�+�$+"�% �'+"��#$-+�%��
!��	�� !"���"!#��+(��+�(��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'���+�(��-���+� -����"��-%$�
�+�+'�)-�"�� !#$+�%4'��)%�-� !��%��%�&� !##�" %+'�����!,��-��)+��")+.��

�
����� �(2+��+&���-!�'(�+'�!�4���+0���!,�!$$!"���%�%����!�%� "�+����-��'�%��"��+�(�

"� "�+�%!�+'�$!����%+'�!,��-��)+��")+.����!)�2�"*� !��%(�"+�%!���-!�'(�4��&%2���
�!��-�� !##�" %+'������+�(�!$�"+�%!�+'�%������!,��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'�����
�� -*�"� "�+�%!�+'��+2%&+�%!��!,��-���+� -����"��-%$��+�+'�#+.�!�'.�4��$"+ �% +'�!��
+�'%#%��(�+�(� !��"!''�(�4+�%����

�
����:����< �%&-�3�+'%�.�(��%&���-"!�&-!��������	�� !"��)%''�4�����(��!� "�+���

+��"+ �%2����2%"!�#����*�"��$!�(%�&�$!�%�%2�'.��!��-�� -+"+ ��"�!,��-��+"�+�+�(�
%���&"+�%�&��-��+"�+�)%�-��-��)+��","!����!,��-���"%(&�)+��"��+�+'*��+� -����"�
�-%$��+�+'�;���"��.�
���+".*� "�+�%�&�+���%3���������!,�$'+ ��+�(�+�2%4"+���+�����,!"�
�-���!"!�&-����2�'!$#����$"!$!�+'���-!�'(�-+2��"�&+"(��!�+$$"!$"%+���
)+��","!�����"+��&%���+�(�%�%�%+�%2��*�%� '�(%�&��-���"%(&�)+��"��+.�%�%�%+�%2��)-% -�
+%#���!�$"!#!����-��"� "�+�%!�+'*�'�%��"��+�(�����+%�+4'���"+2�'�$!����%+'�!,��-��
�"%(&�)+��"��+�+'���

�
���������9 ����+%�+4'��(��%&��+�(� !���"� �%!��+�(��-��(�2�'!$#����!,�"���)+4'��+�(�

'!)� +"4!�����"&.�)%''�+'�!�4����$$!"��(�+ "!��������	�� !"���	�� !"��
�+��","!���-+��4����%(���%,%�(�+��+��
��"&.��"%!"%�.�@!��B�+�(�!$$!"���%�%����!�
(�2�'!$�+��%��"% ����+�%�&�� -�#��)%''�4��$+"�% �'+"'.��� !�"+&�(�%���-��,���"��
"�(�2�'!$#����!,��-%��+"�+�$+"�% �'+"'.�)-�"���-%��%�� !#$+�%4'��)%�-���%&-4!�"%�&�
%�(���"%+'������������-��+ -%�2�#����!,�����+%�+4'��(��%&��+�(� !���"� �%!��
$"!$!�+'��)%''�+((%�%!�+''.����(��!�����"���-��$"!�� �%!��!,�)+��"�3�+'%�.�!,��-��
+"�+��)+��")+.��%��+  !"(+� ��)%�-���:�8��+�+&%�&��!''��%!��+�(�	%�0��

�
����<����B �-���!�� %'�)%''�)!"0�$"!+ �%2�'.�)%�-��-��'+�(!)��"�!,�	�� !"��

�+��","!���+�(�!�-�"�$!����%+'�(�'%2�".�$+"���"���!�(�2�'!$�+��+���"$'+���!�&�%(��
�-��(�2�'!$#����!,��-���%�����-%��)%''�4���"+��'+��(�%��!��-���%����''! +�%!���+�(�
��2�'!$#�����+�+&�#��������+�(�)%''�,!"#��-��4+�%��!,�+�	�� !"���+��","!���
������"!$!�+'��,!"�	�� !"���'(��!)�*�%� '�(%�&��-!���+��! %+��(�)%�-��-���+�+'�

                                                 
5 HBC & GVA (2008) Mersey Gateway Regeneration Strategy 
6 Arup (2010) Liverpool City Region Renewable Energy Capacity Study 

APPENDIX APage 155



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�9�

D�+"��"�)%''�4����$$!"��(�4.�+�������-%������)%''�+'�!�+%#��!�4�%'(��$!���-��
#�+��"���$"!$!��(�%���-����"��.��+��)+.�	�&���"+�%!����"+��&.��%� '�(%�&��-!���
+��! %+��(�)%�-��-���%'2�"�>�4%'����"%(&����!"��(��+%'�(�$!'% %���+�(��-��+''! +�%!��
!,��%����,!"��-��(�'%2�".�!,��-%��C�.��"�+�!,��-+�&��/%� '�(%�&��-����"��.��+��)+.�
�!"�1�)%''�4��%� '�(�(�)%�-%���-���%����''! +�%!���+�(���2�'!$#�����+�+&�#����
�����

�

�

�
�

 

                                                 
7
 HBC & GVA (2008) Mersey Gateway Regeneration Strategy 

�

��*+�,�%��-	������
�

�


������!���!����
�

����8��!��%�&�/���*�:���1H����<8��'+��%�&�,!"�����+%�+4'��

 !�!#% ��"!)�-�/���*�:��A1H������8��"+��$!"��/���*�
:���1�

�

*���!�	#�'������
�

��"+��&% ��!��%�&��+�(��2+%'+4%'%�.�������#����/���*�:���1H�
>!%���
#$'!.#�����+�(�+�(��"�#%�������(.�/�
��"!�$*�
:����A1H��+'�!��	��+%'�+�(���%��"�����(.�/���*�:��A1H���"��.�
�+��)+.�	�&���"+�%!����"+��&.�/����+�(����*�:��E1H���"��.�
�+��)+.��"+��$!"����"+��&.�/���*�:��A1H��%2�"$!!'��%�.�
	�&%!��	���)+4'��
��"&.��+$+ %�.����(.�/�	��*�:���1���

�

�����������./����#���
�

�*�:*��*�<*�9*��*�E�+�(�A�

�

����������������
�


#$'!.#���*���+"�%�&�+�(��0%''��%���+'�!�H�
�2%"!�#����+�(�
	�&���"+�%!��%���+'�!��

��I��+��"�� ���I��  ���%4%'%�.�
B�I�
��"&.�
,,% %�� .� �<�I�
 !�!#.�

��I��+�(�D�+'%�.� �B�I��!)������"���

�

����./����#���
�

���I��!��%�&� �
�

��������$��
�

�-��,! ���!,��-%��$!'% .�%��4"%�&%�&�'+"&��+"�+��!,�$"�2%!��'.�
(�2�'!$�(�'+�(�4+ 0�%��!�4���,% %+'��������2�'!$#����)%''�4��
(��%&��(�)%�-�����+%�+4%'%�.�%��#%�(���-%��$!'% .�)%''� !��"%4����
$!�%�%2�'.��!�����+%�+4%'%�.�$"%� %$'�����!)�2�"*�(�2�'!$#����%��
�-��+"�+� !�'(�$!����%+''.�-+2��+���&+�%2��%#$+ ��!��)+��"�
3�+'%�.��

APPENDIX APage 156



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
���

�� ���������	�
���

��
�
���� ���
����	��� !�"��#$� %% !���&�'�$(&����� ��!$��$����$)�� **��&�'�+ !���,� ��

)#&�#�)&,,�$�� *%������-&.$!�$�*&(� +���$����-�� ��&��$��#$�-$.$, %*$��� +�
	��� !��&��,&�$�)&�#��#$�, �/��$!*�.&�& ��+ !��#$�� ! �/#���0#&,����#$�)# ,$� +�
�#$�
����	��� !���!$��� ���&���$����1$'��!$�� +��#��/$�)&�#&���#$�� !$�
��!��$/'"��#$���!$�2�!'�&���,, ���$-��������!��$/&���&�$�����-$!��#$�%! .&�& ��� +�
����3"��!$���)&�#&���#$���!��$/&���&�$����&�-&���$-� ��4&/�!$����2$, )��!$�
�#$!$+ !$��,, ���$-�+ !��%$�&+&��,��-���$������# )��&�-&���$-�& ��4&/�!$��3��
2$, )����������!��$/&���&�$"��#$��!$��)&,,�-$,&.$!�*��'� +��#$�!$5�&!$-� ��� *$��
&��!&��&��� ��#$�����$�����-�+���!$�%! �%$!&�'� +���,� ���

�

�
������������������������������
��������

�

�
�
����������������
����������������������������������� ������������������� ��������
�
�

APPENDIX APage 157



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
���

�

��!$�2�!'���!��$/&���&�$�
�

�#$���!��$/&���&�$����-$+&�$-��2 .$"�)&,,�-$,&.$!��#$�+ ,, )&�/�-$.$, %*$��6�
�7 3�#�� +�,��-�)&,,�2$�*�-$��.�&,�2,$�� ��&-��#$�$(%���& �� +��#$������&$��$"�#&/#��$�#�

��-�!$�$�!�#�-$.$, %*$�������#$�$(&��&�/���!$�2�!'���&$��$���-���� .��& ����*%���
8���7���-����,��-�2$�)$$���#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,���-��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!�!�&,)�'�
,&�$:�

�
27 �#$� ++&�$���-�;� ),$-/$�2��$-�+��&,&�&$�������!$�2�!'����&�$�����!;�)&,,�2$�&��!$��$-�

�#! �/#��#$�-$,&.$!'� +���+�!�#$!��<#�� +���8�7���-�827�-$.$, %*$����
�

�7 �#��$-�-$,&.$!'� +��%%! (&*��$,'��"�<<�-)$,,&�/�"�� �%! .&-$���)&-$�!��/$� +�# ��&�/�
2'��&=$"��'%$���-��$��!$"�&��,�-&�/��++ !-�2,$�# ��&�/�&����� !-���$�)&�#��#$�
%! .&�& ��� +����>6��++ !-�2,$�� ��&�/����$)�# ��&�/��# �,-�2$�2! �/#��+ !)�!-�&��
�#$�+ ,, )&�/�2! �-�%#��$�6�

�

• �#��$���?�@<<�-)$,,&�/�� ���#$�,��-�;� )������$,%#����$�0$��"�2$�)$$���#$�
0$���� ������&���&�$���-��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!��&�$�� ��#$�� !�#� +��#$��&�$"�
��-� ���#$�,��-�&**$-&��$,'���!! ��-&�/��!$�� ���!  ;���!&���

• �#��$�3�?��<<�-)$,,&�/��&���#$��$��!�,��!$��2$�)$$���#$���!$�2�!'�������-�
��!$�2�!'���!;�

• �#��$�>�?�><<�-)$,,&�/������#$��!$��;� )�����0#�!+ !-�4�!*"�2$�)$$���#$�0$���
� ������&���&�$���-��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!�,&�$�� ��#$�� ��#� +��#$��&�$�

�
-7 ��*&($-���$��$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$�&��,�-&�/���*�!&���%! .&-&�/�*  !&�/��+ !�&�,��-�

)��$!)�'���!�+���&�$-��, �/�&-$��#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,��! ��-��#$�$(&��&�/��$ !/$�
�,$�.$A��2!&-/$�����'����#�%! .&�& �� +����$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$��# �,-��. &-�
�����$%��2,$�&*%���� ���#$�.&��,&�'���-�.&�2&,&�'� +�$(&��&�/��$��!$����-��#$�%,���$-�
�$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$�������-'*  !�����-&.&-��,�!$��&,���&����# �,-�� ��$(�$$-�
3B<�5��&���&=$��

�

!�����"�#�����#"��������$�"�#%����
�
�� ���$�) !;� +� %$���%��$��+ !�����!$�� ��$!.��& ����-�!$�!$��& ���# �,-�2$�%! .&-$-"�

&��,�-&�/��#$�!$�$��& �� +���!$�2�!'�4&!�"��#$��!$��& �� +���,&�$�!�� ���!'�%�!;��, �/��#$�
�!&-/$)��$!�����,�� !!&- !"�+ !*�,�/!$$���%��$�� ��$!.$��#$�!$�&-$��&�,��!$�"��$)�%�!;,��-�
� ��#� +��$,%#����$"���-��*�,,$!�/!$$���%��$��&��$/!�,�� �&�-&.&-��,�-$.$, %*$�����

�
3� �#$��&*$,'�%! .&�& �� +�%#'�&��,���-�� �&�,�&�+!���!����!$�� ���%% !���#$�-$.$, %*$������

�#$��&�$���-�� ����� �� �� .$!,'�2�!-$��+��&,&�&$��&����!! ��-&�/��!$����������-� ++��&�$�
%! .&�& ����-�-$.$, %$!�� ��!&2��& ��"�&��,�-&�/��#$�%  ,&�/� +�� ��!&2��& �����! ����&�$��
� �-$,&.$!�,�!/$�&�$*�� +�&�+!���!����!$�)&,,�2$��$$-$-�� �*$$���#$�&�+!���!����!$�
!$5�&!$*$���� +��#$�-$.$, %*$����!$���

�
>� �#$�)# ,$� +��#$�-$.$, %*$����# �,-�2$��$!.$-�2'�%�2,&���!���% !�"�� �� ��$����#$�

$*%, '*$��"�# ��&�/���-�!$��&,C,$&��!$��!$�������#$�%�2,&���!���% !���$�) !;�����#$��&�$�
�# �,-�&��,�-$��#$�%! .&�& �� +����!���% !��&��$!�#��/$�+��&,&�'��&�$-�� �*�&���&���#$�, �/�
�$!*��&*�� +�-$,&.$!&�/���!�&,)�'�����& ��&���#$�, �/��$!*�

�
�� �#$�%! * �& �� +�)�,;&�/���-��'�,&�/�! ��$����-�$(%���& �� +��#$��!$$�)�'��$�) !;�� �

%! .&-$��,$�!���-���+$�,&�;��� ���!! ��-&�/�� **��&�&$�"�&��,�-&�/��$)�%$-$��!&�����-�

APPENDIX APage 158



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
�B�

�'�,&���,&�;��� ����-'*  !���-�&*%! .$*$����� ��#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,�� !!&- !�&��,&�$�)&�#�
�#$�%!&��&%,$��&�����@6������&��2,$��!���% !���

�
@� �#$�-$�&/�"�,�' �����-���',$� +�&�-&.&-��,�%, ����# �,-�2$�/�&-$-�2'���-$�&/��+!�*$) !;���-�

�# �,-�2$�&�+,�$��$-�2'��#$�$(&��&�/�, ���& ��,����$��� +��#$��!$����-�&�����!! ��-&�/����
�%% !���&�&$��� �&��$/!��$�!$�$)�2,$�$�$!/'��$�#� , /&$���# �,-��,� �2$�� �/#��&��
��� !-���$�)&�#��#$�&-$��&+&$-�
�$!/'��!& !&�'�D �$������!$�2�!'��

�
�� �$.$, %*$��� +��#$���!$�2�!'���!��$/&���&�$��# �,-�&��$/!��$�)&�#��#$��-E��$���!$�&-$��&�,�

� **��&�'�������-'*  !"�%�!�&��,�!,'��#! �/#������&��2,$��!���% !��,&�;���
�

���-'*  !�
� *%,$�& �� +��#$����-'*  !�!$�&-$��&�,��!$��)&,,�2$���#&$.$-��#! �/#��#$�-$,&.$!'� +�
�%%! (&*��$,'��"�<<��--&�& ��,���&���� ��#$�� ��#���-�)$��� +��#$�$(&��&�/����-'*  !�
� **��&�'"�&��,&�$�)&�#� ������-&�/�� ��$����&��,�-&�/����$)��$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$"�%!&*�!'�
��#  ,�8&+�!$5�&!$-7���-�%�2,&���!���% !��� ��$��& ������#$�-$,&.$!'� +�+�!�#$!�-$.$, %*$������
���-'*  !��# �,-�#�.$�!$/�!-�� ��#$��- %�$-�%,���&�/�+!�*$) !;��
�
�

APPENDIX APage 159



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
�F�

��������&������� ��������������������""���������'���������������
�������������������
�������(�%������������%)�

APPENDIX APage 160



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B<�

�
*�������������

�
�����
��������������������������

���3 �#$�1$'��!$�� +��#��/$�,&$��� ��#$�$���� +�	��� !����-�&����!!$��,'���*&(��!$� +�
-$.$, %$-�,��-"�&��$!�%$!�$-�2'��/!&��,��!�,�,��-����#$���-$.$, %$-�!$*�&�-$!� +�
�#$����-'*  !��!$�"��, �/�)&�#�,��-�� ��#$�)$��� +���!$�2�!'�.&,,�/$"�!$%!$�$����
� *$� +��#$�!$*�&�&�/�*�E !�/!$$�+&$,-��&�$��&����,� ����#$��!$��&��-&��$��$-�2'�
�#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,�)#&�#��%,&���&�� ��) ��!*������#$�� ��#� +��#$��!$����-�
�,� ��) �!�&,)�'�,&�$�:��#$�0$���� ������&���&�$���-��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!�
,&�$����#$�.�!& ����!���% !��,&�;��%!$�$���2 �#�2�!!&$!��� �* .$*$�����-�
-$.$, %*$��"�� ���$!$-�2'� %% !���&�&$��� �&*%! .$��*$�&�'���-������&��2,$�
�!���% !��!$�%$��&.$,'����#$�����,�� ++$!�������!���&.$�,��-���%$�+ !��#$��!$�"�)&�#�
 %% !���&�&$��+ !�� �!&�*���-�!$�!$��& �"�)#&,����#$�%!$�$��$� +��#$�!�&,)�'�,&�$��
�#! �/#��#$��&�$� ++$!��#$�% �$��&�,�+ !�, �/�-&�����$������&��2,$��!�.$,� %�& ���&��
�#$�, �/$!��$!*����#$�1$'��!$�� +��#��/$�#�����.�!&$-�� % /!�%#'�)#&�#�/&.$��
%! *&�$��$�� ��#$�$������-�� ��#� +��#$��&�$�&��,�-&�/��#$�)  -$-��!$�� +�
��!$�2�!'�4&!�"�)#&�#��--������! �/�.&���,�&-$��&�'�� ��#&��%�!�� +��#$��&�$���-������
2��;-! %�� ���!$�2�!'��������#$���-$.$, %$-�!$*�&�-$!� +��#$����-'*  !��!$��
� ��#$�)$��� +��#$�*�&���!*� +��#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,"��, �/�)&�#�,��-�� ��#$�
)$��� +���!$�2�!'�.&,,�/$"�!$%!$�$����� *$� +��#$�!$*�&�&�/�/!$$�+&$,-��&�$��&��
��,� ���

�
�����%����

���> �! % ��,��� �-$.$, %��#$����-'*  !��!$��)$!$�&��,�-$-�&���#$�	��� !���$)�
� )��%,���� +��#$��F�<����-��F�<�"���-��%$�&+&��,,'��! �$�+! *�����$!��,���
�*$�-*$���� �3��&���F�������-$!��$��& ������ +��#$��$)�� )��������FB�"�
-$.$, %*$��� +��#$����-'*  !��!$��+ !�!$�&-$��&�,�-$.$, %*$���#���� �-&�& ��,�
�%%! .�,�+ !�-$.$, %*$��������%!&,�3<�<"�E���� .$!��<<<�-)$,,&�/�"�%,���
&�+!���!����!$"�/!$$���%��$����-���� **��&�'��$��!$�#�-�2$$��2�&,�����
���-'*  !��&��$��#��$��� +��#$�-$.$, %*$���� **$��$-�&���#$�,��$��FB<�3���
�������-&�/�%,���&�/�� ��$����&�-&���$��#����#$��!$��#����#$�!$*�&�&�/�% �$��&�,�
� �-$,&.$!�����--&�& ��,���<<�-)$,,&�/�"��, �/�)&�#�!$�$!.$-��&�$��+ !���, ��,�
�$��!$���-�%!&*�!'���#  ,�)#&�#��!$�,&;$,'�� �2$�-$,&.$!$-� ��$��#$�� **��&�'�
#���/! )����++&�&$��,'�� �*�;$��#$�$�+��&,&�&$�������&��2,$���-�.&�2,$������%�!�� +�
�#$� ��,&�$�� ��$����������-'*  !"����$(�$��&.$���#$-�,$� +�&�+!���!����!$�
!$5�&!$*$����)���%! -��$-�)#&�#�+ !*$-��#$�2��&�� +����$��& ���<���/!$$*$���
+ !��#$����-'*  !��!$�����#$� ������-&�/�&�+!���!����!$�!$5�&!$*$����#�.$�2$$��
�!���,��$-�&�� ��#$���+!���!����!$��,��"��, �/�)&�#��#$�2 -&$��!$�% ��&2,$�+ !�
-$,&.$!'���-�,&;$,'�-$.$, %*$���� �����

�
����� �������������������

���� ��!$�2�!'���!��$/&���&�$�&����!!$��,'�- *&���$-�2'��#$�!$/& ��,,'��&/�&+&�����
$*%, '*$����!$��� +���!$�2�!'���!;���-���!$�2�!'����������& ��,,'��#$�
$(%���& �� +���&$��&+&��!$�$�!�#���-���&$��$�!$,��$-�2��&�$���-$.$, %*$���#���
2$$��%!& !&�&�$-� .$!�!$�$���'$�!��� �/! )��#$��$�� !������3<<�"�����&$��$���-�
��� .��& ����.$��*$���4!�*$) !;�3<<�93<��>�)���-!�)���%�� �/�&-$�+���!$�
&�.$��*$���&�����& ��,���&$��$�+��&,&�&$��&��,�-&�/��#$���!$�2�!'���&$��$���-�
��� .��& ����*%������#&��+!�*$) !;��%$�&+&��,,'�%! * �$-��#$��!$��& �� +��) �

                                                 
1 Runcorn Development Corporation (1971) Runcorn New Town Master Plan Amendment No.2 
2 GVA Grimley for HBC (2009) Sandymoor Supplementary Planning Document 
3 HM Treasury (2006) Science and Innovation Investment Framework 2004-2014: Next Steps 

APPENDIX APage 161



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B��

��&$��$���-���� .��& ����*%��$�"� �$������!)$,,�&���(+ !-�#&!$���-��#$� �#$!�
�����!$�2�!'����#$�!$,��& ��#&%�2$�)$$���#$��) ���*%��$�"�;� )������#$�
G-&% ,$G"�$��2,$����'� !/��&���& ��$�/�/&�/�)&�#� �$���*%���� �#�.$����$���� �
�#$�+��&,&�&$����-�$(%$!�&�$� +�2 �#���������!$�2�!'"��#$�$(&��&�/���!$�2�!'�
��2 !�� !&$����-���� �&��$-�+��&,&�&$��+ !*��#$�2��&�� +��#$���&$��$���-���� .��& ��
��*%��"�)&�#���%&!��& ���+ !��#$���&$��$���-�!$�$�!�#�+��&,&�&$��� �$(%��-�� �
- �2,$��#$���!!$����&=$� +��#$�+��&,&�'������!$�$���'$�!�"�����*2$!� +�+��&,&�&$��#�.$�
2$$��2�&,�� ��%! *&�$���/��$)�'��&�$�����#�����#$���!$�2�!'���� .��& ���$��!$�
��-��#$�� �;�! +������&���$�8�#$����& ��,��$��!$�+ !����$,$!�� !���&$��$7���
���/��!-�� ��$�8��-$!�� ���!���& ��&��3<��<7�)&,,�-$,&.$!�#&/#�5��,&�'� ++&�$"�
,�2 !�� !'"���-�) !;�# %��%��$��

�
���@ 4 ,, )&�/� ��+! *��#$�!$� /�&�& �� +���!$�2�!'���������& ��,,'�&*% !�����

��*%��"���!$�$)$-�&*%$����� �!$�,&�$��#$�-$.$, %*$���% �$��&�,� +��#$�
��!$�2�!'��!$���! �$�)#&�#�$*$!/$-��#! �/#���%�!��$!�#&%��%%! ��#�� �
.&�& �&�/��#$�+���!$�+ !��#$��!$�������;$# ,-$!�"�,��- )�$!����-�% �$��&�,�
-$.$, %$!��&���#$��!$��) !;$-�� ,,�2 !��&.$,'�� �%! -��$�����!��$/&��.&�& ����-�
� *%!$#$��&.$�����$!��,���+ !��#$���!$�2�!'��!$�"�2��$-��! ��-��#$�� �& �� +�
� ��$��&�/��#$��$%�!��$�;� ),$-/$����,$&� +��#$�2��&�$�����-���&$��$�+��&,&�&$����
�'�2! �-$�&�/��#$��%%$�,� +��#$���!$�2�!'��&�$��#$�&��$��& ��&��� �%! �$���
��!$�2�!'����A��! ,$������%!&*�!'����& ��,��&�$�+ !�) !,-9�,������&$��$���-��!$��$�
���$�.&! �*$���)#&�#�$�� �!�/$��;� ),$-/$��!���+$!����#$�����$!��,���+ !$�����
��><9�<�'$�!�-$,&.$!'�%$!& -�+ !��#$�!$�,&���& �� +��#$�%! % �$-�-$.$, %*$��"�
-!&.$��2'��#$�%��$� +�$(%���& �������!$�2�!'�����)#&�#�&��%!$- *&����,'�
-$�$!*&�$-�2'��#$��.�&,�2&,&�'� +�+��-&�/��

�
���� ��;&�/��#$����,$� +��#$�%! % ��,��&�� ���� ���"�&��&�����&�&%��$-��#����#$�2�&,-� ���

 +��#$�%! % �$-�-$.$, %*$���)&,,���;$�����*2$!� +�-$��-$�"���-�&��,&;$,'�� �
$(�$�-�2$' �-��#$�� !$���!��$/'�%,���%$!& -����&;$,'�%#��&�/� +��#$�!$�&-$��&�,�
��-�$*%, '*$���-$.$, %*$���&��&�-&���$-�&����2,$���2$, )��

�
�

+
��,�!� �-./
0-��	�
� ����� ����

���������������1��
��% ������
�'�""�����

�����%����2�
��% ������
�'�""�����

� ����� ����
.��3�
(�4-)�

����� ����
�,��(�4-)�

�#��$���83<�<C��9
3<3<C3�7�

@<<� >��� �#��$���83<�<C��9
3<��C�@7�

33"F�F�
�B"�<3�
3@"<<<�

�#��$�3�83<�@C��9
3<3@C3�7�

�<<� �BB�
>�<�

�#��$�>�83<3<C3�9
3<3@C3�7�

><<� >�<�
�#��$�3�83<�@C��9
3<3@C3�7�

33"F�F�
@>"�B��
��">B>�

�$' �-�� !$�
��!��$/'�%$!& -�
83<3�H7�

9� 9�
�$' �-�� !$�
��!��$/'�%$!& -�
83<3�H7�

3�"<B�� 3�"@<<�

��55� ��6�� ��"F�F� F�"BB>�	���"��
&76��

	���"��
�67875&�

�
	� "��������$�"�#%����.���������������
�������

�
�
���� ���#���2$$���$�$���!'�� ��!���,��$��#$���%&!��& ��,���!$�2�!'�4!�*$) !;�&�� ���

!$�,&��&����-�-$,&.$!�2,$�%,���&�/�+!�*$) !;�+ !��#$�� !$���!��$/'"���-�� ����&���

APPENDIX APage 162



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B3�

�#&��%! �$��"��#$�� ���&,�#���) !;$-�� �&-$��&+'��#$��!&�&��,�&�+!���!����!$��$$-$-�
� ��$!.$��#$��&�$���-��#$�, ���& ��� +��#$�&*% !������!���% !��&�+!���!����!$��!$�
�# )�� ��4&/�!$��3��2 .$����#$�-$.$, %*$�����%&!��& ���#�.$��,� �2$$���,&/�$-�
)&�#��#$�$(&��&�/�%,���&�/�� ��$������-��#$�� ���&,A��;� ),$-/$� +��#$�&��$��& ���
 +�-$.$, %$!��*�-$�;� )���#! �/#��#$���!��$/&��� ��&�/����-��.�&,�2&,&�'�
���$��*$���%! �$���� �%! -��$���* !$�!$�,&��&��-$.$, %*$���%! +&,$�+ !��#$�%,���
%$!& -���

�
���B ��� !-$!�� ���#&$.$��#$�-$�&!$-��&*��+ !��#$���!$�2�!'��!$�"�%�!��$!�#&%�) !;&�/�

)&,,��$$-�� �� ��&��$� .$!��#$�,&+$�&*$� +��#$�%,�����-�2$' �-���� ����&���)&�#�
�#&�"�%�2,&���$�� !�%�!��$!� !/��&���& ���#�.$�� *$�� /$�#$!�)&�#��#$�%!&.��$�
�$�� !�� �+ !*���I &����$���!$�+ !���!$�2�!'�����������&��$��&*��$-��#����! ��-�
J�<<*�)&,,�2$�&�.$��$-�&���#$��!$��-�!&�/��#$�!$�,&���& �� +��#$�%,����+ !��#$��!$��
��-�%�!��$!�#&%�) !;&�/�)&,,�2$�$��$��&�,�&���#���$,,&�/�&�.$��*$���&�� ��#$�* ���
�%%! %!&��$�%! % ��,��� �-$,&.$!�*�(&*�*�2$�$+&������#$��$),'�+ !*$-�� ��,�

��$!%!&�$���!��$!�#&%�+ !��#$��&.$!%  ,��&�'�	$/& �"�I
������+��-&�/���-��#$�
$*$!/&�/��$�#� , /'���-���� .��& ���$��!$��$�) !;��!$��,,�% ��&2,$�+��-&�/�
 %% !���&�&$��)#&�#�)&,,��$$-�� �2$�&�.$��&/��$-�� ��,, )���!$�2�!'������ �!$��#�
&���+�,,�% �$��&�,���� .$!�*$���+��-&�/�#����,!$�-'�2$$��$�!*�!;$-�+ !��%$�&+&��
%! E$��������#$����"�&��,�-&�/��#$���!�!$$��$��!$�+ !�� *%����& ��,���&$��$���-�

�/&�$$!&�/���-��#$���&$��$���-��$�#� , /'�4��&,&�&$��� ���&,��!$�� **&��$-�� �
���&��&�/��#$�-$,&.$!'� +�*�E !�%�2,&���$�� !���&$��$�%! /!�**$������.$��*$��� +�
�#&���'%$�)&,,�2$��$�$���!'�� �*�&���&����-�&*%! .$��#$��&�$A��%! +&,$������+ ����
+ !�2��&�$��"���&$��$���-��-.���$-�$�/&�$$!&�/�&�� ��#$�+���!$���-��!$��$��#$�
 %�&*�*�$�.&! �*$���+ !�+�!�#$!�&�)�!-�&�.$��*$����

�
���F �#$�I
�������-'�!$� /�&�$���#�����!$�2�!'���!;"�&�����$���2,&�#$-� ++&�$�, ���& �"�

)#&�#�#�����%&��,&�$-� ��&������$��&2&,&�'���-�, ���& �� ���#$��@��� !!&- !�� �
�!$��$����!&�&��,�*���� +� ��� +�� )�� ++&�$��%��$��������� !-���$�)&�#�����"� ++&�$�
-$.$, %*$����# �,-� !-&��!&,'�2$�-&!$��$-�� )�!-����, ��,����# !&�'A��-$�&/���$-�
� )���$��!$��������#$����$� +���!$�2�!'���!;"��#$�$��&!$�'� +��#$��!$��%! % �$-�
+ !� ++&�$�-$.$, %*$����,!$�-'�2$�$+&���+! *� ��,&�$�%,���&�/�� ��$���+ !� .$!�
��@"<<<*3� +���8�7�+,  !�%��$�8����%!&,�3<�<7����&�-&���$-�2$, )�&����2,$�@����#$�
�,!$�-'�� ��$��$-�+,  !�%��$"�� �%,$-�)&�#�&�+ !*��& ����;$��+! *�����!.$'� +�
2��&�$��$��)#&�#�&�-&���$���#����#$!$�&��,&��,$�-$*��-�+! *�)&�#&���#$� ++&�$�
�$�� !�� �, ���$�&���#$�� ! �/#A��� )���$��!$�, ���& ��"�%�!�&��,�!,'�&��	��� !��
�,-�� )�@��� �)&�#����-&�/��#$�/�&-���$��$�� ���&�����& ��,�%,���&�/�% ,&�'"��#$�
�%$�&+&��!$5�&!$*$���� +�2��&�$��$�"����#�����#$��&=$� +��&�$�!$5�&!$-"��&�$�5��,&�'"�
���$�����-�%! (&*&�'�� �*�!;$��"��# �,-�2$�!$� /�&�$-���� �-��$"���!$�2�!'���!;�
#���%! .$-�� �2$���% %�,�!�, ���& ��+ !� ++&�$�-$.$, %*$���/&.$���#$�#&/#�5��,&�'�
$�.&! �*$���)&�#&��)#&�#�&��&���$�"��#$�2$�% ;$�2�&,-&�/�� ++$!$-�)&�#�,�!/$�
+,  !%,��$�"��2,$�� ���� ** -��$��$�-�K��!�$!��'%$�2�&,-&�/���������!$�2�!'�
���� ++&�$�-$.$, %*$���&��%! % �$-�� ���%%,$*$����#$��%$�&�,&�����&$��$� ++$!�
��-�� �%! .&-$���%% !���$!.&�$��+ !��#$�,�2 !�� !'���-�!$�$�!�#��%��$��

�
����< �,�# �/#���,�!/$��* ���� +�$*%, '*$���+,  !�%��$�#���� ��$���� �2$�-$.$, %$-�

�����!$�2�!'���!;"�* �&� !&�/� +��#$�-$��&�'� +�� *%,$�$-� ++&�$�-$.$, %*$������
��!$�2�!'���!;���-�-&�, /�$�)&�#��#$�,��- )�$!�!$.$�,���#�����, )$!��* ���� +�
 ++&�$�-$.$, %*$���&��,&;$,'�� ������,,'�2$�2�&,�"���-��#&��#���2$$���!���,��$-�&���#$�

                                                 
4Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (19 November 2010) 

http://nds.coi.gov.uk/content/Detail.aspx?ReleaseID=416640&NewsAreaID=2 
5 BE Group (2010) Joint Employment Land and Premises Study - Table 68, page 162 and Para 7.40, page 174 

APPENDIX APage 163



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B>�

%#��&�/� +�$*%, '*$���-$.$, %*$���&��,�-$-�&����2,$����2 .$�&�� !-$!�� �
%! .&-$��#$�* ���!$�,&��&��%&���!$� +�+���!$�-$.$, %*$�����

�
�
� ��% ������

�'�""�����
�%��������
�%#"��%����

�"����#����(�4%)�
���-'*  !�84�,,� !����,&�$��,���&�/��$!*&��& �� !�
�$��& �������%%! .�,���-$!��#$��$)�� )������7�

����� 9�

��!$�2�!'�����?�84�,,� !����,&�$��,���&�/��$!*&��& �7� 9� 3B"<<��
��!$�2�!'���!;�?�84�,,� !����,&�$��,���&�/��$!*&��& �7� 9� ��@"@���

	���"�� ��6�� �9:8;67�

�
	� "��;����$�"�#%������������
�������<��������������%��=�������."����������������

�
�
,��������������

����� �#$�$(�$��� +��#$�-$.$, %*$���%! % �$-����
����	��� !���$�$���!&,'�*$�����#���
�$)�&�+!���!����!$�)&,,�2$�!$5�&!$-�� ���%% !��-$.$, %*$��"�%�!�&��,�!,'�&��
!$,��& ��� �#&/#)�'����-������&��2,$��!���% !�������%�!�� +�-$.$, %&�/��#$�
�%%! ��#�+ !��#$�1$'��!$�� +��#��/$"����!���% !�����-'� +��#$�
����	��� !��
-$.$, %*$����!$���#���2$$��� **&��& �$-���-$!��;$��� ����$����#$�,&;$,'�
&*%���� +��#$�%! % �$-�,$.$,� +�-$.$, %*$��� ���#$�$(&��&�/�! �-��$�) !;����#$�
���-'�� ��,�-$-��#�����2�����&�,�&�.$��*$���&���#$�#&/#)�'���$�) !;���-�&��
�����&��2,$��!���% !��&�&�&��&.$��)&,,�2$��$�$���!'�� �2 �#�!$-��$�!$,&���$� ���#$�
%!&.��$���!���-�&��!$��$��#$���%��&�'� +���!! ��-&�/�! �-����-�E����& ���)#$!$�
�#$�&*%���� +����#&+��� �* !$������&��2,$�* -$��)&,,�� ��$!�-&���$��#$�&���$����#$�
���-'�!$.$�,$-��#�����-$!���L� �� �#&�/M���$��!& �8)#$!$�� ���� **&��$-�
-$.$, %*$�����;$��%,��$7"��#$��@��I����& �����&��3<�@�&��%!$-&��$-�� � %$!��$����
��%��&�'�&��2 �#��#$������-����%$�;�%$!& -�������*2$!� +� �#$!�;$'�E����& ���
�!$��,� ����&�&%��$-�� �2$�%,��$-���-$!��&/�&+&�������!$������&/#)�'��&�+!���!����!$�
)&,,�2$��$$-$-�� �%! .&-$���++&�&$������$���)&�#&��� ��#$��&�$"�&��,�-&�/����$)�
*�&��.$#&��,�!�%&�$�! �-�� �E &���#$���!$�2�!'���!;���-���!$�2�!'������&�$���
�&.$���#���+�!�#$!�) !;�)&,,�2$��$$-$-�� �-$�$!*&�$��#$�$(�����,&/�*$��� +���
�$)�.$#&��,�!�! ��$��#! �/#��#$��&�$"��#$���!!$���! ��$�#��� �,'�2$$���# )�����
&�-&���&.$� ��4&/�!$��3���� )$.$!"��#&��! ��$�2! �-,'�&,,���!��$���#$�%!$+$!!$-�
�,&/�*$��� +��#$�*�&��.$#&��,�!�! �-"�&�-&���&�/��#���&��)&,,�2$��#$�;$'�&��$!��,�
! ��$�&���#$��!$�"���-�)&,,�2$�!$5�&!$-�� �,&�;��#$��@�"��#$��$��!�,�� ��&�/��!$�"�
��!$�2�!'�������-�� ��$���� ��#$��@@B�����)&,,�$���&,����,$���� �$��--&�& ��,�����,�
�! ��&�/���&��2,$�+ !�.$#&�,$�������--&�& ��� ��#$�*�&��.$#&��,�!�! �-"�+�!�#$!�
) !;��&��,�-$&�/�&*%! .$*$����� �$(&��&�/C%! .&�& �� +��$)�����,���-�!�&,)�'�
2!&-/$��+ !�.$#&�,$�"�E����& ��&*%! .$*$����)&�#��#$��@�"����$)�E����& ��)&�#�
�#$��@@B"�! �-�,&�;�/$��� ��#$����-'*  !��!$����-���� �&��$-�+  �%��#����-�
�'�,$)�'���

�
����3 �$��&,� +��#$��%$�&+&��&�+!���!����!$�%! E$���"�- *&���$-�2'��!���% !����#$*$��

2$����$� +��#$�����!$� +��#$��!$��&��� ���&�$-�)&�#&����2,$���"�����-�B�2$, )���-�
�,� �/&.$��&���#$���+!���!����!$��,���)#&�#���� *%��&$���#$�� !$���!��$/'�����$���
��!��$/&��&�+!���!����!$����#�����*�,,����,$�/!$$��%��$����-�&��$!��,�! �-��)&,,�2$�
%! .&-$-����&�-&.&-��,�%�!�$,�� +�-$.$, %*$���,��-�� *$�+ !)�!-�����&,&�&$��
%! .&�& ��)&,,��,� �2$�$��$��&�,�� ��$!.$��#$��$)��!$��� +�-$.$, %*$������
����

                                                 
6 Mott MacDonald (2010) East Runcorn Sustainable Transport Study 

APPENDIX APage 164



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B��

	��� !��2����#$�$��!$�*�&�,'�%! .&-$-����$��#��&�$��� *$��+ !)�!-����&�����& ���
)&�#��� ��&�#�� )$!�����$��#����$)�%!&*�!'���2����& ���*�'�2$�!$5�&!$-����2 �#�
��!$�2�!'����"���!$�2�!'���!;���-����-'*  !"�2����#&��)&,,�2$�-$%$�-$��� ��
�#$�-$*��-�+ !�$,$��!&�&�'� +��#$��$)� ���%&$!�"�%�!�&��,�!,'�)&�#&���#$�
$*%, '*$����!$���)#$!$��#$�����!$� +��#$���$�)&,,�-$�$!*&�$��#$�-$*��-�+ !�
$�$!/'���	$�$)�2,$�$�$!/'�&�+!���!����!$�!$5�&!$*$�������� ��2$�5����&+&$-����
�#&�����/$�2����#$�&-$��&+&���& �� +���!$�2�!'�������
�$!/'��!& !&�'�D �$��&��
���F6������&��2,$��$.$, %*$�����-��,&*��$��#��/$���//$�����#����#$�% �$��&�,�
+ !�&��$/!��&�/�!$�$)�2,$���$�#� , /&$���# �,-�2$�%�!��$-�� �2  ����#$�, �/�
�$!*������&��2&,&�'� +��#$��&�$��������� !-���$�)&�#����F"��$)�-$.$, %*$������

����	��� !���# �,-�2$�-$�&/�$-�� �#�.$�!$/�!-�� ��#$�%!$-&��$-�$++$���� +�
�,&*��$��#��/$��

�
����> �#$�
����	��� !���!$��#�����!&�#�����!�,�$�.&! �*$���)#&�#��$)�-$.$, %*$���

)&,,��$$-�� �!$�%$������+�%�!�&��,�!�� �$�&���#$��!$���!$��#$�	$-��! )�����&�/�
�������-��#$���!$�2�!'�4&!��� ��,�����!$�	$�$!.$�)#&�#�)&,,�2$�� ��$!.$-�� �
!$��&���#$&!�/$ , /&��,���-�2& -&.$!�&�'�&*% !����$"�!$�%$��&.$,'���� ��!&2��& ���
)&,,�2$�� �/#��� ��!$��$���-�*�&���&��$(&��&�/���-��$)��!$��� +� %$���%��$���
1$�;)&�;��!  ;�!�����#! �/#��#$��!$�"���-�+,  -�!&�;��!&�&�/�+! *��#&��
)��$!� �!�$�)��� �$� +��#$�+ ���$�� +��#$��$.$,�3���!��$/&��4,  -�	&�;�
���$��*$��B���0#�!+ !-�4�!*�2�,���&�/�,�;$�)���� ���!���$-�� �2�,���$�!��9 ++�
+, )��+! *���!! ��-&�/��!$��� +�# ��&�/"���-�)&,,�� ��&��$�� �2$���.&��,�!$� �!�$�
&��*���/&�/�+,  -�!&�;�+ !��#$�
����	��� !���!$����	$/�!-��# �,-�2$�#�-�� �% ,&�'�
��3>6�����/&�/�� ,,��& ����-�	&�;���-��#$���!��$/&��4,  -�	&�;����$��*$���
)#$��2!&�/&�/�+ !)�!-�-$.$, %*$����&�$��&���#$��!$�����, �/�&-$�+,  -�!&�;"�&��&��
&*%$!��&.$��#���)��$!�5��,&�'�&���#$�� ! �/#A��)��$!� �!�$��&��� ���,, )$-�� �
-$�$!& !��$�&����� !-���$�)&�#��#$�%!&��&%,$�� +���3>���0&�#�!$/�!-�� �
&*%! .$*$����� ��#$��!&-/$)��$!�����,"�/&.$���#$�,&;$,'�!&�$�&�����/$� +��#$�
� )%��#���-��#$�)��$!)�'�&��$,+"��#$��!&-/$)��$!�0�'���&�&��&.$� %$!��$������#$�
;$'�-$,&.$!'�.$#&�,$��#! �/#�)#&�#�� ��#���$,����#�&*%! .$*$������-�
� ��!&2��& ���� ��#&��&�&�&��&.$�)&,,�2$��%%! %!&��$�&���$!��&�����$���F�

�
����>����� �#$�%! .&�& �� +���%�2,&���!���% !��&��$!�#��/$�����#$�&��$!�$��& �� +��#$�

�) �!�&,)�'�,&�$��)#&�#�!����#! �/#��#$��&�$������&��$�.&��/$-��#����#&��)&,,�&�&�&�,,'�
%! .&-$�2���&��$!�#��/$�+��&,&�&$��� ��$!.$��#$�$*%, '*$�����-�!$�&-$��&�,��!$���
)&�#��#$���%&!��& �� +�-$,&.$!&�/���!�&,)�'�����& ��� ��$!.$�$&�#$!� �$� !�2 �#� +�
�#$�!�&,)�'�,&�$��&���#$�, �/$!��$!*����#$�%!$�&�$�, ���& �� +���%�2,&���!���% !��
&��$!�#��/$�#���� ��'$��2$$��-$�$!*&�$-�2���)&,,�2$�,�!/$,'�-$%$�-$��� ���#$�
 ��� *$� +��#$���!!$�����&-$�� �	�&,)�'���.$��*$����! E$����8�	��7����-'"�
)#&�#�&��2$&�/�%! /!$��$-�2'��$�) !;�	�&,� ��2$#�,+� +���,� ��� ! �/#�� ���&,���
�# �,-��#&�����-'�+&�-��#����#$�%!���&��,&�'���-�+$��&2&,&�'� +���!�&,)�'�����& �����
��!$�2�!'�&��,&*&�$-"���)&-$!��!$��)&,,�2$��.�&,�2,$�+ !���2��92��$-�&��$!�#��/$���
����#$��&!��*�����$�)#$!$��#$!$�&���,$�!�$.&-$��$�� ���//$����#�����!�&,)�'�
����& ������ ��2$�-$,&.$!$-� !�&������2$�%! .$���#����#$�$��&!$�'� +��#$�
��+$/��!-$-�,��-�&��� ���$$-$-�+ !�%�2,&���!���% !��+��&,&�&$�"��#$��%%,&��2,$�,��-�
)&,,�2$�� ��&-$!$-�+ !�!$�&-$��&�,�-$.$, %*$����

                                                 
7
 Arup (2010) Liverpool City Region Renewable Energy Capacity Study 

8 JBA Consulting (2011) Halton Borough Council Level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
9 The Bridgewater Way Initiative is led by the Bridgewater Canal Trust who wish to maximise the potential of 

the Bridgewater Canal as an integrated shared strategic cycle and pedestrian network, through the 

implementation of the Bridgewater Way Initiative which seeks to implement improvements to existing routes 

and public transport facilities in its vicinity of the Bridgewater Canal. 

APPENDIX APage 165



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B@�

�
����@ �#$�%! .&�& �� +����$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$�&��&��,�-$-�&���#$�% ,&�'�� ���%% !���#$�

��!! ��-&�/�# ��&�/���-�$*%, '*$����!$�����	$��&,���-�� **��&�'�+��&,&�&$��)&,,�
2$��$�$���!'�� �*$$���#$�-�'9� 9-�'�, ��,��$$-�� +��#$�!$�&-$������-�$*%, '$$��
���
����	��� !��������#$��$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$�+�,,��)&�#&���#$��$��!�,�� ��&�/�
�!$�"�&��&��$(%$��$-��#����#$�-$.$, %$!� +��#&��)&-$!��!$��)&,,�-$,&.$!��#$���&���
)&�#&���#$�*&($-���$��$&/#2 �!#  -��$��!$"�+ !� ���%��& ��2'��$!.&�$�%! .&-$!���

�
���������� �) ���%%,$*$���!'��,���&�/�� ��*$����)&,,���%% !���#$�-$,&.$!'� +�

-$.$, %*$������
����	��� !��������- %�$-�����$(&����+ !��#$����-'*  !��!$��
 +��#$��&�$�� ��#$�)$��� +��#$�!�&,)�'�,&�$�����������)&,,��,� �2$�%! -��$-�+ !��#$�
�!$��� .$!&�/��#$���!$�2�!'���!��$/&���&�$�&��,�-&�/��#$�&��$!.$�&�/��!$������#&��
)&,,�+ ���� ���#$�&*%,$*$����& �� +��#$�� !$���!��$/'�% ,&�'"�%�!�&��,�!,'���
-$��&,$-�-$�&/��+!�*$) !;��$��&�/� ���%!&��&%,$��+ !�-$�&/�"�,�' �����-����$����

APPENDIX APage 166



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B��

�
� 
���������"�

��$�"�#%����
�����

��>����
�'�""�����

,��������������
�4����%����� ��"�$����-�������%�

• 1$�;)&�;����$��$#&��,�!�2!&-/$� .$!�
�!&-/$)��$!�����,�

• �$.$, %$!� +��$,%#����$�0$���
&��%�!��$!�#&%�)&�#������I &���
�$���!$�� �-$,&.$!��$)�����,�
2!&-/$�

�$,%#����$�
0$���

>@<�
@<<�

• �*%! .$*$����� �1$�;)&�;����$�2!&-/$�
 .$!��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!�!�&,)�'�
,&�$�� ���� ** -��$�2 �#�.$#&�,$����-�
%$-$��!&���C�'�,&����

• �*%! .$*$����� ��$,%#����$�2!&-/$�
��-$!��#$��#$��$!9����#$��$!�!�&,)�'�
,&�$�� ���� ** -��$��) 9)�'�.$#&��,�!�
�!�++&��

• �&/��,&���& �� +�1$�;)&�;����$����0$���
� ������&���&�$�!�&,)�'���-$!�2!&-/$�� �
�,, )��) �)�'�.$#&��,�!��!�++&��

• �$-$��!&��C�'�,&���,&�;�� ����-'*  !����
� %,�!�4�!*���-$!%����

• �$.$, %$!� +��$,%#����$�0$���
� �-$,&.$!� �#$!�2!&-/$�
&*%! .$*$������-��!���% !��
&*%! .$*$���) !;��

���-��-E��$���
� ��!$�� ��

�!  ;���!&���

�@<� • �*%! .$*$����� C!$%,��$*$��� +�
��),$'A���!&-/$�� ��,, )���+$�.$#&��,�!��
��-�%$-$��!&������$���

• �!&.��$�-$.$, %$!�2!&�/&�/�
+ !)�!-�,��-���!! ��-&�/�
$(&��&�/�*�!&���

.�������
(&5�5?��1
&5&5?&�)�

�$��!�,��!$�� �<<� • �$,&.$!'� +�*�&��.$#&��,�!�! �-�� �,&�;�
�#$��@������$,%#����$�)&�#�1$�;)&�;�
���$"�&��,�-&�/�2!&-/$� .$!��!&-/$)��$!�
����,���-�% �$��&�,�2���,&�;�� �
��!$�2�!'���!;�

• �$.$, %*$���� ����+ !�*�&��
.$#&��,�!�! �-�� �2$��%,&��
2$�)$$��!$�&-$��&�,�-$.$, %$!�
��-������I &����$���!$�

.�����&�
(&5�;?�61
&5&;?&6)�

�$��!�,��!$�� �<<� •�$,&.$!'� +���%&�$�! �-�� �,&�;��#$��@�����
�$,%#����$�)&�#�1$�;)&�;����$"�
&��,�-&�/�2!&-/$� .$!��!&-/$)��$!�����,�
��-�% �$��&�,�2���,&�;�� ���!$�2�!'�
��!;�

• �*%! .$*$��������@�C�$,%#����$�
E����& ��

• �*%! .$*$����� ��$ !/$��,$�.$A��
2!&-/$�+ !�%$-$��!&������-��'�,&����

• �*%! .$*$����� �$(&��&�/��$,%#����$�
����,�2!&-/$�

• �$,&.$!'� +�����--&�& ��,�E����& �� ���#$�
�@@B"�$���� +��#$�, ��,�!�&,)�'�,&�$�

• �$.$, %*$���� ����+ !��%&�$�
! �-�� �2$��%,&��2$�)$$��
!$�&-$��&�,�-$.$, %$!���-������
I &����$���!$�

• �!&.��$�-$.$, %$!�2!&�/&�/�
+ !)�!-��#$��$��!�,�� ��&�/�
�!$��

• �*%! .$*$����� C!$%,��$*$��� +�
� !! )A���!&-/$�

• �$-$��!&��C�'�,&�����-�$*$!/$��'�
.$#&��,�!����$���� �� ��#$!��
���-'*  !����� /)  -�	�&,)�'�2!&-/$�

• �!&.��$�-$.$, %$!�2!&�/&�/��&�$�
+ !)�!-�

.�����:�
(&5&5?&�1
&5&;?&6)�

0#�!+ !-�4�!*� ><<�

• �*%! .$*$����� �,&�;�2$�)$$��
0#�!+ !-�4�!*���-���!$�2�!'���!;�.&��
	$-��! )����$�

• �#$���!$�2�!'���!;�,��- )�$!�
#���!$�% ��&2&,&�'�+ !�-$,&.$!&�/�
�#$�	$-�2�! )����$�,&�;�&��
��� !-���$�)&�#��#$� !&/&��,�
�$��& ���<���/!$$*$���&��
!$,��& ��� � ��,&�$�%$!*&��& ��
����#$��&�$�

	���"���% ������
����������"�������

��55� �

�
	� "��6������� �������������������2�	����#����,��������������
�4����%���������������
���$��
���������"�������

APPENDIX APage 167



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
B��

�

����� ����.��3� ����� �����,��

.
�
�
��
�

�%#"��%����
��$�"�#%����

�����

�"����
�#����
(�4-)�

,��������������

�4����%�����

��"�$����
-�������%�

�%#"��%����
��$�"�#%����

�����

�"����
�#����
(�4-)�

,��������������

�4����%�����

��"�$����
-�������%�

���$)�'��&�$��
�, �/�&-$��@@B�C�
��� .��& ��)�'�

� �$� �

.
�
�
��
��
�(
&
5
�
5
?�
�
1&
5
�
�
?�
;
)�

� *%,$�& �� +�
�<N� +�
!$*�&�&�/�
%, ������
��!$�2�!'�
��!;�

33"F�F� 4&!������/$� +�
 ������-&�/�
&*%! .$*$����� �
I��� +��@��
�
��' ����!$��� +�
/!$$��%��$�
&��,�-&�/����
1$�;)&�;��!  ;�
� ��!$��$�&�+ !*�,�
, )�/!�-$�+ !$��!'�
+  �%��#��

��!$�2�!'���!;�
-$.$, %$!�
�#! �/#��$��& ��
�<���/!$$*$���
 �� ��,&�$�
%,���&�/�
�%%,&���& ��� �&�$��� ��#$�

)$��� +��#$�
�!&-/$)��$!�
����,�
�

�B"�<3�
3@"<<<�

�$,&.$!'� +��*�&��
.$#&��,�!�! �-�� �
,&�;��#$��@�����
�$,%#����$�)&�#�
1$�;)&�;����$"�
&��,�-&�/�2!&-/$�
 .$!�����,�

�����I &���
�$���!$�&��
%�!��$!�#&%�
)&�#�-$.$, %$!�
 +��$��!�,�
!$�&-$��&�,�
�!$��

�*%! .$*$����� �
I����& ����� +��#$�
�@���

�!&//$!$-�)#$��
��@�<*3�/! ���
+,  !��!$��
� *%,$�$-����
%$!���!$�2�!'�
��!;��$��& ��
�<���

1$�;)&�;����$�
�$#&��,�!�2!&-/$�
 .$!��!&-/$)��$!�
����,�

�����I &���
�$���!$�

.
�
�
��
�&
�(
&
5
�
;
?�
6
1&
5
&
;
?&
6
)�

� *%,$�& �� +�
>@N� +�
!$*�&�&�/�
%, ������
��!$�2�!'�
��!;�

33"F�F�

����,&�;�� �� ��$���
��!$�2�!'���!;�
)&�#��$)��%&�$�
*�&��.$#&��,�!�! �-�
��-�� �!$��� +��#$�
�&�$�

��!$�2�!'���!;�
-$.$, %$!�
�#! �/#��$��& ��
�<���/!$$*$���
 �� ��,&�$�
%,���&�/�
�%%,&���& ���

�&�$��� ��#$�
)$��� +��#$�
�!&-/$)��$!�
����,�
�

�&�$�� ��#$�
� ��#� +�$(&��&�/�
�������*%���

@>"�B�
��">B>�

�*%! .$*$����� �
$(&��&�/��$,%#�
���$�����,�2!&-/$�
�
�$,&.$!'� +����
�--&�& ��,�E����& ��
 ���#$��@@B"�$����
 +��#$�, ��,�!�&,)�'�
,&�$�
�
�$,&.$!'� +���%&�$�
! �-�� �,&�;��#$�
�@������$,%#����$�
)&�#�1$�;)&�;�
���$"�&��,�-&�/�
2!&-/$� .$!�����,�

�����I &���
�$���!$�&��
%�!��$!�#&%�
)&�#�-$.$, %$!�
 +��$��!�,�
!$�&-$��&�,�
�!$��

<
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�

(&
5
&
6
@
)�

� *%,$�& �� +�
3@N� +�
!$*�&�&�/�
%, ������
��!$�2�!'�
��!;�

3�"<B�� � � �&�$�� ��#$�)$���
 +��#$�
�!&-/$)��$!�
����,�

3�"@<<� � �

	���"�
��$�"�#%����

��"F�F� � � F�"BB>� �

�
	� "��A������� �������������������2�,��������������
�4����%������������������$��
�%#"��%����������

�
�
�
�
�
�

APPENDIX APage 168



��������
�������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

 

����������������������������������������������������������������������

 
BB�

� .��#�����
"��������

	�%����"�� ������ ������
��$�"�#%����

��"�$����%�������%�

��2,&���!���% !��
���$!�#��/$�?�
&��,�-&�/�2���
&��$!�#��/$�+��&,&�&$��
)&�#��#$�% �$��&�,�
+ !����$)�!�&,)�'�
����& ��

����#$�&��$!�$��& ��
 +��) �!�&,)�'�
,&�$��)&�#&��
��!$�2�!'�
��!��$/&���&�$�

�.$!��#$�%,���
%$!& -�

�����I &����$���!$�
��-��$��!�,�# ��&�/�
�!$��

�!&.��$�!$�&-$��&�,�-$.$, %$!�
��-������
���&��,&;$,'��#���%�2,&��+��-&�/�
)&,,�2$�!$5�&!$-�� �-$,&.$!��#&��
;$'�%&$�$� +�&�+!���!����!$�

��!&��� �-E��$���� ��#$�
�!&-/$)��$!�
����,"�� ��#� +�
�$,%#����$�

3<3<C3�93<3@C3��
�, �/�&-$�-$,&.$!'� +�
�$��!�,�# ��&�/��!$��

�����I &����$���!$�
��-��$��!�,�# ��&�/�
�!$��

��;� )�"��,�# �/#�&��&��
$�.&��/$-��#���&��) �,-�2$�
-$,&.$!$-����%�!�� +��#$�, ��,�
�$��!$�

��!$�2�!'�� ��,�
�$��!$�

0&�#&���$��!�,�
� ��&�/��!$�"�
�&����$-��, �/�&-$�
�#$��!&-/$)��$!�
����,��! ��-��#$�
$(&��&�/��$ !/$�
�,$�.$A��2!&-/$�

3<3<C3�93<3@C3��
�, �/�&-$�-$,&.$!'� +�
�$��!�,�# ��&�/��!$��

�����I &����$���!$�
��-��$��!�,�# ��&�/�
�!$��

��;� )��� **$!�&�,�
-$.$, %*$���-$,&.$!'�%�!��$!�
��-� ���%&$!��

4�!�#$!�
&*%! .$*$����� �
I����& ����� +��@��

I����& ����� +�
�@��

�.$!��#$�%,���
%$!& -�

�,,��&�$��)&,,��!$��$�
%!$���!$� ��E����& ��
��� +��#$��@��

�  ,$-�-$.$, %$!�
� ��!&2��& ���)&�#�% �$��&�,�
+ !�+��-&�/�+! *��#$�
�&/#)�'���/$��'�

�*%! .$*$����� �
�#$�%!&*�!'�! �-�
�$�) !;�
��!! ��-&�/��#$�
-$.$, %*$����&�$�

�@@����-��@�� �.$!��#$�%,���
%$!& -�

�,,��&�$��)&,,��!$��$�
%!$���!$� ���#$�
%!&*�!'�! �-�
�$�) !;���$-�� �
���$����#$��&�$�

�  ,$-�-$.$, %$!�
� ��!&2��& ���+! *��,,�
-$.$, %*$����&�$��

�
	� "��7������� �������������������1�
�����,��������������
�4�����������##��������
������������

�

�

 

�

.
/,�0��
�-�B

���
�
�

�������"�.�"����
�

���>6�� ��&�/�8���"�3<�<7:�����6��,���&�/�+ !������&��2,$�

� � *&���! )�#�8���"�3<<F7:�����36�� ��,��%��&�,��,���&�/�
8���"�3<<B7:����& ��,���&$��$���-���� .��& ����.$��*$���
4!�*$) !;�3<<�93<���

�

/���"��$��������
�

��,� ��
� � *&����-�� �!&�*��$.$, %*$�����!��$/'�3<<@9
3<<B:���,� ����&$��$�	$% !�:����-'*  !�����83<<F7:�
����
	��� !�������&��2,$��!���% !�����-'�83<��7:��$.$,�3���!��$/&��
4,  -�	&�;����$��*$���83<��7�

�

����������
 C����$���
�

�"�3�"��"�@"�����-�<�

�

����.�����������
�


*%, '*$����$�!�&�/���-��;&,,��&����,� �:�
�.&! �*$�����-�
	$/$�$!��& ��&����,� ��

3�?��& -&.$!�&�'�� ���?����$��&2&,&�'�
>�?�0��$!� ���9�
� � *'�

��?�
�$!/'�
++&�&$��'� ���?�� )���$��!$��

�

���
 C����$���
�

�<�?�� ��&�/� ���?������&��2,$��!���% !��
�

���
����%��
�

�.$!�,,��#&��% ,&�'�&��% �&�&.$�&�������&��2&,&�'��$!*����#$!$�*�'�
2$�� *$��$/��&.$�$�.&! �*$���,�$++$���"�# )$.$!��#$�$�����2$�
*���/$-�C�*&�&/��$-"�%�!�&��,�!,'�&+���//$��$-�*&�&/��& ��
*$���!$���!$�&�� !% !��$-�&�� ��#$�% ,&�'��

APPENDIX APage 169



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�

 
 

������������������� !��

 

���"������"�#�
	"$!%"&����'�%"&���()!%%!���

�� �)"���
�

�

�

���"����! !"%�
 
 

APPENDIX APage 170



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
���
�����
�

���� ��������� �!"���#��!��$�%!����& !'()�)�($�$�%�!�%�(�����*��+,%!�-$��&+%(+,�
�% +%�./�+�)�+00!�&+�/(�.�&!,(0/���1*�!���!�$(�.���&&,/�+�)��!0+%(!�+,�� (! (%(�$���
�,!�.$()��)�,('� (�.�%��� (.�%�2�+�%(%/�!"���#��!��$3�(%�($��2�+,,/�(�&! %+�%�%�+%�
%��� (.�%�%/&��!"��!�$(�.�($�& !'()�)�%!����%�%������)$�!"��+,%!�-$��4($%(�.�
&!&�,+%(!�3�+)) �$$�(��+,+�0�$�(��%����4($%(�.��!�$(�.�$%!05�+�)���$� ��%����!��$�
& !'()�)�0+��+)+&%�%!�0�+�.(�.�)��!. +&�(0$3�&+ %(0�,+ ,/�+��+.�(�.�&!&�,+%(!����
����%/&��!"�+""! )+�,���!�$(�.� �2�( �)�!���+0��$(%��($�$�%�!�%�(�����1*��""! )+�,��
�!�$(�.3���%�(%�($��2�+,,/�(�&! %+�%�%!���$� ��%�+%�%����(4�!"���#�& ('+%���!�$(�.�
0!�% (��%�$�%!#+ )$����%(�.�()��%("(�)����)$����$�$�0�3��!�$(�.�)�'�,!&� $�$�!�,)�
�+'�� �.+ )�%!�,!0+,,/�+ ($(�.����)$�"! �)#�,,(�.$�!"�)(""� (�.�$(6��+�)�%/&���

�

�
�������������������������

�
���$(%�$�!"����! ��! ��)#�,,(�.$3�%����(4�!"���#��!�$��& !&� %/�%/&�$�)�,('� �)�$�!�,)�
0!�% (��%��%!�+)) �$$(�.�()��%("(�)����)$�+$�2�+�%("(�)�(��%����!$%��&�%!�)+%���% +%�.(0��!�$(�.�
�+ 5�%��$$�$$���%3���,�$$�& �0,�)�)��/�$(%��$&�0("(0�0!�$% +(�%$3��0!�!�(0�'(+�(,(%/�! �
& �'+(,(�.���(.��!� �!!)�0�+ +0%� ($%(0$��
�
� !&!$+,$�"! ���#�$&�0(+,($%��!�$(�.�"! �%����,)� ,/3�(�0,�)(�.��4% +70+ ���+�)�$�&&! %�)�
+00!��!)+%(!�3�#(,,������0!� +.�)�(��$�(%+�,��,!0+%(!�$�8+�)�$(%�$�+,,!0+%�)�(��%����(%��
�,,!0+%(!�$�+�)���'�,!&���%��+�+.����%����3�+$�+&& !& (+%�93�&+ %(0�,+ ,/�%�!$��& !'()(�.�
�+$/�+00�$$�%!�,!0+,�$� '(0�$�+�)�0!����(%/�"+0(,(%(�$��
�
��� ��#(,,����+�& �$��&%(!��+.+(�$%�"� %�� �	�$()��%(+,��+ ���00!��!)+%(!�� �$�,%(�.�(��! �
�4+0� �+%(�.�+��!'� �$�&&,/��
�
�!� �)�0�� �,(+�0��!��$&�0(+,($%��!�$(�.�(��%���"�%� ��+�)�%!�+,,!#� �$()��%$�%!�,('��#(%�(��%��( �
!#���!��$�"! �+$�,!�.�+$�%��/�+ ��+�,�3�%����!��0(,�#(,,���0!� +.��%���)�,('� /�!"��!��$�
#�(0�����%��("�%(����!��$�$%+�)+ )$��
�

�
��������������

�
���: 
'()��0��" !��%������ .(�.��()7�� $�/��% +%�.(0��!�$(�.��+ 5�%��$$�$$���%�

:���:�8����9�$�..�$%$)��!�$% +%�$�%�+%�%�� ��($�+����)�"! �+�. �+%� �)('� $(%/�!"�
�!�$(�.�%/&�$�+�)�$(6�$�+0 !$$��+ 5�%��!�$(�.�+$�#�,,�+$�(��+""! )+�,��
+00!��!)+%(!���������!�$(�.�%/&��& !"(,��(���+,%!��0�  ��%,/�)(""� $�" !��%���
�+%(!�+,�&+%%� ��#(%���(.�� �& !&! %(!�$�!"���)(��;,+ .��%�  +0�)��!�$�$�+�)�
���.+,!#$�%�+���,$�#�� ��(��%���0!��% /1����!�$�2���%,/3�%�� ��($���)� �& !'($(!��
!"�!%�� �)#�,,(�.�%/&�$3��+��,/�$�+,,�%�  +0�)�+�)�)�%+0��)��!��$�+�)�+,$!�%!�+�
0� %+(���4%��%3�",+%%�)��!��$����� '�/$�)��!�$% +%�$�%�+%�%���'+ (�%/�!"���)�$&+0�$�
& !'()�)�(���!��$�+0 !$$�%����! !�.��($�0!�&+ +�,��%!�!%�� �+ �+$�(��%���
0!��% /3���%��%�+%� �$()��%$-�+$&( +%(!�$�+ ���!$%,/�"! �%#!�+�)�%� �����) !!��)�
%�  +0�)�+�)�$��(7)�%+0��)�& !&� %(�$<��

                                                 
1 Extra-care housing is defined in Halton’s Housing Needs and Market Assessment Study 2005Survey 2006 as 

housing which supports independent living and increases choice by providing older people with their own homes 

together with care and support that meets their individual needs. 
2 GL Hearn and Justin Gardner Consulting (20110) Mid-Mersey Halton Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
3 HBC and CPC (2009) Private Sector House Condition Survey (para 2.3) 
4 DCA (2006) Halton Housing Needs and Market Assessment Survey

 

APPENDIX APage 171



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�
���1 ���! )� �%!� ��+,+�0��%���%/&��+�)�$(6��!"��!�$(�.�+0 !$$�%����! !�.��+�)�%!�

��$� ��%�+%�%����!$%�+&& !& (+%��"! ��!"��!�$(�.�($�& !'()�)�%!����%�%���
 �2�( ����%$�!"�0�  ��%�+�)�"�%� �� �$()��%$3��!�$(�.�)�'�,!&� $�$�!�,)�0!�$�,%�
%��������:����:����8! � �&,+0����%9�#�(0��(�)(0+%�$�%����!$%����)�)��!�$(�.�
%/&��+�)�$(6��#(%�(��+�&+ %(0�,+ �$��7+ �+�(��%����! !�.��%!�(�"! ��%����(4�!"�
)#�,,(�.$�!��,+ .� �$(%�$�������40�&%(!�+,�0+$�$�#�� ��&+ %(0�,+ �0!�$% +(�%$��4($%�!��
+�$(%��8��.��)�$(.��($$��$�! �$(%��$(6�9�! �#�� ��%�� ��+ ��'(+�(,(%/�($$��$�#�(0��
& !�(�(%�%���)�$( �)��(4�!"��!�$(�.�" !����(�.�+0�(�'�)3�)�'�,!&� $�$�!�,)�
& !'()��+�0,�+ ��4&,+�+%(!��%� !�.��(�"! �+%(!��$�&&! %(�.�%��( �&,+��(�.�
+&&,(0+%(!��!"��!#�%��$��"+0%! $��+'��(�",���0�)�%���& !&!$�)��!�$(�.��(4�������
�(%���,,!0+%(!�$�+�)���'�,!&���%��+�+.����%�����#(,,�$�%�!�%� �2�( ����%$�+�)�
.�()+�0��!��%��$���+%%� $�"! ��!�$(�.�+,,!0+%(!�$�(��%����! !�.���

�
���< �������)�"! ��4% +�0+ ��! �$�&&! %�)��!�$(�.�(���+,%!��($�&+ %(0�,+ ,/�& !�!��0�)�

��0+�$��!"�,!#�,�'�,$�!"��4($%(�.�& !'($(!������($�,�'�,�!"����)�($�+�%(0(&+%�)�%!�
. !#�!'� �%���&,+��&� (!)�.('���%����! !�.�-$�+.�(�.�&!&�,+%(!�������:��=�%�� ��
#� ��������(%$�& !'()�)�+0 !$$��=�$��,%� �)��!�$(�.�$0����$�(��%����! !�.��+�)�
!����4% +�0+ ��$0�����(��	��0! ��0!�$($%(�.�!"�<����(%$�����($�,�'�,�!"�& !'($(!��
#+$�"!��)�%!������,!#�+'� +.��#����0!�&+ �)�%!�!%�� �,!0+,�+�%�! (%(�$�(��%���
�! %��>�$%���������+,%!���!�$(�.��% +%�./�(�)(0+%�$�%�+%�%�� ��($�+����)�%!�
)�'�,!&�+�#()� � +�.��!"��!�$(�.�!&%(!�$3�(�0,�)(�.��4% +�0+ ��+�)� �%( ����%�
�!�$(�.�+0 !$$�+,,�%��� �$3�%!�& �'��%�!'� � �,(+�0��!�� �$()��%(+,�0+ �?����+$�)�!��
%���0�  ��%�,�'�,�!"�& !'($(!�� �"�  �)�%!�+�!'�3��'()��0��(�)(0+%�$�%�+%��/�:��@�
%�� ��#(,,����+����)�"! �:�<��4% +�0+ ����(%$�+0 !$$�%����! !�.�3�#(%��+��+))(%(!�+,�
���)��/�:����"! �::��4% +�0+ ����(%$�$&�0("(0+,,/�"! �!,)� �&�!&,��#(%��,�+ �(�.�
)(""(0�,%(�$��

�
���� ��,�0%(�.�+�+&& !& (+%��,!0+%(!�$�"! ��4% +�0+ ��+�)�$�&&! %�)��!�$(�.�($�(�&! %+�%�

%!���$� ��%�+%� �$()��%$�+ ��+�,��%!�(�%�. +%��#(%��%���$�  !��)(�.�0!����(%/�+�)�
 �%+(���+4(����(�)�&��)��0�����&�0("(0�& �"�  �)�,!0+%(!�+,�0 (%� (+�+ ��$�%�!�%�
#(%�(���+,%!�-$��!��($$(!�(�.��% +%�./�"! �
4% +��+ ��+�)�%��$��"+0%! $�#(,,�
(�",���0��%���+,,!0+%(!��!"�$(%�$�"! ��4% +�0+ ���!�$(�.�(��,+%� ���'�,!&���%��,+��
�!0����%��$���� !'($(!��!"��4% +�0+ ���!�$(�.�($��(�)� �)��/�%���,+05�!"�
)�'�,!&+�,��! �&��,(0,/�!#��)�,+�)�+�)�%����(.��0!$%$�+$$!0(+%�)�#(%��,+�)�
&� 0�+$�3� ���)(+%(!��+�)�0!�'� $(!��! �)��!,(%(!��!"�+���4($%(�.���(,)(�.���
>�� ��%����!��0(,��+$�%���!&&! %��(%/�%!�(�",���0��%���%/&��!"��!�$(�.�& !'($(!��
!��$(%�$�#�(0�����%�+������ �!"�%���0 (%� (+�"! ��4% +�0+ ���!�$(�.3�%������)�"! �
%�($�$&�0(+,($%�%/&��!"�+00!��!)+%(!��#(,,������&�+$($�)��

�
���? >�(,$%�%�� ��($�+��()��%("(�)����)�"! �+))(%(!�+,��
4% +�0�+ ��+00!��!)+%(!�3�

%�� ��($�0�  ��%,/�+�$(.�("(0+�%�!'� $�&&,/�!"� �$()��%(+,�0+ ���!��@�&,+0�$3�#(%��
 �$�,%+�%��(.��,�'�,$�!"�'+0+�0(�$��'()��%�#(%�(��%����4($%(�.�$%!05=�3��+%(!�+,�&!,(0/�
($�%!���,&�&�!&,��$%+/�(��%��( �!#���!���+$�,!�.�+$�%��/�#($��+�)�+ ��+�,�3��/�%���
& !'($(!��!"�&� $!�+,($�)�0+ ��&+05+.�$�#(%�(��%���0!����(%/����� &,�$�0+&+0(%/�(��
 �$()��%(+,�0+ �� �& �$��%$�+��(��""(0(��%��$��!"�$0+ 0�� �$!� 0�$3�&,+0(�.�+����)���
 �.�,+%! /��� )���!��%����!��0(,�+�)��+$�%���&!%��%(+,�%!�(�&+0%�!��0!�)(%(!�$�"! �
 �$()��%$����$�$�0�3�%����!��0(,�#(,,�$��5�%!� �$($%�"� %�� � �$()��%(+,�0+ ��"+0(,(%(�$�

                                                 
5 HBC and Tribal Consulting (2008) Commissioning Strategy for Extra Care (Table 5) 
6 HBC (2008) Halton Housing Strategy 2008-2011 
7 Residential Care Homes / Care Homes are facilities where a number of people live, often in single rooms and 

have access to on-site care facilities. 
8 HBC Bed Vacancy Monitoring / HBC Residential & Nursing Care Home Commissioning Strategy (20098-11). 

APPENDIX APage 172



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�:�

#�� ��%���,�'�,�!"���)$&+0��'+0+�0(�$�($�,(5�,/�%!����#! $���)�����)$&+0��'+0+�0/�
�!�(%! (�.�($��&)+%�)��/�%����!��0(,�!��+�#��5,/��+$($�+�)�%�($�(�"! �+%(!��#(,,����
�$�)�%!�(�"! ��+�/�)�0($(!��!��%������)�"! �"� %�� � �$()��%(+,�0+ ��"+0(,(%(�$�! �%���
�4&+�$(!��!"��4($%(�.�"+0(,(%(�$��

�
���@ ����0!�0�&%�!"��("�%(����!��$��#+$�(�% !)�0�)�(��%����+ ,/�����$�#(%��%���!'� +,,�

+(��!"��+5(�.��!��$�$�(%+�,��"! �&�!&,��+%�+,,�$%+.�$�!"�%��( �,('�$�������("�%(���
�!��$��%+�)+ )�0!�$($%$�!"��?�)�$(.��0 (%� (+�#�(0��&,+0����&�+$($�!��+00�$$(�(,(%/�
+�)�)�$(.��"�+%� �$�%�+%��+5���!��$�",�4(�,����!�.��%!����%�%������)$�!"�
(�)('()�+,��!�$��!,)$�"! �+$�,!�.�+$�%��/�#($��%!� ��+(��(��%��( �!#���!��$����$�
!�%,(��)�+�!'�3�%����! !�.�-$�+.�(�.�&!&�,+%(!��#(,,�(�0 �+$��%������)�"! �
$&�0(+,($%�+00!��!)+%(!��#�(0���+$������+)+&%�)�%!����%�%������)$�!"�!,)� �
&�!&,�����+5(�.���#�& ('+%���!�$(�.��! ��",�4(�,��%!�0�+�.(�.����)$��!%�!�,/�
 �)�0�$�%����� )���!��$�0��"+0(,(%(�$���%�+,$!�!""� $�!,)� �&�!&,��(�)�&��)��0��(��
%��( �!#���!��$����%�($�+��+�)+%! /� �2�( ����%�!"���'�,�?�!"�%����!)��"! �
��$%+(�+�,���!��$���8#�(0��($��2�('+,��%�%!�6� !�0+ �!�9�%!�0!�&,/�#(%���("�%(���
�!��$�0 (%� (+������ �"! ��" !��:��?3�+,,��!��$�#(,,�����4&�0%�)�%!������(,%�%!�
�("�%(����!��$��%+�)+ )$�(��+00! )+�0��#(%��%����+%(!�+,�+.��)+�%!� �+0��6� !�
0+ �!��$%+%�$�"! � �$()��%(+,�)�'�,!&���%�+�)�&!,(0/�����*���$%+(�+�,��
��'�,!&���%�+�)��,(�+%����+�.��!"�%�($�&,+���

�
�

�

                                                 
9 Lifetime Homes - www.lifetimehomes.org.uk/  
10 CLG (2009) Code for Sustainable Homes - Technical guide May 2009 - Version 2 

 

�

�	��� �!"#�$%	"&��
�
�

����������������
�

���1*��!�$(�.�8���3�:���9A��
�!)��"! ���$%+(�+�,���!��$�B���0��(0+,���()��8���3�:���9A�
�("�%(����!��$3��("�%(�����(.��!� �!!)$�8���3�:��=9A�
�("�%(����!��$�� (%� (+�8�+�(�%�.3�:���9�

�

������$'�()��)��
�

�()7�� $�/��+,%!���% +%�.(0��!�$(�.��+ 5�%��$$�$$���%�
8:���������+ ��;�C��3�:���9A��+,%!���!�$(�.��% +%�./�8���3�
:��=9A��!��($$(!�(�.��% +%�./�"! �
4% +��+ ��8����+�)�� (�+,�
�!�$�,%(�.3�:��=9A�� ('+%����0%! ��!�$���!�)(%(!���� '�/�
8����+�)����3�:���9A 	�$()��%(+,�D��� $(�.��+ ���!���
�!��($$(!�(�.��% +%�./�8���3�:���9�

�

��*��)����	+,)���')��
�

��+�)�:�

�

�����*��*���)���
�


�'( !����%�+�)�	�.��� +%(!��(���+,%!��

�

�#�	+,)���')��
�

���B��!�$(�.� ���B��00�$$(�(,(%/�

�

�#�	����-)�
�

��($�&!,(0/��+$�$% !�.�$!0(+,�����"(%$�+�)���.,(.(�,��
��'( !����%+,�(�&+0%$��

APPENDIX APage 173



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������		
���
����
������
�
���� ���������� !�"#�$##" �$%����"&'�()�*"�+��*�,&  �(*�$(��#&*& ���"&'�()�(���'��'�$(�

�''�(*�$��,"+-"(�(*�"#�, �$*�()�'&'*$�($%���,"++&(�*��'���&!�()�" � �(*�()�- ��$*��
�"&'�()��(�*���- ��$*��+$ .�*��$'�%�,"+���(, �$'�()�!���##�,&�*�#" �+$(!��$�*"(�
 �'���(*'�$(��$'�'&,��*�� ���'�$�(����*"��('& ��*���"()"�()�'&--�!�"#�$##" �$%���
�"&'�()�&(�*'��(�*����" "&)���

�

�
���������������������� ���!"�#$�

�
�##" �$%����"&'�()�&(�*'�/����%��- "�����0��(�-� -�*&�*!0�"(�',��+�'�"#��(,�&��()��1�" �+" ��
�/����()'�2(�*�)$�(3�$(��" "(�'�*�'�"#�1������,*$ �'�" �) �$*� �#" � �'���(*�$��-& -"'�'��
�
�##" �$%����"&'�()�- "��'�"(�/����%��'"&)�*�$'�&-�*"��45�"#�*���*"*$�� �'���(*�$��#�"" '-$,��
- "-"'���������"&(,���/����'��.�*"��('& ��$�41641�74684�'-��*�%�*/��(�'",�$�� �(*���$(��
�(*� +���$*��$##" �$%����"&'�()�*�(& �'�$, "''�*����" "&)���
�
����- "��'�"(�"#�$##" �$%����"&'�()�+&'*6�

• %��"#�$�'�+��$ �'�9��$(��*!-��*"�*���"�� $���+�:�"(�'�*�0�&(��''��*��'�$) ����/�*��*���
�"&(,���*"�*$ )�*�$�'-�,�#�,����(*�#����,$*�)" !�"#�) �$*�'*��"&'�()�(�����(�*���
�",$��*!;�$(��

• %��#&��!��(*�) $*����(�*��������"-+�(*�'�*��'"�$'�*"�$�"���*���"�� �,"(,�(* $*�"(�"#�
$##" �$%����"&'�()��(�$(!�-$ *�,&�$ ��",$*�"(�/�*��(�*��������"-+�(*�'�*��$(���(�" �� �
*"�$,������'�$+��''���'�)(�

�
����$##" �$%����"&'�()�,"(* �%&*�"(�+$!�"(�!�%�� ��&,���/�� �� "%&'*�$(��, ���%��������(,��
�'�- "������*"���+"('* $*��*�$*�*���$##" �$%����"&'�()�*$ )�*�/"&���+$.��*��������"-+�(*�
&(��$%����
�
��� ��/����%��$�- �'&+-*�"(�*�$*�$(!�$##" �$%���'&--�!�/����%��- "������"(�'�*�����##<'�*��
- "��'�"(�" �$�#�($(,�$��,"(* �%&*�"(��(����&�"#�"(<'�*��- "��'�"(�+$!�"(�!�%��+$����(�
�:,�-*�"($��,� ,&+'*$(,�'�/�� ��"(<'�*��- "��'�"(��'�- "��(�*"�%��&($,����$%���" ��",$��'���
(�����"�'�("*�(�,�''�*$*��$##" �$%����"&'�()�- "��'�"(��
�
��$((�()�-� +�''�"(�/����%�� �#&'���"(������"-+�(*�'�*�'�/��,��$ ��'&%<���������(*"�'�-$ $*��
�����"-+�(*�-$ ,��'�%��"/�*���$##" �$%����"&'�()�*� �'�"��0�&(��''�*���$##" �$%����"&'�()�
- "��'�"(��'�- "-" *�"($*��*"�*�$*�/��,��/"&����$���%��(� �=&� ���"(�*���'�*��$'�$�/�"����
�

�
%!"&�����&��#�

�
���8 �##" �$%����"&'�()��(,�&��'�'",�$�� �(*���$(���(*� +���$*���"&'�()0�- "������*"�

'-�,�#�������)�%����"&'��"��'�/�"'��(���'�$ ��&($%���*"�%��+�*�%!�- ��$*��+$ .�*�
�"&'�()���",�$�� �(*����"&'�()��'� �(*����"&'�()�"/(���$(��+$($)���%!��",$��
$&*�" �*��'�$(�� �)�'*� ���'",�$���$(��" �'0�#" �/��,��)&�����(��*$ )�*� �(*'�$ ��
��*� +�(���*� "&)��*���($*�"($�� �(*� �)�+�����(*� +���$*��$##" �$%����"&'�()��'�
�"&'�()�$*�- �,�'�$(�� �(*'�$%"���*�"'��"#�'",�$�� �(*0�%&*�%��"/�+$ .�*�- �,��" �
 �(*'0�$(��/��,��+��*�*���, �*� �$�'�*�"&*�$%"��0��(,�&��()�'�$ ����=&�*!�- "�&,*'0�
"*�� ��"/�,"'*��"+�'�#" �'$���$(���(*� +���$*�� �(*��

�
���� ����(����#" �$##" �$%����"&'�()�+&'*�%��$''�''����(�*���,"(*�:*�"#�$�+$ .�*�/��,��

�'��(, �$'�()�!�%�!"(��*��� �$,��"#��"/� ��$ (�()��"&'��"��'0�-$ *�,&�$ �!�(�/�!�

APPENDIX APage 174



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�>�

#" +�()��"&'��"��'�/�*��(��$�*"(����(�81�1��*��'��'*�+$*���*�$*�"�� ��?5�"#�(�/�!�
$ �'�()��"&'��"��'�,$(("*�$,,�''�+$ .�*��"&'�()�/�*�"&*�'"+��#" +�"#�$''�'*$(,����
���'��'�&-�# "+���5��(�8114����#��:�'*�()��"&'��"��'� �=&� �()�$�+"���# "+�
&('&�*$%���$,,"++"�$*�"(�$-- ":�+$*��!��45��"�("*��$���*���#�($(,�$�� �'"& ,�'�
*"��"�'"�����'��'�$�� "-�# "+�*���,"  �'-"(��()�#�)& ���(�8114�'&))�'*�()�*�$*�
"�� $���$##" �$%���*!�'�"&���%��)�**�()�%�**� 0�%&*�*�$*�%$  �� '�*"�(�/��(* $(*'�*"�
*���+$ .�*��$���/" '�(������

�
���> ����$''�''+�(*�"#�&(+�*��"&'�()�(���0��(,�&��()��:�'*�()�%$,.�")�$(��(�/�!�$ �'�()�

(���0�'&))�'*'�*�$*�*�� ���'�$� �=&� �+�(*�*"�- "�����#" �$(�$���*�"($������?���
$##" �$%���&(�*'�-� �$((&+0�/��,�� �- �'�(*'�$�+$ .����(, �$'���"�� �*����$'*�*�(�
!�$ '�# "+�(�)��)�%���(����2$##" �$%���*!�+"'*�!�%��()�$�#&(,*�"(�"#�/" .��''(�''3�
*�(�!�$ '�$)"�$(��$(�&(+�*� �=&� �+�(*�"#���?�-� �$((&+�@&'*�4���!�$ '�$)"�2�(�
811�3��

�
���4 �(+�*�(����#" �$##" �$%����"&'�()��'�#$ ��(��:,�''�"#�*���- "-"'����"&'�()�

������ !�*$ )�*'�$'�'�*�"&*��(�-"��,!����6��"&'�()��&--�!�$(���",$*�"($��� �" �*��'�
$(��$%"���*���������"#�*"*$��,"+-��*�"('�$,��������(�$(!�!�$ �'�(,��%�#" �����>����*�
�'�*�� �#" ���''�(*�$��*"�'��.�*"�+$:�+�'��*���,"(* �%&*�"(�*"�(�/�$##" �$%���&(�*'�
# "+�(�/��"&'�()������"-+�(*'�������
,"("+�,���$%���*!��''�''+�(*8��$'�
,"('��� ���*��� �$��'*�,�,"(* �%&*�"(�*�$*�,$(�%��'�,& ���# "+�(�/��"&'�()�
�����"-+�(*�$, "''���##� �(*��"&'�()�$ �$'�"#�*����" "&)��(" *��$(��'"&*��"#�*���
 ��� �$(���& �()�&(�� ���##� �(*�+$ .�*�,"(��*�"('������'�'�"/'�*�$*��(�*���,&  �(*�
+$ .�*�,"(��*�"('�- ��$���()��(�81�1�*����,"("+�,���$%���*!�"#��"&'�()�
�����"-+�(*'��(�'"+��$ �$'�"#�*����" "&)��$ �/� ��+$ )�($��$(��*�$*�*��'��,"&���
("*� �$��'*�,$��!�'&--" *�$(�$##" �$%����"&'�()�,"(* �%&*�"(0��"/��� 0��(�"*�� �$ �$'�
$(���& �()�+" ��A(" +$�B�+$ .�*�,"(��*�"('0������"-+�(*'�,"&��� �$��'*�,$��!�
������ �&-�*"��45�$'�$##" �$%�����

�
���� ����-"��,!�*$ )�*�#" �$##" �$%����"&'�()�,"(* �%&*�"(��$'�%��(�'�*�$'�A&-�*"��45B0�

/��,��/����%��$--�����*"�$���=&$��#!�()� �'���(*�$�������"-+�(*'0�%��()�*�"'��"(�'�*�'�
,$-$%���"#�- "����()�$�(�*�)$�(�"#��1�&(�*'�" �+" ��&(�*'�" �"#�"(�1������,*$ �'�" �
+" ����##" �$%����"&'�()�- "��'�"(�$*�$� $*���"/� �*�$(�*���*$ )�*� $()��/����"(�!�
%��$,,�-*$%���/�� ���*��'���+"('* $*���*� "&)��$�#�($(,�$��$-- $�'$��*�$*�- ��$���()�
+$ .�*�,"(��*�"('0�$%(" +$��-�!'�,$��"(<'�*��,"('* $�(*'� �'&�*�()��(��:* $" ��($ !�
,"'*'0�" ���)�� �,"+-�*�()�&'���$�&��/"&��� �(�� �*��������"-+�(*�&(��$%���/��(�
*���$##" �$%����"&'�()�,"(* �%&*�"(��'�*$.�(��(*"�$,,"&(*��

�
���7 �����"&(,���/����'��.�*"�$,������������ !�"#�$(�$-- "- �$*��*�(& ��'-��*�%�*/��(�

'",�$�� �(*�$(���(*� +���$*���"&'�()�$, "''�*����" "&)��$'��(#" +���%!�*���+"'*�
&-�*"��$*���* $*�)�,��"&'�()��$ .�*��''�''+�(*�2����3�2" � �-�$,�+�(*3�������
�(�*�$��*$ )�*�/����%��'-��*�41641�74684�%�*/��(�*��'��*�(& �'0�/�*��*���$,*&$��'�9�0�
*!-��$(��*�(& ��"#�$##" �$%���'&--�!�'"&)�*�"(��(�����&$��'�*�'�%��()���-�(��(*�"(�
*���'�*���",$*�"(0��",$���"&'�()�+�:�$(�����(*�#����- �" �*��'�*"�+��*��",$��(���'�
/�*��(�*���'&%<$ �$�����##" �$%����"&'�()�- "��'�"(�$'��(#���������"-+�(*�/�*��(�
A/$'����"�� B�� ��(����*�����$)�'�+$!�%��$-- "- �$*���(�,� *$�(�,� ,&+'*$(,�'0�
'&%@�,*�*"��",$��(���0�,�$ $,*� �$(��� ��(����*�,"('��� $*�"('��

�
���? �##<'�*��- "��'�"(�/����"(�!�%��,"('��� ���$-- "- �$*���(��:,�-*�"($��,� ,&+'*$(,�'�

$(���'���-�(��(*�"(�*���'&�*$%���*!�$(��$�$��$%���*!�"#�$�*� ($*����'�*�'������"##<'�*��

                                                 
1 GL Hearn and Justin Gardener Consulting (20102011) Halton and Mid-Mersey Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment 
2 DTZ (2010) Economic Viability Assessment 

APPENDIX APage 175



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�4�

- "��'�"(�"#�$##" �$%����"&'�()�/����"(�!�%��$,,�-*$%����#��*�,$(�%��- "��(�*�$*�"(<
'�*��- "��'�"(�/"&���("*�%��#�$'�%���" �*������(*�#�����",$��'���(�����"�'�("*�
 �=&� ��*���- "��'�"(�"#�$##" �$%����"&'�()��C�($(,�$��,"(* �%&*�"('��('*�$��"#�"(<
'�*��- "��'�"(�+$!�$�'"�%��'"&)�*��(��:,�-*�"($��,� ,&+'*$(,�'�$(���(�$,," �$(,��
/�*��*��������"-+�(*��"(* �%&*�"('�����" ��=&��$��(*���

�
���� ���'�-"��,!�$(��*��������(,��%$'��*�$*�'&--" *'��*�/����%��'&%@�,*�*"� �)&�$ � ����/�

*"��('& ���*� �#��,*'�,�$()�'��(�*����" "&)�B'��"&'�()�(����$(���",$��
,� ,&+'*$(,�'���

�
�

�

�

�
���'�	��(�)
�*��
�

�

��&��#����������
�

����6��"&'�()�2���0�81�13��

�

�������+�� #� ��
�

�$�*"(�$(�����<�� '�!��* $*�)�,��"&'�()��$ .�*��''�''+�(*�
2�����$ (�$(��D&'*�(��$ �(� ��"('&�*�()0�81�181��3;��
�$�*"(�
,"("+�,���$%���*!��''�''+�(*�2��E0�81�13;��$�*"(�
�"&'�()��* $*�)!�811?<81���2���0�811?3��

�

�&��& $���
�, �&�+ "�
�

��$(��8�

�

����������&� "��
�

����$�*�!��$�*"(;�
(�� "(+�(*�$(��	�)�(� $*�"(��(��$�*"(�

�

���
�, �&�+ "�
�

�1�F��"&'�()� �

�

���
!&��- �
�

���'�-"��,!��$'�'* "()�'",�$��%�(�#�*'�$(��(�)��)�%���
�(�� "(+�(*$���+-$,*'��

APPENDIX APage 176



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������		
��
�
�	��		������
����	���

���	��	�������
���	����
������	���	�

�
���� ����������� !"��� �#$��$%�#�&&$��'(����'�% �$�!��"���&'&)'�%��*��+,%+-�

���.'��'����(����.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'�#�&& �$�$'%�"�.'��##'%%����('#'�����(�
�,,��,�$��'��##�&&�(��$���% **$#$'������&''���"'$���''(%���

�

�
���������������� �!"� #�����$%��&�
�'%��%��
()*����(%��

)!$�
()*����!"��#�+'��'���
�
�"'��� �#$��/$���/��0�/$�"�$�%�,����'�%����'�% �'��,,��,�$��'�,��.$%$���*����+,%$'%-���(�
���.'��'�%���(����.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'1%��##�&&�(��$����''(%���������#��$�!�%$�'%���(�*����"'�
, �,�%'%��*�#��%$('�$�!�,����$�!��,,�$#��$��%-��"'�*����/$�!�#�$�'�$��/$����''(����)'�%��$%*$'(2�
���'�% �'��'/�,��.$%$���$%��*���% $��)�'�%���(��(-�,��,�%��%�%"� �(�%��$%*+��"'�*����/$�!�
#�$�'�$�2�
�

• �"'�%$�'�$%������**'#�'(�)+�,��� �$��-�#����&$���$��-�*���($�!������"'��'�.$���&'�����
*�#���%��"���/� �(��'% ���$�� ��##',��)�'��$.$�!�#��($�$��%�

�

• �"'�%$�'�$%�/'���('%$!�'(���(����(%#�,'(����!$.'�,�$.�#+�)'�/''��,$�#"'%3,���%���(-�
/"'�'��,,��,�$��'-�)'�/''���"'�%$�'���(��(4�#'��� %'%�

�

• �"'�%$�'�$%�/'�����#��'(�$���'���$�������"'�"$!"/�+��'�/��0�/$�"��('5 ��'�.'"$# ����
��(�,'('%��$����##'%%-���(�,��.$%$���*���,��0$�!���(�#$�# ���$���

�

• �"'�%$�'�$%��##'%%$)�'������#���%'�.$#'%���(�*�#$�$�$'%�)+�/��0$�!���(3���, )�$#�
����%,����

�

• �"'�%$�'�#���)'�% ,,�$'(�/$�"�'%%'��$���%'�.$#'%�% #"��%�/��'�-�%'/'��!'-�(��$��!'-�
��(�/�%�'�($%,�%���

�

• 6$�"�,���$# �����'!��(����%$�'%�*������.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'-��"'�('.'��,&'���$�#� ('%�
�,,��,�$��'�,��.$%$���*����"'�%����!'-�&�$��'���#'���(��'%�$�!��*�'5 $,&'��-�/"'�'�
�'5 $�'(-�/$�"� ��#�'��$�!� ��##',��)�'�� $%��#'-����,�'%'������$%0�����"'�"'���"�
��(�%�*'�+��*��"�%'��$.$�!��������'����"'�%$�'�

�

• �"'�,��,�%���$%����� ��##',��)�+�('��$&'���������"'��&'�$�+����#"���#�'���*��"'�
% ��� �($�!���'��

�

• �"'�%$�'�/� �(������'�(�����(.'�%'�'**'#�%�����"'�$��'!�$�+��*��"'��'�%'+�
%� ��+�
������(3���	�&%���%$�'�

�
�"'�'�/$���)'���,�'% &,�$����!�$�%���"'���%%��*�'7$%�$�!�#��%'��'(��+,%+���(����.'��'�����
���.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'�%$�'%��'�($�!�������'7�#'�)��$�!����$('��$*$'(�%"���*���� ��'%%�% $��)�'�
�',��#'&'���,��.$%$����*�'5 ������'�"��#'(�.�� '���'�,��.$('(��
�

�
,-% �&��) ��!�

�
���8 �������# ��'���+�"�%��/��,�$.��'��+,%+���(����.'��'��%$�'%���#��'(�$��	 �#���-���(�

�/����#���� �"��$�+��'%$('��$���%$�'%-������!%���($�!�%$�'�$��6$(�'%���(����'/�%$�'�

APPENDIX APage 177



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�,'�'(�$��899��$��	 �#���-�,��.$($�!����������*�:9�,'�&��'�����(��9�����%$��
,$�#"'%��#��%%��"'����� !"����"'�'���'�# ��'���+����,���%�*������.'��$�!�
�"�/,'�,�'����

�
�

	'%$('��$���'�&��'����
��$.��'� �� �#$��

����%$�� ���.'��$�!�
�"�/,'�,�'�


� )��

6$(�'%� ;;� 8<� ;;� ;;� ./�
	 �#���� �<� :� �9� ;;� .��

� )�� �/� .�� �0� 0� 10�

�

)2���3��
�'%��)!$�
()*����(��� �#�%�)!$�
()*����!"��#�+'��'������ %�4.0��05�

�
�
���< �"'��� �#$��$%�,��;�#�$.'�$���((�'%%$�!��"'�/'�*��'��''(%��*��"'��+,%+���(�

���.'��'��#�&& �$�+���(�"�%�/��0'(�/$�"��'$!")� �$�!�� �"��$�$'%�$���"'%"$�'-��
��(�6���$�!������(�����'�'�%����5 ���$*+��"'��''(�*����'%$('��$���,'�&��'�����(�
����%$��%$�'%�,$�#"'%�/$�"$���"'�% );�'!$��-�#�&&$%%$��$�!��"'��"'%"$�'������'�%"$,�
��'���+,%+���(����.'��'���##�&&�(��$����%%'%%&'���=����>��/"$#"��',���'(�
$��899�����"$%�%� (+�#��#� ('(�����(($�$������'%$('��$����''(�$���������*��� ,����
8?;<8��(($�$�����,$�#"'%�*����+,%$'%���(����.'��'�%�/$�"�����'5 $�'&'���*���
���.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'�,���%-�$���"'�,'�$�(����89�����$�#'��"$%�%� (+��"'��� �#$��
"�%�,��.$('(����'/�%$�'�$��	 �#����=#�&,�$%$�!��:�,$�#"'%-��9�����%$����(�:�
,'�&��'��>���"'�	 �#��������%$��%$�'�,��.$('(�&��'��"���8@A��*��"'�$('��$*$'(�
�''(�*�������%$��,��.$%$���$���"'��"'%"$�'������'�%"$,���'���

�
���: �"'��� �#$��/$���#���$� '����/��0�#����)����$.'�+�/$�"��'$!")� �$�!�� �"��$�$'%����

�'.$'/���(� ,(��'��"'��''(�*����+,%+���(����.'��'��,$�#"'%���(����.'��$�!�
�"�/,'�,�'�,���%����'�% �'��"�����#����''(�$%�,��,'��+�5 ���$*$'(���(�&���!'(�
�.'���"'����'������'!+�,����,'�$�(���"$%�'.$('�#'�)�%'�/$���$�*��&�������1%���#���+�
%'�����!'����(��"'�����#��$����*�% **$#$'���('�$.'��)�'�%$�'%�$���"'��$�'�����#��$��%���(�
�'.'��,&'�������!'&'���������"'�#�$�'�$��%'��� ��$���"'�,��$#+�/$���)'� %'(����
����#��'��,,��,�$��'�%$�'%���(����('�'�&$�'��,,�$#�)�'�,����$�!��,,�$#��$��%-�
'�% �$�!�%�/$�"��"'��''(�*���)�$#0%���(�&������"� %$�!-��"'��''(�*����+,%+���(�
���.'��'��,$�#"'%�/$���)'��'.$'/'(�,'�$�($#���+��"�� !"� ���"'����'������'!+�
,'�$�(����'�% �'��"����''(�$%�,��,'��+�5 ���$*$'(���(�,��$#$'%�, ��$��,��#'����
�((�'%%�%"���*������"$%�,��$#+�/$���)'� %'(����$�*��&�%$�'�%'�'#�$���$���"'��$�'�
����#��$��%���(��'.'��,&'�������!'&'���������(�����%%'%%��,,�$#�)�'�,����$�!�
�,,�$#��$��%-����'�% �'��"���,��,�%'(�%$�'%���'�% $��)�'���(�#�,�)�'��*�,��.$($�!����
�('5 ��'��$.$�!�'�.$���&'���*���* � �'��'%$('��%�#�&& �$�$'%�/"$�%��,���'#�$�!��"'�
�&'�$�+���(�#"���#�'���*��"'�% ��� �($�!���'���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

                                                 
1 Salford Housing and Urban Studies Unit and The University of Salford (2007) Cheshire Partnership Area Gypsy 

and Traveller Accommodation Assessment  

APPENDIX APage 178



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�?�

 

�

�����������	���6��
�

�

�) ��!)���������
�

���<2��� %$�!�=���-�89�9>�

�

���)��	*�$�!����
�

�"'%"$�'������'�%"$,���'���+,%+���(����.'��'��
�##�&&�(��$����%%'%%&'���=���*��(��� %$�!���(���)���
�� ($'%���$����(��"'���$.'�%$�+��*����*��(-�899�>�

�

� () �"����27�� �*�%�
�

8�

�

�����(��(� ��%��
�


�.$���&'�����(�	'!'�'���$���$���������

�9�B��� %$�!�� �8�B��'���"�
�

����27�� �*�%�
� ���B��##'%%$)$�$�+� �<�;�
( #��$���
�

����- ��8��
�

�"$%�,��$#+�%"� �(�#����$) �'�($�'#��+�����"'�/'��;)'$�!��*��"'�
�+,%+-����.'��'����(����.'��$�!��"�/,'�,�'�#�&& �$�$'%��

APPENDIX APage 179



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� ���������	
��

���	�
�����	��
�

���� ��������� �!"��#�$#$�!�$��$%�#����� ���&$'���(��)�*��+(��'�!����+,��)$*���
���,'*�� �-�,.�� /��(�,�� ���*�#'+,���!����#$�!��������)#$�!��!�#��$��!(�%$����,!$���
�*0��!� ���$%�'��� ��'�!����+,��!����#$�!�����)��(���*�0����*/�%�$)���*'��� �!"��
�')+���$%�#��0�!��0�"��,���$��!"���$�*���*�"�������*'��� ��$� ��!�$����*��1"�'�!�
�)����$��/���*��)#�$0�� �����2'�,�!(/�!$����$'�� �� �"��,!"(�,�%��!(,���!"�$' "�
-�,.�� ���*��(�,�� ��$'!��/�!$�%���,�!�!�� ��������!$�.�(����0�������*�%���,�!������!����
!"���%$���$%�"� "��)#$�!�����!"�!��0��(��%%$�!����!�.���!$����$'�� ��!��0�,�+(�
�'�!����+,��)$*���!"�$' "�!"��)��"����)���0��,�+,�����!"���$����!��!� (��

�
�������������������������	���� �����

�
�!�"��������#��#�������������	���� ����
���$�*���!$����$'�� ��&$'���(��!$�+��)�*��+(��'�!����+,��)$*���$%�!��0�,����,'*�� �
-�,.�� /��(�,�� ���*�#'+,���!����#$�!/�!"���$'���,���*��!��#��!�����-�,,��'##$�!�����*'�!�$��
���!"�����*�!$�!��0�,/����$'�� �����"$����$%��'�!����+,��!����#$�!�)$*�����*����'�����-�
*�0�,$#)��!������"� ",(��������+,����
�
�"���-�,,�+����"��0�*�!"�$' "3�

• *����!�� ��� ��%����!�*�0�,$#)��!/�-"��"� �����!�����,�� ���')+���$%�!��#�/���!$�!"��
)$�!��'�!����+,��,$��!�$���0��,�+,��������$�*�����-�!"���,!$�4���#�!��,��!��!� (5���

• ���'��� ��,,�*�0�,$#)��!����-�,,��$����!�*���*���"��0���"� "�,�0�,��$%��������+�,�!(�
���,'*�� ���!��%��!$�(��������+(�+'�/����,/�-�,.�� ���*��(�,�� 5�

• ��2'���� �!"��#�$*'�!�$��$%����0�,��,������*������#$�!�������)��!�/�%$��
*�0�,$#)��!�#�$#$��,��!"�!�����,�.�,(�!$� �����!������ ��%����!��')+���$%�!��#�5���*/�

• ��!!�� �)�1�)')�#��.�� ��!��*��*��!$�*�!���'���$%�!"��#��0�!��������
�

��!�"�$�����%��������������	���� �������&��'�
�$��'##$�!��'�!����+,��!����#$�!����$���!"���$�$' "/���,!$�4���1��!�� ��'�!����+,��
�����#$�!���!-$�.�-�,,�+��#�$!��!�*/���*��)#�$0�)��!��!$�!"���1��!�� ���!-$�.���*�!"��
��!�$*'�!�$��$%���-��'�!����+,���$'!�����*�%���,�!����-�,,�+�����$'�� �*����,'*�� 3�
�

• ����$��6��0����'�!����+,��!����#$�!��$'!��#��$��!���� �#'+,���!����#$�!/�-�,.�� ���*�
�(�,�� �$��!"����,0���7'+�,������* ��������$���!�$��-�!"�!"�������(���!�-�(���$&��!�

• ��*��!�������*��(�,�� ��$'!�����*�%���,�!������#����,,(�������$���!�$��-�!"�!"��8�(�
������$%��"�� ��

• ��������*�'���$%�!"����,!$���'�0�����,��$'!��9�$'!"-��!�	'��$��:�

• 	����!�!�*�$����-����,-�(��!�!�$���-"�����##�$#���!��

• ����)#�$0�*����,��!�!�$��������!��,�;�*����

• ���.���*���*��%���,�!��������##�$#���!��,$��!�$���

• ��#���!(�%$�����$0�!�0��!����#$�!�!��"�$,$ (/����,'*�� �!"��'���$%��,!����!�0��%'�,��
��*��$'�����$%�#$-���

�
�*��!�%��*�%$��!"����#$!��!��,�%'!'���'���-�!"���!"����,!$���'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.�
!"��%$,,$-�� ��$'!�����*�%���,�!����-�,,�+����%� '��*�*�!"�$' "�!"����!���,,$��!�$�����*�
��0�,$#)��!����� �)��!����3�
�

• ���'��*�$��'�*��'��*�%���,�!�������,'*�� �!"����,!$���'�0�����,��$'!��

• ��!���-"��"�"�0��+�����*��!�%��*�%$�������!�!�*�$����-����,-�(��!�!�$��/�+'��
��!���"�� ���$��#��.���*���*��%���,�!����

APPENDIX APage 180



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<<

(����)��������
�
���= �"��$'!�$)��$%�!"���$)+���*�)���'����!$����$'�� ���'�!����+,��!����#$�!�-�,,�+��

!"�!�!"�����������*'�!�$�����!"���')+���$%�'��'�!����+,��!��#����*��� ���!���
#�$#$�!�$��$%�&$'���(��)�*��+(��'�!����+,��)$*������,'*�� �#'+,���!����#$�!/�
-�,.�� ���*��(�,�� �-�!"�����*�!"�$' "���,!$����"���-�,,��$�!��+'!��!$����,��������*�
,$-����+$��!����#$�!��(�!�)/�"��,!"����,�%��!(,�����*�)$����'�!����+,��#�!!�����$%�
*�0�,$#)��!�-"����#�$#,�������$����!�����,(�!$��)#,$()��!/����0�������*��$���,�
��!�0�!�����

�
���> �$����$'�� ����*����+,��!"����"�%!�!$�)$����'�!����+,��)$*���$%�!��0�,��!����

��������(�!$����'���!"�!����'�����%',��'�!����+,��!����#$�!���!-$�.�������#,�����
��,!$�4���1��!�� ��'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.����,'*��3�

�

• ��,!$�������-�(���!-$�.�

• ��,0���7'+�,������* ��#'+,���!����#$�!���*�-�,.�� ��$'!���

• �"�����* �-�!���;�(/������(�;�(/������(���)+��,��*�����,���*�!"��������
������������,��

• �!"���-�,.�� ���*��(�,�� ��$'!������,'*�� �!"���'+,���	� "!��$%�;�(/�!"���(�,��
��!-$�.���*�$!"������������!-$�.���

• ��,!$���$����'����!-$�.����,'*�� �!"��	'��$����'�-�(���*��'�����$��!(�
	$'!���

• 	��,-�(��$'!�����*��!�!�$���

• �'����!���"�� �����*�+'���!$#��

• ;�!��-�(�/����,'*�� �!$-#�!"��
�
���? �,!"$' "�)�.�� �!"��+��!�'���$%�!"���1��!�� ��'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.���*�

��%���!�'�!'���-�,,�+��!"��)����#��$��!(������,!$�/�#�!!�����$%� �$-!"�%$��!"��
�$�$' "���*����#��!��',���!"��8�(�������$%��"�� ��)�(���2'�����)#�$0�)��!��!$�
!"���1��!�� ��'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.���*�!"����!�$*'�!�$��$%���-�
�'�!����+,���$'!�����*�%���,�!������"���1��!�� ��'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.�-�,,�
!"���%$���+��#�$!��!�*/���*�$##$�!'��!����!$��)#�$0��!"���1��!�� �$��#�$0�*����-�
%���,�!������*����0����/�-"�����##�$#���!�/�-�,,�+���'##$�!�*���"����$)#,�)��!��!"��
 $�,����!�$'!�-�!"���!"����,!$���$��,������#$�!��,���9���:��-"��"����%'�*�)��!�,����
!"��*�,�0��(�$%��'�!����+,��!����#$�!������,!$����

�
���@ �!�����,�$��)#���!�0��!"�!�!"����$��6+$'�*��(���!'���$%�!��0�,�������$ ����*���*�

-"�����##�$#���!�/�$##$�!'��!��������!�.���!$����'���!"�!�#'+,���!����#$�!/�-�,.�� �
��*��(�,�� ��$'!���������!� ��!�*����$���+$'�*�������;$�.�� �-�!"���� "+$'��� �
�'!"$��!����-�,,�+���'##$�!�*����$�*���!$���"��0���'�!����+,����$���+$'�*��(�
�������+�,�!(�#��!��',��,(�����$�&'��!�$��-�!"�!"����0��#$$,���!(�	� �$����*������(�
���0�,��

�
���A 
0���-�!"�!"��)$0��!$�)$����'�!����+,��)$*���$%�!��0�,/� �$-!"�-�,,����0�!�+,(�

+��� �#����'����$��!"��"� "-�(���!-$�.����������',!��)#�$0�)��!��!$����!���,�
���!�$���$%�!"��,$��,���!-$�.���*�!"����!�$*'�!�$��$%���-��$�*���%���!�'�!'���-�,,�
+����������(���*�����'�"�!"����!-$�.�-�,,�+��)��� �*/�)���!����*���*��)#�$0�*����
�$�&'��!�$��-�!"�!"���$'���,4���� "-�(��*�0���$�����-��$�*���%���!�'�!'���-�,,�+��

                                                 
1 HBC (2011) Halton Local Transport Plan 3 

• �$!��!��,��$'!���!$��1!��*�!"���$�$' "4��#�*��!�������*��(�,�� ���!-$�.��
�

APPENDIX APage 181



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<�

#�$0�*�*�-"����!"�����*�%$����-��$�*���%���!�'�!'�������!!��+'!�+,��!$�!"���%%��!��
$%�*�0�,$#)��!���*B$��*�0�,$#����$�!��+'!�$���-�,,�+���$' "!�������$�*�����-�!"�
��C3���%���!�'�!'�����$0���$���

�
���C D'�!"���*�!��,��� ��*�� �!"�����*�!$����$'�� ��!��0�,�+(��'�!����+,��)$*���-�,,�+��

��!�$'!����!"�������#$�!���*��������+�,�!(�������"�������-�,,�#�$0�*�� '�*�����$��
�������+�,�!(5�$'!,����!"����2'���)��!��%$�������#$�!�������)��!����*����0�,��,���5�
��*/���!�������*��(�,��#��.�� ��!��*��*��%$��*�%%����!�!(#���$%�*�0�,$#)��!��	$'!���
��*�%���,�!����!$�+����%� '��*�*�%$��!"����#$!��!��,�%'!'���'���-�!"���!"���$�$' "4��
�'�!����+,�������#$�!���!-$�.�-�,,�+����!�$'!����!"����!���,,$��!�$�����*�
��0�,$#)��!����� �)��!������0�,$#)��!��,����$�')��!�������$�*�����-�!"�
��,!$�4�������

�
�

�
�

 

 

�

�����*�+�
,�-��.��
�

�

����������������
�

����>3������#$�!�9���/�=<<�:5���,�0���� ����'�!����+,��
�����#$�!��(�!�)�9�����:�9�%�/�=<<C:��

�

�������/�0������
�

���=�9���/�=<<A:5����%!����>�9���/�=<��<:5���,!$���'�0��
	��,��)#�$0�)��!�3���)��*��!'*(�9�!������0�����,��0�/�=<<�:5�
��*6�����(��$��,��'!"$��!������$����$'�*��(��'+,���
�����#$�!��������+�,�!(�	�#$�!�9�!.���/�=<�<:�

�

������#�����1����/���
�

C�

�

����������������
�


�0��$�)��!���*�	� �����!�$�������,!$��

?�E�,�)�!���"�� ��� �=�E����,!"�
��E�����F'�,�!(� �C�E�����#$�!�

�

�
���1����/���
�

���E��������+�,�!(� �
�

�
������2��
�

�"���#$,��(�-�,,�"�0��#$��!�0��+���%�!��$���,,�������$%�
�'�!����+�,�!(�9�$���,/���$�$)��/���0��$�)��!�,:��

APPENDIX APage 182



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
��
��

����
��
�����
���
�
���� ������������� �!�����"#�$ �%��&'"��� ��(�#)� ���(�!�*�%+,�-.�*) � ���&$� �/�� -� �� �

!%//�$"((�$ �$"'')(% %����(+�/��+� "���,�(��� %"(��(+�%(0�� '�( � ��"),�") �
��/ "(.� ����%0��1""/��% ��	�,%"(.������%����(+� ����"� ��2�� ���

�

�
����������������������������������� ����

�
�!�"���#���$%����������������������� ����
����/�(+��(+�%(3��� �)$ )���(�$�������3"�� ����)$$���3)/�%'1/�'�( � %"(�"3� ����������
�� �!�����%+,��!%//�*����3�,)��+�+���(��1�"1"��/�� �� �!")/+�%'1�$ �(�,� %0�/��"��1��0�( �
 ����)$$���3)/�%'1/�'�( � %"(�"3� ������������ �!�����"#�$ ��(+����"$%� �+�%(3��� �)$ )���
!%//�(" �*��1��'%  �+���
�
���1�� �"3� ������������ �!�����"#�$ .����"$%� �+�!"�4��!%//�*���)11"� �+��(+���3�,)��+�+�
%($/)+%(,� �"�����/� �+� "� ����"�+�(� !"�4.��"�+�#)($ %"(�.�'�%(� "//�1/�5����(+� ����67�
!% ����3"$)��"(�% -��#)($ %"(��%(���/ "(���
�

&!��'����$�&������$�(�����((���'$������
8"//"!%(,� ���$"(� �)$ %"(�"3� ������������ �!�����%+,�.�"11"� )(% %��� "���$)���%'1�"0�+�
$�"��9�%0����)� �%(�*/�� ��(�1"� �"1 %"(��!%//�*��$�1% �/%��+�)1"(.�%($/)+%(,��)� �%(�*/��
 ��(�1"� �"11"� )(% %������"$%� �+�!% �� ����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,����
�
�!���%�$������$��$)�"�#���(*�$���((���'$������
��0�/"1'�( �1�"1"��/����")/+����4� "� �4���+0�( �,��"3� �����,�(��� %"(��(+�+�0�/"1'�( �
"11"� )(% %����  �%*) �*/�� "� ������������ �!�����"#�$ .���1�$%�//��!����� �%��$�(����%� �%(�
��%�%(,� ���;)�/% ��"3�+��%,(�%(��(�������(+� ���%(� ���$��� %"(�"3�,� �!���3�� )�������%��!%//�
*��1�� %$)/��/���($")��,�+�%(� ����") ��2%+(���<���=��(+�2�� �	)($"�(�<����=�>���������
"3����(,���
�
)!�
$#���$*�$����+*(�����
��,� %0���(0%�"('�( �/�%'1�$ ��$�)��+�*�� ���$"(� �)$ %"(�"3� ������������ �!���!%//�*��
'% %,� �+�!������11�"1�%� �.��(+�"11"� )(% %��� "��(��($�� ���(� )��/��(0%�"('�( ��"),� ��
��%��%��1�� %$)/��/���11/%$�*/�� "� ����������
� )�����1�$%�/���" �$ %"(������<���=.�	�'����
�% �.��(+��% ��"3��1�$%�/��$%�( %3%$��'1"� �($��<����=��(+�" ����������"3��%,(%3%$�( �
�(0%�"('�( �/�0�/)����
�
2% �����1�$ � "�%( ��(� %"(�//��%'1"� �( ��% ���<�������
� )���������(+�	�'�����% �=��)$��
'���)����!%//�(��+� "�*���)33%$%�( /���? �(�%0�� "��(�*/����$"($/)�%"(�"3�("��+0������33�$ �"(�
%( �,�% ��)(/����% �$�(�*��+�'"(� �� �+� �� � ���������*" ��("��/ ��(� %0����(+��'1��� %0��
	���"(��"3��0��9�%+%(,��)*/%$��( ���� ��
�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

APPENDIX APage 183



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��@

�

�
�

,�%'����-�������������������� ����"��%��*��

APPENDIX APage 184



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��A

�
�'���.������$��

�
���� �����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,��%����4�����,%"(�/����� �1�"0%+%(,��(�%'1"� �( ��"�+�

$"((�$ %"(��$�"��� ����������*� !��(�	)($"�(��(+�2%+(����(+���� �� �,%$�/%(4�
*� !��(� ����67��(+��7���� �%���/�"�"(��"3�3")��/"$� %"(��!����� ���	%0����������
$�(�*��$�"���+.�� �"�.� "� ���!�� �"3� ����7.�!% ��" ����/"$� %"(��*�%(,��%0��1""/�
0%�� ���>%(,�!����(+�B)��(�!��� )((�/�.� ����A�C�6��%(�2���%(, "(��(+� ���
���/!�//��%�+)$ �<�7=�������%/0���:)*%/�����%+,���"!�0��.�$)���( /���)33����3�"'�
$"(,�� %"(.�1�� %$)/��/��� �1��4� %'��.�!�%$��$"( �%*) ��� "�+%��)1 %"(��(+�
)(��/%�*/��#")�(��� %'��.��(+�$��� �����1%($��1"%( �"(� ����"�+�(� !"�4��

�
���@ �"���/%�0�� ���%($����%(,�1�"*/�'��"3�$"(,�� %"(.���/ "(��"�"),���")($%/�%��

1�"'" %(,� ���+�/%0����"3���(�!�*�%+,���$�"��� ���	%0����������%�� "�*��+�/%0���+�
�% )� �+�$����D4'�)1� ���'�3�"'� ����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,�����%������������ �!���
��%+,���(+� ���!%+���1�"#�$ �%��%( �(+�+� "�%'1�"0��$�"����%0����$$���%*%/% �.�
$"((�$ %0% ���(+��)� �%(�*/�� ��0�/�"1 %"(���(+���� "����33�$ %0��(� !"�4����%/%�($��
3"�� ��(�1"� ��$�"��� ���	%0�������������������)/ � ������������ �!�����"#�$ �!%//�
%'1�"0��$"((�$ %0% ��*� !��(�	)($"�(��(+�2%+(����(+� ���!%+����)*9��,%"(��(+�
��,%"(.�1����( �"11"� )(% %���3"��/"$�/���,�(��� %"(.�'�?%'%���/"$�/��$"("'%$�
,�"! ��"11"� )(% %����(+�)/ %'� �/��*�$"'���(�%$"(%$�,� �!���3"�� ���������

�
���A ����1/�(��3"�� ������������ �!�����"#�$ �!�����)*'%  �+� "� �����1�� '�( �3"��

���(�1"� �<�3�=�%(����D.��(+����)*/%$��(;)%�����/+�%(��������(��$ "*�������� ���
�"0��('�( �$"(3%�'�+�% ��$"''% '�( � "� ������������ �!�����"#�$ ���(+�3%(�/�
1/�((%(,��11�"0�/�!�����$�%0�+�%(���$�'*��������3�"'� �����$�� ����"3�� � ��3"��
���(�1"� ��(+� �����$�� ����"3�� � ��3"���"'')(% %����(+��"$�/��"0��('�( �
3"//"!%(,� ���3%(�/��(�1�$ "���	�1"� ���� �%���( %$%1� �+� �� �$"(� �)$ %"(�!"�4�!%//�
� �� �!% �%(� !"�������"3��"0��('�( �,��( %(,�3�"'� ���+� ��"3�1/�((%(,��11�"0�/.�
�(+� �� � ���(�!�*�%+,��!%//���(+�!%//� �4����")(+� ����������� "�$"'1/� ����

�
���6 �����") ��"3� ������������ �!�����%+,���(+����"$%� �+�%(3��� �)$ )���%��1�" �$ �+�

 ��"),�� ���1"/%$�� "��(�)��� ����)$$���3)/�%'1/�'�( � %"(�"3� ���1�"#�$ ����%��
%($"�1"�� ���!"�4�����"$%� �+�!% �� ���!%+������������ �!�����"#�$ �%($/)+%(,�
 ���$"(� �)$ %"(�"3� ���'�%(� "//�1/�5����(+����"$%� �+�� �)$ )���.�#)($ %"(�
%'1�"0�'�( �� "�/%(4� ����"�+�(� !"�4.��(+�� �)$ )�����(+�*�%+,��� "�$����� ���
'�%(�$���%�,�!���"0��� ���8��%,� ��%(���(+�� ���/�(����(�/.��(+��$�"����� '""��
�(+)� �%�/�
� � ���2"�4�� "� ����67��(+�% ��#)($ %"(��%(�	)($"�(�!%//��/�"�*��
�)11"� �+� "��(�)����33�$ %0��(� !"�4����%/%�($���(+� "�1�"0%+��%($�����+�$�1�$% ��
+)�� "�$)���( �$"(,�� %"(�%��)���+)�%(,�1��4��")��@���

�
���7 �(��$$"�+�($��!% �� ������������ �!����)� �%(�*/�����(�1"� �� �� �,�A� ���

�+0�($�'�( �"3��)� �%(�*/�� ��0�/�"1 %"(��%(� ����"�"),��!%//�*���)11"� �+�
%($/)+%(,� �����9+��%,(� %"(�"3� ����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,���������/%�*/�.�/"$�/�/%(4�
*� !��(�	)($"�(��(+�2%+(�����++% %"(�//�.�+�0�/"1'�( ���")/+���0����,��+� "�
 ������������ �!���	�,�(��� %"(�� �� �,�6��(+��%'� "��(�)��� �� �"11"� )(% %���
3"����,�(��� %"(��(+�+�0�/"1'�( ��  �%*) �*/�� "� ������������ �!�����"#�$ �����
$�1% �/%��+�"(���)$��"11"� )(% %���!%//�*��1�� %$)/��/���)11"� �+�%(� ���2�� ���(4�

                                                 
1 DfT (2010) Investment in local Major Transport Schemes 
2 The Planning Inspectorate (2011) Report to the Secretary of State for Transport and the Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government: Halton Borough Council – The Mersey Gateway Project  
3 HBC (2008) The Mersey Gateway Project Environmental Statement (Chapter 16: Transportation) 
4 HBC (2009) Mersey Gateway Sustainable Transport Strategy 
5 HBC and GVA (2008) Mersey Gateway Regeneration Strategy 

APPENDIX APage 185



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��6

�����!% �%(� ����") ��2%+(���>��������"3����(,��<���=���������)/ �"3� �������-��
1�"?%'% �� "� ������������ �!�����%+,���(+����"$%� �+�%(3��� �)$ )��.��(+�%(�
	)($"�(��/+��"!(�!% �%(� ���2�� �	)($"�(�>��������"3����(,��<����=.�+)�� "�
1" �( %�/�"11"� )(% %���1����( �+�*�� �����9+��%,(� %"(�"3� ����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,���
8)� ����%(3"�'� %"(�%��+� �%/�+�!% �%(� ����11�"1�%� ��>��������"3����(,��1"/%$%�����
	�,�(��� %"(�"11"� )(% %���!%//��/�"�*���)11"� �+�� ��� '""���(+)� �%�/�
� � ���

�
���E �/ �"),�� ���+��%,(�"3� ������������ �!�����%+,������*��(�%(3/)�($�+�*��

�(0%�"('�( �/�$"(�%+��� %"(�.� ������������ �!�����"#�$ -��
(0%�"('�( �/��'1�$ �
������'�( �<
��=�1�"$���7�����%+�( %3%�+�/"$�/%��+�(�,� %0���(0%�"('�( �/�%'1�$ ��
1�� %$)/��/�����"$%� �+�!% �� ���$"(� �)$ %"(�1�����"3� ������������ �!����
����)���� "��� %�3�$ "�%/��'% %,� ��(�,� %0���(0%�"('�( �/�%'1�$ ���(+� "��(��($��
�(0%�"('�( �/�;)�/% ����")/+�*��'�(�,�+.�1�� %$)/��/��+)�%(,� ���$"(� �)$ %"(�
1�����"3� ���1�"#�$ ��
(0%�"('�( �/��(��($�'�( ��!%//�%($/)+�F���(�!��D���$ ����
��/ '�����(� )��������0�G��++% %"(�/�(� )���'�(�,�'�( � "�2%,,���/�(+G��(+.� ���
��������� �!�����"#�$ � "��$ ������$� �/�� �3"��!%+����(0%�"('�( �/�
%'1�"0�'�( �� "� ����11����������
� )������ ���")/+�*���$4("!/�+,�+� �� � ���

���1�"$����$"($/)+�+� �� � ���$)')/� %0���33�$ ��"3� ���"1��� %"(�/�1�����"3� ���
��������� �!�����"#�$ �����'�%(/��1"�% %0���(+�%($/)+������(,��"3�1��'�(�( �/"(,�
 ��'��33�$ ��"($�� �����%+,��%��"1��� %"(�/��

�
���D ��� ���/��+�"�,�(%�� %"(�3"�� ������������ �!�����"#�$ .���/ "(��"�"),���")($%/�

!%//�$"( %()�� "���0�����"/��%(�% ��+�/%0������"!�0��.� ����)$$���3)/�+�/%0����"3� ���
��"#�$ .��(+���($�� ����)$$���3)/��11/%$� %"(�"3� �%��1"/%$�.�!%//���/��"(�1�� (����%1�
!"�4%(,�!% �� ����")($%/-��1)*/%$��(+�1�%0� ����$ "��1�� (���.�%($/)+%(,�(" �*/�� ���
��������� �!����"($���%"(�%��E.�"(�'�  ����"3� ��(�1"� � %"(.���,�(��� %"(��(+�
�(0%�"('�( �/�'% %,� %"(��

�
���� �/ �"),�� ����")($%/�%��!�"//���)11"� %0���(+�+�+%$� �+� "� ���+�/%0����"3� ���

��������� �!�����"#�$ .� ����"���� �� �,��')� �*��3/�?%*/���("),�� "��$$")( �3"��
 ���$%�$)'� �($���%(�!�%$�� �����"#�$ �%����0���/��+�/���+�"��1" �( %�//��(" �
+�/%0���+�+)�%(,� ���1/�(�1��%"+��(+� "�%+�( %3���"!� ����"���� �� �,��!")/+�
���1"(+����%��%��$"(�%+���+�%(� ���3"//"!%(,�1���,��1���F�

�
����� ���1�� �"3� ������������ �!�����"#�$ .� ��33%$�'"+�//%(,�!���)(+�� �4�(�!% �%(�

��/ "(��(+� ����)��")(+%(,�������*���+�"(���0���/��$�(��%"�������3"��$�� �D�
/""4�+�� � ��33%$�()'*����%(����6��(+���@���(+�%($/)+�+�$"'1��%�"(���,�%(� � ���
���7�*���/%(��!�%$��/""4�+�� � ���+"9'%(%')'�<("��$��'�=��(+�+"9�"'� �%(,�
<��������� �!���%(�1/�$�=��$�(��%"����

�
����� 8�"'� ����(�/��%��% �!���$"($/)+�+� �� �1��4��")��$�1�$% ��"(� ����%/0���:)*%/�������

*��(����$��+�����4��")�� ��33%$�,�"! �.�"0��� ���1��%"+����7� "����6.��$�"��� ���
������.��"!�0��.�%��1��+%$ �+� "�%($������*����H����%��'��(�� �� �%(� ����*��($��
"3� ���1�"#�$ .� ��33%$�$"(+% %"(��$)���( /���?1��%�($�+�� � ����%/0���:)*%/�����%+,��
+)�%(,�1��4��")���!%//��? �(+��$�"��� ���!"�4%(,�+����:")�(��� %'���!%//�%($�����.�
%����1�$ %0��"3� �%1�1)�1"��.��(+�$"(,�� %"(�!%//�*�$"'���(�%(�33%$%�( �!���"3�
'�(�,%(,�+�'�(+��(+��)11/���8) )���,�"! ��!%//�3"�$�� �%1�� "�*��'�+��"(�
�/ ��(� %0���") ���%���� ������/!�//��%�+)$ ��(+� ���������� )((�/�����%��!%//�%'1�$ �

                                                 
6 HBC (2008) The Mersey Gateway Project Environmental Statement 
7 The Mersey Gateway Project involves the letting of a Concession Contract to a private entity for the construction, 

operation and maintenance of the Project. The ‘Mersey Gateway Concessionaire’ refers to this private entity.   
8 Mott MacDonald and HBC (2009) Mersey Gateway Highway Model Traffic Forecasting Report 

APPENDIX APage 186



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��7

"(�#")�(��� %'����(+���/%�*%/% �����!�//���� ���"0���//�(� !"�4����%/%�($���(+�
1��3"�'�($��"3���/ "(��(+� ���!%+����������

�
����� � �3"//"!�� �� � ���&+"9'%(%')'-�"1 %"(�!")/+���0���(�%'1�$ �)1"(��$$���%*%/% ��

�(+��$"("'%$��(+��"$%�/���,�(��� %"(�!% �%(��(+� ��"),�") ���/ "(���(� �����
$%�$)'� �($���"11"� )(% %��� "�%'1�"0���)� �%(�*/�� ��(�1"� ��(+�+�/%0���
+�0�/"1'�( ��(+���,�(��� %"(��$�"�����/ "(�!")/+�� %//�*��1)��)�+�"0��� ����"���
� �� �,��1/�(�1��%"+.�%(��$$"�+�($��!% ���11/%$�*/��1"/%$%������($�.� ����)$$���3)/�
+�/%0����"3� ���"0���//��1� %�/�� �� �,��3"�� ���+�0�/"1'�( �"3���/ "(� "����D7�
!")/+�(" �*��1/�$�+�� ��%�4���")/+� ���(�!�*�%+,��(" �*��$"'1/� �+�+)�%(,� ���
1/�(�1��%"+���"!�0��.�/"$�/%��+�%'1�$ ��!%//�(��+� "�*��3)//��$"(�%+���+�*��3) )���
,�"! ����1�$%�//��!����� �%��%'1�$ ��)1"(� ���� �� �,%$��%,�!���(� !"�4��

�
����@ ��")/+� ������������ �!�����%+,��(" �*��+�/%0���+�+)�%(,� ����"���� �� �,��1/�(�

1��%"+.���/ "(��"�"),���")($%/�!%//�$"( %()�� "��)� �%(�% ���)11"� �3"����(�!�
*�%+,��%(�"�+��� "�+�/%0���*�(�3% ��3"����/ "(.� ����%0��1""/��% ��	�,%"(��(+� ���
!%+���("� ��!�� ���,%"(���

�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�

��/+�
�,���
���0��
�
�

1����$����������
�

�(0�� '�( �%(��"$�/���#"�����(�1"� ��$��'���<�3�.�����=�

�

/�����
#�)�$����
�

��������� �!����)� �%(�*/�����(�1"� �� �� �,��<���.�����=G�
��������� �!���	�,�(��� %"(�� �� �,��<�����(+����.����D=G�
������������� �!�����"#�$ �
(0%�"('�( �/�� � �'�( �<���.�
���D=G���������� �!����%,�!����"+�/����33%$�8"��$�� %(,�
	�1"� �<�"  ���$�"(�/+��(+����.�����=G�	�1"� � "� ���
��$�� ����"3�� � ��3"�����(�1"� ��(+� �����$�� ����"3�� � ��3"��
�"'')(% %����(+��"$�/��"0��('�( F���/ "(��"�"),���")($%/�
I�������������� �!�����"#�$ �<����.�����=�

�

������%����& ����#���
�

E�

�

����������������
�


(0%�"('�( ��(+�	�,�(��� %"(�%(���/ "(�

D�I��%��B)�/% ��� �7�I��"!(���( ����
���I��$$���%*%/% �� �E�I��)� �%(�*/�����(�1"� �

�

����& ����#���
�

�A�9�
$"("'�� �
�

����'���*��
�

��%��1"/%$������� �"(,�*�(�3% ��3"���"$%�/��(+��$"("'%$�3�$ "����
����1"/%$��*)%/+��%(��(0%�"('�( �/�'% %,� %"(���0���//.� ���
1"/%$��%��$"(�%+���+�1"�% %0��%(��)� �%(�*%/% �� ��'���

APPENDIX APage 187



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� ������	
��
���	������	�������

��
��
�

���� �������� �!�"#���##�#�������$�%�!��&��'� �()$�*��#�$"��'�+$"��#�,�+#*)�-��.�$"��
 �() �)+$"���$-��.��������� ���$-���+#(� �)*/)(�#$�$���) $�#�����+0"���+#(� 1'�
2�'$��#�,�+#*)�-������#'+���$"��)�����$1'�(�#$�#+�*�0��2$"�)#*��#��'$3�#$4�)#*�
)'���5+���*�,-�$"�����6�7"�$���)����8�"��9+$+����.�������)#'���$:�4�)��)'$���
� )#�.����!����2)'�����)��*��#�������'$), �'"�#0�$"�� �#0�$��3�.�)3�2��;�$����6���
�"�'��)'$���� )#�")'�,��#��#*��'�*�,-�$"�����)�$3�#$�.�����)#'���$�%�.�&���

                                                 
1 DfT (2003) The Future of Air Transport  

�
�������������	��������������	������������ �

�
�"������)$��#�)#*��<�)#'��#��.��������� �!�"#���##�#�������$�%�!��&��#� �#��2�$"��$'������
�)'$���� )#�2�  ��#����#(�� ��,��'+����$�*4��#( +*�#0������') '�.���)��+#2)-��<$�#'��#�)#*�$"��
#�2�
)'$��#��((�''���)#'���$������*���%
���&���
�
�"�'�2�  �,��'+,/�($�$��.+$+���*��� ��3�#$�)#*��<�)#'��#��.��!���*�3�#'$�)$�#0�$")$��$��'��#�
)((��*)#(��2�$"��) $�#='��+'$)�#), ������ ��3�#$����#(�� �'�%���&�)#*�$")$���'�$�����3�)($'�
)����#")#(�*�2"����)�������)$����
�
��0)$�����#����#3�#$) �)#*�'�(�) ��3�)($'�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"�$"������)$��#�)#*��<�)#'��#��.�
�!���2�  �,��)�������)$� -�)**��''�*��#( +*�#0�3�)'+��'�$����*+(�����)  ���)$��$"���3�)($'��#>���
�

• 	�'�*�#$'�)#*��$"���+'��'4��.�)#-��#(��)'�'��#�#��'�4���)*�$�)..�(4�)�����  +$��#����
�+, �(�').�$-���';?�

• $"��'�$$�#0�)#*� �() �(")�)($����.��) ����  )0�?��

• $"��#)$+�) �)#*�,+� $��#����#3�#$4��#( +*�#0�)��)'��.��#$��#)$��#) 4�#)$��#) ���� �() �
(�#'���)$��#4��(� �0�() �)#*� )#*'()����) +�?�

• $"����';'�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"�( �3)$��(")#0�?�)#*4�

• $"�� �() �)#*���0��#) �$�)#'���$�#�$2��;�������������������������������������������������������������������������
�
7�$"���'��($�$���#$��#)$��#)  -��3���$)#$�'�$�'�%�)�$�(+ )� -�$"�����'�-�
'$+)�-����(�) �
���$�($��#����)�)#*�	)3')��'�$�&�'+("�3�)'+��'�2�  �#��*�$��,��'+..�(��#$ -��<$�#'����$��
�#), ��)�(�#( +'��#��.�#��)*���'���..�($��#��#$�0��$-�+# �''��$�()#�,��*�3�#'$�)$�*�$")$�$"����
)���,�$"�#��) $��#)$���'�)#*��3���)$����	�)'�#'��.�����@��*�#0��+, �(��#$���'$��
�
!"�
#�$!���% ��&����
���+#2)-��<$�#'��#�$��$"���)'$��.�$"���<�'$�#0�)�����$�,�+#*)�-4�)'�'�$��+$��#�$"��������$�
�)'$���� )#4�2�  ���5+����)� �() �(")#0��$���) $�#1'�����#��� $�,�+#*)�-���#�)��)��.�'�)�("�
.���$"������#��� $�,�+#*)�-�(")#0��.���$"���+#2)-��<$�#'��#��'�'"�2#��#�9�0+����A���"��
���(�'���<$�#$��.�$"�'�(")#0�4�)#*�$"��*�$)� �*�(��$���)�$��,��3�$��#�$"���3� �3�#$)$��#��.�$"��
�+#2)-��<$�#'��#4�2�  �,��'�$��+$�(�#'�*���*��#�$"��)���$���  �()$��#'�)#*����� ��3�#$�
�)#)0�3�#$���������5+��) �#$���
�
�#-� )#*���@*�'�0#)$�*�)'��)�$��.�$"������#��� $�,�+#*)�-�(")#0��2�  ��# -�,�����3�$$�*�.���
$"���+���'���.�)�$"���+#2)-��<$�#'��#�)#*�)''�(�)$�*�)�����$�+'�')��(�).$�').�$-�
��5+���3�#$'���
�
'"��#�(!�������&&�

APPENDIX APage 188



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��B

                                                                                                                                            
2 Liverpool John Lennon Airport (2007) Airport Master Plan to 2030 

�"�������'��#��.�'+'$)�#), ��'+�.)(��)((�''�$��$"��)�����$��#�)((��*)#(��2�$"�$"��������$�
�+�.)(���((�''��$�)$�0-�2�  �,��'+����$�*�$��3)�#$)�#��<�'$�#0�#�$2��;�()�)(�$-���**�$��#) �
#�$2��;�()�)(�$-��'������'�*�$��2�  �,��3�$�$"��+0"�$"��*��� ��3�#$��.�$"��
�������
�
�"����+$���.�$"�������'�*�
���4�$"��+0"��) $�#1'�����#��� $4�2�  �,��*�$��3�#�*�$"��+0"�
$"��'$)#*)�*�)�����) '����(�''�)����� ��3�#$��)#)0�3�#$�)����)("�)#*�2�  �#�$���5+����)#�
)3�#*3�#$�$���) $�#1'�����#��� $���
�
�"��������)�� !��!�*�����!��
)�!� &�
9+$+���*��� ��3�#$�)#*��<�)#'��#��.��!���'"�+ *�*�3�#'$�)$��$")$��$��'��#�)((��*)#(��2�$"�
�) $�#1'��+'$)�#), ������ ��3�#$����#(�� �'�)#*�$")$���'�$�����3�)($'�)����#")#(�*�2"����
)�������)$�����0)$�����#����#3�#$) �)#*�'�(�) ��3�)($'�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"�$"������)$��#�)#*�
�<�)#'��#��.��!���2�  �,��)�������)$� -�)**��''�*��#( +*�#0�3�)'+��'�$����*+(�����)  ���)$��
$"���3�)($'��#>�
�

•$"��#)$+�) �)#*�,+� $��#����#3�#$4��#( +*�#0�)��)'��.��#$��#)$��#) 4�#)$��#) ���� �() �
(�#'���)$��#4��(� �0�() �)#*� )#*'()����) +�?�

•$"��'�$$�#0�)#*� �() �(")�)($����.��) ����  )0�?�

•$"����';'�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"�( �3)$�(�(")#0�?�

•��'�*�#$'�)#*��$"���+'��'4��.�)#-��#(��)'�'��#�#��'�4���)*�$�)..�(4�)�����  +$��#�����+, �(�
').�$-���';?�)#*4��

•$"�� �() �)#*���0��#) �$�)#'���$�#�$2��;�
�

APPENDIX APage 189



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��C

�
�
+�,#����-��	��������������	������������ �.�!,�!)�/�)��*�*�.�!,�!)"�

�
�

�#& �(��! �����
�
���� �"��9+$+����.�������)#'���$�7"�$���)����)(;#�2 �*0�*�$"���3���$)#(���.�$"��

.+$+���0��2$"��.�)���$�)�� �.���#)$��#) �)#*���0��#) ��(�#�3�(����'����$-�)#*�$��
*� ������(�#�3�(�)#*�'�(�) �,�#�.�$'�$"��+0"�+$�$"���D��9+�$"���'$+*��'�")���) '��
��(�0#�'�*�$"��'�0#�.�()#(���.�)��)$��#1'��� ���#�$"���D��(�#�3-�)#*�'$�3+ )$�#0�$"��
*��� ��3�#$��.�,+'�#�''�'��#�#�2�)#*��<�'$�#0�'�($��'�$"��+0"�+$�$"���D6��

�
���6 	�(�#$�'$)$�'$�('A�'"�2�$")$�$"����")'�,��#�)�'+,'$)#$�) �0��2$"������$"���)'$�6��

-�)�'��#�$"��#+3,����.��)''�#0��'�$�)��  �#0�$"��+0"��D�)�����$'4�.��3�+#*���E��
3�  ��#��#��CB��$��3����$")#��A��3�  ��#��#��������-���6��$"���.��.���()'$�$")$4��#�
$"��),'�#(���.�()�)(�$-�(�#'$�)�#$'4��)''�#0���#+3,��'�)$��D�)�����$'�2�  ���'��$��

                                                 
3 AOA (2009) Cleared for Take Off: Airports Providing Lift to an Economy in Recovery 
4 Department for Transport (DfT) (2009) UK Air Passenger Demand and CO2 Forecasts 

APPENDIX APage 190



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

)��+#*�AEF�3�  ��#�����)##+3���!���)#$�(��)$��$"��+0"�$"����������)'$���� )#�$")$�
�)''�#0���#+3,��'�2�  ��#(��)'��$��6�A�3�  ��#�����)##+3��#����A�$�����6�3�  ��#�
����)##+3�,-���6�������

�
���A � �#0�2�$"�'$��#0����*�($�*�0��2$"��#�.+$+���-�)�'�.���$"���)''�#0���'�($��4�

.���0"$�")'�,��#��*�#$�.��*�)'��#���.�$"��3)�#�0��2$"�'�($��'�.����!���)#*�$"��
2�*����������� ���$-�	�0��#���"��������$��)'$���� )#�)#$�(��)$�'�$")$��<�)#'��#��.�
$"��.���0"$�.)(� �$��'�)$�$"��)�����$�2�  �'����$�")#* �#0����4����$�##�'��.�.���0"$�����
)##+3�,-���6����

�
���F �"���)'$���� )#���(�0#�'�'�$")$��.�$"��)�����$��'�$��0��2��$'��)''�#0���'����(�'�)#*�

.���0"$�.)(� �$-��#�$"�� �#0�$��34��$�#��*'�$���#��'$��#�$"���#.�)'$�+($+���$��$);��
 )�0��4� �#0����)#0��)��(�).$���#��)�$�(+ )�4�$"���+#2)-�#��*'�$��,�� �#0$"�#�*�)#*�
'$��#0$"�#�*�$��$);�� �#0�")+ �2�*�@,�*��*�)��(�).$�2�$"�$"��$�##)0��)#*�.+� � �)*'�
#�(�'')�-�$����)("� �#0�")+ �*�'$�#)$��#'�)#*�$"��3)/����#$��(�#$�#�#$) �.���0"$�
"+,'���"��)�����$�2�+ *�) '����5+����)**�$��#) �*�.�#�*�)��)'�.���$"��'$)$��#�#0��.�
.���0"$�)��(�).$�'��)�)$��.��3��)''�#0���)��)'�)#*�$"�� )#*���'�+�(��.���$"�� )�0��
*�'$��,+$��#�)#*�")#* �#0�2)��"�+'�'���

�
���E � $"�+0"�$"��������$�")'�)''�''�*�"�2�3+("��.�$"����5+���*�*��� ��3�#$�(�+ *�

,��)("����*��#�$"���<�'$�#0�'�$�4�$"�'��'�#�$�'��#�$��,��)� �#0�$��3�'� +$��#���"��
������$4�$"���.���4�2�  �#��*�$���<�)#*�,�-�#*��$'��<�'$�#0�,�+#*)�-�$��
)((�33�*)$��.+$+���*�'���*�0��2$"���"�'�2�  ��#( +*��)#��<$�#*�*��+#2)-�$��$"��
�)'$��.�$"��)�����$�%*+��$�� )#*�(�#'$�)�#$'�$��$"��2�'$&�)#*�)#�
)'$��#��((�''�
��)#'���$������*���%
���&�$��'�����$"��.���0"$�.)(� �$��'�)#*��)''�#0���0��2$"��
��$"�$"�������'�*��+#2)-��<$�#'��#�)#*�
����.)  �2�$"�#�)��)'��.��) $�#1'�����#�
�� $�����'�����$"���<�)#'��#��.�.���0"$�.)(� �$��'�)$��!���$"���)'$���� )#������'�'�)�
#�2�G7�� *��)�0����#$��1�2"�("�2�+ *���5+����)#��<$�#'��#�$��$"��'�+$"��.�$"��
)�����$�,�+#*)�-��#$���������� ���$-���+#(� 1'�����#��� $���"�������'�*��+#2)-�
�<$�#'��#4�
����)#*�7�� *��)�0����#$���)����#*�()$�*��#�9�0+����A���������

�
���� �"���+#2)-��<$�#'��#4�)'�'�$��+$��#�$"���)'$���� )#4�2�+ *�2�  ���5+����)�(")#0��

$���) $�#�����+0"���+#(� 1'�����#��� $�,�+#*)�-���"�'��2"�("�2�  �,��)**��''�*�
$"��+0"��) $�#1'�)���$���  �()$��#'�)#*����� ��3�#$��)#)0�3�#$��������
�5+��) �#$�*�(+3�#$���"�'�*�(+3�#$�2�  �(�#'�*���$"��*�$)� �*���5+���3�#$'�.���
�!��1'�.+$+���0��2$"�)#*�'+,'�5+�#$��+#2)-��<$�#'��#���#�)���)��.�'��)�("�.���
$"������#��� $���+#*)�-�(")#0���'�'"�2#��#�9�0+����A?�"�2����4�$"�)���$��
�  �()$��#'�)#*����� ��3�#$��)#)0�3�#$���������5+��) �#$4�2�+ *�  �*�$��3�#��
$"�����(�'���<$�#$,�+#*)�-��.�$"������#��� $�,�+#*)�-�(")#0�4�)'�)�������)$���
�#-�.+$+����� �)'���.�����#��� $� )#*�'"�2#�2�$"�#�$"��)���)��.�'��)�("�2�  ��# -�
,�����3�$$�*�.���$"���+���'�'��.�$"��������$1'��+#2)-��<$�#'��#�)#*�)''�(�)$�*�
)�����$�').�$-���5+���3�#$'+'�'�$")$�()##�$�,��)((�33�*)$�*�� '�2"������)#*�
�+$'�*���.�$"�����)��.���)�("�2�  �#�$�,��(�#'�*���*�.�������#��� $��� �)'����+, �(�
(�#'+ $)$��#�2�  �,��+#*��$);�#�*+��#0�$"��'$)0�'��.����*+($��#�.���$"����$��
�  �()$��#'�)#*����� ��3�#$��)#)0�3�#$���������5+��) �#$�*�(+3�#$���

�
���B �#���*���$��'�(+����!��1'�.+$+���0��2$"��$��'�#�(�'')�-�$��3)�#$)�#�').�4�(�#��#��#$�

)#*�'+'$)�#), ��)((�''�$��$"��)�����$���!���")'�*��� ���*�)#�������$��+�.)(��
�((�''��$�)$�0-F4�2"�("���. �($'�$"��������$1'�)'���)$��#'�$���#(�+�)0��$�)�� �$��
)#*�.��3�$"��������$�,-�'+'$)�#), ��$�)#'���$�3�*�'����2����4�$"�����'�) '��
��(�0#�$��#�$")$�$"��3)/���$-��.�/�+�#�-'�2�  �(�#$�#+��$��,��3)*��,-�()��)#*�$")$�
'+..�(��#$�"�0"2)-�()�)(�$-�$��'�����$"��)�����$�3+'$�,��3)�#$)�#�*��� $"�+0"�$"��

                                                 
5 The Airport Surface Access Strategy is subject to ongoing review and update.  

APPENDIX APage 191



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

������$�2�  �(�#$�#+��$����$�3�'��()�)(�$-�) �#0�$"�����;����+ ��)�*������*���
%�FE�&�$"�����'���$�#$�) �$�������*��)**�$��#) �()�)(�$-��#�$"��.��3��.�$"��
�����#�
��*���$��)((�33�*)$��.+$+���0��2$"���"��
����2�+ *�.�  �2�)���+$���.�),�+$�
�;3�.��3����;����+ ��)�*�$"��+0"��) $�#1'�����#��� $�$�2)�*'�$"��������$1'�
,�+#*)�-���"��
����2�  �#�$���5+����)#�)3�#*3�#$�$��$"������#��� $�,�+#*)�-�
)#*�)'�'+("�2�  �,��'+,/�($�$��'$)#*)�*�� )##�#0�)�����) ����(�''�'��

�
���C �"������)$��#�)#*�� )##�*��<�)#'��#��.��!���2�  �")����3���$)#$��3�)($'��#�$"��

����+0"��.��) $�#���"�'��#( +*�'��#(��)'�*�#)$��#) �)#*��#$��#)$��#) �(�##�($���$-4�
�<�)#'��#��.�.���0"$�$�)#'���$)$��#�'�($��'4��(�#�3�(�,�#�.�$'��#( +*�#0�/�,�
(��)$��#4�)#*��)���+'��#����#3�#$) ��3�)($'�)#*������$+#�$��'���**�$��#)  -4�$"��
*��� ��3�#$��.�6��4�)#*��#�$"�� �#0���$��3����'�-��)$�2)-����$4�()#�
'+,'$)#$�)  -��#(��)'��$"���..����.�$"���������� ���$-�	�0��#�)'�)#��#$��#)$��#) �
.���0"$�0)$�2)-����8�+������$:E��

�
����� �$��'��''�#$�) �$���#'+���$")$��!��1'�.+$+���0��2$"��'�'+'$)�#), ��)#*�$")$�$"�����'�)�

(�33�$3�#$�$���) $�#1'��+'$)�#), ������ ��3�#$����#(�� �'�%���&���'�'+("�
#�0)$�����#����#3�#$) �)#*�'�(�) ��3�)($'�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"�$"���<�)#'��#�)#*�
����)$��#��.�$"��������$�'"�+ *�,��)''�''�*�)#*�)#-�#�0)$�����..�($'�'"�+ *�
*�3�#'$�)$��$")$�$"�-�()#�,���..�($��� -�3�$�0)$�*����(�3��#')$�*���"�'�2�  �
�#( +*��+#*��$);�#0�)�������)$���#����#3�#$) �)''�''3�#$'�)#*4��#�)((��*)#(��
2�$"�����>���) $"�)#*�7�  @���#04���) $"��3�)($��''�''3�#$'�����(�.�(�
(�#'�*��)$��#�'"�+ *�,��0���#�$��$"�����'�-�
'$+)�-����(�) ����$�($��#����)�
%���&4�	)3')����$��)#*���$�'��.����(�) ��(��#$�.�(��#$���'$�%����&4�$"��(�)'$) � �()$��#�
�.�$"��)�����$4�$"�����<�3�$-�$���) ����  )0��)#*�$"���+'$)�#), ����)#'���$�
��$2��;��#( +*�#0�$"����)#'���##�#����)� ���"�� )#*'()����) +���.�$"��)��)�'"�+ *�
) '��,��)�������)$� -�(�#'�*���*�)#*������$+#�$��'�$);�#�$�����'�����$"�'��) +�4�
�#( +*�#0�$"�������'�*���)'$) �	�'������<$�#'��#�*�$)� �*��#�$"���!����)'$���� )#�
%����&��

�
����� �)$$��'��� )$�#0�$��*��� ��3�#$�2�$"�#��!��1'��+, �(��).�$-�H�#��%��H&�%'"�2#��#�

.�0+����A&�2�  �,��*�) $�2�$"��#�)((��*)#(��2�$"�#)$��#) �)#*� �() ��� �(-�)#*�
0+�*)#(���#( +*�#0�$"�������#3�#$����(+ )�>���#$�� ��.����� ��3�#$��#�������$�
�+, �(��).�$-�H�#�'���)#*�$"��� )##�#0�.���	�';����B���"��,)'�(��� �(-��,/�($����.���
$"����H��'�$")$�$"����'"�+ *�,��#���#(��)'���#�$"��#+3,����.����� �� ���#04�2��;�#0�
���(�#0��0)$�#0��#�$"��I�#����#-��<$�#'��#��.�$"����H��#�)((��*)#(��2�$"��!��1'�
�����'�*��+#2)-��<$�#'��#�2�  �,��'"�2#��#�)$"����$���  �()$��#'�)#*�
���� ��3�#$��)#)0�3�#$���������5+��) �#$��

�
����� �����$+#�$��'�$��2��;�/��#$ -��#������') '�)''�(�)$�*�2�$"��!��1'��<�)#'��#�)#*�

�$'�)''�(�)$�*��3� �()$��#'�.����) $�#4��#( +*�#0�2�$"�������$�)+$"���$��'4��������� �
��$-���+#(� 4�D#�2' �-���$���� �$)#�����+0"���+#(� 4�)#*��$"����)�$#��'�2�  �,��
'�+0"$�$���#'+���)�/��#�*@+��)����)("�$��$"��.+$+���0��2$"��.��!����

�
�
�

                                                 
6 TMP (2008) Liverpool SuperPort:- The Liverpool City Region “SuperPort” concept encompasses the Port of 

Liverpool, the Manchester Ship Canal, Liverpool John Lennon Airport, 3MG, Mersey Gateway Port, other 

localised freight infrastructure and the wider logistics network. It aims to ensure that these assets become a key 

driver of the Liverpool City Region’s economy creating the most effective and cost efficient environment for 

freight logistics and passenger transit in the UK.  
7 Department for Transport (DfT) (201002) Circular 01/201002: Control of Development in Airport Public Safety 

Zones  
8 HBC (2009) Planning for Risk Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)  

APPENDIX APage 192



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

 

�

��	
�0�+
�1�2�
3��
�

�

�! ���!���������
�

����>�����#��� $'�%���4��CCF&?��"��9+$+����.�������)#'���$�
%�.�4����6&?�� �)��*�.����);���..>�������$'������*�#0���.$�$��)#�

(�#�3-��#�	�(����-�%���4����C&�

�

	��!�����*������
�

������$��)'$���� )#�$����6��%�������� �!�"#���##�#�������$4�
����&?��������� ��+������$�%���4����B&�

�

� �! �,����'4�� ���&�
�

A�)#*���

�

���������� ��&��
�


#����#3�#$�)#*�	�0�#��)$��#��#��) $�#�

��J����*����'�$-� �A�J�
(�#�3-�
��J��)#*�K+) �$-� ���J��+'$)�#), ����)#'���$�

�

����'4�� ���&�
�

���J��((�''�,� �$-� �
�

����# ��)��
�

�"�'��� �(-�")'�'$��#0��(�#�3�(�,�#�.�$'�)#*�2�  �")�����'�$����
,�#�.�$'��#�)�#+3,����.����$���('��� $"�+0"�$"���<$�#'��#��.�
$"���+#2)-�2�  � �)*�$��$"��0��2$"��.�$"��)�����$�)#*�)�(")#0��
$��$"������+0"1'�����#��� $�,�+#*)�-4�$"����)���'+..�(��#$�
3�$�0)$��#�3�)'+��'��#(�����)$�*��#�$"���� �(-�$")$4��.�
�3� �3�#$�*��..�($��� -4�2�  �"� ��$��3�$�0)$��#�0)$�����3�)($'��

APPENDIX APage 193



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
����
�	������	
��
�
���� ����������� !�"#$%���$����"$%���%$���$&��$�"' ! (����!!�%)� ��)���*$+�)�$)�*��#�&�,�

� *�*��(���'�)$���$��$'�$,�)���*$+�)�$)�*��)'�$)�$��$'�$�$���)���*$+�)�$)�*��
- &��)�' (����)���)����%'(%�$#�! '���&�# "-��)������������$#) ��) �.�� !�$������
/($#�)+,�.(�#��(" ��$��$'�$0��%�$'$%)�',�.��$�$")$.#��) �%�$��������)($)� ��,�$���
"' &�����$!�,���$#)�+�$���$%%����.#����&�' �-��)��! '�$##�-�-.�'�� !�� %��)+������

�

�
���������������������������� ��!�

�
�%���&����$���'$������)���/($#�)+� !�����������$�"'� '�)+�! '�$##���&�# "-��)�����$#) ����##�
��&�# "-��)���������� (#��.��% ����)��)�*�)��)���! ## *�����������"'��%�"#���$������"$')�%(#$'�
'��" ���" ��)�&�#+�) �)���% �)�1)�$�������)�)+� !��$#) �,���%#(�����*$)�'!' �)�$'�$�,�)���
���) '�%�$����$)('$#���&�' �-��)�$���)�������)�!����2�+��'�$�� !���$�����
�
��&�# "-��)�"' " �$#�,�*��'��$""#�%$.#�,�*�##�.���1"�%)���) 3�
�

• "' &����$))'$%)�&��$���*�##����������'������)�$#,�% --�'%�$#�$������(�)'�$#�
��&�# "-��)��$""' "'�$)��) �)���'���))���4�

�

• ���$�%��$���'���! '%��" ��)�&���#�-��)�� !�$��$'�$0��%�$'$%)�'�% �)'�.()����) �$�5������
 !�"#$%�0,���%#(�����)�����% '" '$)� �� !�"(.#�%�$')�*��'��$""' "'�$)�4�

�

• '��"�%)�$���'��" ���" ��)�&�#+�) �)���'���))���,���%#(������-" ')$�)�&��*��$���&��)$�,�
#$��-$'6�.(�#�����,�!�$)('���$���! %$#�" ��)��)�$)��$&��.��������)�!�������$�"' "�'�
% �)�1)�$""'$��$#4�

�

• .��!#�1�.#��$���$�$")$.#��) �'��" ���) �!()('��� %�$#,�)�%�� # ��%$#,��$����% � -�%�$���
��$#)�������� !�)���� ' (��4�

�

• "' - )���$!��$�����%('����&�' �-��)��)�' (���)�����%#(�� �� !�-�$�('���) �$��'����
%'�-�,�!�$'� !�%'�-��$���$�)�7� %�$#�.��$&� ('4�

�

• %'�$)��"(.#�%��"$%���*��%��$'��$))'$%)�&�,�"' - )��$%)�&��#�!��)+#���$���* '6��!!�%)�&�#+�
! '�$##�-�-.�'�� !�� %��)+4��

�

• ��% '" '$)��$""' "'�$)��#$���%$"���%��-�����) ���&�# "-��)��������,���)��'$)����# %$#�
�$.�)$)��$���.� ��&�'��)+4��

�

• "' &�����$!�,���%('��$���$%%����.#��' ()���! '�$##�-�-.�'�� !�� %��)+,�*�)��"$')�%(#$'�
�-"�$���� ��*$#6���,�%+%#����$���"(.#�%�)'$��" ')4�

�

• .��*�##���)��'$)���$���% ���%)���*�)���1��)������&�# "-��)4�$��,�
�

• .������������(�)$��$.#+�*�)��!()('��-$�$��-��)�$���-$��)��$�%�����-�����
�

�
"� ��#������!�

�
���� �##���&�# "-��)�����$#) �����'�/(�'���) ���- ��)'$)�������/($#�)+��������*�)��)���

$�-� !�%'�$)���������/($#�)+���&�' �-��)��*��'��"� "#��*$�)�) �#�&�,�* '6,�"#$+�

APPENDIX APage 194



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��8

$���&���)����� '��'�) �$%���&�������/($#�)+�����������)���� ' (����)�*�##�.����%���$'+�
! '�$##���&�# "-��)�"' " �$#��) �� )� �#+��$&��$�)� ' (���(���'�)$������ !�$���)�0��
�������%�$'$%)�'��)�%��.()�$#� �) ��$&��$�*���'�(���'�)$������ !��$#) �0������&��($#�
%�$'$%)�'�$���% �)�1)�,���%#(�����)�$)���)� ()�*�)�����$#) �0���$���%$"����$'$%)�'�
������-��)���

�
���� � �-��)�)������������"'��%�"#��,���&�# "-��)�"' " �$#��*�##�.���1"�%)���) �

�-"#�-��)�%(''��)���������(��$�%��$���"'��%�"#���������*�##���%#(���"(.#�%$)� ���$���
� %(-��)��!' -�)���� -���$���� --(��)��������%+�9���:�$���
��#������'�)$��,�
$# ��������$)� �$#��)$��$'���! '����)$�%��)���5��!�)�-��� -��0�%'�)�'�$�)���5�(�#�����
! '���!�0��)$��$'�,�) ����('��)�$)�� (�������������$'��$�$")$.#��$���$%%����.#�,�$���
)���(��� !�)���5��%('���.+�������0�"'��%�"#���*��%��! %(���� ��%'�-��"'�&��)� ��
)�' (�����&�# "-��)��������! '�� -���$���% --�'%�$#�"'�-������

�
���8 ���������/($#�)+��������"'��%�"#���! '�)���� ' (����1"'���������)����" #�%+�*�##�$#� �

.���("" ')���.+�$�'$���� !�" #�%����*�)����)�����;���%#(�����)�����)���## %$)� ���
$�����&�# "-��)��$�$��-��)�����$���$""' "'�$)���������'�$��"�%�!�%�" #�%����
*�)���������$��������*�##�$#� �"' &������������(��$�%��) ����('��)�$)�" ��)�&��
�#�-��)�� !�$��$'�$0��%�$'$%)�'�$'�����$�%���$���'���! '%����

�����
�

�
 

                                                 
1 TEP (2009) Halton Landscape Character Assessment 

�

�$�	���%&
'�($&)��
�

�

�����!����������
�

����3���#�&�'�����(�)$��$.#����&�# "-��)�9���,��<<=:�

�

�������*�+�!����
�

�'$!)�������� !���*�	������)�$#���&�# "-��)�����9���,�
�<<>:4�������� !���*����(�)'�$#�$���� --�'%�$#���&�# "-��)�
����9���,��<<=:4��$#) ���$���%$"����$'$%)�'�������-��)�
9�
�,��<<>:�

�

��,�������$-.����*� �
�

?�

�

�����,��,���� ��
�

����$#)�+��$#) �4����$!�'��$#) �4�
�&�' �-��)�$���
	�����'$)� ������$#) ��

��@���'�)$���A��$���%$"��� ���@���$#)��
��@��� ��&�'��)+� �B7�(�)$��$.#��'$��" ')�

�

�
�$-.����*� �
�

���@��%%����.�#�)+� �
�

�
�$����/��
�

�����" #�%+�*�##��$&���)' ���" ��)�&��.���!�)��! '���&�' �-��)$#,�
� %�$#�$����% � -�%��(�)$��$.�#�)+�!$%) '���

APPENDIX APage 195



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� ���������	
��

�������������	�
����
����
	����
����

�
���� ���������� �!"��#�$�!�%&'���&!����%()&$'�!��!�$*��&!��"�����+,*!�&!��

)�!+"$-)",�!��#�#-"-$����.���� �!"��&+�&�)�!"$&��$����,!����,.�$,!*�+-+"&,!&'���
*$�%"�/�)�!"$,'-",!*�"��"��� ,",*&",�!�&!��&�&�"&",�!��#�)�, &"��)�&!*��&!��
�!+-$,!*��!�$*��+�)-$,"��������0���.�$! �!"��&+�+�"�&���*&����',!�,!*�"&$*�"��#�
123�$��-)",�!�,!�*$��!��-+��*&+�� ,++,�!+�'���%��445���.��+�'���5�5�&!��653�'��
�5�5������$��&$��&�+���0�"&$*�"+�"��*�!�$&"����3��#����)"$,),"��#$� �$�!�%&'���
+�-$)�+�'���5�5��&!��&!��'7�)",.��"�����,.�$�8�$��)&$'�!�&!��+-+"&,!&'���
��.���� �!"+�"�&"�&$��&�&�"&'���"��)�&!*,!*�)�, &",)�)�!�,",�!+���

�

�
������������������� �!�"��"#"��$%" ��� &����%��"��'� ("�

�
����!�%���.���� �!"�+��-���'��+-+"&,!&'���&!��'����+,*!���"���&.��$�*&$��"��"����$��,)"���
�##�)"+��#�)�, &"��)�&!*��,!)�-�,!*�$��-),!*�)&$'�!��,�9,���:���;�� ,++,�!+�&!��&�&�",!*�"��
)�, &",)�)�!�,",�!+������#����%,!*��$,!),���+�%,���'��-+���"��*-,���#-"-$����.���� �!"<��
�

• ���������#�$��-+"&,!&'����� �+���.���1�%,���'��$�=-,$�� &+�&� ,!, - �+"&!�&$��#�$�
!�%�$�+,��!",&����.���� �!"/�$,+,!*�"����.���2�,!��5�1�&!��"����.���>�,!��5�>��

�

• �����	

���?��$������@�+"&!�&$��%,���'��$�=-,$���&+�&� ,!, - �+"&!�&$��#�$�!�%�
!�!($�+,��!",&����.���� �!"/�$,+,!*�"��?
9)����!"@�+"&!�&$��,!��5�1��

�

• ��.���� �!"�+��-���,!)�$��$&"��&��$��$,&"��)�, &"��)�&!*��$�+,�,�!)��&!��)&$'�!�
 &!&*� �!"� �&+-$�+/�,!)�-�,!*��&++,.����+,*!�#�&"-$�+/�%&"�$��##,),�!)��&!��
)�!+�$.&",�!� �&+-$�+/�&!��"��� &!&*� �!"��#�+-$#&)��%&"�$�$-!(�##��

�

• 	��-)",�!+�,!������ ,++,�!+�%,���'��+�-*�"�"�$�-*��"���,!)�$��$&",�!��#��!�$*��
�##,),�!"�'-,��,!*���+,*!�+��-",�!+�&+�&�#,$+"��$,�$,"�/�&!��+�)�!����"�$�-*���!�$*��+-�����
#$� ���)�!"$&�,+���$�!�%&'���&!����%�)&$'�!�+�-$)�+��

�

• �,!, - �)&$'�!�$��-)",�!�"&$*�"+�%,���$� &,!�,!��,!��%,"��"���+-))�++#-��
, ��� �!"&",�!��#�"���$�.,+,�!+�"���&$"����#�"���)�!"� ��$&$���-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+1/�
��%�.�$/���.���� �!"�%,���'���9��)"���"��+��A�"��, �$�.������� ,++,�!+�+&.,!*+�
&'�.��"����-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�'&+��,!���

�

• ��.���� �!"��$���+&�+�+��-��� &9, ,+�/�%��$��&��$��$,&"�/�"���-+���#�&.&,�&'�����)&��
����$"-!,",�+�#�$��,+"$,)"���&",!*/��&$",)-�&$���,!�&++�),&",�!�%,"��"���0����$�&+��#�
��&!*��&!��
!�$*���$,�$,"��B�!�+���

�

• �$���+&�+�#�$���)�!"$&�,+���$�!�%&'���&!����%�)&$'�!��!�$*��+)�� �+�%,���'��
+-���$"����$�.,����"�&"�"�������!�"�$�+-�"�,!�-!&))��"&'����&$ �"��"�����)&��
�!.,$�! �!"�%�,)��)&!!�"�'��+-))�++#-���� ,",*&"����

�

• �$���+&�+�,!�&��$��$,&"����)&",�!+�#�$��&$*��+)&���*$,�()�!!�)"���$�!�%&'����!�$*��
,!#$&+"$-)"-$��&!���=-,� �!"/�,!)�-�,!*/�'-"�!�"��, ,"���"��%,!�/�+��&$����"�.��"&,)+/�
&!���� ',!�����&",!*�&!����%�$�+)�� �+�%,���'��+-���$"�����

                                                 
1 HM Gov (2008) Climate Change Act 
2 HM Gov (2009) UK Renewable Energy Strategy��
3 CLG (2010) Circular 06/2010: New Approved Documents for F, J and L and Guidance Documents  

APPENDIX APage 196



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��>

�

• C��$��,"�,+�!�"�)�!+,��$���"��'��.,&'����$�#�&+,'���#�$���.���� �!"�"�� ��"�
+-+"&,!&',�,"��+"&!�&$�+/��9)����'&+��,!���!�$*��"&$*�"+��$�)�!!�)"�"��&!��9,+",!*��$�
+)���-�����,+"$,)"���&",!*�!�"%�$A/���.�����$+�%,���'��$�=-,$���"�� &A��&�#,!&!),&��
)�!"$,'-",�!�,!�&))�$�&!)��%,"����D<��!#$&+"$-)"-$���$�.,+,�!���

�

�
)����*������ ��

�
���� ��%���.���� �!"�%,���'��$�=-,$���"��,!)�$��$&"��)-$$�!"�'�+"��$&)",)��,!�

+-+"&,!&'�����+,*!�&!��)�!+"$-)",�!���!�&)�,�.,!*�"�,+/���.���� �!"��$���+&�+� -+"�
�##�$�&!�,!"�*$&"���&��$�&)��"��+-+"&,!&'�����.���� �!"�,!)�$��$&",!*�)�, &"��
)�&!*��$�+,�,�!)��&!��)&$'�!� &!&*� �!"� �&+-$�+���

�
���1 ���������#�$��-+"&,!&'����� �+�:���;�&!��"����-,��,!*�	�+�&$)��
+"&'�,+� �!"�


!.,$�! �!"��++�++ �!"���"����:�	

��;�&$��"��� �+"�%,�����&))��"���$&",!*�
+�+"� +�#�$�&++�++,!*�"����!.,$�! �!"&����$#�$ &!)��&!��+-+"&,!&',�,"���#��� �+�
&!��'-,��,!*+2�����+��+"&!�&$�+�+�"�,!�,.,�-&��?+-+"&,!&',�,"��$&",!*+@�)�.�$,!*�
��$#�$ &!)��&)$�++�&�!- '�$��#�+-+"&,!&'�����+,*!�&!��)�!+"$-)",�!��$,!),���+��
��"��-*��"��$��&$��.&$,&",�!+�&)$�++�"���+"&!�&$�+/�)&"�*�$,�+�,!)�-����!�$*�/�
%&"�$/� &"�$,&�+/�����-",�!/��)���*�/���&�"��&!��%���('�,!*�&!�� &!&*� �!"�����
�!+-$���&�"�!�&)�,�.�+��,*��+"&!�&$�+��#�+-+"&,!&',�,"�/���.���� �!"�+��-��� ��"�
"���&��$��$,&"������&!���	

���+"&!�&$�+�-!��++�,"�,+��$�.�!�"�&"�"�,+�%�-���
)&-+��"�����.���� �!"�"��'�)� ��-!.,&'����

�
���2 �!�,!"�*$&��)� ��!�!"��#�"���+-+"&,!&',�,"��+"&!�&$�+�,!)�-��+�$��-),!*�)&$'�!�

� ,++,�!+�"�$�-*��$��-),!*��!�$*���� &!��&!��-",�,+,!*�+-+"&,!&'���+�-$)�+��#�
�!�$*����!��,!��%,"��!&",�!&��"&$*�"+�&!��)�  ," �!"+/�!�%�$�+,��!",&��
��.���� �!"�,+�,!"�!����"��'��8�$��)&$'�!�'���5�>��&!��!�!($�+,��!",&��
��.���� �!"�'���5�4>����&!*�+�"��"����-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�&$���9��)"���"��'$,!*�
,!�"��+��)�&���!*,!*�)&$'�!��,�9,���:���;�� ,++,�!+�"&$*�"+/�%,"��"����!�$*��
$�=-,$� �!"+��#�"�������&!���	

���&�,*!���&))�$�,!*����E�$�,!+"&!)�/�'&+����!�
"���+"&!�&$�+�#�$�"����!�$*��$�=-,$� �!"�,!�"������/�"���+"���'��+"���",*�"�!,!*��#�
�-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�,+�,!"�!����"��'���=-,.&��!"�"��������.���1�,!��5�5/���.���2�,!�
�5�1�&!����.���>�,!��5�>���

�
���� ���+-���$"�"���!�%��-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�&!��"���!+-$��"�����&!!,!*�+�+"� �

)�!"$,'-"�+�"��$��-),!*�)&$'�!�� ,++,�!+/���.���� �!"�,+�$�=-,$���"��+��%���%�
, �$�.� �!"+�"������� ,++,�!�+&.,!*+�)&!�'�� &����.�$�"���)�!"� ��$&$��
�-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�:�&$"��;�'&+��,!�D�%,"��&�#�)-+��!�$��-),!*�"����� &!��#�$�
�!�$*��&+�&�#,$+"��$,�$,"��&!��"��!�-",�,+,!*�$�!�%&'���&!����%�)&$'�!��!�$*���
C��$�� ,!, - �+"&!�&$�+�)&!!�"�'���9)�����/���.�����$+�&$��$�=-,$���"��
�$�.,����.,��!)��"�&"�&�����",�!+��&.��'��!�,!.�+",*&"���&!��"�&"�#-$"��$�����
� ,++,�!+�+&.,!*+�&$��!�"�#�&+,'���&!��F��$�.,&'����

                                                 
4 If the CSH or BREEAM are superseded by other national standards over the plan period then developments 

should comply with the most up to date national guidance. 
5 HM Treasury CLG (20110) The Plan for Growth  Ministerial Statement ‘Zero Carbon Homes’   
6 In a Ministerial Statement ‘Zero Carbon Buildings’ (20th December 2010) the Government confirmed its policy 

to progressively raise the national regulatory requirements for non-domestic buildings, enabling them to be zero 

carbon from 2019. In the 2008 Budget, the Labour Government announced an ambition for all new non-domestic 

buildings to be zero carbon from 2019, with consultation on the timeline and its feasibility. Since the change of 

Government no further announcements have been made but it is considered that these aspirations will remain.  
7 Including and future revisions to Part L: CLG (2010) Circular 06/2010: New Approved Documents for F, J and L 

and Guidance Documents�

APPENDIX APage 197



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��D

�
���> ����)�&!*�+�"���-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�&$��&!",),�&"���"��$��-)��"����9"$&(�.�$�)�+"+�

&++�),&"���%,"�� ��",!*�"���+-+"&,!&',�,"��$&",!*+�#�$�����&!���	

����E�$����/�
�.,��!)��+��%+�"�&"�"�,+�,+��-��"��&�*$�&"�$��&$"��#�"���)�!+"$-)",�!�)�+"�'�)� ,!*�
"���)�+"��#�'-,��,!*�&��-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�)� ��,&!"��%���,!*�:&!��!�"��&$"��#�"���
)�+"��#�&)�,�.,!*�"��������$&",!*;�6���+�&�$�+-�"�,"�,+�&!",),�&"���"�&"�&+�����

� ,++,�!�$��-)",�!+�&$��,!"�*$&"���,!"���-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+�,!��,!��%,"��!&",�!&��
"&$*�"+/�&)�,�.,!*��,*��$���.��+��#�"�������&!���	

���%,���'�)� �� �$��.,&'����

�
���D �-,��,!*�&�)� �$���!+,.��+�&",&��-!��$+"&!�,!*��#�"�������$"-!,",�+�#�$�$�!�%&'���

&!����%�)&$'�!��!�$*��,+�#-!�& �!"&��"�����,.�$,!*�)&$'�!�$��-)",�!�"&$*�"+�&!��
,!)$�&+,!*�"����$���$",�!��#���)�!"$&�,+����!�$*�������$�.,���"����.,��!)��'&+��
#�$�+-)��&!�&��$�&)��"����,.�$������,"��	�*,�!�	�!�%&'���
!�$*���&�&),"���"-��4�
:	�!�%&'���
!�$*���"-��;�%&+�)�  ,++,�!���'��"����,.�$������,"��	�*,�!�
&-"��$,",�+�:,!)�-�,!*�C�+"��&!)&+�,$��&!��C&$$,!*"�!;���!�,)&",.��$�!�%&'���&!��
��%�)&$'�!��!�$*��*�!�$&",�!�"&$*�"+��&.��'��!���$,.���"�$�-*��"���	�!�%&'���

!�$*���"-�������+��,!�,)&"��"���)�!"$,'-",�!+�"�&"� ,*�"�'�� &���'��"���
"�)�!���*,�+�-!��$��$,!),�&��)�!+,��$&",�!�,!�"���+"-��/�%�,)��&$��',� &++�
�� ',!�����&"�&!����%�$�:���;�&!���!(+��$��%,!�������"&$*�"+�%�$���$��-)���
&+�&�$�+-�"��#�&!&��+,+�'&+����!�)�!+"$&,!"+� &��,!*/�$�+�-$)��&.&,�&',�,"��&!��,!�"���
)&+���#�',� &++����/�"&A,!*�,!"��&))�-!"�"����,A�����!�$*��$�=-,$� �!"+��#�"���
��$�-*��,!��,!��%,"��"����$�7�)"�����-+,!*�&!��� ���� �!"��&!��"&$*�"+������
�!�$*��*�!�$&",�!�"&$*�"+�+��%�"�����"�!",&���#�"�����$�-*��,!����,.�$,!*�',� &++�
�����

�
���6 �+��&$"��#�"���	�!�%&'���
!�$*���"-��/�
!�$*���$,�$,"��B�!�+�&)$�++�"����-'(

	�*,�!�%�$��,��!",#,���#�$�"������,.�$���#�$�!�%&'���&!����%�)&$'�!��!�$*���E�$�
�&�"�!�"�,+�,!�,)&"����$�+��)",.��&$�&+�#�$��,+"$,)"���&",!*�!�"%�$A+�:-",�,+,!*�
',� &++����;�'&+����!�"���&.&,�&'����&"&/�"���)$,",)&�� &++��#���&"��� &!��&!��
��.���� �!"�*$�%"�����,+��$, &$,���,��!",#,����&$�+'-$��&!��	-!)�$!�C&"�$#$�!"�
&+�
!�$*���$,�$,"��B�!�+�'-"�&�+��)�!+,��$���C,�!�+�C&"�$#$�!"�&!��1���&+�
�&.,!*���"�!",&��#�$��,+"$,)"���&",!*�!�"%�$A+�����+��
!�$*���$,�$,"��B�!�+�%,���'��
, ��$"&!"�,!�"���&)�,�.� �!"��#�"����!�$*��*�!�$&",�!�,!�,)&",.��"&$*�"+�#�$�
�&�"�!���+�&�$�+-�"�"�����-!),��%,���+-���$"�"�����.���� �!"��#�
!�$*���$,�$,"��
B�!�+�#�$��,+"$,)"���&",!*��&$",)-�&$���%,"�,!�"�����$�-*�@+�0����$�&+��#���&!*��
&!���!)�-$&*��#-"-$���$���+&�+�"��)�!!�)"�"��+-)��!�"%�$A+���

�
���4 ��"��-*��"���	�!�%&'���
!�$*���"-����,��!�"�,��!",#��+,*!,#,)&!"�+)����#�$��"��$�

�&$*��+)&���$�!�%&'����!�$*����.���� �!"+�,!��&�"�!/�#-"-$����"�!",&�� &���9,+"/�
�&$",)-�&$���#�$��!+��$��%,!��&!��#�$�-",�,+,!*�'-,��,!*�,!"�*$&"���"�)�!���*,�+/�&+�
"�)�!���*��&�.&!)�+�&!���)�!� ,�+��#�+)&������,.�$�)�+"�$��-)",�!+���-)��
��.���� �!"+�%,���'��+-���$"���,!�&��$��$,&"����)&",�!+�+-'7�)"�"���!.,$�! �!"&��
 ,",*&",�!���-'($�*,�!&����.���� �!"+�%�,)��)�!"$,'-"��"��"����$��-)",�!��#�
$�!�%&'����!�$*��%,���&�+��'��+-���$"���'��"�����-!),��,!)�-�,!*�"�����%�$�#$� �
"�����$+����$�7�)"�+-'7�)"�"��"��� &!&*� �!"�&!�� ,",*&",�!��#�&!��,��!",#,���
�!.,$�! �!"&��, �&)"+��

�
����5 E,!&!),&��)�!"$,'-",�!+�#$� ���.���� �!"�%,���'��+�-*�"�%��$��,"�,+��$�.�!�

-!.,&'���&!��F��$�-!#�&+,'���"�� ��"�"���$�=-,$��������$��	

���+"&!�&$�/�
�9)����'&+��,!���!�$*��"&$*�"+�,!��,!��%,"��"���+-))�++#-��, ��� �!"&",�!��#�"���
$�.,+,�!+�"���&$"����#�"����-,��,!*�	�*-�&",�!+/��$�)�!!�)"�"��&!��9,+",!*��$�

                                                 
8 CLG (2010) Code for Sustainable Homes: A Cost Review  
9 ARUP (2010) Liverpool City Region Renewable Energy Capacity Study 

APPENDIX APage 198



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��6

+)���-�����,+"$,)"���&",!*�!�"%�$A����,+�#,!&!),&��)�!"$,'-",�!�%,���'��+�-*�"�,!�
&))�$�&!)��%,"����D<��!#$&+"$-)"-$���$�.,+,�!�&!��%,���'��-+���"��)�!"$,'-"��"��
%,��$�$�!�%&'���&!����%�)&$'�!��!�$*��,!,",&",.�+�&)$�++�"�����$�-*����

�
����� ������-!),��,!"�!�+�"���$��-)��&��-+"&,!&'�����.���� �!"�&!����, &"����&!*��

����"��+-���� �!"�"�,+����,)��&!��"���$�.,���&�.,)��&!��*-,�&!)��"��&,��
��.�����$+�&!����-+������$+��!���%�+-+"&,!&'�����+,*!�&!��)�!+"$-)",�!�
"�)�!,=-�+/�&!��)&$'�!�$��-)",�!�)&!�'��,!)�$��$&"���,!"��!�%���.���� �!"���

�

�

�

�

�����+�,-
��.�-/��
�

�

����� ����������
�

����<��-���� �!"�(���&!!,!*�&!����, &"����&!*��:���/��55D;G�
�����<�	�!�%&'���
!�$*��:���/��552;G���!+-�"&",�!��!����<�
��&!!,!*�#�$�&���%��&$'�!�E-"-$��,!�&���&!*,!*���, &"��
:�5�5;G���, &"����&!*���)"�:�����./��556;G��0�	�!�%&'���

!�$*���"$&"�*��:�����./��554;G��,$)-�&$�5>F�5�5<���%�
���$�.�����)- �!"+�#�$�E/�H�&!����&!���-,�&!)����)- �!"+�
:���/��5�5;�

�

�������#�&" �"��
�

�,.�$������,"��	�*,�!�	�!�%&'���
!�$*���&�&),"���"-���
:�	��/��5�5;G��&�"�!�
)�!� ,)��,&',�,"���++�++ �!"�:��B/�
�5�5;�

�

��0��"(����!1"���#"��
�

4�

�

�����0��0���"���
�


!.,$�! �!"�&!��	�*�!�$&",�!�,!��&�"�!�

1�I�C&"�$�� ��I�E�����	,+A�
�

�
��!1"���#"��
� 2�I���, &"����&!*�� >�I�
!�$*��
##,),�!)��
�

�
������%"�
�

��,+����,)��%,����&.��+"$�!*���+,",.��'�!�#,"+�#�$��!.,$�! �!"&��
&!���)�!� ,)�+-+"&,!&',�,"��)$,"�$,&��

APPENDIX APage 199



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
��	
�	������
���������������
�
�
���� ������� ����!"�����#�$% ��"%&�'�(%"��)'�� �*"�(%#'��$'���"�!+$�,%�$���"��+'��-�

.%���+%&��/�+'���+%&�����#�$'"%��+'��  '� �,$%&$��"'��������0��-�'�(%"��)'�����(��!'�

.!��*"�(%#'��� �&%�����#�'&���)%&�"' �!"&'���#�!��%)��'�0�&���"%.!�'�����$'�
&$�"�&�'"��-��$'���"�!+$� ����# &�*' ���$' '��  '� � $�!�#��$'"'-�"'�.'�&�� '"('#�
��#�,$'"'�*�  %.�'�'�$��&'#�-�"�&!""'�����#�-!�!"'�+'�'"��%�� ���#����'� !"'���
 �"��+� '� '��-�*��&'���#�%)*"�('���&���#% �%�&�%('�'  ����

�

�
����������������������� ���!��������"����#$���

�
������� ����!"�����#�$'"%��+'��  '� /���#����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"�,%���&���"%.!�'�����$'���"�!+$� �
 '� '��-�*��&'���#���&���#% �%�&�%('�'  �%���&&�"#��&'�,%�$��$'�-����,%�+1�

�

• ��$%'"�"&$%&����**"��&$�,%���.'�+%('������$'�*"��'&�%��/����!"'�&�� '"(��%�����#�
�$'�*"��'&�%���'�$��&')'����-�.%�#%('" %�0���#�+'�#%('" %�0�%�&�!#%�+1��
�� �%�' ��-�%��'"���%�����%)*�"���&'�%�&�!#%�+��$'��'" '0�
 �!�"0��*'&%���

�"��'&�%����"'��2���3���#�4	�) �"�� %�'5�
�� �%�' ��-����%�����%)*�"���&'�%�&�!#%�+��%�' ��-��*'&%����&%'��%-%&����'"' ��2����3�

��)'�05��$'��'" '0�
 �!�"0/�6���#��"��7����!+$���#�	'#��"�,��!��%�+5���#/��
�� �%�' ��-���&���%)*�"���&'�%�&�!#%�+���&������!"'�	' '"(' �2��	 3/���&���

�'���+%&����%�' /���&���8%�#�%-'��%�' /���&%'���8��#���#/���#�$�.%��� ���#�
 *'&%' �%#'��%-%'#�%��������� ��%�#%('" %�0��&�%��������2���3��

�

• �**�"�!�%�%' ����'�$��&'��$'�(��!'��-�������� ����!"����  '� � $�!�#�.'���7'��
%�&�!#%�+�"' ��"%�+��"��##%�+�������!"���$�.%��� ���#���$'"����# &�*'�-'��!"' /���#�
�$'�&"'��%����-�$�.%��� �,$'"'��**"�*"%��'���

�

• �$'���"�!+$� �$'"%��+'��  '� /�%�&�!#%�+��% �'#��!%�#%�+ /���� '"(��%����"'� /�
�"'� ��-��"&$�'���+%&���%��'"' �/��&$'#!�'#����!)'�� ���#���$'"�.!%�#%�+ ���#�
 �"!&�!"' ��-���&����"&$%�'&�!"����"�$% ��"%&���%��'"' ��,%���.'�&�� '"('#���#�
'�$��&'#���#� *'&%���"'+�"#�,%���.'�$�#�����$'%"� '��%�+��

�

• �$'� �"'�+�$��-����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"���#�&��#%�%���� �%�-�")'#��$"�!+$��$'��������
���# &�*'��$�"�&�'"��  '  )'���,%���.'�&�� '"('#���#�'�$��&'#��

�

• �$'�)���+')'����-����!"�����#�$'"%��+'��  '� /���#����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"��$"�!+$�
�$'�#'('��*)'�����#�%)*�')'����%����-�����+')'������� /��&�%������� ���#��"'��
�**"�% �� �,%���.'�'�&�!"�+'#/�*�"�%&!��"�0�%���  �&%��%���,%�$���&���&�))!�%�%' ��

�

• 	'*��&')'����"�&�)*'� ���"0�)'� !"' �,%���.'�')*��0'#�,$'"'��**"�*"%��'����
'� !"'��$����$'"'�% �����'����  ��-����!"����"�$'"%��+'��  '� ��"����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"�
� ���"' !����-�#'('��*)'����

�

�
%�!��&���������

�
���� �������&����%� ���,'���$��-����!"����  '� �,$%&$��"'�*"��'&�'#�� �%��'"���%����/�

���%�������#���&���0�%)*�"����� %�' ������!��"0�*"��'&�'#� %�' ��"'��--�"#'#��$'�
$%+$' ���'('���-�*"��'&�%���,%�$���$%+$�*"%�"%�0��� ��+%('������$� '��$����"'���&���0�

APPENDIX APage 200



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��9

 %+�%-%&������#�,$%&$�*"�(%#'����%)*�"����� �!"&'��-�'�(%"��)'����/� �&%�����#�
'&���)%&�.'�'-%��-�"��$'���"�!+$�

�
���� �$'��'" '0�
 �!�"0�% ����%)*�"�����"' �!"&'�-�"�%��'"���%�����0�%)*�"�����

,%��'"%�+�.%"# ���#�� � !&$�% ��--�"#'#��$'�$%+$' ���'('� ��-�*"��'&�%����$"�!+$�%� �
#' %+���%���� ����*'&%����"��'&�%����"'��2���3�!�#'"��$'�
!"�*'������('��%���
8%�#��%"# ��%"'&�%('���#���8'����#��-����'"���%������)*�"���&'�!�#'"��$'�	�) �"�
���('��%�����'('��*)'��� &$')' �,%�������.'� !**�"�'#��$���,%����'�#�����#('" '�
'--'&� ���� !&$�%��'"���%�����0�%)*�"�����,%�#�%-'� %�' /�'%�$'"�����'��"�%��
&�).%���%���,%�$���$'"�*"�:'&� ��"�*��� ��

�
���; �������$� ��$"''��%�' ��-��%+�%-%&�����&%'��%-%&��)*�"���&'�2����31�6���#��"��7�

���!+$�����/��'" '0�
 �!�"0��������#�	'#��"�,��!��%�+������������-�,$%&$��"'�
"'&�+�% '#�� ��-����%�����%)*�"���&'�#!'�����$'%"�.%�#%('" %�0���#�+'�#%('" %�0�
-'��!"' ����&���0� %+�%-%&���� %�' �%�&�!#'�;<���&������!"'�	' '"(' �2��	 3�,$%&$�
 !**�"����"��+'��-�$�.%��� ���#� *'&%' /��$"''���&����'���+%&����%�' /��=;$���-�
,��#���#���#��!)'"�! �*"%�"%�0�$�.%��� ���#� *'&%' �%#'��%-%'#�,%�$%���$'��������
�%�#%('" %�0��&�%��������2���3���

�
���;���= ����##%�%�������$'�&�� '"(��%����-�.%�#%('" %�0/�%��% ��� ��%)*�"��������'>*��"'�

�**�"�!�%�%' �-�"�'�$��&')'��/�%�&�!#%�+�"' ��"%�+��"��##%�+�����'�,�"7 ��-�
���!"���$�.%��� ���#���$'"����# &�*'�-'��!"' ���$% �% �'  '��%���-�"��$'�)%�%+��%��/�
#% *'" �����#�+'�'�%&�'>&$��+'��-� *'&%' /�&���"%.!�%�+�����$'���"�!+$ �+"''��
%�-"� �"!&�!"'��'�,�"7�2���%&0�����3��

�
���=���? �'"%��+'��  '� ��"'�#'-%�'#�� ��$� '�*�"� ��-��$'�$% ��"%&�'�(%"��)'����$���$�('�

 %+�%-%&��&'�.'&�! '��-��$'%"�$% ��"%&/��"&$�'���+%&��/��"&$%�'&�!"����"��"�% �%&�
%��'"' �������% �%)*�"��������&�� '"('���#�'�$��&'��$' '��  '� �� ��$'0�&���"%.!�'�
���������� � '� '��-�%#'��%�0���

�
���?���< �������$� ���?��% �'#��!%�#%�+ /����-�,$%&$��"'��"�#'����% �'#/��<��"'��"�#'���@�

��#��$'�"')�%�%�+��9<��"'��"�#'�����% �'#���$'"'��"'��� �� '('���&$'#!�'#�
���!)'�� �%�&�!#%�+��!&7��'&�0/���������� ��'���#���('�� ��������-��$' '�
#' %+���%�� /���"' .!"0�����/����"�#'���@��% �'#��!%�#%�+/���#���#'"&"�-���-�8' ��
	��+'�2��"�����"%�"03���#���������� ��'/�.��$��&$'#!�'#����!)'�� /��"'�
&�� %#'"'#����.'�4���"% 7�����#�"'A!%"'��'&'  �"0�)�%��'���&'����� '"(��%����"'� /�
�-�,$%&$��$'"'��"'��'��%��������/��"'��"'� ��-� *'&%����"&$%�'&�!"����"�$% ��"%&�
%��'"' ��#' %+���'#�.0��$'���!�&%���8%�$%������� '"(��%����"'���$'"'�% ���
 ���!��"0�#!�0����*�0�4 *'&%������'��%��������$'�#' %"�.%�%�0��-�*"' '"(%�+��"�
'�$��&%�+�%� �&$�"�&�'"��"��**'�"��&'���

�
���<���B ����������&���0�%)*�"�����-'��!"' ��-���&���$% ��"%&��"��"&$%�'&�!"���%��'"' ���"'�

�% �'#��"�*�"���-������ '"(��%����"'�����,'('"/��$'0�&��� �%���*"�(%#'���(��!�.�'�
&���"%.!�%�������$'���&���$% ��"%&�'�(%"��)'�����#�&���)�7'����%)*�"�����
&���"%.!�%������&"'��%�+��� '� '��-�*��&'���#���&���%#'��%�0���$% �&�!�#�%�&�!#'�
.!%�#%�+ ���#���$'"� �"!&�!"' ���#�-'��!"' /��"&$�'���+%&���"')�%� /�$% ��"%&��*'��
 *�&' ���#��$'�,%#'"�$% ��"%&����# &�*'��"���,� &�*'���!%�#%�+���#� �"!&�!"' ��-�
��&���%)*�"���&'�,%���.'�%#'��%-%'#�%������&����% ���������

�

                                                 
1 HBC (2003) Halton Biodiversity Action Plan 
2 CLG (2010) Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment  
3 English Heritage (2010) Buildings at Risk Register 

APPENDIX APage 201



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

���B���� �$'��'��-��$'��('"�"&$%�+��%) ��-��$'�*��%&0�% ����&�� '"('���#�'�$��&'��$'���&���
&$�"�&�'"���#�#% �%�&�%('�'  ��-�������������&$%'('��$% /��"'� ��-� %+�%-%&����
���# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"�$�('�.''��%#'��%-%'#�.0�������� ����# &�*'��$�"�&�'"�
�  '  )'��;���$'� �!#0�%#'��%-%' �#% �%�&�%('� *'&%���-'��!"' ���#�&$�"�&�'"% �%& ��-�
�$'���"�!+$� ����# &�*'���#�$� �#%(%#'#��$'���"�!+$�%����."��#����# &�*'�
&$�"�&�'"��0*' ���#�)�"'�#'��%�'#����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"��"'� ���$'����# &�*'�
�$�"�&�'"��  '  )'���*"�(%#' �+!%#��&'�����$'� �"'�+�$���#�&��#%�%����-��$'�
���# &�*'�,%�$%��'�&$��-��$'��%�'�#% �%�&�����# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"��"'� ���#�)�7' �
"'&�))'�#��%�� �����$'�&�� '"(��%��/�'�$��&')'��/�"' ��"��%����"�&"'��%����-�
���# &�*'�&$�"�&�'"��$"�!+$��� '"%' ��-����# &�*'� �"��'+%' ���#�+!%#'�%�' �,$%&$�
�"'�.� '#�!*����$'����# &�*'� �&�*�&%�0�����&&�))�#��'�&$��+'���',�
#'('��*)'�� �,%���.'�'>*'&�'#����$�('�*�"�%&!��"�"'+�"#�����$' '����# &�*'�
&$�"�&�'"� �"��'+%' ���#�+!%#'�%�' �%�&�!#%�+�-!�!"'�!*#��' �����$'���"�!+$� �
���# &�*'��$�"�&�'"��  '  )'����

�

�

�
�

 

                                                 
4 TEP (2009) Halton Landscape Character Assessment  

�

��
��'�(�	��)��*��
�

�

����������������
�

���=1������%�+�-�"��$'��% ��"%&�
�(%"��)'�� 2���/��9�935�
����1��%�#%('" %�0���#��'���+%&������ '"(��%���2���/��99=35��
��� !����%�����*'"��������1������%�+�-�"������!"�����#��'���$0�

�(%"��)'���2���/��9�93�

�


������"� $��$��
�

�
��2�99�3�����������# &�*'��$�"�&�'"��  '  )'��5��������
�%�#%('" %�0��&�%��������2���/��99�35�����'��-��$'���"�!+$�
	'*�"��2���/��9�93�

�

�����$+����,-$���"$!�
�

�9�

�

������������$!��
�


�(%"��)'�����#�	'+'�'"��%���%���������

��C�8��'"�� =�C�6���#�	% 7�
�

�	��,-$���"$!�
� ;�C���%)��'��$��+'� ?�C�
�'"+0�
--%&%'�&0�
�

�	������#$�
�

�$% �*��%&0�,%���$�('� �"��+�*� %�%('�.'�'-%� �-�"�'�(%"��)'�����
��#�'&���)%&� ! ��%��.%�%�0�&"%�'"%���

APPENDIX APage 202



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	

����
	���	����	
�
�

���� ������������ �!" !������ #���� $%�&�%��'!( ��!�" �%��(�)������*�"����+�% #���
��,��%�'�� �(���� !���-�.% #���$���+��/�� ��)-�.% #��!��(���+�!�.�����'%�)� �� ��
'��0�.����� �-�)����������� �!" !���"����'*�%,���!� ����.�(� 0-�#��( #���+�$�((1
.���)-��!**%� ���+���#��"��.�%+�,���� 0-�"%� ��.! �� %�"(�'� ��"#��)���+�* � �%�-�
�'*�%,����,��%�'�� �(�2!�(� 0���+�*�%,�+����"��� �%��(���+��*%� ��)�%**%� !�� �������

�

�
����������������������������������

� �
��( %�3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&�$�((�.��*�% �" �+-���#��"�+���+��/*��+�+-�$#����
�**�%*��� �����( %���%�%!)#��%!�"�(�$%�&��)��(%�)��+��% #���*�� �������+��)��"����
���*%���.(���%�� #��+�(�,��0���+�'��� ����"��%��)����������� �!" !���$�((��"#��,�� #��� #�%!)#4�
�

• 
��!���)� #� ���$�+�,�(%*'�� �'�/�'�����%**%� !�� ���� %�'�&��*�%,���%���%��#�)#�
2!�(� 0���+�'!( ��!�" �%��(�)����������� �!" !��� �&��)��""%!� �%��+���"���"������+� #��
� ��+��+���%��)������*�"��*�%,���%���

�

• 	���� ��)� #��(%���%��)����������� �!" !���$#���� #���������+�� ����+�+���"���"�������
*�%,���%���

�

• ��% �" ��)-���#��"��)���+�$#����*%���.(��"��� ��)�(��&�)�����+�"%���" �%���.� $����
�� !��(�#�.� � ����+�% #���(��+�"�*����� !����$#�"#�"%� ��.! �� %$��+������ $%�&�%��
)�����*�"�����+�"%���+%���%��,�(!���%��.�%+�,���� 0-���"��� �%����+� #���'��� 0����+��
%�� #��"%''!�� 0��

�

• �'*�%,��)��""����.�(� 0-�$#�����**�%*��� �-� %� #��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&�
*�� �"!(��(0�$#���� #�����"%!��)���$�(&��)���+�"0"(��)��

�

• ��/�'����)� #��"%� ��.! �%��%����( %�3��)����������� �!" !��� %�.�%�+����!� ����.�(� 0�
%.5�" �,�����"(!+��)�#��( #-�"(�'� ��"#��)���+�* � �%�-���+�'��� �����)���+��'*�%,��)�
.�%+�,���� 0��

�

• �+�� ��0��)� #���%�%!)#3��'!( ��!�" �%��(�)����������� �!" !����� $%�&���+�*��*����)�
+� ��(�+�*%(�"����$� #��� #���� ���((%"� �%�����+���,�(%*'�� �����)�'�� ������%��� ��
*�% �" �%���

�

• �!� �����)� #��*�% �" �%�����%�+�+� %��� ���� �%��((0��'*%� �� ��� ����%��.�%+�,���� 0�.0�
'���)��)���"��� �%��(��'*�" ����+���"%!��)��)� #��!���%�� #��$�+���)�����
������ �!" !����� $%�&�$#�"#����(��������� �,�� %���"��� �%��(�*����!������

�

• ����)�+�,�(%*���"%� ��.! �%��� %���"�(� � ���'*�%,�'�� �� %� #��2!�(� 0-�"%���" �,� 0�
��+�'!( ��!�" �%��(� 0�%�� #���%�%!)#3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&���

�

• �!**%� ��)� #��+�(�,��0�%��*�%)��''�����+�� �� �)���� %�*�% �" -���#��"����+��/*��+�
)����������� �!" !����"�%��� #���%�%!)#���"(!+��)�(%"�(���+��!.1��)�%��(�� �� �)������+�
	�)�%��(����&���� �� �,������

�

�
�
�

APPENDIX APage 203



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��6

���������������
�
���� 7%�� #��*!�*%����%����( %�3����7-�)����������� �!" !������+�����+���4�
�

o ���&����+����+����8���"(!+��)�*��&����+���)�%��(�*��&��
o �'��� 0��������*�"��8���"(!+��)����%�'�(���"��� �%���*�"��-�)�����*�"������

��+���%!�+�#%!���)�
o �! +%%���*%� ��7�"�(� ����8���"(!+��)��%�'�(�*(�0��)����(+�-�)%(��"%!�������+�

% #���%! +%%���*%� ��������
o �� !��(���+���'�1�� !��(�������*�"���8���"(!+��)�$%%+(��+�-��"�!.-�)����(��+-�

#�� #�%��'%%�-�$� (��+�-�%*�����+��!����)�$� �����+�.�����%"&�#�.� � ��
o �������%���+%���8���"(!+��)���,������+�"���(�.��&�-��%�+���+����(�"%���+%��-�

"0"(��)��%! ��-�*�+�� �����*� #�-���+���)# ��%��$�0�
o � #���8���"(!+��)��((% '�� �-�"%''!�� 0�)��+���-�"�'� ��������+�"#!�"#0��+��

�
���6 ������������ �!" !��-����+�����+-����*����� ��"�%�����( %����%'� #��� �� �)�"�!�.���

)�����*�"��������%���%$�����&���+���" %�������&-� #��$� ��$�0����+�"���(��
��"(!+��)� #�����&�0���+����+)�$� ���9�0�����(�-� %�������%���� !���"%����,� �%��
�� ���� -�*(�0������-�*��&����+�)%(��"%!��������%$�,��-�� ���� #����:'!( ��!�" �%��(� 03�
$#�"#����"�� ��(� %� #��)����������� �!" !���"%�"�* ���+��**�%�"#���#������ #��
*% �� ��(��%��)����������� �!" !��� %�#�,�������)��%���!�" �%�����+� %�+�(�,�����
.�%�+����)��.����� �����!( ��!�" �%��(� 0�"����**(0� %���+�,�+!�(��� �����+��%! ��-�.! �
� ����$#��� #���� �����+�(��&������ �&��� %)� #��� #� ����!((0�'!( ��!�" �%��(�)�����
������ �!" !����� $%�&�����"#��,�+��

�
���� �#���%�%!)#3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&�"%� ��.! �����)����"�� (0� %� #��2!�(� 0�

%��(�����%����( %�3������+�� �-�$%�&������+�,��� %��-� #�%!)#�*�%,�+��)�%**%� !�� ����
�%���*%� ���+���"��� �%����+�"%� ��.! ��)� %�#��( #0�(�,��)���+�$�((1.���)��������
������ �!" !���"��� �����������%��*(�"���((%$��)��%��)��� ����**��"�� �%��%��,�(!�.(��
(��+�"�*�����+�.�%+�,���� 0���+�#��� �)������ ���� ��(�%�*(�0������'*%� �� ��%(�����
�!� ����.(��+���)�-�'�&�����*%�� �,���'*�" � %��+�* ��)� %� #��*% �� ��(����&��%��
"(�'� ��"#��)����"(!+��)��(%%+����&-���+�*�%,�+���%**%� !�� �����%���!� ����.(��
 ����*%� ������++� �%�-�)����������� �!" !���"%� ��.! �����)����"�� (0� %� #��
"%����,� �%����+���#��"�'�� �%��.�%+�,���� 0-�.0�"��� ��)�����"%(%)�"�(��� $%�&�
�((%$��)��%�� #��'%,�'�� �%��$�(+(�����(%�)�"%���+%�����+���"�(� � ��)� #��
"%(%���� �%��%����$��������

�
���; �(����*��%�� �����%�� #��*�% �" �%�-���#��"�'�� ���+-�$#�����**�%*��� �-� #��

�/*����%��%��)����������� �!" !���$�((�.���� �%! ���� #���� ���((%"� �%�����+�
��,�(%*'�� �����)�'�� �������+� #�%!)#�'�� ��*(�����)��%��� �� �)�"��� ����
7! !���� !+���-���"(!+��)��������������� �!" !���� �� �)0-�$�((������ ���� #����**�%�"#�
�+�� ��0��)� #��"!���� ��� $%�&-�������%��+���"���"0���+��!�*(!�-���+�%**%� !�� ����
�%����#��"�'�� ���+-�$#����*%���.(�-��/*����%����#���'�0���"(!+��*�%)������)�
%**%� !�� �����%��"%���" ��)�)����������� �!" !������� ������+�� ����+�.0� #��
��,��*%%(��� 0�	�)�%��
"%(%)�"�(�7��'�$%�&����!"#�� !+����$�((�.��*�� �"!(��(0�
�'*%� �� �$� #��� #��<�0�������%���#��)����+�$#����� �"���.��!��+� %�'� �)� ��
 #����)� �,���'*�" ��%��+�,�(%*'�� ���

�
���= ����,��$�%��%*����*�"�-��*%� ���+���"��� �%����"�(� ����#���.����!�+�� �&����%�� #��

�%�%!)#�����""%�+��"��$� #� #���+,�"������(�����)��%(�"0��!�+��"��>���?4��@��

                                                 
1 Natural England (2009) Green Infrastructure Guidance 
2 MEAS (2010) Draft Liverpool City Region Ecological Framework 

APPENDIX APage 204



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

��( %�3���*����*�"��� !+06�"%���+���+� #��2!�� � 0-�2!�(� 0-��""����.�(� 0���+�
�+�* �.�(� 0�%��*�%,���%����+� #��(%"�(����+��%�� #��*%*!(� �%����#��� !+0�"%�"(!+���
 #� ���( %��#���*��+%'���� (0�)%%+�2!�(� 0���+��""����.(��%*����*�"����( #%!)#�
 #���������*�"���"�������%��*��%�� 0���#��� !+0���*%� ��� ��%! �(%"�(�� ��+��+��%��
*�%,���%��>��.(���A?�$#�"#��#%!(+�.�� �&����� %�"%���+��� �%��.0��! !���
+�,�(%*'�� ���#����� ��+��+��$�((�.��!*+� �+� #�%!)#� #�������������� �!" !���
� �� �)0��%((%$��)� #��"#��)��)��**�%�"#���%'�%*����*�"�� %� #��$�+���)�����
������ �!" !����� $%�&���+�����!"#�$�((���"���� � �����!*+� �� %� #���,�+��"��.�����
7! !����'��+'�� �� %� #��� ��+��+��$�((�.��+� ��(�+�$� #��� #���� ���((%"� �%���
��+���,�(%*'�� �����)�'�� �����%����% #����**�%*��� ��+%"!'�� �$� #��� #��
��7���

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�� ����!��"������#����$%�������������&��&��������'����������������(����)�
����������������������

�
�
���@ �( #%!)#� #����"��� �%��(�*% �� ��(�%�� #���%�%!)#3����+� #��$�+����!.1��)�%�3���

)����������� �!" !����� $%�&��������'*%� �� ���*�" �%��� ��'!( ��!�" �%��(� 0�� ����
�(�%���"�����0� %�.�(��"�� #����)���� �*% �� ��(�+� ��'�� �(�����" ��%������� �,��
�� ��������+�� ����+���� #����.� � ��	�)!(� �%���������'�� ;� #������*�� �"!(��(0�
��(�,�� ��%��
!�%*������ ��-��*�"���"�((0� #�������0�
� !��0��*�"��(���% �" �%�������
>���?���+�	�'������ ���	�"��� �%��(��'*�" ���#%!(+�.��'���)�+��%�� #������ ���
 #�%!)#��""������+�#�.� � �'���)�'�� ���+� #�%!)#�*��%�� ����)�% #������� ��
$� #��� #���%�%!)#3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&��%�� #������"��� �%��(�*% �� ��(��
�'*�" ��%�����)#.%!���)��! #%�� ����
!�%*������ ��-���"(!+��)� #����� %���%�� �
�*�"��(������%���%����,� �%��>���?���+� #����� %����" �%��%�� #��	�..(����+��( �

� !������������+�	�'������ ��$�((��(�%�.��'���)�+� #�%!)#� #���%!�"�(�$%�&��)�
���*�� ����#�*�$� #����)#.%!���)��! #%�� ����%���**�%*��� ������)�'�� ��(��������

�
���B � ������"%)����+� #� ���( %�3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&�"���% �.��+�(�,���+����

��%(� �%����%'�% #���*�� �������+��)��"������+����)#.%!���)��%"�(��! #%�� ��������
�!"#� #���,%(! �%��%��(%"�(���+���+�"�%���.%!�+��0����'�$%�&����+�� !+����%,���
 #���%���� �� �)0�*���%+������!**%� �+�$#���� #����"%� ��.! �� %� #����'��%��
*�% �" ��)-���#��"��)���+��/*��+��)� #���%�%!)#3��)����������� �!" !����� $%�&��
�#�����"(!+����� ���*�"���"�'�� ��*(������+�� !+���-���+��!.1��)�%��(�)�����
������ �!" !�����+��"%(%)�"�(����'�$%�&�����%)��''���%��+�(�,��0���+���� �� �,���
"%�"�����)�	�)�%��(����&����+����� �� #� �������(�,�� � %� #���%�%!)#�$�((��(�%�.��
�!**%� �+�����

�

�

                                                 
3 HBC and PMP (2004 and as updated 2006) Halton Borough Council Open Space Study 
4
 HBC and PMP (2004 and as updated 2006) Halton Borough Council Open Space Study 

5 Scott Wilson (20110) Halton Core Strategy Habitats Regulation Assessment – Appropriate Assessment 

����$���� ����&��&�*%��(����!!!�
(�(�������+�

�����,�������&���,,���������&���� A�AC�

�,������-(����(���� ��AA�

����������&���,�.��������-(����(���� ��@;�

-��&�����(�����
����������� ��@;�
���/����&����&���� ���;�
���'�����������%��&������&�0���$����(��� A��A�

APPENDIX APage 205



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��;

�

�

�

�-1��0�
	�2
3-	4��
�

�

����������������
�

���C4���%+�,���� 0���+���%(%)�"�(��%����,� �%��>���-��AAC?D�
�%��!( � �%����*���%�����C4��(�����)��%������ !��(���+����( #0�

�,��%�'�� �>���-��A�A?D������4��%"�(��*� ��(��(�����)�>���-�
�AAB?�

�

1�����
'�&������
�

��( %���%�%!)#��%!�"�(��*����*�"��� !+0�>������+����-�
�AA����+����!*+� �+��AA=?D����� ���,��*%%(��� 0�	�)�%��

"%(%)�"�(�7��'�$%�&�>�
��-��A�A?�

�

������$���- 5����'���
�

�A�

�

����������������
�

�����( #0���( %�D��#�(+������+�
%!�)���%*(�������( %�D�

�,��%�'�� ���+�	�)����� �%�������( %��

��8���� �)��E����+�"�*�� ;�8�7(%%+�	��&�
��8���%+�,���� 0� @�8����+�F!�(� 0�

6�8�9� ���F!�(� 0� �@�8������*%� �

�

���- 5����'���
�

��8�(�'� ���#��)�� �
�

���-����,��
�

�#���*%(�"0�$�((�#�,��� �%�)�*%�� �,��.����� ��!*%��
��,��%�'�� �(���+��%"��(��!� ����.�(� 0�"�� ������

APPENDIX APage 206



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� ��������	
���	�
���

�������
�
���� 
�������� !"��#�#��!$��%#&&��� �"��!'("��##)�!"'* !�'�)�+"**,-"�������'�&'.#��

/��#�� 0�1#���'* #���� ' �� �%���!#+� !' �!"'* !�� '�)'�)������'* #��'�"�'&#��� � !"�
+#�� ���� !"�%#�� �0�'�)�!��!*��! � !' � !������'��'�/"% �#1�*�1"���� !"��#�#��!����
�"")�#1����"� ��&/�#("&"� ��� ����"��"� �'*� !' �/#*�%�"��'�"�/� ����/*'%"� !' � '%2*"�
 !"���)"�*0����%'��"��#1�!"'* !�/�#-*"&����� !"��#�#��!3�'�)�1'%�*� ' "� !"�
/�#(���#��#1�!"'* !0�*�1"� 0*"��'�)�!"'* !0�"�(��#�&"� ��1#��'**��

��������������
�
���� 4!"��%#&/'�")�+� !�# !"��'�"'�����
��*'�)3��'* #�����+� !��� !"�+#�� ��5�56�#1�

'�"'��1#��*�1"�"7/"% '�%0��'�)��'�2��89��� !�#� �#1�:5;8����#%'*��� !#�� �"��<��=�
&#� �)"/��(")>���� "�&��#1�!"'* !�)"/��(' �#��������"1"��")� #�����'* #�$��� #�0�#1�
�*'%"3� !"��'�%'� "�����("��� 0��"'* !�� �)08��!#+")� !' � !"��#�#��!$��!"'* !�
����"��'�"�%#��"% ")� #�/##��*�1"� 0*"��'�)�*"("*��#1�)"/��(' �#����#&"�/'� �%�*'�*0�
/�"('*"� �!"'* !�/�#-*"&����%*�)"�#-"�� 0�'�)�)�'-" "�3��"�/��' #�0�)��"'�"3�
%'�)�#('�%�*'��)��"'�"3�%'�%"��3�'*%#!#*�'-��"3�)"/�"���#��'�)�&"� '*��**�"��3�'�)�
�&#2�����"*' ")�)��"'�"����

�
���8 ����"� �� �)�"��!'("��!#+�� !' ��&/�#(����!"'* !�'�)�+"**,-"�������'�%�#��,%�  ����

����"�'�)�%'��# �-"�'%!�"(")������#*' �#������'%%#�)'�%"�+� !� !"��#�#��!$��
/'� �"���'�)�'//*�%'-*"�� �' "��"�3���%*�)���� !"��'* #��?#�� �� �' "��%��"")��
���"��&"� :3�'�)� !"��&-� �#��1#���"'* !�� �' "�0�'�)��#&&����#������ �' "��%�
�*'��3�&'�0�#1� !"�/#*�%�"����� !"��#�"�� �' "�0�/�#&# "�!"'* !0�"�(��#�&"� ��'�)�
*�1"� 0*"��-03�1#��"7'&/*"3�/�#&# ���� �'("*�-0�+'*2����'�)�%0%*���3�/�# "% ���� !"�
�#�#��!$��#/"���/'%"��'�)��&/�#(����'���@�'*� 0� !�#��!��")�%����%#��"� �#���

                                                 
1 ONS (2007-20098) Life Expectancy at Birth 
2 CLG (20107) The English Indices of Deprivation 
3 Lancaster University (2003) Understanding Factors Affecting Health in Halton 
4 Halton and St Helens NHS (20089 and refresh 2009) Halton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
5 HaltonBC and St Helens NHS and PCT (2009) Ambition for Health Strategy and Commissioning Strategic Plan 

�
�������������� ���!���"�� ���� ��#�

�
�"'* !0�"�(��#�&"� ��+�**�-"���//#� ")�'�)�!"'* !0�*�1"� 0*"��"�%#��'�")�'%�#��� !"�
�#�#��!�-0�"�������A��
�

• /�#/#�'*��1#���"+�'�)��"*#%' ")�!"'* !�'�)�%#&&��� 0��"�(�%"��'�)�1'%�*� �"��'�"�
*#%' ")����'%%"���-*"�*#%' �#���+� !�')"@�' "�'%%"���-0�+'*2���3�%0%*����'�)�/�-*�%�
 �'��/#� B�

�

• '//*�%' �#���1#��*'��"��%'*"�&'.#��)"("*#/&"� ��'�"���//#� ")�-0�'��"'* !��&/'% �
���"��&"� � #�"�!'�%"�/# "� �'*�/#�� �("��&/'% ��#1�)"("*#/&"� �'�)�&� ��' "�
'�'��� �'�0��"�' �("��&/'% ��

�

•  !"�/�#*�1"�' �#��#1��# �C##)��'2",�+'0�#� *" ��<��"��*'�����>����&'�'�")B�'�)3�
�

• #//#� ��� �"�� #�+�)"�� !"��#�#��!$��%�* ��'*3��/#� 3��"%�"' �#��'�)�*"����"�#11"��
'�"���//#� ")��

�

APPENDIX APage 207



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��9

�#+"("�3����#�)"�� #�'))�"��� !"������1�%'� �/�#-*"&�#1�!"'* !�'�)�+"**,-"�������
�'* #�3�� �����"%"��'�0� #���//#� �1�� !"��&"'���"��+!�%!�+�**�!"*/� #�1'%�*� ' "�
!"'* !0�*�1"� 0*"��'�)�"�(��#�&"� �3�'�)�'**"(�' "�!"'* !�/�#-*"&����

�
���: � �����&/"�' �("� #�"����"� !' � !"�"������11�%�"� �'%%"���1#���'* #�$��%#&&��� �"�� #�

'�+!#*"��'��"�#1�!"'* !�'�)�%#&&��� 0��"�(�%"��'�)�1'%�*� �"�3�"�/"%�'**0�+!"��
%#���)"����� !' � !"��#�#��!$��/#/�*' �#�����'�"���3�/# "� �'**0�/�  ����"("����"' "��
)"&'�)��#�� !"�"��"�(�%"��'�)�1'%�*� �"�����%!��"�(�%"��'�)�1'%�*� �"��%'��%#� ��-� "�
 #�%#&&��� 0�%#!"��#��'�)��)"� � 03�'�)�%'��/�"�"� �#//#� ��� �"��1#���"��)"� �� #�
/����"�!"'* !0�'�)�1�*1�**����*�1"� 0*"��������%!�/�#/#�'*��1#���"+�'�)� !"��"*#%' �#��
#1�!"'* !�'�)�%#&&��� 0��"�(�%"��'�)�1'%�*� �"���!#�*)�"����"� !' � !"0�'�"��� ")����
 !"�&#� �'%%"���-*"�*#%' �#���'�)���//#� �'%%"���-0�'��'��"�#1���� '��'-*"�
 �'��/#� �&#)"����

�
���� � ����%#���)"�")� !' ��#&"�)"("*#/&"� 3�/'� �%�*'�*0�*'��"��%!"&"�3�&'0�!'("�

�"�' �("��&/'% ��#��!"'* !���#�"����"� !' �)"("*#/&"� �+�**��# �%�"' "�#��
"7'%"�-' "�!"'* !�/�#-*"&��'�)�"@�'**0� #� '2"�')('� '�"�#1�#//#� ��� �"�� #�
�&/�#("�!"'* !�'�)�+"**,-"������� !"��#�#��!3� !"�/�#)�% �#��#1��"'* !��&/'% �
���"��&"� �� #��)"� �10�'�)�'))�"���/# "� �'*�!"'* !��&/'% ��1#��*'��"��%'*"�&'.#��
)"("*#/&"� ���+�**�-"��"@���")��

�
���� ���'))� �#�� #� !"�"��� "�("� �#��� !"�"����'��"")� #�&'�'�"� !"�%#�%"� �' �#��'�)�

%*�� "�����#1�!# �1##)� '2"'+'0��!#/��'%�#��� !"��#�#��!�+!�%!�%'��!'("�/# "� �'*�
')("��"��&/'% ��#��%#&&��� 0�!"'* !�'�)�#�� !"�(�'-�*� 0�#1� !"��#�#��!�� #+�3�
)�� ��% �'�)�*#%'*�%"� �"��<���A����" +#�2�#1��"� �"��1#���'* #�>���!"�/�"('*"�%"�
#1���"����%!�'�� !"�"�%'����1*�"�%"�"' ����!'-� ��'�)�!'��-""��*��2")� #� !"����2�#1�
#-"�� 09������'* #�3�896�#1�
"'����/�/�*��+"�"�%*'��")�'��#("�+"��! �#��#-"�"����
�55;D5E3� !������!��!"�� !'��-# !� !"��#� !�4"� �<�8��6>�'�)�
��*'�)�<8���6>;����
�# �C##)��'2",�+'0�����+�**�-"�)"("*#/")� #��" �#� ��/"%�1�%�%�� "��'�1#�� !"�
'��"��&"� �#1�/�#/#�'*��1#���"+�!# �1##)� '2",'+'0��<��"��*'�����>� #�"����"�
 !' �/#���-*"�')("��"�"11"% ��%'��")�-0�'��#("�,'-��)'�%"�#1�!# �1##)� '2",'+'0��
'�"�&���&��")��

�
���9 ��* ��"3��/#� 3��"%�"' �#��'�)�*"����"�%'��'*�#������1�%'� *0�%#� ��-� "� #�!"'* !�'�)�

+"**,-"����'�)�'����%!��!#�*)�-"���//#� ")���!"��#�#��!�!'��&'�0�/#�� �("�
'  ��-� "����%*�)����'�&�* �1��% �#�'*���""����1�'� ��% ��"��" +#�23�"7 "���("�
/")"� ��'��'�)�%0%*"��#� "�3�1'%�*� �"��1#��%�* ��"�'�)� !"�'� �3���%*�)���� !"�����)*"0�
�� ���"� �"3�'�)�'���&-"��#1�+' "�1�#� �"�(��#�&"� ��'11#�)")�-0� !"��"��"0�

� �'�0�'�)� !"��#�#��!$��+' "�+'0��+!�%!�/�"�"� �#//#� ��� �"��1#��*"����"�'�)�
�"%�"' �#������'%%#�)'�%"�+� !�# !"��/#*�%�"����� !"��#�"�� �' "�0�'�)� #���� '���
/#�� �("�*�1"� 0*"�%!#�%"�3�#//#� ��� �"�� #��&/�#("�'�)�"7 "�)� !���#11"���!#�*)�-"�
 '2"���

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

                                                 
6 Large Scale Major Developments: Residential - 200 dwellings / 4ha or more 

             All other uses - 10,000sq.m or more / 2ha or more  
7 Government office for Science (2010) Tackling Obesities: Future Choices – Project Report 2nd Edition 
8 HBC (2010) State of the Borough Report (National Child Measurement Programme) 

APPENDIX APage 208



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��;

�

�
 

�

�$
��%�&'	(��$')��
�

�

����������������
�

����A��"*�("�������� '��'-*"��"("*#/&"� �<���3��55�>�

�


������*�" �� ��
�

��)"�� '�)����C'% #����11"% �����"'* !�����'* #��<�'�%'� "��
���("��� 03��558>B��'* #��?#�� �� �' "��%��"")�����"��&"� �
<�'* #��'�)�� ��"*"������3��55;�'�)��"1�"�!��55E>B��&-� �#��
1#���"'* !�� �' "�0�'�)��#&&����#������ �' "��%��*'��<����
�'* #��'�)�� ��"*"�������'�)����3��55E>B�� ' "�#1� !"�
�#�#��!�	"/#� �<���3��5�5>�

�

��+�� #���$,- ���* ��
�

���

�

�����+��+��� ���
�

���"'* !0��'* #��

�

�	�$,- ���* ��
�

���F��%%"���-�*� 0� ���F��"'* !�

�

�	�$����. �
�

�!���/#*�%0����"7/"% ")� #�!'("������1�%'� �/#�� �("�-"�"1� ��1#��
!"'* !���

APPENDIX APage 209



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
	��
��
�������
�	
�������
�
���� �������� ��!!"#�"$�%&�'� (������ �)�)*������+�"�,�'��-"�����$�%*��$��. �!'�-���

,�'�"�&��!� �*'#" �!'�-�%��/�0��/�����$��*� �$"��!��/"���'�*./����/"�$�-��������
�!�������1 �)� ����$�#*''"���"#���-&�%&���$* �'&�/� ��"!�����".�#&��!�)���*����+�
)�'��#*��'�&�.'�*�$�#����-��������0/�#/�)'" "�� ���)/& �#�����$�!����#����%�''�"'�
!�'�$","��)-"�������,"'#�-"�����$�&+���$* �'����)'�#"  " �����/"���'�*./��'"�
#�'"!*��&�#���'���"$��/'�*./�"�,�'��-"������".� ���������$�)"'-�� ����"� *'"��/���
)���*������ �-���."$�������$$����������/" "� ���*��'&�)'�#"  " ����� ��-)�'������/���
�/"�-"#/��� - ��,����%�"��/'�*./�)������.�)'�#"  " ��'"��� ��* "$����-���-� "��/"�
"!!"#� ��!�)���*��������/"���/���$��/"�"�,�'��-"����

�
���� ����$$����������/"�"!!"#� ��!�)���*����+��/"'"��'"�)�'� ��!��/"���'�*./��!!"#�"$�%&�

/�./��","� ��!�'� (�!'�-�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� �%"#�* "��!��/"����*'"��!��/"�
��$* �'����)'�#"  " ���(��.�)��#"���/"���'�*./�� ��� �� *%3"#�����'� ( ��  �#���"$�
0��/�%��/���$�����$�!�*,����!���$��.�!'�-��/"��"' "&�
 �*�'&���$��/"�'�,"' +�%'��( �
��$�0��"'0�& �0/�#/�'*���/'�*./��/"���'�*./��

�

�

���������������������
��������������� !�

�
�"�
���������
���#���'���$","��)-"���0/�#/�-�&�.�,"�'� "����)���*����4�

• �","��)-"���)'�)� �� � /�*�$�����"5�#"'%��"���$�0/"'"�)�  �%�"� /�*�$�-���-� "�����
!�'- ��!�"-�  ��� ���$��$�*'+�0��"'+���� "���$���./��)���*�����

• �'�)� �� �!�'�$","��)-"���0��/����'�#�� "�����$"���!�"$���'�6*����&�����."-"����'"� �
7�6�� 8�����/"���'�*./� /�*�$�/�,"� )"#�!�#�'".�'$����/�0��/"�"5#""$��#"������'�
)���*���� �#���%"��$$'"  "$���$�/�0��/"��-)�#�����'"#")��' �#���%"�'"$*#"$�

• �'��'����$","��)-"������)��"������&�#����-����"$����$��'�*� ��%�"����$+� ��" � /�*�$�
%"���," ��.��"$����� #"'������/"�"5�"����!���&�#����-����������$�)�  �%�"�'� ( ����
!*�*'"�* " ����","��)-"���0�������&�%"�)"'-���"$�0/"'"��/"����$�/� ��'�0����%"+�-�$"�
 *���%�"�!�'��/"�)'�)� "$�* "���9/"'"����� �����)�  �%�"�����#/�","��/"�!*���'"-"$�������
�!��� ��"+��/"���*�#���-�&� ""(� �!�:"�$��'�.'""��* " �

�
#"��$��������� !�%&�'�(�)�&� �
���)'","�����$�-���-� "��/"�'� (�!'�-�)��"�������##�$"�� ����/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� ���$�
!�#�����" +��/"�!����0��.�)'��#�)�" �0�����))�&4�

• ����-� �������!�'� (����)*%��#� �!"�&���$�)'�)"'�&�0/"'","'�)'�#��#�%�"�

• ����'�����.����))'�)'���"�$","��)-"���0��/����$"���!�"$��'"� ��!�'� (� *''�*�$��.�
"5� ���.�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� ��'�!�#�����" +����"� *'"��/����/"�-�5�-*-��","���!�
�##")��%�"���$�,�$*���'� (�$�" �����"5#""$��;�#/��#" �)"'�-���������$��/����/"�
)�)*�������"5)� "$����'� (�� �������#'"� "$�

• 
� *'��.��/�����&�)'�)� �� �!�'��"0��'�"5)��$"$�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� ��'"�#�'"!*��&�
#�� �$"'"$�����"'- ��!�"�,�'��-"����+� �#������$�"#���-�#�!�#��' �

�
�"����������*������� !�
�","��)-"��� /�*�$�����"5�#"'%��"�"5� ���.��","� ��!�!���$�'� (���'�)��#"�'" �$"�� ��'�
)'�)"'�&����'� (�!'�-���*�$������!'�-�!���$�0��"' ����/� �0����%"��#/�","$�%&4�

• ��'"#���.�$","��)-"�������'"� �0/"'"��/"�* "�� �#�-)���%�"�0��/��/"�)'"$�#�"$��","���!�
!���$�'� (+�%��/����)'" "�����$���(��.������#�� �$"'�������/"���("�&�"!!"#� ��!�#��-��"�
#/��."�

�

APPENDIX APage 210



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<;

• � ��.�������1 ���'��".�#�=���$�	� (��  "  -"��������!�'-��/"��))��#�������!��/"�
 ">*"�������))'��#/?�" ����$�"5#")������" ������##�'$��#"�0��/����������)������.�)���#&�

• 	">*�'��.� ��": )"#�!�#�=���$�	� (��  "  -"�� �!�'�)'�)� �� �����'"� ����'� (�!'�-�
!���$��.�� ��$"���!�"$�����/"���������=	��

• �*))�'���.�)'�)� �� �!�'� * �����%�"�!���$�'� (�-���."-"���7"�.��$"!"�#"�?����",�������
0�'(8� �����.�� ��/"&�$������/�,"���$"�'�-"������-)�#������/"����$ #�)"��!��/"�
��'�*./��

�

�
+� ��%��������

�
���< �"0�$","��)-"��� /�*�$�-���-� "�����!�'- ��!�)���*����+�-���."��#�*����'�

)��"������#��!��#� �%"�0""�� �*'#" ��!�'� (���$� *''�*�$��.����$�* " +�0��/��/"�
 �!"�&��!�0�$"'�#�--*����" ���$��/"�)'��"#������!��/"�"�,�'��-"����!�)�'�-�*���
�-)�'���#"��/'�*./�*���

�
���@ ����;;�+���'�)���*���� �0"'"�!�*�$����%"����"5#""$��#"��!��##")��%�"��","� �����0��

 ")�'��"���#����� ����9�$�" ���0���"��'"������'�."�����5�$"�7���8��","� �����/"�
3*�#���� ��!��������	��$?�"''�'$���'""����$��"�#���	��$?��%"'��	��$�����/"�
��0���"��'"�0"'"�!�*�$����%"��%�,"��%3"#��,"��","� +�0��/��/"� �*'#"��!��/"�
"5#""$��#"�!�*�$����%"�"-�  ��� �!'�-�'��$��'�!!�#�������##�'$��#"�0��/��".� ������+�
�
=	��'">*�'" ��/�����'�6*����&�����."-"����'"� �7�6�� 8��'"�$" �.���"$����
 *#/���#����� �����'$"'������0"'��/"��","���!��������0��/����))'�)'���"��","� +���$�
����<'$�="%'*�'&��;��+����� �)'�)� "$��/����6�� �%"0"'"�$" �.���"$�!�'����/"�
�%�,"���#����� ����9�$�" ���0���"��'"��������'$"'�����$$'"  ��/"��  *" �����/"�
�6��+������'�6*����&��#����������0����%"�$'�0��*)�0/�#/�0����)'�)� "���'��."��!�
-"� *'" �0/�#/�#���#���'�%*�"����'"$*#��.��","� ��!�)���*���������&� )"#�!�#�
-"� *'" ��'� ��.�!'�-��/"���'�6*����&��#����������0/�#/�'">*�'"������)*��!'�-�
)������.�0����%"��$$'"  "$������'"�",������=�$�#*-"����

�
���A 9/��"��/"���'�*./�/� �/�$� �-"�-�3�'� *##"  " ����'"#"���&"�' �0��/�'"-"$�������

��$�'":* "��!�#����-����"$����$+��/"'"�'"-���� �-"�)�'� ��!��/"���'�*./�0/�#/�
/�,"�)'�,"�����%"�����#����-����"$����$","��)���$�����#� ��&����'"-"$���"������
�/" "��� ���#" +�.'""���'� �!�:"�$�* " �0����%"� �*./�����"� *'"��/������$�#���%"�
* "$�%"�"!�#����&���$�$�" �����#�* "��  *" ��!�%��./����� *''�*�$��.����$�* " ���
�$3�#"�������/"��"' "&�
 �*�'&+�)�'��#*��'�&����9�$�" +��/"'"�� ���#�* �"'��.��!�
�'"� ��!�#����-��������.�,"���/"�#��#"��'�������!�/"�,&���$* �'&�����/� ��'"������/"�
���/��"��*'&�������;;B����0� �" ��-��"$��/����/"'"��'"��))'�5�-��"�&�@;;�/"#��'" �
�!�#����-����"$����$�����/"���'�*./��������;�;+�����#����'�0�!�"�$���'��".&<�0� �
)'�$*#"$�!�'�������+����)�'��"' /�)�0��/��/"���-" ���$���--*����" ��."�#&���
�/� � �'��".&��  "  "$��/"�#*''"���$"��,"'�%����&��!����(��0��)'��'��&�%'�0�!�"�$�
 ��" �����/"���'�*./�����"0�%"�"!�#����* " +���$��$"���!�" ��))�'�*����" �!�'��/"�
)*%��#� "#��'�����##"�"'��"��/� �)'�#"  ����/"�!��$��. �"#/����#���(��0�"$."���$��/"�
�����-����"$����$���'��".&��/����/"'"��'"� �.��!�#����#/���"�." ����%'��.��.�
)'",��* �&�* "$����$�%�#(������* "�����/"���'�*./�����,"���/"�)'"$�-����#"��!�
#����-����"$����$�#�� "�����/"��"' "&+����0����%"�)�'��#*��'�&��"#"  �'&�!�'�
$","��)-"�� �0��/����/"�C"&��'"� ��!��/��."����<��+�9" ��	*�#�'����$���*�/�

                                                 
1 HBC (20092011) ��'�6*����&�����."-"����'"� ��'$"' �����$��Proposed Air Quality Management Areas 

in Widnes Town Centre Executive Board Report http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=9662 

http://www3.halton.gov.uk/environmentandplanning/pollution/pollutioncontrolairquality/ 
2 HBC (2008) Contaminated Land Strategy 2008-2013 
3 Drivers Jonas Deloitte for HCA (2010) Local Brownfield Strategy for Halton   

APPENDIX APage 211



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<�

9�$�" �����$$'"  �#����-���������  *" ����/"��"' "&����"0�&��'�3"#��0������ ��
/�,"���("&�'��"����)��&����%'��.��.�#����-����"$� ��" �%�#(������%"�"!�#����* "��

�
���� �*#/��!�9�$�" �� �*�$"'�����%&�#���!�"�$ �0/�#/�/�,"��/"�)��"���������#'"��"�

.'�*�$� ��%����&��  *" �����"0���$�"5� ���.�$","��)-"������/"�������*�/�'��&�/� �
$" �.���"$���D����������.��","��)-"���	"!"''����'"�1@�0/�#/�#�,"' �-� ���!�
9�$�" +�0/"'"�)��"���������$� ��%����&���$���/"'� �!"�&�'� ( ��  �#���"$�0��/�
!�'-"'�#����-����.��#��,���" ��'"���("�&����%"�.'"��" ����/"&���#�*$"+�!�'�"5�-)�"+�
'"#�'$"$�-��"�"��'�" ���$��'"� ��!�!�'-"'� *'!�#"�-����.���=�'�����$","��)-"���
)'�)� �� �0/�#/�!����0��/���������1 �����������.�	"!"''����'"�+��/"���*�#���0����
�))�&��/"�������*�/�'��&1 � ���$��.��$,�#"���$�'"!"'�'"�",�����))��#����� �����/"-�
����##�'$��#"�0��/��/"�'�'� (�%� "$��))'��#/����$","��)-"���-���."-"����

�
���E ��,"���/"����*'"��!��/"�/� ��'�#���$�#*''"�����$* �'���� "#��'����������+��/"�

��'�*./�� �/�-"�������*-%"'��!�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� ��$"���!�"$�*�$"'��/"�
D����'����!���3�'��##�$"�����2�'$ 1�7�������.8�	".*������ ������7��$��� �
�-"�$-"�� 8�7(��0��� ������8����$,�#"�����/"����*'"���$� ","'��&��!��/"�'� (�
)'" "��"$�%&��)"'����� ���� )"#�!�#� ��" �� �)'�,�$"$�%&��/"��"���/���$���!"�&�

5"#*��,"�7��
8���$��/"���*�#���� �'">*�'"$����#�� *����/"��"���/���$���!"�&�

5"#*��,"������&��))��#������!�'���/�2�'$�* ��� �����������'�0��/����/"�$" �.���"$�
#�� *��������2��"� *''�*�$��.������� ��" �������-��"�&+����� �!�'��/"���*�#������
-�("�$"#� ��� ����)������.��))��#����� +���(��.�������##�*����/"��$,�#"��!��/"���
�
����.�0��/���&�0�$"'� �#������$�"#���-�#�%"�"!�� �0/�#/�-�&��*�0"�./���&��$,"' "�
�-)�#� �������$$����������/"������� ��" +��/"���'�*./�#������ ����*-%"'��!�
-�3�'�)�)"���" �#�''&��.�/�2�'$�* �#/"-�#�� ��/'�*./��/"���'�*./��

�
���B �/"���*�#���)'�)� " ����#�����*"����* "���'� (:%� "$��))'��#/����-���.��.��/"�

'� (��'� ��.�!'�-�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� �����/"���'�*./�����'� (�%� "$��))'��#/�
���( �����/"���("��/��$��!����","����#�*���&�/�))"���.�0/�#/�� ����#���'� �������
/�2�'$�%� "$��))'��#/�0/�#/����( �����/"�#�� ">*"�#" ��!�����##�$"���","���
/�))"���.����/"��","���!��##")��%�"�'� (� /�*�$�����"5#""$��;�#/��#" ������-�������
7#)-8���$�,�$*���'� (��!�$"��/���$��/� ��","��� �* "$�����  "  �0/"�/"'��/"�"!!"#���!���
$","��)-"���)'�)� ���� � �.��!�#��������!!"#���.���$�,�$*����##�$"�����'� (����/� �* " �
�/"� �-"��))'��#/�����  "  ��.��/"�'� (��'� ��.�!'�-�/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� �� �!�'�
��')�'� ���$�� ���-"�/�$���.&��/������������'�*./���*�#���/� �$","��)"$����
)�'��"' /�)�0��/��/"���
��,"'�-��&�&"�' ��=*'�/"'�%�#(.'�*�$����������1 �
�))'��#/����'� (���$�.*�$��#"�����/"��))'��#/����$","��)-"����))��#����� �
'"�����.����/�2�'$�* ��� ��������� �� �)'�,�$"$��/'�*./��/"��������.�!�'�	� (����A��

�
���� � �$� #*  "$����)���#&����E4���,"')����F�/���"�������')�'�+��/"��)"'�������!��/"�

��')�'��)'" "�� ���'� (�������������$����*%��#���!"�&�G��"�7��G8�/� �%""��
" ��%�� /"$�0/�#/�'"!�"#� ��/"��'"��-� ���!!"#�"$�%&��/"�-�,"-"�� ��!���'#'�!����
�*''"���&��/� �"5�"�$ ��,"'��� -�����'"���!��/"���'�*./+�%*������##�'$��#"�0��/�
�/"�'*�0�&�"5�"� ����)'�)� �� ��/"���G�-�&�%"�"5�"�$"$��##�'$��.�&����'"!�"#��
�/"���'."'��'"���!�'� (��  �#���"$�0��/��/"���')�'�+�����##�'$��#"�0��/�$"��������%"�
��#�*$"$�����/"����"�����#����� ���$��","��)-"�������."-"����������

�
����; �/"����������'��".�#�=���$�	� (��  "  -"���7�=	�8��","����0� �"�$�' "$�%&��/"�


�,�'��-"����."�#&���$�!����� "$�����;;E�����/� ���$�#��" �0/"'"��/"'"��'"�!���$�

                                                 
4 The Coal Authority (2010) Halton Coal Mining Referral Area 

www.coal.gov.uk/media/viewer/?mid=8101DCED-9DC1-65C0-02B4F431790CAF97 
5 HBC (2009) Planning for Risk Supplementary Planning Document 
6 HBC (2007) Strategic Flood Risk Assessment – Level 1 

APPENDIX APage 212



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<�

'� (��  *" �����/"���'�*./���$�)'�,�$" ���$"����"$���$�'�%* ���  "  -"����!��� �
"5�"�����$����*'"�����","�����=	��/� �%""��)'�$*#"$�����;��;E���$�)'�,�$" ���
("&� �*'#"��!���!�'-���������"� *'"��/���!*�*'"�$","��)-"���$�" �������("�)��#"�
����'"� �(��0�����%"����'� (��!�!���$��.+��'���#'"� "��/"�'� (��!�!���$��.�"� "0/"'"���
��&�$","��)-"����))��#�������������'"�����'� (�!'�-�!���$��.�0�����""$����%"�
 *))�'�"$�%&��� ��"��","��=���$�	� (��  "  -"���0/�#/� /�*�$�%*��$�*)���
��!�'-����������/"��=	���

�
����� �/"��=	���","����#��#"��'��" �����/"�("&���#����� ������-"$�*-��'�/�./�'� (��!�

!���$�'� (�� ��$"���!�"$�����/"��=	���","������/" "��'"� ��'"���������'��(�
79�$�" 8+���0"' ��'��(�79�$�" 8���$�C"#(0�#(��'��(�7	*�#�'�8����/"���*$&�
�� ��#�,"' ��/"�'� (��!���%'"�#/��!��/"����#/" �"'��/�)���������$��!���$���!���$��.�
!'�-��/"��"' "&�
 �*�'&�0/�#/���#�*$" �-�$"����.��!��/"���("�&�"!!"#� ��!� "���","��
'� "�����/"���#�$"�#"���$�!"'�#��&��!���!���$�","���������/"���-"��!�)*%��#�����+��/"�
!���$�'� (�-�$"����.�#������"$�0��/����/"��=	���","����$�#*-"��������0� �
�0�����.��))'�,���!'�-��/"�
�,�'��-"����."�#&���$�� � *#/+�!=���$�'� (�-�))��.�
!'�-�������1 ��=	���","����� ���#�*$"$�%"��0�������* �'��"��/"��'"� ����'� (�!'�-�
!���$��.�����/"���'�*./��

�

�
�
*���&$�,-���*�	��$.$��,�*������� !�	&$� �/�001"�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

                                                 
7 JBA Consulting (20110) Halton Strategic Flood Risk Assessment – Level 2 

APPENDIX APage 213



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
�<<

�

 

�


����2�*�	�34�����
�

�


��������
������
�

����4��"��,"'��.��* �����%�"��","��)-"���7���+��;;A8H�
����@4��","��)-"�������� ��%�"����$�7���+����;8H�����<4�
�������.���$�����*���������'���7���+��;;@8H�����@4��������.�
��$���� "�7���+����@8H�����A4��","��)-"�����$�=���$�	� (�
7���+��;�;8H���'#*��'�;�?�;�;�7�!�+��;�;8�

�

������3.��$��$��
�

��������'�)� "$���'�6*����&�����."-"����'"� ��'$"' �����$�
��7�;��;�8+�������������-����"$����$���'��".&�7�;;B:�;�<8+�
�������.�!�'�	� (����+����������'��".�#�=���$�	� (��  "  -"���
�","����7�;;E8+����������'��".�#�=���$�	� (��  "  -"����","����
7F��+���;��8�

�

��&��$�����#5$���.$ �
�

�����$����

�

����
&��&���$ ��
�


�,�'��-"�����$�	"."�"'���������������H�����!"'������� 

<�I�9��"'�6*����&�� B�I���'�6*����&�
@�I���-��"��/��."� ���I��"���/�

�

�	��#5$���.$ �
�

A�I�=���$�	� (� �
�

�	������'$�
�

�/� �)���#&�0����/�,"� �'��.�)� ���,"�%"�"!�� �!�'�"�,�'��-"����+�
 �#������$�"#���-�#� * �����%����&�!�#��' ��

APPENDIX APage 214



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	�
��
�

���� �������� !"#$�%!&�'�(�$�$)%!�%*"��+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�!$�)�%)�%��%-�.�%)��(%�,���'�
+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�'% !"!)!�$�+!""�*��/(�0!-�-�)����$�(��)�%)�+%$)��,���(%)�-�!��
�%")���!$�)(�%)�-�%�-�-!$/�$�-��'�!��%�$�$)%!�%*"��%�-���0!(��&��)%""1�%  �/)%*"��
+%12�*%"%� !�,�)���� ���&! 2�$� !%"�%�-���0!(��&��)%"����-$��'�)�����(��,�����
"%(,��/(�/�()!����'��%")��#$� �((��)�+%$)��,��$�)��"%�-'!""�������&�0��%+%1�'(�&�
"%�-'!""�-!$/�$%"�)�+%(-$�&�(��$�$)%!�%*"��&�%�$��'�-�%"!�,�+!)��+%$)�2�)�(��,��
/(�&�)!����'�+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�%�-�(� 1 "!�,2�*(!�,$�%�(�.�!(�&��)�)��-�0�"�/�
)���(%�,���'�'% !"!)!�$�(�.�!(�-�)��&��)�)�����(��,�#$����-$��

�

�
�
�����������������

� �
�������� !"�+!""�/(�&�)��$�$)%!�%*"��+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�!��%  �(-%� ��+!)��)���+%$)��
�!�(%( �12�)�3�
�

• !-��)!'1�%�-�$%'�,�%(-�4+��(��%//(�/(!%)�5�+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�$!)�$�!��%//(�/(!%)��
"� %)!��$�$�!)%*"��'�(���+�%�-����%� �-�+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�'% !"!)!�$�'�(�)���!-��)!'!�-�
+%$)��&%�%,�&��)����-$��'�)����!0�(/��"��!)1�	�,!���4��($�1$!-��%�-6��%")��5������
%""� %)!����'�$!)�$�%�-�-�)%!"�-�-�0�"�/&��)�&%�%,�&��)�/�"! !�$�+!""�*��/(�0!-�-�!��
)���7�!�)���($�1$!-��%�-��%")���8%$)��������0�"�/&��)��"%���� �&��)9��

�

• ��$�(��)�%)�)�����(��,�� %��&��)�)���!-��)!'!�-�+%$)��&%�%,�&��)����-$�%$�
-�)�(&!��-�)�(��,��)���7�!�)���($�1$!-��%�-��%")���8%$)�������(��.�!0%"��)9�

�

• �� ��(%,��,��-�-�$!,��!����+�-�0�"�/&��)�!���(-�(�)��&!�!&!$��+%$)�2�/(�&�)��)���
�$���'�(� 1 "�-�&%)�(!%"$�%�-2�)��'% !"!)%)��)��� �""� )!���%�-�(� 1 "!�,��'�+%$)�9��

�

• �� ��(%,��)���$�$)%!�%*"��)(%�$/�()��'�+%$)��%�-�/(�&�)���$���'�$!)��+%$)��
&%�%,�&��)�/"%�$9�%�-2�

�

• ��$�(��)�%)�+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�'% !"!)!�$�%(��-�0�"�/�-�+�!"$)�&!�!&!$!�,�)���!&/% )$����
)�����0!(��&��)�%�-� �&&��!)!�$��'�)�����(��,���

�

�
�����������
��

�
���� 
�(�/�%��"�,!$"%)!��2�,�0�(�&��)�)%(,�)$2�!� (�%$�-�+%$)��,���(%)!��2�)������-�'�(�

!&/(�0�-���0!(��&��)%"�/(�)� )!��2�%�-�(!$!�,�/�*"! ��:/� )%)!��$�%""�-(!0��)���
���-�'�(�(%/!-� �%�,�$�!����(�%//(�% ��)��&%�%,!�,�+%$)������/%()! �"%(2�
��($�1$!-��4)����!0�(/��"��!)1�	�,!��5�4��($�1$!-��%�-��%")��5����-$�)��(�-� ��
!)$�(�"!%� �����"%�-'!""�*1�/(�0!-!�,�%")�(�%)!0��'% !"!)!�$�'�(�(� 1 "!�,2�(�/(� �$$!�,2�
)(�%)&��)�%�-�-!$/�$%"���)�+!""�*���� �$$%(1�)��(�'�(��)��/(�&�)��%""�'�(&$��'�
+%$)��(�-� )!�����$�(!�,�)�%)��%")��#$�(�$!-��)$�%(��%+%(���'�)��!(�(�$/��$!*!"!)1�
'�(�&!�!&!$!�,�+%$)���

�
���� ������($�1$!-��7�!�)���($�1$!-��%�-��%")���8%$)����0�"�/&��)��"%���� �&��)�

47�!�)�8%$)�����5�+!""�/(�0!-��/�"! 1�,�!-%� ��$)%�-%(-$�'�(�+%$)��%�-�%""� %)��
$!)�$�'�(�+%$)��/�(/�$�$�����/%)!%"��)(%)�,1�%�-��!)�$�	�/�()2��$$��$�%�-��/)!��$�
	�/�()�%�-�%��(�'�((�-��/)!��$�	�/�()��%0��*����/(�/%(�-�'�(�)���7�!�)�8%$)��

                                                 
1 HBC (2010) State of the Borough Report 

APPENDIX APage 215



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������

�

 
��;

������)"!�!�,�)���0%(!��$�$)(%)�,!�$�%�-��/)!��$�%0%!"%*"��%�-�(� �&&��-!�,�%�
��*<	�,!��%"��/%)!%"��)(%)�,1�������/%)!%"��)(%)�,1�!$�%�(�$��( ��(� �0�(1<"�-�
$)(%)�,1�+�! ��%!&$�)��&%:!&!$��)���%*!"!)1�)��% �!�0��$�"'<$�''! !�� 1�!��+%$)��
&%�%,�&��)���%")��#$�%//(�% ��)��!&/"�&��)!�,�)���/(!� !/"�$��'�$�$)%!�%*"��
+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�'�(�%""�+%$)��$)(�%&$�)%=�$�!�)��%  ���)�%""��'�)���$�$)%!�%*"��
+%$)��&%�%,�&��)�/(!� !/"�$�%�-�+!""���$�(��)�%)�%""�'% !"!)!�$�%(��-�0�"�/�-�!��"!���
+!)��)���/(!� !/"�$��'�)���+%$)���!�(%( �1��

�
���� ��!$�%//(�% ��!$�!��%  �(-%� ��+!)���%")��#$����! !/%"�8%$)���%�%,�&��)�

�)(%)�,1��%�-�(� �,�!$�$�)���!&/�()%� ���'�)���$�*<(�,!��%"�%//�()!��&��)��'�
+%$)��%�-�)�(��,��)���7�!�)�8%$)������+!""�/(�0!-��%")�(�%)!0��'% !"!)!�$�'�(�
(� 1 "!�,2�(�/(� �$$!�,2�)(�%)&��)�%�-�-!$/�$%"��'��%")��#$�+%$)����

�
�

 

                                                 
2 HBC (2008) Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Halton 

�

���������	 ����!��
�

�

"���
�����
�����
�

����>3��"%��!�,�'�(���$)%!�%*"��8%$)���%�%,�&��)�4���2�
�>>;5����

�

�
�����#�$������
�

���! !/%"�8%$)���%�%,�&��)��)(%)�,1�'�(��%")���4���2��>>?59�
�)%)���'�)�����(��,��	�/�()�4���2��>�>59�
&�(,!�,�7�!�)�
��($�1$!-��%�-��%")���8%$)�������

�

��%���&����'(����#���
�

���

�

�����%�
%�������
�


�0!(��&��)�%�-�	�,���(%)!���!���%")���

��@��"!&%)����%�,��� A�@�8%$)��
�

�	��'(����#���
� ��@��%�-�B�%"!)1� ���@���%")��
�

�	�����
)��
�

��$)%!�%*"��+%$)��-!$/�$%"�&�)��-$�$���"-�/(�0!-��/�$!)!0��
*���'!)$�'�(�$� !%"�%�-�� ���&! �'% )�($���!0�($!����'�+%$)��
'(�&�"%�-'!""�$���"-�"�%-�)��/�$!)!0����0!(��&��)%"�'% )�($��

APPENDIX APage 216



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�� �������	
��
���
�

���� ������ !�!"#$��!�#�"!$�%��&#'��((��(�)�!*�!��%*�(��+� ���%�# �,�����)$���!!��)�� �
��-�.�)���� !�)$�)�"�%��/���%�+� &/.��)�&0�)$��1"� )���+��&�.��)���� )&��
�&�&"($��&"�#� ��!��������� !�� �����(��")$&��),�$�!�)$����!/&�!�1� �),�)&�/ ���0&��
��!)��%,���%��%�2"�)��!"// ,�&0��((��(�)��.����� !�)&���!"���/��.��,���!&"�#�!�
����.���)����%�0&��0")"���(�����)�&�!*�.���.�!��/&)��)�� ���+��&�.��)� ��./�#)!�&0�
!"#$�%�+� &/.��)!���%�)&�!"//&�)��#&�&.�#�(�&-)$���

�

�
����������������������

�
�&�.���.�!��)$�����%�0&��.����� !��3)��#)�&�*�)$��"!��&0���#,# �%���%�!�#&�%��,��((��(�)�!�
�#�&!!�)$���&�&"($�-�  �1����#&"��(�%��

�
� )$&"($�)$�������� �.�)�%�.����� ���!&"�#�!����)$���&�&"($*������� !���0�("��%��(�����!���%�
������ !�����!�&0�����#$�0&��!��%���%�(��+� ���!&"�#�!�-�  �1���%��)�0��%���%�/�&)�#)�%�)&�
/��+��)�)$����!)��� �!�)�&����$����)���  &#�)�&�!���%���+� &/.��)�����(�.��)�����-�  �
�  &#�)������!�&0�.����� !���!&"�#�!���%�!�)�&")�)$��#��)�����0&��)$����/&)��)�� ��3)��#)�&���
�

�
��������������

�
���� ������ !��& �#,��)�)�.��)��4�� �����(���%������� !�5����6���2"���!������� !�

� �����(��")$&��)��!�)&�/ ���0&��.����� !�-�)$���)$�����%.���!)��)�+��1&"�%����!����
��2"���.��)�&0�������!�)&��%��)�0,�����!�&0�!���#$*�/��0����%�����!*���%�!�)��!/�#�0�#�
�  &#�)�&�!�0&��0")"���.����� !�%�+� &/.��)��!�-�  ��!�!�0�("��%��(�����!�-$����
.����� !��3�!)�����

�
���� ������ !�������0���)����!&"�#����%�#���&� ,�1��-&�'�%�-$����)$�,��3�!)���$�!�

.���!�)$�)�/&!!�1 ���3)��#)�&��!�)�!����� �.�)�%���$��������#"����) ,��&�&/���)�&�� �

.����� �!�)�!����)$���&�&"($���%�)$�����!� �.�)�%��+�%��#��&0�/��+�&"!��#)�+�),��
��0&�.�)�&��$� %�1,�)$���&� ��")$&��),��%%�)�&��  ,���%�#�)�!�)$�)�)$���������&�
!"�0�#��#&� ���!��+�!����)$���&�&"($����$����1�����!�&���)"%,�&�������� �� �����(�
������!�,!�%���$�!�!$&-��)$�)��� )&��%&�!��&)�#&�)������!�(��0�#��)��.&"�)�&0�$�($�
2"� �),�.����� !���&-�+��*�)$��!)"%,�%&�!��%��)�0,�0&"��/&)��)�� �!�)�!�&0�!��%���%�
(��+� �.����� ���!&"�#�!�-$�#$�!$&" %�1��/�&)�#)�%�)&�/��+��)�)$����!)��� �!�)�&���
�$����)���  &#�)�&�!���%���+� &/.��)�����(�.��)�����-�  ��%��)�0,������� !�
��0�("��%��(�����!���%������� !�����!�&0�����#$�����##&�%��#��-�)$�)$����1���
��!�&��!)"%,���%�&)$����//�&/���)��!)"%��!*���%�!�)�&")�)$��%�)�� �%�#��)�����)&�1��
.�)�1,�/�&/&!� !�0&��.����� !��3)��#)�&����

�
���7 8&��)$�����!&�!�!)�)�%��1&+�*��� )&����%�)$��-�%�����+��/&& ���),�	�(�&������

$�($ ,��� ���)�&���./&�)!�&0�$�($�2"� �),��((��(�)��0&��"!�����)$��#&�!)�"#)�&��
��%"!)�,���)��!�)$���0&���+�)� �)&���%"#���� ���#��&�� ��%9-&��.����� !��3)��#)�&��1,�
��#&"��(��(������#���!�����)$���.&"�)�&0���#,# �%���%�!�#&�%��,��((��(�)�!�"!�%�
�����-�#&�!)�"#)�&����$����#&�/&��)�&��&0���!&"�#���00�#���)�%�!�(����%�
#&�!)�"#)�&��)�#$��2"�!�-�  �� !&�1��+�)� ����.���.�!�%�)$�����%�0&��.����� !�

                                                 
1 The Coal Authority (20110) Surface Mining Coal Resource Areas 

www.coal.gov.uk/media/viewer/?mid=81BD1CC7-EDD1-8D6B-57E1466510C3C7D9 
2
 Urban Vision (2008) Mineral Planning in Merseyside 

APPENDIX APage 217



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
��:

�3)��#)�&����%�!$&" %�1��/"�!"�%�����##&�%��#��-�)$����;4��"!)����1 ��
��+� &/.��)���%�� �.�)���$��(���

�
���< �$&" %�)$��!"// ,�&0��((��(�)��.����� !�0�&.�)$���&�&"($�1�#&.��&0��#&�&.�#�

�./&�)��#����%�1�#&.����#�!!��,�)&�#&�)��1")��)&-��%!�.��)��(�)$����(�&�� �
�//&�)�&�.��)�&0��((��(�)�!�/�&+�!�&��*�.����� ��3)��#)�&��.�,�1�#&.����#�!!��,��
��&/&!� !�0&��.����� !��3)��#)�&��-�  �1����2"���%�)&���!"���)$�)���+��&�.��)� *�
!&#�� ���%��#&�&.�#��!!"�!���%��./�#)!�����0"  ,�#&�!�%���%���%�-$�����%+��!��
�00�#)!������%��)�0��%*�)$�,������00�#)�+� ,�.���(�%���%�.�)�(�)�%���

�
�

�

                                                 
3 CLG (2009) The National and Regional Guidelines for Aggregates Provision in England 2005-2020 

�

���	��� �
��!��"��
�

�


���������������
�

����4��� �+����(��"!)����1 ����+� &/.��)�5���*��==<6>�����4�
� �����(���%������� !�5���*��==�6>�����4��&�)�&  ��(���%�
��)�(�)��(�)$��
�+��&�.��)� �
00�#)!�&0������� �
3)��#)�&�����

�( ��%�5���*��==<6>���)�&�� ���%�	�(�&�� ��"�%� ���!�0&��
�((��(�)�!���&+�!�&�����
�( ��%��==<9�=�=�5���*��==;6�

�

�������#�$������
�

������ !�� �����(�������!�,!�%��5��1�����!�&�*��==�6��

�

������%����&'����#���
�

���

�

����������������
�


�+��&�.��)���%�	�(�����)�&������� )&��

�

�
��&'����#���
�

��?�����)�(��@����%!#�/�� :�?����%�A"� �),�

�

�
������(��
�

������ ��3)��#)�&��.�,��./�#)�&��)$��#" )"�� �$���)�(����%�
 ��%!#�/���0�!�)�!������&)���!)&��%�&�#���3)��#)�&��$�!�)�'���
/ �#����&-�+��*�)$�!��./�#)��!�.�)�(�)�%�)&���#��)�����3)��)�1,���
0"�)$���.��!"������)$��/& �#,*�-$�#$���#&"��(�!�)$��"!��&0�
��#,# �%���%�!�#&�%��,��((��(�)�!��#�&!!�)$���&�&"($�)&�
.���.�!��)$�����%�0&��.����� !��3)��#)�&���

APPENDIX APage 218



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
����������������������������������������������������

�

 
���

�

 
 

������������� �����!"��

 

���#������#�$�
	#%"&#'����(�&#'���)*"&&"���

��!�*#���
�

�

�

�((#�'"!#&�
�

APPENDIX APage 219



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
���

MONITOR LINES (Halton; Runcorn; Widnes and Hale)

2768

-594

3362

-1000

-500

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2
0
1
0
/1

1

2
0
1
1
/1

2

2
0
1
2
/1

3

2
0
1
3
/1

4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

2
0
1
5
/1

6

2
0
1
6
/1

7

2
0
1
7
/1

8

2
0
1
8
/1

9

2
0
1
9
/2

0

2
0
2
0
/2

1

2
0
2
1
/2

2

2
0
2
2
/2

3

2
0
2
3
/2

4

2
0
2
4
/2

5

2
0
2
5
/2

6

2
0
2
6
/2

7

HALTON Monitor WIDNES / HALE Monitor RUNCORN Monitor

���������	�

��
���������������
�
�
���������� !"#����"���� #$�%�������#�&'("������)��������� �"(��"��"'���*� �+�
,��"# ���'��"��� (�#�&'("������)�����*� � ������%"�%�������+"-"(�'&"���� ��"��� ��
�"�����������(�#.����/���%���+"&����� �"���%"���0����"��� �+�����+�"����,��%"�
�-"� ((�%���������� �"�.�����%"����"���� �"�.� �+�'��-�+"�� �'�1"�,�(����(����
&�������'"�,��& �#"� � ������"2���"&"���/�
�
3����"��,��&��%"�������'�"�"���'��"��� (�+"-"(�' 0("� �+�+"(�-"� 0("���&0"���,�
+1"((�����0.�." �������+�-�+� (����"�/����'+ �"+� ��� ((.4��%"������������0!"#�����
��+"'"�+"����#�����.�0"����'��+�#"+����#����(� �����1��%��%"�+"-"(�'&"���
#�&&����.4� �+�1%�(����%"�,����"���"'�"�"����%"�'��"��� (���&0"���,��������% ��#��(+�
0"�'��-�+"+������+�-�+� (����"�4��������������"�+"+����0"� �,��"# ����,� #�� (�
#�&'("������ #������%"�������%� �� �1%�("/���
�
�%"��� !"#����"����#(�+"�+ � �����1��& ���&" ���"�5�
�/ �%"���������������%�1��%�1�& �.�+1"((����� 0�-"����0"(�1��%"�'( ��"+�� �"�

�,�%���������''(.� �� �.���"���&"/�
6/ �%"���������������+�# �"���%"���&0"���,�#�&'("�������"2���"+����" #%�." �����

 ++�"��� �.�'��!"#�"+��%���, ((�������'(��������''(./���%������# (#�( �"+�0.�
��0�� #����� #�� (� �+�'��!"#�"+�'��"��� (�#�&'("������,��&��%"�#�&�( ��-"�'�(�#.�
� ��"��,���" #%�." �4�+�-�+�����%"� ��1"��0.�7�)�%"���&0"���,�." ��� ((�1"+����
 ++�"��� �.�- �� �#"*� �+� ++��������%"�'�(�#.�� ��"��,����% ��." �/���"�#"� �
� � �"�(��"� 0�-"��%"�'�(�#.�� ��"����+�# �"�� ��%���, ((����,��"# �����''(.� �+� �
� � �"�(��"�0"(�1���+�# �"�� ����'(��������''(./���

�
��� ++�����4� ��� !"#���.�# ��0"�#�" �"+��%�1�����%"�#�&�( ��-"�'��'��������,� #�� (�
 �+�'��!"#�"+���''(.�+"(�-"�"+������"-����(.��"-"(�'"+�� �+�)���*/�
�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX APage 220



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
�89

TRAJECTORY MANAGE LINES (Halton, Runcorn, Widnes / Hale)

-600

-400

-200

0

200

400

600

800

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
2
0
/2
1

2
0
2
1
/2
2

2
0
2
2
/2
3

2
0
2
3
/2
4

2
0
2
4
/2
5

2
0
2
5
/2
6

2
0
2
6
/2
7

POLICY Target Manage Line RUNCORN Manage WIDNES Manage

Housing Trajectory (HALTON)

-200

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

POLICY Target Supply (PDL) Supply (Green) Manage Line

POLICY Target 400 400 400 400 400 600 600 600 600 600 500 500 500 500 500 500 500

Supply (PDL) 143 161 387 382 600 158 203 242 343 343 172 164 274 150 130 116 425

Supply (Green) 108 96 270 548 670 445 602 908 1077 871 414 254 289 243 174 100 219

Manage Line 400 457 512 467 368 401 407 373 270 113 -103 -114 -91 -96 -68 -22 41

2010

/11

2011

/12

2012

/13

2013

/14

2014

/15

2015

/16

2016

/17

2017

/18

2018

/19

2019

/20

2020

/21

2021

/22

2022

/23

2023

/24

2024

/25

2025

/26

2026

/27

BROWNFIELD (PDL) TRAJECTORY (Halton, Runcorn, Widnes / Hale)

38%

0%

50%

100%

2
0
1
0
/1

1

2
0
1
1
/1

2

2
0
1
2
/1

3

2
0
1
3
/1

4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

2
0
1
5
/1

6

2
0
1
6
/1

7

2
0
1
7
/1

8

2
0
1
8
/1

9

2
0
1
9
/2

0

2
0
2
0
/2

1

2
0
2
1
/2

2

2
0
2
2
/2

3

2
0
2
3
/2

4

2
0
2
4
/2

5

2
0
2
5
/2

6

2
0
2
6
/2

7

%PDL HALTON WIDNES RUNCORN
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

APPENDIX APage 221



��������

�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�

���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
���

���������	�


����
��
��������������

�

�

APPENDIX APage 222



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
����

���������	�

�����
�����
�
���
��
�
�� ��������������� �!"�#��$�%��%��&����#�#��#�''�"�!%&�����#�%&((�%%)&''*�����+�'�(��%�#������������������!���*�!���,������"+'�"����-���
!(��*�!��

������&�(�'�+��-&(�%�!�����&!'������������	�+�������%+�(�)�(!''*�(�!�������+�����%%��)������� �!�-�����%&((�%%��)���%�+'!������+�'�(��%���.�����
+�'�(��%�!�������!(���/��������-�%���-��&�(�"�0�����"������������+����#�''�!(��!%�!�+��"+�����(��%�-���#�������)&�������&�-!�(���%����-�-����!�
�&++'�"���!�*��'!��������(&"�����������"!���������)�����+�'�(*�!++��!(�����-%����,����/��#�-�!�-�&+-!��-����!���������/�'�+"�����'!����(&"����
1���2����������������+��-&(������)�������������!���*0��������&!'������������	�+����(�!���-������"+'�"���!������)�+�'�(��%�)��"���������!�*�
��/�'�+"�����'!�����%��!'���3%��� ����#%0��������&!'������������	�+����#�''��4+!�-����"�������+�����%%���#!�-%�����-�'�/��*��)�������%����!�-�
���!����(��,5�(��/�%�!%�%����&��������%���������!���*�!�-������"+'�"���!������)�!�-�+�'�(��%�#������!''��)��!'���3%����%��

�

�� .�������!�-%�����"+'�"���!�����!�-�-�'�/��*��)�������������!���*�+�'�(��%�������&�(�'�#�''�+��!(��/�'*�"!�!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�����&���!�
-�/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��!�-�!''�(!���'!�-�����&���!��!++��+��!�����������!'���3%��� ���������&�(�'�#�''�%��$����#��$�#����+!�����%�!�-�
'!�-��#���%����+&�%&��-�'�/��*�!�!��%��������%����!�-����!����(��,5�(��/�%��)�����+'!�0���('&-������������!��%,&�*����!����(������!�-�.�%��	&�(������
.�����%+�(�)�(��� �-�(&"���%�!�����6&���-����-�'�/��������,5�(��/�%��)�!�+�'�(*0����%��%�%�!��-�,�'�#���������"+'�"���!�����!�-�-�'�/��*�%�(����0�
!'���%�-������'�$�'*�!-�+�����-!����)�����-�(&"�����

�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�����&",����)���#����"�%��-�'�/���-�7�� �889:889;88�������#���"�%�+���!��&"�1���
!((��-!�(��#������'�/!���+�'�(*�+����-20�
(�����,&��������<888���"�%��/�������+'!��+����-����
�8�=�
����&�-�����'�(*��%>�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��


"+'�*"�����!�-��-�'�/���-�� ����&�-�����'�(*�����
�!������)��<;�!��)�'!�-�!/!�'!,'��)����"+'�*"����
-�/�'�+"�����/�������+'!��+����-�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
	��!�'� '���%+!(��-�'�/���-�� ;?0888%6"��)����!�'�-�/�'�+"����!(��%%�����>�

(�����%�
����&�-�����'�(*���;�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��

����
�!'���3%��+!��!'�
���!���*�

��'�/��*��)�-�/�'�+"����#����������@�*����!%��)�
��!����

�&",����)�+�'!������!++'�(!����%�(�"����)��#!�-�
#������@�*����!%��)���!�������!((��-!�(��#����
%��!���*�)�������!��!�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)����%�)��A�

• �!��%,&�*�

• 	&�(����.!���)�����

• .�%��B!�$�

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

2
3



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��>�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�

• ���-&(������)���/�'�+"����B���)%�!%�
��(�%%!�*�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(���
��/�'�+"�����������������B�'�� 	�%���(�������!'�-�/�'�+"����#����������������B�'�0�

#���������4(�+������)��C���1%&,5�(����������
�''�(!����%����2����)�''�#����!���/��#��)�������
B�'��,�&�-!���%�1%&,5�(�����������''�(!����%�
���2%��&'-�'!�-����-����,����'�!%�-����!((��-!�(��
#�������!�-���:�
����&�-�����'�(*���:�

• ������B�'��	�/��#�!%��/�-��(��,!%��
)���������''�(!����%�����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
!''�(!����%�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��

�!���!���!�,!'!�(�������&%����(�"+'�����%�,��#����
	&�(����!�-�.�-��%�

�/��!����)�;?A�>�	&�(���A�.�-��%�%+'���)�����#�
��&%����!�-��"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
�"+��/�"���������/��!''�-�+��/!�����%(����!%�!��
��-�(!������)�D&!'��*��)���)��

����"+��/�"��������!'���3%��!�$��)��?>8���"�%��
-�+��/�-�'�(!'�!&������*��������(�&���*�1���0�
�8�88?2�

�������!�����#���������&%�!��!,'��
��""&���*����!���*�1�8��7�8�:2�

�&%�!���-��(���"�(����#��� �"+��/�"�����������
(���"�(��(��/��*��!������
�!'����1?���E�����88<9�80������F��G2�

������!�����#���������&%�!��!,'����""&���*�
���!���*�1�8��7�8�:2�

	�"�-�!������)�(���!"��!��-�'!�-�� ����%���"�-�!��-����-�'�/���,���)��%�����!'���� ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��

����
�&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����
����(�+'�%�

	�-&(��������(!�,����"�%%���%�� 	�-&(�������������"�%%���%�+���(!+��!�,*��E�+���
!��&"�1B!%�'�����)�<��������%�+���(!+��!�����88=2F��

���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����!�-��'�"!�����!��������

�&++'*��)�!/!�'!,'����&%����'!�-� �!���!���!�;�*�!��%&++'*��)�-�'�/��!,'����&%���A�

• B���&��#�-��

• ���	&�(����

• ���.�-��%�9��!'��

• ���&!'�&+-!��%�����������!����(���&%����
�!�-��/!�'!,�'��*��%%�%%"����1�����2�

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8���

��>�
��&%�����&++'*�
!�-���(!����!'�
���������%�

��&%������!5�(���*���('&-����������&%����(�"+'������ �889:889;88�������#���"�%�+���!��&"�1���
!((��-!�(��#������'�/!���+�'�(*�+����-20�
(�����,&��������<=0888���"�%����!'��/�������+'!��
+����-�����8�=:�

���&���-�(&"���%�#������������ �

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8��������%&���
!-�6&!���%���%��4�%�����"!���!���

                                                 
1
 Economically Active – Halton www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038432037/subreports/ea_time_series/report.aspx  

2
 CO2 levels per capita by local authority are available at www.decc.gov.uk/en/content/cms/statistics/indicators/ni186/ni186.aspx  

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

2
4



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
����

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

��&%����'!�-�%&++'*�

• ���&!'�&+-!��%��)����������"�������
��&%����'!�-�%&++'*�

���%%���&%����(�"+'�����%�����!'����� � ��
���(���!����)���#�!�-�(��/����-�-#�''���%����
+��/��&%'*�-�/�'�+�-�'!�-�

�/��!����)��8E��/�������+'!��+����-� ���&!'�&+-!��%��)����!����(���&%�����!�-�
�/!�'!,�'��*��%%�%%"�����1�����2����
"���������&%����'!�-�%&++'*�

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8��������%&���
,��#�)��'-�!-�6&!���%���%��4�%�����
"!���!�����&%����'!�-�%&++'*�

• ���&!'�&+-!��%��)����!����(���&%����
�!�-��/!�'!,�'��*��%%�%%"�����1�����2�
���"�������,��#�)��'-���&%����'!�-�
%&++'*�

���(���!����)���#�-#�''���%�(�"+'���-�!��'�%%���!��>8�
-#�''���%�+�����(�!���1-+�2�,��#����>87;8-+��!�-�
!,�/��;8-+���

����"&"�-��%��*��)�>8-+�0���%�������!�"���"&"�
-��%��*��)��8-+�����+��4�"��*������#��!�-���(!'��
(�""&���*�)!(�'����%�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
-�'�/�����6&���-�-��%����%�

• ����&!'�&+-!��%��)���&%���������������
��+���������(��-�-��%����%����
(�"+'���-���%�-����!'�%(��"�%�

����������/!�'!,'��%&++'*��)��"+'�*"����'!�-� �!���!���;�*�!��%&++'*��)�%���%�!/!�'!,'��)���
�"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����H�1;�*�!��%&++'*�%��&'-�
(����%+��-����+��/��&%��!$�7&+��!��%2�

• ��;�*�!��%&++'*��6&!��%����?��>;�!��)�
�"+'�*"����'!�-�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8���#��(��#�''�
!''�(!���%���%�)����"+'�*"����
-�/�'�+"����!%����*�!�����6&���-�

• ����&!'�&+-!��%��)�
"+'�*"����
B!%�'����	�+����!�-�"�����������)�
+'!������!++'�(!����%�

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����
�"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����+'!������
!++'�(!����%�

����

"+'�*"����
�!�-��&++'*�!�-�
��(!����!'�
���������%�

���!'��!"�&����)�!--�����!''*�(�"+'���-��"+'�*"����
)'���%+!(��,*��*+��!�-�'!�-��*+��

���!'�B�!20�,2�(20�B��!�-�B=0�-�/�'�+"�����
#����

• �=8E��)��"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"�������,��
-�'�/���-����,��#�)��'-�'!�-�

• ���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��
����"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����+'!������
!++'�(!����%�!�-�+�������%!������)�
,��#�)��'-�'!�-�)���-�/�'�+"����

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

2
5



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��;�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

���!'�!"�&����)��"+'�*"����)'���%+!(�����+��/��&%'*�
-�/�'�+�-�'!�-�H�,*��*+��

� ��


"+'�*"�����!�-��/!�'!,'��,*��*+��
�

���&!'�&+-!��%��)�
"+'�*"����B!%�'����
	�+����


(���"�(��(��/��*�	!��� � ��
��������%��!����%� � ��
��#�B&%���%%�	���%��!�����	!��%� � ��
����"�%��'�%%��)�'!�-�#�������4�%������"+'�*"����!��!%�
)������7�"+'�*"����&%�%�
�"�&����)��"+'�*"����'!�-�'�%�������%�-����!'�
-�/�'�+"�����

• ����'�%%��)�'!�-�)������7�"+'�*"����&%�%�
#�������4�%������"+'�*"����!��!%�

• ���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��
����"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����+'!������
!++'�(!����%������%&������*�!���'�(!��-�
#������-�%���!��-��"+'�*"����!��!%�

�"�&����)�(�"+'���-����!�'0���))�(��!�-�'��%&���
-�/�'�+"���������#��(�����%�

���!'���"+'�����%��)����!�'�1���/�����(�����-%0�
��"+!��%������-%�!�-�	��!�'�.!����&%���2�
)'���%+!(�����'����#������6&���-�)'���%+!(��!%�%����&��
���+�'�(*�

• ���-&(�����!�-��!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8���#��(��#�''�
!''�(!���%���%�)������!�'�-�/�'�+"����
#��������*�!�����6&���-�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)������!�'�
-�/�'�+"�������%�����+��+�%!'%����
��#���������'�(!����%�

��"+'�����%��)�"!�����#��(������&%�%�#������
-�%���!��-�(�����%0�,*��*+��

�88E��)���0���0��>0���0��;0�B�!2�!�-����
(�"+'�����%�#����������B���&��3%���#���(�����%0�
������%���(���������!�-������,�&����-�������%�

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�	&�(����
�'-���#������,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�.�-��%�
��#�������������,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��!'������!�
��#�������������,*��8���

��;�
�����#��$��)�
������%�)���
�!'����
��

���(���!����)����!�'�-�/�'�+"��������-��7�)7(���������
�&�7�)7(������'�(!����%�

����"�%��-�/�'�+"�����&�%�-���)�-�%���!��-���#��
������%�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�.�-��%���#��
�����������,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8���#��(��#�''�
!''�(!���%���%�)������!�'�-�/�'�+"����
#����������-�%���!��-���#��������%�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)������!�'�
-�/�'�+"�������%�����+��+�%!'%����

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

2
6



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��:�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

��#���������'�(!����%�
�&",����)�/!(!�����#���������&����%�#��������#��
�������'�(!����%�

��(��!%��/!(!�(*�'�/�'%�*�!�����*�!�� • ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)������!�'�
-�/�'�+"�������%�����+��+�%!'%����
��#���������'�(!����%�

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
������&�(�'3%���#����������!�!�������
"�������!�-�"!�!���/!(!�(*�'�/�'%�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)��!'������!�
��#�������������,*�8���

��#������,�&����-�(�����%� ���!������)���#������,�&����-�(�����%�!�A�

• �+����	�($%�

• �!�-*"����

• �!��%,&�*�

• 	&�(����.!���)�����

• .�%��B!�$�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)���'�/!���
���%�)���!��!%�(��(����-�����&�-������
-�%����!�-�'�(!������)�����
�����,�&����-�(�����%�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%����
�%�!,'�%�������,�&����-�(�����%�!�-�
)���&%�%���������

������''����-�/�'�+"����#����������������B�'�� 	�%���(�������!'�-�/�'�+"����#����������������B�'�0�
#���������4(�+������)��C���1%��&'-�'!�-�,����"�/�-�
)��"�����������B�'������&�������������''�(!����%�
���2����)�''�#����!���/��#��)�������B�'��
,�&�-!���%�%��&'-�'!�-����-����,����'�!%�-����
!((��-!�(��#��������

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������''�(!����%�
!�-���/�'�+"�����!�!��"��������,*�
�8������(��%�-�����"�/!'��)�'!�-�)��"�����
������B�'�����)!(�'��!����4+!�%�����)��C����

��:�
������B�'��
��

������B�'��	�/��#��������%� �!���!���!�;�*�!��%&++'*��)�'!�-�)���,������&%����!�-�
�"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"�������,����	&�(����!�-�
.�-��%�9��!'��

• ������B�'��	�/��#���������-�#����!�;�*�!��
%&++'*��)�'!�-�(!�����,��-�"��%��!��-�)�������
%&,%�6&����>�*�!�%�!�-�!��!'����!��/��%�'&�����
�%�����)����(�"����

�����������;�*�!��%&++'*��)�'!�-�)�����&%����
-�/�'�+"�������'����#����+�'�(*���>�����&���
������

�����-&(������)�!�����"��)�����(������8:�(�!���%�!�-�9�
���!���""&���*���)�!%��&(�&�����/*�1���2�)����!'����

�-�+������)���'�/!����� �-�(&"����1������!������
�(��-&'��!�-�9�����'!�������,'��!����%����2�,*��8���

• ���-&(������)�)&�������&�-!�(�����
%�(&�����+'!�������!�������&��������� �

��?�
��)�!%��&(�&���
���/�%����� �"�&����)�+'!�������!���%�(&��-� �'!�������!���%�&�������!''�!++'�(!,'��-�/�'�+"���%� • ���-&(������)�)&�������&�-!�(�����

%�(&�����+'!�������!�������&��������� �

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

2
7



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��?�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������/�'�+���
������,&����%�����

��'�/��*��)�+��5�(�%�-��!�'�-�#������!%%�(�!��-�
��)�!%��&(�&����'!��

����'����#������"�%(!'�%������)�!%��&(�&����'!�� • ���-&(������)�)&�������&�-!�(�����
%�(&�����+'!�������!�������&��������� �

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
%�(&�����-���(��+��/�%�����)�
��)�!%��&(�&���!�-�9����(�����,&����%�

• .��$�������+!�����%��+�#����������
��&�(�'�-�+!��"���%�!�-�����
-�/�'�+"������-&%��*����%��$�)&�-����
)�����(�%%!�*���)�!%��&(�&���

��'�/��*�D&!����*��)��"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����!������
%����

���!'��"+'�*"�����++���&�����%��)�'!�-�!��!��%�
<:8�!�

.��$����#�����������!����(���/�'�+"����
�!���������-�'�/��������B�� ��'-�%����!�-�
!%%�(�!��-���!-�!�-��!�'���)�!%��&(�&���

C�,%������!��-�,*�����%����!�-�+��(���!���)�''�-�,*�
�!'���3%���%�-���%�

���!'���&",����)���#�5�,%������!��-�

• :8E����,��)�''�-�,*��!'���3%���%�-���%�
• ��$�*�-�'�/��*�!���(*�#�''�,���!'����

���+'�������C�,%����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��%&���!����"���%�!������+'!(�����
��6&����'�(!'���%�-���%����,��
(��%�-���-�)��%��)����"+'�*"����
�++���&�����%��

��'�/��*��)�.�%��������$�	�!-� ���/�%�����)���)�!%��&(�&���H����'����#������"�%(!'�%�
���������)�!%��&(�&����'!��

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!�*�)&������+'!������!++'�(!����%�
��(�%%!�*�+������������(��%��&(������)�
������!-�

��'�/��*��)���#��!�'�%�-���%� ���/�%�����)���)�!%��&(�&���H����'����#������"�%(!'�%�
���������)�!%��&(�&����'!��

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
%�(&�����-���(��+��/�%�����)�
��)�!%��&(�&���

�
��/�'�+"�����)��B�� ��'-������ <>0888�%6"���)��!�'�'��$�-�#!����&%����

-�/�'�+"������������=�!��B�� ��'-������
• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����

��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�
��

��=�
>���

�"+��/�"������9���-�('�����������(���-������!�-�
%��������)�������/�'3%��!''��(��-&'�-����&"����

�"+��/�"�����������%��������)���/�'3%��!''�
�(��-&'�-����&"����

• ���/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
�����'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

• ������&!������)�+!�����%��+�#��$����
#������������&�(�'���('&-�������%��

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

2
8



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��=�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

-���(�'*���%+��%�,'��)���-�/�'�+"����!��
>���

��'�/��*��)�D&!����*��)��"+'�*"����-�/�'�+"����
!(��%%���@�*����!��)���!����

���!'��"+'�*"�����++���&�����%����!'��<�!� • ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)���/�%�-�
.�-��%�.!���)���������,*��8�>�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��'�/��*��)����!�'�)'���%+!(�����.�-��%���#��������� ��'�/��*��)�&+���A�

• ��;0888%�6"���)�(��/�����(�9(�"+!��%���
���-%����!�'�)'���%+!(��!�-��

• �<0888%�6"���)����!�'�#!����&%���B&'$*�
���-%�)'���%+!(�����'����#����+�'�(*�

• ����-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�.�%��
B!�$�����,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�.�-��%�
��#�������������,*��8���

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��'�/��*��)���#������,�&����-�(���������.�%��B!�$� ���/�%�����)������,�&����-�(������,*�+��/!���%�(����
�&�-�-�,*�-��!�'�#������.�%��B!�$�����1��(��
!-�+��-2�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�.�-��%���#��
�����������,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�.�%��
B!�$�����,*��8���

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��'�/��*��)���%�-����!'�-�/�'�+"����!(��%%���&���
.�-��%�@�*����!��)���!����

��"+'�������)�><8���#�-#�''���%�!(��%%�����!��!�
#����������+'!��+����-0����!((��-!�(��#��������,��!-�
��"���%�%����&�����������������!���*�!������

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�.�%��B!�$�
����,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)���/�%�-�
.�-��%�.!���)���������,*��8�>�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��<�
��&���.�-��%��

��"+��/�"�����������D&!'��*����.�-��%���#��������� 	�-&(��������!���+�''&�!��%����#������!((�+�!,'��
'�/�'%�

• ������&�����#��$�#������������&�(�'�
-�+!��"���%�1�!"�'*�����#!*%�!�-�

�/����"���!'���!'��2�����"+��/��!���
6&!'��*����.�-��%���#��������0�
+!���(&'!�'*�����&�������+��-&(������)�
!������D&!'��*��(������'!��

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

2
9



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
��<�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

;����������+��/!����������&���.�-��%� �"+��/�"�����������-�+��/!�����%(����)���	�/��%�-��
#!�-�)��"��:�>>�����88?>�

��

��'�/��*��)��"+'�*"����'!�-�!(��%%�����@�*����!��)�
��!����

���!'��"+'�*"�����++���&�����%����!'��?�!� • ���-&(�����!�-�!�-�+������)�	&�(����
�'-���#������,*��8���

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��'�/��*��)����!�'�)'���%+!(�� ��'�/��*��)�>0;888%�6"���)����!�'�)'���%+!(�����
	&�(�����'-���#�����'����#����+�'�(*�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!�-�+������)�	&�(����
.!���)���������,*��8�>�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

��'�/��*��)���%�-����!'�-�/�'�+"���� >���������

• ��"+'�������)��>>8���%�-����!'�&���%�!��
	&�(����.!���)�����!'����-�#��������,��!-�
��"�%(!'�%���('&-�-����������������!���*�!��
������������

• �!������&",����)�&���%�!��	&�(����.!���)�����
-�+��-�����������-�/�'�+���%�(&�����!�
%�(��-!�*�!((�%%��

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�	&�(����
.!���)���������,*��8�>�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

• ���/�%�����)�!-�6&!�����!-�!((�%%����
	&�(����.!���)�����%�����

���8�
.�%��	&�(�����

	�-�/�'�+"�����)����%�*��!��#!*������1.�%����
��($%2�

��'�/��*��)�(�/�'�#!���#!*�+����#����!%%�(�!��-���!-�
!�-��!�'���)�!%��&(�&���#����������+'!��+����-�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
��������&�(�'�-�+!��"���%���%+��%�,'��
)���,��������)��#!�-�-�/�'�+"����!��
���%�'�(!�����


4+!�%�����)��!��%,&�*����� �<�!9<>0888�6�"��)��"+'�*"����!���!��%,&�*����� • ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)���%(���(����'!��-�
-�/�'�+"����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!�-�+������)�
�!��%,&�*�����,*��8�>����+��/�-��
)&�������&�-!�(�������6&���"���%�)���
�"+'�*"����%���%�

�����

!%��	&�(�����


4+!�%�����)��!��%,&�*��!�$� �8�!��)�B,&%���%%�-�/�'�+"����!���!��%,&�*��!�$�H�
�8�!�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)���,&%���%%�

                                                 
3
 Index of Multiple Deprivation 201007 - www2.halton.gov.uk/pdfs/councilanddemocracy/research/imd_2007 

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

3
0



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;8�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

-�/�'�+"����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��!��%,&�*�
����,*��8�>����+��/�-��)&������
�&�-!�(�������6&���"���%�)���
�"+'�*"����%���%�

��'�/��*��)���&%���� ��88;;8�-#�''���%�!���!��%,&�*0���88:��-#�''���%�
!���!�-*"����!'����-�#��������,��!-���"�%(!'�%�
��('&-�-�������������#������+�'�(*������

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
+'!������!++'�(!����%�)�����&%����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��!��%,&�*�
����,*��8�>����+��/�-��)&������
�&�-!�(�������6&���"���%�)�����&%����
%���%�

• �"+'�"���!������)�+���(�+'�%�#������
!-�+��-��!�-*"��������)�����&%�������
���%�'�(!�����

��'�/��*��)������,�&����-�(�����%�!���!��%,&�*�
���!����(������!�-��!�-*"���0�+��"!�*�%(���'�!��
�!�-*"���0��"+��/�"���%����+&,'�(���!�%+�����������
!��!�

����'����#������"�%(!'�%����!((�"+!�*����
��)�!%��&(�&����'!��

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
#����+��/!���%�(����-�'�/��*�!���(��%�

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
������&�(�'3%��(���'��'!(���'!������!�-�
���/�%������!"�����%�!,'�%�����-�)���!�
��#�%(���'�!��
!%��	&�(����

• ������&�����+�����%%��&�-�����	!�'#!*�
��/�%�"�������5�(�%�1�	��2�%�&-*�#����
���#��$�	!�'�����%�!,'�%��)�!%�,�'��*��)�
��#�%�!�����!���!��%,&�*����!����(������

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��!��%,&�*�
����,*��8�>����+��/�-���&�-!�(�����
����������!������)�%&%�!��!,'����!�%+����
����&���&������%����

���)�!%��&(�&�����6&���"���%����'����#������)�!%��&(�&���
�'!��

����'����#������"�%(!'�%����!((�"+!�*����
��)�!%��&(�&����'!��

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
-�/�'�+"����#���������-���(�����
��-���(��+��/�%�����)���)�!%��&(�&���#�''�
,����6&���-�

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
��������&�(�'���+!��"���%�1�!"�'*�

4����!'� &�-���2�!�-�����+��/!���
%�(�������%��$�)&�-����)���'!����%(!'��

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

3
1



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;��

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

��)�!%��&(�&���%(��"�%�
	����������)��!��%,&�*� ��%�!�-��%�!,'�%�"�����)�!�
��������)�!%��&(�&������#��$�

��'�/��*��)�!�����������)�!%��&(�&���%���!���*�)���
�!��%,&�*����!����(������

• .��$�#������'�/!�����&�(�'�
-�+!��"���%�1�!"�'*��+����+!(��
���/�(�%2����+��-&(��!�������
��)�!%��&(�&������!���*�)�������
�!��%,&�*����!����(������

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!�*�+'!������!++'�(!�����'�$�'*����
�"+���������!��%,&�*� ��%�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��!��%,&�*�
����,*��8�>����+��/�-��)&������
�&�-!�(�����+����(������)������%+!(��
��('&-�����!��%,&�*� ��%�

���/�%�����)�!��!�����)���&%��%�I�%�1�&",����)�
,�-���"%2�!�-��*+�%�+��/�-�-�!(��%%�%���%�

�--��%%��-����)��-��",!'!�(�%�)��"��!'���������
1�8��2����%���%��)��8����"����-#�''���%�

• �����-�'�/��*�!���(*��%J��
��"�,&�'-��%0�	��%�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8���#��(��#�''�
+��/�-��)&�������&�-!�(���������"�4��)�
��&%���*+�%�!�-�%�I�%����,��+��/�-�-�
���%+�(�)�(�%���%�

���(���!����)���"�%�!(���/������)���"����"�%�
��!�-!�-%�

=;E�1�4('&-����-#�''���%�#��(��(�"��)��#!�-����
%���%��)�'�%%���!���8�-#�''���%2�

���-&(�����!�-�!�-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����
����,*��8���

�����
��&%������4�

���/�%�����)�%+�(�!'�%����&%����)��������'-��'*�
��

�''�(!�����%���%�)���%+�(�!'�%������4��!7(!�����&%����
���(�����,&����������-�'�/��*��)A�

• �����4��!�(!���&���%�,*��8�?�

• ����4��!�(!���&���%�)���!-&'�%�#����'�!������
-�))�(&'���%�,*��8�;�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8������!%%�%�����
�-����)*����!�-�!''�(!�����%���%�#��(��
"!*�,��!++��+��!���)����4��!�(!���!�-�
%&++����-���&%����

• ������&�����#��$�#������&�(�'�
-�+!��"���%���%+��%�,'��)���
(�""�%%��������4��!7(!���
!((�""�-!����������%&�����!������
B���&��3%����-%�!���"���

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

3
2



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;��

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

��%&�����!��!++��+��!���)!(�'����%�!���
'�(!��-��������"�%��%&��!,'��'�(!����%�

��"������!���/��%&++'*����	�%�-����!'��!���
�((�""�-!�����

�!���!���+��(���!����)�/!(!���,�-%+!(�%�#������
	�%�-����!'��!����((�""�-!�����!��!��!((�+�!,'��
'�/�'��)�,�'�#��8E�

• ������&�����#��$�#������&�(�'�
-�+!��"���%���%+��%�,'��)���
(�""�%%��������4��!7(!���
!((�""�-!�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��%&�����!��+��+�%!'%�)���	�%�-����!'�
�!����((�""�-!�����!���"!-��!#!���
�)�������+������!'�����4!(��,!���!��
�/��%&++'*����+��/�%����

���!'��!))��-!,'����&%����(�"+'�����%�
!�������

• ���
����&���+'!������!����"���%����+��/!���-�/�'�+"���%�
,������

• B*�	��%�

�!�����)��"�����K�

• !������>;E���%�-����!'�)'���%+!(�����,��+��/�-�-�
!%��!))��-!,'����&%����!(��%%�%���%��)����!����
��!���8�;�-#�''���%�������!������!��8�>>�!����
%�I��

• ,������!4�"�%��+��/�%�����)�!))��-!,'����&%����
,*�	��%�1-����"���-�,*�!/!�'!,�'��*��)�+&,'�(�
%&,%�-*2�

�!'���������1�8��2���-�(!��%�!���6&���"����)���
=<��!))��-!,'��&���%�+���!��&"0�#��(���%�
&�!(���/!,'����/�����'!��-���&%����-�'�/��*��!����%����
����!�-���>��������)�����!������%����"!4�"�%��
!))��-!,'����&%����-�'�/��*���

• ������'�/��*�!���(��%*�J�!���
��"�,&�'-��%�!�-0�	��%��

• ��&%�������!���*�-�+!��"�������!%%�%��
���+!������&+��B��+��)����-�	���
+!�����%�#����+��/!���-�/�'�+��%��

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��
��('&-�����!�'*�������!����%�

• ������&�����#��$�#����	��%�!�-�����
��"�%�!�-���""&�����%�����(*����
%�(&���)&�-����)�������+��/�%�����)�
!))��-!,'����&%����,*�%�(�!'�'!�-'��-%�

���(���!����)�!))��-!,'����"�%�-�'�/���-����!++'�(!,'��
%(��"�%�

• >;E���%�-����!'�)'���%+!(�����,��+��/�-�-�!%�
!))��-!,'����&%�������%���%��)����!������!���8�
-#�''���%�������!������!��8�>>�!����%�I��

• �88E��)�!))��-!,'����"�%����,��-�'�/���-�����
-�/�'�+"����%����%&,5�(���������!))��-!,'��
��&%������6&���"����

���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��
��('&-�����!�'*�������!����%�

���>�
�))��-!,'��
��&%������

�+'���,��#����%�(�!'������-�!�-������"�-�!�����"�%� ;8A;8?;A�;���(�!'������-A������"�-�!�����"�%����
!++'�(!,'��%���%�-�'�/������!))��-!,'����&%����

• ���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
������&�(�'3%���&%�������!���*�
-�+!��"�������-�'�/�������-�%���-�"�4�
�)����&����*+�%�,*�����"�%��
!++��+��!���	���+!�����%��

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

3
3



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;>�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�����--�����!'�+��(��%�H��*+%*�!�-���!/�''��� �''�(!������)�%���%9�4���%��������4�%�����%���%�)���
�*+%��%�!�-���!/�''��%�!�-���!/�''�������#+��+'��

• ������'�/��*�����(*�J�%������*+%*�!�-�
��!/�''���(�""&�����%�!�-��B��1)���
%���%����,����&�(�'��#��-9�&�2�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������#��(��#�''�!''�(!��-�
%���%�)����*+%*�!�-���!/�''���+��(��%�!%�
��6&���-�

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!�*�+'!������!++'�(!����%�)����*+%*�!�-�
��!/�''���+��(��%����%���%�

�����
������������
���-%��)�
�*+%��%0�
��!/�''��%�!�-�
��!/�''����
���#+��+'��

���!'��&",����)�+��"!�����!�-���!�%���+��(��%� ���(��!%���������(&�������&",����)�+��"!�����
+��(��%�1�82�!�-���!�%���+��(��%�1�82�#������������%�
!���-����)��-����-�)���!--�����!'�+��/�%����

�!���!���!��&+����-!���!%%�%%"�����)����-%�
����&����*+%*�!�-���!/�''���
�((�""�-!������%%�%%"����1����2�#����
�����,�&�����!&��������%�������%�����

���;�
�&%�!��!,'��
��!�%+����

	�-&(�������������&",����)�&�%&%�!��!,'�����+%� �!����!/�'����%(���'��

• ��(��!%��"�-!'�%�!���H���(��!%������)��
%&%�!��!,'��"�-�%��1,&%0��!�'0�(*('����!�-�
#!'$���2�

• �&",����)�(*('�����+%�1�;?����+%�!��&!'�%�-�
��-�40�������-�(!���%��88?98=2�

• ��(��!%�����!'�'�������)�(*('��#!*%��������
B���&���

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
��'�/!���-�+!��"���%�)��"�!(��%%�����
��&�(�'���('&-��������#!*%0���('&-����
���!%%�%��#����)&�-����!++'�(!����%�
��(�%%!�*����-�'�/�����!�%+����
�"+��/�"���%�

• .��$�#�����4����!'�+!�����%�
��%+��%�,'��)�������+��/�%�����)�,&%�
%��/�(�%��������B���&��������(��!%��
+!����!��0�%��/�(��(�/��!���!�-�
)��6&��(*�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!�-�+������)�
��!�%+����!�-��((�%%�,�'��*�����,*�
�8�>�#��(��#�''�%���%�!�-!�-%�)���
��(��+��!�����%&%�!��!,'����!�%+����
"�!%&��%������-�/�'�+"����

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������#��(��#�''�%!)��&!�-�
��#�!�-��4�%��������&��%�!�-�)!(�'����%�
��������&%�!��!,'����!�%+�������#��$�

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

3
4



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;��

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�!���&",����)���!/�'��'!�%�!%%�(�!��-�#����
-�/�'�+"����!++'�(!����%�)���'!�������+������!�����&%�%�

�88E�)���!''���'�/!���'!�������+������!�����+'!������
!++'�(!����%�
,����(��!%�����,&%�+!����!���

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
��&�(�'�����#!*%���+!��"����#���
!%%�%���4����!'�+!�����%�#��������
+��-&(������)���!/�'��'!�%�

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��
��%&�������!���!�'*�-�%(&%%���%�����'�����
�������-�)���!���!/�'��'!�������'�/!���
!++'�(!����%��

�������,�����(���!����)�'�(!'�)��"%�1�88L��"+'�*��%2�#����
!�������""&�����'!�����+'!(��
	���%�!��"�����)��!'�����&�/���!�'���&���

(���&",����)�(*('�����+%�1�;?����+%�!��&!'�%�-���-�40�
������-�(!���%��88?98=2�
��(��!%�-�&%!����)��!'�����&�/���!�'���&���)���
+!%%��������!/�'�#������+'!��+����-�

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
���%�*��!/�'����%��$�!�)&�-���������7
�+������%��!�'�'�����

>���������"+'�"���!������)�"!4�"&"�+!�$����
%�!�-!�-%.�-��%�	!�'#!*���!�����

!���''�'!�������+������!�����+'!������!++'�(!����%�
�"+��/�"���%����+!%%������)!(�'����%�!��.�-��%�
	!�'#!*���!�����

• ������&�����#��$����+!�����%��+�#����
���%�*��!/�'����%��$�!�)&�-���������7
�+������%��!�'�'�����

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!�*�+'!������!++'�(!����%�!������%�!�����
������!�(������)!(�'����%�)���!''�&%��%�

� ��������,���8E�1>>E0�������-�(!���%��88?98=2� �

�� ����4(��-!�(���)�"!4�"&"�%�!�-!�-%� �
��'�/��*��)��������%�*��!��#!*�B��-��� ����!((��-!�(��#������"���%�!%�%����&�����

��)�!%��&(�&����'!��
�-�+������)�.�%��B!�$�!�-�	&�(�����'-�
��#�����%�
��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����!�*�
)&������+'!������!++'�(!����%���6&���-�)���
����B��-���!�-���'!��-���)�!%��&(�&���

�&%�!��!,'����!�%+����&%���)�������'/���C&,�'���B��-���
1�CB2�

����(��!%�-�&%!����)������CB�)���%&%�!��!,'��
��!�%+���0�)�''�#��������(��%��&(������)��������%�*�
�!��#!*�,��-���

• ���+!�����%��+�#������&�(�'�����#!*%�
-�+!��"����

• ���!((��-!�(��#����%��!�����%�%����&��
#�������!'������(!'���!�%+�����'!��>�

�!+��!'�%��������������!������++���&�����%�+��%����-�,*�
�������%�*��!��#!*����5�(��

	�'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�)!''����#����������
���%�*��!��#!*����5�(��!��!�!�-��""�-�!���
%&���&�-���%�

• �-�+������)�.�%��B!�$�!�-�	&�(����
�'-���#�����%�

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����
��'�/!���+'!������!++'�(!����%�

���:�
�������%�*�
�!��#!*�
���5�(��

����"�%!�����!�-�"����!������)�+������!'����!��/��
��/����"���!'��"+!(�%�

• ���!������)�%!'�"!�%���!�&�����%��/��

• �--�����!'��!�&���"!�!��"����!��.�����%'!�-�

• .�-������!�(�"���%���������++������%�*�

• ������&�-�"!�!��"�����)��4�%�����
�!,��!�%�!�-��!,��!��(��!��������
+!�����%��+�#������������&�(�'�

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

3
5



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;;�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����


%�&!�*�� -�+!��"���%�!�-��!�&�!'�
��'!�-�
���%�-��!������)�!�"��-"�����)�����!'���3%����������
B�'��,�&�-!���%����)!(�'��!��������&�#!*��4���%����!��
��/��+��'�C��������������+����1�C��2�

�-�+������)�������''�(!����%�����,*��8��� ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������''�(!����%�
����,*��8���

���?�
��/��+��'�C����
����������+�����

�!�!��������!��/����/����"���!'�!�-�%�(�!'��"+!(�%� • ����"�%�����%��+�''&�����

• ������'���%$%����+&,'�(�%!)��*0���('&-��������&���
�4���%��������&,'�(��!)��*�M����1��M2�!%�
��(�%%!�*�

• ���%��/��'!�-%(!+��/!'&�0���('&-��������&���
-�'�/��*��)��4���%���������!%�!'�	�%��/��

• ������&�-�"����������,*��C���!�-�
�B��

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"�����������-�%���!���
+������!'��4���%���������M�

• �"+'�"���!������)��'!������)���	�%$�
����

	�%�-����%!��%)!(�����#����'�(!'�!��!� �!���!���!�-���(��!%��(&������'�/�'��)���%�-����
%!��%)!(�����1?8��E��)�+��+'��%!��%)��-�#����������'�(!'�
!��!�����88<2��

• �-�+������)���%�����)�	�%�-����!'�
��/�'�+"��������,*��8���

• �!�����%��+�!++��!(��#����������
��&�(�'�%��/�(�%���('&-����
�"+'�"���!������)������&%�!��!,'��
��""&���*����!���*�1�8��7�8�:2�

���(���!����)���%�-���%�)��'����%!)�����������!��!�!)����
-!�$�

	�-&(��'�/�'�1����E��)�+��+'������$���!��!���7%�(�!'�
,��!/��&���%�!�+��,'�"����������'�(!'�!��!2��

�!�����%��+�!++��!(��#������������&�(�'�
%��/�(�%���('&-�����"+'�"���!������)�����
�&%�!��!,'����""&���*����!���*�1�8��7
�8�:2�

���=�
�����D&!'��*�
��%����

��"�%9(�""��(�!'�!��!%�,&�'�����B&�'-����)�����)��9�
��(&��-�,*���%����%�!�-!�-%��

��(��!%���&",����)�-�/�'�+"���%�#��(���!/�����!�-�
������%��%�!�-!�-%�

���"�������)�%�!�-!�-%�����&���
��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(���

	�-&(���������!'���3%�(�����,&������������+��-&(�����
!�-�('�"!���(�!����

	�-&(�������������"�%%���%�)��"��88;�,!%�'�����)�
�8��������%�+���(!+��!�1�88;2��

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�����
�&%�!��!,'����/�'�+"����!�-��'�"!���
��!��������,*��8�>�

• �!�����%��+�!++��!(��#����������
��&�(�'�%��/�(�%���('&-����
�"+'�"���!������)������&%�!��!,'��
��""&���*����!���*�1�8��7�8�:2�

���<�
�&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����
!�-��'�"!���
��!����

���(���!����)���#���%�-����!'�-�/�'�+"����!(���/����
��-��)����&%�!��!,'����"�%���/�'�>�

�88E���-����/�'�>�)��"��8��0���%��������88E���-��
��/�'���)��"��8�>0�!�-��88E���-����/�'�:�)��"�
�8�:�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����!�-��'�"!�����!��������,*�
�8�>�

                                                 
4
 Place Survey 2009 - www2.halton.gov.uk/pdfs/councilanddemocracy/research/placehead.xls 

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

3
6



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;:�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

���(���!����)���#�(�""��(�!'�-�/�'�+"����!(���/����
B	

������*����-�%�!�-!�-%�

�88E�B	

������*����-�)��"��8���!�-��88E�
B	

���
4(�''����)��"��8�>�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����!�-��'�"!�����!��������,*�
�8�>�

	���#!,'�������*�(!+!(��*���%�!''�-�,*��*+��� ��(��!%������(!+!(��*�!�-��&",����)�����#!,'��
�����*���%�!''!����%��������B���&���

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������''�(!����%�
!�-���/�'�+"�����!�!��"��������,*�
�8������+��/�-��"����-��!�'�-�+�'�(*�)���
����#!,'�������*�)!(�'����%�!�-�9����
!''�(!������)�%���%�)�������#!,'�������*�
+��-&(�����

����-�������)�����%�7����(���!���)!/�&�!,'�� ���-�('�������(&������+�%�������)�����%A�1�

• ���%�*�
%�&!�*�7<<��=?E�)!/�&�!,'�����
&�)!/�&�!,'��,&����(�/�������!���(��,���+��'�
�8��8F;G0��

• 	�-�B��#��&������7��88E�)!/�&�!,'��!��
�+��'�(��,����8��8F:G0�

•  '��-�B���$��'�&���7��88E�)!/�&�!,'��!��
�+��'�(��,����8��8F?G2?�

���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������(!'���%��
����,*��8���

• ������&�-�"!�!��"�����)�����%����
+!�����%��+�#������������&�(�'�
-�+!��"���%�!�-��!�&�!'�
��'!�-�

• ��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!/��-�!�*�+������!'�-����"���!'��"+!(��
�������%�

�!���!���������%��/!��������!%�!�-���%��-�B&�'-���%� �!���!������!'�!��!�-�%���!��-�!%����%��/!�����
���!%�!�-��&",����)���%��-�B&�'-���%��

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)�������(!'�
��%������,*��8���

• ���-&(������)����%��/!��������!�
�++�!�%!'%�!%���6&���-�

�!���!�������!�-%(!+����!�!(�������!%�1!%�-�)���-�,*�
�����!�-%(!+����!�!(�����%%�%%"���2�!�-�������
(��-������

�������'�%%��)�����B���&��3%�'!�-%(!+��(�!�!(���� ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��!�-�
!#!����%%��)�����B���&��3%��!�-%(!+��
��!�!(����

��!�������!��!%�!�-�+�+&'!����%��)�,��-�/��%��*�
�"+���!�(����('&-����
!����!�������+������*��!,��!�%�!�-�(�!�������
%+�(��%�1,*��*+�2�

��!��
4+!�%���-��)�	��-,�-%��!,��!�%�!�-�
+��%��/!�������)��!'�"!�%���!,��!�%�!�-���(��!%�����
B���%+�(��%�
�,�����(�!�������!��!��)����0�	!"%!�0�������
�(���������'�%%��)���(!'�.�'-'�)������%��

• ������&�-�"!�!��"�����)�+������*�
�!,��!�%�!�-�%+�(��%����+!�����%��+�#����
��������&�(�'�-�+!��"���%�!�-�
�!�&�!'�
��'!�-�

���8�
�!�&�!'�!�-�
��%����(�

�/����"����
�

,����!�������!��!%�-�%���!��-�)���������������%�(�
��/����"���!'�/!'&����('&-����%���%��)�������!����!'0�

• ���(�!�������!��!��)����0�	!"%!�0�������

• �������'�%%��)���(!'�.�'-'�)������%��

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����

                                                 
5
 Mersey Estuary SSSI Condition Summary - www.sssi.naturalengland.org.uk/Special/sssi/reportAction.cfm?report=sdrt18&category=S&reference=1001398  

6
 Red Brow Cutting SSSI Condition Summary - www.sssi.naturalengland.org.uk/special/sssi/reportAction.cfm?report=sdrt18&category=S&reference=1005790  

7
 Flood Brook Clough SSSI Condition Summary - www.sssi.naturalengland.org.uk/special/sssi/reportAction.cfm?report=sdrt18&category=S&reference=1002557  

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

3
7



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;?�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�!����!'0�������!'0�%&,�������!'����'�(!'�%����)�(!�(�� ��(��!%�� �!�!��"��������,*��8������)&������
+����(���4�%�����%���%�!�-����-�%���!���
��#'*��-����)��-���(!'�.�'-'�)������%�


4������)���������)�!%��&(�&������#��$� �!4�"�%�������'�/!���!++'�(!����%�

• �--�����%���������4�����!�-�6&!'��*��)�����
��������)�!%��&(�&������#��$�1�88<�,!%�'�����)�
��=��8:��!2�

• �/��-!�(���)�'�%%��)���������)�!%��&(�&���

• ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"��������,*��8������)&������
+����(���4�%�����%���%�!�-����!''�(!���
��#�%���%�

• ���-&(������)���������)�!%��&(�&���
���!���*����+!�����%��+�#����������
��&�(�'�-�+!��"���%�

�"�&����)�-�/�'�+���(�����,&����%�%�&����)���
�"+��/�"���%����������������)�!%��&(�&������#��$�

�!���!���!�-���(��!%�������&",����)������� '!��
!#!�-������%+!(�%�1B!%�'�����)���������� '!��
!#!�-%�����8�82�
�!4�"�%�������'�/!���!++'�(!����%�

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
!�-�������!����%�

• ���-&(������)�)&�������&�-!�(�����
%�(&�����+'!�������!�������&��������� �

�

�����
������
��)�!%��&(�&���

�&",����)������%+!(�%�!#!�-�-����������� '!��
%�!�-!�-�

�!���!���!�-���(��!%�������&",����)������� '!��
!#!�-������%+!(�%�1B!%�'�����)���������� '!��
!#!�-%�����8�82�
�--�����%���������4�����!�-�6&!'��*��)�����������
��)�!%��&(�&������#��$�1�88<�B!%�'�����)�
��=��8:��!2�

• ������&�-�"!�!��"�����)�����
B���&��3%��+���%+!(�%�,*������+���
�+!(�����/�(�%�-�+!��"����

���(���!���9��&",����)��;�1���7 ��-��!$�7!#!*2�&���%�
#��������#�0�-�%���(��!�-�'�(!'�(�����%�

����"�%��+��(���!���!�-�!/��-�('&%������� ���-&(�����!�-��-�+������)��������� ��-�
�!$�!#!*%�����,*��8���

�����
��!'���!�-�
.�''7B����� �&",����)�!++'�(!����%���6&������!���!'����"+!(��

�%%�%%"����1���2�
�88E��8)�'!����%(!'��"!5���-�/�'�+"����!++'�(!����%�
���&�-���!$������

��/�'�+"�����!�!��"����!++��!(��!�-�
�-����)�(!������)���'�/!���!++'�(!����%�
��6&����������!��!���!�'*�%�!���

��/�'�+"����#������)'��-�I���%� ��������'*�/&'���!,'�����"����/&'���!,'��
-�/�'�+"����#������ '��-�M����>�!�-�!���-&(��������
������&%�%��!������+'!������+��"�%%����������%�I����

������&!'�"�����������)�!���6&!'��*�!(��%%�
����B���&���

���>�
�!�!�����
��''&�����!�-�
	�%$� �&",����)�+'!������!++'�(!����%����)'��-�I���%�#��(��

!���+��"����-0�(����!�*��������!-/�(���)�����

�/����"��������(*=�

�����
�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����
�!�!��"�����������%�����
-�/�'�+"����!#!*�)��"�)'��-�I���%�

                                                 
8
 Major Planning Applications where the Environment Agency has an outstanding objection on flood risk grounds - www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/33698.aspx  

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

3
8



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;=�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
�&",����)�+'!������!++'�(!����%�#��(��!���+��"����-�
(����!�*��������!-/�(���)�����
�/����"��������(*����
#!����6&!'��*����&�-%�

����� • ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��

��/�'�+"�����������!((��-!�(��#������!'���!�-��!)��*�

4�(&��/��1��
2���-��%�-�!++��!(��)���"!�!�������%$�

����� • ������&!������)�+!�����%��+�#��$����
#����������
�

• �%���)��'!������)���	�%$�����

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(��
�&",����)��+������!''*�(���!"��!��-�%���%�#��(���!/��
,����%&,5�(�����%������/�%���!����%�#��$9��"�-�!������

��(��!%�����'����#����B��#�)��'-����!���*�)����!'���� • �++'�(!����%�)���)&�-����)��"��
 	��
)�����"�-�!�����#��$%�

�"+��/�"���%����!���6&!'��*�#������-�%���!��-�����
D&!'��*��!�!��"�������!%��������B���&���

	�-&(������)�!���+�''&�!��%����#�������,5�(��/��'�/�'%� • ������&!������)�!���6&!'��*�"����������

�!)��&!�-�����)�%���%�)�������+&�+�%���)�#!%���
"!�!��"����

���/�%�����)�%���%�)���#!%���"!�!��"����+&�+�%�%�
����&�������

���-&(�����!�-��!-�+������)�����C�����
���%�*%�-��!�-��!'����.!%�������,*��8�>�

�!+!(��*��)���#�#!%���"!�!��"����)!(�'����%�,*�#!%���
+'!������!&������*��

��(��!%������(�/��*�(!+!(��*��)�#!%���)!(�'����%��������
B���&���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�����C�����
���%�*%�-��!�-��!'����.!%�������

• ��/�'�+"����"!�!��"����!++��!(�����
!++'�(!����%�)���#!%���"!�!��"����
)!(�'����%�

�����
.!%���
��

���!'�"&��(�+!'�#!%��<� ��(��!%��#!%������������'!�-)�''��!(��*�!��1�;088:�
�����%0��88<9�82�!�-�-�(��!%��������!'�"&��(�+!'�
#!%���1:=0�8>������%0��88<9�82�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�����C�����
���%�*%�-��!�-��!'����.!%�������

• �!�����%��+�!++��!(��#��������
��&�(�'3%�.!%���!�-�	�(*('�������/�(��

���!'�'!�-�#���!�����!��%����(�����,&������������.�%��
������!'���6&���"����

������,&�����������%�*%�-�9���!�����!�(��%���9�
.!���������9��!'����!++������"�����)����"�''����
�����%��)�%!�-�!�-���!/�'�!�-��:�"�''���������%��)�
(�&%��-���($�8�

���-&(�����!�-�!��-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"�����!�!��"����
����,*��8���

���;�
�����!'%�

���!'�%�(��-!�*�#���!�����!��%�� �!)��&!�-�����)�%���%�#�����������"!*�,��"����!'%�
��%�&�(�%�
�8E��)�!�����!��%�&%�-����(��%��&(��������,��)��"�
%�(��-!�*������(*('�-�%�&�(�%0���%��������;E�,*�
�8���

• �%���)���-��)����&%�!��!,'����"�%�9�
B	

���%�!�-!�-%������(�&�!���&%��
�)���(*('�-�"!����!'%�

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)������
�''�(!����%�!�-���/�'�+"����

                                                 
9
 DEFRA Municipal Waste Statistics 2009/10 - http://www.defra.gov.uk/statistics/environment/waste/wrfg23-wrmsannual/ 

10
 North West Regional Aggregates Working Party - Sub-regional Apportionment of Aggregates in the North West 2001-2016  

APPENDIX A
P

a
g
e
 2

3
9



��������
� ������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�������	
���
���	����
�������
���

���������������������������������������������������������� ��

�

 
�;<�

������� �����������
��

��������������������	
��
�������������
�����	���	�����
����

��
�����
��

	
����

�� ��������������������!����

�!�!��"��������,*��8���

• ���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)��&%�!��!,'��
��/�'�+"����!�-��'�"!�����!��������
,*��8�>�

��%���!������)�%���%�!%�"����!'%�%!)��&!�-����!��!%����
�����!'%����!%��)���!�(��

�!)��&!�-�����)�%���%�#�����������"!*�,��"����!'%�
��%�&�(�%0�!%��-����)��-�����&����/�-��(��,!%���

���-&(�����!�-�!-�+������)�������''�(!����%�
!�-���/�'�+"�����!�!��"��������,*�
�8���

 

APPENDIX A
P

a
g

e
 2

4
0



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
���

���������	�

����
������
����������
�����������������
�
�� ���������� �!����"��#$��%$&� ����'$(�%������&��)��#�$*�#�����&� ��$)�'����*%$(�#���

��)#$�����#�%+���&�)$�(��#��)���,���-�.��'��.�))�/�� �)�#� �0�$��� $�#�$��$*�#���
��)#$���$%���#%�#�1+���

 

 

 

 

�
�
�

������������
���������������� �
!"#$��$�����%!#���� 
������$%$������
"�������%� �


��������������
�

���� ��)#$�2�����#��)��#%�#�1+� ��3��45�
��4� �0�#����/)����&�)$�(��#� �
��6� �$0���1��0��)+��� ��$'�#�$��)��%�$%�#���� ��73��4�
��5� 
(�)$+(��#���� ��0��)+��� ��$'�#�$��)��%�$%�#���� ��8�
��9� ����#.$%"�$*����#%���*$%���)#$�� ���3���:�
���� �%������)#� �4��
��:� ��*%��#%0'#0%���%$&���$�� �49�

&�'�����
��������(��

��7� 6��� �4�3�
:�
��8� �$0#��;� ���� 	��3�	�43�	�6�
����� ;��#�	0�'$%�� 	�5�
����� 
��#�	0�'$%�� �4�3�
��

������������
�

���4� �$0���1���!� �
���6� �**$% �/)���$0���1��� �

���5�
���#��1�#������ ��$*��+�����3��%�&�))�%���� ��%�&�))��1���$.�
��$�)��

�9�

���9� �0�#����/)���%����$%#� ��6�
����� ������%��+���#�.�+��%$<�'#� ��5�
���:� ��&�%�$$)�=$�������$����%�$%#� ��4��
���7� ��1��>0�)�#+�����1�� �
���8� �0�#����/)����&�)$�(��#��� ��)�(�#������1�� ���3�����
��4�� ��#0%�)��� ����#$%�'�
�&�%$�(��#� �
��4�� �%������*%��#%0'#0%�� �6�
��44� ���)#���� �;�))?����1� �
��46� ����1��1��$))0#�$���� �	��"� �53��93����
��45� ;��#�� �:3��7�
��49� ����%�)�� �:3��;9�

APPENDIX APage 241



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
���

���������	�

��

�����������
�������
������������
�
�
��
� ��������������� ��
 ��! ��������������������� !"#���#��$#�%�&!  !'���

��(����"��!�#��)������������*�!'#������*'�(�&#'���'���+ !"#��,�#��-�!#".�(���*������ �'#��
�!&#��"�!'�����/�����!#����#�'���'��#������!'�,/�"'��.0��
�

� �""��� #���$����%&�����((!�"#1����!���'*��'&��"����!&�#����'��"�#'"��'��� �"�#���
�!���'*%�2�!3�"�"�#��1��!$� #�4����#�����!��2�&�(��"����*�1����!����!�"��$�!���'��"��
#���'!�� ���1������ #�4���#'"��'&��"����!&�#����'��"�#'"��'��� �"�#����!���'*0����(����
"�(�'���!'�����'&��"�"��'��''�5����!����)0�
�

��� �''��'�� �����������%������! 2����'*������#������$!���#*���!(��#1��#���	�*��#��!'�
������ �'��,�	�.%�����������#����� �'��!(���4�����((�&���!(�#�"�3��!2 �'��2�#'�!��
2�!2!�#��!'������'��*�����!(�"���*'#��"�
��!2�#'�$��"��(�������%�#'"������"�'��(�&#��!'�!(�
 ���*#��!'� �#������!��#����'#��3���!����!'�%�$�����#22�!2��#��0�
�

���� ��� ��(���%��� %�����'��������#���3��!2 �'����#'��!&� �'��,���.�$����'�����
�!&#����3��!2 �'��6�# �$!�4�,��6.%�$��&��2�!3�"�������2�#''�'*�(�# �$!�4�(!��#�
�2�&�(�&�*�!*�#2��&�#��#0�
�

���� �%%� ����%�����%&���'�������������	����2#���!(������!&#����3��!2 �'��
6�# �$!�4�,��6.�#'"�#������������� 2�� �'�#��!'�!(������!&#����3��!2 �'���&�� ��
,���.�#'"������5��'���!�$��&��2!��&�����'���!&#��"��3��!2 �'��"�!&� �'���,����.�
#���1��'*���&&���(������ 2�� �'��"0�
�

�)��� ����)� ������ % &���%����� �����7����#���"�&�#��"�1���!&#������!��������'�#��#��
$��������������2!!��#���8�#�����#'"�'#��!'#��#���8�#�����!19�&��3���#���'!��1��'*� ��0�
�7����&#'��#'*���'���:��(�! �#�&!�2���!(����������!� �&��1�**���#��#�0��'&��"�&�#��"%�
�����!&#������!����� ����&! 2����#�2�#'��!�� 2�!3������#���8�#������'������#��#0�
�

*��� *����+��������(���%��� %������!&#������2�!3�"���#'�!3��#�&��'*�(�# �$!�4�(!��
�#1��#��#'"��2�&����&!'���3#��!'%�#'"�$!�4��!'�����1#����!(�2#��'�����2��!��"�'��(���!&#��
2��!�������#'"��#�*���0�

�
*������ *�����%&����� �(,���� #���,��%���%+���%��%� ����������%�����,�����

�	

������#�(# ����!(�#����� �'�� ���!"��#'"��!!������"��!�#�����������'3��!' �'�#��
2��(!� #'&��!(�#'����2��!(�1���"�'*�,'�$�#'"��5����'*.0��
�

� *��!%"������ %������������3�!�������3��!2�"��#'"�,���.�
�

�$�� ���#�%���$� �� %����!�������������#���*����(�����((�&��'����&�'!�!*��$��&��
2�!"�&������&���&����#'"���#1�����#��(�! �#���'*���*�'��#��!'�(#&�����0�
�

��
� -��' ����%��"��.������%������ %����( ��
�+��%��%��
�

�
$� �����"���
��� �% #���$�������������������#'��'3��!' �'�#��#����� �'�� ���!"�
(!��'�$��! ���#'"�&!'�#�'�� #'"#�!���2��(!� #'&����3�����'�;�4���#��#�0���
�

� ��%���+ ���%���� ������!'���3#��!'����#����#'��#��#�!(�<�2�&�#��#�&����&���#��!��
����!��&��'������=�$�!���&�#�#&����!��#22�#�#'&�����$!����2�!��&��'*�!���'�#'&�'*0������
<�2�&�#�'���=����9�"*�"�#*#�'����!&#��#'"���*�!'#��&������#%��#�������#'�'#��!'#��
� 2!��#'&�%�#'"�"���*'#��!'���#"���!�������&��!'�!(�2�� ����"�"�3��!2 �'�0��

APPENDIX APage 242



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
��>

�

����$� ��%������"�� /����((���%��$ 0 ����,	�*��#��!'�%��???.������������*��#��!'��
#22��� #�'����!�����&�� �&#���'"�����%�1���#��!��!��! ����!�#*��#&��3�����%��52�!��3���#'"�
'�&��#�������%�#'"�!������'"��������$�����������!�"�8�#'�������!(�"#'*��!�����1��#'&���
�"�'��(��"��'�����	�*��#��!'��#���4�2��!�����"�#'"�#� ��!��'�����#���'�&���#��� �#������
�!�2��3�'�� #9!��#&&�"�'���#'"��� �������&!'��8��'&����!�2�!2���#'"������'3��!' �'��
!(�#'�� #9!��#&&�"�'���$��&��"!�!&&��0��������'&��"���&!'��!���'*��#'"������#'"�
"�3��!2 �'���$����'�2���&��1�"�"���#'&���!(���*��#��"������0�
�

�
� �����
�� ��&��
�

������ ��' ����%��"����%+���%��%�1������ %����� ���"" ����

�"�� ��' ����%��"����� %�'����
�

���� ��+���'��%���� %���(���%������#���!(������!&#����3��!2 �'��6�# �$!�4�,��6.%�
�����(!� �2#���!(�������#���!���"�3��!2 �'��2�#'�(!��#'�#��#0������#��!��'&��"�����#�
�&��!'���#'�����0�
�

�$� ������(��$� ��%&����������#������ �(!��"�����1���'*���#��*�'��#��"��'�#�&�'��#����"�
�!&#��!'�(!������"�'��#��#'"�&!  ��&�#����#��'*���8���� �'��0��
�

��2� �%��&�����������2�%������
�@��#���*�'��#���!&#��!'��#&�!���������3��2!!�������	�*�!'�
�"�'��(��"�(!��������2!��'��#���!�"���3�����'�$#1���#'"��!$�&#�1!'��'��*�0�������'&��"���
#��#������#1���(!��������&����#��'*���! #�������#'"�#��#��!(���#�&��(!��$�'"��'��*�0��
�

�3��� �3� �������' (����������%�����
8������#� ���!"�!(�#������'*�$�������#�2�#'%�2!��&��
!��2�!9�&��$�����#3��#�(!�����#1���#'"�"��2�!2!���!'#���� 2#&��!'��2�&�(�&���&�!���!(�
�!&����0�����&#'����2��!��'�������#��2!��&����#'"�2�!9�&�����(��&������'��"��!(�"�((���'��
*�!�2����#�����$����#((�&�0���'�
8����#��1��'�&#����"�!���!'������!������#��*�0�
�


�� 
���%��%"� ����(������������������'��$!�4�!(� ����(�'&��!'#��*���'�2#&��#'"�!�����
�'3��!' �'�#��(�#�����0�����'&��"���2#�4�%�!2�'��2#&��%�2�#��'*�(���"�%�$!!"�#'"�%�
#��!� �'���#'"�2��3#���*#�"�'�0��
�

� 
���%�*�������<����'�����=����#�2�#''�'*�"���*'#��!'�$��������#� �!(�4��2�'*��#'"�
2�� #'�'����!2�'�(!������2��2!���!(�,�.�&��&4�'*��'������&��"���1#'��2�#$��,>.�
2��3�'��'*�'��*�1!���'*��!$'��(�! � ��*�'*�,).��#(�*�#�"�'*�����&!�'�����"��(�! �
�'&�!#&� �'��,A.�2�����3�����������'*�#'"��2�&�#��&�#�#&����!(�����!��&��!$'�B�#'"�,C.�
#������'*���1#'���*�'��#��!'%�1���'&!��#*�'*�������&�&��'*�!(�"�����&��#'"�!�������1#'�
�#'"0�
�

� 
�'����� %���� +��������������!'��!(�'! #"�&��#1���!(���(��$�#��3����������#&��!��
!��*�'%��'&��"�'*���&��2���!'��$�!�!'�*�!�'"��!'���!(�������!$'�!��������(# ���D��!��
"�2�'"#'��D��"�&#��!'#��!����#����'��"��!��!�"�#*���#3��&�#��"��!���#3����� 2!�#�����!��
2�� #'�'���%�1����5&��"�'*� � 1����!(�#'�!�*#'���"�*�!�2�!(���#3����'*���!$�2�!2���!��
&��&���2�!2�����#3����'*��!*������#����&�0�
�

$
��� $ ���%�
��� �% #����� %�'�������!��4�������������������&!''�&��"�'��$!�4�!(�
����#�'#1�����#'�2!���(#&���������'��#��!'%��'&! 2#���'*������!����������$!�4%������#���
'��$!�4%���������'$#�����$!�4%�#'"�!�����$#�4�'*�#'"�&�&��'*��!����0����#��!��'&��"���
��'4���!���#'�2!����'���&�#'*��%�#��$����#����'4���!���1+��*�!'#������#�'#1�����#'�2!���
�!����0�

APPENDIX APage 243



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
��)

�

$*�� $ ���%�*����&,����%(���
�

$��� $����� %�������%�������&�%(��
�

$��� $� ��,���' (����������%�����������#� ���!"�(!��#������'*�����2!��'��#����#����
� 2#&��%�2!����3��!��'�*#��3�%�!(�#�2!��&�%�2�!*�#  ��!��2�!9�&�0�����&! ���#����'�����
(!� �!(���&!  �'"#��!'���!� �'� ����2!���1���'�*#��3����#����� 2#&���#'"��'�#'&��
2��"�&��"�2!����3��!'��0���������#��1��'��'"���#4�'�!'������!������#��*�0�
�

$��� $ #�� �����&�� ���%���������%�����	�����#'�#����� �'��!(�����2!��'��#���((�&���!(�
#�2!��&��&!'�#�'�"�$����'�#�2�#'�!��2�!*�#  ��!'�!'��!�� !���������"���*'#��"�#��
� 2!��#'��#������
��!2�#'���3��%�'# �����2�&�#����!��&��!'����#��,����.�#'"��2�&�#��
���#��!(��!'���3#��!'�,����.0�	# �#��������#'"�&#'"�"#���#��#��#���#��!�!(��'�#������"�
#�!'*��"�������������0������2�!&����!(�#������'*�"�3��!2 �'��2�#'������2�����'�!�������
"��&�����2�#���E��.��&���'�'*%�!���"�'��(��'*�$�������#�2�#'������4�����!��#3����*'�(�&#'��
�((�&���!'�#�
��!2�#'�����B�>.���&���#�'�'*������((�&���!'�������'��*����B�#'"�).�
�"�'��(�&#��!'�!(� ���*#��!'� �#������#'"�#����'#��3���!����!'�0��
�

$
�� $� ��,� %��
 "�����5�(���+�����!3��' �'�#��
5�&���3���*�'&�����2!'��1���(!��
2�! !��'*�#'"��'(!�&�'*�$!�42�#&����#����#'"��#(���0�
�

���� �%��5��"������'�����'��+ ���%����������#�'#��!'#���'"�&#�!������&! 1�'�'*���#�����&��
#&�!���#��#'*��!(��&!'! �&%��!&�#��#'"��!���'*���������'�!���'*���"�2��3#��!'��&!���0���
��1�����"�#����2������2������#���3��%���������#��!$��#��#���!�1���#'4�"�#&�!���#�
'� 1���!(�"! #�'�����#��3���!�!'��#'!����0�
�

6���
� 6��%����'�����%��� %�� %�����������
���������������#�����#�&�����"��
&!  ����!'�"�1���#��!'%�F'!$����%���(�!'�#'"�/�����#'&#�������!�'&��D���!��!!4�#��
������22���#'"�"� #'"�(!���#'"�#'"�2�� �����(!��1���'����2��2!���0�
�

� 7����� &� ��������F�����#*�# ����#�"�#*�#  #��&��'���2���#��!'�!(�#��2#��#�����#��*��
&!'�#�'�"�$����'�#��2#��#��2�#''�'*�2!��&��"!&� �'����&��#��#��!������#��*�0��
�

���� � %��( '���, � (������������%��������������"�'��(���%�"��&��1���#'"� #2��#��#��
#&&!�"�'*��!�3#��!����#'"�&#2��&�#�#&������2��0�����#����� �'��#��!�2�!3�"���*��"���'���
(!��2!����3��&�#'*���!��'���������2�����3#��!'�!(��!&#���#'"�&#2��"����'&��3�'�������
&!'���3�"%� #�'�#�'�"�#'"��'�#'&�"0�
�

���� ��+��'�����������&��%�
�

���� ��( ����+���'��%����(���%���������#���"!&� �'���$����'������!&#��
��3��!2 �'��6�# �$!�4�,��6.0�
�

���� ��( ����+���'��%���� ��!��4���������6��������2!��(!��!�!(��!&#����3��!2 �'��
�!&� �'���,����.��'&��"�'*���3��!2 �'����#'��!&� �'���,����.%���22�� �'�#���
��#''�'*��!&� �'���,����.�#'"�2�!&����"!&� �'��%��'&��"�'*�������#�� �'��!(�
�!  �'�����'3!�3� �'��,���.%��!&#����3��!2 �'���&�� ��,���.�#'"������''�#��
�!'��!��'*�	�2!���,��	.0�������6�#��!��'&��"��������#3�"��!��&����!(������'��#���
��3��!2 �'����#'�,���.%�$��&��$�����3�'��#����1����2�#&�"�1��2!��&�����'�����0�
�

��
� ��( ����+���'��%��
(,������������������������� ��#1���(!������2�!"�&��!'�!(�����
�!&#����3��!2 �'��6�# �$!�4�,��6.�#'"�����&!'������'��"!&� �'��%�#'"�2�!3�"���

APPENDIX APage 244



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
��A

"��#����!(�#���!(������!&#����3��!2 �'���!&� �'���,����.��!�1��2�!"�&�"0�
�

� �������*�����%&����������"�1���"�'*����#�1���"�'*�!��!���������&�����!((�&�#����"���*'#��"�
#��1��'*�!(��2�&�#��#�&����&���#�%�����!��&�!��&�����#����*'�(�&#'&�0��������#�����������2���
!(������"���#���%��'�"��&�'"�'*�!�"���!(�� 2!��#'&�E���#"���%���#"����G�#'"���#"����0��
/!�4��!��#����#��!'�%��'&��"�'*�&���#�'� #�'��'#'&����8������2�&�(�&������"�����"�'*�
�!'��'��,$��&�������2#�#���#'"��'�#""���!'��!�2�#''�'*�&!'��'�.0�
�

�6��� ��+��'����6�,%���%%�%����'����
�

���� ��( ��� ��� �������+�����!&#���#�����	����3���,��	.�#���2�#&���$����$��"��(��!��
*�!�!*�&#��(�#��������#��#���!(��2�&�#���'��������!&#���0��'�#""���!'��!���22!���'*�1�!+�#'"�
*�!"�3������%���	��#��!�!((���!22!���'������(!��2�!2����!���#�'�#1!���#'"��'9!������
'#���#���'3��!' �'�0�
�

���� ��( ���� %%�%&����,������

���� ��( ���� %�'������ %����'����������!��������!�'&��D��!19�&��3��%����#��*����#'"�
2!��&����(!����#'�2!��%�"��#���'*������&�� ���#'"��'���#��3�����#��$����1��"���3���"%�
�!*������$��������2��(!� #'&���'"�&#�!���#'"��#�*�������"��!� !'��!��2�!*����0�
�

� ��( ��8�����"��
����������!&#��/��"��(����������#�"���*'#��!'����"��!�2�!��&��#��#��!(�
� 2!��#'&��(!��$��"��(��#��#��!&#���&#��0�����3�!�����4'!$'�#�������!(�� 2!��#'&��(!��
�#������!'���3#��!'�,����.0�
�

� � ��� �9:::����#���#�>HHH��������
��!2�#'��&!�!*�&#��'��$!�4�!(����������#1�����"�
�'"��������#1��#�������&��3�0����� #�'�2��2!����������2�!��&��!'�!(��#1��#����2���#'"�
2�#'��#'"�#'� #���2�&����!(�&!  �'�����'��������'�����
��!2�#'��'�!'0�
�

�8��� ����,�8������+���'��%���&�%(�����
�

���$�� �� %%�%&���+�(��"�����+���'��%��%� ��$ 0 �������%�� �� ���%���������������
���� ���!"!�!*��#'"��!(�$#���"�&���!'���22!����!!��"�3��!2�"�#'"����"�1��������#����
#'"��#(����
5�&���3��,��
.����"��!�*�3��#"3�&��!'�2�!2!��"�"�3��!2 �'���'�#��
�#:#�"!����'��#��#��!'�0�
�

���� ���+���������+���'���� %��������������#��$��&�����!��$#��!&&�2��"�1��#�2�� #'�'��
����&����%��'&��"�'*�����&�����#*��!(�����"�3��!2�"��#'"�#'"�#'��#��!&�#��"�(�5�"����(#&��
�'(�#����&����0���
�

����� �� %%�%&��%�'�(��� �������������������!3��' �'���*�'&��$�������2!'��1������(!��
2�!&����'*�2�#''�'*�#'"��'(!�&� �'��#22�#���#'"��!�"�'*��5# �'#��!'���'�!�
��3��!2 �'����#'��!&� �'���,����.0�
�

��
� �� %%�%&�����(��
��� %(����������#�����'��#���!3��' �'����#�� �'���!(�'#��!'#��
2�#''�'*�2!��&��#'"�*��"#'&�0����
�

��
� �� %%�%&�����(��
� ����%����������#���2��2#��"�1����'��#���!3��' �'��#��
��#�� �'���!(�'#��!'#��2�#''�'*�2!��&��#'"�2�!3�"��*��"#'&���!��!&#��2�#''�'*�#���!�������
#'"�!������!'�2�#''�'*�2!��&��#'"�����!2��#��!'�!(�����2�#''�'*������ 0�
�

�
2� ��#��(�
 "����2�%��������#�$�����'�$�"�3��!2 �'��$����1��������&��"��!�&!'��!������
2!2��#��!'��52!��"��!��'&��#��"����4�(�! �#��2�&�(��"��#:#�"0���
�

APPENDIX APage 245



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
��C

� � �� ��
�������/���#'"�������&!3���"�1�������!'3�'��!'�!'�/���#'"�%���*'�"��'�
	# �#�%���#'%��'��?;�%����#'��'���*!3��' �'�#�����#���$��&��2�!3�"�������(�# �$!�4�(!��
'#��!'#��#&��!'�#'"��'���'#��!'#��&!!2��#��!'�(!������&!'���3#��!'�#'"�$��������!(�
$���#'"��#'"����������!��&��0�
�

�
�� ��&��������
�(� ��� %����������'&��"�'*��!���'*����!&�#��!'��#'"��!�'&���%�	����#���
�'"�2�'"�'��'!�+(!�+2�!(���!�*#'��#��!'��2�!3�"�'*��!$�&!���<�!&�#���!���'*=�(!����!���
�'��!���'*�'��"�#'"�#��������FD�� #9!��2�!3�"���!(��! ���(!����'�%�#��$����#��2�!3�"�'*�
!22!���'������(!����#��"�!$'�����20�
�


�� 
��� �% #�������''� �� ����������2�!&����#22�#����������!&�#�%��'3��!' �'�#��#'"�
�&!'! �&��((�&���!(�����2!��&����&!'�#�'�"�$����'��!&#����3��!2 �'���!&� �'���
,����.%��'&��"�'*�#�����3��!2 �'����#'��!&� �'���,����.�#'"�$�����#22�!2��#��%�
��22�� �'�#�����#''�'*��!&� �'���,����.0�
�


��� 
'�(� ����� ��"���%���+ ���%�������������#�"���*'#��!'��'"�������
��!2�#'��'�!'�
�#1��#�������&��3�%�2�!3�"�'*��'&��#��"�2�!��&��!'��!�#�3#������!(�$��"�#'� #��%�2�#'���
#'"��#1��#���#'"�#���#�3��#��2#���!(�*�!1#���((!�����!�&!'���3������$!��"D��1�!"�3������0�
�

� 
(,���������%���%��������&��"���"��!'� �'�����#�'#��!'#����� 2!��#'������!��&�
1���"�'*�!������&�����!��#�&�#�!�!*�&#������%�*�3�'�2�!��&��!'�#*#�'���"���� �'�#��#'"�
�'#���!����"�&�#'*�0��
�


��� 
� ����%���"������%�����%+��+���%������������������!��������!�����#������
&!  �'����#'"�!�������#4��!�"����$����2�#���'�����2�!"�&��!'�!(�#���"!&� �'���$����'�
�����!&#����3��!2 �'��6�# �$!�4�,��6.%�#��$����#���������!���&!'&��'�'*�2�#''�'*�
#22��&#��!'�0�
�


�
� 
��� �% #��������%����
�� ��&�������������2�!3�"���#'�!3��#�&��'*�(�# �$!�4�
���!�*��$��&������&!�2!�#��%����#��*�&�#'"�!2��#��!'#��2�#'��!(�����2#��'����$����'�#�
�!&#�����#��*�&��#��'�����2�&#'�&!'���1���0��
�


��� 
�� ��&�(��%+���%��%� ����������%������
��!2�#'�����&��3��>HH�IA>I
��,�����
��
����&��3�.���8������#�(!� #���'3��!' �'�#��#����� �'��!(�&���#�'�2�#'��#'"�2�!*�#  ���
$��&��#�����4�����!��#3����*'�(�&#'���((�&���!'������'3��!' �'�0��!� ��������
��8���� �'���!(�����"���&��3�%�#�1!"�� ����2��2#���#'��'3��!' �'�#����2!����'�$��&��
������4������*'�(�&#'���((�&���!'������'3��!' �'��!(�� 2�� �'��'*�����2�#'�!��2�!*�#  �%�
#'"���#�!'#1���#����'#��3����#4�'*��'�!�#&&!�'������!19�&��3���#'"�*�!*�#2��&#���&!2��!(�
����2�#'%�#����"�'��(��"%�"��&��1�"�#'"��3#��#��"0�
�


���� 
�� ��&�(����������4���������%������6	���#���2�� #�����2�!"�&�"�1���!&#��2�#''�'*�
#���!������%��'�&!'����#��!'�$��������
'3��!' �'���*�'&�%�#'"�#����'��'"�"��!�(!� �����
1#����(!��2��2#��'*�#22�!2��#���2!��&����(!��(�!!"����4� #'#*� �'��#�������!&#����3��0�
�


$���� 
�� ��&�(�$����%&�� %���+ �� #��������������%���������������#������ #��&�
#����� �'��!(������#'"�"�3��!2#1���#'"�"���3��#1���(!���!���'*�$����'�#'�#��#0������
#����� �'���'&��"���#�J�#���(!�������D�$���������2�1��&�&#'�2�! !���������#��1��'*�
����#1���(!���!���'*�"�3��!2 �'��#'"�#22�#��#��!(�"���3��#1������1��#�2#'���!(�"�3��!2����
#'"�	�*������"��!&�#���#'"�!�"��,	���.�#&��3���'������!&#�� #�4��0�
�


$��� 
�� ��&�(�$����%&�� �4�����������%�������������#����"��#&�!���#'��"�'��(��"�
�#�*����J���(�&!'�#�'�"D��!���'*� #�4����!�2�!3�"���'"����#'"�'*��!$����� #�4���
!2��#����#'"������4�����!�!2��#����'�����(�����0��������2�!3�"���#'�#����� �'��!(�2#��%�
&����'��#'"�(���������'"���'��!���'*���2��#'"���'���%��!����!�"���:�%�#'"��!���'*�'��"%�

APPENDIX APage 246



��������
�����������������������������������������	
���	��
�
�����	
���
���	����
�������������

�
���������������������������������������������������� �

�

 
���

�'&��"�'*�#'�#����� �'��!(�����'��"��!(�*�!�2��$����2#���&��#���!���'*���8���� �'��0��'�
����2��2#�#��!'�!(�����"!&� �'�%�#�&!'�����'����1+��*�!'#��#22�!#&������ 2!��#'�%�#�����
�����'3!�3� �'��!(�4�����#4��!�"�����'������!&#���!���'*� #�4��0�
�


��� 
(��%(�� %���%%�+ ���%�� �'���
�


6*� 
��+���6�#�����*���&��
�


���� 
�����"���'��� %(��"���� �������%���+ ���%�����
�


�� 
�� ��&�(��#/�(��+��
�


��� 
'�(� �������(���%���� ���������#���"���*'#��!'���'"�������
��!2�#'��'�!'�
"���&��3��!'������!'���3#��!'�!(�/��"����"�0��!*������$�����2�&�#�����#��!(�
�!'���3#��!'%����������(!� �#�'��$!�4�!(�2�!��&��"�������#&�!�������
��!2�#'��'�!'%�
&#���"��#���#�>HHH0�
�


��� 
�''����%� ����� %%�%&���(���%������#���!(�������6%������2�!3�"��
��22�� �'�#����'(!� #��!'��'����2�&��!(�����2!��&����&!'�#�'�"��'�����%�#'"���'"��!�
(!&���!'�2#���&��#���������!��!'�2#���&��#��2�#&��0������"!�'!��(!� �2#���!(�����
��3��!2 �'����#'�#'"�#���'!����19�&���!�#'��'"�2�'"�'���5# �'#��!'0�
�




�� 
�����"�
'�(� ��
(��%��"�(��%��������������������#�'#��!'#��&!'���3#��!'�"���*'#��!'�
"�'!��'*�#�2�!��&��"�#��#0�������#�������1#����!(�!���������+1#��"�'#�����#'"�*�!�!*�&#��
&!'���3#��!'%��'&��"�'*��#��!'#���#�����	����3��%�	# �#�������%��2�&�#����!��&��!'�
���#��,����.�#'"��2�&�#�����#��!(��!'���3#��!'�,����.0�
�

� 
�� ��&�(�
�����������#��*�&���������#'�#��#�$��&�����&!'��"���"�&�'��#���!�����
#&���3� �'��!(�#'�#���!����D���!������#��*�0���#��!'#��2�#''�'*�2!��&��#��!$���!���
���#��*�����!��2�&�(�&#�����"�'��(��#'"�#��!&#�����&��������(!��"�3��!2 �'�0�
�

� �� +����%&�
,�!'��'������� 1����!(�#�*�!�2�!�*#'���"�(!������2��2!����!(��!�"�'*�
(#���%�&��&�����!����!$��,$�������!��'!����#3����'*��!*������#����&�.%�1����5&��"���
��2�����#'"���#3�������#��"�(�'�"��'������((�&��!(�������2������� ����'������,����.�
���&��#���I>HH�0�
�

;��� ;%�� �����+���'��%���� %�������������#�"�3��!2 �'��2�#'�2��2#��"��'"�������2��+
>HHA������ �1��#�����!2!���#'�"�����&��!���'��#����!&#������!����%�$��&��&!'�#�'��
2!��&�����8��3#��'���!���!����'�1!���#�����&�����2�#'�#'"��!&#��2�#'%�(!� �'*�����2#���!(�
����#���!����D����#���!���"�3��!2 �'��2�#'0��!��&����(�! �$��&��#����#3�"�(!��#'��'���#��)�
��#�%�!���'"���� �'#���2���!"�1��&!'��'��!(�������&���#���!(���#���#'"�(!� �2#���!(�����
��3��!2 �'����#'�(!��#'�#��#��'������2����"�"�!��!����$����"�����"�1��#���3��!2 �'��
��#'��!&� �'��,���.0�
�

� ;����� �������������������!$'�#'"��!�'������#''�'*�,������#����.���"����?K;�#'"�
��1��8��'��# �'" �'��%�*�!�2�#�'� 1���!(��#'"�������'�!�&#��*!�����!��J������#����D0����
�

 

APPENDIX APage 247



Operational Director
Policy, Planning and Transportation
Halton Borough Council
Rutland House
Halton Lea
WA7 2GW
www.halton.gov.uk

APPENDIX APage 248



REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board 

DATE: 
 

30th June 2011 

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director – Children and Enterprise  
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Children & Young People’s Plan 2011-14 

WARD(S) 
 

Borough-wide 

 
1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1  This report seeks Executive Board approval for the new Children & 
Young People’s Plan 2011-14 to proceed to Full Council for adoption. 
(Plan located at 
http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=316&MId=3704&Ver=4) 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That Council be recommended to endorse  

and adopt the Children and Young People’s Plan 2011-14.       
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

3.1 The CYPP is the agreed joint strategy of the partners in the Children’s 
Trust, detailing how they will co-operate to improve children’s 
wellbeing.  It represents Halton’s local vision and aspirations for 
children and young people in the borough.  It provides strategic 
direction and determines how the Children’s Trust Board will work 
together to commission services to address locally identified needs 
and better integrate provision. 
 

3.2 The CYPP is a core element within the overall vision for the borough, 
as contained within the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 

3.3 Halton’s first Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) was published 
in 2006, covering a three year period to 2009.  The second CYPP for 
Halton was published in 2009 and ran until March 31st 2011. 
 

3.4 Halton’s Children’s Trust Board was established in 2008 in line with 
national requirements that became statutory on April 1st 2010.  The 
Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning (ASCL) Act 2009, 
together with the Children’s Trust Statutory Guidance 2010, increased 
the Trust’s powers in a number of ways, widening the number of 
statutory partners on the Trust, and designating responsibility for 
producing, implementing and reviewing the Children & Young 
People’s Plan to all partners on the Trust jointly. 
 

3.5 The Coalition Government announced in July 2010 its intention to 
reform Children’s Trusts.  The proposals came into force from October 
31st 2010 and included: 

Agenda Item 12gPage 249



 
• removing the duty on schools to co-operate through Children’s 

Trusts  
• removing the requirement on local authorities to set up 

Children’s Trust Boards and the requirement on those Boards 
to prepare and publish a joint Children and Young People’s 
Plan (CYPP) 

• revoking the regulations underpinning the CYPP and 
withdrawing the statutory guidance on Children’s Trusts. 

 
3.6 
 

Although the Coalition Government removed the statutory footing for 
Children’s Trusts, it did reconfirm its commitment to working in 
partnership to improve outcomes for children and young people 
through locally agreed partnerships.  The reforms allow each local 
authority area to agree its own way forward in terms of delivering 
children and young people’s services.  The duty for partners to co-
operate will continue, but the list of statutory partners reduced to 
remove the bureaucracy surrounding Children’s Trusts or similar local 
partnerships for partners, and in particular schools. 
 

3.7 
 

Following the announcement of the reforms, the future of Halton’s 
Children’s Trust was discussed at both the Children’s Trust Board and 
Executive Group.  At both there was universal agreement from all 
partners for the Trust to continue in its current format, as the 
overarching multi agency body that contains all children & young 
people’s services in Halton.  This reflects the breadth and strength of 
partnership working across the children & young people’s agenda in 
Halton, as well universal understanding of the need to continue to 
work in partnership in the challenging economic climate currently 
faced.   
 

4.0 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 
 

The Children’s Trusts reforms in essence brought a reversal to the 
pre-April 2010 status of Children’s Trusts.   
 

4.2 The reforms removed the requirement to produce a CYPP.  With 
agreement to continue the Children’s Trust arrangements came the 
need for a CYPP to provide strategic direction and so a third CYPP for 
Halton has been developed within the Children’s Trust for a three year 
period from 2011-14.   
 

4.3 Work began on the new CYPP following a Children’s Trust 
Development Day in December 2010.  The event was used to reflect 
on the progress achieved by the Trust since 2008 in terms of its’ 
priorities, the key initiatives facing the Trust at present and also to 
agree the priorities for the Trust for the next three years.  Following 
further consultation, the new priorities for the Children’s Trust have 
been agreed as 
 

Page 250



• Improve outcomes for children and young people through 
embedding integrated processes to deliver early help and 
support. 

• Improve outcomes for children and young people through 
effective joint commissioning 

• Improve outcomes for our most vulnerable children and young 
people by targeting services effectively 

 
4.4 The focus on Safeguarding will continue to be a key theme for the 

Trust across these priorities. 
 

4.5 The new CYPP is framed around these priorities. 
 

4.6 Work on the new Plan was stopped for a four week period in January 
and February 2011 as Halton planned for and underwent its 
Safeguarding & Looked After Children Inspection. 
 

4.7 The CYPP will impact upon all policy areas for children and young 
people’s services across all partner agencies within the Children’s 
Trust un Halton. 
 

5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 The CYPP is fully aligned with the new Sustainable Community 
Strategy for Halton 2011-26.  It is crucial that partners continue to play 
an integral role in the delivery of the Plan over the next three years 
through the Children’s Trust structures. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 Children & Young People in Halton  
 
The CYPP is the key strategic document for the Children’s Trust, 
within which all children and young people’s services in Halton sits.   
The Plan outlines the main priorities for the Trust in order to improve 
outcomes for children, young people and their families in Halton. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 

The Plan has a strong focus on continuing to tackle the numbers of 
Not in Education, Employment and Training (NEET) young people in 
Halton, including through the promotion of apprenticeship 
opportunities. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Although there is no longer a specific Health priority within the CYPP, 
Health remains a clear priority for the Children’s Trust within the three 
priorities, fully involved and leading on working within each.  Health 
indicators also remain a key element of the Performance Management 
Framework that supports the CYPP. 

Page 251



 

6.4 A Safer Halton  
 
The Plan looks at work being done around alcohol, anti-social 
behaviour and youth offending.  In each of these areas the Trust 
works closely with the Safer Halton Partnership. 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
The CYPP highlights the development of further provision in Halton, 
including the CRMZ facility in Widnes and additional secure residential 
accommodation across Halton. 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 It is vital that both the Council and Children’s Trust continue 
to be clear about priorities for service delivery and that this strategy 
receives ratification by Elected Members. 
 

7.2 Absence of a CYPP will: 
 
• Reduce the ability to take account of the local community’s 

aspirations, needs and priorities; 
• Have serious implications for Partnership co-ordination between 

all the public, voluntary and community organisations and other 
stakeholders that operate locally for the benefit of children, 
young people and their families; 

• Potentially reduce the effectiveness of the Partnership through 
fragmentation of strategies; 

 
7.3 These risks can be mitigated by the adoption of the SCS and its 

implementation, monitoring and ultimate delivery. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment undertaken on the document showed 
that there are no negative impacts on any individuals and groups 
within Halton as a result of the Plan.  The Children & Young People’s 
Plan facilitates positive action for children and young people overall in 
Halton and for particular groups of children and young people as 
appropriate. 
 

9.0 REASON(S) FOR DECISION 
 

9.1 
 
 

This CYPP has been developed to replace the previous Plan that 
expired on March 31st 2011 and takes into account the agreed new 
priorities for the Children’s Trust for the next three years.  The CYPP 
is also aligned with the new Sustainable Community Strategy 2011-
26. 
 

Page 252



10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 

10.1 N/A 
 

11.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 

11.1 The Children & Young People’s Plan is the overarching strategy that 
Halton’s Children’s Trust is working towards meeting.  The Plan will be 
implemented once approved. 
 

12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Document 
 

Place of Inspection 
 

Contact Officer 

Children Act 2004 2
nd

 Floor, Runcorn 
Town Hall 

Mark Grady 

Halton Children & Young 
People’s Plan 2009-11 

2
nd

 Floor, Runcorn 
Town Hall 

Mark Grady 

 
 

 
 

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
Halton 

Children & 
Young 

People’s Plan 
2011-14 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 255



 2

CONTENTS  

1.  Executive Summary............................................................................... 4 

Section One: Setting the Scene ....................................................5 

2.  What is a Children & Young People’s Plan? .......................................... 5 

3.  How does this Plan relate to other plans and strategies?....................... 6 

4.  What is happening nationally? ............................................................... 8 

5.  What is Halton like? ............................................................................... 9 

6.  Consultation......................................................................................... 12 

7.  Review of progress against promises .................................................. 16 

8.  Celebration of Success........................................................................ 20 

Halton Playbuilder Programme ...................................................20 

Section Two:  Vision & Partnership Priorities ...........................26 

9.  Halton’s Vision for Children & Young People ....................................... 26 

10.  Integrated Governance ...................................................................... 27 

11. Halton Levels of Need......................................................................... 29 

12.  Team around the Family .................................................................... 30 

13.  Joint Commissioning.......................................................................... 32 

14.  Vulnerable Children & Young People................................................. 35 

Section Three: Integrated Processes .........................................37 

15. Safeguarding ...................................................................................... 37 

16. Performance ....................................................................................... 38 

17. Integrated Working Support Teams .................................................... 40 

18.  Equality & Diversity............................................................................ 41 

19. Transition to Adulthood....................................................................... 41 

20. Workforce Development ..................................................................... 42 

21. Participation........................................................................................ 43 

22. Child and Family Poverty .................................................................... 44 

23. New set of promises ........................................................................... 46 

 

 

 
 

Page 256



 3

Forewords 
 

 
 
 
 

On behalf of Halton’s Children’s Trust I am pleased to 
present Halton’s Children and Young People’s Plan. We 
have made great progress recently, but we still have much 
to do and this plan will set out our ambitions for our children 
and young people. This plan is for all our children and 
young people in Halton, and importantly it focuses our 
thoughts and actions in areas where the Children’s Trust 
believes we need to accelerate progress. This does not 
mean that those areas and services not directly identified in 
this plan are not equally important; on the contrary, in these 
areas we expect it to be ‘business as usual’ in continuing to 
improve outcomes in Halton. 
 
This plan captures the changes that are taking place 
nationally as well as locally and will ensure that all partners 
within the Children’s Trust can continue to work together to 
ensure that all children and young people in Halton can 
reach their full potential. 
 
Councillor John Swain 
Lead Member for Children’s Services 
Chair, Children’s Trust Board 

This plan sets out the priorities for 
children and young people in 
Halton, and how the Children’s 
Trust Board will make sure that 
our families get the help and 
support that they need in order to 
do well. Parents, carers and 
young people can positively 
contribute to this through 
involvement with the Children’s 
Trust via the Parent & Carer 
Forum and the Youth Cabinet. In 
this way, our voices can be heard 
and we can help shape future 
services so that they are 
meaningful and effective. 
 
Cleo Pollard 
Parent & Carer Forum Chair 
and Representative on 
Children’s Trust Board 

As Strategic Director for Children & Enterprise in Halton, I am personally accountable for the 
successful implementation of both the Children and Young People’s Plan and its commissioning 
priorities. Its contents reflect both the significant progress we have made to date; along with the 
areas we must improve further. It is optimistic, but challenging.  
 
The Children and Young People’s Plan comes at a time when we are moving into a new phase of 
planning and delivery of services with our partners. As a partnership for children we need to 
continue working as one ‘organisation’ to deliver the Children and Young People’s Plan intended 
outcomes. Virtual as that organisation may be, its impact must be real, substantial and enduring, 
within the context of a changing national and local policy framework.  
 
Whatever the national policy context, our focus is about improving outcomes for children, young 
people and their families locally. We have therefore developed and designed it with them; and is 
yet another example of how we can work together to common purpose. The partnership we have 
with the people we serve and the many services that support them is an inclusive one. I therefore 
have confidence that together we will meet the challenges the Children and Young People’s Plan 
sets out for us. 
 
Gerald Meehan 
Strategic Director Children and Enterprise Directorate 
Chair Children’s Trust Executive Group 
 

Page 257



 4

1.  Executive Summary 
 

Halton Children’s Trust’s Vision for Children & Young People 
 
Halton’s ambition is to build stronger, safer communities which are able to 
support the development and learning of children and young people so they 
grow up feeling safe, secure, happy and healthy, and ready to be Halton’s 
present and Halton’s future 
 
Children’s Trust Partnership Priorities  
 
Improve outcomes for children and young people through embedding 
integrated processes to deliver early help and support. 
 
Improve outcomes for children and young people through effective joint 
commissioning 
 
Improve outcomes for our most vulnerable children and young people by 
targeting services effectively 
 
Children’s Trust Values 
 

Working together in creating a clear vision and ambition about what we want 
to do for our children and young people and how we are going to get there 
 
Working together to create a sense of ownership in building a borough that 
our children and young people can be proud of 
 
Working together to make sure we are accountable to the community by 
providing services and support, which reflect their lives and needs 
 
Working together with integrity to make sure all children and young people in 
Halton receive and have access to the best we can offer 
 
Working together to build an inclusive borough which values diversity and 
works hard to promote equality of access and opportunity 
 
Working together in an honest and open manner, which appreciates different 
opinions and welcomes alternative perspectives on the path to finding a way 
forward 
 
Working together in ways that demonstrate a professional respect for 
everybody involved in making a difference to the lives of children and young 
people in Halton 
 

Page 258



 5

Section One: Setting the Scene 
 

2.  What is a Children & Young People’s Plan? 
 
The Children & Young People’s Plan is a joint, strategic, overarching plan for all partners 
within the Children’s Trust and the services they provide for children and young people in 
Halton.  The Children’s Trust is a partnership of all stakeholders, including agencies and 
services from both the public and voluntary sectors, as well as representatives of parents, 
carers, children and young people.  The Trust allows for work to be done in partnership to 
improve outcomes for children and young people in Halton. 
 
The Children & Young People’s Plan describes how we will work in partnership to improve 
outcomes for children and young people in Halton.  It sets out the long term vision for 
improving their health and wellbeing and establishes the strategic priorities for the Trust 
until 2014.  It supports the development of integrated and effective services to secure the 
outcomes for children and young people.   
 
The Plan supports the process of joint planning for Children’s Trust partners as they work 
together to agree clear targets and priorities for all their services to children and young 
people. It identifies the actions and activities needed to achieve them, and ways to ensure 
delivery.   
 
This document has been developed following consultation and assessment of need, and is 
underpinned by detailed delivery and service plans for the Trust and individual partners 
within the Trust.  The Plan provides a strategic framework within which partners can 
commission services in a co-ordinated way, using integrated process, practice and shared 
resource. 
 
The Plan covers all services for children and young people aged 0-19, young people aged 
20 and over leaving care and young people up to the age of 25 with disabilities or learning 
difficulties.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 259



 6

3.  How does this Plan relate to other plans and strategies? 
 
Halton Children's Trust brings together the organisations responsible for services for 
children, young people and families across the borough. Our Children and Young People’s 
Plan sets out the key improvement priorities for the Trust, and describes how they will be 
achieved.   
 
The Plan is informed by and is aligned with the information contained within the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Halton.  The JSNA underpins the health-related 
elements of our needs analysis and will inform commissioning decisions around key areas 
for children’s services, including: 
 

• Obesity 
• Teenage pregnancy 
• Child and family poverty 
• Vulnerable children and young people 

 
The organisations within the Children's Trust are also part of the wider Halton Strategic 
Partnership, the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) for Halton. This partnership brings 
together organisations that work for all citizens of Halton and includes public, private, 
community and voluntary organisations.  
 
Halton’s Sustainable Community Strategy (2011-2026) is the long-term strategy of the 
Halton Strategic Partnership.  This aims to enhance the quality of life of local communities 
through actions to improve the economic, social and environmental well being of the area 
and its inhabitants.  The Strategy contains five strategic priorities for Halton, these are: 
 

• Healthy Halton 
• Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton 
• Safer Halton 
• Children & Young People in Halton 
• Environment & Regeneration in Halton 
 

For the Children & Young People priority, this Children & Young People’s Plan provides 
the detail of the issues, aims and objectives outlined in the Sustainable Community 
Strategy. 
 
Underneath the Children & Young People’s Plan sit plans and strategies that link closely to 
this Plan.  These provide further detail within one of the following three categories: 
 

• Single issue plans and strategies that apply to all Children’s Trust partners, for 
example the Children’s Trust Integrated Workforce Strategy and National 
Treatment Plan. 

• Operational plans that look at the remit and functions of Children’s Trust groups, 
such as the Children’s Trust Business Plan 

• Individual plans and strategies developed by agencies within the Children’s Trust 
for their own organisational activity.  One example would be the Youth Justice Plan 
for Halton that details the work of the Halton & Warrington Youth Offending Team. 

 
A diagram to illustrate this planning framework is set out below: 

Page 260



 7 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
1



 8

4.  What is happening nationally? 
 
The economic recession that began in 2008 has meant that for many families, businesses 
and organisations money has become much scarcer. For the Children’s Trust it is more 
important than ever to target out resources on the things that really matter in order to make 
sure children and young people get the right help at the right time. We must ensure that 
the resources that we have available are targeted effectively on the greatest areas of need 
within Halton.   
 
The Coalition Government, on coming into office in 2010, introduced a number of reforms 
that have and will have a significant impact on the way services are delivered. Some of 
these reforms have directly affected the Children’s Trust and these changes in policy and 
legislation will have a bearing on how the Children’s Trust will prioritise its services. 
 
Under the previous Government, Children’s Trusts became statutory following the 
Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning (ASCL) Act 2009. This statutory footing was 
revoked however by the Coalition Government reforms, effective from October 31st 2010 
onwards.  This directly affected Children’s Trusts by: 
 

• removing the duty on schools to co-operate through Children’s Trusts  
• removing the requirement on local authorities to set up Children’s Trust Boards and 

the requirement on those Boards to prepare and publish a joint Children and Young 
People’s Plan (CYPP) 

• revoking the regulations underpinning the CYPP and withdrawing the statutory 
guidance on Children’s Trusts. 

 
At the same time however, the Coalition Government reconfirmed its commitment to 
working in partnership to improve outcomes for children and young people through locally 
agreed partnerships.   
 
The reforms were discussed by partners within the Children’s Trust in Halton and it 
became clear that there was a collective will from all partners to continue to work in 
partnership to improve outcomes for children and young people in Halton, and for this work 
in partnership to remain within the existing Children’s Trust – Halton’s partnership for 
children and young people.     
 
Despite the reforms removing any requirement to produce a Children & Young People’s 
Plan, as part of the commitment to continue to work in partnership through the Children’s 
Trust, there was universal agreement that a new Plan should be produced, taking into 
consideration the Coalition Government’s reforms and the progress made in Halton, while 
also providing strategic direction for the next three years. 
 
Research undertaken by EMIE in early 2011 showed that many areas nationally have 
made similar decisions on their Children’s Trust and CYPP.  This research found that 61% 
of Children’s Trusts had announced their intention to continue within the new political 
framework, a further 25% appeared to be continuing but had not formally announced this, 
and only 14% were under review.  EMIE also found similar support from Children’s Trusts 
for publishing a Children & Young People’s Plan for their Trust. 
 
 
 

Page 262



 9

5.  What is Halton like? 
 
Halton is a largely urban area of 118,700 people (2009 population estimate). Its two 
biggest settlements are Widnes and Runcorn that face each other across the River 
Mersey, 10 miles upstream from Liverpool. The population of Halton has recently started 
to increase. This in part is due to a concerted effort to build new houses, as well as 
increased inward migration.  The population is projected to grow to 122,900 in 2023, in line 
with national projected population growth. 
 
The ethnic composition of Halton remains predominantly white, with 97.7% of the 
population falling into this category. This is significantly higher than found regionally or 
nationally, suggesting a relative lack of ethnic diversity in Halton.  In terms of religion, 
Halton has a greater percentage of people of Christian faith and a lower percentage of 
Muslim faith and people with no religion compared to regional and national figures. 
 
A breakdown of Halton’s population shows that the borough has a higher proportion of 
children and young people aged 0-24 than commonly found across England and Wales.  
Over the next decade the numbers of 0-15 year olds is projected to grow at a faster rate 
than the population of Halton overall, leading to an increase in the proportion of the local 
population aged 0-24 by 2023. 
 
Halton shares many of the social and economic problems associated with its neighbours 
on Merseyside. The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) for 2010 is one of the most 
comprehensive sources of deprivation indicators and shows that overall, Halton is ranked 
27th nationally (a ranking of 1 indicates that an area is the most deprived), which is third 
highest on Merseyside, behind Knowsley and Liverpool, and 9th highest in the North West.  
The IMD 2010 suggests that deprivation has stayed relatively level in the borough from 
since 2007. The Index shows that 25% of Halton’s population live in the most deprived 
areas (i.e. the top 10% of Lower Super Output Areas) nationally. Two neighbourhoods in 
Halton fall in the top 1% most deprived super output areas nationally. Much has been done 
but clearly there is still much to do to narrow the gap between the least and most deprived 
parts of the Borough while at the same time improving overall prosperity for all. 
 
The PCT Maternity Health Needs Assessment shows that Halton has higher deprivation 
and poorer health than England as a whole but there is considerable variation within the 
PCT.  In particular, rates of smoking, alcohol use, obesity, domestic violence and infant 
mortality are higher than in other areas and rates of breastfeeding lower.  The poor levels 
of health in the local population present a challenge to maternity services and health 
services in ensuring that these inequalities are not perpetuated in a new generation. 
Implementation of new care pathways (smoking in pregnancy, weight management, direct 
access and early access to services) will help to reduce these inequalities and are a 
priority for action. 
 
Research for Halton’s State of the Borough Report tells us that Halton is: 
 

• an area where over 70% of people are satisfied with their local area as a place to 
live 

• tackling deprivation, however it still remains one of the most deprived areas in the 
North West with unemployment rates higher than the North West and National rates 

• an area where health issues are still evident with life expectancy lower than the 
North West and England averages 

Page 263



 10

• an area with plenty of open space; 12 areas within Halton have been designated 
with Green Flag awards 

• improving it’s GCSE results and reducing the number of 16 to 18 year olds not in 
education, employment or training (NEET). 

• an area with a diverse and prospering economy, with increasing average incomes 
for residents, improvement in skills and with higher rates of employment in the 
manufacturing sector 

 
Focusing more specifically on children and young people, if Halton is looked at in terms of 
being a village of 100 children and young people, the key statistics for the Borough are: 

Page 264



 11 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
5



 12

6.  Consultation 
 
People and communities within Halton should feel a sense of ownership over their local 
area.  Part of this is giving the opportunity to help to shape the services that are provided 
for them and how they are delivered.   
 
Consultation is one part of engaging with local communities to give people greater 
influence over decisions that affect them.  It is about developing and maintaining open and 
effective relationships between public agencies and the communities they serve.  This 
engagement helps us to make better decisions.  Children, young people and their parents 
and carers should be involved in decision making on all levels when services for them are 
developed. Organisations should listen to and work in partnership with service users to 
create and develop the best ways for services to operate.   
 
In the development of this Plan we have consulted with all stakeholders, including children 
and young people, parents and carers and also staff from all agencies that work with 
children, young people and their families.  We looked at a number of key areas, including: 
 

• Life in Halton 
• Aspirations 
• Health 
• Education and learning 
• Safety 
• Involvement and engagement 

 
The key trends that came out of this consultation are highlighted below. More detail on this 
consultation is available from www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust or by emailing 
childrenstrust@halton.gov.uk 
 
 Consultation with children and 

young people 
Consultation with parents, carers 
and other stakeholders 

Consultation 
statistics 

• Ages ranged from 4 – 19 and 
included a large cross-section 
of groups from across Halton.   

• The most common age range 
was 13 to 19,  

• 59% were female 
• Residency was equally split 

between Runcorn and Widnes. 

• 56% of respondents live within 
Halton,  

• 76% have children of their own 
• 70% work with children and 

young people in Halton. 

Best things 
about Halton 

• Access to parks and open 
spaces 

• Youth clubs and after school 
clubs 

• Strong relationships with family 
and friends, “I have lots of 
friends, I like being at home” 
(traveller, aged 5).  

• Swimming pools  
• Good shopping areas, 

particularly in Widnes 

• Access to parks and open 
spaces 

• Education provision 
• Groups and activities organised 

for younger children in 
particular in settings such as 
children’s centres 

 

Worst things • Not enough groups and • Not enough groups and 

Page 266



 13

about Halton organised activities for 
teenagers, (“nothing to do that 
we can afford” – care leaver) 

• Litter, graffiti and pollution  
• Crime – in particular vandalism, 

bullying, intimidation and 
violence, with alcohol 
consumption often seen as a 
contributing factor (“alcohol is a 
massive issue and the violence 
resulting from it” - looked after 
child) 

organised activities for 
teenagers 

• The level of pollution 
• General safety 

 

Health Most young people feel that health 
services meet their needs but 
issues highlighted included: 
 
• Referral/waiting times can be 

too long for accessing GP 
services 

• GP communication with 
children and young people 
could be better “sometimes I 
can’t understand what they 
(Doctors) say” - Care leaver.   

• 75% of Young Carers had 
never been asked by their GP if 
they are a Young Carer. 

• Some young people had 
experienced difficulty in 
accessing a dentist.   

• Young people felt more 
publicity was needed to raise 
awareness of support and 
advice services on alcohol, 
sexual health and obesity.   

Respondents felt that the Trust 
should look to focus more on 
providing emotional health support, 
perhaps through a support network 
of staff across agencies to offer 
help to children and their families 
when they need it. 
 
In addition, the need for education 
and awareness-raising on a range 
of health issues, including alcohol, 
drugs and physical fitness activities 
was highlighted. 
 

Education & 
Learning  

Schools and colleges generally 
support young people to achieve 
what they want to, but this support 
can vary depending on the school 
or teacher, and the more specialist 
support that some young people 
require is not always available 
(“college doesn’t suit the way I 
learn, they don’t adhere to learning 
styles” - YOT client) 
 
Some pupils are seen to have more 
opportunities to contribute than 
others, and when individuals are 
asked for their views, responses do 
not always appear to be acted 
upon.  (“They asked us, but wasn’t 

It was felt that Halton has good 
quality educational services, 
beginning with early years 
childcare.  The focus therefore 
should be on ensuring the 
availability of apprenticeships for 
our young people when they finish 
school and ensuring that they have 
the right skills for these 
apprenticeships.  
 

Page 267



 14

sure whether they did anything 
about what we said” - Care Leaver. 
 
 “Need to have the same rules and 
opportunities for everyone, not just 
particular pupils” – LAC). 

Safety An equal split of young people feels 
safe and conversely unsafe in their 
community.   
 
The major causes of fear and 
anxiety are anti-social behaviour 
and groups congregating. Town 
centres and social housing estates 
are seen as the least safe areas.  
Having better street lighting and 
more police patrols would reduce 
young people’s concerns, as would 
more affordable bus fares to ensure 
young people could avoid walking 
in more isolated areas. 

Transport was the main safety 
issue identified – ensuring that 
transport is safe, cheap and 
accessible to all across the 
Borough at all times of the day. 
 
In addition, a number of 
respondents highlighted the need to 
ensure there are more organised 
activities and areas for young 
people that are safe places for them 
to meet in groups away from the 
streets where they are perceived as 
causing a nuisance. 

Involvement 
& 
Engagement 

Young people feel that the most 
effective ways of involving them 
and their peers are through group 
and individual discussions, 
including as part of wider 
community meetings.   
 
It was felt that more could be done 
to promote opportunities to take 
part in activities, learn new skills or 
gain qualifications.   
 
The main barriers to all having the 
same opportunities are seen to be 
cost and the location of activities. 

The opportunities for involvement 
and engagement in Halton was 
seen as an area of strength, 
although some felt that more 
activities and groups could be 
provided for the 6-11 age range.  
 
The main obstacle to accessing 
activities is parent and carer 
awareness of when and where they 
activities are available. 
 
The new CRMZ facility was seen as 
providing a great opportunity for a 
central hub for activities and 
educational classes for all young 
people to be organised from. 

 

 
The consultation highlighted a correlation in the responses provided in both parts of the 
consultation in terms of what are felt to be the best and worst things about living in Halton. 
 
As an additional part of the children and young people consultation, we asked what their 
aspirations are for themselves.  Responses tended to focus on having a good job, gaining 
a high level of skills and being financially secure. 
 
When asked if you would want to change anything about your life, younger children and 
young people generally felt they were happy and would not change anything. In contrast, 
Care Leavers tended to highlight a need for more stability and security within their home 
lives, and to have more involvement in decisions made about them.   
 

Page 268



 15

For our children and young people, this consultation told us that the most important issues 
for them are: 
 
• having more things to do, places to go and activities to engage in;  
• having access to better health services for issues such as sexual health, drugs and 

alcohol abuse;  
• More job/training opportunities and support to encourage young people to reach their 

potential; 
• Reducing crime and in particular the fear of crime 

 
 
TellUs 4 Survey 2009 
 
The fourth TellUs Survey conducted in autumn 2009 was a national survey that gathered 
the views of children and young people in school years 6, 8 and 10 on their life, school and 
local area.  The results of this survey for children and young people in Halton told us that: 
 

• Alcohol - 51% had tried it at some point in their life, while 43% had never tried it 
• Sport – 50% had taken part in a sports club or class in the last 4 weeks 
• Bullying – 24% were worried about being bullied 
• Safety – 80% felt very or quite safe in the area that they live 
• Public Transport – 21% use regularly, 46% sometimes use, while 33% never use 
• Parks and Play areas – 52% thought their local parks and play areas were very or 

fairly good 
• University/Higher Education – 60% thought they would go on to University/Higher 

Education 
 
The top three things highlighted to make their lives better were: 
 

• More places to go to spend time with friends 
• More interesting school lessons 
• More help to plan their future 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 269



 16

7.  Review of progress against promises 
 
The last Children & Young People’s Plan 2009-11 contained 14 promises that we aimed to 
achieve within the lifespan of the Plan.  This section outlines what has been achieved 
against each promise. 
 
What we set 
out to do 

We will make sure that our actions and decisions are guided by a 
single set of arrangements so we are more accountable to our 
communities and enable children, young people and their families to 
receive the support and services they need when they need it. 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The Children’s Trust is now guided by an agreed Business Plan and 
work is co-ordinated between different groups within the Children’s 
Trust structures, as appropriate for each level of the structures. 

• The Parent & Carers Forum feeds directly into the Children’s Trust 
Board through the chair to ensure two-way communication. 

• Young people’s groups, such as Youth Cabinet, are regularly 
consulted and have two-way communication with the Children’s Trust. 

• Team around the Family is enabling the Children’s Trust to realign 
support and services to ensure children, young people and their 
families get the right help when it is needed. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will continue to prioritise safeguarding as an essential part of 
everything we do in order to continue to embed the values and goals 
of ensuring that safeguarding is everybody’s business 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The Children’s Trust sees safeguarding as a key priority that is taken 
into consideration within all of its work. 

• The Children’s Trust and Halton Safeguarding Children’s Board 
(HSCB) are closely aligned and provide challenge and scrutiny to the 
work of each other.  This relationship is now defined through a Joint 
Protocol. 

• The work done to prioritise safeguarding as everyone’s business 
across the Children’s Trust and this was reflected in the successful 
2011 Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding and Looked After Children. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will develop a Children’s Trust Resource Strategy 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• Work on the Children’s Trust Resource Strategy is now part of the 
developing Team around the Family model for Halton 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will support our workforce to be the best they can be by offering 
opportunities to develop their skills and knowledge in supporting 
our ambition to make a significant difference to children and young 
people 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• A Children’s Trust Integrated Workforce Strategy 2011-14 is in place 
and the action plan rolled out for the next three years. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will produce a Children’s Trust Equality and Diversity Strategy 

What has • A Children’s Trust Equality & Diversity Scheme has been published 

Page 270



 17

been 
achieved 

that takes into consideration the implications of the Equality Act 2010. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will develop a Children’s Trust Commissioning Strategy for 
Halton 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• A Children’s Trust Joint Commissioning Framework 2010-12 has been 
developed and joint commissioning is now a key strategic priority for 
the Children’s Trust. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

The Children’s Trust will continue the strong partnership with Third 
Sector organisations to develop services for enterprising behaviour 
and entrepreneurial work and will continue to ensure Third Sector 
involvement in planning and delivery services 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The Third Sector is now known as the Voluntary and Community 
Sector (VCS).  Representatives continue to sit on each group within 
the Children’s Trust and the VCS Forum reports directly to the 
Children’s Trust Board. 

• Links with the sector were strengthened through the establishment of 
a Lead Engagement Officer post 

• The VCS will be key partners within future joint commissioning 
activities. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will establish a range of secure, safe, stable and permanent 
accommodation, which young people leaving our care can move 
into, and stay for as long as they need it 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• A Children in Care Placement Strategy has been developed and 
endorsed addressing the accommodation needs of our care leavers.  

• Over the past two years, 9 units of accommodation have been 
developed for care leavers in association with the private sector and 
local Registered Social Landlords. This has given young people 
some choice of location within the borough and allows them to 
develop their independence skills with the support of a range of 
professionals, including social workers, support workers, personal 
advisors and partner agencies.  

• In addition, more units of accommodation will be developed in the 
forthcoming year and those already in place will be subject to review. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will actively seek resolution to young people’s concerns about 
transport across the borough by setting up a Young Persons Travel 
Forum to enable the voice of young people to be heard by those 
planning and providing transport for young people across Halton 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• Through working closely with the Halton Youth Cabinet, a Young 
People’s Travel Forum has been established. 

• The Forum has developed links with local transport services and 
providers, in particular local bus companies, and is helping to develop 
actions that can be implemented to ease the travel concerns of young 
people in Halton. 

• The Children’s Trust and the Young People’s Travel Forum have 
been involved in the development of the new Local Transport Plan for 
Halton (LTP3) to ensure it fully takes into consideration young 
people’s views. 

Page 271



 18

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will introduce locality working across the borough in April 2010. 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The roll out of locality working, now known as Team around the 
Family, began in April 2010 and is continuing to be embedded across 
Halton.  Two teams have been established, one for Runcorn, one for 
Widnes, to directly meet the needs of children and families where 
additional needs have been identified that are below the statutory 
social work/child protection threshold.  Team around the Family, 
within early help and support, is now a key strategic priority for the 
Trust as set out within this Plan. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will review and expand the use of CAF as a key mechanism in 
supporting our commitment to early intervention and prevention 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The Common Assessment Framework in Halton is now a key strand 
of the Team around the Family model.  The CAF process has been 
reviewed and the learning utilised to improve the process for children, 
young people and their families who are in receipt of a CAF, and also 
for professionals undertaking the CAF. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will work hard across organisational and professional 
boundaries to make sure disabled children and young people live in 
barrier free environments and communities 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• There has been an increase in the number of children with severe 
and complex needs attending mainstream schools. This follows the 
success of Halton’s retained specialist services in building both 
resilience and capacity within our mainstream schools. This has 
partly been accomplished through Action Plus Enhanced Provision, 
in conjunction with the private and voluntary sectors, enabling more 
children and young people with complex needs to access 
mainstream provision without the delay of waiting for a Statement. 

•        A new communications strategy for disabled children and young 
people is in place, supporting the dedicated website and bi-monthly 
newsletter. The logo and branding found on these is crucial for our 
disabled children and young people in giving a sense of identity. 

•        A Building Bridges handbook specifically for families of disabled 
young people in Halton is now distributed to every family in Halton 
with a disabled young person. The number of registered disabled 
carers in Halton has significantly risen since the Carer’s Centre has 
become part of the Prince’s Trust 

•        The official Aiming High Charter Mark is now used by our disabled 
children and young people to score and review their experiences 
with agencies and services in Halton. 

• There has been a significant increase in the number of disabled 
children accessing short beaks services through the success of 
Halton’s Aiming High for Disabled Children programme. 

• Disabled young people and their families have increased access to 
community facilities such as parks and children’s centres through the 
provision of specialist resources e.g. hoists and sensory equipment. 

• Inclusion training accredited through National Children’s Bureau has 
been provided for 100 staff working with disabled children in Halton 

Page 272



 19

to provide them with the knowledge and skills required to ensure that 
they are fully included in community activities. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

We will develop a Children’s Trust Business Plan within which a 
range of protocols will: 

• Clarify and define the relationship between the Children’s Trust 
Board and Halton Safeguarding Children Board 

• Clarify and define how conflicts between Children’s Trust 
partners will be addressed 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• The relationship between the Children’s Trust and Halton 
Safeguarding Children Board is defined by a Joint Protocol that has 
been in place since 2010. 

• The Children’s Trust Business Plan sets out how any conflicts 
between partners should be addressed. 

 

What we set 
out to do 

Each Service Delivery Partnership will develop and implement a 
business plan 

What has 
been 
achieved 

• Each Service Delivery Partnership, the sub groups of the Children’s 
Trust between 2009 and 2011, worked to a business plan and similar 
plans are now in place for each new priority for the Children’s Trust. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 273



 20

8.  Celebration of Success 
 
The development of a new Plan gives us the opportunity to highlight some examples of the 
successes of the Children’s Trust as a partnership since 2009. 
 
Safeguarding & Looked After Children Inspection 
In preparation for Halton’s announced multi agency Ofsted inspection that was due 
between June 2009 and 2012, in line with all other local authority areas, a working group 
was set up in 2009 to begin the planning needed to ensure a successful inspection. 
 
Halton’s inspection took place in February 2011.  As with all other areas, Halton had two 
weeks to prepare following the initial announcement.  The report following Halton’s 
rigorous inspection showed the success of the planning and preparations by all partners - 
Halton was graded as ‘Outstanding’ or ‘Good’ against all 22 criteria for both Safeguarding 
and Looked After Children.  This highlights the robust systems in place locally and the 
strength of partnership working across Halton in terms of safeguarding. 
 
Young People’s Travel Forum  
Halton Youth Cabinet has been instrumental in establishing a Young People’s Travel 
Forum. The group have worked on researching, consulting and documenting the views of 
their peers on transport issues, and identifying areas for improvement within an action 
plan. A key issue for the Forum has been local bus transport, and this has been taken 
forward with local bus companies through consultation workshops with senior managers to 
identify achievable and mutually beneficial ways to resolve some of the issues that the 
Forum have raised following research.  As a result, an identification system for young 
people under 16 who have difficulty in proving their age has been adopted, to reduce the 
number of under 16 year olds charged full fare for bus journeys.  This is directly attributed 
to the transport campaign of the Travel Forum, which has been delivered in an organised 
and professional manner, and enabled young people in Halton to have their say.   
 
The Forum is part of a wider young people’s shadow group that is supporting the 
implementation of the Local Transport Plan for Halton (LTP3) and have also worked with 
Transport policy staff to identify practical and sustainable projects that can be funded from 
the Local Sustainable Transport Fund, and have been supporting young people in the 
Liverpool area to have a greater say in the development of Transport within their area.   
 
Halton Playbuilder Programme 
During the past two years Halton has radically increased and improved outdoor play 
opportunities for our children and young people through Halton’s Playbuilder Programme.  
This investment has resulted in the creation of nine exciting and challenging new play 
areas and the transformation of five existing facilities. 
 
All sites have proven popular with local children and families and considerable positive 
feedback has been received.  This was reflected in the results of the TellUs 4 survey, 
which demonstrated a 9.7% increase in the levels of satisfaction with parks and play areas 
in Halton (one of the highest increases in the Country). 
 
The Playbuilder programme positively reflects Halton’s partnership approach and the value 
placed on play provision – investment from the Government and within Halton was 
matched with external investment from Big Lottery Fund, Environment Group – WREN, 
local social housing providers and the PCT. 

Page 274



 21

The Playbuilder programme has transformed the range and quality of Halton’s outdoor 
play provision, ensuring all of the Borough’s children and young people have access to 
attractive, safe and challenging play opportunities 
 
Central RMZ (CRMZ) 
CRMZ is Halton's new £3 million state-of-the-art youth hub. The hub enjoyed a Hollywood-
style opening with more than 150 people attending, from agencies such as the Canal Boat 
Project and Barnardo's, as well as young people from local youth centres.  
 
CRMZ is situated in the art deco former Kingsway Health Centre in Widnes, and was built 
as part of Myplace - a Government-funded initiative to deliver world class youth facilities 
driven by young people, their views and needs. The young design team who led the 
project provided tours around the building during its opening showing how the old meets 
the new, to create a dynamic building with all the facilities young people want. 
 
The hub offers many facilities including a common room and café area, a training kitchen, 
IT suite, creative arts facility, new multi-purpose hall, recording studios, a chill out space 
and floodlit outdoor areas. CRMZ features include internet facilities, space for advice and 
support on issues relevant to young people's needs, such as teen health, employment and 
training. 
 
Opening times for CRMZ are determined by what local young people want and include 
evenings, weekends and school/college holidays. 
 
UK Youth Parliament Annual Sitting 2010 
Adan Pass, a member of Halton’s Youth Cabinet, attended the annual sitting of the UK 
Youth Parliament in Belfast on behalf of the Cabinet.  Young people from across the 
United Kingdom came together to discuss campaigns and to participate in the further 
shaping of their manifestos.  This opportunity proved to be of great benefit, both 
individually for Adan, and also for him to share young people’s experiences in Halton and 
to have the ability to use such experiences to influence government policy.  
 
Adan says “Overall it was an utterly amazing weekend, I was given the chance to mix and 
meet people who I would have never had the opportunity to meet in everyday life. It was 
an amazing opportunity and I have made friends there that I will keep for life.  
 
“I attended the Transport campaign group which is a real barrier to young people in Halton. 
The group was very effective and I was able to exchange many ideas and find out issues 
and solutions from around the UK.  As part of the weekend we visited Stormont to have a 
look around the Irish houses of parliament. Also one of the guest speakers was John 
Bercow, we asked him questions and listened to his inspirational views about UKYP.”  
 
Health Improvement Team Healthy Schools Programme 
Halton’s Healthy Schools Programme continues to make a significant difference to the 
health and achievement of children in Halton. The programme aims to create healthy and 
happy children and young people who, as a result, do better in learning and in life through: 
 

• Support children and young people in developing healthy behaviour  
• Helping to raise pupil achievement 
• Helping to reduce health inequalities  
• Helping promote social inclusion 

 

Page 275



 22

The programme involves the whole school community from pupils, parents, governors and 
school staff and provides support, training, resources and guidance for all schools in 
Halton. In order for schools to be recognised as a healthy school, they must meet national 
criteria using a whole school approach across four themes including personal, social, 
health and economic (PSHE) education, healthy eating, physical activity and emotional 
health and well-being (EHWB). All schools in Halton have achieved National Healthy 
Schools Status and annually audit their practice to evidence the foundations for health and 
well-being is being maintained.  
 
Aiming High for Disabled Children 
Over the past three years, Halton’s Aiming High for Disabled Children project has gone 
from strength to strength in its objective to pave the way towards greater inclusion and 
broadening horizons for disabled children and their families. 
 
By the end of 2010, the target of having 360 local children accessing Short Breaks had 
been exceeded. These Short Breaks have taken various forms, from half-day picnics and 
visits to popular leisure venues, to themed residential trips, to social and networking 
events for the whole family. 
 
Aiming High has worked with Halton Play Council over the last two years to deliver a range 
of year-round open access play opportunities for the Borough’s children and young people.  
This partnership work has ensured access for all through a range of measures to break 
down barriers, including improved assessments, better training and 1-1 support, to ensure 
all schemes are accessible to all. 
 
One of the highlights of 2010 was a trip of a lifetime for 14 young people from Ashley 
School to Shanghai, supported by Aiming High, to attend the 2010 World Expo. The lucky 
14 were chosen by Everton Football Club to be their ambassadors at the Expo, and to join 
the campaign for sporting opportunities for disabled people across the globe. 
 
The group jetted off to China for 10 action-packed days, which they spent sharing their 
coaching skills with international crowds of visitors at the Expo, playing sit-down volleyball 
with the gold medal-winning Chinese Paralympics team, visiting the circus, and learning 
Tai Chi in a Shaolin temple. 
 
One of the young people who took part in the trip said: “It was an amazing experience and 
a once in a lifetime opportunity that we would never have had without Aiming High.” 
 
Healthy Business Enterprise Project – National Health Award 
Pupils from St Basil’s Primary fought off competition from over 600 schools to claim a 
national healthy living award. The project, developed in partnership with the Health 
Improvement Team, asked pupils to create a product or service to promote health within 
the school community. With financial support and guidance from the local co-operative 
committee and Primary Care Trust, pupils secured funding to get their businesses and 
ideas up and running. A healthy lifestyle market day allowed pupils to sell their products. 
Fruit flans, relaxing music CDs, plant growing packs, puzzle sheets, fruit jellies, wrist 
bands, water bottles and calendars were among their wide range of products on offer. 
Pupils attended a prestigious ceremony at Downing Street to collect the award. 
 
Halton Youth Service  
Vulnerable young people are proactively targeted and supported to access Youth Service 
provision throughout Halton. They, along with their peers, decide their needs led 

Page 276



 23

programmes from the youth work curriculum; how project budgets are spent; and are 
supported to reflect and celebrate their achievements.  
 
Halton Youth Service supports young people to have a voice locally and nationally, by 
being active partners in recruitment & selection; inspectors of services; being part of 
community action groups; school councils; local and regional youth forums; elected youth 
cabinet and member and deputy member of UK Youth Parliament.   
 
In 2010 -2011 over 600 opportunities for young people to volunteer their time were created 
and supported, and young people gave up over 4000 hours to support others in their 
communities.  
 
One example of the opportunities offered is for young people to participate in accredited 
training to volunteer as a Peer Educator.  The training provides young people with the 
necessary skills, knowledge and understanding to informally educate other young people.  
The training includes how to work with groups, how people learn, communication and team 
work skills; plus the particular subject they are focusing on such as sexual health; alcohol; 
homophobia, disability awareness or money skills. 
 
Danielle aged 15, a Money Skills Peer Educator, who has been involved with Halton Youth 
Service for over 3 years, said “I never knew how to look after my money before, I didn’t 
give it a thought. After doing the money skills course I’m thinking more carefully about 
what I spend and I’m keen to share the activities with other young people to get them 
thinking about money a bit more.” 
 
The peer education project continues to be a success.  Young people respond positively to 
the peer educators and welcome their informal methods of delivering informative 
information and advice on many issues.   

 
Halton Youth Bank 
Halton Youth Bank was formed in August 2006 as a vehicle for young people to administer 
substantial funding of Youth Opportunity and Youth Capital funds which was used to 
increase the number of ‘places to go, and things to do’ for young people in Halton.  Young 
people have full ownership of this initiative, with a panel supported by Halton Youth 
Service providing training, group work skills and working with the young people on a 
weekly basis to ensure the smooth running of the project.   The Youth Bank have been 
responsible for awarding in excess of over £750,000 to their peers.  
 
Virtual Roomz (VRMZ) 
VRMZ is a mobile outreach service that provides advocacy for disaffected young people in 
Halton where this support is most needed around issues such as alcohol, safety and to 
make positive choices.  The service works in partnership with street-based teams provided 
in conjunction with Young Addaction.  These teams provide the initial, crucial, engagement 
with disaffected young people in their locality.  Once engaged, the advocacy support 
through VRMZ can be offered to each young person. 
 
The approach aims to tackle anti-social behaviour and youth offending.  Initial analysis of 
Constabulary data for anti-social behaviour in the areas covered by both the street-based 
teams and VRMZ has shown an encouraging 18% reduction in the number of cases 
recorded in these areas.  
 
 

Page 277



 24

Contrasting youth cultures 
Young people from the Canal Boat Adventure Project raised European funding to enable 
them to compare issues relating to youth culture in Halton and Marzahn-Hellersdorf, 
Halton’s twin town in East Berlin. Ten young people from Kids und Co worked alongside 
ten Nessie Club members discussing youth unemployment, life styles and social inclusion 
in Europe and in Britain. Cheshire Police supported this initiative by providing an insight 
into policing, drug issues and community safety. A visit to CRMZ and a canal boat 
exploration of Halton provided the young Europeans with a “snapshot” of the borough: 
their feedback comments confirmed that individuals were surprised by the rural nature of 
parts of Halton. The most significant differences appear to have been Halton’s emphasis 
on early prevention and diversion into positive activities and youth volunteering. 
 
Bereavement Support and Counselling 
The tragic death of a young woman in Halton had a negative impact on a group of young 
women from the Canal Boat Adventure Project’s Nessie Club.  This led to several 
participating in bereavement support and counselling. Over the next three months there 
was evidence that individually and collectively, these young women’s fears and worries 
about community safety and violent crime were becoming disproportionate to reality.  
Following an intensive process of support and counselling, these young women confirmed 
that they had developed more confidence, resilience and understanding and they were 
able to move on in terms of grieving for the young woman. 
 
Reduction in NEET figures 
The numbers of young people in Halton aged 16-18 not in education, employment or 
training (NEET) have traditionally been high compared to the number found in our 
statistical neighbours.  Numbers have been falling in recent years however.  At the end of 
January 2011, the three month average figure was 9.3%, equating to 341 young people, 
compared with 10.3%, or 393 young people for the same three month period ending 
January 2010.  This improvement has come through effective partnership working through 
the Children Trust, led by Schools, Riverside College, Greater Merseyside Connexions, 
Job Centre Plus and Halton Borough Council, to develop a number of initiatives including 
council apprentice schemes, flexible college provision and positive partnerships with Job 
Centre Plus. 
 

Health Improvement Team Fit 4 Life Programme 
Fit 4 Life is a fun programme of activities and education, aimed at 7-13 year olds, helping 
children, young people and their families to exercise regularly and eat a nutritionally 
balanced diet. Families, over a 6 week period, for 2 hours per week, have the opportunity 
to engage in a range of healthy eating and physical activity sessions. Since Fit 4 Life was 
launched in September 2010, 17 families (36 individuals) have completed the programme 
and achieved fantastic outcomes.  All of the children involved showed positive outcomes in 
one or more of the following areas: - increased fitness; reduction in body mass index; 
reduction in waist circumference; increased self esteem; as well as showing an increased 
knowledge in healthy eating.  The programme has now expanded, with 4-week lifestyle 
programmes now being delivered within schools.  
 
Increase in Level 2 and Level 3 Achievement by age 19 
Department for Education 2010 data showed significant improvement in performance at 
both Level 2 (achieving 5+ A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent) and Level 3 (achieving 4 
AS-Level/2 A-Levels at Grade E or equivalent) by age 19.  These improvements have 
exceeded expectations and indicate that the action plans implemented by the multi agency 
14-19 Strategic Partnership are focused on the right actions to bring real improvements. 

Page 278



 25

 
At Level 2, 74.8% of Halton learners achieved a qualification by age 19, a 7.6% increase 
on 2009, the largest annual increase recorded anywhere nationally.  This level of 
improvement has been achieved whilst continuing to reduce the inequality gap, including 
between those eligible and not eligible for Free School Meals, which was reduced by 2%.  
Further growth in Level 2 attainment will be achieved for 2011, with 78% of the cohort 
having already secured a Level 2 qualification. 
 
At Level 3, 42.3% of Halton learners in 2010 achieved a qualification by age 19, an 8.4% 
increase compared to 2009, which is the second highest level of increase recorded 
nationally.  Again, it is expected that there will be a further increase in the rate of Level 3 
achievement when 2011 data is released. 
 
Warrington Road Youth Club 
A group of young people from the Warrington Road Youth Club in Widnes won two awards 
in 2010 for their artwork.  The youngsters’ entry won them the Visual Art category in the 
inaugural Halton Cultivate Awards, shortly after also taking first place in Pink Box, an 
innovative arts project encouraging young people across the North West to find out more 
about the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender (LGBT) community.  The group won the 
prizes for a collage illustrating diversity, acceptance, celebration and LGBT celebrities.  
 
Halton & Warrington Youth Offending Team 
The Halton and Warrington Youth Offending Team (YOT) received the highest outcome 
possible at its last inspection by Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Probation in 2009.  Only 
minimal improvements were required in the three areas under scrutiny, with the scoring as 
follows: 

 
• Safeguarding – score  85% 

• Risk of reoffending – score 77% 

• Risk of harm to others-public protection – score 80% 
 
In addition the numbers of young people in Halton coming into the system for the first time 
has reduced from 245 in 2007/8 to 174 in 2009, a reduction of 29%.  This is testament to 
the efforts of the YOT and other partners in preventive activity. 
 
Health Improvement Team Passport 2 Health 
Passport 2 Health is a free training course for adults working with children and young 
people aged 5-19.  Attendees learn key messages to give to children and young people to 
encourage healthier lifestyle choices around food and physical activity.  In order to reach 
as many children and young people as possible, the Health Improvement Team invite 
people who work with children and young people to be trained to deliver key health 
messages within their existing role.  By incorporating the key health messages regarding 
food and physical activity into their existing roles they have ensured these key health 
messages will be continually passed on. 
 
33,403 children and young people received key health messages relating to both healthy 
eating and physical activity between September 2010 and April 2011.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 279



 26

Section Two:  Vision & Partnership Priorities 
 

9.  Halton’s Vision for Children & Young People 
 
We have a wealth of information on what it is like to be a young person living in Halton and 
what is important to our children and young people.  Based on this knowledge, the 
Children’s Trust has agreed the following vision for all children and young people in Halton 
that is the guiding principle for this Plan. 
 
Halton’s ambition is to build stronger, safer communities which are able to support 
the development and learning of children and young people so they grow up feeling 
safe, secure, happy and healthy, and ready to be Halton’s present and Halton’s 
future 
 
Partnership Priorities  
 
Through consultation with partners from within the Children’s Trust, as well as with 
stakeholders as outlined in Section One, three overarching priorities for the Trust from 
April 2011 onwards have been agreed.  They are: 
 
Improve outcomes for children and young people through embedding integrated 
processes to deliver early help and support. 
 
Improve outcomes for children and young people through effective joint 
commissioning 
 
Improve outcomes for our most vulnerable children and young people by targeting 
services effectively 
 
In addition, safeguarding is an intrinsic part of each priority, and must be considered within 
the work of each area and will be scrutinised by the Halton Safeguarding Children Board. 
 
The focus for the Children’s Trust is on improving outcomes for our children and young 
people through these three key priorities, which although separate, are interrelated and 
this is reflected within the Children’s Trust structures and in the linkages highlighted within 
this Plan. 
 
This interrelationship between the Trust’s priorities is shown, for example, by its 
performance management framework (PMF), outlined in Section Three.  Improvements to 
outcomes experienced by our children and young people within each priority will be 
brought by improving performance against overarching indicators that cut across all three 
priorities.  These indicators are framed within the PMF against the ambitions that we as a 
Trust had in place for the last Children & Young People’s Plan, and which remain relevant 
when looking at performance.  These are: 
 

• Children and Young People are physically, emotionally and sexually healthy 
• Every Young Person is successful when they leave school 
• Children and young people do well, wherever they live, and whatever their needs 
• Children and young people will feel safe at home, in school and in their 

communities. 
 

Page 280



 27

10.  Integrated Governance 
 
These priorities have shaped the new structures for the Children’s Trust.  These structures 
facilitate all relevant stakeholders coming together at each level of the Trust to ensure that 
through challenge, support and accountability we work in partnership to bring improved 
outcomes within each priority over the next three years.   
 
The Children’s Trust Board meets quarterly and brings together senior representatives 
from all partners that work with children, young people and their families locally to agree a 
common strategy to improve children’s wellbeing and to ensure that partners work to this 
agreed strategy, the Children & Young People’s Plan.  The Children’s Trust partnership, in 
various forms, has been in place for a number of years, allowing strong and sustainable 
relationships to develop with robust strategic planning arrangements for improving 
outcomes for our children and young people at the centre.  The Children’s Trust Executive 
Group focuses on the business functions of the Trust and drives the work of the Trust.  
This group meets every six weeks.  Progress against each Children’s Trust priority is 
reported at each meeting of the Trust Board and Executive Group and in turn relevant 
information is taken from these groups to the sub groups by representatives of the sub 
groups to ensure two-way communication throughout the structures. 
 
For our joint commissioning and early help and support priorities, strategic sub groups of 
the Children’s Trust are in place that focus specifically on the ongoing work within their 
respective priority.  For our vulnerable groups, specific groups are already established that 
coordinate work to support for our vulnerable groups and so the Children’s Trust has 
agreed to continue with these existing structures for the priority.  To ensure robust 
reporting within through to the Children’s Trust Board and Executive Group, each of these 
groups for vulnerable children and young people will provide updates of progress and 
performance to the Children & Families Partnership Commissioning Board, the strategic 
sub group for our joint commissioning priority.  In turn, these updates will be received by 
the Trust Board and Executive Group at each meeting.  This will avoid the duplication that 
would be created by adding an unnecessary additional sub group within the structures.  
 
Each priority has its own specific business plan detailing the aims and objectives in order 
to bring the most improvement to outcomes for our children and young people.  The nature 
of the priorities of the Children’s Trust mean that the work in order to meet any one priority 
will naturally involve joint working across the priorities and we encourage and embrace this 
as a partnership to bring improved outcomes across the priorities. 
 
These structures provide the platform and opportunity for challenge, to ensure that the 
services and support provided for children, young people and families meets their needs 
most appropriately and at the right stage.  The structures provide a direct route to and from 
the Children’s Trust for both communication and scrutiny for other key multi agency 
partnership boards, such as the Halton Safeguarding Children’s Board, Halton Strategic 
Partnership Board and the emerging Health & Well Being Board, as well as for key 
stakeholder groups for children and young people, parents and carers and from our 
Voluntary and Community Sector. 
 
More detail on the governance arrangements for the Children’s Trust can be found in the 
Children’s Trust Business Plan. 
 

Page 281



 28 

Halton Children’s Trust – Halton’s Partnership for Children 
 
 

Halton Safeguarding Children 
Board 

Halton Strategic Partnership 
Parents & Carers Forum 

Voluntary & Community 
Sector Forum 

Halton Youth Cabinet 

Children in Care Council 

IYSS Participation & 
Engagement Group 

Children & Families Partnership 
Commissioning Board 

Early Help and Support Strategic 
Group 

 

 INTEGRATED OPERATIONAL DELIVERY 

Halton 
Children’s Trust   

Board 

Children’s Trust 
Executive Group 

 

Specific Groups for Vulnerable 
Children & Young People in Halton 

Health & Well Being Board 

External links P
a
g

e
 2

8
2



 29

11. Halton Levels of Need  
 
Halton’s Levels of Need for Children and Young People provides a framework for 
professionals in Halton to meet the needs of all our children and young people, from those 
with no additional needs through to our most vulnerable with the most significant needs.   
 
The priorities for the Children’s Trust as set out in this Plan are set against this framework, 
to ensure that we improve outcomes for all children, young people and families in Halton 
but with particular focus on those in need of additional support, at whichever level of the 
framework and for whatever amount of time is appropriate for each family. 
 
The Children Act 2004 placed a duty on all agencies to work together to ensure the safety 
and well being of all children. Our aim is to ensure that those children who have additional 
and more complex needs are not only identified at an earlier stage, but they receive 
services, which enables them to have their needs met across the five outcomes. 
 
The framework works across four levels as follows: 
 

 
 
In essence, the work of the Children’s Trust in Halton focuses on Levels 1 – 3a of the 
framework.  Levels 3b and 4 are the remit of the Halton Safeguarding Children’s Board 
(HSCB).  The two work closely together to ensure a smooth transition between each level 
and this relationship is outlined in the Children’s Trust/HSCB Joint working protocol (see 
background documents). 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Level 1 – Children and young people whose 
needs are being met through universal services 
available to all 
 
Level 2 – Any additional needs that have been 
identified that can be met through a CAF or 
disussions within or across agencies. 
 
Level 3a – More complex needs have been 
identified that require a co-ordinated multi agency 
approach that can be facilitated by the Integrated 
Working Support Team. 
 
Level 3b – Higher levels of need which require 
contact to be made with Children’s Social Care 
 
 
 
Level 4 – Children and young people identified as 
being in need of immediate protection 

Page 283



 30

12.  Team around the Family 
 
As multi agency working in Halton has developed, the Children’s Trust has adapted the 
way in which it works with families who are at Levels 2 and 3a of the Levels of Need 
Framework, in order to prevent their needs increasing to a level that requires more 
specialist help and support.   
 
Team around the Family is the new Halton Children’s Trust service and approach to early 
help and support. In terms of services, it has reshaped what is now provided across Halton 
through Children’s Centres and Family Support.  As an approach, it looks to intervene 
early to prevent issues escalating to a point where higher level, more specialist 
intervention is required.  
 
Looked at in terms of Halton’s Levels of Need Framework, Team around the Family 
ensures that fewer cases reach the ‘specialist’ end of the continuum, at Levels 3b and 4.  
Instead, where appropriate, children, young people and their families will receive the 
additional services that they need more quickly, before these needs escalate beyond 
Levels 2 and 3a.   
 
This will tackle the discrepancy that research has shown exists at Level 2 in terms of 
numbers of children and young people with additional needs that are receiving these 
services, as shown by the diagram below.   

Level 4 - Specialist

Level 3a - Complex 
needs without 
compromised 
parenting

CAF 

Level 3b Complex needs 
where parenting is 
compromised

Level 2  -
Additional 
NeedsLevel 1 -

Universal 
Services

Children In Care

 
The diagram shows the relative numbers of children and young people in Halton who are 
receiving services at each Level of the Levels of Need Framework.  Most need only the 
Level 1 universal services that they are entitled to and this large proportion of children and 
young people are depicted in green.  At each Level there should be progressively fewer 
children and young people receiving that level of support, giving a ‘pyramid’ effect.  The 
diagram shows that this is the case at each level, apart from Levels 2 and 3a – research 
has shown that the numbers of children and young people who are at this stage of the 
continuum, receiving Level 2 and 3a additional services are significantly lower than should 
be the case.   
 
By amending the way we work in Halton in line with the principles of Team around the 
Family, more children, young people and their families who need the additional support at 
Levels 2 and 3a will receive and access the appropriate services at this stage, and fewer 
will reach the specialist services at the top of the pyramid.  The approach aims to remove 
any barriers to the appropriate services being made available and accessible to those who 

Page 284



 31

need them.  By reducing the flow of cases reaching Levels 3b and 4, it should free up 
more resources that can be made available to provide further support at Levels 2 and 3a. 

 

In the past, services and support have often stopped by agencies straightaway once 
needs are met.  Through Team around the Family, measures have been put in place to 
allow this support to be gradually phased out at the appropriate rate and timeframe for 
each individual case.  This means that children, young people and their families who have 
been receiving support at the higher tiers can gradually have this support reduced until 
they reach the point when they are able and ready to again receive just their universal 
service entitlement. 
 
Team around the Family services in Halton are coordinated through two Integrated 
Working Support Teams (IWST), one based in and covering Runcorn; the other performing 
similar functions for Widnes.  IWST coordinates consultations with professionals working 
with families and helps to ensure that these professionals can access the services that 
appear most appropriate to that family’s needs.  This is achieved through a consultation 
model.  The consultation that is recorded can be used as a service request to a wide range 
of public sector and voluntary service providers.  Where the consultation suggests that a 
more complex problem or a wider set of agencies need to be involved, the IWST supports 
professionals to initiate and carry out a Common Assessment Framework intervention.  
More information on IWST, an integrated process for early help and support, can be found 
in Section Three. 
 
Team around the Family has allowed for the development and implementation of 
structures and service configuration that allow for smooth transitions between lower level 
interventions and statutory interventions managed by Social Care. From a client’s 
perspective the aim is for the whole process and provision of services to feel seamless.  
 
Work to continue to establish and embed Team around the Family in Halton within the 
Levels of Need Framework is within the remit of the Early Help and Support Strategic 
Group of the Children’s Trust.   This Group will lead on ensuring that the following three 
priorities of the Integrated Children’s Workforce Strategy are taken for across all agencies 
within the Children’s Trust: 
 

• Recruitment & Retention  
• Training, Learning & Development  
• Induction  
 

More information on Team around the Family, Halton’s Levels of Need Framework and the 
Business Plan for the Early Help and Support Strategic Group is available from the 
Children’s Trust website (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 285



 32

13.  Joint Commissioning 
 
Joint commissioning is the process whereby partners who have responsibility for 
specifying, securing and monitoring services work together to make joint decisions about 
the needs of their population, and how they should be met. 
 
We want to ensure that as a Children’s Trust we commission services jointly to meet local 
needs and priorities wherever possible, particularly around early help and support, and 
also for our vulnerable children and young people. 
 
Commissioning is a cyclical process of activities reflecting four key stages: 

 
By focusing on joint commissioning as a priority for the Children’s Trust, it will facilitate 
partner commitment to bringing all joint commissioning decisions for approval through the 
Trust.  Once approved, each agency within the Trust is responsible for implementing the 
implications of the decision within their own agency if appropriate, after a process where 
they are fully involved from the beginning. 
 
The existing Joint Commissioning Unit collaboration between the Children & Young 
People’s Directorate of Halton BC and Children, Families and Maternity Commissioning 
PCT, has been extended to include all relevant partners in an overall Children & Families 
Partnership Commissioning Board for the Children’s Trust. 
 
The Board will take forward the Children’s Trust’s Joint Commissioning Framework.  This 
includes five commissioning priorities that closely relate to the Children’s Trust’s overall 
priorities.  For these five commissioning priorities, resources within the Children’s Trust will 
be combined to tackle these issues.  These are: 
 

• Behaviour  
• Breastfeeding 
• Alcohol 
• Team around the Family 
• Transition of Care Leavers, Children in Care and Special Educational Needs 

 
In order to meet our objectives around these commissioning priorities, the Trust has 
adopted the following principles for commissioning: 
 

• We will ensure that positive outcomes for children and young people are at the 
heart of the strategic planning and commissioning process 

• We will ensure that children, young people, families and carers actively participate 
in our decisions about commissioning services at all stages of the commissioning 
cycle 

• Understand - population needs assessment and 
resource identification 

• Plan - aligning resources to meet needs; filling 
gaps between needs and services 

• Do - developing or purchasing services 
• Review - monitoring performance and evaluating 

outcomes. 
 

Page 286



 33

• We will consult all relevant organisations, in advance of commissioning new 
services 

• We will ensure that decisions are based on a robust needs assessment 
• We will undertake more effective market management and identify and understand 

the contribution of all relevant providers to delivering positive outcomes for children 
and young people 

• We will direct resources to meet our priorities, particularly in areas of significant 
need, and especially in relation to vulnerable groups and gaps in provision 

• We will ensure that tendering and procurement processes are transparent and fair 
• We will promote sustainability with our providers to enable longer term planning 
• We will use feedback from children, young people, families and partners to 

encourage innovation in the commissioning process and to achieve best practice 
• We will monitor, evaluate and review our services rigorously and proportionately to 

ensure high quality outcomes and to reflect changes in demographic trends 
• We will de-commission existing services where they do not deliver value for money 

or positive outcomes for our children and young people and work together to avoid 
duplication 

 
Using these principles, the process for joint commissioning through the Children’s Trust 
can be shown as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Children’s Trust Board is responsible for the 
production and monitoring of the Children and 
Young People’s Plan which sets out the 
strategic priorities. The Children’s Trust Board 
will agree the joint commissioning priorities for 
Halton 

The Children’s Trust Executive is responsible for 
the development of the Commissioning 
Framework which is endorsed and adopted by 
the Children’s Trust Board.  
 
The Executive is responsible for progress 
against commissioning action plans and 
reviewing the framework. 
 
Regular reports regarding progress are 
presented to the Children’s Trust Board.  
 
Children’s Trust Executive members ensure that 
progress reports are disseminated within their 
host organisations. 

Following agreement of the joint commissioning 
priorities the Children’s Trust Commissioning 
sub group will develop commissioning action 
plans which will be endorsed and progress 
checked by the Children’s Trust Executive. 

Children and Young People’s 
Plan 
3 year priorities for improving 
outcomes for children and 
young 
people 

Commissioning Framework 
Over arching approach to 
embed commissioning 
behaviours and identify joint 
commissioning priorities to 
meet the aims/priorities of the 
Children and Young People’s 
Plan 

Commissioning Action Plans 
A set of detailed plans for 
agreed joint commissioning 
priorities 

Page 287



 34

 
Joint commissioning links closely to the other priorities for the Children’s Trust, but also 
with other key areas of focus for the Trust such as participation – ensuring that we provide 
the opportunity for our children, young people and their families to participate in the 
process that leads to commissioning decisions.  Therefore, work around participation and 
engagement within the Trust will feed directly into this priority of the Trust to reinforce the 
importance of participation to all partners within the work of the Children’s Trust. 
 
The Children & Families Partnership Commissioning Board will have responsibility for 
driving forward work on four elements of the Children’s Trust’s Integrated Workforce 
Strategy across all agencies of the Trust.  These are: 
 

• Workforce Planning and Forecasting  
• Leadership & Management  
• Managing Change  
• Equality & Diversity  

  
In addition, the Commissioning Board will work closely with other boards and groups within 
the Children’s Trust in Halton to ensure that all work is complementary in order to meet the 
Children’s Trust priorities.  Work to improve outcomes for our vulnerable children and 
young people will be channelled directly through the Board, while close links will be 
maintained with the Early Help and Support Strategic Group.   
 
The Joint Commissioning Framework and Business Plan for the Children & Families 
Commissioning Board are available from the Halton Children’s Trust website 
(www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 288



 35

14.  Vulnerable Children & Young People 
 
Vulnerable children and young people are those who are likely to have additional needs 
(Level 2 or above in the Levels of Need Framework), and experience poorer outcomes if 
these needs are not met.  Prioritising services for our vulnerable children and young 
people has always been an area of focus for the Trust, to ensure that our most vulnerable 
children and young people are given the additional support that they need to achieve their 
full potential.  Strategic and operational groups are in place within the Children’s Trust to 
ensure that we work in partnership to meet the needs of our vulnerable groups. 
 
The term ‘vulnerable’ is a broad one and a significant proportion of children and young 
people population in Halton could be described as ‘vulnerable’ at any given time.  There 
are different reasons why a child or young person could be seen as ‘vulnerable’ – this may 
be due to particular characteristics or due to circumstances, which may be temporary or 
more long-term. Therefore the vulnerable children and young people cohort is never static, 
any child can become vulnerable or no longer vulnerable as their circumstances change.    
 
Characteristics that might make a young person vulnerable could include the following: 
 

(a) Age 
(b) Disability 
(c) Gender reassignment 
(d) Marriage and civil partnership 
(e) Pregnancy and maternity 
(f) Race 
(g) Religion or belief 
(h) Sex 
(i) Sexual orientation 

 
These are the nine protected characteristics contained within the Equality Act 2010.  The 
Children’s Trust works to ensure that all children and young people have the equality of 
opportunity whether or not they share any of these protected characteristics.  Some of 
these characteristics are more common than others among children and young people in 
Halton across the full 0-19 age range but all are taken into consideration by the Children’s 
Trust to ensure no child or young person is adversely affected by any characteristic. 
 
Equally, for some children and young people in Halton, the opportunity to reach their full 
potential can be affected by circumstance.  These circumstances are often beyond their 
control and could be short-term or more permanent.  Circumstances that might make a 
child or young person vulnerable could relate to personal issues, but also could be caused 
by issues for other members of a child or young person’s family that compromises 
parenting capability, or changes to family structures or settings.  The Index of Multiple 
Deprivation information outlined in Section One shows that a child or young person could 
also be affected by the geography of where they live.  In the past children and young 
people from least deprived areas of Halton have been more likely to reach their potential.  
Differing circumstances can make a significant difference to the outcomes for our children 
and young people and so as a Children’s Trust we are working in partnership in order to 
reduce these effects caused by circumstance.   
 
The diagram below illustrates the differing elements of vulnerability that could affect a child 
or young person at any stage of their development. 
 

Page 289



 36

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The sharing of any of these characteristics or circumstances does not automatically mean 
a young person will experience poorer outcomes but statistically is more likely to.  For 
vulnerable children and young people in Halton, the Team around the Family model for 
early help and support is focused on providing the necessary support before problems 
escalate towards specialist services.  For the Children’s Trust, supporting children and 
young people who may be vulnerable because of characteristics or circumstance is a key 
priority to try to ensure that all children and young people enjoy the same outcomes.   
 
By focusing on vulnerable children and young people, we can remove barriers that have in 
the past stopped some from reaching their full potential and provide equality of opportunity 
for all our children and young people.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Vulnerable 
Children 

and Young 
People 

Age 

Marriage & 
Civil 

Partnership 

Gender 
reassignment 

Disability 

Pregnancy & 
maternity 

Sexual 
orientation 

Religion or 
belief 

Race Sex 

Location/ 
Deprivation 
in local area 

Family’s 
social 

integration 

Income 

Employment 

Housing 

Wider family 
& friends 

Family history 
and 

functioning 

Compromised 
parenting 

Alcohol/Domestic 
Violence/Substance 

Misuse 

Family 
stability 

Transition to 
adulthood 

Page 290



 37

Section Three: Integrated Processes 
 
In order to improve how we deliver our services for children and young people, as a 
Children’s Trust partnership we have joined up processes in a number of key areas.  This 
section describes these areas and the processes that we have in place in Halton. 
 

15. Safeguarding 
 
Safeguarding is a broad term for promoting the welfare of children who might have 
specialist or complex needs.  It can be defined as: 
 

• protecting children from maltreatment  
• preventing impairment of children’s health or development  
• ensuring children are growing up in circumstances consistent with the provision of 

safe and effective care.  
 
Child protection is one element of safeguarding. It refers to the activity that is undertaken 
to protect specific children who are suffering, or are likely to suffer, significant harm. 
Effective child protection is essential as part of wider work to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children. However, all agencies and individuals should aim to proactively 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children so that the need for action to protect 
children from harm is reduced. 
 
Safeguarding children and young people, and supporting and preparing them through to 
adulthood has always been central to the planning and provision of services in Halton The 
safeguarding of our children and young people in Halton is seen as everyone’s business 
within the Children’s Trust.  This has been the clear message given to all partners and our 
communities since the creation of the Halton Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) in 
2006.  The impact of safeguarding is a key consideration within each priority of the 
Children’s Trust. 
 
The HSCB has a very clear vision that places safeguarding at the centre of the Borough’s 
overall commitment to supporting and valuing the community it serves.  The Board is the 
key statutory mechanism for agreeing how the relevant organisations in each local area 
will co-operate to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in that locality, and for 
ensuring the effectiveness of what they do.  It carries out a range of activities to safeguard 
children and young people in Halton, aged between 0-19 and its role includes: 
 

• Developing initiatives to reduce harm to children  
• Developing monitoring and reviewing inter-agency Safeguarding Children 

procedures  
• Scrutinising information related to safeguarding children  
• Ensuring that training is provided and promoted  
• Increasing professional and public awareness of the safeguarding agenda  
• Enquire into cases of abuse and neglect where a child has died or suffered serious 

harm and to review important issues arising from such enquiries 
 
Partners have embraced safeguarding and successfully embedded processes to ensure 
we have robust safeguarding procedures in Halton across all agencies.  This has been 
validated by a number of external inspections.  For example, in 2008, Ofsted rated 
Safeguarding in Halton as ‘Outstanding’, while the 2011 Children’s Safeguarding and 

Page 291



 38

Looked After Children Inspection judged Halton to be ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ against each 
of 22 criteria – giving Halton one of the best results nationally. 
 
The HSCB provides effective strategic leadership on safeguarding for all children and 
young people in Halton, through a framework of scrutiny, quality assurance and training.  A 
multi agency safeguarding unit strengthens multi agency working within the Children’s 
Trust by identifying issues and themes that impact on the delivery of frontline practice.   
 
The relationship between the HSCB, which is a statutory body, and the Children’s Trust 
and how they interact with each other has been formalised by a joint protocol informed by 
the latest ‘Working Together’ guidance.  This has again brought closer working and 
ensured that two-way challenge and commitment is entrenched within all work.  Senior 
representatives from key agencies attend both the Children’s Trust and HSCB and this 
again strengthens the working relationship between the two and ensures crossover within 
all aspects of safeguarding. 
 
The Children’s Trust and HSCB, work closely within the Halton Levels of Need Framework 
to ensure each takes the lead at the appropriate level within the Framework and 
duplication is avoided.   
 

 
16. Performance 
 
The Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Safeguarding & Looked After Children in Halton in 
February 2011 recognised the performance management and quality assurance 
arrangements in place at all levels from front line practice to strategic levels as 
‘outstanding’.  The report commended the robust performance management arrangements 
in place for both the Children’s Trust and Halton Safeguarding Children Board. 
 

Performance within the Trust is managed through the Children’s Trust Performance 
Management Framework (PMF) to systematically report against identified priorities on a 
regular basis.  In essence, the PMF follows the following cycle: 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Children’s Trust set 
priorities and CYPP 
forms basis of needs 
analysis and strategic 

plan 

Leads form groups and 
set out key activities 

against priorities and set 
targets against indicators 

and performance 
measures 

Leads report back to the 
Children’s Trust progress 

against the priorities 
including the key 

activities, indicators and 
measures 

Page 292



 39

 
The PMF uses the principles of Outcomes Based Accountability (OBA) to ensure the 
intelligent use of performance data alongside consultation and feedback information and 
the knowledge and experience of front line staff. 
 
The PMF splits performance management into population accountability, which focuses on 
conditions of well-being for all children and young people in Halton and performance 
accountability, which relates to the impact of services. The Children’s Trust has 
responsibility for population accountability as it is recognised that to impact on these high 
level outcomes a range of partners will need to be involved. 
 
The Children’s Trust’s strategic priorities have been agreed with population accountability 
in mind, focusing on how we can improve the well-being of our children and young people 
by: 
 

• Commissioning on a multi agency basis against the greatest needs identified for our 
children and young people 

• Focusing our activity in particular on our vulnerable children and young people 
• Ensuring that the right support is available for those with additional needs at the 

earliest stage and targeting resources to the specific needs of different areas of the 
borough. 

 
The established reporting mechanisms utilising the PMF have been amended and refined 
to take into account these new priorities for the Trust.  Reporting of performance will 
continue to follow the cycle established by the PMF to meet the ambitions for the Trust set 
out in the last Children & Young People’s Plan, but these ambitions have been re-focused 
to concentrate on how well we are doing in relation to the new priorities for the Children’s 
Trust. 
 
These ambitions that were set out in the last Plan are:  
 

• Children and Young People are physically, emotionally and sexually healthy 
• Every Young Person is successful when they leave school 
• Children and young people do well, wherever they live, and whatever their needs 
• Children and young people will feel safe at home, in school and in their 

communities. 
 
Within each priority, the PMF provides a range of relevant indicators, with long-term trends 
to give evidence to show whether the services we are providing collectively are bringing 
improved outcomes.  These indicators are supported by relevant performance measures 
that are monitored on a quarterly basis. 
 
This, together with the story behind the indicators, which provides rich qualitative 
information, provides the basis for developing our services and support, to meet the needs 
of our children and young people.   
 
This information is received at each meeting of the Children’s Trust Executive Group to 
allow for the overall monitoring of each priority, show where efforts should be focused to 
ensure we meet each priority during the lifespan of this Plan, and will also inform decisions 
made on what should be should be the new priorities for the Trust in the future. 
 
In addition, thematic qualitative information is to be produced quarterly to provide evidence 
of improved outcomes, providing the “so what” factor, in particular where performance 

Page 293



 40

indicators are unable to provide this information.  This will enable the Trust to challenge 
improvement further and identify and address gaps in service in order to continue the 
improvement cycle. 
 
The PMF and latest performance information for each Children’s Trust priority can be 
accessed through the following link (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust) 
 

 
17. Integrated Working Support Teams 
 
Integrated Working Support Teams (IWST) for Runcorn and Widnes have been 
established as part the development of the Team around the Family model for early help 
and support in Halton. 
 
IWST is the Children’s Trust approach to providing support through a form of brokerage 
across all agencies.  The Teams give a single point of entry contact for all enquiries that 
are not Child in Need or Child Protection issues, including parenting support.  By providing 
a single point of entry, families are prioritised across Halton according to need and 
consistency is achieved regarding the length of time between assessment and allocation 
of services.  IWST provides tiered, seamless support to professionals working with a family 
that is appropriate to the nature of the issue.  Each team incorporates a multi agency 
group of professionals and a number of commissioned services sit directly within the IWST 
structures. 
 
The Disabled Children’s Service sits within this model, providing the first point of entry for 
professionals and carers of disabled children who may need information, advice and/or 
support, including short breaks and advocacy. There are clear pathways into the service, 
as well as a pathway into Social Care when statutory services are necessary. 
 
The services available from the IWST Teams include: 
 

• Support to complete the Common Assessment Framework 
• Support to Chair multi agency meetings 
• Support to identify appropriate Lead Professional 
• Support to parents 
• Support for disabled children, young people and their families 
• Support to enhance existing agency plans 
• Liaison with Children’s Social Care Teams 
• Signposting to multi agency training opportunities 
• Consultation, signposting and advice on appropriate route to support 
• Think Family Forum to support Common Assessment Framework (CAF) – this 

Forum has provided support for Lead Professionals involved in CAFs but also 
provides a multi agency forum for the quality assurance of completed CAFs 

• Link to Children’s Centre and Family engagement teams 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 294



 41

18.  Equality & Diversity 
 
The Children’s Trust aims to create a culture where people of all backgrounds and 
experience feel appreciated and valued, and as a partnership we are committed to a 
programme of action to make this policy fully effective. 
 
To support this, the Children’s Trust has in place an Equality & Diversity Scheme that 
takes into account the implications and additional duties of the Equality Act 2010.  It sets 
out a long term process for identifying and integrating improvements as to how this Trust 
promotes equality and supports diversity through its work with children and young people. 
 
The Scheme includes the following vision on equality and diversity that all partners in 
Halton have committed to: 
 
The Children’s Trust is determined to deliver its vision of a better future for Halton's 
people. We are committed to equality for everyone regardless of age, sex, caring 
responsibilities, race, religion, sexuality, or disability. We are leaders of the community and 
will not tolerate discrimination, victimisation or harassment for any reason.  There is a 
commitment to equity and social justice from all partners. 
 
The Children’s Trust Equality & Diversity Scheme is available from the Halton Children’s 
Trust website (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust) 
 

19. Transition to Adulthood 
 
The transition between being a young person to being an adult is a time of great change 
and opportunity for all young people, but it can also present challenges, particularly for 
young people who have social and health care needs arising from sensory and physical 
disabilities, long-term conditions, learning disabilities or mental health problems.  
 
As part of the Aiming High for Disabled Children programme, a national Transition Support 
Programme has been introduced to improve support for disabled young people in their 
transition to adulthood, and sets out five focus areas for improving support at transition in 
local areas: 
 

• Participation of disabled young people and their families 
• Effectiveness of personalised approaches 
• Joint assessments processes within children’s trusts and adult services 
• Realistic post 16 opportunities for living life 
• Strategic multi agency working 

 
In Halton, through work in partnership between Adult Services and Children’s Trust 
partners including NHS Halton & St Helens and Halton Borough Council, a Halton Multi 
Agency Transition Strategy 2010-2013 has been developed.  This gives examples of how 
these focus areas are being put into practice, including: 
 

• Effective engagement with and participation from disabled young people and also 
their families; 

• Effectiveness of personalised approaches including person centred planning, use of 
individual budgets and direct payments; 

Page 295



 42

• Joint assessment processes within Children’s Trust services, including schools and 
with adult social care; 

• Realistic post 16 opportunities for living life and to help reduce the numbers of 
disabled young people who are not in education, employment or training; 

• Strategic partnership working including commissioning, to ensure that all agencies 
are fully engaged in providing transition support. In addition ensuring that other 
AHDC activity and universal offers, like the youth strategy, take into account the 
needs of disabled young people at transition. 

 
The Children’s Trust is working to support all young people in their transition to adulthood 
by helping young people to develop choices that are right for them, to realise their full 
potential, and participate fully in the wider community.   
 

20. Workforce Development 
 
Workforce development is fundamental to improving outcomes for our children and young 
people.  Through the Children’s Trust Integrated Workforce Strategy, we will ensure that 
children, young people and their families in Halton receive the best quality service 
provided by a competent, skilled and professional workforce. 
 
The Strategy provides the tools to equip the Children’s Trust workforce with the skills, 
knowledge and behaviours to ensure that the strategic priorities set out in this Children & 
Young People’s Plan can be achieved.  It aims to create an excellent world class 
workforce for children, young people and their families in Halton. In order to achieve this, 
seven key workforce strategic objectives have been agreed and each has been integrated 
into the work programmes of the Children’s Trust sub groups.  This will ensure that all 
work to meet these workforce objectives is fully integrated into the work of the Trust.  
Meeting these strategic objectives will help us towards achieving our Children’s Trust 
priorities. 
 
These objectives and the sub group that they are aligned to are as follows: 
 

1. Workforce Planning and Forecasting – Children & Families Partnership 
Commissioning Board 

2. Recruitment & Retention – Early Help and Support Strategic Group 
3. Training, Learning & Development – Early Help and Support Strategic Group 
4. Leadership & Management – Children & Families Partnership Commissioning 

Board 
5. Managing Change – Children & Families Partnership Commissioning Board 
6. Equality & Diversity – Children & Families Partnership Commissioning Board 
7. Induction – Early Help and Support Strategic Group 

 
Within the Integrated Workforce Strategy, the Children’s Trust has collectively agreed six 
commitments to its children’s workforce in Halton.  They are: 
 

• We are a one Children’s Workforce which advocates effective strong partnership 
working 

• We recognise that our workforce is an asset which we nurture through recruitment 
and retention and continued professional development 

• We listen and respect the unique worth of every person/individual 
• We encourage all people to fulfil their potential by providing opportunities for 

satisfying and rewarding careers 

Page 296



 43

• We enable empowerment to be embraced and advocated throughout the Children’s 
Trust 

• We promote creativity and innovation at every opportunity  
 
In these challenging times workforce investment and creating opportunities will become 
more important than ever in helping us to achieve a more dynamic, knowledgeable and 
skilled workforce for the future; thereby ensuring that the lives of children, young people 
and families in Halton improve and remain at the centre of everything we do.  
 
The Integrated Children’s Workforce Strategy is available from the Halton Children’s Trust 
website (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust)  
 

21. Participation 
 
Participation is about involving children, young people and their parents/carers in decision 
making on all levels. It is not just seeking views and opinions to help decide the next 
course of action (consultation).  Being listened to and validated as an individual person is a 
fundamental human right. 
 
By participation we mean adults working in partnership with children and young people 
and valuing their views and encouraging them to: 
 
• become more active participants in the life of their school and community, 
• participate in creating, building and improving services to make them more responsive 

to their needs and those of the wider community, 
• make a difference in their schools, neighbourhoods and communities 
• contribute to a cohesive community, 
• learn from an early age to balance their rights as individuals with their responsibilities 

as citizens, 
• develop, through the way they are involved, the knowledge, understanding and skills 

they will need in adult life. 
 
There are a number of levels of participation, from tokenistic involvement in a small part of 
the decision making process, to full participation and engagement and leading in every 
aspect from the initiation of the process. 
 
In Halton we have had and continue to have examples of involving children, young people 
and their parents/carers across the full range of these levels.  Through working together in 
partnership within the Children’s Trust to meet the priorities within this Plan we aim to 
make sure that more and more of the participation opportunities for our children, young 
people and their parents and carers are within every aspect of the process.  
 
For effective participation to happen organisations must listen to and work in partnership 
with service users to create and develop the best opportunities for services to develop to 
best meet the needs of children and young people.  It is everyone’s responsibility to 
promote and support children, young people and their parents’/carers’ participation in 
decision making. 
 
When children and young people are actively involved in the processes of decision making 
they feel more motivated, more engaged and more valued; and when they are not this can 
then lead to apathy, disillusionment, disengagement, exclusion and isolation.  The 

Page 297



 44

experience of participation teaches children and young people citizenship skills such as 
listening, negotiating, recognising and valuing diversity and accepting difference. 
 
Participation is about service providers and service users working in partnership to create 
the best possible opportunities within the aims of a project or service.   Involving children 
and young people in decision making and problem solving will develop and improve the 
services already existing across the Borough. Halton already has young people’s 
democratic processes embedded, with vibrant Area Youth Forums, young peoples’ action 
groups, elected Youth Cabinet and an elected Member and Deputy Member of Youth 
Parliament. 
 
Participation is about creating a culture of agencies responding to, involving, 
communicating with and informing those who use the service they provide.   We have a 
number of examples of our children and young people fully participating and leading on 
making the decisions that affect them, such as within the Youth Bank and the Youth 
Cabinet, but we need to ensure we provide these opportunities to participate within each of 
our priorities, to help ensure we do improve outcomes for our children and young people. 
 
The Children’s Trust Participation Strategy is based on the seven strands of the Hear by 
Right Standards, and as a Trust all partners need to provide support to all organisations 
and services to ensure that they meet these participation Standards.   
 
The Strategy is based on four principles: 
 

1. Clear and visible commitment to involving children and young people with a route 
map of how to make it happen. 

2. Children and young people’s involvement is valued 
3. Children and young people have equality of opportunity to be involved 
4. Children and young people’s participation and involvement is continually evaluated 

and reviewed 
 
This Participation Strategy has been agreed through to 2015 and is available on the 
Children’s Trust website (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust).  Work on participation 
within the Children’s Trust structures is led by the Consultation, Participation & 
Engagement Group that feeds directly into the Joint Commissioning Group.  
 

22. Child and Family Poverty  
 
In Halton, data from 2008 reveals that just under 26.4% of children live in poverty.  This 
equates to 6,550 children and young people. Of these, 5,520 children live in out of work 
families and 1,030 live in households classified as in-work. This underlines that whilst 
being in work reduces the incidence of poverty it doesn’t guarantee that children will be 
lifted out of poverty, particularly when there is only one working adult in the household. 
 
Although there has been some success in tackling child and family poverty, meeting the 
challenge of eradicating poverty requires additional effort from all partners to prioritise child 
and family poverty to improve outcomes for disadvantaged children and their families.  
 
In response to the Child Poverty Act 2010, Halton has worked alongside its partners in the 
Liverpool City Region to develop a Child and Family Poverty Needs Assessment and has 
also developed its own specific multi agency Child and Family Poverty Strategy for Halton. 
 

Page 298



 45

Whilst poverty can be measured by income, it is a much broader issue. Therefore, in 
developing the Child and Family Poverty Strategy, Halton has adopted the European 
Union’s working definition of poverty.  This defines poverty as: 
 
“Persons, families and groups of persons, whose resources (material, cultural and 
social) are so limited as to exclude them from the minimum acceptable way of life in 
the Member State to which they belong.’’   
 
Under this definition, poverty is seen as having three aspects, these being: 
 
• Income poverty 
• Service poverty (difficulty in accessing and benefiting from quality services e.g. 

housing, health, education and leisure) 
• Participation poverty (affecting the ability to 

-   participate in the community 
-   engage in social activities 
-   have a negative impact on experience of education and training and  
-   affect transition to independence). 

 
To recognise the broadness of the issue of poverty, in Halton it is known as child and 
family poverty, rather than the more traditional ‘child poverty’.   
 
Halton’s Child & Family Poverty Strategy has been developed by a wide cross-section of 
partners and stakeholders in Halton, including housing, welfare, employment and skills, 
transport and health, as well as stakeholders within the Children’s Trust.   
 
Research for the Needs Assessment, as well as consultation done during the development 
of the Strategy has indicated that the key underlying causes of child and family poverty in 
Halton are: 
 

• Low family aspirations 
• A cycle of intergenerational benefit dependency 

 
Based on these causes, the key priorities in order to tackle child and family poverty in 
Halton have been agreed as: 
 

• Cultural challenge and raising aspirations 
• Early Help and Support 
• Whole family approach 
• Providing a single point of access to support services 

 
These priorities link closely to the priorities that have been agreed by the Children’s Trust.  
One measure used by the Children’s Trust to look at poverty and disadvantage is to 
measure the performance and outcomes for those young people who access free school 
meals.  Often this cohort of young people do not perform as well as a whole but the 
Children’s Trust is working to reduce this gap for young people in this cohort to ensure 
those who receive free school meals do not suffer any disadvantage. 
 
A multi agency working group will take forward work around the Strategy by meeting these 
priorities within through an agreed action plan.  The Strategy is available from the Halton 
Children’s Trust website (www.haltonpartnership.net/childrenstrust)  
 

Page 299



 46

23. New set of promises 
 

• Consultation – We will engage with our children, young people and families around 
all issues that affect them, in ways that meet their needs and ensure their views are 
heard and communicate back how their involvement has been acted upon. 

• Participation – We will endeavour to support throughout Halton active children, 
young people and parent / carer action groups in schools and within the community, 
supported by partners who provide a network of children, young people and parent / 
carer voice. This will ensure there is effective two way communication to shape 
services through, for example social networking sites, action groups, inclusive 
interview and commissioning panels, community events and drama and arts 
activities 

• Workforce development - We will, in these challenging times, continue to invest in 
our workforce at every opportunity to help us to achieve a more dynamic, 
knowledgeable and skilled workforce for the future. 

• Safeguarding – We will look to ensure all aspects of equality and diversity are 
captured in the reporting processes within the Children’s Trust and Halton 
Safeguarding Children Board. 

• Safeguarding – We will seek to further encourage and support children and young 
people's participation in informing and challenging the work of the Children's Trust 
and Halton Safeguarding Children Board. 

• Vulnerable groups – We will intervene at the right time to prevent problems for our 
vulnerable children and young people from developing and where problems are 
already present we will deliver timely interventions to prevent these getting worse. 

• Independent advocacy – We will ensure that independent advocacy is in place for 
all vulnerable groups, and in particular children in care, children with disabilities and 
complex needs to ensure full involvement in decision making for all our children and 
young people.  

• Child & Family Poverty – We will work to improve the life chances of children and 
families living in poverty by actively supporting the implementation of the Halton 
Child & Family Poverty Strategy and encourage our partners to contribute towards 
the delivery of the key objectives in the Child & Family Poverty Action Plan. 

• Equality & Diversity – We will recognise and celebrate the diversity of our children 
and young people as well as aspects of commonality. 

• Performance – We will scrutinise and challenge all agencies working with Children, 
Young People and their families to improve outcomes using robust performance 
management. 

• Early Help and Support – We will endeavour to meet the needs of children, young 
people and their families as early as possible using local services that are sensitive 
to all issues. 

• Early Help and Support – We will ensure that children, young people and their 
families can access the additional and specialist services they require through the 
same initial point of access.  

• Joint Commissioning – We will ensure that our Children’s Trust priorities and the 
wishes of our communities are at the heart of all joint commissioning decisions 

• Play – We will support all children and young people to be able to participate in and 
enjoy play in their local area. 

 

Page 300



 
REPORT TO:  Council  
 
DATE:  20 July 2011  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Policy and Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Policy and Performance Boards’ Annual 

Reports 2010-2011 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide  
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
To receive the Policy and Performance Boards’ Annual Reports for 
2010-2011. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the 2010-2011 Annual Reports submitted 
from the Policy and Performance Boards be received.  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Article 6 of the Constitution requires each of the Policy and Performance 
Boards (PPBs) to submit an Annual Report to Council outlining their 
work, making recommendations for future work programmes and 
amended working methods if appropriate. 

 

The Annual Reports (see attached) have now been submitted to the 
appropriate PPBs for consideration and all have been agreed. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – none. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – none. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – none. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – none. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – none. 

Agenda Item 12hPage 301



7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

None. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
None. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 302



    
 

Cllr. Mark 
Dennett  

Chairman 
Children & 

Young People 
PPB 

 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARD 

 
APRIL 2010 – MARCH 2011 

 
 “I always like to start by looking back over the previous twelve months. In May 2010 there 
was a change in government and along with it a reversal of the decision surrounding 
Halton's Building School's for the Future (BSF) Programme. Removing investment of 
£100 million to renew all of our high schools and instead providing investment to renew 
only two, The Grange in Runcorn and Wade Deacon in Widnes. Construction of both of 
these new schools will start later this year. 
 
    Halton's funding from the Government for Children & Young People Services was also 
cut severely, providing Halton with large challenges in how it provides it's services to the 
people of the borough. 
     
    But, against this background of cuts and turmoil, Halton continued to provide good 
services. This was borne out by the recent Ofsted's and Care Quality Commission 
Announced Inspection of Safeguarding and Looked After Children Services that took 
place on the 7th February 2011 through to the 18th February 2011.  
     
    The final report was published on the 25th March 2011 and said that, "The local 
authority and its partners demonstrate excellent self awareness and commitment to 
achieving outstanding outcomes. A very strong and established senior management 
team, which includes senior health managers, is in place and demonstrates clear vision 
and focus on priorities. Partnership working, quality assurance and performance 
management arrangements are outstanding. Effective workforce planning and user 
engagement contribute to an outstanding capacity to continue to secure improved 
outcomes for children and families." The overall judgement was that our services were 
good with outstanding capacity to improve; one of the best scores in England.  
     
    Once again the educational attainment of our children and young people was fantastic. I 
would like to take this opportunity to congratulate our students who did so well, and also 
thank the parents, carers and teachers who supported them in achieving these fantastic 
results. The results show Halton’s commitment to drive up standards and improve the 
opportunities available to all of our young people as they move into adulthood. 
     
    Looking back I think it has been a good, but difficult fifth year for the board and I would 
like to thank all of the members of the board, as well as all of the officers involved for their 
continued support and contribution. 
     
    Finally, I would like to conclude this report by thanking all of the officers and members 
(of all parties) involved in all of the ‘additional duties’ that take place to make sure that the 
children and young people receive that best care and support. Duties such as being a 
school governor with all of the responsibilities that that entails, statutory inspections of our 
care homes (Regulation 33) or of our social worker teams (Climbié visits), membership of 
the Local Safeguarding Board, the Adoptions Panel, the Children and Young People’s 
Trust, to name but a few of the ‘extra duties’ that both members and officers perform to 
support and improve the lives of the children and young people of our Borough.” 
     
Councillor Mark Dennett 
 
Chairman, Children, Young People and Families Policy and Performance Board 

 

Page 303



MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

During 2010/11 the Board comprised eleven Councillors – Councillors M. Dennet 
(Chairman) Cllr M Horabin (Vice Chairman), P. Balmer (who replaced D. Findon in 
December), P Browne, M Fry, R Gilligan, M Hodge, P Lloyd Jones, K Loftus, M 
Ratcliffe and a Co-optee Miss E. Lawler.    
 
The Board is responsible for scrutinising performance and formulating policy in 
relation to the work of the Council (and its partner agencies within Children’s Trust 
Arrangements) in seeking: to ensure that children and young people in Halton 
have the best possible start in life and opportunities to fulfil their potential and 
succeed; and to scrutinise progress against the Corporate Plan and the Children 
and Young People’s Plan. 
 

REVIEW OF THE YEAR 

The full Board met five times during the year, and set out below are some of the 
main initiatives that the Board has worked on during the year. 
 
Diocesan Representative Information. 
Under a direction issued by Secretary of State, authorities must appoint diocesan 
representatives to Scrutiny Committees under s499 Education Act 1996 and DfE 
circular 19/99 all as amended.  The representatives would have voting rights in 
relation to any decision regarding the following:  

• Schools maintained by the Local Authority (LA) 
• Pupils who attend school maintained by the LA or are education in some 

way but not the other business of the Committee. 
Elizabeth Lawler was appointed as a voting co-optee on the Board for a period of 
four years. 
 
Children Young People Plan Review 
A review had been undertaken of Halton’s Children and Young People Plan 2009-
2011, and a multi agency task group had been established in April 2010 to focus 
on a number of developments.  Members considered actions required to improve 
areas that had been identified as a result of the review.   
 
Social Work Referral and Workload Analysis 
Completion of Initial Assessments within timescales was 80% and for Core 
Assessments the figure was 95%. It was agreed that the Halton Safeguarding 
Children Board would continue to scrutinise and support the work of the Children’s 
Trust in relation to the development of Team Around the Family (Localities) and 
the progress of the CAF Action Plan.  Halton Safeguarding Children Board would 
scrutinise the response to Domestic Violence across the levels of need within 
Halton. 
 
Inspections 
Ofsted’s and Care Quality Commission Announced Inspection of Safeguarding 
and Looked After Children Services, took place from the 7th February 2011 to 
the 18th February 2011. This rigorous three yearly inspection, focuses on the 
Council and its partners services; and judges how the whole system works 
together to protect children in Halton. 
 

Page 304



 The inspection judged the overall effectiveness of Safeguarding Services in 
Halton to be good with outstanding capacity to secure further improved 
outcomes for children and families, the overall effectiveness of services for 
Children in Care is also good, with outstanding capacity for further 
improvement; and leadership and management; ambition and prioritisation; 
along with performance management and partnership working 
for children and young people is outstanding in Halton. The outcome places 
Halton Council and its partners as one of the most consistently high performing 
areas in England. This is the result of exceptionally high levels of partnership 
working within the Borough the role of Councillors in the protection children and 
meeting the needs of Children in Care was positively endorsed by the 
Inspectors. All areas for development are being addressed 
 
Summary of Educational Attainment and Progress 2010 
School performance was discussed in relation to the successes specifically at Key 
Stage 2 and 4 and also in terms of progress in narrowing the gap for achievement 
for vulnerable pupils including those with special educational needs. In relation to 
Key Stage 4 the percentage of students gaining 5+A* including English and Maths 
had increased to 50% which was a rise of 5% from last years results. Halton 
continues to perform well in comparison to national outcomes as a result of the 
gains made and maintained over the past few years. 
 
Regulation 33 Visits. 
There are three Children’s Homes in the Borough requiring 36 visits a year, to 
make it easier to complete the visits the Board agreed that a revised rota be 
introduced where visits where undertaken alternately by Members and 
Independent Reviewing Managers from the Safeguarding.  
 
In addition a training session was provided for all Members regarding all aspects 
of the Corporate Parenting Role. 
 
Service Plans  
This year the Board continued to take significant steps forward in the way it 
engaged with the service planning process.  The PPB Members identified issues 
and activities they hoped could be prioritised in the service plans for 2011/2014. 
 

 PERFORMANCE ISSUES 

2009/10 saw the important, high level outcomes for children and young people in 
Halton coming more under the scrutiny spotlight.  The PPB raised its sights to 
focus attention on key, strategic indicators of performance e.g. as set out in the 
Local Area Agreement and in the service's work with partners.  Through the LAA a 
suite of targets was agreed for Halton with Government and local partners. It 
emphasises the requirement for named partners to co-operate in striving to 
achieve those targets. There were 34 indicators in the LAA, together with statutory 
education and early years targets. The LAA reflects the priorities in Halton’s 
community strategy for improving the quality of life in Halton, including the need to 
tackle high teenage pregnancy rates in the Borough. 
 
 

Page 305



  

RESTRUCTURING OF THE CYPD 

 
The Council’s efficiency programme has resulted in a restructuring of the Children 
and Young People’s Directorate to be implemented from 1st April 2010. The CYP 
Directorate will reduce from four Departments to three: 
 
 

• Children and Families Services 
• Learning and Achievement Services 
• Children’s Organisation and Provision 

 
 
The Children’s Safeguarding Unit will report directly to the Strategic Director in 
order to separate the delivery of Safeguarding Services from a review and auditing 
function. 
 

WORK PROGRAMME FOR 20010/11 

The Board has decided that during the current municipal year (2010/11) it will 
carry out Topic reviews examining the following area: 
 
• Young Carers 
 
This topic area will be completed in 2010/11.  
 
In 2009/10 the following scrutiny topic was completed: 
 
• Health of Young People 
 
 

SAFEGUARDING 

Members regularly considered matters relating to Safeguarding, particularly in the 
areas of monitoring of racist incidents, anti-bullying, private fostering 
arrangements and the work of the Halton Safeguarding Children’s Board. 
 
 
Members of the Public are welcome at the meetings of the Board.  If you would 
like to know where and when meetings are to be held or if you would like any 
more information about the Board or its work, please contact  Gill Bennett on 0151 
471 7545 or e-mail: gill.bennett@halton.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 306



$iuggotlb.doc 
MR/AC 

 

 
ANNUAL REPORT 

CORPORATE SERVICES POLICY AND 
PERFORMANCE BOARD 

APRIL 2010 – MARCH 2011 
 
“I would like to thank Members of the Board for their hard 
work and the contribution they have made to its activities 
over the past year. This year, key areas have included 
detailed consideration of market provision in the Borough 
carbon management issues, staff accidents/violent 
incidents statistics, the Sustainable Community Strategy 
and the Council’s Property Portfolio. In addition I have, 
together with the Chair of the Business Efficiency Board, 
been deeply involved in the formulation of the Council’s 
budget and I would like to express my thanks to the Chairs 
and Vice – Chairs of all PPBs for their assistance.  This 
year,work on use of natural resources will continue.” 
Councillor Alan Lowe – the Chairman of Corporate 
Services Policy and Performance Board. 
 
MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
During 2010/11 the Board comprised of eleven Councillors 
– A. Lowe (Chairman), J. Roberts (Vice Chair), Browne, 
Dennett, Gilligan, Inch, Loftus, Nolan, Norddahl, Philbin 
and Wainwright. 
 
The Board is responsible for scrutinising performance and 
formulating policy in relation to Resources, Personnel and 
Training, ICT, Property, Committee and Member Services, 
Legal Services, Communications and Marketing, Stadium, 
Civic Catering, Procurement, Corporate Complaints and 
Area Forums. During the year the Board also scrutinised 
voluntary sector issues. The Board also has responsibility 
for monitoring the performance of the reporting 
Departments which during the last year were Policy and 
Performance, Legal and Democratic Services, Human 
Resources, Financial Services, and ICT and Support 
Services. 
 
REVIEW OF THE YEAR 
 
The full Board met six times during the year including a 
special meeting to consider the future of Runcorn Market. 
 
Set out below are some of the main initiatives that the 
Board has worked on during the year. 
 
 

Page 307



$iuggotlb.doc 
MR/AC 

 
RUNCORN MARKET 
 
The Market Working Group continued to meet during the 
year, and presented its findings to a Special Meeting of 
the Policy and Performance Board on 19th October 2010. 
The meeting considered in detail the future viability of 
Runcorn Markets and discussions culminated in a 
recommendation being made to the Executive Board to 
consider the closure of Runcorn Market, which eventually 
took place during the year. Members of the Markets 
Working Group were thanked for their diligent 
consideration of all of the issues raised. 
 
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO 
 
Councillor Mike Wharton, Executive Board Portfolio Holder 
for Resources, attended the meeting on 7th September 
and provided Members with an update on current issues 
in his portfolio. The discussion involved Council-owned 
land, and it was agreed that the Council’s Property 
Portfolio would be reported to Members at a future 
meeting, and that any land releases would only proceed 
after consultation with Members and advice from valuers.  
A detailed report on the Authority’s Property Portfolio was 
brought to the meeting on 22nd February 2011 for full 
consideration and discussion by Members. 
 
ENERGY MANAGEMENT IN BUILDINGS 
 
The meeting on 25th May considered a report from the 
Strategic Director, Environment and Economy dealing with 
the section of the use of natural resources work which 
focused upon the approach to energy management in 
buildings. The report presented the interim findings of the 
Working Group. The Board was advised of the key 
principles, amongst which was the approach to tackling 
energy reduction, and was advised of the actions 
undertaken at the Stobart Stadium, Halton which had 
represented a good example of how to reduce energy 
consumption. The Board was further advised that the 
ability to monitor energy consumption would be greatly 
improved with the installation of the automatic meter 
readings across the Borough and a performance 
management system developed to report consumption 
data for individual buildings. An officer had been identified 
to monitor energy consumption and establish robust 
targets and develop action plans. In addition, a training 
programme would be developed and the Board would 
receive regular update reports. 

Page 308



$iuggotlb.doc 
MR/AC 

 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY 
 
A draft fully revised policy was produced by the Strategic 
Director, Resources to the meeting in May. It identified the 
undertakings and arrangements for the provision of health 
 
and safety across the Authority and had recently been 
amended to take account of the role of the Board in 
monitoring health and safety performance and reporting  
back to Executive Board Members. It also took account of 
the new HSE Strategy, and, as a result included aims, 
objectives and outcomes for the Health and Safety 
meetings. The Board endorsed the policy and referred it to 
the Executive Board, where it was subsequently adopted.  
 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
The Board received a report in May providing information 
on the progress towards meeting Halton’s Sustainable 
Community Strategy targets at 2009/10 financial year end. 
The Board was advised that it was important that progress 
was monitored and that Members were satisfied that 
adequate plans were in place to ensure that the Council 
and its partners achieved the improvement targets that 
had been agreed. In future, reports would contain a 
column with a directional arrow highlighting the direction of 
travel. A further update was provided to the January 
meeting in which it was noted that as a result of changes 
to the National Government Framework, the Council and 
the Halton Strategic Partnership would need to review 
their respective performance frameworks. The Board 
would take an overview of this process. 
 
STAFF ACCIDENT/VIOLENT INCIDENTS STATISTICS 
 
The Strategic Director – Resources reported to the 
meetings on 25th May and 2nd November on Corporate 
Accident Statistics and Associated Trends. The first report 
highlighted a reduction in reported incidents compared 
with the last two years, especially those resulting in major 
injuries. The report contained a detailed breakdown by 
type of incident and by directorate. There had also been a 
reduction in the total working days lost due to accidents. 
There had been 823 days this year, compared to 746 last 
year. Based on HSE calculations, the total cost of the 
accidents was £150,000 compared to £459,000 last year. 
There had also been a significant reduction in the number 
of slips, trips and falls, due to a considerable amount of 

Page 309



$iuggotlb.doc 
MR/AC 

work being undertaken in those areas. 
 
The November report highlighted a continuous trend in the 
reduction of reported accidents. Compared to the other 
local   authorities   in   the  benchmarking  exercise  whose  
 
expenditure per employee exceeded £20 plus, Halton 
provided the lowest costing health and safety service at 
£8.62 per employee. Putting these two pieces of 
information together provided a very positive result for the 
Council. It was noted that the success in the reduction of 
accidents was down to team efforts from all Council staff, 
Members and trade unions who had embraced their own 
health and safety responsibilities, as well as the teams 
and departments they were in. 
 
VOLUNTARY SECTOR FUNDING  
 
The meeting on 4th January received the Annual Report 
for Voluntary Sector Funding, presented by the Strategic 
Director, Adults and Community. It examined the policy 
context to providing core grant support to the voluntary 
sector and considered the benefits of supporting 
volunteering opportunities. It provided performance 
information on the eleven organisations which had been 
core grant supported in 2008/9 and Members considered 
case studies. 
 
PERFORMANCE ISSUES 
 
During the year the Board also focused a significant 
amount of time and effort monitoring the performance of 
its reporting departments. A number of performance 
issues overseen by the Board during the year have been 
 
• School catering and the operation of the Stobart 

Stadium Halton. 
 
• Sickness absence  
 
• The retention of the Council’s IIP Accreditation. 

 
The excellent overall performance of Audit which was 
monitored by the Business Efficiency Board. 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 20011/12 
 
The Board has decided that during the current Municipal 
Year (2011/12), it would carry out detailed work on the 
following topics:- 

Page 310



$iuggotlb.doc 
MR/AC 

 
• Markets – Lead, Councillor Wainwright 

 
• Carbon Reduction – Lead, Councillor A. Lowe 
• Halton Strategic Partnership – Lead, Councillor 

Loftus. 
 
• Area Forum Locality Working – Lead, Councillor A. 

Lowe. 
 
Members of the public are welcome at the meetings of 
the Board. If you would like to know where and when 
meetings are to be held or if you would like any more 
information about the Board or its work, please 
contact Committee Services. In the first instance, e-
mail ann.jones@halton.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 311



Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank



Cllr. Sue Edge

Chairman

ANNUAL REPORT(Employment Learning & Skills and Community)

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARD

 !"#$%&'('%)%* "+,%&'((

“ This has been my first year as Chair of the Employment Learning and Skills
and Community Board, and as such I would like to take this opportunity to
thank Members of this committee for the support you have shown me in
helping me to take on this new role.  Your guidance and input has been
invaluable during a period of significant change for the organisation.

I would also like to thank you for the quality of the discussions that we have
had on a variety of topics during the year.  Your commitment, knowledge and
awareness of a wide range of complex issues has been remarkable.

I would also like to thank the officers for working with me to ensure that
agendas and papers have not only reflected the role and remit of the PPB but
have reflected the needs and aspirations of our residents. As you will see in
the report below we have been required to consider a number of topics and
these have been presented in an informative and considered way.

Together I believe that the PPB has fully demonstrated its value in supporting
the organisation to develop its policies in respect of Employment learning and
Skills and Community initiatives in Halton !

Councillor  Sue Edge
Chairman, Employment Learning and Skills and Community  Policy and
Performance Board

MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES
"#$%&'()*+*,++(-./(012$3(4156$%7/3(/8/9/&(:1#&4%881$7(;(:1#&4%881$7
Edge, (Chair) Lloyd-Jones (Vice Chair), Austin, Carlin, Findon, Horabin,
Howard, MacManus, Parker, Roberts,  and Rowe.

The primary function of the PPB is to focus on the work of the Council (and
its Partners) in seeking to improve economic prosperity in Halton, the
skills and employment prospects of its residents, and their access to good
sporting and cultural amenities, to scrutinise progress against the
Corporate Plan in relation to the Employment Learning and Skills priority.

Employment, Learning and Skills Priority.
REVIEW OF THE YEAR
The full Board met four times during the year, and set out below are some of
the main initiatives that the Board has worked on during the year.

Reports that were prepared by the ELS and C PPB and presented to The
Executive Board are as follows: -

The Scrutiny Review of Employment Practices for people with learning

Page 313



or  physical disabilities or mental health issues.
The purpose of the report was to:

 Review current employment opportunities for people with a learning or
physical disability or mental health issues in Halton

 Develop an understanding of the financial processes around
employment for these specific groups

 Consider best practice and local examples in terms of supporting
people into employment

 Develop an understanding of corporate responsibilities in supporting
vulnerable people into employment

 "/9%7/(2(7/$%/7(1<($/4155/&32-%1&7(2&3(2441562&=%&'(24-%1&(682&(-1
%56$19/(-./(2#-.1$%-=>7(6/$<1$52&4/(%&($/82-%1&(-1(7#661$-/3
/5681=5/&-(1661$-#&%-%/7

A further report was considered by the Executive Board on Barriers to Work.
It was reported that a Scrutiny Topic Group was established to analyse the
results of research commissioned by the ELS SSP into levels of worklessness
in our more deprived neighbourhoods, to understand them in some depth, and
to develop appropriate recommendations as to how local employment
initiatives, training & skills programmes and business start-up services can be
re-focussed to address the perceived barriers to employment identified by
residents in the neighbourhood management areas that was captured by the
research.

Throughout the year the ELS PPB received reports on the following: -

Halton People into Jobs 10th Anniversary was a report on progress
achieved by Halton People into (HPiJ) Jobs during the 10 years that it has
been providing a job brokering service for employers and residents seeking
work in Halton. It was reported that over the last 10 years HPiJ had assisted
more than 6,000 residents into employment. It was noted that the estimated
cost of providing the HPiJ service, including Council central overhead
recharges, in the current financial year is circa £900,000. The anticipated job
outcomes for the year are anticipated to be approximately 500. Therefore, the
expected cost per job is likely to be circa £1,800 which is well below the
reported average cost per job of £4,000 offered by other providers.

The PPB received an evaluation report on the 3MG skills and recruitment
project which involved the Halton Employment Partnership handling the
recruitment for the new Tesco chilled distribution centre and the Norbert
Dentressangle recycling unit associated with it.

Members received a progress report on the Enterprising Halton Programme
its aim is to promote a culture of enterprise across the Borough and supporting
the creation of new business start ups since it was launched in April 2007.
The Enterprising Halton Programme is now well established as an Enterprise
development support project that is very much valued by potential
entrepreneurs, new business start ups, and the private sector led Enterprise
Board, the Chamber of Commerce and Jobcentre Plus.

Page 314



The Comprehensive Spending Review and Employment Learning and
Skills

A report on the policy developments relating to the Employment Learning and
Skills agenda arising out of the CSR was provided

?./($/61$-(@27(#7/3(-1(%&<1$5(-./(AA0>7(74$#-%&=(-16%4(B"/<%4%-(A18%4%/7(2&3(-./
%5624-(1<(-./($/4/77%1&! 

Construction Halton

Members of the PPB received a first report on the implementation of the
Construction Employment Integrator model (now re-named Construction
Halton).

Construction Halton is focused on facilitating a range of measures to deliver
community benefits from construction related work, in the form of employment,
apprenticeships, training and work experience opportunities.

The aims of Construction Halton are to provide a mechanism that will:-

 ensure people from disadvantaged groups and areas within Halton are
able to access jobs and training opportunities arising in the construction
industry; and 

 promote the growth of local SMEs through supply chain linkages.

The Board considered a report on the development of the Halton Child &
Family Poverty Strategy and sought endorsement of the draft strategy.

The Board considered a report on proposed work priorities in respect of
Employment Learning and Skills agenda for the next financial year.
These are: -

 Maximising Single Programme Opportunities;
 Focus On Employer Facing Services;
 Halton Employment Partnership;
 Construction Halton;
 Science Halton;
 The Science Halton Routeway;
 Other Opportunities e.g. Regional Growth Fund; ERDF Business; and
 Support Programme.

The Board considered a second report on the implementation of the 
Construction Halton project. The report also shared the recruitment and
training workflow model highlighting the Council Departments and partner
organisations that would be involved when undertaking procurement exercises
and negotiating planning agreements, focussed on achieving Construction

Page 315



Halton job and training outcomes

The Board also received a presentation on procurement which

 Set out what had been done so far externally i.e. Partnership with
Halton Chamber of Commerce and Local Businesses Engagement;

 C%'.8%'.-/3(-./(/&'2'/5/&-(@%-.(D#7%&/77/7(;(-.2-(-./$/(.23(D//&
EFG(2--/&3//7H(419/$%&'()FI(81428(D#7%&/77(2&3(-.2-(JK(6/168/(.23
2--/&3/3(51$/(-.2&(1&/(/9/&- ( (L//3D24M(<$15(-./(/9/&- (.23(2871
D//&(9/$=(617%-%9/N

 O#-8%&/3 (?./ (:./7- (P/'%7-$2-%1& (; (-.2- (-./$/ (.23 (D//& (2 (EEQ
%&4$/27/(7%&4/(R#&/()*+*H(<$15()SG(-1(F+K(27(2-()I(L/D$#2$=()*++
2&3(+EJ(&/@(81428(D#7%&/77/7(.23(2871($/'%7-/$/3N

The Board considered a report which outlined the delivery of Community
Development in 2009/10.

It was reported that the purpose of Community Development was to build
relationships with our communities, to help groups and networks of people
take joint action on matters that concerned them. It was also about
enabling individuals to influence the decisions that affected their lives.

The Board were informed that to do this the Community Development
combined a number of aspects which were outlined in the report for
information. The Board was advised of the service performance and
service development which detailed the following:

 Starter Grants; 
 Community Development Grants; 
 Voluntary Youth Organisation Grants; and 
 Bursaries.

The Board also received a report which outlined the Annual Report for
Voluntary Sector Funding. The report provided performance information
on the 12 organisations Core Grant supported in 2009/10, which were
detailed in the report for information.

Page 316



WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2011/12

The Board has decided that during the current municipal year (2011/12) it will
carry out Topic reviews examining the following areas:
T66$/&-%4/7.%67N(02$$%/$7(-1(U5681=5/&-(<$15(2&(U5681=/$(6/$76/4-%9/N
T77/775/&-(1<(-./(V5624-(1<(-./(W19/$&5/&->7("/<%4%-(618%4%/7(1&(U5681=5/&-
8/2$&%&'(2&3(XM%887(%&(C28-1& 

Members of the Public are welcome at the meetings of the Board.  If you
would like to know where and when meetings are to be held or if you
would like any more information about the Board or its work please 

contact (Wesley Rourke, Operational Director, Economy, Enterprise and 

Employment)

Page 317



Page 318

This page is intentionally left blank



    

(I  
Cllr. Ron Hignett 

Chairman 

Annual Report 

Environment and Urban Renewal  

Policy and Performance Board 

April 2010 – March 2011 

  
‘’I would first like to thank all of the Members of the Environment and Urban Renewal 
PPB for their efforts and support throughout the year. The Board has scrutinised a 
substantial volume of work in increasingly challenging times. These efforts have 
undoubtedly helped with the continued regeneration of the Borough and its 
environment.  
 
With a broader remit than previous years, the Board has had to consider and respond 
to a wider range of issues and it has managed to do this admirably. This demonstrates 
not only a very high level of commitment but also a positive attitude to examining and 
resolving matters that are brought before Members.   I am convinced that the Board’s 
experience and abilities combine to improve the quality of life in Halton and the 
opportunities afforded to its communities.’’ 
 
Councillor Hignett 
Chairman, Environment and Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
 

MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

During 2010/11 the Board comprised eleven Councillors – 

 
Councillor Ron Hignett (Chairman)   Labour 
Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-Chairman)  Labour 
Councillor Philip Balmer    Independent 
Councillor Peter Blackmore   HLIP 
Councillor Ellen Cargill     Labour 
Councillor John Gerrard    Labour 
Councillor Mike Hodgkinson    Liberal Democrat 
Councillor Paul Nolan     Labour 
Councillor Christopher Rowe    Liberal Democrat 
Councillor Dave Thompson   Labour 
Councillor Kevan Wainwright    Labour 
 
 

The Environment and Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board’s primary function is to 
focus on the work of the Council (and its partners) in seeking to bring about the 
Environmental and Urban Renewal of the Borough.  It is also charged with scrutinising 
progress against the Corporate Plan in relation to the Environment and Urban Renewal 
Priority.  

 

The Board is responsible for scrutinising performance and formulating policy in relation to the 
following areas: 

 
• Highways Transportation & Logistics 
• Landscape Services, Parks & Countryside, Cemeteries & Crematoria  
• Environmental and Regulatory Services 

Page 319



• Major Projects 
• Economic Regeneration and Business Development 
• Waste Management 
• Contaminated Land 
• Sustainability, Climate Change and Biodiversity 
• Physical Environment  
 

REVIEW OF THE YEAR 

The full Board met 5 times during the year.  As well as considering Executive Board decisions 
relevant to the work of the Environment and Urban Renewal Board, agreeing the Service 
Plans of the relevant Departments and monitoring their general activities and performance 
against them, set out below are some of the main activities and issues which the Board has 
worked on during the year. 
 

Corporate Responsibilities  

• The PPB received the minutes of the Urban Renewal SSP. 
 

• The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Resources which provided 
information on the progress towards meeting Halton’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy targets at 2009-10 financial year end. 

 
• The Board considered a report which gave Members an update on the progress of the 

new Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) 2011 – 2026 and presented the 
emerging vision, key objectives and long term priorities that the plan sought to deliver 
upon. The Board was advised that an updated SCS for Halton was currently at an 
advanced stage of preparation and would become ‘live’ from April 2011. 

 
• The Board considered a report which informed Members of a petition relating to traffic 

conditions in Falkirk Avenue, Upton Rocks, Widnes.  The petition requested that the 
Council build a new road to divert traffic away from Falkirk Avenue. A number of 
potential courses of action had been investigated and were outlined in the report.  
Traffic conditions will continue to be monitored. 

 
• The Board was advised that a petition signed by 99 people had been received via 

Pastor Frank Wilding of Brook Chapel, Boston Avenue,   requesting traffic calming 
measures (speed bumps) be installed in Castle Rise, Runcorn.  The request was 
examined and declined. 

 

• The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director – Resources which provided 
an update on Business Planning for the period 2011-14 and the Directorate priorities, 
objectives and targets for services for this period that fell within the remit of the Board. 

 
• The Board considered a report which informed Members of a petition that had been 

received from a group of residents who lived at 1 to 8 The Copse, requesting that the 
Council provide lighting on the access way to their houses.  

 
 

 
Highways and Transportation 

• The PPB agreed nominations of Members to sit on the Council’s Public Transport 
Advisory Panel for the 2010/11 municipal year. 

 
• The Board agreed that the Chair and Vice Chair of the Environment and Urban 

Renewal Policy and Performance Board sit on the Consultation Review Panel as may 
be required from time to time. 

Page 320



 
• The Board considered a report which outlined the current practice relating to the 

provision of grit storage bins and manual gritting of footpaths, and proposed 
improvements for the delivery of the service in the future.  

 
• The Board considered a report on the impact of Government funding reductions on 

the Cheshire Safer Roads Partnership (CSRP) and how these would affect Halton 
 
• The Board considered a report which advised the Members of the progress that had 

been made during 2009/10 on implementing the capital programme of schemes to 
support the strategies and policies contained within Halton’s second Local Transport 
Plan (LTP2). 

 
• The Board considered a report which gave details of road traffic collision and casualty 

numbers within the Borough in the year 2009 and recommended a continuance of 
road traffic collision reduction work. 
 

• The Board received an update on the implications of the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 for Halton and information on the status of the various plans 
and funding arrangements which supported its introduction. The Board considered a 
report on the progress on the development of Halton’s Surface Water Management 
Plan (SWMP), the Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA) and the timescales in 
relation to other flood risk management related matters. 

 
• Members considered a report the establishment of the Mersey Gateway 

Environmental Trust, as part of the mitigation scheme for the Mersey Gateway which 
provided an update on progress in the establishment of the Trust and the reasons for 
its establishment. 

 

Economic Regeneration and Business Development 

 
• The Board considered a report which provided an update on the 3MG skills and 

recruitment project which involved the Halton Employment Partnership (HEP) 
handling the recruitment for the new Tesco chilled distribution centre and the Norbert 
Dentressangle recycling unit associated with it. 

 
• The Board considered a report which gave Members an update on the 

implementation of the Construction Employment Integrator Model (now re-named 
Construction Halton).  The report also set out the action plan for the next phase of the 
Project to March 2011. 

 

Environmental and Regulatory Services 

• The Board considered reports which provided members with a copy of the draft 
Household Waste Collection Policy for comment and endorsement.  Adoption of the 
Policy was recommended and a Waste Management Topic Group was established to 
scrutinise the process. 

 
• The Board considered a report which outlined revisions to the Council’s policy on 

memorial safety testing in the light of new guidance issued by The Ministry of Justice. 
In addition, the report also assessed a partnership approach with Knowsley 
Metropolitan Borough Council for the use of Widnes crematorium by Knowsley 
residents.  Members were also updated on the progress in developing new cemetery 
space in Halton. 

 
• The Board considered a report which outlined the Council’s powers in relation to the 

collection of abandoned shopping trolleys and proposed that recommendations be 

Page 321



made in respect of the adoption of an Abandoned Shopping Trolley Policy.   
 
• The Board received a presentation which provided Members with information on the 

Rewards for Recycling Scheme. The Board was advised that in October 2009 the 
Council became only the second local authority in the UK to introduce the Recycle 
Bank ‘Rewards for Recycling Scheme’ and the first to introduce the scheme to an 
established kerbside multi-material recycling service. 

 

Housing 

• The Board considered a report which sought its views on the proposal by Plus Dane 
Housing Association to introduce a local lettings policy to allocate the new properties 
being constructed as part of the Castlefields Village Square redevelopment 

 

WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2011/2012 

The Board has decided that during the current municipal year (2011/12) it will carry out Topic 
reviews examining the following areas: 

 
The Board was advised that the Household Waste Collection Policy would be considered by 
the Executive Board on 17

th
 March 2011. It was suggested that Members of the Board may 

wish to scrutinise the new Household Waste Collection Policy following its adoption. 
Furthermore, a review of waste collection operations meant that the Waste Management Topic 
Group needed to be re-established. It was resolved that the Divisional Manager Waste and 
Environmental Improvement, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, 
reconstitute the membership of the Waste Management Topic Group. 
 

 

Members of the Public are welcome at the meetings of the Board.  If you 

would like to know where and when meetings are to be held or if you 

would like any more information about the Board or its work please 

contact  Mick Noone on 0151 471 7370 or mick.noone@halton.gov.uk 

 

Page 322



 1 

ANNUAL REPORT 

HEALTH POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARD 

APRIL 2010 – MARCH 2011 

   

 
Cllr Ellen Cargill 

Chairman 

 
 

As Chair of the Health Policy and Performance Board, I would like to thank all the members of 

the Board for their contribution to the Board’s work during this year.  I would particularly like 

to thank Cllr Lowe for her support as Vice Chair to the Board.  I would also like to thank all 

those who contributed to the work topics for their commitment and time.  

 

2010/11 has been a busy year and the Board received a number of reports linked to the 

Government’s White Paper: Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS. The implications of 

the White Paper will mean a significant change to our current ways of working.   

 

During the year, the Board received information on a number of Annual Reviews, including 

the Annual report on Customer Care and Valuing People Now, and also had the opportunity 

to comment on a number of draft strategies including the Telecare Strategy and the 

Sustainable Community Strategy.  

 

 

MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

During 2010/11 the Board comprised ten Councillors:- 

 

Councillor Ellen Cargill; 

Councillor D Austin,; 

Councillor R Gilligan;  

Councillor M Horabin;  

Councillor M Lloyd-Jones;  

Councillor J Lowe; 

Councillor M Dennett;  

Councillor M Fry; 

Councillor E Ratcliffe; and  

Councillor M Bradshaw.   

 

LINk representation is through a co-optee Paul Cooke.  

 

The primary function of the Board is to focus on the work of the Council (and its Partners) in 

seeking to improve health in the Borough and to scrutinise progress against the aims and 

objectives outlined in the Council’s Corporate Plan in relation to the Health priority. 

 

 

Page 323



 2 

REVIEW OF THE YEAR 

 

The Board met seven times this year.  One meeting was a special meeting to consider 

Cheshire and Merseyside Vascular Review.  As in previous years there were full agendas for 

each of the planned meetings, and the Board received reports and presentations on a wide 

range of Health and Social Care issues.  These included:- 

 

Government Policies on both Adult Social Care and NHS 

 

Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS (White Paper).  Proposals to change commissioning 

within the NHS have been described as the largest change since 1974 including transfer of 

commissioning to GP’s and the abolition of Primary Care Trusts and the Strategic Health 

Authority.  Councils will be responsible for integration, partnership and leading on the new 

statutory Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 

The Board also received a report on Adult Social Care, A Vision for Adult Social Care and a 

new performance framework based on outcomes.  The Board will be keen to look at future 

proposals from the government on the cost of Adult Social Care in the forthcoming year. 

 

Strategies: 

 

The Board received a number of draft strategies to comment on including:- 

 

• Telecare Strategy:  The Board noted the need to mainstream Telecare Services to 

promote independence, particularly for older people and to obtain best value for the 

Council.   
 

• Affordable Warmth: Healthy Halton Policy and Performance Board fully supported this 

strategy recognising that to maintain people requiring support to continue to live in their 

own homes then basic requirements such as keeping warm needed to be addressed.   
 

• Sustainable Community Strategy: As in previous years improving health remains a 

priority in Halton and is contained within this Strategy.  It was notable that some health 

information for example, cancer statistics for residents under 75, gave rise to concern 

and much work remains to be done to improve the health of residents. The Board will 

continue to monitor health progress on a regular basis. 
 

• Transition Strategy: 14-25:  This was also presented to Children’s Young People’s Policy 

and Performance Board as it is important both Children and Adult services work closely 

together to support young people who require additional services to fulfil their potential.  

The Transition Strategy has now been extended to young people up to 25 years, 

recognising that some young people need services for a number of years during this 

period in their lives.  The Board continues to support this work and will monitor progress 

in the forthcoming years. 
 

Page 324



 3 

 Annual Reviews:  
 

• The Health Policy and Performance Board continued to receive reports on a variety of 

services to ensure that progress had been made. 
 

• The Annual Report on Customer Care was received and it was noted that the numbers of 

complaints have decreased while the number of compliments had increased.  It was 

recognised that this is an important report as in addition to performance monitoring of 

national indicators, it offers both qualitative and quantitative information.  
 

• Valuing People Now:  Members received the Annual Self Assessment of Halton’s Learning 

Disability Partnership and its work.  In addition, members received a presentation from 

Halton Speak Out noting the importance of Valuing People Now for People with Learning 

Disabilities.  This presentation was well received. 
 

• Health Issues: Throughout the year Healthy Halton Policy and Performance Board have 

received reports on health both at a national and local level to inform the Board’s work.  

Presentations have been received on service redesign of Dental Services, which in the 

past has been a Work Topic.   
 

• Members’ also received a report on the Emergency Duty Team statutory service that is 

run in partnership with St Helens Council.  The partnership has been very successful and 

throughout the inspections that have taken place this year, the Emergency Duty Team 

has been noted to offer an excellent service. 
 

• Options for the use of Cheshire and Merseyside Treatment Centre:  Members’ are keen 

to ensure that Halton residents benefit from this building which is of a very high standard. 
 

• Widnes GP Health Centre, Health Care Resource Centre:  A redesign of services to ensure 

that those most vulnerable can access GP services. 
 

WORK TOPICS 

The Health Policy and Performance Board received a report on the review of Employment for 

People with Mental Health, Physical Disabilities or Learning Disabilities. The 

recommendations were agreed and an action plan has been drawn up.  This report was taken 

to Executive Board.  This topic had been chosen as people with mental health issues, physical 

disabilities or learning disabilities have often found it difficult to access meaningful 

employment and the Board wished to look at what barriers there were in detail. 
 

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults: The Health Policy and Performance Board have continued to 

receive regular reports on this important area of work.  Good progress has been made 

throughout the year on improving and strengthening safeguarding arrangements on a 

partnership basis, as evidenced in the Annual Report that was presented members.  This year 

also saw an Inspection of Safeguarding Adults by the Care Quality Commission and the 

Council was judged to be performing excellently in safeguarding adults and supporting 

increased choice and control for older people, and performing well in supporting improved 

health and wellbeing of older people.  A number of processes have been improved to 

continue this work including the revision of policies and procedures. 

 

Forthcoming Work Topics 2011/12 

The Health Policy and Performance Board have prioritised one Work Topic this year in 

recognition to scrutinise, in depth, an important subject. 

 

Page 325



 4 

 

 
PERFORMANCE ISSUES 

The Health Policy and Performance Board continue to receive quarterly monitoring reports 

on Social Care performance and also receive the report on the Care Quality Commission 

rating on Halton.   

 

Halton Adult Social Care was judged to be excellent both through Inspection and through its 

annual performance this year.  Performance has continued to remain strong in many areas 

including the following: 

 

• Joint Intermediate Care Services between Halton and St Helens NHS and Halton Borough 

Council 

• Numbers of Older People and Adults continue to be supported at home 

• Good shared service with St Helens for Emergency Duty Team offering emergency 

services to residents both in Halton and St Helens 

• Numbers of carers receiving services to support in their caring responsibilities 

 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11 

The Health Policy & Performance Board has agreed one Work Topic for this year, which is a 

new requirement placed on the Local Authority and which recognises the quality of services 

received by those people needing support.   

 

• Dignity in Care  

 This Work Topic carried out this year has just concluded and the Board looks forward to 

receiving a report in June 2011. 

 

• Services for People with an Autistic Spectrum Disorder 

 The Council is required to establish a strategy to ensure that services are available to 

meet the needs of those people who have a wide spectrum of need with this disorder.  

Terms of Reference will be agreed at the June 2011 Policy and Performance Board. 

 

 

Councillor Ellen Cargill 

Chairman, Healthy Halton Policy and Performance Board 

 

Page 326



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 25th May 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Policy and Resources 
  
 
SUBJECT: Standards Committee Annual Report 
 
WARDS:  N/A 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To summarise the work of the Committee in the last municipal year and 

to recommend members to invite Council to note the Report. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Report be noted and referred to Council for information. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 During the municipal year the Standards Committee was made up of 

eleven members, comprising of four independent members, two Parish 
Councillors, and five members of Halton Borough Council.  The 
Membership during the year was Mr. Bill Badrock (Chairman), Mr. Tony 
Luxton (Vice Chairman), Mr. Robert Garner, Mrs. Anita Morris Parish 
Councillor, Bernie Allen Parish Councillor, Canon David Felix, 
Councillor Peter Murray, Councillor Stan Parker, Councillor Linda 
Redhead, Councillor John Swain and Councillor Kevan Wainwright. 

 
 The Committee met on four occasions throughout the municipal year. 
 
3.2 The role of the Standards Committee is to: 
 

� Help Councillor and Co-opted Members to observe the Members 
Code of Conduct 

� Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors, 
Co-opted Members, and Church and Parent Governor 
Representatives 

� Advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members 
Code of Conduct 

� Monitor the operation on the Members Code of Conduct  
� Provide training to Councillors and Co-opted members on matters 

relating to the Members Code of Conduct 
� Deal with complaints against Councillors and Parish Councillors 
 Deal with matters concerning politically restricted posts  
� Deal with dispensations relating to declarations of interest. 
 

Agenda Item 12iPage 327



3.3 At the first meeting of the municipal year, the Committee received a 
report from, the Strategic Director, Resources which outlined the local 
application of the systems for Declaration of Interests by Members in 
order to maintain the values of good governance and acceptable 
behaviour.  The Committee was informed that integrity in local 
government was essential to command the confidence of the 
community and of all organisations with which the Council came in into 
contact.  It was further noted that it was relevant also in relation to 
finance, competing for limited national and regional resources, and 
recruitment.  Personal and Personal and Prejudicial interests were 
defined, and the Report set out Halton’s Best Practice.  It was pointed 
out that the Register of Members Interests was held by the Principal 
Committee Services Officer and a Register of Gifts and Hospitality was 
also maintained by her  where members were required to register any 
gifts and hospitality worth £25 or over received in connection with 
official duties as a Member, together with the identity of the giver of the 
gift or hospitality.  It was proposed that a similar Report be brought to 
the Committee on a yearly basis. 

 The Committee received and considered guidance from Standards for 
England on the Benefits and disadvantage of social networking 
communication and blogging and on the role of Members of more than 
one authority in relation to the Code.  

 The Members received regular updates of information coming out from 
Standards for England, together with digests of cases which had been 
heard in other authorities. 

 
� A revised version of the Members Code of Conduct had been 

expected to be released during the year, but this changed after the 
General Election when the new Government indicated its intention 
to do away with a Statutory Code of Conduct and the need for local 
Standards Committees.  These matters are contained in the 
Localism Bill, and Members of the Committee received regular 
updates. 

 No complaints were received during the year which required the 
consideration of the Assessment Sub-Committee.  

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton  
  None 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton  

Page 328



  None 
6.3 A healthy Halton Borough Council 
 None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton  
  None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal  
            None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The Report of itself does not contain specific Equality and Diversity 

issues 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 None  
 
 

Page 329



Page 330

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT:   Council 
 
DATE:   20 July 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Policy and Resources 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointments to Outside Bodies 
 
WARDS:   Boroughwide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 To review the Council’s representation on outside bodies. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the Council  
 

1) note, that after consultation with the Leader, the Chief 
Executive had, under delegated powers (Matter of Urgency, 
Constitution), appointed representatives to the Cheshire Fire 
Authority and the Manchester Port Health Authority, as 
detailed in the attached list; and  

 
2) appoint representatives to the outside bodies. 

 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Each year the Council undertakes a review of its membership on 

outside bodies. In accordance with this practice, a review has been 
undertaken and recommendations to serve on the various bodies have 
been put forward. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – none. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – none. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton –none. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – none. 
 

Agenda Item 12jPage 331



6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – none. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
 None. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
 None. 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 None under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 

Page 332



Organisation/Body Title

HBC 

Contact

Contact 

Name Building Road Town Representative Name – 2011/12

Association of Civic Hosts Sir/Madam 32 Ainderby Road Romanbey Northallerton Cllr M Wharton

Castlefields Community Forum Sir/Madam Chester Close Castlefields Runcorn Cllr Cole, E. Cargill & Howard

Chemical Museum Trust E. Cheers Catalyst Museum Mersey Road Widnes Cllrs Wallace & Edge

Cheshire County Playing Fields Association Sir/Madam 96 Lower Bridge Street Chester Cllr P Harris

Cheshire Fire Authority Ms Joanne Smith Cheshire Fire Authority Winsford Chester Cllrs Polhill, Nelson & Redhead (CONFIRMED)

Cheshire Pension Fund Heidi Catherall Cheshire County Council County Hall Chester Cllrs Wharton & Lowe as a sub

Cheshire Police Authority Mr M. Sellwood Cheshire Police Authority Constabulary H.Q, Clemonds Hey, 

Oakmere Road

Winsford, 

Cheshire, CW7 

Cllr D. Cargill

Cheshire Valuation Tribunal Mr A. Shipsides 2nd Floor, Cunard Building Pier Head Liverpool Cllr K Wainwright

Court of the University of Liverpool Miss C.M. Jones University of Liverpool Foundation Building, Brownlow Hill Liverpool L69 7ZX Cllr J Swain (they changed it to T McInerney 20.5.11)

Daresbury Public Sector Joint Venture 

Board

Cllr McInerney

Deafness Support Network Management 

Support Officer

144 London Road Northwich CW9 5HH Cllr Wright

Disability Partnership Board Ms Helen Moir Transformation Team Floor 1, Runcorn Town Hall, Heath 

Road, Runcorn

WA7 5TD Cllr Wright

Early Years' and Childcare Partnership E Taylor/J Potter Chester Bldg, Grosvenor 

House

Halton Lea Runcorn  Cllrs J. Swain and Dennett 

European New Towns Platform P. Gaborat 65 Rue de Canal 1000 Brussells Belgium Cllr D Cargill

Groundwork Merseyside Ms Louise 

Goodman

8 Columbus Quay Rierside Drive, Liverpool L3 4DB Cllrs T. McInerney & J Gerrard

Halton Borough Transport Mr C Adams Halton Transport Bus Depot Moor Lane Widnes Cllrs Wainwright, Wharton, Philbin, J Gerrard & 

Wallace

Halton Citizens' Advice Bureau H.N. Patal Unit 3, Victoria Building Lugsdale Road Widnes WA8 6DJ Cllrs Dennett & Gilligan

Halton Community Transport Mr D Prince Halton Community Transport 33 Ditton Road Widnes  WA8 0PP Cllr Ellen Cargill - wef 020311

Halton Development Partnership Ltd Mr E. Burrows Manchester Ship Canal Co. Peel Dome Trafford Centre Cllr R. Polhill and M. Wharton

Halton Housing Trust Board Mr N Atkin Halton Housing Trust, Head 

Office

Daresbury Point, Greenwood Drive Manor Park, 

Runcorn WA7 1UG

Cllrs 1 Labour Vacancy, Swain, Gilligan and M. 

Ratcliffe

P
a
g
e
 3

3
3



Halton Housing Trust Customer Forum Ms Tierney

Halton Housing Trust, Head 

Office

Daresbury Point, Greenwood Drive Manor Park, 

Runcorn WA7 1UG

Cllrs Wainwright(West Widnes) Parker (Widnes East) 

J Lowe (Runcorn)

Halton Play Council Mr S Duncan Play Resource Centre 10 Mersey Road Runcorn WA7 1DF Cllrs C. Loftus, Dennett, J. Lowe & Opposition

Halton Rugby League Service Area Mrs Rhoden Sports Development Officer Halton Borough Council Widnes Cllr Harris

Halton and St Helens Tabacco Harm 

Reduction Group 

Mr T Miller Halton Primary Care Trust Lister Road, Astmoor Runcorn WA7 1TW Opposition

Halton Village Millennium Green Trust Prof. J Allen Castle View' The Underway, Halton Village Cheshire WA7 2AJ Cllr E. Cargill

Halton & St Helens Voluntary Action Ms D Darby Sefton House Public Hall Street Runcorn, WA7 

1NG

Cllr Jones

Halton YMCA Mr J. Mackie Halton Lodge Avenue Halton Lodge Runcorn Cllr E Cargill J Swain, C. Plumpton Walsh & J. Lowe

Ineos Chlor Community Forum Mrs J. Ward Ineos Chlor Limited Runcorn Site HQ, South Parade, PO Box 9, 

Runcorn, WA7 4JE
Runcorn Cllr A.Lowe

Ineos Local Liaison Forum

Janet Ward
Cllrs D Cargill, M Dennett, A Lowe, M Hodgkinson, N. 

Plumpton Walsh & Opposition

Knights Charity Mrs D Follet Shared Admin Services,  

Municipal Building

Kingsway Widnes Mr S Hill & Mr D Reynolds

LGA Public Transport Consortium Cllr Stockton

Liverpool Airport Consultative Committee Mike A Jones Cheshire County Council Room 251 County Hall Chester Cllr Stockton

Liverpool City Region Employment Strategy 

Board Ms L. Cairns Knowsley Borough Council Municipal Buildings, Archway Road Huyton, L36 9YU

Cllr Eddie Jones

Liverpool City Region Environment and 

Waste Board
Jimmy 

Unsworth

Mr S Maddox Cheshire Lines Canning Street Birkenhead CH41 

1ND

Cllr Stef Nelson

Liverpool City Region Housing and Spatial 

Planning Board

Carole Hudson St Helen's Council Contact Centre, Wesley House Corporation Street, 

St Helens, WA10 

Cllr Harris

Local Government Assoc. (Urban 

Commission)

Sir.Madam

Local Government House Smith Square London SW1P 3HZ

Cllr McDermott

Local Government Assoc.(NW Branch) Sir.Madam

Local Government House Smith Square London SW1P 3HZ

Cllrs McDermott, Wharton & Opposition

Local Government Information Unit Sir/Madam 1/5 Bath Street 1/5 Bath Street London Cllr T. McDermott

Local Implementation Group for CHD Sir/Madam Halton Primary Care Trust Lister Road, Astmoor Runcorn Cllr Wright

Manchester Port Health Authority Mr J. Robinson Dutton House 46 Church Street Runcorn WA7 1LL Cllr Wainwright (confirmed for 2011)

Mersey Forest Steering Committee Sir/Madam Mersey Forest Offices Risley Moss, Birchwood Warrington Cllr T. McInerney & Opposition

Mersey Gateway Environment Trust

Paul Oldfield
Cllr Thompson

Merseyside Culture Forum Anrdew McCormick Knowsley Borough Council P.O Box 22, Municipal Bldg Archway Rd, 

Huyton

Cllr Jones

P
a
g

e
 3

3
4



Merseyside Strategic Transport Committee Mr Fay Liverpool City Council Municipal Building, Dale Street Liverpool, L2 2DH Cllrs Stockton & Nelson (sub)

Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority 

J. Unsworth

Ms Valentine Merseyside Waste Disposal 

Authority

6th Floor, North House, 17 North 

John Street Liverpool L2 5QY

Cllr S. Nelson

Murdishaw Community Centre Sir/Madam Murdishaw Community 

Centre

Barnfield Road, Murdishaw Runcorn Cllr D Cargill

National Association of British Market 

Authorities

Mr D. Preston Oswestry Town Council Oswestry Shropshire Cllr Wainwright (confirmed for 2011)

North West Local Authorities Employers 

Organisation

Sir/madam 6th Floor Delphian House New Bailey Street Manchester M3 

5AP

Cllr A. Lowe and J.Roberts (Sub)

North West Regioinal Housing Board Mike Cryan Merseyside Policy Unit 12 Princes Parade, Liverpool, L3 1BG Cllr P Harris

North West Regional Assembly

Mr. P Robinson

Wigan Investment Centre Waterside Drive Wigan WN3 5BA No Longer Operating

North Western Home Safety Council North Wester 

Home Safety 

West Grove West Park St Helens WA10 

4AH

Cllr Osborne

North Western Shadow Inshore Fisheries 

and Conservation Authority

North Western Sea 

Fisheries 

1 Preston Street, Carnforth Lancashire LA5 9BY Cllr McInerney

Norton Priory Museum Trust

Ms C McDade 

Norton Priory Museum Tudor Road, Manor Park Runcorn Cllrs P. Nolan, J. Swain, S. Edge

Police Question Time (formerley Halton 

'Have your Say' Police Forum)

Mr M Eaton Cheshire Police Authority Constabulary H.Q, Clemonds Hey, 

Oakmere Road

Winsford, 

Cheshire, CW7 

Cllrs Swain, S Edge & D.Cargill 

Reserve Forces & Cadet Association Sir/Madam Alexandra Court 28 Alexandra Drive Liverpool, L17 8YE Wainwright

Riverside College, Lesley Venables/ 

Wesley Rourke

Halton College Kingsway Widnes Cllr J Swain

Rocksavage Community Liaison Group Ms C. Riley Pendragon Consultants Ltd 2nd Floor, 24 Exchange Quay Manchester M5 

3EQ

Cllr A. Lowe

Runcorn General War Relief Fund Mrs D Folett Shared Admin Services, 

Municipal Building

Kingsway Widnes Cllrs Dennett and Nelson 

Rural Commission Ms Stribling Local Government 

Association

Local Government House, Smith 

Square London SW1P 3HZ Cllr T McInerney & T. McDermott (sub) 

SACRE Mr A Hallett Chester Bldg, Grosvenor 

House

Halton Lea Runcorn Cllrs Dennett, Swain and Rowe

Sankey Canal Restoration Society (SCARS) Mr P. G. Keen c/o The Groundwork Trust 27 Shaw Street St Helens Opposition

Schools Forum Ms A McIntyre Grovesnor House Halton Lea Runcorn Cllr Dennett

SIGOMA Mr P. Coppard Chief Executive Barnsley 

M.B.C.

P.O. Box14, Town Hall Barnsley Cllr Wharton

T H Brown Trust Mr Eastup 17 Beaufort Close Runcorn WA7 4AB Cllr Nelson (NB: appointed until he resigns - does not 

need to be re-appointed each year…) 

The Cheshire Safer Roads Partnership

Mick Noone/Stephen Rimmer
Being disbanded for 2011

The Mid-Mersey Housing Growth Point 

Board Mick Noone
Cllr Harris

P
a
g
e
 3

3
5



Trans Pennine Trail Ms Loach Trans Pennine Trail Office c/o Barnsley MBC Planning & 

Transportation, PO 
No Longer Meets

Warrington, Widnes & District Society for 

the Blind

Mr R. Davies Rex Furness Centre 4 Museum Street Warrington Cllr A. McInerney

Warrington & Halton Hospitals, NHS 

Foundation Trust

Ms Jane Holmes Lovely Lane, Warrington WA5 1QG Cllr Edge

Widnes Educational Foundation Mrs D Follet Shared Admin Services, 

Municipal Building

Kingsway Widnes WA8 9LQ Cllrs Dennett, Browne,  Leadbetter, McDermott & 

Parker

Whiston Hospital Trust new for 2011/12

WREN Mr R Smith Wren House, Manor Farm Bridgham, Norwich Norfolk  NR16 2RX Cllr R. Higgnett

P
a
g

e
 3

3
6


	Agenda
	12a Local HealthWatch Pathfinders (Minute EXB 5 refers)
	12b Transport Capital Implementation Programme 2011/12 ( Minute EXB 7 refers)
	12c Shopmobility (Minute ES4 refers)
	12d Adults and Community Capital Programme (Minute EXB 15 refers)
	12e Changes to Procurement Standing Orders (Minute EXB 17 refers)
	FinalDocumentProcurementSOValueChangesApp1200611
	D1 09 06 -11 SO Value Threshold Changes app 2

	12f Halton Core Strategy - Submission to the Secretary of State - KEY DECISION (Minute EXB 18 refers)
	Appendix A - CS FULL RPS (LowRes).pdf

	12g Children and Young People's Plan 2011-14 - KEY DECISION (MInute EXB 19 refers)
	CYPP 2011 - draft document

	12h Annual Reports of PPBs
	PPB CYP annual report 2010-11 - Draft 1, 23/05/2011 Children,Young People and Families Policy and Performance Board
	Annual Report CS PPB 2010-11, 24/05/2011 Corporate Policy and Performance Board
	Cllr.edgepdf, 08/06/2011 Employment, Learning, Skills and Community Policy and Performance Board
	EUR PPB 15Jun11AnnualRep.doc, 15/06/2011 Environment and Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board
	health ppb annual report 2010-2011.doc, 07/06/2011 Health Policy and Performance Board

	12i Standards Committee Annual Report (Minute STC 3 refers)
	12j Appointments to Outside Bodies
	2011-12


